
           

  AGENDA 
ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR SESSION
January 15, 2014

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
11000 N. LA CAÑADA DRIVE

             

REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM
 

CALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

UPCOMING MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

COUNCIL REPORTS
     •   Spotlight on Youth
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS
 

The Mayor and Council may consider and/or take action on the items listed below:

ORDER OF BUSINESS: MAYOR WILL REVIEW THE ORDER OF THE MEETING
 

CALL TO AUDIENCE  – At this time, any member of the public is allowed to address the Mayor and
Town Council on any issue not listed on today’s agenda. Pursuant to the Arizona Open Meeting
Law, individual Council Members may ask Town Staff to review the matter, ask that the matter be placed
on a future agenda, or respond to criticism made by speakers. However, the Mayor and Council may
not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during “Call to Audience.” In order to speak during
“Call to Audience” please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue speaker card.
 

PRESENTATIONS
 

1.   Presentation of Plaques of Appreciation to Outgoing Board and Commission Members
 

2.   Proclamation - Beat Back Buffelgrass Day
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
(Consideration and/or possible action)
 

A.   Minutes - November 20 and December 4, 2013
 

B.   Fiscal Year 2013/14 Financial Update through October 2013
 

C.   Fiscal Year 2013/14 Financial Update through November 2013
 

D.   Final Plat for the Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-N North residential subdivision, located on the
southwest corner of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive

  



 

E.   Appointments to the Planning and Zoning Commission
 

F.   Resolution No. (R)14-01, providing notice of intent to increase certain development impact
fees for the Town of Oro Valley

 

G.   Resolution No. (R)14-02, approving the annual Legislative Agenda of the Town and protocols
guiding the Town’s priorities for the upcoming legislative session and any lobbying activities

 

H.   Resolution No. (R)14-03, approving a loan in the amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00 from
the Water Infrastructure Finance Authority of Arizona for Oro Valley Water Utility Phases 2, 3 &
4 of the Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Meter Replacement Project; authorizing the
execution and delivery of Loan Agreement No. 920246-14; authorizing the taking of all other
actions necessary to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this resolution
and declaring an emergency

 

I.   Resolution No. (R)14-04, authorizing and approving an easement agreement between the
Town of Oro Valley and the Oro Valley Country Club Inc.

 

REGULAR AGENDA
 

1.   NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF VICE MAYOR
 

2.   PUBLIC HEARING - DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING AN
APPLICATION FOR A SERIES 7 (BEER & WINE BAR) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR QUALITY
INN & SUITES LOCATED AT 7411 N ORACLE ROAD

 

3.   PUBLIC HEARING - DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING AN
APPLICATION FOR A SERIES 9S (LIQUOR STORE W/SAMPLING PRIVILEGES) LIQUOR
LICENSE FOR FRY'S FOOD & DRUG #18 LOCATED AT 10661 N ORACLE ROAD AND
FRY'S FOOD & DRUG #117 LOCATED AT 10450 N LA CANADA DRIVE

 

4.   PUBLIC HEARING:  RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-06, AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING
INCREASES IN WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY
WATER UTILITY

 

5.   RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-07, ADOPTING THE 2013-2023 LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PLANS DATED OCTOBER 4, 2013, FOR THE TOWN
OF ORO VALLEY

 

6.   PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE NO. (O)14-01, AMENDING THE RANCHO VISTOSO
PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT ZONING FOR A 4.9 ACRE PROPERTY, LOCATED AT
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LA CANADA DRIVE AND MOORE ROAD FROM
COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR)

 

7.   DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING EXTENSION OF THE TEMPORARY
USE OF A-FRAMES, NON-PROFIT SIGNS AND OUTDOOR DISPLAYS UNTIL FEBRUARY
2, 2015 (Council Communication updated on 1/13/14 at 4:00 pm)

 

  



             

8. AMENDING SECTION 27.3 AND CHAPTER 31 OF THE ZONING CODE RELATIVE TO
PUBLIC ART

 

a.   RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-08, DECLARING THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE
ORO VALLEY ZONING CODE REVISED SECTION 27.3 AND CHAPTER 31 RELATING
TO PUBLIC ART, PROVIDED AS EXHIBIT "A" WITHIN THE ATTACHED
RESOLUTION AND FILED WITH THE TOWN CLERK, A PUBLIC RECORD

 

b.   PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE NO. (O)14-02, AMENDING SECTION 27.3 AND
CHAPTER 31 OF THE ZONING CODE RELATIVE TO PUBLIC ART

 

9.   RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-05, REPEALING AND REPLACING PERSONNEL POLICIES 2,
DEFINITIONS OF TERMS; 9, PROBATIONARY PERIODS; 10, ATTENDANCE AND
LEAVES; 11, DISCIPLINE; 16, NEPOTISM; 23, DRUG FREE WORKPLACE; 26,
COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; AND INTERNET POLICY;
AND, 29, CONFLICT OF INTEREST

 

10.   DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING WAIVER OF THE
ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE IN ORDER TO  MAKE PUBLIC THE TOWN
ATTORNEY'S OPINION DATED DECEMBER 5, 2013 REGARDING OPEN MEETING LAW

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  (The Council may bring forth general topics for future meeting agendas.
Council may not discuss, deliberate or take any action on the topics presented pursuant to ARS
38-431.02H)
 

CALL TO AUDIENCE  – At this time, any member of the public is allowed to address the Mayor and
Town Council on any issue not listed on today’s agenda. Pursuant to the Arizona Open Meeting
Law, individual Council Members may ask Town Staff to review the matter, ask that the matter be
placed on a future agenda, or respond to criticism made by speakers. However, the Mayor and Council
may not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during “Call to Audience.” In order to speak
during “Call to Audience” please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue speaker
card.
 

ADJOURNMENT
 

POSTED:  1/8/14 at 5:00 p.m. by ms

When possible, a packet of agenda materials as listed above is available for public inspection at least 24
hours prior to the Council meeting in the office of the Town Clerk between the hours of 8:00 a.m. –
5:00p.m.

The Town of Oro Valley complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If any person with a
disability needs any type of accommodation, please notify the Town Clerk’s Office at least five days prior
to the Council meeting at 229-4700.

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO SPEAKERS

Members of the public have the right to speak during any posted public hearing. However, those
items not listed as a public hearing are for consideration and action by the Town Council during
the course of their business meeting. Members of the public may be allowed to speak on these
topics at the discretion of the Chair.

  



If you wish to address the Town Council on any item(s) on this agenda, please complete a speaker card
located on the Agenda table at the back of the room and give it to the Town Clerk. Please indicate on
the speaker card which item number and topic you wish to speak on, or if you wish to speak
during “Call to Audience”, please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue
speaker card.

Please step forward to the podium when the Mayor announces the item(s) on the agenda which you are
interested in addressing.

1. For the record, please state your name and whether or not you are a Town resident.
2. Speak only on the issue currently being discussed by Council. Please organize your speech, you will
only be allowed to address the Council once regarding the topic being discussed.
3. Please limit your comments to 3 minutes.
4. During “Call to Audience” you may address the Council on any issue you wish.
5. Any member of the public speaking must speak in a courteous and respectful manner to those present.

Thank you for your cooperation.

  



Town Council Regular Session Item #   1.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Submitted By: Julie Bower, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Presentation of Plaques of Appreciation to Outgoing Board and Commission Members

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
N/A

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Outgoing members are as follows:

Conceptual Design Review Board
David Atler, 2011 - 2013

Planning and Zoning Commission
D. Alan Caine, 2009 - 2013
Robert E. Swope, 2009 - 2013

Water Utility Commission
John Hoffman, 2006 - 2013
Winston Tustison, 2006 - 2013

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
N/A



Town Council Regular Session Item #   2.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Submitted By: Julie Bower, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Proclamation - Beat Back Buffelgrass Day

RECOMMENDATION:
  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
  

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
  

FISCAL IMPACT:
  

SUGGESTED MOTION:
  

Attachments
Proclamation



rY~o/tIw~c 

®ra ~,tll~1!' ~ri7!aua 

Jrndctmctfinn 
BEAT BACK BUFFELGRASS DAY 

WHEREAS, Buffelgrass (Pennisetum ciliare) poses an immediate threat to the natural 
landscape of the Sonoran Desert: and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley joins with other jurisdictions and agencies to proclaim that 
the time to eradicate Buffelgrass is now; and 

WHEREAS, Buffelgrass, left undeterred, can irrevocably alter the Sonoran Desert by 
competing for water and weaken or kill native desert plants; and 

WHEREAS, Buffelgrass is a fire-prone grass that can fuel frequent and devastating fires, 
hastening the death of native desert plants and stands of Saguaros; and 

WHEREAS, a heightened awareness of the negative impacts of this invasive grass is made 
possible through education; and 

WHEREAS, without a regional effort to control its further spread, this region will face recurring 
grassland fires, loss of existing natural desert and costly economic impacts; and 

WHEREAS, governmental bodies throughout our region accept the shared responsibility to 
recruit volunteers to assist with eradication efforts. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, do 
hereby proclaim January 25 , 2014 to be BEAT BACK BUFFELGRASS DAY in this 
community, and encourage all of our citizens to strongly support volunteer efforts to eradicate 
this invasive and dangerous plant wherever possible. 

Dated this 15th day of January 2014. 

ATTEST: 

{).d£r!~ 
Dr. Satish I. Hiremai:M8YQf 



Town Council Regular Session Item #   A.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Julie Bower Submitted By: Michelle Stine, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Minutes - November 20 and December 4, 2013

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
N/A

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve, approve with the following changes) the November 20 and December 4, 2013
minutes.

Attachments
11/20/13 Draft Minutes
12/4/13 Draft Minutes



11/20/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 1

MINUTES
ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL 

REGULAR SESSION 
November 20, 2013 

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
11000 N. LA CAÑADA DRIVE

REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Hiremath called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Satish Hiremath, Mayor 
Lou Waters, Vice Mayor 
Brendan Burns, Councilmember 
Bill Garner, Councilmember 
Joe Hornat, Councilmember 
Mary Snider, Councilmember 
Mike Zinkin, Councilmember 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Hiremath led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

UPCOMING MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS

Communications Administrator Misti Nowak announced the upcoming Town meetings 
and events. 

COUNCIL REPORTS
   
Councilmember Snider recognized Anne Zlatow, a student at Basis Oro Valley, for her 
extensive accomplishments and contributions to her community.

Councilmember Snider recognized Adam Contrades, Senior at Ironwood Ridge High 
School, for his outstanding service and contributions to his community.

Councilmember Zinkin attended the National League of Cities Community Economic 
Development Exposition in Seattle, at which they discussed the League's Legislative 
Priorities.

Vice Mayor Waters reported on the release of Bighorn sheep in the Catalina Mountains.



11/20/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 2

DEPARTMENT REPORTS

No reports were received. 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Mayor Hiremath reviewed the order of business and stated that the order would stand 
as posted.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

1. Public Safety Providers Quarterly Reports

2. Letter of Appreciation for Oro Valley Police Department

CALL TO AUDIENCE

No comments were received.

PRESENTATIONS

1. Presentation of recently completed Your Voice, Our Future phone survey results

Planning Manager David Williams gave an overview of the Your Voice, Our Future 
survey.

Jan Gordley, President of the Gordley Group, spoke on the results of the phone survey.

Ms. Gordley discussed the following topics: 

-Survey purpose 
-Adopted public participation plan 

Bruce Fohr, President of FMR Associates, discussed the following topics:

-Phone survey basics
-Elements enjoyed most about living in Oro Valley
-Elements enjoyed least about living in Oro Valley
-Overall attitude regarding Oro Valley's Growth
-Focus for Oro Valley to become a more complete or livable community
-Biggest challenges facing Oro Valley in the next ten years
-Importance of various qualities that might describe Oro Valley's future 
-Public safety priorities



11/20/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 3

-Transportation priorities
-Parks and Recreation priorities
-Developing new employment opportunities

Ms. Gordley spoke on the key areas of focus for the future and new areas of attention.

Discussion ensued amongst Council regarding the survey results.

CONSENT AGENDA 

Councilmember Zinkin requested that item (A) be removed from the Consent Agenda 
for discussion.

B. Greater Oro Valley Chamber of Commerce Quarterly Report: July 1, 2013 -
September 30, 2013

C. Visit Tucson Quarterly Report: July 1, 2013 - September 30, 2013

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Garner to approve Consent Agenda items (B) and (C).

MOTION carried, 7-0. 

A. Fiscal Year 2013/14 Financial Update through September 2013

Councilmember Zinkin requested clarification regarding the anticipated General Fund 
reserves for the end of fiscal year 2013/2014.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Zinkin and seconded by 
Councilmember Hornat to approve the Fiscal Year 2013/14 Financial Update through 
September 2013.

MOTION carried, 7-0. 

REGULAR AGENDA

1. PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE NO. (O)13-21, APPROVING A REZONING 
REQUEST FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
OF TANGERINE ROAD AND LA CHOLLA BLVD KNOWN AS MERCADO 
MANDARINA FROM SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R1-144) TO 
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL (C-N) AND COMMERCIAL (C-1)

Senior Planner Matt Michels gave an overview of item #1.

Paul Oland with WLB, representing the property owner, discussed the rezoning request.



11/20/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 4

Mayor Hiremath opened the public hearing.

The following individual spoke on item #1: 

Oro Valley resident Bill Adler

Mayor Hiremath closed the public hearing.

Discussion ensued amongst Council regarding the proposed rezoning request.

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Hornat to approve a rezoning request for the property located at the Northeast corner of 
Tangerine Road and La Cholla Boulevard known as Mercado Mandarina from single 
family residential (R1 - 144) to neighborhood commercial (C - N) and commercial (C -
1), subject to the conditions in Exhibit B, and deleting conditions 7 and 8, and adding a 
condition that is agreed to by the applicant that no skilled nursing or fuel station be 
allowed on the property.

MOTION carried, 7-0. 

2. RESOLUTION NO. (R)13-66, PROVIDING NOTICE OF INTENT TO INCREASE 
WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE ORO VALLEY WATER 
UTILITY

Councilmember Snider excused herself from the meeting at 7:48 p.m.

Town Attorney Kelly Schwab stated that item #2 was a legally required notice of intent 
to adopt rates.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Zinkin and seconded by 
Councilmember Hornat to approve Resolution No. (R)13-66, providing notice of intent to 
increase water rates, fees and charges for the Oro Valley Water Utility.

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

3. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO INITIATE AN ORDINANCE 
LOWERING THE UTILITY TAX

Councilmember Snider returned to the meeting at 7:50 p.m.

Councilmember Garner outlined his proposal for lowering the utility tax.

The following individuals spoke on item #3.

Oro Valley resident Bill Adler
Oro Valley resident Debra Arrett 



11/20/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 5

No action was taken on item #3. 

4. *RESOLUTION NO. (R)13-67, REPEALING AND REPLACING PERSONNEL 
POLICIES 2, DEFINITIONS OF TERMS; 9, PROBATIONARY PERIODS; 10, 
ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES; 11, DISCIPLINE; 16, NEPOTISM; 23, DRUG 
FREE WORKPLACE; 26, COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL USE, RETENTION, & 
STORAGE; AND INTERNET POLICY; AND, 29, CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Item #4 was removed from the agenda on 11/14/13.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Councilmember Hornat requested a Future Agenda Item for Council to discuss the 
possibility of having staff review current Home Occupancy and Bed and Breakfast rules, 
seconded by Vice Mayor Waters. 

Councilmember Zinkin requested a Future Agenda Item to discuss the possibility of 
freezing applications for Independent Living, Skilled Nursing, Assisted Living, and 
Hospice until such definitions have been codified in Town Code, seconded by 
Councilmember Garner.

Councilmember Burns requested a Future Agenda Item to discuss earmarking a portion 
of the Utility Tax for a specific Capital Improvement Plan item, seconded by 
Councilmember Zinkin.

Councilmember Garner requested a Future Agenda Item to discuss alternative revenue 
streams for the Town of Oro Valley, seconded by Councilmember Burns.

Councilmember Garner requested a Future Agenda Item to update the Town Zoning 
Code regarding adding additional uses for Guest Homes, seconded by Councilmember 
Burns.

CALL TO AUDIENCE

No comments were received. 

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Zinkin to adjourn the meeting at 8:28 p.m. 

MOTION carried, 7-0. 

Prepared by:

________________________
Michelle Stine



11/20/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 6

Senior Office Specialist

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the regular session of the Town of Oro Valley Council of Oro Valley, Arizona held on the 
20th day of November 2013.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held 
and that a quorum was present.

Dated this ______ day of _______________________, 2014

____________________________
Julie K. Bower, MMC
Town Clerk



12/4/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 1

MINUTES
ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL 

REGULAR SESSION 
December 4, 2013 

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
11000 N. LA CAÑADA DRIVE

REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Hiremath called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Satish Hiremath, Mayor 
Lou Waters, Vice Mayor 
Brendan Burns, Councilmember 
Bill Garner, Councilmember 
Joe Hornat, Councilmember 
Mary Snider, Councilmember 
Mike Zinkin, Councilmember 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Hiremath led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

UPCOMING MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS

Communications Administrator Misti Nowak announced the upcoming Town meetings 
and events.

COUNCIL REPORTS

Vice Mayor Waters reported that an article about the Town of Oro Valley was recently 
published in US Airways magazine and credited this accomplishment to the Town’s 
Economic Development Department in cooperation with Visit Tucson.

Councilmember Snider attended an Arizona Town Hall event held at the Grand Canyon 
South Rim at which they discussed early childhood education.

DEPARTMENT REPORTS

Town Clerk Julie Bower announced that new artwork was on display in the Council 
Chambers by artist Lowell Richardson.



12/4/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 2

Communications Administrator Misti Nowak made an additional announcement 
regarding upcoming Town meetings and events.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

Mayor Hiremath reviewed the order of business and stated that the order would stand 
as posted. 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

1. Councilmember Snider Trip Report (Nov. 3-6, 2013)

2. Councilmember Zinkin Trip Report (Nov. 12-16, 2013)

3. Letter of Appreciation for Oro Valley Police Department

CALL TO AUDIENCE

Oro Valley resident Robert Schumann said that the Sonoran Flyers would be holding 
their Aviation day at Naranja Park on December 7th.  He encouraged everyone to attend 
this event benefiting the Wounded Warriors Project. 

Oro Valley resident Denise Rose requested support for the U.S. Council of Mayors 
Resolution which endorsed marriage equality for same sex couples.

Oro Valley resident Bill Adler spoke regarding the Town’s public outreach efforts and 
communications.

Representative Steve Smith spoke on TPT reform and presented Council with a flag 
that was flown at the Arizona State Capital on September 11, 2013.

PRESENTATIONS

1. Presentation of Certificates to graduates of the Community Academy - Local 
Governance 101 class

Senior Planner Matt Michels presented Certificates to graduates of the Community 
Academy:

-Brett Archer
-Debra Arrett
-Thomas Drazgowski
-Chrysti Duffin
-Dominic Duffin
-Richard Furash
-Jim Greene



12/4/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 3

-Dana Hailin
-Cindy Hopkins
-Thomas Kamoske
-Myron Marsh
-Jim Mikolaitis
-Monty Miller
-Darlene Modelski
-Michael Stankiewicz
-Danielle Tanner
-Eric Thomae
-Katie Tobkin
-Connie Trail

CONSENT AGENDA 

Councilmember Zinkin requested that item (B) be removed from the Consent Agenda 
for discussion.

A. Minutes - November 6, 2013

C. (Re)appointments to various Boards and Commissions

D. Approval of Model Home Architecture to Fulfill the La Reserve Planned Area 
Development (PAD) Standards for the Pusch Ridge Subdivision Located in La 
Reserve

E. Resolution No. (R)13-68, authorizing and approving a subgrantee agreement 
between the Town of Oro Valley and the Arizona Department of Homeland 
Security to fund overtime and mileage under the Operation Stonegarden program

F. Resolution No. (R)13-69, authorizing and approving a subgrantee agreement 
between the Town of Oro Valley and the Arizona Department of Homeland 
Security to fund the purchase of equipment under the Operation Stonegarden 
program

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Snider and seconded by Vice Mayor 
Waters to approve consent agenda items (A), (C)-(F).

MOTION carried, 7-0. 

B. Approval of 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting Schedule

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Zinkin and seconded by 
Councilmember Garner to approve item (B) with the exception of adding August 6, 2014 
as part of the 2014 Town Council Meeting schedule.



12/4/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 4

MOTION failed, 3-4 with Mayor Hiremath, Vice Mayor Waters, Councilmember Hornat, 
and Councilmember Snider opposed. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Snider and seconded by 
Councilmember Hornat to approve item (B) as presented.

MOTION carried, 5-2 with Councilmember Garner and Councilmember Zinkin opposed. 

REGULAR AGENDA

1. PUBLIC HEARING: ADOPTING THE 2013-2023 LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS 
AND INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR THE TOWN’S 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE UPDATE STUDIES COVERING PARKS, 
POLICE, TRANSPORTATION, ALTERNATIVE WATER SYSTEM AND 
POTABLE WATER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES

Finance Director Stacey Lemos spoke regarding the non-utility development impact 
fees and gave an overview of the impact fees study as listed below:

-Impact fee law changes
-History of OV Impact Fees
-Land use assumptions
-Infrastructure Improvement Plan (IIP)
-Methodology
-Capital Plans - Based on 15-Year Town CIP
-Comparison of combined fees - Parks, Police, Transportation

Mayor Hiremath opened the public hearing.

The following individuals spoke on item #1:

Oro Valley resident Bill Adler
Oro Valley resident and President of Southern Arizona Home Builders 
Association David Godlewski

Mayor Hiremath closed the public hearing.

Water Utility Director Philip Saletta discussed the following topics regarding Water Utility 
Impact Fees:

-Compliance with new requirements
-Land Use Assumptions
-Infrastructure Improvement Plan
-Comparison of Combined Fees Potable and Alternative Water
-Approval Process – Schedule



12/4/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 5

Ms. Lemos outlined the Town and Water Utility Impact Fees proposed approval 
process and schedule.

No action was taken on item # 1.

2. RESOLUTION NO. (R)13-70, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A JOINDER 
AGREEMENT WITH THE ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN AND 
PAYMENT OF THE UNFUNDED LIABILITY TO PURCHASE CREDITED 
SERVICE FOR CURRENT COUNCILMEMBERS

Town Manager Greg Caton gave a brief overview of item #2.

Discussion ensued amongst Council regarding the proposed joinder agreement.

Human Resource Director Ron Corbin gave an overview of the defined benefit and 
defined contribution plan.

Town Manager Greg Caton gave a re-cap of the process that would enable participation 
in the Elected Officials' Retirement Plan.

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Snider to deny Resolution No. (R)13-70, authorizing the execution of a joinder 
agreement with the Elected Officials' retirement plan and payment of the unfunded 
liability to purchase credited service for current Councilmembers.

MOTION carried, 7-0. 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Councilmember Zinkin amended his previous future agenda item request regarding 
definitions of Independent Living, Skilled Nursing, Assisted Living and Hospice by 
removing his request to freeze applications. He further clarified that this item be brought 
before Council at the first meeting in February.

CALL TO AUDIENCE

No comments were received. 

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Snider to adjourn the meeting at 7:42 p.m.

MOTION carried, 7-0. 



12/4/13 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 6

Prepared by:

________________________
Michelle Stine
Senior Office Specialist

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the regular session of the Town of Oro Valley Council of Oro Valley, Arizona held on the 
4th day of December 2013.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held 
and that a quorum was present.

Dated this ______ day of _______________________, 2014

____________________________
Julie K. Bower, MMC
Town Clerk



Town Council Regular Session Item #   B.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Stacey Lemos Submitted By: Wendy Gomez, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
SUBJECT:
Fiscal Year 2013/14 Financial Update through October 2013

RECOMMENDATION:
This item is for information only.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
In the General Fund (see attachment A), revenues collected through October totaled $9.7 million, or
34.1% of the budget amount of $28.4 million.  Year-to-date expenditures through October totaled $8.2
million, or 28.6% of the budget amount of $28.5 million.

In the Highway Fund (see attachment B), revenues collected through October totaled $1,404,525, or
36.9% of the budget amount of $3.8 million.  Year-to-date expenditures through October totaled
$657,476, or 17.7% of the budget amount of $3.7 million.

In the Bed Tax Fund (see attachment C), revenues collected through October totaled $203,474, or 25.7%
of the budget amount of $793,000.  Year-to-date expenditures through October totaled $64,579, or 7.2%
of the budget amount of $892,000.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
GENERAL FUND

Attachment A shows General Fund revenues and expenditures through October, as well as year-end
estimates for each category.  The estimated year-end projections in the General Fund are as follows:

Revenues                                                     $29,223,754
Less:
Expenditures                                               ($28,505,082)
Less:
Approved Use of Contingency Reserves     ( $ 2,100,000) **

Est. Decrease in Fund Balance                   ( $ 1,381,328)
 
** Council-approved payment to Tucson Electric Power for undergrounding of utility lines 

General Fund Revenues

Local sales tax collections in the General Fund total $4.4 million or 33.4% of the budget amount of
$13.1 million.  Sales tax collections in the General Fund are estimated to come in over budget by



approximately $300,000 or 2.3%, due to higher than anticipated construction activity.

License and Permit revenues are estimated to come in over budget by $270,868 or 18.1%, due to
higher than anticipated residential and commercial building permit fees, as well as grading permit
fees. 

Charges for Services revenues are estimated to come in over budget by $169,552 or 11.7%, due to
Aquatic Center revenue, recreation program fees, zoning & subdivision fees and grading review
fees.

Interest Income revenue is estimated to come in over budget by $12,725 or 20.4%, based on
observed actuals through October.

Staff will continue to monitor revenue collections and may adjust the year-end estimates based on actual
trends.

General Fund Expenditures 

Expenditures are estimated to come in under budget by $40,160 or 0.1%, due to projected
personnel vacancy savings.  Note that these savings are estimates and are subject to change.  

HIGHWAY FUND

Highway Fund Revenues

Construction tax revenues in the Highway Fund total $470,598 or 43.7% of the budget amount of
$1.1 million.  Construction tax revenues in the Highway Fund are estimated to come in over budget
by $141,623 or 13.1%, due to higher than anticipated construction activity. 

State shared highway user funds total $845,626, or 33.8% of the budget amount of $2.5 million and
are expected to come in on budget at year-end.

Highway Fund Expenditures

Expenditures are estimated to come in under budget by $136,314 or 3.7%, due to projected
vacancy savings.  Note that these savings are estimates and are subject to change.

BED TAX FUND

Bed Tax Revenues

Bed tax revenues total $199,196 or 25.2% of the budget amount of $789,000 and are expected to
come in on budget at year-end.

Bed Tax Fund Expenditures

Expenditures are estimated to come in under budget by $5,082 or 0.6%, due to projected vacancy
savings.  Note that these savings are estimates and are subject to change.

Please see Attachments A, B, and C for additional details on the General Fund, Highway Fund and Bed
Tax Fund.  See Attachment D for a fiscal year-to-date consolidated summary of all Town Funds. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
This item is for information only.

Attachments



Attachment A - General Fund
Attachment B - Highway Fund
Attachment C - Bed Tax Fund
Attachment D - Summary All Funds



ATTACHMENT A

          October YTD Financial Status

General Fund
% Budget Completion through October  ---  33.3%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

REVENUES:
LOCAL SALES TAX                4,380,416      13,123,382       33.4% 13,424,422     2.3%
LICENSES & PERMITS                 828,996        1,493,455         55.5% 1,764,323       18.1%
FEDERAL GRANTS                     237,418        576,490            41.2% 645,651          12.0%
STATE GRANTS                       308,121        1,509,700         20.4% 1,509,700       0.0%
STATE/COUNTY SHARED                3,194,796      9,659,167         33.1% 9,659,167       0.0%
OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL            -               30,000              0.0% 30,000            0.0%
CHARGES FOR SERVICES               570,162        1,443,437         39.5% 1,612,989       11.7%
FINES                              64,156          190,000            33.8% 190,000          0.0%
INTEREST INCOME                    61,314          62,275              98.5% 75,000            20.4%
MISCELLANEOUS                      41,561          114,000            36.5% 127,502          11.8%
TRANSFERS IN -               185,000            0.0% 185,000          0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 9,686,939      28,386,906       34.1% 29,223,754     2.9%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

EXPENDITURES:
COUNCIL 101,712        225,853            45.0% 225,853          0.0%
CLERK 104,963        345,118            30.4% 344,567          -0.2%
MANAGER 198,472        700,989            28.3% 691,219          -1.4%
HUMAN RESOURCES 164,594        523,821            31.4% 523,821          0.0%
FINANCE 192,428        709,242            27.1% 703,324          -0.8%
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 445,047        1,482,173         30.0% 1,482,173       0.0%
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 508,658        2,037,730         25.0% 2,037,729       0.0%
LEGAL 183,205        804,344            22.8% 804,344          0.0%
COURT 225,458        761,430            29.6% 756,968          -0.6%
DEV & INFRASTRUCTURE SVCS 1,075,027      4,031,561         26.7% 4,012,103       -0.5%
PARKS & RECREATION 887,920        2,536,955         35.0% 2,536,955       0.0%
POLICE 4,085,104      14,223,297       28.7% 14,223,297     0.0%
TRANSFERS OUT -               162,729            0.0% 162,729          0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,172,588      28,545,242       28.6% 28,505,082     -0.1%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 1,514,351      (158,336)           718,673          

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 13,137,105    

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) 718,673         

Less:  Approved Use of Contingency Reserves during FY 13/14
TEP undergrounding (2,100,000)     

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 11,755,778    

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision
** Ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision

FY 2013/2014

 Year End 
Estimate * 

Budget
 Year End 
Estimate * 

 Actuals 
thru 10/2013 

 Actuals 
thru 10/2013 

Budget

 

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2013-2014\2Q\Oct\Oct FY14 Monthly Report 01/02/2014



ATTACHMENT B

          October YTD Financial Status FY 2013/2014

% Budget Completion through October  ---  33.3%

 Actuals 
thru 10/2013 Budget

% Actuals 
to Budget 

 Year End 
Estimate * 

YE % Variance 
to Budget

REVENUES:
LOCAL SALES TAX                470,598       1,077,197   43.7% 1,218,820    13.1%
LICENSES & PERMITS                 16,515         48,000        34.4% 50,000         4.2%
STATE GRANTS -                   35,000        0.0% 35,000         0.0%
STATE/COUNTY SHARED                845,626       2,500,000   33.8% 2,500,000    0.0%
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 43,164         129,493      33.3% 129,493       0.0%
INTEREST INCOME                    17,776         7,000          253.9% 20,000         185.7%
MISCELLANEOUS                      10,846         10,000        108.5% 16,988         69.9%
TRANSFERS IN -                   -                  0.0% -                   0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,404,525     3,806,690   36.9% 3,970,301    4.3%

 Actuals 
thru 10/2013 Budget

% Actuals 
to Budget 

 Year End 
Estimate * 

YE % Variance 
to Budget

EXPENDITURES:
ADMINISTRATION 150,271       657,860      22.8% 564,537       -14.2%
TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERING 154,775       1,547,739   10.0% 1,504,748    -2.8%
PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT 15,269         111,022      13.8% 111,022       0.0%
STREET MAINTENANCE 233,112       888,033      26.3% 888,033       0.0%
TRAFFIC ENGINEERING 104,050       516,327      20.2% 516,327       0.0%
TRANSFERS OUT -               -              0.0% -               0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 657,476       3,720,981   17.7% 3,584,667    -3.7%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 747,050       85,709        385,634       

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3,517,765   

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) 385,634      

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 3,903,399   

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision
** Ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision 

Highway Fund

 

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2013-2014\2Q\Oct\Oct FY14 Monthly Report 01/02/2014



ATTACHMENT C

          October YTD Financial Status

% Budget Completion through October  ---  33.3%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

REVENUES:
BED TAXES 199,196       789,000     25.2% 789,000        0.0%
INTEREST INCOME                    4,278           3,975         107.6% 5,000            25.8%
TRANSFERS IN -               -             0.0% -                0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 203,474       792,975     25.7% 794,000        0.1%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

EXPENDITURES:
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 64,579         501,762     12.9% 496,680        -1.0%
TRANSFERS OUT -               390,669     0.0% 390,669        0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 64,579         892,431     7.2% 887,349        -0.6%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 138,895       (99,456)      (93,349)         

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 649,053       

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) (93,349)        

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 555,704       

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision
** Ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision

FY 2013/2014

 Year End 
Estimate * 

Budget
 Year End 
Estimate * 

Bed Tax Fund

Budget
Actuals 

thru 10/2013 

 Actuals 
thru 10/2013 

 

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2013-2014\2Q\Oct\Oct FY14 Monthly Report 01/02/2014



CONSOLIDATED YEAR-TO-DATE FINANCIAL REPORT THROUGH OCTOBER, 2013 ATTACHMENT D

FY 13/14 Capital Leases/ Left in Accounts
Begin Bal. Transfer Out Thru Oct 2013

General Fund - Unassigned 11,529,070         9,686,939          -                      9,686,939               -                          5,997,626                2,013,134              161,828                   -                    -                          8,172,588              13,043,421          
General Fund - Assigned 1,608,035           1,608,035            

Highway Fund - Restricted 3,517,765           1,404,525          -                      1,404,525               -                          504,064                   152,710                 702                          -                    -                          657,476                 4,264,815            

Seizure & Forfeiture - State 494,837              19,860               -                      19,860                    -                          -                               (32)                         4,898                       -                    -                          4,866                     509,831               

Seizure & Forfeiture - Justice 519,653              155,481             -                      155,481                  -                          13,661                     -                             8,815                       -                    -                          22,476                   652,658               

Bed Tax Fund - Committed 649,053              203,474             -                      203,474                  -                          49,125                     15,454                   -                               -                    -                          64,579                   787,948               

Impound Fee Fund -                          9,300                 -                      9,300                      -                          7,337                       -                             -                               -                    -                          7,337                     1,963                   

Municipal Debt Service Fund 774,914              47,483               -                      47,483                    -                          -                               2,800                     -                               -                    638,881              641,681                 180,716               

Oracle Road Debt Service Fund 149                     1,335,988          -                      1,335,988               -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             1,336,137            

Alternative Water Resources Dev Impact Fee Fund 3,402,954           1,287,446          -                      1,287,446               -                          -                               18,492                   24,198                     -                    -                          42,690                   4,647,710            

Potable Water System Dev Impact Fee Fund 3,544,937           314,693             -                      314,693                  -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             3,859,630            

Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fee Fund 1,461,437           124,027             -                      124,027                  -                          -                               7,033                     37,440                     -                    -                          44,474                   1,540,990            

Parks & Recreation Impact Fee Fund 182,110              73,599               -                      73,599                    -                          -                               7,033                     -                               -                    -                          7,033                     248,676               

Library Impact Fee Fund 114,798              -                         -                      -                              -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             114,798               

Police Impact Fee Fund 99,478                40,339               -                      40,339                    -                          -                               7,033                     -                               -                    -                          7,033                     132,783               

General Government Impact Fee Fund 1,288                  2,209                 -                      2,209                      -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             3,496                   

Naranja Park Fund 8,821                  -                         -                      -                              -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             8,821                   

Aquatic Center Project Fund 66,638                -                         -                      -                              -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             66,638                 

Water Utility 9,783,839           3,920,534          -                      3,920,534               -                          785,365                   1,443,118              202,791                   -                    -                          2,431,275              11,273,099          

Stormwater Utility 490,794              189,446             -                      189,446                  3,799                  74,900                     97,589                   8,852                       -                    -                          185,140                 495,099               

Fleet Fund -                          262,765             -                      262,765                  -                          25,963                     131,025                 85,499                     -                    -                          242,488                 20,277                 

Benefit Self Insurance Fund 567,402              670,876             -                      670,876                  -                          -                               627,435                 -                               -                    -                          627,435                 610,843               

Recreation In-Lieu Fee Fund 6,190                  -                         -                      -                              -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             6,190                   

-                          -                    -                          

Total 38,824,161    19,748,983 -                 19,748,983      3,799            7,458,041        4,522,826       535,024            -                638,881          13,158,570       45,414,574     

Debt Service Total OutPersonnel O&M Capital ContingencyFund Revenue
Other Fin 

Sources/Tfrs
Total In

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2013-2014\2Q\Oct\Oct Summary All Funds 01/02/2014



Town Council Regular Session Item #   C.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Stacey Lemos Submitted By: Wendy Gomez, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
SUBJECT:
Fiscal Year 2013/14 Financial Update through November 2013

RECOMMENDATION:
This item is for information only.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
In the General Fund (see attachment A), revenues collected through November totaled $12.0 million or
42.2% of the budget amount of $28.4 million.  Year-to-date expenditures through November
totaled $11.9 million or 39.9% of the budget amount of $29.9 million.

In the Highway Fund (see attachment B), revenues collected through November totaled $1,715,561 or
45.1% of the budget amount of $3.8 million.  Year-to-date expenditures through November totaled
$1,153,956 or 31.0% of the budget amount of $3.7 million.

In the Bed Tax Fund (see attachment C), revenues collected through November totaled $312,625 or
39.4% of the budget amount of $793,000.  Year-to-date expenditures through November totaled
$506,025 or 39.2% of the budget amount of $1,292,000.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
GENERAL FUND

Attachment A shows General Fund revenues and expenditures through November, as well as year-end
estimates for each category.  The estimated year-end projections in the General Fund are as follows:

Revenues                                                     $29,228,404
Less:
Expenditures                                               ($29,900,434) (A)
Less:
Approved Use of Contingency Reserves     ( $ 2,100,000) **

Est. Decrease in Fund Balance                   ( $ 2,772,030)

(A) Includes Council-approved Naranja Park improvements of $1.6 million from the General Fund
 
** Council-approved payment to Tucson Electric Power for undergrounding of utility lines 

General Fund Revenues



Local sales tax collections in the General Fund total $5.4 million or 41.1% of the budget amount of
$13.1 million.  Sales tax collections in the General Fund are estimated to come in over budget by
approximately $300,000 or 2.3%, due to higher than anticipated construction activity.

License and Permit revenues are estimated to come in over budget by $270,868 or 18.1%, due to
higher than anticipated residential and commercial building permit fees, as well as grading permit
fees. 

Charges for Services revenues are estimated to come in over budget by $171,452 or 11.9%, due to
Aquatic Center revenue, recreation program fees, zoning & subdivision fees and grading review
fees.

Interest Income revenue is estimated to come in over budget by $12,725 or 20.4%, based on
observed actuals through November.

Staff will continue to monitor revenue collections and may adjust the year-end estimates based on actual
trends.

General Fund Expenditures 

Expenditures are estimated to come in under budget by $47,808 or 0.2%, due to projected
personnel vacancy savings.  Note that these savings are estimates and are subject to change.
The General Fund expenditures for November reflect the Council-approved authorization to use
$1,403,000 in General Fund contingency reserves and $197,000 in Council-designated reserves to
fund the Naranja Park improvements.  This total amount of $1.6 million is shown as a transfer out to
the Naranja Park Fund in the Expenditures section of Attachment A. 

HIGHWAY FUND

Highway Fund Revenues

Construction tax revenues in the Highway Fund total $558,779 or 51.9% of the budget amount of
$1.1 million.  Construction tax revenues in the Highway Fund are estimated to come in over budget
by $141,623 or 13.1%, due to higher than anticipated construction activity. 

State shared highway user funds total $1,055,323 or 42.2% of the budget amount of $2.5 million
and are expected to come in on budget at year-end.

Highway Fund Expenditures

Expenditures are estimated to come in under budget by $136,314 or 3.7%, due to projected
vacancy savings.  Note that these savings are estimates and are subject to change.

BED TAX FUND

Bed Tax Revenues

Bed tax revenues total $308,522 or 39.1% of the budget amount of $789,000 and are expected to
come in on budget at year-end.

Bed Tax Fund Expenditures

Expenditures are estimated to come in under budget by $7,356 or 0.6%, due to projected vacancy
savings.  Note that these savings are estimates and are subject to change.
The Bed Tax Fund expenditures for November reflect the Council-authorized use of Bed Tax Fund
contingency reserves of $400,000 to fund the Naranja Park improvements.  This amount is shown
as a transfer out to the Naranja Park Fund in the Expenditures section of Attachment C.

Please see Attachments A, B, and C for additional details on the General Fund, Highway Fund and Bed
Tax Fund.  See Attachment D for a fiscal year-to-date consolidated summary of all Town Funds. 



FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
This item is for information only.

Attachments
Attachment A - General Fund
Attachment B - Highway Fund
Attachment C - Bed Tax Fund
Attachment D - Summary All Funds



ATTACHMENT A

          November YTD Financial Status

General Fund
% Budget Completion through November  ---  41.7%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

REVENUES:
LOCAL SALES TAX                5,393,477      13,123,382       41.1% 13,424,422     2.3%
LICENSES & PERMITS                 964,498        1,493,455         64.6% 1,764,323       18.1%
FEDERAL GRANTS                     301,951        576,490            52.4% 645,651          12.0%
STATE GRANTS                       423,900        1,509,700         28.1% 1,509,700       0.0%
STATE/COUNTY SHARED                3,985,535      9,659,167         41.3% 9,659,167       0.0%
OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL            17,492          30,000              58.3% 30,000            0.0%
CHARGES FOR SERVICES               706,860        1,443,437         49.0% 1,614,889       11.9%
FINES                              75,484          190,000            39.7% 190,000          0.0%
INTEREST INCOME                    58,811          62,275              94.4% 75,000            20.4%
MISCELLANEOUS                      44,635          114,000            39.2% 130,252          14.3%
TRANSFERS IN -               185,000            0.0% 185,000          0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 11,972,645    28,386,906       42.2% 29,228,404     3.0%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

EXPENDITURES:
COUNCIL 109,727        225,853            48.6% 225,853          0.0%
CLERK 127,663        345,118            37.0% 344,567          -0.2%
MANAGER 243,480        700,989            34.7% 691,219          -1.4%
HUMAN RESOURCES 200,252        523,821            38.2% 523,821          0.0%
FINANCE 245,500        709,242            34.6% 703,324          -0.8%
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 527,666        1,482,173         35.6% 1,482,173       0.0%
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 645,415        1,840,730         35.1% 1,840,730       0.0%
LEGAL 231,868        804,344            28.8% 804,344          0.0%
COURT 284,618        761,430            37.4% 756,968          -0.6%
DEV & INFRASTRUCTURE SVCS 1,476,733      4,031,561         36.6% 4,004,454       -0.7%
PARKS & RECREATION 1,096,655      2,536,955         43.2% 2,536,955       0.0%
POLICE 5,154,660      14,223,297       36.2% 14,223,297     0.0%
TRANSFERS OUT 1,600,000      1,762,729         90.8% 1,762,729       0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,944,237    29,948,242       39.9% 29,900,434     -0.2%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 28,408          (1,561,336)        (672,030)         

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 13,137,105    

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) (672,030)        

Less:  Approved Use of Contingency Reserves during FY 13/14
TEP undergrounding (2,100,000)     

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 10,365,075    

(A) Includes Council-approved Naranja Park improvements of $1.6 million from the General Fund

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision

** Ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision

FY 2013/2014

 Year End 
Estimate * 

Budget
 Year End 
Estimate * 

 Actuals 
thru 11/2013 

 Actuals 
thru 11/2013 

Budget

 

(A)

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2013-2014\2Q\Nov\Nov FY14 Monthly Report 01/03/2014



ATTACHMENT B

          November YTD Financial Status FY 2013/2014

% Budget Completion through November  ---  41.7%

 Actuals 
thru 11/2013 Budget

% Actuals 
to Budget 

 Year End 
Estimate * 

YE % Variance 
to Budget

REVENUES:
LOCAL SALES TAX                558,779       1,077,197   51.9% 1,218,820    13.1%
LICENSES & PERMITS                 17,615         48,000        36.7% 50,000         4.2%
STATE GRANTS -                   35,000        0.0% 35,000         0.0%
STATE/COUNTY SHARED                1,055,323     2,500,000   42.2% 2,500,000    0.0%
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 53,955         129,493      41.7% 129,493       0.0%
INTEREST INCOME                    17,225         7,000          246.1% 20,000         185.7%
MISCELLANEOUS                      12,664         10,000        126.6% 16,988         69.9%
TRANSFERS IN -                   -                  0.0% -                   0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,715,561     3,806,690   45.1% 3,970,301    4.3%

 Actuals 
thru 11/2013 Budget

% Actuals 
to Budget 

 Year End 
Estimate * 

YE % Variance 
to Budget

EXPENDITURES:
ADMINISTRATION 251,954       657,860      38.3% 564,537       -14.2%
TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERING 339,390       1,547,739   21.9% 1,504,748    -2.8%
PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT 23,531         111,022      21.2% 111,022       0.0%
STREET MAINTENANCE 406,095       888,033      45.7% 888,033       0.0%
TRAFFIC ENGINEERING 132,986       516,327      25.8% 516,327       0.0%
TRANSFERS OUT -               -              0.0% -               0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,153,956     3,720,981   31.0% 3,584,667    -3.7%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 561,605       85,709        385,634       

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3,517,765   

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) 385,634      

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 3,903,399   

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision

** Ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision 

Highway Fund

 

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2013-2014\2Q\Nov\Nov FY14 Monthly Report 01/03/2014



ATTACHMENT C

          November YTD Financial Status

% Budget Completion through November  ---  41.7%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

REVENUES:
BED TAXES 308,522       789,000     39.1% 789,000        0.0%
INTEREST INCOME                    4,103           3,975         103.2% 5,000            25.8%
TRANSFERS IN -               -             0.0% -                0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 312,625       792,975     39.4% 794,000        0.1%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

EXPENDITURES:
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 106,025       501,762     21.1% 494,406        -1.5%
TRANSFERS OUT 400,000       790,669     50.6% 790,669        0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 506,025       1,292,431  39.2% 1,285,075     -0.6%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (193,400)      (499,456)    (491,075)       

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 649,053       

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) (491,075)      

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 157,978       

(A) Includes Council-approved Naranja Park improvements of $400,000 from the Bed Tax Fund

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision

** Ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision

FY 2013/2014

 Year End 
Estimate * 

Budget
 Year End 
Estimate * 

Bed Tax Fund

Budget
Actuals 

thru 11/2013 

 Actuals 
thru 11/2013 

 

(A)

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2013-2014\2Q\Nov\Nov FY14 Monthly Report 01/03/2014



CONSOLIDATED YEAR-TO-DATE FINANCIAL REPORT THROUGH NOVEMBER, 2013 ATTACHMENT D

FY 13/14 Capital Leases/ Left in Accounts
Begin Bal. Transfer Out Thru Nov 2013

General Fund - Unassigned 11,529,070         11,972,645        -                      11,972,645             1,600,197           7,479,969                2,643,673              220,397                   -                    -                          11,944,237            11,557,478          
General Fund - Assigned 1,608,035           1,608,035            

Highway Fund - Restricted 3,517,765           1,715,561          -                      1,715,561               -                          628,164                   289,130                 236,662                   -                    -                          1,153,956              4,079,370            

Seizure & Forfeiture - State 494,837              22,270               -                      22,270                    -                          -                               2,820                     10,475                     -                    -                          13,295                   503,811               

Seizure & Forfeiture - Justice 519,653              155,803             -                      155,803                  -                          24,195                     640                        197,327                   -                    -                          222,162                 453,293               

Bed Tax Fund - Committed 649,053              312,625             -                      312,625                  400,000              61,509                     44,516                   -                               -                    -                          506,025                 455,653               

Impound Fee Fund -                          11,550               -                      11,550                    -                          9,173                       -                             -                               -                    -                          9,173                     2,377                   

Municipal Debt Service Fund 774,914              47,485               -                      47,485                    -                          -                               2,800                     -                               -                    638,881              641,681                 180,718               

Oracle Road Debt Service Fund 149                     1,421,329          -                      1,421,329               -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             1,421,478            

Alternative Water Resources Dev Impact Fee Fund 3,402,954           1,560,503          -                      1,560,503               100,000              -                               138,987                 75,206                     -                    -                          314,193                 4,649,264            

Potable Water System Dev Impact Fee Fund 3,544,937           319,827             -                      319,827                  -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             3,864,764            

Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fee Fund 1,461,437           145,518             -                      145,518                  -                          -                               8,033                     686,317                   -                    -                          694,350                 912,605               

Parks & Recreation Impact Fee Fund 182,110              79,229               -                      79,229                    -                          -                               8,033                     -                               -                    -                          8,033                     253,305               

Library Impact Fee Fund 114,798              -                         -                      -                              -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             114,798               

Police Impact Fee Fund 99,478                44,910               -                      44,910                    -                          -                               8,159                     -                               -                    -                          8,159                     136,228               

General Government Impact Fee Fund 1,288                  2,210                 -                      2,210                      -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             3,497                   

Naranja Park Fund 8,821                  -                         2,000,000       2,000,000               -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             2,008,821            

Aquatic Center Project Fund 66,638                -                         -                      -                              -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             66,638                 

Water Utility 9,783,839           5,172,890          100,000          5,272,890               -                          985,309                   2,005,417              256,580                   -                    47,354                3,294,659              11,762,070          

Stormwater Utility 490,794              245,292             -                      245,292                  3,799                  97,539                     133,098                 11,065                     -                    -                          245,501                 490,585               

Fleet Fund -                          491,902             -                      491,902                  -                          32,426                     259,849                 174,281                   -                    -                          466,556                 25,346                 

Benefit Self Insurance Fund 567,402              843,606             -                      843,606                  -                          -                               765,005                 -                               -                    -                          765,005                 646,003               

Recreation In-Lieu Fee Fund 6,190                  -                         -                      -                              -                          -                               -                             -                               -                    -                          -                             6,190                   

-                          -                    -                          

Total 38,824,161    24,565,153 2,100,000 26,665,153      2,103,996     9,318,283        6,310,164       1,868,309         -                686,234          20,286,987       45,202,327     

Debt Service Total OutPersonnel O&M Capital ContingencyFund Revenue
Other Fin 

Sources/Tfrs
Total In

G:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2013-2014\2Q\Nov\Nov Summary All Funds 01/03/2014



Town Council Regular Session Item #   D.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Submitted By: Matt Michels, Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
Final Plat for the Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-N North residential subdivision, located on the southwest
corner of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The applicant requests approval of a final plat for a 27-lot residential subdivision on Rancho Vistoso
Parcel 10-N North. The plat features 5,700 square foot lots and a new sidewalk along Hidden Springs
Drive. The plat meets Town requirements and is ready for approval.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Town Council approval of final subdivision plats is required prior to being recorded with Pima County.

Proposed Improvements

6.6 acre property subdivided into 27 lots
Average lot size - 5,769 s.f. (min. 5,024 s.f; max. 8,674 s.f.)
Building height: two (2) stories not to exceed 25' (four specific lots limited to single story as agreed
to by the applicant)
5-foot sidewalk along Hidden Springs Drive
Landscaped buffer yards along perimeter of subdivision
Low walls on west side of subdivision to prevent headlight trespass onto Resort Casitas across
Hidden Springs Drive

Previous Approvals 

April, 2013 - Town Council approved Conceptual Site Plan

FISCAL IMPACT:
NA

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to APPROVE the Final Plat for the Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-N North, Lots 1-27 subdivision,



I MOVE to APPROVE the Final Plat for the Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-N North, Lots 1-27 subdivision,
finding that it meets the requirements of Section 22.9.F of the Zoning Code.

OR

I MOVE to DENY the Final Plat for the Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-N North, Lots 1-27 subdivision, finding
that ___________________.

Attachments
Attachment 1 - Final Plat







Town Council Regular Session Item #   E.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Submitted By: Julie Bower, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Appointments to the Planning and Zoning Commission

RECOMMENDATION:
The selection committee for the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the appointment of Greg
Hitt and Frank Pitts.  The applications are attached.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
There are two vacancies on the Planning and Zoning Commission due to term limits.  The Selection
Committee consisting of Councilmember Hornat, PZC Vice Chair Don Cox and Planning Manager David
Williams conducted interviews on January 6, 2014.  

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
As outlined in the Oro Valley Town Code and the Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, the Planning and
Zoning Commission provides recommendations to the Town Council on matters related to the General
Plan, zoning, conditional uses and other plans, policies, amendments and regulations. The Commission
is enabled by Arizona Revised Statutes and serves as the planning agency for the Town. 

The Commission is composed of seven members appointed to two-year terms by the Town Council.  The
PZC meets the first Tuesday of the month at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE that the following appointments be made to the Planning and Zoning Commission:

Greg Hitt for a term ending December 31, 2015
Frank Pitts for a term ending December 31, 2015

Attachments
Greg Hitt Application
Frank Pitts Application



NOU 18'13PMJ.2:39 TOU 

ORO VALLEY VOLUNTEER APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

Dear Oro Valley Citizen: 

We appreciate your interest in the Town of Oro Valley. This informational form , when completed, will allow us to quickly 
process your application by assisting us in understanding how we can best use your talents and experience. A list 
describing the Town's Boards and Commissions is attached for your reference. Information reflecting the procedures 
surrounding the appointment process to Boards is also attached. Your application will remain on file for two years from the 
date of receipt. We thank you kindly for volunteering to serve the Town! 

Ptease note: No volunteer shall serve on more than one standing Board at any time. 

Return this application to the Town Clerk's Office, 11000 N. La Canada Drive, Oro Valley, Arizona 85737. 

Name 1//1"1 6R.6b M(G!{~EL 
Last First Middle Suffix 

Home Phone ________ Business Phone __ ~~_~_ Cellular Phone _.---___ ----. 

Email Address -----Number of Years in 04r~J~~-=-L/-----
Signature Date _--,-1-'..1..:...' ..:...J "...:.....:., ----,-' _? ____ _ 

Please indicate the board or commission you wish to join: ~N\-.l \ t-J b f ~ I tJ (;, 

Please list your volunteer services in Oro Valley and with other organizations including any boards or commissions on 
which you have served: (board/commission, civic, educational, cultural, social, etc.) 

&'1 !6CE"'1 v'O'kutiff.?1t. SE"jt.\Jlc.£S (NG~..;c:.eb; Ucfllk1!) ;0 TIrJ-C 

tIC £1 V>N~ n ~NI W b fisSOC-1 77w 

C ulJt':S IJ AI bJJ -Iff $""Afc 4f'f1:Il 
I OA • 

How does your previous volunteer service prepare you for the board or commission appointment for which you have 
applied? Please describe an issue considered at a meeting of the Board or Commission for which you are applying . 

( f/IJ.JG .t89D fI1EP""G5 lNiTlf fbutl9l. 75'1UJNJ 1 t-(,)~3 cF ~ft;I2.ATi6rJ/ 
ANAl... '1tED IJsvn . ?l£J(3Jr'FSj Q)I.. vT(<NS , /./IlQ( !f/A11i11E;?1.!JA It lJr-J 5, 

/ ; 

TIl/I 8091!.-h t-<A5 (/)AIf{l.f@ (AtJO CIS€: [l.ofr;{ .J'S'/oA)I'fL.5 , 

Have you altended the Community Academy or CPI? N D What Year? __ If not, are you willing to attend? %.5 
Briefly describe your educational/vocational background. 

/ If~O/f fI T3(1(;JtGt-02-S bWfiE If..) U~4~ Ij'UII.,lI-Jl!JG. rnplV\ ,Q5U t A I!tIJSTEL] 

(tV fUH.J#JINb> ~ <ji ~ ~ AU !.£ (ll.ANtJ6R 
/1\.) l,..AILe /fAoJ'ASJ c- n'1,,2- PI.M4- Ct>v~'1 D S''D. 

IF DESIREd, ADD IT IONAL INFORMATION MAY BE ATIACHED 
www,orovalleyaz,gov 

2/23/11 



• OCT 24'13PM12:12 IOU . 
- --.... : 

~·'~O"~'D~ED ;;"'·~.f ORO VALLEY VOLUNTEER APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

Dear Oro Valley Citizen: 

We appreciate your interest in the Town of Oro Valley. This informational form, when completed, will allow us to quickly 
process your application by assisting us in understanding how we can best use your talents and experience. A list 
describing the Town's Boards and Commissions is attached for your reference. Information reflecting the procedures 
surrounding the appointment process to Boards is also attached. Your application will remain on file for two years from the 
date of receipt. We thank you kindly for volunteering to serve the Town! 

Please note: No volunteer shall serve on more than one standing Board at any time. 

Return this application to the Town Clerk's Office, 11000 N. La Canada Drive, Oro Valley, Arizona 85737. 

Name fraak 
Last First Middle Suffix 

Address~~=~_-.--__ ----,.=-....:eo:....!v~_--'.A~rT.:--__ ~g-"S~tf-'3~Tr--__ _ 
Street City State Zip 

Home Phone ---~-----,- Business Phone ----____ Cellular Phone 

Number of Years in Oro Valley I ~ Email Address 
\J 

Signature 1zt«£@K Date --t/.Jl.O_-.::2 ..... 3_-.LI )-'--___ _ 

Please indicate the board or commission you wish to join: -.p!.-...!Iq!el.!.fI~V!:u.;i'(9~Hk"-i-o~:..!V1~/:..!·vt"O'4-~C=!(5.IJ'7~M~/l.: ..bl'.lf1./.I..ClL!i1OL __ _ 

Please list your volunteer services in Oro Valley and with other organizations including any boards or commissions on 
which you have served: (board/commission, civic, educational, cultural, social, etc.) 

How does your previous volunteer service prepare you for the board or commission appointment for which you have 
applied? Please describe an issue considered at a meeting of the Board or Commission for which you are applying. 

Have you attended the Community Academy or CPI? ~ What Year? __ If not, are you willing to attend? Y [;.:5 

Briefly describe your educational/vocational background. 

-X .e. trf-f0 c.A~ d 

IF DESIRED, ADDITIONAL INFORMATION MAY BE ATTACHED 
www.orovalleyaz.gov 

2/23/11 



October 23, 2013 

Oro Valley Volunteer Appointment Application 

Frank Pitts 

Oro Valley, AZ 85737 

NUMBER OF YEARS ON ORO VALLEY: 
18 years in Oro Valley total. 6 years recently. We moved away 12 years for 
employment opportunities. From 1997-2000 lived in NW Arkansas while employed as 
a pilot for Wal-Mart. 2000-2008 we lived in Louisville, KY where my current employer 
UPS is based. I attended Donaldson Elementary, Cross jH and I am a Dorado even 
though my kids attend Ironwood Ridge and Wilson. My first job outside of the family 
business, Pusch Ridge Stables, was as a busboy at Oro Valley Country Club in 1986 at 
age 16. I have deep roots here and we specifically moved back to Oro Valley because of 
the great family environment here. 

I WISH TO JOIN THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION. 

VOLUNTEER SERVICES IN ORO VALLEY: 
Canada Ridge HOA- BOD member (architectural review committee chairman and 
landscaping maintenance chairman). Project Grad Volunteer. My wife, Frances, is on 
the Wilson PTO BOD and I help with events there. 

VOLUNTEER SERVICES THAT PREPARE ME FOR PNZ COMMISSION: 
Working as the Canada Ridge BOD Architectural Review and Landscaping Chairman I 
understand the need for construction designs to compliment existing architecture and 
landscaping to blend with the natural desert environment. I work with many different 
contractors for our HOA, residence and our rental properties. I respect developer needs 
and appreciate the necessity of building permits. Living in different states and flying to 
major cities throughout the world I have seen third world city planning, sterile 
overpopulated japanese Cities and mature well developed European Cities. A recent OV 
PNZ issue, which I feel is relevant, was the Hospitality uses in the Rl-144 zoning district. 
Hospitality is a great source of revenue for our community with little impact on our 
public services. My Bachelor of Science Degree is in Hotel and Restaurant Management. 

ATTENDED COMMUNITY ACADEMY OR CPI: 
No, but I am willing to learn and happy to attend training programs. 

EDUCATION/VOCATIONAL BACKGROUND: 
Pilot Training: Currently-UPS MD-ll International First Officer. BS-NAU-HRM. AAS
Cochise College-A&P, CFI, CFII, MEl, FE. Biannual recurrent MD-ll pilot training. 

Sincerely, 

1A12nl1 
Frank Pitts 



Town Council Regular Session Item #   F.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Stacey Lemos Submitted By: Stacey Lemos, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)14-01, providing notice of intent to increase certain development impact fees for the
Town of Oro Valley

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Pursuant to the new impact fee legislation, Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S) Section 9-463.05, updated
studies have been prepared for the Town's parks, police, transportation, potable water system and
alternative water resources development impact fees, which will become effective prior to August 1,
2014.  Due to the results of these studies, certain impact fee categories are recommended to decrease
from current levels, while other categories are recommended to increase.

In order for the updated development impact fees to become effective by the legally-mandated date of
August 1, 2014, the Town has scheduled the following public hearings/meetings: 

January 15, 2014 - Town Council meeting to consider adoption of land use assumptions and
infrastructure improvement plans
February 19, 2014 - Public hearing on updated development impact fees
April 2, 2014 - Town Council meeting to consider adoption of updated development impact fees

In addition, the Town Council previously held a public hearing on the land use assumptions and
infrastructure improvement plans included in each study at the December 4, 2013, regular meeting.

This agenda item provides the requisite 60-day public notice of the Town's intent to increase certain
development impact fees at its April 2, 2014, regular meeting.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
In March 2013, the Town hired Duncan Associates to prepare the update of its remaining non-utility
development impact fees for parks, police and transportation.  In addition, the Water Utility hired CH2M
HILL to prepare the update of its potable water system and alternative water resources development
impact fees.

The draft public review reports from each consultant are included as attachments to this communication
and as Exhibit A to the resolution.  These reports have been on file with the Town Clerk's Office and
were made available on the Town's website for public review since early October 2013.

The Duncan Associates draft report (Attachment 2) includes a summary table on Page 2 which is titled
Table 2 - Updated and Current Non-Utility Impact Fees. This table shows the specific categories of fees



Table 2 - Updated and Current Non-Utility Impact Fees. This table shows the specific categories of fees
that are recommended to increase and decrease.

Please also find the draft report from CH2M HILL (Attachment 3) which includes a summary table on
Pages 4-5, titled Table 4-5 - Oro Valley Water Utility Existing and Proposed Development Impact Fees.
This table illustrates the specific categories of fees that are recommended to increase and decrease.

It is important to note that while certain categories of fees are recommended to increase from current
levels, the combined total of the updated utility and non-utility impact fees for the single-family residential
category is $1,117, or almost 11%, less than the current combined total of impact fees charged for
single-family residential use.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact in adopting the resolution of providing notice of intent to increase certain
development impact fees.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve or deny) Resolution No. (R)14-01, providing notice of intent to increase certain
development impact fees for the Town of Oro Valley.

Attachments
(R)14-01 NOI to Increase Development Impact Fees
Duncan Assoc Impact Fee Study
CH2M HILL Impact Fee Study



RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, PROVIDING NOTICE OF INTENT TO 
INCREASE CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES FOR THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-463.05, the Town finds it necessary to consider increasing 
certain development impact fees such as Oro Valley Water Utility Impact fees and Development 
Infrastructure impact fees, (please see Exhibit “A” for more detail); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-511, et seq., the Town has the requisite statutory authority 
to acquire, own and maintain a water utility for the benefit of the residents within and without the 
Town’s corporate boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has completed impact fee analysis reports, attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A”, which supports increasing certain development impact fees for the Town of Oro Valley and 
its water utility; and

WHEREAS, the impact fee analysis reports have been posted on the Town website since 
October 4, 2013; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-463.05 the Town is required to give a Notice of Intent to 
increase certain development impact fees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro 
Valley, Arizona, that:

1. This Resolution serves as the Notice of Intent, which is hereby publicly given, for 
the Town of Oro Valley to increase certain development impact fees for the Town 
and its water utility.

2. A public hearing shall be held at the regular meeting of the Mayor and Council at 
6:00 p.m. on February 19, 2014, in the Council Chambers of the Town Hall, 
Town of Oro Valley, 11000 North La Cañada Drive, Oro Valley, Arizona, to 
solicit public comment on the proposed development impact fees.

3. A subsequent public meeting of the Mayor and Council shall be held at 6:00 p.m. 
on April 2, 2014 in the Council Chambers of the Town Hall, Town of Oro Valley, 
11000 North La Canada Drive, Oro Valley, Arizona, to deliberate and vote on the 
proposed increases.

4. Exhibit “A”, attached hereto, will be made available to the public in the Office of 
the Town Clerk and will continue to be posted on the Town and Water Utility 
website for review prior to the public hearing.



2

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona, this 15th day of January, 2014.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date:



EXHIBIT “A”



 

 

 

 

 

 

Transportation, Park and Police  

Impact Fee Study 

for the 

Town of Oro Valley, Arizona 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
October 2013 

 

 PUBLIC Review Draft



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

prepared by 

 

Duncan Associates 

 

Clancy Mullen, Vice President, Project Manager 

 

 

 

for the 

 

Town of Oro Valley, Arizona 

 

Stacey Lemos, Finance Director, Project Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Duncan Associates, 360 Nueces St., Suite 2701, Austin, TX 78701, 512-258-7347; clancy@duncanassociates.com 

  



Table of Contents 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................ 1 

Background ...................................................................................................................................... 1 
Summary of Findings ...................................................................................................................... 2 

LEGAL FRAMEWORK ................................................................................................................... 4 
Eligible Facilities .............................................................................................................................. 4 
Compliance Deadlines .................................................................................................................... 5 
Service Areas .................................................................................................................................... 6 
Service Units ..................................................................................................................................... 6 
Methodologies .................................................................................................................................. 6 
Level of Service (LOS) Standards ................................................................................................. 7 
Land Use Assumptions ................................................................................................................... 7 
Infrastructure Improvements Plan ............................................................................................... 7 
Refunds ............................................................................................................................................. 8 
Offsets ............................................................................................................................................... 8 

SERVICE AREAS ............................................................................................................................. 10 
Transportation ............................................................................................................................... 11 
Parks ................................................................................................................................................ 12 
Police ............................................................................................................................................... 12 

LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS ........................................................................................................ 13 
TRANSPORTATION ...................................................................................................................... 15 

Existing Level of Service .............................................................................................................. 15 
Service Units ................................................................................................................................... 17 
Cost per Service Unit .................................................................................................................... 20 
Net Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................................................ 21 
Potential Impact Fees ................................................................................................................... 22 
Capital Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 23 

PARKS ................................................................................................................................................ 25 
Service Units ................................................................................................................................... 25 
Cost per Service Unit .................................................................................................................... 26 
Net Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................................................ 27 
Potential Impact Fees ................................................................................................................... 27 
Capital Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 28 

POLICE .............................................................................................................................................. 29 
Service Units ................................................................................................................................... 29 
Cost per Service Unit .................................................................................................................... 30 
Net Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................................................ 32 
Potential Impact Fees ................................................................................................................... 33 
Capital Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 34 

APPENDIX A:  AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD SIZE .................................................................. 35 
APPENDIX B:  FUNCTIONAL POPULATION ..................................................................... 36 

Residential Functional Population .............................................................................................. 36 
Nonresidential Functional Population ....................................................................................... 36 

APPENDIX C:  REVENUE FORECAST ................................................................................... 38 
APPENDIX D:  UPDATE STUDY COST ................................................................................. 40 
 

List of Tables 

 
Table 1.  Current Non-Utility Impact Fee Schedule ....................................................................... 1 
Table 2.  Updated and Current Non-Utility Impact Fees .............................................................. 2 



Table 3.  Historical and Projected Annual Impact Fee Revenues ................................................ 3 
Table 4.  Planned Costs and Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 ................................................................... 3 
Table 5.  Existing Housing Units by Type, 2013 ........................................................................... 13 
Table 6.  Population, Housing and Employment, 2013-2023 ..................................................... 14 
Table 7.  Employee Density Ratios ................................................................................................. 14 
Table 8.  Population, Housing and Nonresidential Sq. Ft., 2013-2023 ...................................... 14 
Table 9.  Existing Major Road Inventory ....................................................................................... 16 
Table 10.  Existing Transportation Level of Service .................................................................... 17 
Table 11.  Local Trip Length Adjustment Factor ......................................................................... 18 
Table 12.  Average Trip Lengths ..................................................................................................... 19 
Table 13.  Transportation Service Unit Multipliers ....................................................................... 19 
Table 14.  Transportation Service Units, 2013-2023 .................................................................... 20 
Table 15.  Cost of Planned Major Road Projects .......................................................................... 20 
Table 16.  Capacity Added by Planned Major Road Projects ...................................................... 20 
Table 17.  Transportation Cost per Service Unit .......................................................................... 21 
Table 18.  Transportation Outside Funding Offset per Service Unit ........................................ 21 
Table 19.  Excess Construction Sales Tax Offset per Service Unit ............................................ 22 
Table 20.  Transportation Net Cost per Service Unit ................................................................... 22 
Table 21.  Transportation Net Cost Schedule ............................................................................... 22 
Table 22.  Current and Updated Transportation Impact Fees .................................................... 23 
Table 23.  Potential Transportation Impact Fee Revenue ........................................................... 23 
Table 24.  Transportation Capital Plan, 2013-2023 ...................................................................... 24 
Table 25.  Park Service Unit Multipliers ......................................................................................... 25 
Table 26.  Park Service Units, 2013-2023 ....................................................................................... 25 
Table 27.  Existing Park Facilities .................................................................................................... 26 
Table 28.  Existing Park Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................. 27 
Table 29.  Park Net Cost Schedule .................................................................................................. 27 
Table 30.  Current and Updated Park Impact Fees ...................................................................... 28 
Table 31.  Potential Park Impact Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 ......................................................... 28 
Table 32.  Park Capital Plan, 2013-2023 ......................................................................................... 28 
Table 33.  Police Service Units, 2013-2023 .................................................................................... 29 
Table 34.  Existing Police Facilities ................................................................................................. 30 
Table 35.  Existing Police Vehicles .................................................................................................. 31 
Table 36.  Police Cost per Service Unit .......................................................................................... 32 
Table 37.  Police Net Cost Schedule ............................................................................................... 33 
Table 38.  Current and Updated Police Impact Fees .................................................................... 33 
Table 39.  Potential Police Impact Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 ...................................................... 34 
Table 40.  Police Capital Plan, 2013-2023 ...................................................................................... 34 
Table 41.  Average Household Size, 2000 and 2010 ..................................................................... 35 
Table 42.  Average Household Size by Housing Type, 2000 ...................................................... 35 
Table 43.  Current Average Household Size by Housing Type .................................................. 35 
Table 44.  Functional Population per Unit for Residential Uses ................................................ 36 
Table 45.  Functional Population per Unit for Nonresidential Uses ......................................... 37 
Table 46.  Revenue Attributable to New Development, 2013-2023 .......................................... 39 
Table 47.  Update Study Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................. 40 
 

List of Figures 

 
Figure 1.  Comparative Total Non-Utility Impact Fees ................................................................. 3 
Figure 2.  Town Limits Map ............................................................................................................. 10 
Figure 3.  Functional Classification Map ........................................................................................ 11 
Figure 4.  Nonresidential Functional Population Formula .......................................................... 37 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 1 October 2, 2013 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Duncan Associates has been retained by the Town of Oro Valley to update the Town’s development 
impact fees for transportation, parks and police facilities in compliance with the new State impact 
fee enabling act.  The Town’s water impact fees are being updated separately.  This report provides 
all of the analysis required by the new State act prior to the adoption of new or updated impact fees, 
including land use assumptions, infrastructure improvements plan and impact fee calculations. 
 

Background 

 
In 2011, the legislature passed SB 1525, which was signed by the governor on April 26, 2011. SB 
1525 constituted a major overhaul of Arizona’s impact fee enabling act for municipalities.  Among 
other things, SB 1525 restricts the types of facilities for which impact fees may be charged and 
mandates the preparation of land use assumptions and an infrastructure improvements plan. 
 
The last comprehensive update of the Town’s impact fees was based on a 2008 study.1  On January 
1, 2012, the Town reduced its park and police fees to remove unauthorized components in 
compliance with the January 1, 2012 requirements of SB 1525.  The current non-utility impact fees 
that have been effective since January 1, 2012 are summarized in Table 1. 
 

Table 1.  Current Non-Utility Impact Fee Schedule 

Land Use Type Unit Roads Parks Police Total

Single-Family* Dwelling $1,933 $555 $296 $2,784

All Other Housing Dwelling $1,331 $336 $176 $1,843

Lodging Room $556 n/a $14 $570

Commercial 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sf $5,533 n/a $146 $5,679

Commercial, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sf $4,807 n/a $126 $4,933

Commercial, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sf $4,014 n/a $105 $4,119

Commercial, 100,001-200,000 sf 1,000 sf $3,436 n/a $91 $3,527

Commercial, >200,000 sf 1,000 sf $2,921 n/a $76 $2,997

Office/Institutional, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sf $1,812 n/a $43 $1,855

Office/Institutional, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sf $1,547 n/a $37 $1,584

Office/Institutional, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sf $1,318 n/a $32 $1,350

Office/Institutional, 100,000 sf+ 1,000 sf $1,123 n/a $27 $1,150

Business Park 1,000 sf $1,260 n/a $30 $1,290

Light Industrial 1,000 sf $689 n/a $16 $705

Manufacturing 1,000 sf $378 n/a $9 $387

Warehousing 1,000 sf $490 n/a $12 $502  
* includes single-family attached 

Source:  Town of Oro Valley, Development Fee Summary, July 1, 2012. 

 
The Town must now update its fees to be in full compliance with all provisions of the new enabling 
act by August 1, 2014.  Assisting the Town in this endeavor for the non-utility fees is the purpose of 
this project. 
 

  

                                                 
1 TischlerBise, Development Fee Study and Infrastructure Improvements Plan prepared for Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, April 7, 2008. 



Executive Summary 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 2 October 2, 2013 

Summary of Findings 

 
One of the recommendations of this study is to combine some of the current land use categories.  
Specifically, the current five commercial size categories are recommended to be combined, as well as 
the current four office/institutional size categories.  In addition, business park, light industrial and 
manufacturing are proposed to be combined into a single industrial category. These consolidations 
are consistent with available demand data (e.g., higher trip generation size categories also tend to 
have shorter trip lengths and more pass-by traffic) and will simplify impact fee administration. 
 
The updated transportation, park and police impact fees are summarized in Table 2, along with a 
comparison to current fees.  The combined total of the three non-utility fees would be about 12% 
higher for residential uses, lower for most retail/commercial uses, and higher for most office and 
industrial/warehouse uses.  
 

Table 2.  Updated and Current Non-Utility Impact Fees 

Land Use Type Unit Roads Parks Police Total

Updated Fees

Single-Family Detached Dwelling $1,990 $856 $310 $3,156

Multi-Family Dwelling $1,231 $599 $215 $2,045

Mobile Home Park Space $649 $651 $234 $1,534

Hotel/Motel Room $758 $0 $200 $958

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft $2,412 $0 $447 $2,859

Office 1,000 sq ft $1,822 $0 $156 $1,978

Industrial 1,000 sq ft $983 $0 $65 $1,048

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft $915 $0 $63 $978

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft $1,379 $0 $118 $1,497

Current Fees

Single-Family Detached Dwelling $1,933 $555 $296 $2,784

Multi-Family Dwelling $1,331 $336 $176 $1,843

Mobile Home Park Space $1,331 $336 $176 $1,843

Hotel/Motel Room $556 $0 $14 $570

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft $3,436 $0 $91 $3,527

Office 1,000 sq ft $1,318 $0 $32 $1,350

Industrial 1,000 sq ft $689 $0 $16 $705

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft $490 $0 $12 $502

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft $1,318 $0 $32 $1,350

Percent Change

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 3% 54% 5% 13%

Multi-Family Dwelling -8% 78% 22% 11%

Mobile Home Park Space -51% 94% 33% -17%

Hotel/Motel Room 36% n/a  1329% 68%

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft -30% n/a  391% -19%

Office 1,000 sq ft 38% n/a  388% 47%

Industrial 1,000 sq ft 43% n/a  306% 49%

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft 87% n/a  425% 95%

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft 5% n/a  269% 11%  
Source:  Updated fees from Table 21 (transportation), Table 29 (parks), and Table 37 (police); 

current fees from Table 1 (retail/commercial based on 100,001-200,000 sq. ft., office and 

institutional based on 50,001-100,000 sq. ft., industrial based on light industrial).  

 
Average annual revenues anticipated over the next ten years, assuming the updated fees are adopted 
at 100%, are compared to actual revenues in recent years in Table 3. 
 



Executive Summary 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 3 October 2, 2013 

Table 3.  Historical and Projected Annual Impact Fee Revenues 

Year Roads   Parks    Police  Total    

FY 07-08 $910,741 n/a n/a $910,741

FY 08-09 $316,954 $43,186 $8,206 $368,346

FY 09-10 $341,034 $162,756 $37,044 $540,834

FY 10-11 $263,302 $117,584 $28,061 $408,947

FY 11-12 $238,733 $99,542 $30,618 $368,893

Avg. 2013-2023 $494,909 $109,654 $72,770 $677,333  
Source:  Historical revenues from Town of Oro Valley Finance Department, March 

19, 2013; average annual revenues for 2013-2023 from Table 23 (transportation), 

Table 31 (parks) and Table 39 (police). 

 
Anticipated impact fee revenues are compared with the costs of planned capital improvements in 
Table 4.  The updated impact fees will cover approximately one-fifth of the Town costs for planned 
transportation, park and police capital improvements over the next ten years. 
 

Table 4.  Planned Costs and Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 

Planned    Potential  Share of

Fee Type Costs      Revenue  Costs   

Transportation $27,189,600 $4,949,094 18.2%

Parks $5,025,000 $1,096,536 21.8%

Police $2,225,000 $727,700 32.7%

Total $34,439,600 $6,773,330 19.7%  
Source:  Transportation costs and revenues from Table 24 and Table 23, respectively; 

parks from Table 32 and Table 31; police from Table 40 and Table 39. 

 
The Town’s current and proposed total non-utility fees are compared with those currently charged 
by Marana, Tucson and Pima County, as well as the Arizona average, in Figure 1.  This comparison 
shows that the Town’s current and updated fees are relatively low compared to nearby communities 
and the state and national averages. 
 

Figure 1.  Comparative Total Non-Utility Impact Fees 

 
 

Source:  Duncan Associates survey, May 2013 (national average excludes California) 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 4 October 2, 2013 

LEGAL FRAMEWORK 

 
Impact fees are a way for local governments to require new developments to pay a proportionate 
share of the infrastructure costs they impose on the community.  In contrast to traditional 
“negotiated” developer exactions, impact fees are charges that are assessed on new development 
using a standard formula based on objective characteristics, such as the number and type of dwelling 
units constructed.  The fees are one-time, up-front charges, with the payment usually made at the 
time of building permit issuance.  Impact fees require each new development project to pay its pro-
rata share of the cost of new capital facilities required to serve that development. 
 
Arizona’s enabling act for municipalities is codified in Sec. 9-463.05, Arizona Revised Statutes 
(ARS).  In 2011, the legislature passed SB 1525, which was signed by the governor on April 26, 
2011. SB 1525 constituted a major overhaul of Arizona’s enabling act for municipalities.  This 
section summarizes some of the major provisions of the new state act. 
 

Eligible Facilities 

 
Prior to SB 1525, municipalities could assess impact fees for any “necessary public services” (which 
was not defined) that constituted “costs to the municipality.”  SB 1525 amended the statute to limit 
the types of facilities for which impact fees can be assessed.  Authorized facilities for which impact 
fees can be assessed, after January 1, 2012, are limited to the following defined “necessary public 
services:” 
 

"Necessary public service" means any of the following facilities that have a life expectancy of three or more 
years and that are owned and operated by or on behalf of the municipality:  
 
(a)  Water facilities, including the supply, transportation, treatment, purification and distribution of 
water, and any appurtenances for those facilities.  
 
(b)  Wastewater facilities, including collection, interception, transportation, treatment and disposal of 
wastewater, and any appurtenances for those facilities.  
 
(c)  Storm water, drainage and flood control facilities, including any appurtenances for those facilities.  
 
(d)  Library facilities of up to ten thousand square feet that provide a direct benefit to development, not 
including equipment, vehicles or appurtenances.  
 
(e)  Street facilities located in the service area, including arterial or collector streets or roads that have 
been designated on an officially adopted plan of the municipality, traffic signals and rights-of-way and 
improvements thereon.  
 
(f)  Fire and police facilities, including all appurtenances, equipment and vehicles. Fire and police 
facilities do not include a facility or portion of a facility that is used to replace services that were once provided 
elsewhere in the municipality, vehicles and equipment used to provide administrative services, helicopters or 
airplanes or a facility that is used for training firefighters or officers from more than one station or substation.  
 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 5 October 2, 2013 

(g)  Neighborhood parks and recreational facilities on real property up to thirty acres in area, or parks 
and recreational facilities larger than thirty acres if the facilities provide a direct benefit to the development. 
Park and recreational facilities do not include vehicles, equipment or that portion of any facility that is used 
for amusement parks, aquariums, aquatic centers, auditoriums, arenas, arts and cultural facilities, bandstand 
and orchestra facilities, bathhouses, boathouses, clubhouses, community centers greater than three thousand 
square feet in floor area, environmental education centers, equestrian facilities, golf course facilities, 
greenhouses, lakes, museums, theme parks, water reclamation or riparian areas, wetlands, zoo facilities or 
similar recreational facilities, but may include swimming pools.  
 
(h)  Any facility that was financed and that meets all of the requirements prescribed in subsection R of 
this section. (Sec. 9-463.05.S.5, ARS) 

 
No longer authorized are fees for general government facilities, sanitation facilities, library buildings 
larger than 10,000 square feet and library books or equipment, fire and police administrative and 
training facilities and aircraft, parks larger than 30 acres and community centers larger than 3,000 
square feet.  No changes were made to authorized improvements for road, stormwater drainage, 
water or wastewater facilities, other than the new requirement that eligible facilities must have a life 
expectancy of at least three years. 
 

Compliance Deadlines 

 
Municipalities may continue to collect fees for unauthorized facilities after January 1, 2012 if the fees 
were pledged to retire debt for such facilities prior to June 1, 2011.   However, the Town of Oro 
Valley had not pledged fee revenue in this sense for any of its development impact fees.   
 
SB 1525 added numerous new requirements related to how impact fees are calculated.  Land use 
assumptions (growth projections) must be prepared for each service area, covering at least a ten-year 
period.  Many new requirements were added for the infrastructure improvements plan (IIP) and the 
impact fee analysis.  However, compliance with these is not required until August 1, 2014: 
 

A development fee that was adopted before January 1, 2012 may continue to be assessed only to the extent 
that it will be used to provide a necessary public service for which development fees can be assessed pursuant to 
this section and shall be replaced by a development fee imposed under this section on or before August 1, 
2014. (9-463.05K, ARS) 

 
Significant changes were made to the requirements for adopting updated infrastructure 
improvements plans and fee schedules.  These requirements are effective as of January 1, 2012, but 
only apply to the updated IIP and impact fee schedules that must be in place by August 1, 2014. 
 
Provisions were also added relating to refunds.  However, these provisions only apply to fees 
collected after August 1, 2014. 
 
Other changes, however, are effective as of January 1, 2012.  These include new provisions or 
amendments related to developer credits, the locking-in of fee schedules for 24 months following 
development approval, and annual reporting requirements.  In addition, the expenditure of impact 
fees collected after January 1 is restricted to facilities authorized by SB 1525 (and repayment of 
pledged debt for unauthorized facilities, although this is not an option for Oro Valley). 
 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 6 October 2, 2013 

Service Areas 

 
Service areas are a key requirement for impact fees under SB 1525.  A service area is defined as “any 
specified area within the boundaries of a municipality in which development will be served by 
necessary public services or facility expansions and within which a substantial nexus exists between 
the necessary public services or facility expansions and the development being served as prescribed 
in the infrastructure improvements plan.” Land use assumptions (growth projections) and an 
infrastructure improvements plan (list of capital improvements and impact fee analysis) must be 
prepared for each service area.   
 
It should be noted that multiple service areas are not mandated by SB 1525.  A service area may 
include all of the area within the Town limits, as long as it can be shown that developments located 
anywhere within the service area will be served by or benefit from improvements located in the 
service area. 
 

Service Units 

 
In impact fee analysis, demand for facilities must be expressed in terms of a common unit of 
measurement, called a “service unit.”  SB 1525 defines a service unit as “a standardized measure of 
consumption, use, generation or discharge attributable to an individual unit of development 
calculated pursuant to generally accepted engineering or planning standards for a particular category 
of necessary public services or facility expansions.”  The recommended service units are described in 
the individual facility sections of this report.   
 

Methodologies 

 
SB 1525 is sometimes misunderstood to dictate a particular methodology for calculating impact fees.  
Because cities must forecast anticipated growth over a fixed time period and identify improvements 
over the same time period, some are lead to think that a “plan-based” methodology is required, 
where the cost per service unit is calculated by dividing planned costs by anticipated new service 
units.  In fact, however, SB 1525 does not dictate this methodology, and most impact fees in the 
state have not been calculated in this way.  The reason is that, to support a plan-based methodology, 
the list of planned improvements must be developed using a rigorous analysis, such as the modeling 
used to develop a transportation master plan, in order to establish the required nexus between the 
anticipated growth and the specific list of improvements required to serve that growth.  In many 
cases, such a master plan is not available.   
 
The principal alternative to the plan-based methodology is “standards-based.” The key difference is 
that the plan-based approach is based on a complex level of service (LOS) standard, such as “every 
road shall function at LOS D or better,” or “the average fire response time shall not exceed three 
minutes,” that requires projecting growth by small areas and using sophisticated modeling or analysis 
to determine the specific improvements needed to maintain the desired LOS.  In contrast, a 
standards-based approach uses a generalized LOS standard, such as the ratio of park acres to 
population, which does not require an extensive master planning effort in order to determine the 
improvements and costs that are attributable to a specific quantity of growth.   
 
There are advantages and disadvantages to the two methodologies.  The major advantage of a 
standards-based methodology is that it is more flexible, since the fees are not dependent on the 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 7 October 2, 2013 

specific projects included in the list of improvements, only on the average cost to construct a unit of 
capacity.  Changing the list of planned projects typically does not require recalculation of standards-
based impact fees, since a single project is likely to have an insignificant impact on the average cost 
of capacity added by all of the improvements.  This allows the capital plan to change in response to 
unforeseen development without triggering the need for an impact fee update.  
 

Level of Service (LOS) Standards 

 
SB 1525 does not define the term “level of service” (LOS), nor does it require the formal adoption 
of LOS standards.  It does require, however, that impact fees be based on the same LOS provided 
to existing development in the service area.  This reflects a basic principle of impact fees, which is 
that new development should not be charged for a higher LOS than existing development.  This 
does not mean that impact fees cannot be based on a higher standard than is currently actually 
provided to existing development in a service area.  If the fees are based on a higher-than-existing 
LOS, however, there must be a plan to use non-impact fee funds to remedy the existing deficiency.   
 

Land Use Assumptions 

 
An impact fee update must now include the development of land use assumptions (growth 
projections) for each service area.  SB 1525 defines land use assumptions as “projections of changes 
in land uses, densities, intensities and population for a specified service area over a period of at least 
ten years and pursuant to the general plan of the municipality.”  Since the infrastructure 
improvements plan (IIP) that must be prepared for each service area must identify improvement 
needs for a period not to exceed 10 years, a 10-year time-frame would seem to be the most 
appropriate for both the land use assumptions and the IIP.   
 

Infrastructure Improvements Plan 

 
SB 1525 requires that an infrastructure improvements plan (IIP) be prepared for facility type for 
each service area.  Impact fees may only be collected to pay for improvements identified in the IIP.  
By implication, impact fees can only be spent on improvements listed in the IIP.   
 
The IIP is often confused with a list of planned capital improvements.  While the IIP must include 
such a list, it must also contain much more analysis.  The IIP is basically the impact fee study.  To 
avoid confusion, we suggest referring to the list of improvements that must be included in the IIP as 
the “capital plan.”  The consultant proposes to prepare a single, consolidated document that 
includes land use assumptions, infrastructure improvement plans and impact fee analyses for the 
Town’s transportation, parks and police impact fees.   
 
As noted above, the IIP must identify planned projects over a period of not more than 10 years, and 
it is suggested that the Town’s IIPs and capital plans cover a 10-year period.  Of course, the impact 
fee analysis could cover a longer period, such as to build-out, which may be required if the fees are 
based on build-out master plans. 
 
The cost of the projects listed in the capital plan will not necessarily determine the impact fee 
amounts.  As described earlier, there are two basic methodologies.  Under a plan-based approach, 
the fee will be determined by the projects listed in the applicable master plan, some but not all of 
which will be listed in the impact fee capital plan.  Under the standards-based approach, the fees will 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 8 October 2, 2013 

be based on the existing level of service and the average cost per unit of capacity.  Consequently, 
under the standards-based approach, the impact fee capital plan is primarily a list of improvements 
that are eligible to be funded with impact fees. 
 
Eligible improvements are those that add capacity to accommodate future growth.  Replacing an 
existing police patrol vehicle or remodeling or repairing an existing building are examples of 
improvements that do not add capacity.  Some projects may be partially eligible.  In addition, 
existing facilities that have outstanding debt that is to be repaid with impact fees should be listed in 
the capital plan.   
 

Refunds 

 
A common and understandable misinterpretation of SB 1525 is that a municipality may be required 
to refund fees collected if any improvement listed in the IIP is not completed within the timeframe 
of the IIP.  Section 9-463.05.B.7 provides that collection of impact fees is allowed only to pay for a 
project that is identified in the IIP, “and the municipality plans to complete construction and have 
the service available within the time period established in the infrastructure improvements plan, but 
in no event longer than the time period provided in subsection H, paragraph 3 of this section [i.e., 
15 years for water and wastewater, and 10 years for other facilities].”  The key terms in this section 
are “plans to complete” and “have the service available.”  No community has a crystal ball that 
allows them to know with certainty how much development is going to occur over a 10-15 year 
period in the future.  While the Town may plan to complete an improvement in this time period in 
order to serve anticipated growth, if the anticipated growth does not materialize and the need for the 
improvement is not required to serve the growth that does occur, it is highly unlikely that a court 
would find that the Town is compelled to refund the fees that it did collect.   
 
The refund provisions in the referenced refund subsection (H) reinforce this interpretation.  Section 
9-463.05.B.7 directly references only the final paragraph of subsection H (H.3), which simply 
requires that the impact fees be spent within a certain time period (15 years for water and 
wastewater, and 10 years for other facilities) from the date they were collected.  It is reasonable to 
conclude that this is the only refund provision that will likely be applicable, as long as the Town 
does not collect impact fees and deny access to services.  However, there is always the possibility 
that refunds could be required if a construction project comes in significantly lower than its 
estimated cost. 
 

Offsets 

 
A fundamental principle of impact fees is that new development should not be required to pay twice 
for the cost of new facilities – once through impact fees and again through other taxes or fees that 
are used to fund the same facilities.  To avoid such potential double-payment, impact fees may be 
reduced, and such a reduction is referred to as an “offset.”  Typically, offsets are incorporated into 
the impact fee calculation, although they can also be addressed through an independent fee study for 
an individual development project.  While this has long been a part of impact fee practice in 
Arizona, SB 1525 amended the state enabling act to add the following provision (Section 9-
463.05.B.12): 
 
 The municipality shall forecast the contribution to be made in the future in cash or by taxes, fees, assessments 

or other sources of revenue derived from the property owner towards the capital costs of the necessary public 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 9 October 2, 2013 

service covered by the development fee and shall include these contributions in determining the extent of the 
burden imposed by the development. Beginning August 1, 2014, for purposes of calculating the required offset 
to development fees pursuant to this subsection, if a municipality imposes a construction contracting or similar 
excise tax rate in excess of the percentage amount of the transaction privilege tax rate imposed on the majority 
of other transaction privilege tax classifications, the entire excess portion of the construction contracting or 
similar excise tax shall be treated as a contribution to the capital costs of necessary public services provided to 
development for which development fees are assessed, unless the excess portion was already taken into account 
for such purpose pursuant to this subsection. 

 
The revenue forecast required by Section 9-463.05.B.12 is provided in Appendix C. 
 
In general, offsets are only required for funding that is dedicated for capacity-expanding 
improvements of the type addressed by the impact fee.  A municipality is not required to use general 
fund revenue to pay for growth-related improvements.  If, for example, a municipality decides that 
the existing level of service on which impact fees are based is insufficient, and opts to use general 
revenue to raise the level of service for both existing and new development, no offset would be 
required. 
 
The clearest situation that requires an offset is when there is outstanding debt on the facilities that 
are providing existing development with the level of service that new development will be expected 
to pay for through impact fees.  In this case, new development will be paying for the facilities that 
will serve them, while also paying for a portion of the cost of facilities serving existing development 
through property or other taxes.  Consequently, the impact fees should be reduced to avoid this 
potential double-payment. 
 
Another clear case requiring offsets is when the impact fees have been adopted based on a level of 
service that is higher than what is currently provided to existing development in the service area.  In 
such a case, the cost of remedying the existing deficiency will almost always be funded by future 
revenue sources to which new development will contribute.  To the extent that this is the case, an 
offset is required. 
 
As noted above, an offset will generally be warranted when new development will be contributing 
toward a funding source that is dedicated to fund the same growth-related improvements addressed 
by the impact fee.  Offsets are also often provided for anticipated grant funding that may be 
available to help fund growth-related improvements, although the uncertainty of such funding and 
the fact that it is not paid for by property owners make this type of offset discretionary. 
 
Finally, the new language inserted in the state enabling act by SB 1525, cited above, now requires 
municipalities to provide offsets for the excess portion of any construction contracting excise tax.  
Oro Valley has five classifications:  Privilege Tax (2%), Hotel/Motel (6%), Construction Contracting 
(4%), Utilities (4%) and Pre-Existing Contracts (2%).  Construction is higher than two of the other 
four categories, but two is not a majority of four.  However, the Town has received a legal opinion 
that the word “classification” in the statute refers to the “taxable activities” on the Arizona 
Department of Revenue (“ADOR”) chart.  This includes all taxable activities, such as 
bars/restaurants, transportation, commercial lease, amusement, job printing etc.  Based on this 
interpretation, the transaction privilege tax on most of the Oro Valley classifications (taxable 
activities) is 2%.  Consequently, an offset is provided for half of the construction sales tax against 
the transportation impact fees. 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 10 October 2, 2013 

SERVICE AREAS 

 
As noted in the Legal Framework section, service areas are a key requirement for impact fees under 
SB 1525.  Land use assumptions (growth projections) and an infrastructure improvements plan (list 
of capital improvements and impact fee analysis) must be prepared for each service area.  Multiple 
service areas are not mandated by SB 1525, as long as it can be shown that developments located 
anywhere within the service area will be served by or benefit from improvements anywhere in the 
service area – which is another way of saying that a “substantial nexus” can be demonstrated. 
 
Oro Valley currently charges non-utility impact fees for transportation, parks and police facilities.  
The Town currently has a single, town-wide service area for all three fee types.  The current Oro 
Valley town limits are shown in Figure 2 below.     
 

Figure 2.  Town Limits Map 

  



Service Areas 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 11 October 2, 2013 

Transportation 

 
Transportation planners classify roadways according to function.  Local streets primarily function to 
provide access to adjacent development.  Collector roads serve a dual function, providing both 
access and a way for traffic to get to the arterial.  Arterial roadways also provide some access to 
adjacent properties, but their primary function is to move traffic long distances with a community.  
The functional classifications of the Town’s existing major roadways are shown in Figure 3. 
 

Figure 3.  Functional Classification Map 

 
 
The Town’s transportation impact fees are limited to arterials and major collectors.  Since these 
roadway classifications are designed to move traffic throughout the community, a town-wide service 
area continues to be appropriate.  
 



Service Areas 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 12 October 2, 2013 

Parks 

 
SB 1525 authorizes fees for “neighborhood parks,” although the term is undefined except for 
certain restrictions.  The most important restriction is that neighborhood parks cannot not exceed 
30 acres, unless a “direct benefit” (another undefined term) can be demonstrated.     
 
While the Town’s does not have a park master plan, typical standards are that a neighborhood park 
should be 5-10 acres and have a service area of about a one-half mile radius, while a community park 
should be 30-80 acres in size and have a service area of about a three-mile radius.  The 30-acre park 
size authorized for impact fees falls somewhere between a neighborhood and community park. 
 
Park impact fee service areas can reasonably be larger than the service area of a single park.  
Residents do not always use the park closest to them.  A park impact fee system where each existing 
or potential park has its own service area would be unworkable.  The entire town limits is roughly 
the size of two community park areas, and is recommended for the park impact fees.     
 

Police  

 
The current and recommended service area for police impact fees is town-wide.  Most police 
facilities are centralized in the Main Police Station, and police protection is provided throughout the 
city from roving patrol cars.   
  
 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 13 October 2, 2013 

LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS 

 
This section presents land use assumptions covering a ten-year period (2013-2023) to serve as the 
basis for the infrastructure improvements plan and impact fee calculations for the Town of Oro 
Valley’s transportation, park and police impact fees.   
 
SB 1525 requires that land use assumptions be developed for each service area.  All of the Town’s 
impact fees will continue to be based on a single town-wide service area.   
  
SB 1525 requires that land use assumptions be developed “pursuant to the general plan.”  The Oro 
Valley General Plan, adopted in 2005, does not include projections of future population or land use.  
Consequently, other data sources will be used to develop projections. 
 
The 2010 U.S. Census provides a total count of housing units, but no information on units by 
housing type.  Information on housing type is available from sample data collected by the Census 
Bureau as part of the annual American Housing Survey.  The most recent available data is a 
weighted 5% sample, which consist of five annual 1% samples taken in 2007 through 2011.  These 
figures are adjusted to match the 2010 total housing count from the 2010 Census.  Adding the 
number of units for which building permits were issued by the Town over the last three years yields 
an estimate of existing housing units by type for 2013, as shown in Table 5.   
 

Table 5.  Existing Housing Units by Type, 2013 

2007-11 2010  2010-12 2013 

ACS     Census Permits Est.  

Single-Family Detached 14,677 15,285 264 15,549

Multi-Family 4,486 4,672 757 5,429

Mobile Home 368 383 0 383

Total Housing Units 19,531 20,340 1,021 21,361  
Source:  2007-2011 ACS data is from the U.S. Census Bureau’s American 

Community Survey, based on a 5% sample taken over five years; 2010 total units 

from 2010 U.S. Census, SF1 100% count data; 2010 units by type based on 

distribution of units from ACS data; building permits issued in calendar years 2010 

through 2012 from Town of Oro Valley Development and Infrastructure Services 

Department, March 22, 2013 (includes an additional 750 multi-family units per 

Town, August 20, 2013). 

 
The best available source of information on growth projections for Oro Valley is the small area 
population, housing and employment estimates and projections prepared by the Pima Association of 
Governments (PAG).  The boundaries of these small areas, called Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZ), 
coincide very closely with the Town’s boundaries, and can be aggregated to the Town limits.  
Current PAG data sets are available for 2005 estimates and 2040 projections.  2013 estimates for 
housing and population are based on current housing unit estimates derived in Table 5 above.  
Employment estimates for 2013 are derived from 2005 PAG employment estimates, which are 
adjusted upward by the 2005-2013 growth in housing units.  2023 population, housing and 
employment estimates are based on a straight-line interpolation between 2013 estimates and 2040 
PAG projections.  The resulting 2013-2023 forecasts are presented in Table 6. 
 
  



Land Use Assumptions 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 14 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 6.  Population, Housing and Employment, 2013-2023 

2005  2013  2023  2040  

Total Population 39,028 43,070 47,735 55,666

Total Housing Units 18,509 21,361 22,749 25,109

Retail/Commercial Employment 3,367 3,886 4,941 6,736

Office Employment 2,487 2,870 4,083 6,145

Industrial Employment 2,405 2,776 3,042 3,493

Warehouse Employment 130 150 121 71

Public Employment 1,016 1,173 1,787 2,832  
Source:  2005 estimates and 2040 projections for Traffic Analysis Zones consistent with 

Town of Oro Valley town limits from Pima Association of Governments; 2013 housing units 

from Table 5; 2013 population based on 2013 housing and 2010 ratio of population to 

housing from 2010 U.S. Census; 2013 employment based on 2005 estimates and 2013 to 

2005 housing unit ratio; 2023 population, housing and employment is straight-line 

interpolation between 2013 and 2040. 

 
The number of employees can be converted to building square footage estimates using the employee 
density ratios shown in Table 7. 
 

Table 7.  Employee Density Ratios 

Sq. Feet/ Employees/

Land Use Type Employee 1,000 Sq. Ft.

Retail/Commercial 487 2.05

Office 205 4.88

Industrial 460 2.17

Warehouse 1,236 0.81

Public 800 1.25  
Source:  Sample survey data collected by City of Chandler, 

Arizona, Economic Development Department, 2005. 

 
Land use assumptions for 2013-2023 are summarized in Table 8 below for population, housing units 
by type and nonresidential building square footage by land use type. 
 

Table 8.  Population, Housing and Nonresidential Sq. Ft., 2013-2023 

2013  2023  

Total Population 43,070 47,735

Single-Family Detached Units 15,549 16,578

Multi-Family Units 5,429 5,788

Mobile Home Units 383 383

Total Housing Units 21,361 22,749

Retail/Commercial Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 1,892 2,406

Office Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 588 837

Industrial Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 1,277 1,399

Warehouse Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 185 150

Public Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 938 1,430

Total Nonresidential Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 4,880 6,222  
Source:  2013 and 2023 population and total housing units from Table 6; 

2013 housing units by type from Table 5; 2023 housing units by type 

assumes no growth in mobile homes and new units distributed according to 

2013 distribution of non-mobile home units; nonresidential square fee based 

on employment from Table 6 and employee density ratios from Table 7. 

 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 15 October 2, 2013 

TRANSPORTATION 

 
This section updates the Town’s transportation impact fees in compliance with the new Arizona 
impact fee enabling act for municipalities. 
 
There are two basic transportation impact fee methodologies:  consumption-based and plan-based.  
In the standard consumption-based approach, the total cost of a representative set of improvements 
is divided by the capacity added by those improvements in order to determine an average cost per 
vehicle-mile of capacity (VMC).  This cost per VMC is then multiplied by the vehicle-miles of travel 
(VMT) generated by a unit of development of a particular land use type to determine the gross 
impact fee.  A variant is the modified consumption-based approach, which uses a system-wide 
VMC/VMT ratio higher than the 1:1 ratio implicit in the standard approach. 
 
The alternative is the plan-based approach.  The key to a defensible plan-based methodology is a 
well-designed transportation master plan that establishes a strong nexus between anticipated growth 
over a 10-20 year period and the improvements that will be required to accommodate growth over 
that planning horizon.  The cost per VMT (or per trip) is determined by dividing the cost of the 
planned improvements by the growth in VMT.  The cost per VMT is then multiplied by the vehicle-
miles of travel (VMT) generated by a unit of development of a particular land use type to determine 
the gross impact fee.  The level of service standard under the plan-based approach is facility-specific 
(e.g., “all major road segments and intersections shall function at LOS D or better”). 
 
There are advantages and disadvantages to the two methodologies.  The consumption-based 
approach, at least in its standard form, tends to be conservative and generally results in lower impact 
fees than the plan-based approach.  This is because most roadway systems need more than one unit 
of capacity (VMC) for each unit of travel demand (VMT) in order to function at an acceptable level 
of service (the modified consumption-based approach addresses this issue and is less conservative).  
Plan-based fees using a transportation plan that identifies all of the improvements needed to provide 
acceptable levels of service on all roadways will almost always result in higher fees.   
 
The major advantage of a consumption-based methodology is that it is more flexible, since the fees 
are not dependent on the specific projects included in the list of improvements, only on the average 
cost to construct a vehicle-mile of capacity.  Changing the list of planned projects typically does not 
require recalculation of consumption-based road impact fees, since a single project is likely to have 
an insignificant impact on the average cost of capacity added by all of the improvements.  This 
allows the capital plan to change in response to unforeseen development without triggering the need 
for an impact fee update.  This update uses the consumption-based methodology.   

 

Existing Level of Service 

 
As described above, the level of service used in the consumption-based methodology is a system-
wide capacity/demand (VMC/VMT) ratio of one.  This section demonstrates that the existing level 
of service exceeds this standard. 
 
An inventory of the existing arterial/major collector road network is summarized in Table 9 below.  
For each roadway segment, information was gathered on segment length in miles, number of 
through lanes, and current traffic volumes (annualized average daily trips or AADT).  The number 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 16 October 2, 2013 

of vehicle-miles of travel (VMT) is the product of segment miles and AADT.  The number of 
vehicle-miles of capacity (VMC) is the product of segment miles and roadway capacity. 
 

Table 9.  Existing Major Road Inventory 

Street From To Class Miles Lns. AADT VMT VMC

1st Ave Oracle Rd Lambert Ln Minor Art 0.414 4 24,340 10,077 10,350

1st Ave Lambert Ln Naranja Dr Minor Art 0.365 4 15,746 5,747 9,125

1st Ave Naranja Dr Tangerine Rd Minor Art 0.997 4 15,746 15,699 24,925

Calle Buena Vista Calle Concordia Hardy Collector 1.000 2 3,533 3,533 10,000

Calle Concordia Calle Loma Linda Calle Buena Vista Minor Art 0.499 2 4,300 2,146 4,990

Calle Concordia Calle Buena Vista Overlook Minor Art 0.708 2 4,300 3,044 7,080

Calle Concordia Overlook Hwy 77 Minor Art 0.708 2 4,300 3,044 7,080

Hardy Rd Calle Loma Linda Calle Buena Vista Minor Art 0.501 2 5,384 2,697 5,010

Hardy Rd Calle Buena Vista Oracle Rd Minor Art 0.534 2 5,384 2,875 5,340

Innovation Park SR -989 Rancho Vistoso Minor Art 1.248 2 6,000 7,488 12,480

La Canada Dr Oro Valley TB Calle Concordia Minor Art 0.505 4 11,749 5,933 12,625

La Canada Dr Oro Valley TB Rancho Sonora Minor Art 0.647 4 11,750 7,602 16,175

La Canada Dr Rancho Sonora Dr Lambert lane Minor Art 0.414 4 11,750 4,865 10,350

La Canada Dr Lambert Ln Naranja Dr Minor Art 0.997 4 14,658 14,614 24,925

La Canada Dr Naranja Dr Tangerine Rd Minor Art 0.971 4 10,382 10,081 24,275

La Canada Dr Tangerine Rd Moore Rd Minor Art 1.000 4 5,058 5,058 25,000

La Cholla Blvd 0.5 mi. S of Lambert Lambert Ln Minor Art 0.500 2 14,246 7,123 5,000

La Cholla Blvd Lambert Ln Naranja Dr Minor Art 1.007 2 10,669 10,744 10,070

La Cholla Blvd Naranja Dr Tangerine Rd Minor Art 0.966 2 9,870 9,534 9,660

La Cholla Blvd Tangerine Rd Oro Valley TB Collector 0.258 2 2,798 722 2,580

Lambert Ln 0.5 mi. E of Shannon La Cholla Blvd Collector 0.496 2 7,178 3,560 4,960

Lambert Ln La Cholla Blvd Rancho Sonora Minor Art 0.625 2 9,437 5,898 6,250

Lambert Ln Rancho Sonora Dr La Canada Dr Minor Art 0.369 2 9,437 3,482 3,690

Lambert Ln La Canada Dr Highlands Dr Minor Art 1.290 2 11,938 15,400 12,900

Lambert Ln Pusch View 1st Ave Minor Art 1.017 2 11,931 12,134 10,170

Magee Road Northern Ave Oracle Rd Minor Art 0.219 2 14,146 3,098 2,190

Magee Road Oracle Rd Town Limits Collector 0.787 2 1,888 1,486 7,870

Moore Road La Cholla Blvd Copper Spring Trl Collector 1.558 2 3,621 5,642 15,580

Moore Road Copper Spring Trl Woodburne Ave. Collector 0.804 2 3,621 2,911 8,040

Moore Road Woodburne Ave. Rancho Vistoso Bd Collector 0.286 2 3,621 1,036 2,860

Naranja Dr Shannon Road La Cholla Blvd Collector 1.000 2 2,000 2,000 10,000

Naranja Dr La Cholla Blvd La Canada Dr Collector 0.998 2 7,883 7,867 9,980

Naranja Dr La Canada Dr 1st Ave Collector 2.020 2 3,977 8,034 20,200

Northern Ave. Magee Road Camino Cortaro Collector 0.496 2 8,440 4,186 4,960

Northern Ave. Camino Cortaro Hardy Road Collector 0.507 2 8,440 4,279 5,070

Pusch View Lane Lambert Lane Oracle Road Minor Art 0.644 4 5,926 3,816 16,098

Rancho Vistoso Tangerine Rd Moore Rd Minor Art 1.466 4 18,566 27,218 36,650

Rancho Vistoso Moore Rd Sun City Blvd Minor Art 2.447 4 3,481 8,518 61,175

Rancho Vistoso Sun City Blvd Del webb Blvd Minor Art 1.117 4 8,209 9,169 27,925

Rancho Vistoso Del webb Blvd Innovation Park Minor Art 0.815 4 12,938 10,544 20,375

Rancho Vistoso Innovation Park Dr SR-77 Minor Art 0.414 4 12,932 5,354 10,350

Shannon Rd Lambert Ln Naranja Collector 0.985 2 2,582 2,543 9,850

Tangerine Rd Shannon Rd La Cholla Blvd Prin Art 0.981 2 11,242 11,028 9,810

Tangerine Rd La Cholla Blvd La Canada Dr Prin Art 1.007 2 13,316 13,409 10,070

Tangerine Rd La Canada Dr Mandarin Ln Prin Art 1.580 4 18,640 29,451 39,500

Vistoso Comm Lp Rancho Vistoso Bd Oracle Road Collector 0.444 4 1,538 682 11,094

Total Vehicle-Miles 335,371 614,657  
Source:  Segment descriptions, miles, lanes and AADT from Town of Oro Valley, March 27, 2013; VMT is product of miles and 

AADT; VMC is product of miles and 25,000 vehicles per day for 4-lane and 10,000 for 2-lane. 

duncaniassociates 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 17 October 2, 2013 

The results of the existing level of service analysis are shown in Table 10.  While some individual 
road segments are operating at a level of service worse than LOS D, the appropriate level of service 
measurement for a consumption-based road fee is the overall ratio of capacity to demand for the 
service area.  As shown below, existing level of service exceeds the minimum VMC/VMT ratio of 
one. 
 

Table 10.  Existing Transportation Level of Service 

Total Vehicle-Miles of Capacity (VMC) 614,657

÷ Total Vehicle-Miles of Travel (VMT) 335,371

Existing VMC/VMT Ratio 1.83  
Source:  Vehicle-miles of capacity (VMC) and vehicle-miles of travel 

(VMT) from Table 9. 

 
 

Service Units 

 
A service unit creates the link between supply (roadway capacity) and demand (traffic generated by 
new development).  An appropriate service unit basis for road impact fees is vehicle-miles of travel 
(VMT).  Vehicle-miles is a combination of the number of vehicles traveling during a given time 
period and the distance (in miles) that these vehicles travel.   
 
The two time periods most often used in traffic analysis are the 24-hour day (average daily trips or 
ADT) and the single hour of the day with the highest traffic volume (peak hour trips or PHT).  Due 
to the fact that available traffic counts are in terms of ADT and to be consistent with the Town’s 
current fees, which are based on ADT, daily VMT will be used as the service unit for the 
transportation impact fees.   
 
Transportation service units are defined in terms of vehicle travel.  The travel demand generated by 
a specific land use is a product of three factors:  1) trip generation, 2) percent primary trips and 3) 
average trip length. 
 
Trip Generation 

Trip generation rates are based on information published in the most recent edition of the Institute 
of Transportation Engineers’ (ITE) Trip Generation manual.  Trip generation rates represent trip 
ends, or driveway crossings at the site of a land use.  Thus, a single-one way trip from home to work 
counts as one trip end for the residence and one trip end for the work place, for a total of two trip 
ends.  To avoid over counting, all trip rates have been divided by two.  This places the burden of 
travel equally between the origin and destination of the trip and eliminates double charging for any 
particular trip. 
 
Primary Trip Factor 

Trip rates must also be adjusted by a “primary trip factor” to exclude pass by and diverted-linked 
trips.  This adjustment is intended to reduce the possibility of over-counting by only including 
primary trips generated by the development.  Pass by trips are those trips that are already on a 
particular route for a different purpose and simply stop at a development on that route.  For 
example, a stop at a convenience store on the way home from the office is a pass by trip for the 
convenience store.  A pass by trip does not create an additional burden on the street system and 
therefore should not be counted in the assessment of impact fees.  A diverted-linked trip is similar 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 18 October 2, 2013 

to a pass by trip, but a diversion is made from the regular route to make an interim stop. The 
reduction for pass by and diverted-linked trips was drawn from ITE and other published 
information. 
 
Average Trip Length 

In the context of a transportation impact fee based on a consumption-based methodology, it is 
necessary to determine the average length of a trip on the major roadway system within Oro Valley.  
The point of departure in developing local trip lengths is to utilize national data.  The U.S. 
Department of Transportation’s 2009 National Household Travel Survey identifies average trips 
lengths for specific trip purposes.  However, these trip lengths are unlikely to be representative of 
travel on the major roadway system in Oro Valley, since the national data includes travel on Federal 
and State highways, minor collectors and local streets, as well as travel outside any one jurisdiction.  
An adjustment factor for local trip lengths can be derived by dividing the vehicle-miles of travel 
(VMT) that is actually observed on the major roadway system by the VMT that would be expected 
using national average trip lengths and trip generation rates.   
 
The first step is to estimate the total VMT that would be expected to be generated by existing 
development in Oro Valley based on national travel demand characteristics.  This can be 
accomplished by multiplying existing development in each land use category by the appropriate 
national trip generation rate, primary trip factor and trip length, and summing for all land use types, 
as shown in Table 11.  The expected VMT is considerably higher than the actual estimated VMT on 
the Town’s major roadway system.  This is not surprising, since the major roadway system does not 
include State roads, minor collectors, local streets or any portion of a trip that occurs outside the 
Town limits.  Consequently, it is necessary to develop an adjustment factor to account for this 
variation.  The local adjustment factor is the ratio of actual to projected VMT on the major roadway 
system.  The national average trip length for each land use type should be multiplied by a local 
adjustment factor of 0.311. 
 

Table 11.  Local Trip Length Adjustment Factor 

ITE 2013 Trip  Primary Daily Length Daily  

Land Use Type Code Unit Units Rate Trips  Trips (miles) VMT  

Single-Family Detached 210 Dwelling 15,549 4.76 100% 74,013 9.75 721,627

Multi-Family 220 Dwelling 5,429 3.33 100% 18,079 8.62 155,841

Mobile Home Park 240 Space 383 2.50 100% 958 6.03 5,777

Retail/Commercial 820 1,000 sq ft 1,892 21.35 42% 16,966 6.27 106,377

Office 710 1,000 sq ft 588 5.52 80% 2,597 9.61 24,957

Industrial 140 1,000 sq ft 1,277 1.91 100% 2,439 11.98 29,219

Warehouse 150 1,000 sq ft 185 1.78 100% 329 11.98 3,941

Public/Institutional 620 1,000 sq ft 938 3.80 100% 3,564 8.47 30,187

Total Expected VMT 1,077,926

÷ Total Actual VMT 335,371

Ratio of Actual to Expected VMT 0.311
 

Source:  Existing 2013 units from Table 8; trip rates are one-half daily trip ends during a weekday from Institute of Transportation 

Engineers (ITE), Trip Generation, 9th ed., 2012 (commercial based on shopping center, office on general office, industrial on 

manufacturing, public/institutional on nursing home); primary trip percentage from ITE, Trip Generation Handbook, June 2004; 

daily trips is product of units, trip rate and primary trip percentage; national average trip lengths from Table 12; daily VMT is 

product of daily trips and average trip length; actual city-wide VMT from Table 9. 

 
National average trip lengths derived from the U.S. Department of Transportation’s 2009 National 
Household Travel Survey are available for a variety of trip types and purposes.  These have been 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 19 October 2, 2013 

adjusted downward by the local adjustment factor to determine local trip lengths, as shown in Table 
12 below. 
 

Table 12.  Average Trip Lengths 

National Local Local   

Trip     Adjustment Trip    

Land Use Trip Type Length  Factor Length 

Single-Family Detached Single-Family 9.75 0.311 3.03

Multi-Family Multi-Family 8.62 0.311 2.68

Mobile Home Mobile Home 6.03 0.311 1.88

Retail/Commercial Shopping 6.27 0.311 1.95

Office Medical/Dental 9.61 0.311 2.99

Industrial/Warehouse To or From Work 11.98 0.311 3.73

Public/Institutional School/Church 8.47 0.311 2.63  
Source:  National average trip lengths from U.S. Department of Transportation, National Household 

Travel Survey, 2009; local adjustment factor from Table 11; local trip length is product of national trip 

length and local adjustment factor. 

 
 
Service Unit Summary 

The result of combining trip generation rates, primary trip factors and localized average trip lengths 
is a travel demand schedule that establishes the daily VMT during the average weekday on the major 
roadway system generated by various land use types per unit of development for Oro Valley.  The 
recommended travel demand schedule is presented in Table 13. 
 

Table 13.  Transportation Service Unit Multipliers 

ITE Trip  Primary Length VMT/

Land Use Type Code Unit Rate Trips  (miles) Unit 

Single-Family Detached 210 Dwelling 4.76 100% 3.03 14.42

Multi-Family 220 Dwelling 3.33 100% 2.68 8.92

Mobile Home Park 240 Space 2.50 100% 1.88 4.70

Hotel/Motel 320 Room 2.82 100% 1.95 5.49

Retail/Commercial 820 1,000 sq ft 21.35 42% 1.95 17.48

Office 710 1,000 sq ft 5.52 80% 2.99 13.20

Industrial 140 1,000 sq ft 1.91 100% 3.73 7.12

Warehouse 150 1,000 sq ft 1.78 100% 3.73 6.63

Public/Institutional 620 1,000 sq ft 3.80 100% 2.63 9.99  
Source:  Trip rates are one-half daily trip ends during a weekday from Institute of 

Transportation Engineers (ITE), Trip Generation, 9th ed., 2012; retail primary trip percentage 

from ITE, Trip Generation Handbook, June 2004 (office estimated); average trip lengths from 

Table 12; daily VMT per unit is product of trip rate, primary trip percentage and average trip 

length. 

 
Transportation service units are expressed in terms of vehicle-miles of travel (VMT).  VMT 
projections for the 2013-2023 planning period are shown in Table 14 below.  Note that using 
existing land uses and the transportation service unit multipliers under-estimates actual town-wide 
VMT by about three-tenths of a percent.  This indicates that the calibration worked well and that the 
multipliers are slightly conservative in terms of reflecting actual demand. 
  



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 20 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 14.  Transportation Service Units, 2013-2023 

VMT/      

Land Use Type Unit 2013  2023  Unit        2013  2023  

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 15,549 16,578 14.42 224,217 239,055

Multi-Family Dwelling 5,429 5,788 8.92 48,427 51,629

Mobile Home Park Space 383 383 4.70 1,800 1,800

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft 1,892 2,406 17.48 33,072 42,057

Office 1,000 sq ft 588 837 13.20 7,762 11,048

Industrial 1,000 sq ft 1,277 1,399 7.12 9,092 9,961

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft 185 150 6.63 1,227 995

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft 938 1,430 9.99 9,371 14,286

Total Service Units (VMT) 334,968 370,831

         Units                   VMT          

 
Source:  2013 and 2023 units from Table 8; VMT per unit from Table 13; VMT is product of units and VMT 

per unit. 

 
 

Cost per Service Unit 

 
The cost per service unit is derived from the actual cost of one soon-to-be-completed project and 
three planned major road projects in Oro Valley.  The descriptions and costs of these projects are 
summarized in Table 15.  The average cost per new lane-mile added by these projects is $4.29 
million. 
 

Table 15.  Cost of Planned Major Road Projects 

New  Cost per 

Project Description Ex  Fut New Miles Ln-Mi. Total Cost Lane-Mile

Tangerine Rd, Shannon to La Canada 2 4 2 2.0 4.0 $19,896,770 $4,974,193

Naranja Drive, La Cholla to Shannon 2 3 1 1.0 1.0 $4,187,000 $4,187,000

Lambert Lane, La Canada-Rancho Sonora 2 4 2 0.5 1.0 $4,700,000 $4,700,000

Lambert Lane, Pusch View Ln-La Canada 2 4 2 1.6 3.2 $10,700,000 $3,343,750

Total 9.2 $39,483,770 $4,291,714

Lanes

 
Source:  Town of Oro Valley, April 15, 2013. 

 
To determine the cost per service unit, it is necessary to divide the cost by the capacity added by the 
improvements.  As shown in Table 16, the four projects will add 69,000 vehicle-miles of capacity. 
 

Table 16.  Capacity Added by Planned Major Road Projects 

New   

Project Description Before After New Miles VMC  

Tangerine Rd, Shannon to La Canada 10,000 25,000 15,000 2.0 30,000

Naranja Drive, La Cholla to Shannon 10,000 17,500 7,500 1.0 7,500

Lambert Lane, La Canada-Rancho Sonora 10,000 25,000 15,000 0.5 7,500

Lambert Lane, Pusch View Ln-La Canada 10,000 25,000 15,000 1.6 24,000

Total Vehicle-Miles of Capacity (VMC)  Added 69,000

Daily Capacity (LOS D)

 
Source:  Project descriptions and miles from Table 15; daily capacities at LOS D assumed; new VMC is 

product of new capacity and miles. 

 
The cost per service unit is the product of the cost per VMC and the level of service (LOS).  The 
standard consumption-based approach is based on a 1.00 ratio of capacity to demand.  Under the 
standard consumption-based approach, the cost per VMT is the same as the cost per VMC, as 
shown in Table 17. 
 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 21 October 2, 2013 

Table 17.  Transportation Cost per Service Unit 

Total Cost of Planned Improvements $39,483,770

÷ Total Vehicle-Miles of Capacity (VMC) Added 69,000

Average Cost per Vehicle-Mile of Capacity (VMC) $572

x VMC/VMT Ratio 1.00

Average Cost per Vehicle-Mile of Travel (VMT) $572  
Source:  Total cost from Table 15; new VMC added from Table 16; average cost 

per VMC is ratio of total cost to VMC added. 

 
 

Net Cost per Service Unit 

 
As noted in the Legal Framework section of this report, impact fees should be reduced (or “offset”) 
in order to account for other types of revenues that will be generated by new development and used 
to fund capacity-expanding improvements of the same type as those to be funded by the impact 
fees.  Cases in which such an offset is warranted include funding of existing deficiencies, outstanding 
debt payments on existing facilities, and dedicated revenue sources to fund growth-related 
improvements.   
 
The transportation impact fees calculated in this report are based on a system-wide level of service 
that is lower than the existing level of service, so there are no existing deficiencies.  The Town has 
no debt associated with previous capacity-expanding major road system improvements.  Other than 
impact fees, the Town has no dedicated source of revenue to fund growth-related road capacity 
improvements.  Non-local revenues sources, such as Highway User Revenue Funds, are used solely 
for road maintenance.   
 
The draft FY 2014-2018 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) shows $15.04 million in 
regional transportation funding programmed for major road improvements in Oro Valley.  While 
not necessarily generated locally, this funding comes at least partially from motor fuel taxes, some of 
which will be generated by new development.  The amount that is attributable to new development 
in Oro Valley over the next 25 years equates to a net present value of $166 per daily VMT, as shown 
in Table 18.  This represents an appropriate offset to account for new development’s contribution to 
regional funding for major road improvements in Oro Valley. 
 

Table 18.  Transportation Outside Funding Offset per Service Unit 

5-Year TIP Capacity Funding for Town Major Roads $15,037,000

÷ Number of Years 5

Annual TIP Capacity Funding $3,007,400

÷ Existing Vehicle-Miles of Travel (VMT) 335,371

Annual TIP Capacity Funding per VMT $8.97

x Present Value Factor, 25 Years 18.47

Outside Funding Offset per VMT $166  
Source:  Five-year TIP funding from Pima Association of Governments, 2014-

2018 TIP, 5-Year Regional Transportation Improvement Program, March 2013 

draft; existing VMT from Table 9; 25-year present value factor based on 2.48% 

discount rate, which is the average inflation rate over the last ten years, from 

U.S Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index, All Urban Consumers 

(average annual change in annual index for 2002-2012).  

 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 22 October 2, 2013 

As noted in the Legal Framework section, SB 1525 requires that an offset be provided for any 
“excess” construction sales tax, and it has been determined that one-half of the 4% construction 
sales tax meets the description of an excess tax.  Even though the Town’s construction sales tax 
revenues are not earmarked to be used for any specific purpose, SB 1525 apparently requires that an 
offset be provided against one or more of the Town’s impact fees.  It has been determined that the 
offset will be provided against the transportation impact fee.  The excess construction sales tax 
offset is calculated in Table 19.     
 

Table 19.  Excess Construction Sales Tax Offset per Service Unit 

Average Construction Sales Tax per Single-Family Unit $7,800

x Percent Excess 50%

Excess Construction Sales Tax per Single-Family Unit $3,900

÷ Daily VMT per Single-Family Detached Unit 14.42

Excess Construction Sales Tax Offset per VMT $270  
Source:  Average tax per single-family unit based on a $300,000 home from Town of 

Oro Valley Finance Department, March 16, 2013; daily VMT per single-family unit 

from Table 13. 

 
The net cost per service unit (VMT), after deducting the offsets for outside funding and excess 
construction sales tax and adding the cost of impact fee updates, is $138 per VMT, as shown in 
Table 20. 
 

Table 20.  Transportation Net Cost per Service Unit 

Cost per VMT $572

– Outside Funding Offset per VMT -$166

– Excess Construction Sales Tax Offset per VMT -$270

Impact Fee Study Cost per VMT $2

Net Cost per VMT $138  
Source:  Cost per VMT from Table 17; outside funding offset from Table 18; 

excess construction sales tax offset from Table 19; study cost from Table 47. 

 

Potential Impact Fees 

 
The maximum transportation impact fees that may be adopted by the Town based on this study is 
the product of the number of vehicle-miles of travel (VMT) generated by a unit of development and 
the net cost per VMT calculated above.  The resulting fee schedule is presented in Table 21. 
 

Table 21.  Transportation Net Cost Schedule 

VMT/ Net Cost/ Net Cost/

Land Use Type Unit Unit  VMT      Unit     

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 14.42 $138 $1,990

Multi-Family Dwelling 8.92 $138 $1,231

Mobile Home Park Space 4.70 $138 $649

Hotel/Motel Room 5.49 $138 $758

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft 17.48 $138 $2,412

Office 1,000 sq ft 13.20 $138 $1,822

Industrial 1,000 sq ft 7.12 $138 $983

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft 6.63 $138 $915

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft 9.99 $138 $1,379  
Source:  VMT per unit from Table 13; net cost per VMT from Table 20. 

  



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 23 October 2, 2013 

The updated transportation impact fees are compared to the Town’s current fees in Table 22.  Note 
that the current land use categories differ from the proposed land use categories in that the 
proposed land use categories (a) separate office and institutional uses, and (b) do not vary 
commercial, office and institutional fees by the size of the development.  The updated fees are 
higher for single-family, office, industrial/warehouse and larger institutional uses, and lower for 
multi-family, commercial and smaller institutional uses. 
 

Table 22.  Current and Updated Transportation Impact Fees 

Current Updated Percent

Current Land Use Type Unit Fee   Fee   Change

Single-Family Dwelling $1,933 $1,990 3%

All Other Housing Dwelling $1,331 $1,231 -8%

Lodging Room $556 $758 36%

Commercial, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $5,533 $2,412 -56%

Commercial, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $4,807 $2,412 -50%

Commercial, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $4,014 $2,412 -40%

Commercial, 100,001-200,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $3,436 $2,412 -30%

Commercial, >200,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $2,921 $2,412 -17%

Office, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $1,812 $1,822 1%

Office, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $1,547 $1,822 18%

Office, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $1,318 $1,822 38%

Office, 100,000 sf+ 1,000 sq. ft. $1,123 $1,822 62%

Institutional, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $1,812 $1,379 -24%

Institutional, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $1,547 $1,379 -11%

Institutional, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $1,318 $1,379 5%

Institutional, 100,000 sf+ 1,000 sq. ft. $1,123 $1,379 23%

Business Park 1,000 sq. ft. $1,260 $983 -22%

Light Industrial 1,000 sq. ft. $689 $983 43%

Manufacturing 1,000 sq. ft. $378 $983 160%

Warehousing 1,000 sq. ft. $490 $915 87%  
Source:  Current fees from Town of Oro Valley, Development Fee Summary, July 1, 2012; updated fees 

from Table 21. 

 

 

Capital Plan 

 
Assuming that the updated fees are adopted at 100%, potential transportation impact fee revenue 
over the next ten years, based on new development anticipated by the land use assumptions, could 
be as much as $4.9 million, as shown in Table 23.  This revenue projection also includes the value of 
developer-constructed improvements, for which developers are given credit against their 
transportation impact fees.  
 

Table 23.  Potential Transportation Impact Fee Revenue 

New Vehicle-Miles of Travel (VMT), 2013-2023 35,863

x Net Cost per Vehicle-Mile of Travel (VMT) $138

Potential Revenue at 100%, 2013-2023 $4,949,094  
Source:  New VMT from Table 14; net cost per VMT from Table 20. 

 
Assuming that growth occurs as projected in the land use assumption, the Town plans to complete 
approximately $27.2 million in growth-related improvement to the major road system over the next 
ten years, as summarized in Table 24. Anticipated transportation impact fee revenues will cover 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 24 October 2, 2013 

approximately 18% of the Town’s cost of planned improvements if adopted at 100%.  The timing of 
individual improvements will be dependent on the pace and location of development that actually 
occurs, and not all of the planned improvements will necessarily be completed in the next ten years.  
Some portions of the improvements may be constructed by developers in return for credits against 
their impact fees.   
 

Table 24.  Transportation Capital Plan, 2013-2023 

Improvement Location Planned Improvement Town Cost

Tangerine Rd, Shannon Rd-La Canada Dr Widen to four lanes, drainage facilities, & landscaping $1,000,000

La Cholla Blvd, Tangerine Rd-Lambert Ln Widen to 4 lanes, drainage, landscaping, retaining walls $800,000

Shannon Rd, Tangerine Rd-Naranja Dr New three lane road $4,200,000

Lambert Ln, 0.5 mi. E of Shannon-Rancho Sonora Widen to four lanes, drainage facilities, & landscaping $17,280,000

Moore Rd, Yellow Orchard-Mystic View Construct two lanes of new road (north side) $1,440,000

Rancho Vistoso & Woodburne Intersection Traffic Signal $750,000

Oracle Rd & Rams Field Intersection Traffic Signal $750,000

Moore Rd La Cholla Blvd Intersection Traffic Signal $900,000

Transportation Fee Update Study Costs (2) Impact Fee Study $69,600

Total $27,189,600  
Source:  Planned improvements from Town of Oro Valley, July 3, 2013; study cost from Table 47. 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 25 October 2, 2013 

PARKS 

 
This section updates the Town’s park impact fees in compliance with the new Arizona impact fee 
enabling act for municipalities. 
 

Service Units 

 
The demand for Town park facilities is generated by people.  However, the use of population 
directly as the service unit would pose some issues, since a community’s total population includes 
people in group quarters (primarily nursing homes), who do not typically generate much demand for 
public park facilities.  A preferable service unit, for the purposes of park impact fees, is the single-
family Equivalent Dwelling Unit, or EDU.  A single-family detached unit is by definition one park 
service unit (equivalent dwelling unit or EDU).  The numbers of service units associated with other 
housing types are determined by dividing the average household size by the average household size 
of a single-family unit.  Average household size (the ratio of household population to occupied 
units) is preferable as the basis of the service unit to persons per unit (the ratio of household 
population to total units), because it eliminates the volatile factor of occupancy rates.  The resulting 
service unit multipliers are presented in Table 25. 
 

Table 25.  Park Service Unit Multipliers 

Avg. HH EDUs/

Housing Type Size    Unit   

Single-Family Detached 2.43 1.00

Multi-Family 1.69 0.70

Mobile Home 1.84 0.76  
Source:  Average household size (AHHS) from Table 43; EDUs 

per unit is ratio of AHHS to single-family detached AHHS. 

  
The number of service units in Oro Valley can be determined by multiplying the number of housing 
units by the service unit multipliers for each housing type and summing for all housing types.  
Existing and projected service units (EDUs) are calculated in Table 26. 
 

Table 26.  Park Service Units, 2013-2023 

Housing  EDUs/

Housing Type Units    Unit   EDUs  

Single-Family Detached 15,549 1.00 15,549

Multi-Family 5,429 0.70 3,800

Mobile Home 383 0.76 291

Total EDUs, 2013 21,361 19,640

Single-Family Detached 16,578 1.00 16,578

Multi-Family 5,788 0.70 4,052

Mobile Home 383 0.76 291

Total EDUs, 2023 22,749 20,921  
Source:  2013 and 2023 units from Table 8; EDUs per unit from Table 25. 

 
 
  



Parks 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 26 October 2, 2013 

Cost per Service Unit 

 
SB 1525 limits park impact fees to “neighborhood parks,” an undefined term that excludes parks 
larger than 30 acres in size, unless a larger park can be shown to provide a “direct benefit” to 
development.  SB 1525 also excludes a number of park improvements from being funded with park 
impact fees, including “that portion of any facility that is used for amusement parks, aquariums, 
aquatic centers, auditoriums, arenas, arts and cultural facilities, bandstand and orchestra facilities, 
bathhouses, boathouses, clubhouses, community centers greater than three thousand square feet in 
floor area, environmental education centers, equestrian facilities, golf course facilities, greenhouses, 
lakes, museums, theme parks, water reclamation or riparian areas, wetlands, zoo facilities or similar 
recreational facilities, but may include swimming pools.”   
 
In general, impact fees should be based on the current level of service being provided to existing 
development.  The inventory of existing eligible park facilities is provided below.  The replacement 
cost of existing facilities in the park service area can be determined based on current unit costs.  The 
total replacement value of eligible land and facilities is estimated to be about $16 million, as shown 
in Table 27.  
 

Table 27.  Existing Park Facilities 

West   Honey 

Canada Jame D. Lambert Bee   

Park Name del Oro Kriegh  Lane   Naranja Canyon Total Unit Cost Total Cost

Total Acres 30.0 20.0 40.0 213.0 77.0 380.0 n/a  n/a  

Eligible Acres 30.0 20.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 140.0 $49,000 $6,860,000

Eligible Developed Acres 30.0 20.0 0.2 8.0 58.2 $68,769 $4,002,356

Restrooms (lighted) 2 2 1 5 $215,000 $1,075,000

Playground (shaded) 1 1 2 $150,000 $300,000

Accessible Playground (shaded) 1 1 $150,000 $150,000

Covered Ramada (lighted) 3 1 4 $90,000 $360,000

Covered Ramada 2 2 $50,000 $100,000

Soccer Fields (lighted) 2 2 $210,000 $420,000

Softball Fields (lighted) 2 2 4 $250,000 $1,000,000

Baseball Fields (lighted) 3 3 $250,000 $750,000

Sand Volleyball 1 1 2 $25,000 $50,000

Horseshoe Pits 2 2 $1,000 $2,000

Concession Stand 1 1 2 $150,000 $300,000

Tennis Court (lighted) 1 1 $140,000 $140,000

Basketball Court (lighted) 1 1 $100,000 $100,000

Performance Stage 1 1 $50,000 $50,000

Walking Path 1 1 $54,400 $43,520

Raquetball Courts (lighted) 4 4 $50,000 $200,000

Dog Park 1 1 $150,000 $150,000

Archery Range (fixed) 1 1 $150,000 $150,000

Archery Range (walk around) 1 1 $75,000 $75,000

Total Replacement Cost $16,277,876  
Source:  Town of Oro Valley, March 25, 2013; eligible park acres limited to 30 acres of larger parks. 

 
  



Parks 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 27 October 2, 2013 

The existing level of service in the park service area can be expressed in terms of current cost per 
service unit.  Including the cost of impact fee update studies that will be required over the next ten 
years, the park cost per service unit is $856 per EDU, as shown in Table 28. 
 

Table 28.  Existing Park Cost per Service Unit 

Total Existing Eligible Park Capital Cost $16,277,876

÷ Total Existing Park Service Units 19,640

Direct Park Cost per Service Unit $829

Impact Fee Study Cost per Service Unit $27

Existing Park Cost per Service Unit $856  
Source:  Total park cost from Table 27; existing (2013) EDUs from 

Table 26; study cost from Table 47. 

 
 

Net Cost per Service Unit 

 
As noted in the Legal Framework section of this report, impact fees should be reduced (or “offset”) 
in order to account for other types of revenues that will be generated by new development and used 
to fund capacity-expanding improvements of the same type as those to be funded by the impact 
fees.  Cases in which such an offset is warranted include funding of existing deficiencies, outstanding 
debt payments on existing facilities, and dedicated revenue sources to fund growth-related 
improvements.   
 
The park impact fees calculated in this report are based on the existing level of service, so there are 
no existing deficiencies.  There is no outstanding debt for existing park facilities.  Other than impact 
fees, the Town has no dedicated source of revenue to fund growth-related park improvements.  The 
Town has not received any grant funding for park improvements in recent years, and does not 
anticipate any grants over the next ten years.  Consequently, no offsets against the park impact fees 
are warranted, and the net cost per service unit is the same as the cost per service unit calculated 
above. 
 

Potential Impact Fees 

 
The maximum park impact fees that may be adopted by the Town based on this study are the 
product of the number of service units generated by a unit of development and the net cost per 
service unit calculated above.  The resulting fee schedule is presented in Table 29.   
 

Table 29.  Park Net Cost Schedule 

EDUs/ Net Cost/ Net Cost/

Housing Type Unit Unit EDU Unit     

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 1.00 $856 $856

Multi-Family Dwelling 0.70 $856 $599

Mobile Home Park Space 0.76 $856 $651  
Source:  EDUs per unit from Table 25; net cost per EDU is cost per EDU from Table 28. 

 
The updated park fees are compared to current fees in Table 30.  The updated park fees are 
significantly higher than the current fees. 
  



Parks 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 28 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 30.  Current and Updated Park Impact Fees 

Current Updated Percent

Current Land Use Type Unit Fee    Fee     Change

Single-Family Detached Dwelling $555 $856 54%

Multi-Family Dwelling $336 $599 78%

Mobile Home Park Space $336 $651 94%  
Source:  Current fees from Town of Oro Valley, Development Fee Summary, July 1, 2012; 

updated fees from Table 29. 

 
 

Capital Plan 

 
Assuming that the updated fees are adopted at 100%, potential park impact fee revenue over the 
next ten years, based on new development anticipated by the land use assumptions, could be as 
much as $1.1 million, as shown in Table 31.   
 

Table 31.  Potential Park Impact Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 

New Park EDUs, 2013-2023 1,281

x Net Cost per EDU $856

Potential Revenue, 2013-2023 $1,096,536  
Source:  New EDUs from Table 26; net cost per EDU is cost per EDU from 

Table 28. 

 
Assuming that growth occurs as projected in the land use assumption, the Town plans to complete 
approximately $5 million in growth-related improvement to the park system over the next ten years, 
as summarized in Table 32. Anticipated park impact fee revenues will cover approximately 22% of 
the total cost of planned improvements. The timing of individual improvements will be dependent 
on the pace and location of development that actually occurs, and not all of the planned 
improvements will necessarily be completed in the next ten years.   
 

Table 32.  Park Capital Plan, 2013-2023 

Naranja Park Development - 30 acres $4,000,000

James D. Kriegh Park Expansion $1,000,000

Impact Fee Update Studies (2) $34,800

Total $5,025,000  
Source:  Planned park improvements, Town of Oro Valley, July 1, 2013; 

study cost from Table 47. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 29 October 2, 2013 

POLICE 

 
This section updates the Town’s police impact fees in compliance with the new Arizona impact fee 
enabling act for municipalities. 
 

Service Units 

 
Disparate types of development must be translated into a common unit of measurement that reflects 
the impact of new development on the demand for police facilities.  This unit of measurement is 
called a “service unit.”  The 2008 study used population as the residential service unit and vehicle 
trips as the nonresidential service unit, while allocating costs between residential and nonresidential 
land uses based on call volumes.  A problem with relying on call data is that it is unstable over time.  
This means that fees can go up or down significantly for individual land uses each time the fees are 
updated.   
 
The most commonly-used alternative to call data in police impact fees is based on a concept called 
“functional population.”  Similar to the concept of full-time equivalent employees, functional 
population represents the number of “full-time equivalent” people present at the site of a land use.  
Functional population represents the average number of equivalent persons present at the site of a 
land use for an entire 24-hour day.  For residential development, functional population is simply 
average household size times the percent of time people spend at home.  For nonresidential 
development, functional population is based on a formula that includes square foot per employee 
ratios, trip generation rates, average vehicle occupancy and average number of hours spent by 
employees and visitors at a land use.  These all tend to be stable characteristics that do not change 
significantly over short periods of time.  Functional population multipliers by land use are calculated 
in Appendix B. 
 
The number of police service units can be determined by multiplying the amount of existing 
development by the service unit multipliers for each land use type and summing for the area.  
Existing and projected service units (functional population) are calculated in Table 33 for the 2013-
2023 planning horizon. 
 

Table 33.  Police Service Units, 2013-2023 

Func. Pop.

Land Use Type Unit 2013  2023  per Unit   2013  2023  

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 15,549 16,578 1.63 25,345 27,022

Multi-Family Dwelling 5,429 5,788 1.13 6,135 6,540

Mobile Home Park Space 383 383 1.23 471 471

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft 1,892 2,406 2.35 4,446 5,654

Office 1,000 sq ft 588 837 0.82 482 686

Industrial 1,000 sq ft 1,277 1,399 0.34 434 476

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft 185 150 0.33 61 50

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft 938 1,430 0.62 582 887

Total Service Units (VMT) 37,956 41,786

         Units         Func. Population

 
Source:  2013 and 2023 units from Table 8; functional population per unit from Table 44 (residential) and 

Table 45 (nonresidential) in Appendix B. 

 
 



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 30 October 2, 2013 

Cost per Service Unit 

 
The cost per service unit to provide police protection to new development is based on the existing 
level of service provided to existing development.  The level of service is quantified as the ratio of 
the replacement cost of existing police capital facilities to existing police service units.  The 
inventory of the Town’s existing police facilities is provided in Table 34.  
 

Table 34.  Existing Police Facilities 

Building

Sq. Feet Acres

Main Police Station 15,165 1.58

Impound Facility n/a 0.55

Total 15,165 2.13  
Source:  Main police station data from Town of Oro Valley, April 

10, 2013 and Deutsch Associates, Town-Wide Space Needs 

Study, Phase I, May 16, 2007; impound facility acres from Town 

Police Department, April 2, 2013.. 

 
In addition to land and buildings, police services require vehicles and equipment.  The Town’s 
current police vehicles have a total replacement cost, based on current unit costs, of $4.21 million, as 
summarized in Table 35 on the following page. 
  



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 31 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 35.  Existing Police Vehicles 

Make Model Year Life  Repl. Cost Make Model Year Life Repl. Cost

Police Department - Field Operations Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 10 $49,500 Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 Toyota Camry 2012 6 $33,000

Toyota Tacoma 2007 8 $24,000 Police Department - Motorcycle

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 BMW R1150RT-P 2006 10 $26,000

Ford Expedition 2007 6 $48,000 BMW R1150RT-P 2006 10 $26,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2007 10 $27,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2007 10 $27,000

Dodge Magnum 2007 8 $51,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2007 10 $27,000

Ford Crown Vic 2005 7 $48,000 BMW R1150RT-P 2004 9 $25,000

Ford F250 4x4 2006 8 $48,000 BMW R1150RT-P 2004 9 $25,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2009 8 $27,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2009 8 $27,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000  BMW R1200RT-P 2009 10 $28,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 Police Department - Support Services

Ford Crown Vic 2008 6 $49,500 Toyota Camry 2007 8 $30,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000   Ford Taurus 2004 9 $25,500

Ford Crown Vic 2008 6 $49,500  Dodge Van 2007 10 $34,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 Ford Crown Vic 2005 12 $52,500

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000 Ford Crown Vic 2005 8 $48,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 Ford Crown Vic 2005 8 $48,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 7 $48,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 8 $49,500

Ford F350 4x4 2008 10 $52,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 9 $51,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 9 $51,000

Toyota Camry 2007 7 $27,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 7 $48,000

Nissan Altima 2005 8 $25,500 Ford Crown Vic 2006 8 $49,500

Toyota Camry 2006 7 $25,500 Toyota Camry 2006 10 $31,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 7 $51,000 Toyota Camry 2006 10 $31,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Ford E250 Van 2006 8 $34,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 5 $49,500 Dodge Peace Keeper 1986 40 $100,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 5 $49,500 Toyota Camry 2003 13 $31,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Toyota Camry 2003 10 $25,500

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Nissan Altima 2004 10 $30,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Ford E150 8 Pass 2001 15 $38,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Ford E150 8 Pass 2001 15 $38,000

Toyota Camry 2009 8 $32,000 Ford Motor Home 1999 20 $200,000

Ford Expedition 2008 6 $52,000 Toyota Camry 2008 7 $31,000

Ford Crown Vic 2011 6 $52,500 Ford F250 4x4 2008 10 $53,000

Ford Crown Vic 2011 6 $52,500 Chevrolet Silverado 2007 8 $25,000

Ford Crown Vic 2011 6 $52,500 Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000

Nissan Maxima 2005 10 $31,000 Chrysler Chrysler 300 2006 7 $25,500

Ford Crown Vic 2011 6 $52,500 Pontiac Van LUX 2003 12 $32,000

Chevrolet Silverado 2007 10 $30,000 Police Department - Courts

Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000 Ford E250 Cargo 2001 15 $35,000

Chevrolet Tahoe 4x4 2012 6 $57,500 Police Department - Professional Development

Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000 Dodge Van 2007 12 $35,000

Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000 Total $4,210,000  
Source:  Town of Oro Valley Fleet Management Schedule, March 19, 2013. 

 

duncaniassociates 



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 32 October 2, 2013 

The replacement cost of existing facilities can be determined based on current unit costs.  The total 
replacement value of existing police land and facilities is estimated to be about $6.9 million, as 
shown in Table 36.  The resulting police cost per service unit is $190 per functional population. 
 

Table 36.  Police Cost per Service Unit 

Units  Cost/Unit Total Cost

Building Square Feet 15,165 $143 $2,166,429

Acres of Land 2.13 $199,367 $424,652

Vehicles n/a n/a $4,210,000

Impound Facility Improvements n/a n/a $84,000

Total Replacement Cost $6,885,081

– Outstanding Debt on MOC Impound Facility Land -$106,256

Net Replacement Cost $6,778,825

÷ Existing Functional Population 37,956

Direct Cost per Functional Population $181

Study Cost per Functional Population $9

Total Cost per Functional Population $190  
Source:  Building sq. ft. and acres from Table 34; cost per square foot from Town of Oro 

Valley Police Department, March 14, 2013 based on cost of planned property and 

evidence facility; cost per acre is actual cost per acre for 2005 MOC land purchase from 

Town of Oro Valley, March 19, 2013; outstanding debt on police MOC land is ratio of 

acres for police impound facility from Table 34 to total 23.7 acre purchase times 

outstanding debt of $4,580,000 prior to July 1, 2013 payment from Town of Oro Valley, 

March 20, 2013; existing (2013) functional population from Table 33; study cost per 

service unit from Table 47. 

 
 

Net Cost per Service Unit 

 
As noted in the Legal Framework section of this report, impact fees should be reduced (or “offset”) 
in order to account for other types of revenues that will be generated by new development and used 
to fund capacity-expanding improvements of the same type as those to be funded by the impact 
fees.  Cases in which such an offset is warranted include funding of existing deficiencies, outstanding 
debt payments on existing facilities, and dedicated revenue sources to fund growth-related 
improvements.   
 
The police impact fees calculated in this report are based on the existing level of service, so there are 
no existing deficiencies.  The Town’s only outstanding debt for existing police facilities is the small 
portion of the Municipal Operations Center land that was purchased with 2006 bonds.  The 
outstanding debt related to that land used for the existing impound facility has already been excluded 
from the cost per service unit, and no further offset is warranted.  Other than impact fees, the Town 
has no dedicated source of revenue to fund growth-related police improvements.  The Town has not 
received any grant funding for police improvements in recent years, and does not anticipate any 
grants over the next ten years.  Given that no offsets against the police impact fees are required, the 
net cost per service unit is the same as the cost per service unit calculated above. 
  



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 33 October 2, 2013 

 

Potential Impact Fees 

 
The maximum police impact fees that may be adopted by the Town based on this study is the 
product of the number of service units generated by a unit of development and the net cost per 
service unit calculated above.  The resulting fee schedule is presented in Table 37.   
 

Table 37.  Police Net Cost Schedule 

Func. Pop./ Net Cost/ Net Cost/

Land Use Type Unit Unit Func. Pop. Unit     

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 1.63 $190 $310

Multi-Family Dwelling 1.13 $190 $215

Mobile Home Park Space 1.23 $190 $234

Hotel/Motel Room 1.05 $190 $200

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq. ft. 2.35 $190 $447

Office 1,000 sq. ft. 0.82 $190 $156

Industrial 1,000 sq. ft. 0.34 $190 $65

Warehouse 1,000 sq. ft. 0.33 $190 $63

Public/Instititional 1,000 sq. ft. 0.62 $190 $118  
Source:  Functional population per unit from Table 44 and Table 45 in Appendix B; net cost 

per functional population is cost per functional population from Table 36. 

 
The updated police fees are compared to current fees in Table 38.  The updated fees are slightly 
higher than current fees for residential uses, and are significantly higher for nonresidential uses. 
 

Table 38.  Current and Updated Police Impact Fees 

Current Updated Percent

Current Land Use Type Unit Fee    Fee    Change

Single-Family Dwelling $296 $310 5%

All Other Housing Dwelling $176 $215 22%

Lodging Room $14 $200 1329%

Commercial, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $146 $447 206%

Commercial, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $126 $447 255%

Commercial, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $105 $447 326%

Commercial, 100,001-200,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $91 $447 391%

Commercial, >200,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $76 $447 488%

Office/Institutional, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $43 $156 263%

Office/Institutional, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $37 $156 322%

Office/Institutional, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $32 $156 388%

Office/Institutional, 100,000 sf+ 1,000 sq. ft. $27 $156 478%

Business Park 1,000 sq. ft. $30 $156 420%

Light Industrial 1,000 sq. ft. $16 $65 306%

Manufacturing 1,000 sq. ft. $9 $65 622%

Warehousing 1,000 sq. ft. $12 $63 425%  
Source:  Current fees from Town of Oro Valley, Development Fee Utilization Report, FY 2011-2012, September 

25, 2012; updated fees from Table 37. 

 
 

  



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 34 October 2, 2013 

Capital Plan 

 
Assuming that the updated fees are adopted at 100%, potential police impact fee revenue over the 
next ten years, based on new development anticipated by the land use assumptions, could be as 
much as $0.7 million, as shown in Table 39.     
 

Table 39.  Potential Police Impact Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 

New Functional Population, 2013-2023 3,830

x Net Cost per Functional Population $190

Potential Revenue, 2013-2023 $727,700  
Source:  New functional population from Table 33; net cost per functional 

population is total cost per functional population from Table 36. 

 
Assuming that growth occurs as projected in the land use assumption, the Town plans to complete 
approximately $2.2 million in growth-related police improvements over the next ten years, as 
summarized in Table 40. Anticipated police impact fee revenues would cover approximately 33% of 
the total cost of planned improvements. The timing of individual improvements will be dependent 
on the pace and location of development that actually occurs, and not all of the planned 
improvements will necessarily be completed in the next ten years.  Some of the improvements may 
be constructed by developers in return for credits against their impact fees.   
 

Table 40.  Police Capital Plan, 2013-2023 

Property and Evidence Facility $1,000,000

South Police Substation $1,200,000

Impact Fee Update Studies (2) $34,800

Total $2,225,000  
Source:  Planned projects and estimated costs from Town Police 

Department, July 3, 2013; study cost from Table 47. 

 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 35 October 2, 2013 

APPENDIX A:  AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD SIZE 

 
A key input into impact fee analysis is the average number of people residing in different types of 
dwelling units. This statistic, known as average household size, is the ratio of household population 
to households (which is the same as occupied dwelling units). 
 
The most reliable data on average household size comes from the decennial census counts.  
Unfortunately, these 100%-count data are only available for all housing units, with no distinction by 
housing type.  Overall, there was a 4.6% decline in Oro Valley between the 2000 and 2010 census in 
the average size of a household (ratio of household population to occupied units), as shown in Table 
41. 
 

Table 41.  Average Household Size, 2000 and 2010 

Household Occupied Avg. HH

Population Units    Size   

2010 Census 40,943 17,804 2.30

2000 Census 29,541 12,249 2.41

AHHS Ratio: 2010/2000 0.954  
Source:  2000 and 2010 U.S. Census for Oro Valley, AZ, SF1 data (100% 

counts). 

 
The 2000 census provided data on average household size by housing type for a 1-in-6 sample 
(about 17%).  Those data are shown in Table 42.  Household population and occupied units are 
weighted estimates designed to approximate the 100% counts.   
 

Table 42.  Average Household Size by Housing Type, 2000 

Household Occupied Avg. HH

Housing Type Population Units    Size   

Single-Family Detached 25,025 9,814 2.55

Multi-Family 4,064 2,298 1.77

Mobile Home 435 225 1.93

Total 29,524 12,337 2.39  
Source:  2000 U.S. Census for Oro Valley, AZ, SF3 data (1-in-6 sample) 

 
An estimate of current average household size by housing type starts with the data from the 2000 
census.  The average household sizes from the 2000 census are adjusted downward for all housing 
types by the overall decline, as shown in Table 43. 
  

Table 43.  Current Average Household Size by Housing Type 

2000   2010/2000 2010   

Housing Type AHHS  Ratio    AHHS  

Single-Family Detached 2.55 0.954 2.43

Multi-Family 1.77 0.954 1.69

Mobile Home 1.93 0.954 1.84  
Source:  2000 average household size (AHHS) by housing type from Table 42; 

2010/2000 ratio from Table 41; 2010 AHHS by housing type is product of 2000 

AHHS and ratio. 

 
 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 36 October 2, 2013 

APPENDIX B:  FUNCTIONAL POPULATION 

 
The two most common methodologies used in calculating public safety service units and impact fees 
are the “calls-for-service” approach and the “functional population” approach.  This update utilizes 
the “functional population” approach to calculate and assess the police impact fees.  This approach 
is a generally-accepted methodology for these impact fee types and is based on the observation that 
demand for public safety facilities tends to be proportional to the presence of people at a particular 
site.   
 
Functional population is analogous to the concept of “full-time equivalent” employees.  It 
represents the number of “full-time equivalent” people present at the site of a land use, and it is 
used for the purpose of determining the impact of a particular development on the need for 
facilities.  For residential development, functional population is simply average household size times 
the percent of time people spend at home.  For nonresidential development, functional population 
is based on a formula that factors in trip generation rates, average vehicle occupancy, employee 
density and average number of hours spent by employees and visitors at a land use.   
 

Residential Functional Population 

 
For residential land uses, the impact of a dwelling unit on the need for police capital facilities is 
generally proportional to the number of persons residing in the dwelling unit.  This can be measured 
for different housing types in terms of either average household size (average number of persons per 
occupied dwelling unit) or persons per unit (average number of persons per dwelling unit, including 
vacant as well as occupied units).  In this analysis, average household size is used to develop the 
functional population multipliers, as it avoids the need to make assumptions about occupancy rates. 
 
Determining residential functional population multipliers is considerably simpler than the 
nonresidential component.  It is estimated that people, on average, spend 16 hours, or 67 percent, of 
each 24-hour day at their place of residence and the other 33 percent away from home.  A similar 
approach is used for the hotel/motel category.  The functional population per unit for these uses is 
shown in Table 44.   
 

Table 44.  Functional Population per Unit for Residential Uses 

Average Occupancy Func. Pop.

Housing Type Unit HH Size Factor    per Unit  

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 2.43 0.67 1.63

Multi-Family Dwelling 1.69 0.67 1.13

Mobile Home Dwelling 1.84 0.67 1.23

Hotel/Motel Room 1.57 0.67 1.05  
Source:  Average household size for dwelling units from Table 43; hotel/motel room occupancy 

based on one-half of average vehicle occupancy on vacation trips from U.S. Department of 

Transportation, National Household Travel Survey, 2009.   

 
 

Nonresidential Functional Population 

 
The functional population methodology for nonresidential land uses is based on trip generation data 
utilized in developing the transportation demand schedule prepared for the updated transportation 
impact fees.  Functional population per 1,000 square feet is derived by dividing the total number of 



Appendix B:  Functional Population 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 37 October 2, 2013 

hours spent by employees and visitors during a weekday by 24 hours. Employees are estimated to 
spend 8 hours per day at their place of employment, and visitors are estimated to spend one hour 
per visit. The formula used to derive the nonresidential functional population estimates is 
summarized in Figure 4. 
 

Figure 4.  Nonresidential Functional Population Formula 

FUNCPOP/UNIT = (employee hours/1000 sf + visitor hours/1000 sf) ÷ 24 hours/day

Where:

Employee hours/1000 sf = employees/1000 sf x 8 hours/day

Visitor hours/1000 sf = visitors/1000 sf x 1 hour/visit

Visitors/1000 sf = weekday ADT/1000 sf x avg. vehicle occupancy – employees/1000 sf

Weekday ADT/1000 sf = one-way avg. daily trips (total trip ends ÷ 2)

 
Using this formula and information on trip generation rates, vehicle occupancy rates from the 
National Household Travel Survey and other sources and assumptions, nonresidential functional 
population estimates per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area are calculated in Table 45.   
 

Table 45.  Functional Population per Unit for Nonresidential Uses 

Trip Persons/ Employee/ Visitors/ Func. Pop./

Land Use Unit Rate Trip Unit Unit    Unit      

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq. ft. 21.47 1.96 2.04 40.04 2.35

Office 1,000 sq. ft. 5.51 1.24 1.82 5.01 0.82

Industrial 1,000 sq. ft. 1.91 1.24 0.82 1.55 0.34

Warehouse 1,000 sq. ft. 1.78 1.24 0.82 1.39 0.33

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq. ft. 3.79 1.86 1.11 5.94 0.62  
Source: Trip rates from Table 13; persons/trip is average vehicle occupancy from Federal Highway Administration, 

Nationwide Household Travel Survey, 2009; employees/unit from Table 7; visitors/unit is trips times persons/trip minus 

employees/unit; functional population/unit calculated based on formula in Figure 4. 

 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 38 October 2, 2013 

APPENDIX C:  REVENUE FORECAST 

 
SB 1525 requires that the infrastructure improvements plan include (Section 9-463.05.E.7): 
 

A forecast of revenues generated by new service units other than development fees, which shall include 
estimated state-shared revenue, highway users revenue, federal revenue, ad valorem property taxes, construction 
contracting or similar excise taxes and the capital recovery portion of utility fees attributable to development 
based on the approved land use assumptions, and a plan to include these contributions in determining the 
extent of the burden imposed by the development as required in subsection B, paragraph 12 of this section. 

 
The total revenues from these sources that can be attributed to new development over the next ten 
years are summarized in Table 46.  However, most of this revenue will be used for ongoing 
operations and maintenance purposes.   
 
Only revenue generated by new development that is dedicated to growth-related capital 
improvements needs to be considered in determining the extent of the burden imposed by new 
development.  As discussed in greater detail in the Legal Framework section, offsets against impact 
fees are warranted in the following cases:  (a) new development will be paying taxes or fees used to 
retire debt on existing facilities serving existing development; (b) new development will be paying 
taxes or fees used to fund an existing deficiency, (c) new development will be paying taxes or fees 
that are dedicated to be used for growth-related improvements, or (d) excess construction sales tax.   
 
The analyses provided in the legal framework, transportation, parks and police sections of this 
report have identified that the only need for offsets is against the transportation impact fees for 
future Federal and State funding for major road improvements and excess construction sales tax.  
The reasons for this conclusion are, in the order listed above, as follows. 
 
(a) The Town has no debt for past capacity-expanding transportation or park facilities.  The 
only Town debt for police facilities is for the portion of the Municipal Operations Center that is 
used for the new police impound facility.  That debt has been excluded from the value of existing 
police facilities on which the existing level of service and the impact fees are based; consequently, no 
additional offsets for future contributions from new development to retire that debt are warranted. 
 
(b) The transportation, parks and police impact fees are all calculated on the basis of the 
existing, system-wide level of service (actually, a lower level of service in the case of transportation 
impact fees).  Consequently, there are no existing deficiencies, and no offsets for deficiencies are 
warranted. 
 
(c) The only funding the Town has that is dedicated to capacity-expanding capital 
improvements is future regional funding for major road improvements.  An offset against the 
transportation impact fees is provided for anticipated future regional funding. 
 
(d) The Town appears to assess an excess construction sales tax as defined by State law, and the 
offset is provided against the transportation impact fee. 
 
Revenues that will be generated by new development and dedicated for eligible capital 
improvements are identified in Table 46.   



Appendix C:  Revenue Forecast 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 39 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 46.  Revenue Attributable to New Development, 2013-2023 

FY 2014  FY 2015  FY 2016  FY 2017  FY 2018  

Local Sales Tax $1,096,969 $1,231,211 $1,358,745 $1,490,825 $1,623,419

Licenses & Permits $15,819 $35,468 $44,929 $56,419 $64,464

State & Federal Grants $22,097 $39,419 $65,679 $87,949 $110,447

State Shared Revenues $102,311 $211,659 $329,397 $446,438 $567,336

Other Intergovernmental $318 $629 $934 $1,232 $1,524

Charges for Services $15,289 $30,290 $44,964 $59,337 $73,417

Fines $2,013 $3,983 $5,912 $7,802 $9,653

Interest Income $660 $1,363 $2,063 $2,777 $3,505

Miscellaneous $1,208 $2,411 $3,578 $4,722 $5,843

Bed Tax General Fund Alloc. $1,960 $3,878 $5,757 $7,597 $9,399

Total Growth Revenues $1,258,644 $1,560,311 $1,861,958 $2,165,098 $2,469,007

State/Federal Highway Funds $22,097 $39,419 $65,679 $87,949 $110,447

Excess Construction Sales Tax $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $968,220

Total Dedicated Growth Revenues $990,317 $1,007,639 $1,033,899 $1,056,169 $1,078,667

FY 2019  FY 2020  FY 2021  FY 2022  FY 2023  Total      

Local Sales Tax $1,106,623 $1,245,753 $1,385,654 $1,526,368 $1,667,939 $13,733,506

Licenses & Permits $70,718 $75,430 $78,822 $81,088 $82,404 $605,561

State & Federal Grants $133,165 $156,112 $179,296 $202,725 $226,425 $1,223,314

State Shared Revenues $692,206 $821,183 $954,405 $1,092,015 $1,234,250 $6,451,200

Other Intergovernmental $1,811 $2,091 $2,367 $2,636 $2,901 $16,443

Charges for Services $87,215 $100,737 $113,993 $126,990 $139,746 $791,978

Fines $11,468 $13,246 $14,989 $16,698 $18,375 $104,139

Interest Income $4,247 $5,003 $5,775 $6,562 $7,365 $39,320

Miscellaneous $6,941 $8,017 $9,072 $10,106 $11,122 $63,020

Bed Tax General Fund Alloc. $11,166 $12,897 $14,594 $16,258 $17,891 $101,397

Total Growth Revenues $2,125,560 $2,440,469 $2,758,967 $3,081,446 $3,408,418 $23,129,878

State/Federal Highway Funds $133,165 $156,112 $179,296 $202,725 $226,425 $1,223,314

Excess Construction Sales Tax $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $9,682,200

Total Dedicated Growth Revenues $1,101,385 $1,124,332 $1,147,516 $1,170,945 $1,194,645 $10,905,514  
Source:  Based on FY 2014-FY 2018 revenue forecasts from Town of Oro Valley Finance Department, April 24, 2013, with revenue 

forecasts for FY 2019-FY 2023 based on FY 2017-FY 2018 revenue growth; total growth revenues based on growth share of total 

transportation service units from Table 14 (assuming linear growth in VMT between 2013 and 2023); sales tax based on annual growth 

in transportation service units and construction sales tax per service unit estimated at $270 per VMT; excess construction sales tax 

based on annual growth in transportation service units and excess construction sales tax per service unit from Table 19.  

 
 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 40 October 2, 2013 

APPENDIX D:  UPDATE STUDY COST 

 
According to State law, impact fees may be used to pay for the costs of “professional services 
required for the preparation or revision of a development fee” (Sec. 9-463.05.A, ARS).  This impact 
fee study cost the Town $69,600 for the update of the transportation, park and police impact fees.  
Since SB 1525 requires impact fees to be updated every five years, two additional studies will be 
required over the next ten years.  Dividing the 10-year cost of the required update studies for each 
facility by the new EDUs projected over the next ten years results in the following study costs per 
service unit. 

 

Table 47.  Update Study Cost per Service Unit 

Cost/  Updates 10-Year New Service Cost per  

Type of Fee Share Update Required Cost   Units       Serv. Unit

Transportation 50% $34,800 2 $69,600 35,863 $2

Park 25% $17,400 2 $34,800 1,281 $27

Police 25% $17,400 2 $34,800 3,830 $9

Total 100% $69,600 $139,200 na na  
Source:  Shares estimated by Duncan Associates; total update cost is actual cost of this impact fee study 

update; other update costs based on shares; updates required based on State law requirement that fees be 

updated at least every five years;  new service units from Table 14 (transportation), Table 26 (parks) and Table 33 

(police); cost per service unit is 10-year cost times new service units. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PUBL I C REVI EW DRA FT  

Oro Valley Water Utility 
Development Impact Fees Study 

 

 

 

October 2013 

Prepared for 

 

 

Prepared by 

 

1840 E. River Road, Suite 200  
 Tucson, Arizona



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  II 

Contents 

Executive Summary ...................................................................................................................... ES-1 

1.0 Introduction ......................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.1 Objectives ................................................................................................................. 1-1 
1.2 Background ............................................................................................................. 1-1 

1.2.1 Water Utility Policies ................................................................................ 1-2 
1.2.2 Structure of Funds ..................................................................................... 1-2 

1.3 Impact Fee Methodologies .................................................................................... 1-3 

2.0 Legal Framework ................................................................................................................ 2-1 
2.1 Necessary Public Services ..................................................................................... 2-1 
2.2 Service Area ............................................................................................................. 2-2 
2.3 Land Use Assumptions.......................................................................................... 2-4 
2.4 Changes in Growth and Development ................................................................ 2-5 
2.5 Credits ...................................................................................................................... 2-5 

3.0 Infrastructure Improvements Plan .................................................................................. 3-1 
3.1 Description of Existing Necessary Public Services ............................................ 3-1 
3.2 Service Unit Characteristics .................................................................................. 3-2 
3.3 Projected Service Units .......................................................................................... 3-3 
3.4 Projected Water Demands ..................................................................................... 3-3 
3.5 Analysis of Excess Available Capacity ................................................................ 3-4 

3.5.1 Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity .................... 3-4 
3.5.2 Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity ................................ 3-5 

3.6 Description of Infrastructure Attributable to New Development ................... 3-6 
3.6.1 Alternative Water Resources Expansion Projects ................................. 3-7 
3.6.2 Potable Water System Expansion Projects ............................................. 3-7 

3.7 Forecast of Non-Development Impact Fee Revenue ......................................... 3-8 
3.8 Interest Charges and Finance Costs ..................................................................... 3-8 
3.9 Subfund Accounting .............................................................................................. 3-8 
3.10 Summary and Conclusions ................................................................................... 3-9 

4.0 Determination of Development Impact Fees ................................................................ 4-1 
4.1 Proposed Development Impact Fees Schedule .................................................. 4-2 

Tables 

ES-1 Existing and Proposed Development Impact Fees ...................................................... ES-1 
2-1 Service Area Land Use Assumptions ............................................................................... 2-5 
3-1 Oro Valley Water Utility Service Unit Characteristics and Capacity Factors ............. 3-3 
3-2 Projected Annual Growth in Number of Service Units ................................................. 3-3 
3-3 Projected Potable Water Demands .................................................................................... 3-4 
3-4 Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity ................ 3-5 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  III 

3-5 Water Facilities - Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity............................ 3-6 
3-6 Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Expansion Projects ............................ 3-7 
3-7 Water Facilities - Potable Water System Expansion Projects ........................................ 3-7 
4-1 Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Infrastructure Summary ................... 4-1 
4-2 Water Facilities - Potable Water System Infrastructure Summary ............................... 4-2 
4-3 Alternative Water System Development Impact Fee Schedule .................................... 4-3 
4-4 Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Schedule ........................................... 4-4 
4-5 Comparison of Existing and Proposed AWRDIF and PWSDIF ................................... 4-5 

Figures 

2-1 Water Service Area Map ..................................................................................................... 2-3 

Appendices 

Appendix A: Water Utility Service Area Map   

Appendix B: Excess Available Capacity Tables 
  B-1  Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity 
  B-2  Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity 

Appendix C: Alternative Water Resources Expansion Related Projects 
  C-1 Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee  
   Project Descriptions 
  C-2 Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Projects Map 

Appendix D:  Potable Water System Expansion Related Projects 
  D-1 Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions 
  D-2 Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Projects Map 

Appendix E: Expansion Related Capital Improvements 
E-1 Alternative Water Resources Expansion Related  

Capital Improvements 
  E-2 Potable Water System Expansion Related Capital Improvements 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  ES-1 

Executive Summary 

The Town of Oro Valley Water Utility (Water Utility) contracted with CH2M HILL to 
prepare this development impact fee study in order to comply with recent amendments to 
the Arizona Revised Statutes, which require existing impact fee programs in Arizona to be 
replaced with new fees prior to August 1, 2014.1   

Based on CH2M HILL’s review and analysis of the Water Utility’s customer characteristics, 
growth projections, and capital improvements plan projects and costs, adjustments are 
proposed to the existing Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee (AWRDIF) 
and Potable Water System Development Impact Fee (PWSDIF).  Adjustments to the Water 
Utility’s existing development impact fees are provided in Table ES-1 for the base (5/8-inch) 
meter size and for a multifamily unit. 

TABLE ES-1 

Existing and Proposed Development Impact Fees 

Customer 
Class 

Existing 
AWRDIF 

Proposed 
AWRDIF 

Percent 
Variance 

Existing 
PWSDIF 

Proposed 
PWSDIF 

Percent 
Variance 

Net 
Change 

Single Family 
(5/8-inch meter) 

$4,982 $4,045 -19% $2,567 $2,015 -22% -20% 

Multi-Family  
(per unit) 

$2,390 $1,941 -19% $1,230 $967 -21% -20% 

Commercial  
(5/8-inch meter) 

$4,982 $5,258 6% $4,110 $2,619 -36% -13% 

Irrigation 
(5/8-inch meter) 

$4,982 $7,280 46% $4,360 $3,626 -17% 17% 

  

The proposed development impact fees would result in decreases across all customer classes 
with the exception of the commercial and industrial AWRDIF and the irrigation AWRDIF.  
On a combined basis, the net change in proposed Water Utility development impact fees 
would be a decrease for all customer classes except irrigation, which would increase 17 
percent.  The complete schedule of AWRDIF and PWSDIF fees is provided in Section 4 of 
this report. 

 

                                                           
1 Arizona Revised Statutes §9-463.05(K) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  1-1 

1.0 Introduction 

Recent amendments to ARS §9-463.05 require existing impact fee programs in Arizona to be 
replaced with fees adopted under the new statute by August 1, 2014.2  The Town of Oro 
Valley Water Utility (Water Utility) retained CH2M HILL to assist with its update to the 
Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee (AWRDIF) and Potable Water 
System Development Impact Fee (PWSDIF) in order to meet the August 2014 deadline.  This 
report contains CH2M HILL’s findings and recommendations for both the AWRDIF and 
PWSDIF.  The development impact fee analysis and the associated infrastructure 
improvements plan (IIP) span a 10-year period beginning in year 2014 and ending in year 
2023 – hereinafter referred to as the study period.   

Calculations throughout this report are based on analysis conducted using Microsoft Excel® 
software. Calculation results may use rounded figures, but the analysis itself uses figures 
carried to their ultimate decimal places. As such, the sums and products generated in the 
analysis may not equal the sum or product if the reader replicates the calculation with the 
factors shown in the report due to the rounding. 

1.1 Objectives 

The objectives of the analysis were to develop fair and equitable impact fees that recover the 
average cost to construct a unit of capacity for a customer connecting to the Water Utility 
system, and to comply with Town policies, Arizona State Statutes, and impact fee case law. 

1.2 Background 

Development impact fees in Arizona must meet the requirements of the Arizona Revised 
Statutes (ARS §9-463.05, as amended) and impact fee case law, namely the rational nexus 
criterion.  The rational nexus criterion in essence means that development impact fees must 
be administered in a nondiscriminatory manner and must bear a reasonable and 
proportionate relationship to the burden imposed upon the municipality to provide 
additional necessary public facilities.   

While the most recent changes in ARS §9-463.05 tightened the standards for demonstrating 
compliance with the rational nexus test, the underlying purpose and intent of the law 
remains the same - that development impact fees should reflect the average cost to construct 
a unit of capacity required to serve new development. Based on our review and analysis of 
the Water Utility’s customer characteristics, growth projections, and capital improvements 
plan projects and costs, CH2M HILL designed the PWSDIF and AWRDIF to recover the 
average cost of Water Utility infrastructure required to serve a new customer.  

                                                           
2 Arizona Revised Statutes §9-463.05(K) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  1-2 

This development impact fee analysis follows and makes frequent reference to the recently 
amended ARS §9-463.05.  The requirements defined in this statute include a detailed 
analysis of the land use and growth assumptions, level of service, and infrastructure 
required to serve new growth. 

1.2.1 Water Utility Policies 

The Town of Oro Valley Water Policies establish “the Valley Water Utility as a financially 
self-supporting enterprise.”3  As such, all costs associated with the operation of the Water 
Utility are funded from revenues derived from the sale of water and other water-related 
income sources, including development impact fees.  Furthermore, “water revenues in 
excess of operating needs of the Water Utility shall be carried forward for future operating 
or future bond funding requirements and shall not be transferred to the Town’s General 
Fund.”4 

1.2.2 Structure of Funds 

The Water Utility manages three separate funds; the Operating Fund, the AWRDIF Fund, 
and the PWSDIF Fund. Each fund is briefly discussed below: 

 Operating Fund - The primary fund for the Utility which includes management of O&M 
and labor expenditures for the potable and reclaimed water systems, and non-growth 
capital expenditures related to the existing water system. Revenue for this fund is 
generated through potable and reclaimed water sales, service fees and charges, 
groundwater preservation fees, investment income, and other miscellaneous revenue.  

 AWRDIF Fund – This fund includes capital expenditures related to alternative water 
resource projects such as Central Arizona Project (CAP), and the related debt service. 
Revenue for this fund is generated from impact fees collected at the time new water 
meters are purchased, and interest income on AWRDIF fund cash reserves.  

 PWSDIF Fund – This fund includes capital expenditures related to expansion or growth 
projects for the potable water system and related debt service.  Revenue for this fund is 
generated through impact fees collected when new water meters are purchased and 
through interest income on PWSDIF fund cash reserves.  

Revenues and expenses from these funds are segregated and managed separately. The 
forecasted impact fee revenue generated for the AWRDIF and PWSDIF Funds are based on 
the growth projections and the proposed impact fees described herein.  Development 
impact fee revenue is restricted to pay for new infrastructure and water acquisitions to serve 
future customers only. 

                                                           
3 Town of Oro Valley Mayor and Town Council Water Policies, Adopted October 23, 1996, as amended. 

4 Ibid, Section II, A.1.c. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  1-3 

1.3 Impact Fee Methodologies 

For the purposes of the AWRDIF and PWSDIF development, CH2M HILL evaluated 
industry-standard impact fee calculation methodologies defined by the American Water 
Works Association (AWWA) M1 Manual “Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges” These 
methods include: 

 Equity Buy-In method 

 Incremental Cost method  

 Hybrid method 

The goal of the equity buy-in method is to achieve an equity position between new and 
existing customers of the system.  This approach is best suited for existing facilities that 
have been oversized and have excess capacity available.  It utilizes the original cost of 
existing assets, escalated to current value using a standard cost index such as Engineering 
News-Record Construction Cost Index. Adjustments are made to account for outstanding 
debt, developer contributions, and accumulated depreciation. The resulting estimate of 
current system equity is divided by the number of system service units (SUs) connected to 
the system to compute an average cost per SU. 

The incremental cost method assigns to new development the incremental cost of system 
expansion needed to serve new development.  This approach is best suited for communities 
that have limited existing capacity, and have prepared detailed growth-related capital 
project plans and acquisition plans.  The cost of recently completed and proposed projects, 
including interest and financing costs, for a specified time frame (i.e., 10 years per Arizona 
State Statutes) is divided by the number of equivalent customers that will be served by the 
additional capital projects to compute an average cost per SU.  

Incremental average costs per SU may be additive for separate infrastructure components or 
may be combined on a weighted-average basis for similar infrastructure components.   

The hybrid method applies principles from both methods and is appropriate where some 
existing reserve capacity for growth is available and new capacity is planned.   

CH2M HILL primarily utilized the incremental cost method to compute both the AWRDIF 
and PWSDIF using both recently-completed and proposed infrastructure projects as the 
basis for the incremental average cost per SU calculation. 

 

 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-1 

2.0 Legal Framework 

2.1 Necessary Public Services 

Recent amendments to ARS §9-463.05 include a new definition of “necessary public 
services” for which development impact fees may be assessed.  “Necessary public service” 
means facilities that have a life expectancy of 3 or more years and that are owned and 
operated by or on behalf of the municipality.  For the purpose of the Water Utility, 
necessary public services include: 

“Water facilities, including the supply, transportation, treatment, purification, and 
distribution of water, and any appurtenances to those facilities.” 5 

CH2M HILL designed the PWSDIF and AWRDIF to include the infrastructure components 
defined in statute, as further described below: 

 Water Facilities 

- Supply – means infrastructure related to sources of supply, including but not limited 
to groundwater and CAP water, and any appurtenances and engineering services 
related to such water supply facilities. 

- Transportation – means infrastructure related to the transportation, pumping, and 
storage of water, and any appurtenances to such facilities. 

- Treatment – means infrastructure related to water treatment and any appurtenances 
and engineering services related to such facilities.   Oro Valley does not include any 
of its Water Utility assets in this category for the purposes of determining 
development impact fees. 

- Purification – means infrastructure related to purification of water and any 
appurtenances and engineering services related to such facilities.   Oro Valley does 
not include any of its Water Utility assets in this category for the purposes of 
determining development impact fees. 

- Distribution – means local distribution pipelines (typically less than 12 inches 
diameter) and main extensions and any appurtenances and engineering services 
related to such facilities.  Oro Valley does not include any of its Water Utility assets 
in this category for the purposes of determining development impact fees. 

- Appurtenances – appurtenances are included together with the categories described 
above for the purposes of determining development impact fees. 

                                                           
5 ARS §9-463.05.T.7(a) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-2 

 Real Property – includes real property required for location of the infrastructure 
facilities described above. 

 Engineering Services – engineering services are included together with the water 
infrastructure categories described above for the purposes of determining development 
impact fees.  

 Financing – includes interest and other finance costs related to the portion of the bonds 
issued to finance construction of necessary public services and/or facility expansions 
identified in the IIP. 

 Development Impact Fee Study – includes the cost of conducting the development 
impact fee study in accordance with ARS §9-463.05. 

This impact fee analysis demonstrates that the required capital facilities are a consequence 
of new development and necessary for new development to occur, and that the AWRDIF 
and PWSDIF are proportionate to and a result of the additional demands of new 
development.  These capital facilities as defined in the IIP will result in a beneficial use to 
new development. 

In addition, CH2M HILL conducted an evaluation of credits for exactions or other 
dedications, as described in this report. This impact fee analysis also compares the new fees 
to Water Utility’s current fee schedule, and recommends adjustments, where needed, to 
comply with ARS 9-463.05 and fulfill the rational nexus criterion. 

2.2 Service Area 

ARS 9-463.05 defines the "Service area" as the specified area within the boundaries of a 
municipality in which development will be served by necessary public services or facility 
expansions and within which a substantial nexus exists between the necessary public 
services or facility expansions and the development being served as prescribed in the IIP.6  
The Water Utility has chosen to define its water service area for the AWRDIF and PWSDIF, 
as shown in Figure 1 below.  This figure is also provided in 11x17 size in Appendix A: Water 
Utility Service Area Map.   

 

                                                           
6 ARS 9-463.05.T.(9) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-3 

 

FIGURE 2-1 

Water Service Area Map 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-4 

If adopted, the Water Utility development impact fees would only apply to future growth 
and development  within the Water Utility’s defined service area and as it may change in 
the future due to annexations or other inclusions in the service area.  Any development not 
located within, annexed into or included in the service area would not be entitled to or 
eligible to receive water service from the Water Utility. 

2.3 Land Use Assumptions 

The land use assumptions serve as the basis for the IIP and subsequent impact fee 
calculations for the Water Utility.  ARS 9-463.05 defines "Land use assumptions" as the 
projections of changes in land uses, densities, intensities and population for a specified 
service area over a period of at least 10 years and pursuant to the general plan of the 
municipality.7  The Oro Valley General Plan, adopted in 2005, does not include projections of 
future population, land use, or Water Utility SUs.  As such, land use assumptions were 
derived using GIS mapping according to current zoning and consistent with the Town’s 
General Plan, as well as recent population growth forecasts submitted to the Arizona 
Department of Water Resources.8 

When considering future Water Utility infrastructure investments (or utilization of existing 
capacity), it is difficult to provide an exact matching between the population and/or other 
measures of development growth and the necessary capital investment within a given 
timeframe due to such factors as:  

 Water Utility infrastructure investments are made to serve long-term needs and require 
large, one-time financial commitments to serve growth over a period that may exceed 
the 10-year study period. 

 Capacity utilization depends on the actual rate of development growth and new 
connections to the water system rather than the study period.   

 Capacity must be available to serve new customers immediately upon connection to the 
Water Utility, requiring up-front investment and project construction prior to having 
exact certainty over the timing of those connections. 

As such, the Water Utility performed an analysis of future land use using GIS based 
mapping to determine the SUs remaining in the existing water service area boundary 
depicted in Figure 1.  The land use assumptions were based on current zoning for each 
remaining undeveloped and/or unserved parcel.  The results of the analysis indicate a total 
of 4,131 new SUs in the Water Utility service area.  These GIS land use maps are available 
electronically from the Water Utility upon request.  The Water Utility service area land use 
assumptions are detailed in Table 2-1. 

                                                           
7 ARS 9-463.05.T.(6) 

8 ADWR Annual Water Withdrawal and Use Report-Provider Summary 2012– March 25, 2013 – Schedule AWS – Part 2, page 7. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-5 

TABLE 2-1 

Service Area Land Use Assumptions 

 
Current 
(2013)* 

Future 
(2023) 

Future 
Buildout Increase 

Single Family 18,710 NA 21,184 2,474 

Multi-Family 1,860 NA 2,472 612 

Commercial 830 NA 1,596 766 

Irrigation 1,540 NA 1,819 279 

Other 260 NA - - 

Total SUs (Buildout) 23,200 NA 27,331 4,131 

Total Population 43,062 47,182 NA 4,120 

* Calendar year-end projection 

Future growth within the service area in total SUs is anticipated at buildout - a period of at 
least 10 years and pursuant to the general plan of the Town.  Future growth is comprised of 
single family, multi-family, commercial and irrigation SUs.  The Water Utility anticipates an 
increase of 4,131 total SUs at buildout.  The population is estimated to increase by 
4,120 persons over the 10-year study period.   

2.4 Changes in Growth and Development 

ARS §9-463.05 requires that the municipality perform one of the following to monitor and 
respond to changes in growth and development over time:  

 Appoint an infrastructure advisory committee to inform and monitor the municipality 
on a number of issues related to the land use assumptions and IIP, or 

 Provide for a biennial certified audit of the municipality’s land use assumptions, IIP, and 
development impact fees.   

The Water Utility will conduct the biennial certified audit in order to comply with this 
requirement. 

2.5 Credits 

“If a municipality requires as a condition of development approval the construction or 
improvement of, contributions to or dedication of any facilities that were not included in a 
previously adopted IIP, the municipality shall cause the IIP to be amended to include the 
facilities and shall provide a credit toward the payment of a development impact fee for the 
construction, improvement, contribution or dedication of the facilities to the extent that the 
facilities will substitute for or otherwise reduce the need for other similar facilities in the IIP 
for which development impact fees were assessed.”9 

                                                           
9 §9-463.05, B 11. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-6 

The Water Utility expects to enter into line extension agreements with developers to provide 
for water system expansion through pipelines and local distribution infrastructure to meet 
future demands for their specific development.  Since this infrastructure is not included in 
the IIP, it is therefore not eligible for a credit toward development impact fee payments. 
Because the Water Utility is a financially self-supporting enterprise, impact fee credits, if 
any, may not be transferred between Water Utility and non-Water Utility sources.  
Furthermore, Town water policy prohibits entering into a “development agreement for any 
purpose that permits the developer to pay reduced water rates and/or reduced 
development impact fees.”10 

Developers or other private parties may offer (but are not required as a condition of 
development approval) to provide or develop water infrastructure (transmission, 
distribution, storage, or pumping facilities) that may exceed the water demand and/or 
supply for proposed commercial or residential development. In these instances, it may be 
appropriate to offer an offset to the proposed PWSDIF, if such infrastructure is included in 
the IIP. Such offsets would depend upon the ability to integrate with the Town’s existing 
water system and would be subject to review and acceptance by the Town.  In addition, the 
developer and Water Utility could enter into an over-sizing agreement consistent with 
Town Water Code.  In this case the Water utility would pay for the incremental cost of over 
sizing and there would be no eligible credits to offset impact fees.   

                                                           
10 Town of Oro Valley Mayor and Town Council Water Policies, Section II, A.1.f, adopted October 23, 1996, as amended. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-1 

3.0 Infrastructure Improvements Plan 

A written plan that identifies each necessary public service or facility expansion that is 
proposed to be the subject of the development impact fee and complies with the specific 
requirements of ARS 9-463.05.(E) is provided in the following sections.  These sections 
follow and comply with the seven subchapters of ARS 9-463.05.(E), which define the 
infrastructure improvements requirements.  Engineering analysis and capacity calculations 
in this report were prepared by qualified professionals licensed in the State of Arizona, as 
applicable. 

3.1 Description of Existing Necessary Public Services 

The Water Utility has approximately 18,800 customer connections serving a population of 
43,000, which includes customers within the Town boundaries and the Countryside service 
area.  The Water Utility currently delivers water from three sources of supply: 

 Groundwater is pumped from wells in the aquifer below the Town and delivered 
through the potable water distribution system.  

 CAP water is delivered to the Oro Valley potable water system through Tucson Water’s 
distribution system. Oro Valley also uses its CAP water indirectly through groundwater 
storage credits. 

 Reclaimed water is used for irrigation of turf, predominantly for golf courses, and is 
delivered through a separate reclaimed water distribution system.  

In 2012, a total of 7,444 acre feet of potable water was produced to deliver water supply to 
Water Utility customers.  The wells in the Oro Valley Water Service Area produced 5,415 
acre feet (1.76 billion gallons) and the wells in the Countryside Water Service Area produced 
746 acre feet (243 million gallons) to deliver water supply to our customers.  In addition, 
1,283 acre feet of CAP water was delivered to the potable water system in accordance with 
an intergovernmental agreement with the City of Tucson.  The total pumped from Water 
Utility wells in 2012 was 1,573 acre feet (513 million gallons) less than in 2011 primarily due 
to the Water Utility’s CAP deliveries and ongoing water conservation efforts.  

In 2012, the Water Utility also stored CAP water to obtain groundwater storage credits 
within the Tucson Active Management Area. The use of groundwater storage credits for 
recovery wells reduces the Water Utility’s financial obligations to the Central Arizona 
Groundwater Replenishment District.  

Groundwater levels continue to decline in the Oro Valley aquifer but to a significantly lesser 
extent than in previous years due to reductions in groundwater pumping. Well water levels 
declined an average of 1.29 feet in the Oro Valley Water Service Area and declined 2.75 feet 
in the Countryside Water Service Area in 2012. Operation of the reclaimed water system and 
the delivery of CAP water have slowed the groundwater decline, thus conserving, 
preserving and protecting the aquifer and groundwater supply. The Water Utility plans to 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-2 

continue to utilize a mix of source water, including its remaining CAP water allocation, in 
the foreseeable future.  

The following are some of the Water Utility’s existing resources and assets as of 
December 31, 2012:  

 Water Resources:  

- Groundwater Supply (Assured Water Supply):   13,384 acre feet per year  
- Groundwater Supply (Sustainable Supply Target)  5,500 acre feet per year 
- Reclaimed Water:       2,300 acre feet per year  
- Effluent Water:       1,500 acre feet per year  
- CAP Water:        10,305 acre feet per year  

 

 Assets:  

- Water Distribution Storage Reservoirs:    19 
- Potable Water Reservoir Capacity:     11,600,000 gallons  
- Reclaimed Water Reservoir Capacity:    1,500,000 gallons  
- Potable Water Mains:       343 miles  
- Reclaimed Water Mains      12 miles  
- Potable Water Booster Stations:     25 
- Reclaimed Water Booster Stations:     2  
- Operating Wells:       22  

The Water Utility has budgeted capital expenditures to repair, replace, and upgrade existing 
water facilities.  These non-growth-related capital expenditures are funded with Operating 
Fund revenue (predominantly from water rates) and therefore are not considered in the 
AWRDIF and PWSDIF analysis. 

3.2 Service Unit Characteristics 

In order to present water demands using a standardized measure of consumption, average 
consumption attributable to an individual unit of development (calculated pursuant to 
generally accepted engineering and planning standards) is expressed in terms of SUs.  A 
Water Utility SU is represented by a residential customer with a 5/8-inch (or 5/8 x 3/4 inch) 
meter, which is the most common meter size in Oro Valley.  Based on an examination of 
historic billing statistics and water system characteristics, the Water Utility’s current SU 
demand characteristics are 110,790 gallons per year (9,232 gallons per month) or 0.34 AF 
annually. 

If development impact fees are assessed, they must be assessed against commercial, 
industrial and residential development.11  As such, the Water Utility will continue to charge 
proportionate fees across development categories based on the relative burdens imposed by 
and differential cost of providing water to specific categories of development.  The level of 
consumption for each development category is provided in Table 3-1. 

                                                           
11 ARS 9-463.05.B.(13) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-3 

TABLE 3-1 

Oro Valley Water Utility Service Unit Characteristics and Capacity Factors 

Development Category 
Water Demand 

(gallons/year/SU) 
Water Demand 

(acre feet/year/SU) 
Service Unit 

Capacity Factor 

Residential 110,790 0.34 1.00 

Multifamily 53,180 0.16 0.48 

Commercial and Industrial 144,000 0.44 1.30 

Irrigation 199,400 0.61 1.80 

    

The capacity factors express water demand on a SU basis and were determined based on an 
analysis of the Town’s water billing data. Capacity factors indicate that commercial, 
industrial, and irrigation categories demand more water per SU than the residential 
category, while the multifamily SU demands less water than all other categories. 

3.3 Projected Service Units 

The Water Utility installed 171 new water connections in year 2012 (or 245 SUs), 
approximately a 1.0 percent growth rate, and expects to add 300 new SUs in 2013.  The 
projected number of SUs necessitated by and attributable to new development in the service 
area based on the approved land use assumptions and calculated pursuant to generally 
accepted engineering criteria are provided in Table 3-2. 

TABLE 3-2 

Projected Annual Growth in Number of Service Units 

Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

2013 System SUs 23,200          

Projected Additional 
SUs 

300 400 400 400 450 450 450 500 500 500 

Total System SUs 23,500 24,208 24,608 25,008 25,458 25,908 26,358 26,808 27,258 27,758 

Annual Growth (percent) 1.3% 1.7% 1.7% 1.6% 1.8% 1.8% 1.7% 1.9% 1.9% 1.8% 

           

Annual growth is forecasted to increase from the current level of approximately 300 SUs in 
2013 to 500 SUs annually by the end of the forecast period.  The total number of additional 
SUs forecasted over the 10-year period is 4,050 SUs – just under the 4,131 SUs anticipated at 
buildout.  The annual growth rate in SUs ranges from 1.3 to 1.9 percent, averaging 1.7 
percent over the study period. 

3.4 Projected Water Demands 

The projected demand for water services required by new SUs over the 10-year forecast 
period is provided in Table 3-3. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-4 

TABLE 3-3 

Projected Potable Water Demands 

Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

2013 System SUs 23,200          

Projected Additional 
SUs 

300 400 400 400 450 450 450 500 500 500 

Total System SUs 23,500 24,208 24,608 25,008 25,458 25,908 26,358 26,808 27,258 27,758 

Potable Water System 
Demand (AF/year) 

 7,990  8,130  8,260  8,400  8,550  8,700  8,860  9,030  9,200  9,370 

           

Annual growth in water demand is forecasted to increase from the current level of 
approximately 7,990 acre-feet to 9,370 acre-feet by the end of the study period.  The annual 
growth rate in potable water system demand ranges from 1.3 to 1.9 percent, averaging 
1.7 percent over the study period. 

3.5 Analysis of Excess Available Capacity 

3.5.1 Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity 

Since the 1940’s groundwater levels have declined within the Water Utility’s service area 
and it is anticipated that levels will continue to decline in the future without proactive 
measures.  Based on the Town’s 2002 Assured Water Supply Hydrology Report12 and 2004 
Groundwater Action Plan13, the Town has established a target “sustainable groundwater 
supply” of 5,500 AF per year.  In 2005, the Water Utility pumped 10,520 acre feet, which 
represents the Water Utility’s highest groundwater pumpage.  In 2012, the Water Utility’s 
total deliveries dropped to 9,543 AF (potable and reclaimed combined). Of that amount, 
6,160 AF was groundwater pumpage and 1,283 AF was CAP water delivered to the potable 
system.  The remaining amount was reclaimed water deliveries of 2,100 AF. 

Until year 2005 the Water Utility’s only source of water supply was groundwater from 
existing wells. In October 2005, the Water Utility began operation of the first phase of its 
reclaimed water system. The Water Utility current water supplies include: 

 Groundwater from Town wells – groundwater from Town wells is limited to a 
“sustainable groundwater supply” of approximately 5,500 AF per year. 

 Reclaimed Water – reclaimed water includes the delivery of treated wastewater effluent 
to irrigation customers. The total capacity of reclaimed water is approximately 2,300 AF. 

 Colorado River water delivered through the CAP - The Town currently has a 
subcontract with CAWCD for 10,305 AF of CAP water rights.  Of this amount, 1,283 AF 
was delivered in 2012 through a wheeling agreement with Tucson Water.  It is 

                                                           
12 Assured Water Supply Hydrology Report for the Oro Valley Water Utility, Brown and Caldwell, June 2002. 

13 Groundwater Action Plan, Oro Valley Water Utility, Oro Valley, Arizona; Brown and Caldwell, August 2004. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-5 

anticipated that CAP water delivery capacity will increase to a cumulative total of 3,500 
AF over the 10-year study period. 

The Town will increasingly rely on renewable reclaimed water and CAP water to meet its 
needs as existing groundwater production is reduced to approximately 5,500 AF per year in 
the future to protect and preserve the aquifer and minimize groundwater mining.  

Existing customers use 6,160 AF per year of groundwater, which is 660 AF per year greater 
than the sustainable groundwater production flow rate of 5,500 AF per year.  In early 2014, 
the Water Utility will complete its development of an additional 500 AF of the 660 AF of 
CAP water for existing customers.  This leaves an additional amount of 160 AF needed for 
existing customers from the proposed infrastructure in the IIP for the AWRDIF projects.   

Total water demand is expected to increase from the current 9,543 AF per year to 
approximately 11,760 AF by 2023. It is anticipated that this demand will be met via 5,870 AF 
of groundwater; 2,300 AF of reclaimed water; and 3,500 AF of CAP water. Of the 3,500 AF of 
CAP water, 2,000 AF has been developed for and paid by existing (current) customers.  Of 
the remaining 1,500 (and the basis for this AWRDIF analysis), 1,340 AF will be allocated to 
and paid by new development and 160 AF will be allocated to and paid by existing 
customers. The 160 AF will be funded with revenue collected from existing customers 
through the Water Utility’s groundwater preservation fee (GPF), which is included in the 
monthly bills to existing customers.  

The source of supply for the AWRDIF is the Town’s allocation of CAP water.  In 2007, the 
Town acquired 3,557 acre feet of additional CAP water to meet the water demands for 
future growth and development.  The total acquisition cost including finance charges was 
$2,607,471 for a cost of approximately $733 per acre foot (or $249 per SU). An analysis of the 
alternative water resources excess capacity available for new development is provided in 
Table 3-4. 

TABLE 3-4 

Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Source of Supply $ 2,362,129 3,557 10,462 $226 

Financing 245,342 3,557 10,462     23 

TOTAL $2,607,471 3,557 10,464 $249 

     

The Water Utility’s investment in its source of supply water facilities results in an average 
cost per SU of $249, including financing expenses.   Detailed calculations are provided in 
Appendix B: Excess Available Capacity Tables. 

3.5.2 Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity 

The potable water system consists of the resources and assets as described in Section 3.1.  
All of the Water Utility’s resources and assets work together to provide consistent water 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-6 

pressure and flow to approximately 18,800 customer accounts (or approximately 23,200 
SUs).  Estimating network system capacity is subjective, so the potable water system excess 
available capacity was estimated using: 

 Pumping capacity  

 Normalized pipe capacity per SU 

 Hydraulic flow modeling   

The results from all three estimates were consistent and demonstrated that the 2000 and 
2003 bond projects were constructed with excess capacity of approximately 40 percent, or 
4,300 SUs versus the 10,524 SUs designed to be served those projects. The excess available 
capacity analysis indicates that the current system therefore has sufficient capacity to serve a 
total of 27,500 SUs (or an additional 4,300 SUs more than the 2013 system SUs).  However, it 
should be noted that capacity is determined based on a network basis for the entire water 
system, which does not preclude the need for additional capacity investments in certain 
portions of the system where capacity may be constrained. 

An analysis of the potable water system excess available capacity to meet the water 
demands of future growth and development is provided in Table 3-5 below. 

TABLE 3-5 

Water Facilities - Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

$13,104,410 3,578 10,524 $1,245 

Financing     4,688,669 3,578 10,524      446 

TOTAL $17,793,079 3,578 10,524 $1,691 

     

The Water Utility’s previous investment in its potable water system water transportation 
facilities provides excess available capacity with an average cost per SU of $1,691, including 
financing expenses.   Detailed calculations are provided in Appendix B: Excess Available 
Capacity Tables. 

3.6 Description of Infrastructure Attributable to New 
Development 

The Water Utility provided a description of the necessary facility expansions and their costs 
necessitated by and attributable to new development in the service area based on the 
approved land use assumptions.  These include the alternative water expansion projects 
funded via AWRDIF revenue, and the potable water expansion projects funded via PWSDIF 
revenue.   



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-7 

Necessary facility expansions are described in Appendix C: Alternative Water Resources 
Expansion Related Projects and Appendix D: Potable Water System Expansion Related 
Projects.  Detailed calculations of the AWRDIF and PWSDIF are provided in Appendix E: 
Expansion Related Capital Improvements. 

3.6.1 Alternative Water Resources Expansion Projects 

A summary of the alternative water facilities expansion projects and their costs necessitated 
by and attributable to new development in the service area is provided in Table 3-6 below. 

TABLE 3-6 

Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Expansion Projects 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

$12,660,000 1,500 4,412 $2,870 

Financing     4,051,200 1,500 4,412      918 

TOTAL $16,771,200 1,500 4,412 $3,788 

     

The Water Utility’s future investment in its alternative water resources transportation 
projects will provide additional capacity with an average cost per SU of $3,788, including 
financing expenses.   

3.6.2 Potable Water System Expansion Projects 

A summary of the potable water facilities expansion projects and their costs necessitated by 
and attributable to new development in the service area is provided in Table 3-7 below. 

TABLE 3-7 

Water Facilities - Potable Water System Expansion Projects 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

$3,750,000 386 1,135 $3,304 

Real Property 500,000 386 1,135 581 

Financing   1,360,000 386 1,135   1,198 

TOTAL $5,610,000 386 1,135 $4,943 

     

The Water Utility’s future investment in its potable water system transportation projects 
and real property will provide additional capacity with an average cost per SU of $4,943, 
including financing expenses.   



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-8 

3.7 Forecast of Non-Development Impact Fee Revenue 

The Town of Oro Valley Water Policies establish the “the Oro Valley Water Utility as a 
financially self-supporting enterprise”14  and therefore new SUs connecting to the Water 
Utility potable water system are subject to both the PWSDIF and AWRDIF will not generate 
any additional revenues through state-shared revenue, federal revenue, ad valorem 
property taxes, construction contracting or similar excise taxes that would inure to the 
benefit of the Water Utility.  Construction sales taxes collected by the Town of Oro Valley 
will inure to the benefit of the Town’s general fund, not to the Water Utility.  The Water 
Utility may collect certain taxes on behalf of the Town of Oro Valley or other taxing 
authorities, but the associated revenues are transferred to the Town or other authorities and 
the Water Utility does not receive any tax revenue.  The capital recovery portion of the 
Water Utility’s current rates and fees are recovered for repair and replacement capital costs, 
not new growth.  As such, a forecast of non-development impact fee revenue is not 
applicable and associated non-development impact fee credits are not applicable to the 
Water Utility. 

In addition, PWSDIF and AWRDIF fund debt is paid with impact fee revenue and therefore 
no debt-service credit is provided. 

3.8 Interest Charges and Finance Costs 

The Water Utility will fund all or a portion of the potable water system or alternative water 
resources projects by issuing revenue bonds.  Projected interest charges and other finance 
costs may be included in determining the amount of development impact fees if the monies 
are used for the payment of principal and interest on the portion of the bonds issued to 
finance the construction of the necessary public services or facility expansions identified in 
the IIP. 

For the purposes of this analysis, CH2M HILL assumed a 3.75 percent interest rate, 
2 percent debt issuance expense, and 0.5 percent bond insurance expense.  Based on these 
assumptions, interest and financing added approximately 32 percent to the cost of the future 
improvements.  Actual interest charges and finance costs incurred were included for 
existing infrastructure with excess capacity.  

3.9 Subfund Accounting 

Monies received from the proposed AWRDIF and PWSDIF will be placed in separate funds 
(the AWRDIF Fund and PWSDIF Fund) and accounted for separately from the Water Utility 
Operating Fund.  Interest earned on monies in these funds will be credited back to the 
respective fund. 

                                                           
14 Town of Oro Valley Mayor and Town Council Water Policies, Adopted October 23, 1996, as amended. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-9 

3.10 Summary and Conclusions 

CH2M HILL computed the infrastructure and finance cost per SU for the water utility’s IIP 
using the project categories defined by ARS §9-463.05. Both excess available capacity and 
expansion projects were included in the calculation of an average cost to construct a new 
unit of capacity (or to utilize an existing unit of capacity).  This methodology arrives at an 
average cost to construct a new unit of capacity (or utilize an existing unit of capacity) at the 
same level of service; it does not rely on the timing of new development, but applies the cost 
of new capacity across all SUs that will be served by that capacity regardless of when 
growth may occur. Minor changes to the list of projects (or existing infrastructure) that 
provide capacity for new development should not require recalculation of the development 
impact fee since a single project is likely to have an insignificant impact on the average cost 
of capacity across all necessary system infrastructure.



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-1 

4.0 Determination of Development Impact Fees 

Based on the foregoing analysis in the IIP presented in Section 3, the development impact 
fees were determined according to the project categories defined by ARS §9-463.05.  The 
results of the analysis and cost per SU for both the AWRDIF and PWSDIF are summarized 
in Tables 4-1 and 4-2, respectively. 

TABLE 4-1 

Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Infrastructure Summary  

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Source of Supply $ 2,362,129 3,557 10,462 $  226 

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

12,660,000 1,500 4,412 2,870 

   Treatment - - - - 

   Purification - - - - 

   Distribution - - - - 

Real Property - - - - 

Engineering Services Included above Included above Included above Included above 

Financing 245,342 

4,051,200 

3,557 

1,500 

10,462 

4,412 

23 

918 

Development impact 
fee Study

1
 

         30,028 - 4,050          7 

TOTAL $19,348,699 - - $4,045 

1.  The Development Impact Fee Study was conducted for $60,056 in total and was evenly applied to the Water Utility’s  
      two impact fees. 

 

The total cost per SU and the basis for the AWRDIF is $4,045. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-2 

TABLE 4-2 

Water Facilities - Potable Water System Infrastructure Summary 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Capital Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Source of Supply - - - - 

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

$16,854,410 3,964 11,659 $1,446 

   Treatment - - - - 

   Purification - - - - 

   Distribution - - - - 

Real Property 500,000 - 11,659 43 

Engineering Services Included above Included above Included above Included above 

Financing 6,048,669 - 11,659 519 

Development impact 
fee Study

1
 

         30,028 - 4,050          7 

TOTAL $23,433,107 - - $2,015 

1.  The Development Impact Fee Study was conducted for $60,056 in total and was evenly applied to the Water Utility’s  
      two impact fees. 

 

The total cost per SU and the basis for the PWSDIF is $2,015. 

4.1 Proposed Development Impact Fees Schedule 

The Water Utility’s development impact fees are a one-time payment by new customers to 
recover costs required to support growth. The proposed AWRDIF and PWSDIF are 
applicable to new single-family residential; multifamily residential; commercial and 
industrial; and irrigation meters. New connections with meter sizes larger than 5/8 inch are 
adjusted based on their relative meter capacities currently utilized by the Water Utility 
(originally derived from capacity ratios published by the AWWA) such that the fee 
assessment schedule is proportionate, fair and equitable.   Tables 4-3 through 4-5 provide 
the proposed impact fee assessment schedules. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-3 

TABLE 4-3 
Alternative Water System Development Impact Fee Schedule 

Customer Class

Existing 

Demand 

Adjustment 

Factor

Proposed 

Demand 

Adjustment 

Factor

AWWA Meter 

Capacity Ratio

Existing 

AWRDIF

Proposed 

AWRDIF

Single Family Residential

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.0 1.0 1.0 4,982$              4,045$              

3/4-inch 1.0 1.0 1.5 7,470$              6,067$              

1-inch 1.0 1.0 2.5 12,450$            10,111$            

1.5-inch 1.0 1.0 5.0 24,910$            20,223$            

2-inch 1.0 1.0 8.0 39,850$            32,356$            

Multifamily Residential

(per unit)

Per Unit 0.48 0.48 NA 2,390$              1,941$              

Commercial and Industrial

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.0 1.3 1.0 4,982$              5,258$              

3/4-inch 1.0 1.3 1.5 7,470$              7,887$              

1-inch 1.0 1.3 2.5 12,450$            13,145$            

1.5-inch 1.0 1.3 5.0 24,910$            26,289$            

2-inch 1.0 1.3 8.0 39,850$            42,063$            

3-inch 1.0 1.3 16 79,710$            84,126$            

4-inch 1.0 1.3 25 124,550$          131,447$         

6-inch 1.0 1.3 50 249,100$          262,894$         

8-inch 1.0 1.3 80 398,560$          420,631$         

Irrigation

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.0 1.8 1.0 4,982$              7,280$              

3/4-inch 1.0 1.8 1.5 7,470$              10,920$            

1-inch 1.0 1.8 2.5 12,450$            18,200$            

1.5-inch 1.0 1.8 5.0 24,910$            36,401$            

2-inch 1.0 1.8 8.0 39,850$            58,241$            

3-inch 1.0 1.8 16 79,710$            116,482$         

4-inch 1.0 1.8 25 124,550$          182,004$         

6-inch 1.0 1.8 50 249,100$          364,007$         

8-inch 1.0 1.8 80 398,560$          582,412$         

ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

ALTERNATIVE WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES

 

1 1 1 

I 
I I I 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-4 

TABLE 4-4 
Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Schedule 

Customer Class

Existing 

Demand 

Adjustment 

Factor

Proposed 

Demand 

Adjustment 

Factor

AWWA Meter 

Capacity Ratio

Existing 

PWSDIF

Proposed 

PWSDIF

Single Family Residential

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.0 1.0 1.0 2,567$              2,015$              

3/4-inch 1.0 1.0 1.5 3,850$              3,022$              

1-inch 1.0 1.0 2.5 6,420$              5,037$              

1.5-inch 1.0 1.0 5.0 12,840$            10,074$            

2-inch 1.0 1.0 8.0 20,540$            16,118$            

Multifamily Residential

(per unit)

Per Unit 0.48 0.48 NA 1,230$              967$                  

Commercial and Industrial

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.6 1.3 1.0 4,110$              2,619$              

3/4-inch 1.6 1.3 1.5 6,170$              3,929$              

1-inch 1.6 1.3 2.5 10,280$            6,548$              

1.5-inch 1.6 1.3 5.0 20,550$            13,096$            

2-inch 1.6 1.3 8.0 32,880$            20,953$            

3-inch 1.6 1.3 16 65,760$            41,906$            

4-inch 1.6 1.3 25 102,750$          65,478$            

6-inch 1.6 1.3 50 205,500$          130,956$         

8-inch 1.6 1.3 80 328,800$          209,530$         

Irrigation

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.7 1.8 1.0 4,360$              3,626$              

3/4-inch 1.7 1.8 1.5 6,540$              5,440$              

1-inch 1.7 1.8 2.5 10,900$            9,066$              

1.5-inch 1.7 1.8 5.0 21,800$            18,132$            

2-inch 1.7 1.8 8.0 34,880$            29,012$            

3-inch 1.7 1.8 16 69,760$            58,024$            

4-inch 1.7 1.8 25 109,000$          90,662$            

6-inch 1.7 1.8 50 218,000$          181,324$         

8-inch 1.7 1.8 80 348,800$          290,118$         

ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

POTABLE WATER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES

 

i i i i 

I I I I 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-5 

Customer Class
Existing

AWRDIF

Proposed

AWRDIF

Percent

Variance

Existing

PWSDIF

Proposed

PWSDIF

Percent

Variance

Existing Fees

(combined)

Proposed Fees

(combined)

Net 

Change

Single Family 

Residential

(per meter)

5/8-inch 4,982$        4,045$        -19% 2,567$        2,015$        -22% 7,549$             6,059$                -20%

3/4-inch 7,470$        6,067$        -19% 3,850$        3,022$        -22% 11,320$          9,089$                -20%

1-inch 12,450$     10,111$     -19% 6,420$        5,037$        -22% 18,870$          15,148$             -20%

1.5-inch 24,910$     20,223$     -19% 12,840$     10,074$     -22% 37,750$          30,296$             -20%

2-inch 39,850$     32,356$     -19% 20,540$     16,118$     -22% 60,390$          48,474$             -20%

Multifamily 

Residential

(per unit)

Per Unit 2,390$        1,941$        -19% 1,230$        967$           -21% 3,620$             2,908$                -20%

Commercial and 

Industrial

(per meter)

5/8-inch 4,982$        5,258$        6% 4,110$        2,619$        -36% 9,092$             7,877$                -13%

3/4-inch 7,470$        7,887$        6% 6,170$        3,929$        -36% 13,640$          11,816$             -13%

1-inch 12,450$     13,145$     6% 10,280$     6,548$        -36% 22,730$          19,693$             -13%

1.5-inch 24,910$     26,289$     6% 20,550$     13,096$     -36% 45,460$          39,385$             -13%

2-inch 39,850$     42,063$     6% 32,880$     20,953$     -36% 72,730$          63,016$             -13%

3-inch 79,710$     84,126$     6% 65,760$     41,906$     -36% 145,470$        126,032$           -13%

4-inch 124,550$   131,447$   6% 102,750$   65,478$     -36% 227,300$        196,925$           -13%

6-inch 249,100$   262,894$   6% 205,500$   130,956$   -36% 454,600$        393,850$           -13%

8-inch 398,560$   420,631$   6% 328,800$   209,530$   -36% 727,360$        630,161$           -13%

Irrigation

(per meter)

5/8-inch 4,982$        7,280$        46% 4,360$        3,626$        -17% 9,342$             10,907$             17%

3/4-inch 7,470$        10,920$     46% 6,540$        5,440$        -17% 14,010$          16,360$             17%

1-inch 12,450$     18,200$     46% 10,900$     9,066$        -17% 23,350$          27,267$             17%

1.5-inch 24,910$     36,401$     46% 21,800$     18,132$     -17% 46,710$          54,533$             17%

2-inch 39,850$     58,241$     46% 34,880$     29,012$     -17% 74,730$          87,253$             17%

3-inch 79,710$     116,482$   46% 69,760$     58,024$     -17% 149,470$        174,506$           17%

4-inch 124,550$   182,004$   46% 109,000$   90,662$     -17% 233,550$        272,666$           17%

6-inch 249,100$   364,007$   46% 218,000$   181,324$   -17% 467,100$        545,331$           17%

8-inch 398,560$   582,412$   46% 348,800$   290,118$   -17% 747,360$        872,530$           17%

ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

EXISTING AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES

TABLE 4-5 
Comparison of Existing and Proposed AWRDIF and PWSDIF 

i i i i i i 

T T T 

I I I 

I A 
I I I 



 

 

 



 

 

APPENDIX A 

Water Utility Service Area Map 



OR
AC

LE
 RD

INA RD

MOORE RD

TANGERINE RD

LAMBERT LN

MAGEE RD

LA
 CA

NA
DA

 DR

LA
 CH

OL
LA

 BL

NARANJA DR

1S
T

OVERTON RD

NO
RT

HE
RN

 AV
E

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

CALLE CONCORDIA

CO
YO

TE
 CR

OS
SIN

G T
R

EL C
AMINO DE M

ANANA

LINDA VISTA BL

LA
 CH

OL
LA

 BL

HARDY RD

WATER SERVICE AREA MAP

J
E:\GIS and other Projects\10-15 Year Improvement\

Water Service Area Map_11x17.mxd
Revised 08/05/2013 by IS

HA
RT

MA
N

LINDA VISTA

CA
MI

NO
 DE

 OE
ST

E

CORTARO FARMS

HARDY

ST
AR

 GR
AS

S

COUNTRYSIDE

J

Legend
Oro Valley Water Main

Oro Valley Town Limits

Marana Town Limits

Oro Valley Water



 

 

APPENDIX B 

Excess Available Capacity Tables 



APPENDIX B

Town of Oro Valley Water Utility

Table B-1: Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity

CAP Water Acquisition Source of Supply 2007 2,362,129$    245,342$      2,607,471$    3,557          10,462       249$                      

TOTAL 2,362,129$    245,342$      2,607,471$    3,557          10,462       249$                      

Interest and

Financing

Cost

Project

No.
Project Name

Project

Type

Completion

Year

Capital

Cost

Total

Project

Cost

Additional

Capacity

(acre-feet)

Additional

Service

Units

Development 

Impact Fee per 

Service Unit

Page 1 of 1



APPENDIX B

Town of Oro Valley Water Utility

Table B-2: Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity

Series 2000 Bond Expansion Related Projects
1 WP 4 Well, Booster and Reservoir Transportation 2003 1,678,816$      698,937$            2,292,149$      
2 WP1 D Zone Booster Transportation 2003 415,587           173,020              567,416           
3 WP 14 "H & I" Zone Booster Transportation 2002 1,155,169        480,928              1,577,194        
4 12 Inch Steam Pump Mains Transportation 2001 467,196           194,506              637,879           
5 16" South "C" Zone Main Transportation 2004 428,542           178,414              585,104           
6 CDO Crossing to WP1 Transportation 2004 596,023           248,141              813,772           
7 16" WP1 to WP4 Main Transportation 2003 661,725           275,494              903,478           
8 12" El Con Main  NO COSTS Transportation NA NA NA NA
9 12" Well Feed Main NO COSTS Transportation NA NA NA NA

10 16" Oracle Main (20%) Ventana Transportation 2001 256,356           106,728              350,011           
11 12" Moore Rd Interconnect Transportation 2003 113,297           47,169                154,688           

Subtotal - Series 2000 Bond 5,772,710$      2,403,337$         8,176,047$      

Series 2003 Bond - Expansion Related Projects
12 South Oracle "D" Zone 16" Main Transportation 2004 741,245$         231,050$            943,996$         
13 New Well - TW C-99 Transportation 2005 500,074           155,876              636,859           
14 North La Canada E-Zone 16" Main Transportation 2004 413,284           128,823              526,329           
15 Shadow Mountain Estates 12" Main Transportation 2005 505,001           157,412              643,133           
16 WP 15 Reservoir Transportation 2007 1,828,736        570,027              2,328,947        
17 Stone Canyon H-Zone 12" Main Transportation 2007 257,530           80,274                327,972           
18 La Canada E-Zone Reservoir 3.0 MG Transportation 2011 2,792,137        870,325              3,555,866        
19 La Canada E-Zone 24" Main Transportation 2011 293,693           91,546                374,026           

Subtotal Series 2003 Bond 7,331,700$      2,285,332$         9,617,032$      

TOTAL 13,104,410$    4,688,669$         17,793,079$    3,578 10,524 1,691$                

Project

No.
Project Name

Project

Type

Completion

Year

Capital

Cost

Total

Project

Cost

Additional

Capacity

(acre-feet)

Additional

Service

Units

Development 

Impact Fee per 

Service Unit

Interest and

Financing

Cost

3,578

3,578 10,524

$777

$914

10,524

Page 1 of 1



 

 

APPENDIX C 

Alternative Water Resources  
Expansion Related Projects 



Appendix C-1 
Town of Oro Valley Water Utility 

Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions 
 

New water infrastructure is needed to meet demands in the water service area served by 
the Oro Valley Water Utility.  These demands will be met by the development of the 
Town of Oro Valley’s Central Arizona Project water. The Town of Oro Valley Water 
Utility is regulated by the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR) and is a 
member of the Tucson Active Management Area (TAMA). The Town needs to develop 
and use alternative renewable water resources, including its CAP water, to reduce ground 
water mining and reach safe yield in TAMA in 2025. 
 
The following projects are part of the Infrastructure Improvements Plan to be built over 
the next 10 years to develop and deliver water supply to meet future demands.   
 
1- La Cholla D-E Blending Booster Station (Transportation) 
 
Infrastructure improvements associated with blending groundwater with CAP water will 
be located on Naranja Drive near La Cholla Blvd.  Blending is necessary for water 
quality and reducing total dissolved solids (TDS) in the water system prior to delivering 
additional CAP water to meet future demands.  A new booster pump facility will deliver 
groundwater to mix with CAP water.  The facility will consist of booster pumps, flow 
meters, valves, electrical controls, telemetry and security wall.  Engineering services will 
be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost: $ 300,000 
 
2 – Wheeling of 1,000 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley (Transportation) 
 
This project will wheel (deliver) an additional 1,000 acre feet per year through the 
Tucson Water Naranja Reservoir facility to the Oro Valley water system. Construction of 
a booster station and associated pipelines at the Tucson Water Oasis reservoir site is 
required.  This project is required to increase flow and provide adequate pressure to 
deliver additional CAP water. Engineering services will be required and are included in 
the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 930,000 
 
3 – 24-Inch Pipeline – Naranja to La Cholla to Tangerine.  (Transportation) 
 
The addition of a new 24-inch pipeline from the Tucson Water Naranja reservoir facility 
to La Cholla north to Tangerine Road is required to deliver Oro Valley CAP water into 
the Oro Valley Water Utility’s distribution system.  Engineering services will be required 
and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost: $ 2,800,000 



 
4 – Oro Valley Water Utility Naranja CAP Booster Station Upgrade.  
(Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new pump at the Tucson Water Naranja facility and an upgrade of 
electrical service and controls is required to deliver Oro Valley CAP water into our 
distribution system.   
Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 1,200,000 
 
5 – E to C PRV Naranja Reservoir (OV).  (Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new pressure reducing valve (PRV) at Naranja Reservoir on the Oro 
Valley system to efficiently deliver additional CAP water to meet future demands.  
Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 100,000 
 
6 – Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 12-Inch Pipeline.  (Transportation) 
  
Installation of a new 12-inch CAP water main located on W. Camino Alto. The new main 
will reduce water velocity and excessive pressure for the efficient delivery of additional 
CAP water.   Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost: $ 880,000 
 
 
7 – Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 16-Inch Pipeline. (Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new 16-inch pipeline from the Tucson Water Oasis booster station to the 
Tucson Water Naranja reservoir facility for delivery of additional CAP water to the Oro 
Valley water system.   Engineering services will be required and are included in the 
project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 1,100,000 
 
8 – Wheeling of 500 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley. (Transportation). 
 
This project will wheel (deliver) an additional 500 acre feet per year of Oro Valley’s 
CAP water through the Tucson Water Naranja reservoir facility to the Oro Valley water 
system.  This project includes system improvements and the extension of a new 24-inch 
pipeline on Tangerine Road from La Cholla to La Canada. This is required to transport 
and convey the additional 500 acre feet per year of CAP water.  On the west end, it will 
connect to the 24-inch pipeline that will be constructed to La Cholla and Tangerine.  On 



the east end, it will connect the existing main at the intersection of La Canada and 
Tangerine.  Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 3,300,000 
 
9 – Steam Pump C-D Booster Station. (Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new C to D zone Booster Station at Steam Pump Ranch. The new pump 
is required to efficiently deliver additional CAP water to meet future demmands.  
Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 1,200,000 
 
10– Big Wash D-E Booster Station. (Transportation ) 
 
Installation of a new D to E zone Booster Station at the Big Wash reservoir facility 
located at the Oro Valley Marketplace. This new pump station will efficiently deliver 
CAP water to meet future demands.   Engineering services will be required and are 
included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 800,000 
 
11 – Inlet/Outlet Modifications at Allied Signal Reservoir. (Transportation)  
 
Installation of a new level control valve to prevent overfilling at the Oro Valley Allied 
Signal reservoir.  This project is required as additional CAP water is delivered to meet 
future demands.  Engineering services will be required and are included in the project 
cost. 
 
Total cost: $ 50,000 



!(

!(

!

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(

§̈¦10

OR
AC

LE 
RD

TH
OR

NY
DA

LE 
RD

LA 
CA

NA
DA

 DR

LA 
CH

OL
LA 

BL

LAMBERT LN

SH
AN

NO
N R

D

NARANJA DR

OVERTON RD

1ST
 AV

MAGEE RD

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

NO
RT

HE
RN

 AV

CHR
IST

IE D
R

CALLE CONCORDIA

TW
IN 

LAK
ES 

DR

EL C
AMINO DE M

ANANA

CAMINO DEL NORTE

MO
NA

 LIS
A R

D

CA
MIN

O D
E O

ES
TE

LAMBERT LN

LINDA VISTA BL

CO
YO

TE 
CR

OS
SIN

G T
R

HARDY RD

N C
AM

INO
 DE

 OE
STE

LA 
CA

NA
DA

 DR

MAGEE RD

HARDY RDHARDY RD

MOORE RD

LA 
CH

OL
LA 

BL

CA
MIN

O D
E O

ES
TE

SH
AN

NO
N R

D

INA RD

LAMBERT LN

CORTARO FARMS RD

108

6

2

3

1

4

7

7

9
5

11

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP,
swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

TOWN  OF  OR O  VAL LE Y  WAT ER  UT I L I TYTOWN  OF  OR O  VAL LE Y  WAT ER  UT I L I TY
10  YEAR  ALE R NAT IVE10  YEAR  ALE R NAT IVE

WAT E R  RE SOUR CES  IMP ROVE MEN TSWAT E R  RE SOUR CES  IMP ROVE MEN TS

PIMA  COUNTY
PINAL  COUNTY

Legend
Pima County Boundary

Oro Valley Town Limits

Marana Town Limits

Oro Valley Water Main

AWRDIF System Improvements

AWRDIF System Improvements
!(

!(

!

!(

!(

!(

E:\GIS and other Projects\10-15 Year Improvement\Alternative Water Resoucesr (10Year)_11x17.mxd

±
N.T.S.

ALTERNATIVE WATER RESOURCES 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE PROJECTS

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

La Cholla D-E Blending Booster Station

OVWU CAP 12" Pipe

Wheeling OVWU CAP 1000 AF/Year

24" Pipe - Naranja La Cholla to Tangerine

OVWU CAP Naranja Booster Station Upgrade

E to C PRV Naranja Reservoir

8
9
10
11

OCWU CAP 16-Inch Pipe Oasis

Big Wash D-E Booster Station

Inlet Outlet Modifications at Allied Signal Reservoir

Steam Pump C-D Booster Station

Wheeling OVWU CAP 500 AF/Year



 

 

APPENDIX D 

Potable Water System 
Expansion Related Projects 



 
 
 

Appendix D-1 
Town of Oro Valley Water Utility 

Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions 
 
 
1 – Property Acquisition. (Real Property) 
 
Acquisition of property for a new Palisades Reservoir. The property is located in the 
vicinity of First Ave. and Palisades. The property is required for a new 1.0 million gallon 
reservoir and future booster station to meet future demands.  
 
Total cost:  $  500,000 
 
2 – Palisade Reservoir Facility C-E Booster Station. (Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new C-E zone booster station at the Palisades reservoir site. This 
includes new electrical service, telemetry, controls and piping system to meet future 
demands.  Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 450,000 
 
3 – 1.0 Million Gallon Palisades Reservoir.  (Transportation) 
 
Construct a new 1.0 million gallon potable water reservoir, control building and security 
wall at the new Palisades site to meet future demands.  Engineering services will be 
required and are included in the project cost. 
Total cost:  $ 1,650,000 
 
 
4 – New 16-Inch Pipeline.  (Transportation)  
 
Installation of a  new 16-inch main from the Palisades reservoir site to First Ave. The 
main will connect to an existing C zone pipe to meet future demands.   Engineering 
services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 1,650,000 
 



!(

!(

!(

!(

(

(

(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

§̈¦10

OR
AC

LE 
RD

TH
OR

NY
DA

LE 
RD

LA 
CA

NA
DA

 DR

LA 
CH

OL
LA 

BL

LAMBERT LN

SH
AN

NO
N R

D

NARANJA DR

OVERTON RD

1ST
 AV

MAGEE RD

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

NO
RT

HE
RN

 AV

CHR
IST

IE D
R

CALLE CONCORDIA

TW
IN 

LAK
ES 

DR

EL C
AMINO DE M

ANANA

CAMINO DEL NORTE

MO
NA

 LIS
A R

D

CA
MIN

O D
E O

ES
TE

LAMBERT LN

LINDA VISTA BL

CO
YO

TE 
CR

OS
SIN

G T
R

HARDY RD

N C
AM

INO
 DE

 OE
STE

LA 
CA

NA
DA

 DR

MAGEE RD

HARDY RDHARDY RD

MOORE RD

LA 
CH

OL
LA 

BL

CA
MIN

O D
E O

ES
TE

SH
AN

NO
N R

D

INA RD

LAMBERT LN

CORTARO FARMS RD

2 1

3

4

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP,
swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

TO WN  OF  OR O  VAL LE Y  WATE R  UT I L I TYTO WN  OF  OR O  VAL LE Y  WATE R  UT I L I TY
10  YE AR  P OTABL E10  YE AR  P OTABL E

WAT E R  S YS T EM  I MP RO VE ME NT SWAT E R  S YS T EM  I MP RO VE ME NT S

PIMA  COUNTY
PINAL  COUNTY

±
N.T.S.

Legend
Pima County Boundary

Oro Valley Town Limits

Marana Town Limits

Oro Valley Water Main

Potable Water System Improvement

!( Potable Water System Improvement

(

!(

(

(

E:\GIS and other Projects\10-15 Year Improvement\Potable Water (10Year)_11x17.mxd

POTABLE WATER SYSTEM 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE FUND PROJECTS

1
2
3
4

Property Acquisition C Zone Reservoir

Booster Station C to E Zone

1.0 MG Reservoir C Zone

New 16" Main C Zone 



 

 

APPENDIX E 

Expansion Related Capital Improvements 



APPENDIX E

Town of Oro Valley Water Utility

Table E-1: Alternative Water Resources Expansion Related Capital Improvements

Phase 1 Projects (1,000 AF/Year)

1 CAP La Cholla D-E Blending Booster Station Transportation 2014 300,000$          96,000$            396,000$          

2 Wheeling of 1000 Acre Feet CAP Water to Oro Valley Transportation 2016 930,000            297,600            1,227,600         

3 24-Inch Pipeline - Naranja to La Cholla to Tangerine Transportation 2018 2,800,000         896,000            3,696,000         

4 Oro Valley Water Utility Naranja CAP Booster Station Upgrade Transportation 2018 1,200,000         384,000            1,584,000         

5 E to C PRV Naranja Reservoir Transportation 2018 100,000            32,000              132,000            

6 Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 12-Inch Pipeline Transportation 2018 880,000            281,600            1,161,600         

7 Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 16-inch Pipeline Transportation 2019 1,100,000         352,000            1,452,000         

Phase 2 Projects (500 AF/Year)

8 Wheeling of 500 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley Transportation 2019 3,300,000         1,056,000         4,356,000         

9 Steam Pump C-D Booster Station Transportation 2021 1,200,000         384,000            1,584,000         

10 Big Wash D-E Booster Station Transportation 2021 800,000            256,000            1,056,000         

11 Inlet/Outlet Mod. at Allied Signal Reservoir. Transportation 2021 50,000              16,000              66,000              

TOTAL 12,660,000$    4,051,200$      16,711,200$    1,500 4,412 3,788$              

Project

No.
Project Name

Completion

Year

Capital

Cost

Interest and

Financing

Cost

Project

Type

Total

Project

Cost

Additional

Capacity

(acre-feet)

Additional

Service

Units

3,281

4,802

Development 

Fee per Service 

Unit

1,000

500

2,941

1,471

Page 1 of 1



APPENDIX E

Town of Oro Valley Water Utility

Table E-2: Potable Water System Expansion Related Capital Improvements

1 Property Acquisition Real Property 2019 500,000$              160,000$            660,000$            

2 Palisade Reservoir Facility C-E Booster Station Transportation 2021 450,000$              144,000$            594,000$            

3 1.0 Million Gallon Palisades Reservoir Transportation 2022 1,650,000$          528,000$            2,178,000$         

4 New 16-Inch Pipeline Transportation 2022 1,650,000$          528,000$            2,178,000$         

TOTAL 4,250,000$          1,360,000$         5,610,000$         386 1,135          4,943$                

386 1,135          4,943$                

Development 

Fee per Service 

Unit

Project

No.
Project Name

Project

Type

Completion

Year

Capital

Cost

Interest and

Financing

Cost

Total

Project

Cost

Additional

Capacity

(acre-feet)

Additional

Service

Units



Town Council Regular Session Item #   G.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Submitted By: Chris Cornelison, Town Manager's Office
Department: Town Manager's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)14-02, approving the annual Legislative Agenda of the Town and protocols guiding the
Town’s priorities for the upcoming legislative session and any lobbying activities

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Each year, the Town Council approves a general Town of Oro Valley legislative agenda covering state
and federal issues. This agenda identifies the recommended legislative priorities of the Town in the
upcoming state legislative session and will guide the Town's requests and lobbying activities.

Although the legislative agenda should remain flexible due to the unknown nature of bills introduced in the
State Legislature, the general concepts and direction are provided here for your discussion and approval.
More specific information can be provided, as desired and necessary, after bills are actually introduced.
The issues discussed in this report are based on the needs of the Town and what is known about
anticipated legislation.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Council Policy
In 2008, the Town Council established protocol for the legislative efforts of the Town by approving the
general legislative agenda through a resolution and adoption of a Council Communication that describes
specific components of the legislative program. A basic principle in any lobbying effort is to speak with
one voice and this resolution establishes guidelines for those who represent the Town. A summary of the
elements of the 2014 Legislative Agenda pertaining to the State Legislature is included as Attachment 2.

For state legislative efforts, the Council uses staff and designates a Councilmember as Council Liaison to
Legislative Districts 9 and 11. The Mayor also frequently interacts with other elected officials at all levels
of government during the course of his duties and works with staff in ensuring any legislative efforts
regionally, statewide or federally are coordinated in accordance with the Council-adopted agenda.

League of Arizona Cities and Towns
The Town’s intergovernmental liaison works closely with the League of Arizona Cities and Towns,
specifically regarding state legislative issues with a strength-in-numbers approach to common interest
legislation. The state legislative agenda is developed through involvement in the League resolutions
process. The Mayor represents the Town of Oro Valley as a voting member of the Resolutions
Committee, which is comprised of mayors from all Arizona municipalities. The adopted League
resolutions, included as Attachment 3, represent the mutual interests of Arizona cities and towns, and will
guide the League in its lobbying efforts on behalf of all cities and towns in the state.



The 51st State Legislature
The complete list of members of the 51st Legislature is included as Attachment 4. Staff will also provide
members of the Council with an updated version of "The Green Book," the Arizona Capitol Times guide
to the Legislature, as soon as it becomes available.

State Legislative Calendar / Process
The Legislature typically operates on a 100-day calendar; however, the Governor also has the authority
to call the Legislature into session to address specific issues. The 2nd Regular Session of the 51st
Legislature begins Monday, January 13, 2014. Furthermore, the Legislature typically conducts business
Monday through Thursday. The target date for the end of the regular session is Tuesday, April 22, 2014.

Over one-thousand bills are introduced in the Legislature each session. In the Senate, all bills must be
introduced within three weeks of the start of the session, and in the House, bills must be introduced within
four weeks. As a result, all bills will be introduced prior to February 10, 2014, although there are
provisions that allow members to submit bill amendments throughout the session, which effectively
means that a bill with co-sponsors can be introduced at any time during the regular session.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (adopt or deny) Resolution No. (R)14-02, approving the annual legislative agenda of the Town
and protocols guiding the Town's priorities for the upcoming Legislative Session and any lobbying
activities.

Attachments
Attachment 1 - (R)14-02 Legislative Agenda
Attachment 2 - Legislative Agenda Summary
Attachment 3 - League Resolutions
Attachment 4 - 51st Legislature



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@38038F4F\@BCL@38038F4F.doc      

RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE 
ANNUAL LEGISLATIVE AGENDA OF THE TOWN AND 
PROTOCOLS GUIDING THE TOWN’S PRIORITIES FOR THE 
UPCOMING LEGISLATIVE SESSION AND ANY LOBBYING 
ACTIVITIES

WHEREAS, a major objective of the Town Council is to adopt an aggressive legislative 
program which strengthens local government, promotes Town goals and defends the 
Town against legislative actions by State and Federal governments that would weaken 
local government and/or take away traditional revenue sources; and

WHEREAS, it is vital to the fiscal health and the self determination of the Town to 
effectively communicate with State Legislators and Federal representatives in order to 
favorably influence State and Federal legislation, regulations and grant requests; and

WHEREAS, actions taken by the Pima County Board of Supervisors have a direct 
impact upon the quality of life in Oro Valley, and it is imperative that the Town maintain 
quality communications with Pima County; and

WHEREAS, the League of Arizona Cities and Towns conducts a legislative analysis and 
advocacy program on behalf of cities and towns for State issues, which is governed 
annually by the League resolutions process adopted by cities around the state at the 
annual conference each fall; and

WHEREAS, the Town desires to be proactive and involved in governmental decision 
making processes directly affecting the Town legislative priorities identified in the 
Council Communication dated January 15, 2014, and the League of Arizona Cities and 
Towns legislative priorities identified in Exhibit “A,” and other selected issues as may 
from time to time be recommended by the League of Arizona Cities and Towns; and

WHEREAS, a key component of the Town’s legislative program is face to face meetings 
between Town representatives and elected officials at the Federal, State and County 
levels, and coordination with similar efforts made by other regional and local entities 
such as the Pima Association of Governments (PAG), and Tucson Regional Economic 
Opportunities, Inc. (TREO).



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@38038F4F\@BCL@38038F4F.doc      

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town
of Oro Valley, Arizona that the Town Council of Oro Valley does hereby establish the 
Legislative Agenda for 2014, as set forth in the Council Communication dated January 
15, 2014, and authorizes staff to take positions on legislation generally consistent with 
the Legislative Agenda and such other resolutions and recommendations that from time 
to time may be presented to the Town.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Town staff is directed to schedule meetings, as 
appropriate and convenient, with our congressional, state, county and other local officials 
to discuss and promote the Town’s legislative program, and to continue efforts to 
improve communications and relationships with the Pima County Board of Supervisors 
and cities around the state to further our interests in land use, water, transportation, 
economic development, and public services to our residents.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona this 15th day of January, 2014.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date:  Date:  



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@38038F4F\@BCL@38038F4F.doc      

EXHIBIT “A”



2014 Legislative Agenda Summary

The following paragraphs provide a summary of key elements of the 2014 Legislative Agenda.  Although 
the legislative agenda should remain flexible due to the unknown nature of bills introduced in the State 
Legislature, the general concepts and direction are provided here for your discussion and approval.

State Shared Revenues, Highway User Revenue Fund & Transaction Privilege Tax Reform
Possible reductions in state-shared revenues remain a major concern for cities and towns. The revenue 
sharing system was created through the voter initiative process in order to allow local jurisdictions to fund 
essential services such as public safety and infrastructure without interference from the State. Protection 
of the revenue sharing system that has been in place since 1972 is a core principle of the League of 
Arizona Cities and Towns, and remains a top priority of the Town’s legislative agenda. 

Last year, the 51st Legislature passed HB 2111 (investments; public monies), which included a number of 
provisions reforming the transaction privilege tax system. The final version of the bill generally reflects 
negotiated compromises regarding TPT administration and auditing, and keeps in place the 65% tax on 
prime contracting, except as it applies to service contractors (plumbers, HVAC technicians, etc.). 
However, the Legislature will review and clean-up the verbiage of this law during the upcoming session, 
so the Town will continue to monitor the situation, as we do not support further efforts that result in a 
decrease of construction sales tax revenue for municipalities.

Cities and towns have also experienced significant reductions in the Highway User Revenue Fund 
(HURF) during previous legislative sessions. As a result, the Town supports legislative efforts to restore 
HURF funding and identify permanent, designated funding sources for transportation infrastructure and 
transit that do not impact other state-shared revenues.

Education & Economic Development
Although the Town is not directly involved in education issues, public education is important to the long-
term health and vitality of our community, and is a fundamental component of economic development. 
The University of Arizona, Pima Community College, Amphitheater School District, and public charter 
schools provide the foundation for our future success. The Town does not support efforts to reduce 
funding for public education.

Economic development that creates high-wage jobs and builds on our success as a hub for high-tech and 
bio-medical research, development and manufacturing is a top priority of the Town. The Town supports 
state economic development efforts through the Arizona Commerce Authority and efforts to develop the 
film industry through a tax incentive program.

With statewide growing interest in developing Interstate 11 as a major transportation route between 
Mexico and Canada, the Town supports the passage of legislation or engagement in other activities that 
support and advocate for resources to improve Arizona’s ports of entry with Mexico and related 
infrastructure. However, the Town’s top priority is for the southern extension of I-11 to be aligned through 
the Tucson-metro area.

Annexation
State statutes regarding municipal annexation have become overly complex and are a barrier to regional 
development and fiscal sustainability. As a result, the Town supports reforms that remove barriers to 
annexation and reduce the need for counties to provide municipal services such as public safety, 
roadway maintenance, and development services.

Because the state-shared revenue system is based on the population of incorporated areas, the Tucson 
metro areas loses out on tens of millions of dollars in sales tax, income tax and highway tax revenue each 
year. Sensible reforms that facilitate annexation of unincorporated areas and county islands by towns like 
Oro Valley, Marana and Sahuarita will result in enhanced services to residents and businesses and will 
bring additional state-shared revenue to the region. The Town supports reforms that remove barriers to 
annexation and reduce the need for counties to provide municipal services.



FOR MORE INFORMATION: CALL 602-258-5786
VISIT: WWW.AZLEAGUE.ORG • TWITTER: @AZCITIES

OVERVIEW
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns, a voluntary association 
of the 91 incorporated municipalities in Arizona, is governed by 
two core principles: to protect shared revenues and promote local 
decision-making authority.

PRESERVE LOCAL CONTROL
Decentralized government at the local level represents a fundamental 
principle of American democracy, recognizing that when it comes 
to community governance, one size does not fit all.   

The League calls upon the Legislature to respect the authority of cities 
and towns to govern their communities in the best interests of their 
residents.  The League will endorse legislation that supports and 
sustains the principle of local control and oppose legislation that 
conflicts with the autonomy of cities and towns.  

PROTECT STATE SHARED REVENUE 
The League is determined to safeguard the economic resources cities 
and towns require to ensure safety and provide high-quality services 
for their residents.  To that end, the League calls upon the Legislature 
to enact a budget that maintains existing historical formulas for the 
distribution of state-collected shared revenue to local governments.

GOVERNMENT SERVICES 
From roads to public safety, cities and towns are service providers.  
Our residents look to their local government to provide key services 
critical to creating welcoming, healthy communities. Therefore, the 
League urges the passage of legislation to:

• Make the requirements for annexation a more simple and 
   flexible process;  

• Prohibit fire districts from annexing areas inside a municipal 
   planning area without the consent of the municipality, provided the 
   municipality operates a municipal fire department; 

• Authorize street light improvement districts to levy and expend
   money to repair, maintain and replace lighting facilities; and

• Amend statute to ensure that restitution for graffiti offenses includes   
   all abatement costs associated with a victim of graffiti.

FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY
Cities and towns provide public safety and other high-quality services 
for their residents. In order to accomplish this there needs to be fiscal 
certainty in funding sources from the state level. The League calls upon 
the Legislature to:

• Stop future sweeps of Highway User Revenue Funds (HURF)
   allocated to Arizona cities and towns and follow statutory
   formulas for the distribution of HURF monies;

• Develop and pass legislation to ensure the viability of Arizona
   state parks and to restore the Arizona State Parks Heritage Fund;    
   and  

• Include one representative from a large city along with one 
   representative from a small non-metropolitan city on the Public Safety 
   Personnel Retirement System Board of Trustees.

FEDERAL ISSUES
The League recognizes that all levels of government must work 
cooperatively in order for local communities to be successful.  
Therefore, the League will: 

• Support the passage of legislation or engage in other activities 
   that support and advocate for resources to improve Arizona’s 
   ports of entry with Mexico and related infrastructure;  

• Support the long-term retention of Arizona’s military installations;

• Encourage Congress to preserve the tax exempt status of 
   municipal bonds; and

• Push Congress to pass the Marketplace Fairness Act.



Steve Pierce(R)
Karen Fann(R), Andy Tobin(R)
Carefree, Cave Creek, Chino Valley, 
Dewey-Humboldt, Peoria, Phoenix, 
Prescott, Prescott Valley, Wickenburg 

R

S

1
R

S

2
R

S

3
R

S

4
Kelli Ward(R)
Sonny Borrelli(R), Doris Goodale(R)
Bullhead City, Colorado City, Kingman, 
Lake Havasu City, Parker, Quartzsite  

R

S

5
Chester Crandell(R)
Brenda Barton(R), Robert Thorpe(R)
Camp Verde, Clarkdale, Cottonwood, Flagstaff,
Holbrook, Jerome, Payson, Sedona, Snowflake,
Star Valley, Taylor, Tusayan, Williams  

R

S

6
Carlyle Begay(D)
Albert Hale(D), Jamescita Peshlakai(D) 
Eagar, Fredonia, Page, Pinetop-Lakeside, 
Show Low, Springerville, St. Johns, Winslow  

R

S

7
Barbara McGuire(D)
Frank Pratt(R), T.J. Shope(R)
Casa Grande, Coolidge, Eloy, Florence, Globe,
Hayden, Kearny, Mammoth, Miami, 
Superior, Winkelman   

R

S

8
Steve Farley(D)
Ethan Orr(R), Victoria Steele(D) 
Marana, Tucson

R

S

9
David Bradley(D)
Stefanie Mach(D), Bruce Wheeler(D) 
Tucson

R

S

10

Linda Lopez(D)
Andrea Dalessandro(D), Rosanna Gabaldon(D)
Nogales, Patagonia, Sahuarita, 
South Tucson, Tucson

Olivia Cajero Bedford(D)
Sally Ann Gonzales(D), Macario Saldate(D)
Tucson 

Juan Carlos Escamilla(D), Lisa Otondo(D)
Buckeye, Gila Bend, Goodyear, San Luis,
Somerton, Tucson, Yuma 

Lynne Pancrazi(D)

Al Melvin(R)
Adam Kwasman(R), Steve Smith(R)
Casa Grande, Eloy, Marana, Maricopa, 
Oro Valley, Tucson 

R

S

11
Andy Biggs(R)
Eddie Farnsworth(R), Warren Petersen(R)
Chandler, Gilbert, Queen Creek 

R

S

12
Don Shooter(R)
Darin Mitchell(R), Steve Montenegro(R)
Buckeye, El Mirage, Glendale, Goodyear, 
Litchfield Park, Surprise, Wellton, 
Wickenburg, Yuma 

R

S

13
Gail Griffin(R)
David Gowan(R), David Stevens(R)
Benson, Bisbee, Clifton, Douglas, Duncan,
Huachuca City, Pima, Safford, Sierra Vista,
Thatcher, Tombstone, Tucson, Willcox 

R

S

14
Nancy Barto(R)
John Allen(R), Heather Carter(R)
Cave Creek, Phoenix

R

S

15
David Farnsworth(R)
Doug Coleman(R), Kelly Townsend (R)
Apache Junction, Mesa, Queen Creek

R

S

16
Steve Yarbrough(R)
Tom Forese(R), J.D. Mesnard(R)
Chandler, Gilbert 

R

S

17
John McComish(R)
Jeff Dial(R), Bob Robson(R)
Chandler, Guadalupe, Mesa, 
Phoenix, Tempe 

R

S

18
Anna Tovar(D)
Mark Cardenas(D), Lupe Chavira Contreras(D)
Avondale, Phoenix, Tolleson 

R

S

19
Kimberly Yee(R)
Paul Boyer(R), Carl Seel(R)
Glendale, Phoenix

R

S

20

Rick Murphy(R)
Rick Gray(R), Debbie Lesko(R)
El Mirage, Peoria, Surprise, Youngtown

R

S

21
Judy Burges(R)
David Livingston(R), Phil Lovas(R)
Glendale, Peoria, Surprise

R

S

22
Michele Reagan(R)
John Kavanagh(R), Michelle Ugenti(R)
Fountain Hills, Paradise Valley, Scottsdale 

R

S

23
Katie Hobbs(D) 
Lela Alston(D), Chad Campbell(D) 
Phoenix, Scottsdale, Tempe

R

S

24
Bob Worsley(R)
Justin Olson(R), Justin Pierce(R)
Mesa 

R

S

25
Ed Ableser(D)
Juan Mendez(D), Andrew Sherwood(D) 
Mesa, Phoenix, Tempe 

R

S

26
Leah Landrum Taylor(D)
Ruben Gallego(D), Catherine Miranda(D) 
Guadalupe, Phoenix, Tempe

R

S

27
Adam Driggs(R)
Kate Brophy McGee(R), Eric Meyer(D) 
Paradise Valley, Phoenix, Scottsdale 

R

S

28
Steve Gallardo(D)
Lydia Hernandez(D), Martin Quezada(D) 
El Mirage, Glendale, Phoenix

R

S

29
Robert Meza(D)
Jonathan Larkin(D), Debbie McCune Davis(D)
Glendale, Phoenix

R

S

30

FOR MORE INFORMATION: CALL 602-258-5786
VISIT: WWW.AZLEAGUE.ORG • TWITTER: @AZCITIES



Town Council Regular Session Item #   H.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Shirley Seng Submitted By: Shirley Seng, Water
Department: Water

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)14-03, approving a loan in the amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00 from the Water
Infrastructure Finance Authority of Arizona for Oro Valley Water Utility Phases 2, 3 & 4 of the Advanced
Metering Infrastructure and Meter Replacement Project; authorizing the execution  and delivery of Loan
Agreement No. 920246-14; authorizing the taking of all other actions necessary to the consummation of
the transactions contemplated by this resolution and declaring an emergency

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
On September 4, 2013, Council adopted Resolution No. (R)13-52, authorizing the Water Utility to apply
for a loan from the Water Infrastructure Finance Authority of Arizona (WIFA) to finance Phases 2, 3 & 4 of
the Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Meter Replacement Project.

On December 18, 2013, WIFA approved their Loan Resolution 2014-003 which authorized WIFA and the
Town to enter into a loan agreement in the amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00.  The term of the loan
would be for 15 years with an expected combined interest and fee rate of 2.92%. The Town Council is
now being asked to authorize the Finance Director and Water Utility Director to take such steps as
necessary to execute and implement the loan agreement.  The WIFA loan will be repaid with water sales
revenue from the Enterprise Fund.

The Water Utility Commission and its Finance Subcommittee has been briefed on this loan.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
WIFA's interest rate index is currently 3.50%.  The Town is eligible for a subsidy rate index of 85% which
brings the interest rate down to 2.97%.  Additionally, WIFA considers meter replacement projects as
"green projects" which allows the Town to receive an additional discount, bringing the final estimated
interest rate to 2.92%.  The actual interest rate will not be determined until 3 days prior to closing. 

The Town's Bond Council has reviewed all documents for the loan agreement.  The resolution
authorizes the Finance Director, Water Utility Director and Town Clerk to execute and deliver the loan.   

The Water Utility began the Advanced Meter Infrastructure (AMI) and Meter Replacement Project in FY
2011-12 which continued through FY 2012-13.  Please note the first phase of the project was financed
with cash reserves in the Enterprise Fund.

The WIFA loan will finance the remaining 3 phases of the AMI and Meter Replacement Project as
follows: 



Phase 2 - Replacement of approximately 4,000 meters to be completed in FY 2013-14
Phase 3 - Replacement of approximately 5,600 meters to be completed in FY 2014-15
Phase 4 - Replacement of approximately 4,700 meters to be completed in FY 2015-16

FISCAL IMPACT:
The adoption of Resolution No. (R)14-03, authorizing the execution of this loan, will provide the Water
Utility the means to finance these projects and maintain an adequate cash balance over the long term.
 The loan will be for a 15-year term and will contain an anticipated interest rate of approximately  2.92%.
 The annual debt service is estimated to be $413,000 per year, which will come from revenues collected
from water sales.  This loan and annual payments are included in our 5-year projection in the recent
water rates analysis.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve or deny) Resolution No. (R)14-03, approving a loan in the amount not to exceed
$5,000,000.00 from the Water Infrastructure Finance Authority of Arizona for Oro Valley Water Utility
Phases 2, 3 & 4 of the Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Meter Replacement Project; authorizing the
execution  and delivery of Loan Agreement No. 920246-14; authorizing the taking of all other actions
necessary to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this resolution and declaring an
emergency.

Attachments
(R)14-03 WIFA Loan



SCS:kmm  2093529.2  1/3/2014

RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-03

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ORO 
VALLEY, ARIZONA, APPROVING A LOAN IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $5,000,000.00 FROM THE WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE 
AUTHORITY OF ARIZONA FOR THE ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY 
ADVANCED METERING INFRASTRUCTURE AND METER 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF LOAN AGREEMENT NO. 920246-14; AUTHORIZING THE 
TAKING OF ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE 
CONSUMMATION OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS 
RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona (the “Town” or “Local Borrower”), is a 
political subdivision of the State of Arizona vested with all associated rights, privileges and benefits 
and is entitled to the immunities and exemptions granted municipalities and political subdivisions 
under the Constitution and laws of the State of Arizona and the United States; and

WHEREAS, the Town desires to finance the advanced metering infrastructure and meter 
replacement project, as more fully described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference herein (collectively, the “Project”) through a loan between the Water Infrastructure 
Finance Authority of Arizona (“WIFA”) and the Town (the “Loan”) pursuant to Loan Agreement 
#920246-14 (the “Loan Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-511, et seq., the Town has the requisite statutory 
authority to acquire, own and maintain a water utility for the benefit of the landowners within and 
without the Town’s corporate boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Town independently and through its financing entity, the Town of Oro 
Valley Municipal Property Corporation, acquired and currently operates a potable and reclaimed 
water system for the benefit of the landowners within and without the Town’s corporate 
boundaries; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-571, the Town may obligate the revenues generated 
by its potable and reclaimed water system to repay a loan from the WIFA; and

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2013, Mayor and Council adopted Resolution 
No. (R) 13-52, authorizing the Finance Director and Water Utility Director to apply for a Drinking 
Water Revolving Fund Loan from the WIFA for the Project; and

WHEREAS, on December 18, 2013, the Board of Directors of the WIFA approved Loan 
Resolution 2014-003, authorizing WIFA and the Town to enter into a Loan Agreement in the 
amount of not to exceed $5,000,000.00 for the Project; and

WHEREAS, it is in the Town’s best interest to approve the Loan Agreement for 
installation of the Project.



SCS:kmm  2093529.2  1/3/2014

2

WHEREAS, the Clerk has presented to the Town Council at this meeting the proposed 
form of the Loan Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor And Council of the Town of Oro 
Valley, Arizona, that:

Section 1. Public Purpose.  It is hereby determined that the Project serves the 
public needs of the Town.  It is hereby found and determined that the financing of the Project 
pursuant to the terms of the Loan Agreement is in the best interest of and in furtherance of the 
purposes of the Town and its residents and in the public interest.

Section 2. Approval of Loan Agreement.  The Town hereby approves the 
execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement for the Loan.  The Loan will be in the principal 
amount of not to exceed $5,000,000.00 and shall bear interest at a rate of not to exceed 4.2 percent 
(4.2%) per annum from the date provided in the Loan Agreement.  The principal amount of the 
Loan shall be due and payable in installments on July 1 in such years as set forth in the Loan 
Agreement, commencing no earlier than 2014 and maturing no later than 2029, and in the amounts 
per year as shall be set forth in the final form of the Loan Agreement.  Interest shall be payable on 
January 1 and July 1 of each year commencing no earlier than July 1, 2014.

The forms, terms, interest rates, payment dates, payment amounts, provisions for 
prepayment and other provisions of the Loan Agreement shall be as set forth therein.

Section 3. Execution of Loan Agreement.  The Finance Director is authorized 
to approve the final principal amount of the Loan, interest rates, payment dates and amounts, and 
prepayment provisions, and cause the same to be set forth in the Loan Agreement.  The form, 
terms and provisions of the Loan Agreement (including the exhibits thereto) presented at this 
meeting are hereby approved, with such final provisions, insertions, deletions and changes as shall 
be approved by the officer executing such documents on behalf of the Town, the execution of each 
such document being conclusive evidence of such approval.  The Finance Director or Water 
Utility Director and the Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Loan 
Agreement.  

Section 4. Request WIFA Actions.  The Town hereby requests WIFA to take 
any and all action necessary in connection with the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement 
and the making of the Loan to the Town thereunder.

Section 5. Security and Source of Payment.  As further described in the Loan 
Agreement and Exhibit D Source of Repayment, which is attached to and made a part of the Loan 
Agreement, the Town hereby pledges to the payment of all amounts to come due under the Loan 
Agreement, and subject to the limitations described in the Loan Agreement, the Net Revenues as 
defined below:

“Net Revenues” means all income, monies and receipts derived by the Local 
Borrower from the ownership, through the Town of Oro Valley Municipal Property Corporation, 
use or operation of the System, or any part thereof, including without limitation interest received 
on, and profits realized from, the sale of investments made with monies of the System less all 
Operating Expenses; further, the term Net Revenues shall not include: (i) nonrecurring revenues, 



SCS:kmm  2093529.2  1/3/2014

3

such as grants and gifts; (ii) interest received on any investments placed irrevocably in trust to pay, 
or provide for the payment of, Senior Obligations, Additional Obligations, or the Lease-Purchase 
Agreement; (iii) amounts received which the Town is now or at the time of receipt contractually 
required to pay out as reimbursement for construction or installation of water lines or other water 
facilities included, or to be included, in the System; and (iv) development impact fees.

For purposes of defining Net Revenues, the following shall have the meanings set 
forth below:

“Additional Obligations” means any additional obligations having a lien payable 
from Net Revenues of the System on a parity with the Outstanding Parity Obligations and the 
Loan Agreement which may hereafter be issued by the Local Borrower (or any financing conduit 
on behalf of the Local Borrower).

“Lease-Purchase Agreement” means the Lease-Purchase Agreement, dated as of 
April 1, 1996, as amended by that certain First Amendment to Lease-Purchase Agreement dated as 
of June 1, 1999, as amended by that certain Second Amendment to Lease-Purchase Agreement 
dated as of April 1, 2001, as amended by that certain Third Amendment to Lease-Purchase 
Agreement dated as of December 1, 2003, as amended by that certain Fourth Amendment to 
Lease-Purchase Agreement dated as of April 1, 2007 by and between the Town of Oro Valley 
Municipal Property Corporation, as lessor, the Town, as lessee, to finance the acquisition of the 
System and to operate the System.  Rental payments due under the Lease-Purchase Agreement are 
payable from Net Revenues; provided, however, payment of such payments from Net Revenues 
are subject to annual appropriation and inclusion in the budget by the Local Borrower.  Further, to 
the extent Net Revenues are insufficient or not appropriated and included in the Local Borrower’s
budget, payment of rental payments and other payments due under the Lease-Purchase Agreement
are to be paid from Excise Taxes.  As of the date of the Loan Agreement, the outstanding bonds 
that are secured by a proportionate interest in the Lease-Purchase Agreement and the rental 
payments and prepayments made by the Local Borrower under the Lease-Purchase Agreement 
include:

a. $4,930,000 aggregate principal amount of Town of Oro Valley Municipal 
Property Corporation, Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1999;

b. $9,010,000 aggregate principal amount of Town of Oro Valley Municipal 
Property Corporation, Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001; and

c. $17,810,000 aggregate principal amount of Town of Oro Valley Municipal 
Property Corporation, Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007.

“Operating Expenses” means any annual premium and fees of any issuer of a 
qualified surety obligation, fees payable to the trustee and paying agent or registrar for the Senior 
Obligations and the reasonable and necessary costs of operation, maintenance, and repair of the 
System, but shall exclude depreciation, payments into the obligation retirement and reserve funds 
established for the Outstanding Parity Obligations and the Loan.



SCS:kmm  2093529.2  1/3/2014

4

“Outstanding Parity Obligations” means the Senior Obligations issued and 
outstanding that have a lien payable from Net Revenues of the System on a parity with the Loan.
As of the date of the Loan Agreement, Outstanding Parity Obligations shall mean:

a. $6,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Water Infrastructure Finance 
Authority of Arizona Loan #910093-08 dated August 17, 2007; 

b. $3,403,000 aggregate principal amount of the Water Infrastructure Finance 
Authority of Arizona Loan #920176-10 dated October 23, 2009; and 

c. $16,595,000 aggregate principal amount of Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, Senior 
Lien Water Project Refunding Obligations, Series 2012.

“Senior Obligations” or “Senior Lien Obligations” means any bond or obligation 
now or hereafter outstanding payable from Net Revenues which enjoy a prior and paramount 
claim on Net Revenues to that of the Lease-Purchase Agreement.

“System” means and includes all of the properties and facilities of the complete 
potable and reclaimed water system of the Local Borrower, whether lying within or without the 
boundaries of the Local Borrower, as now existing and as they may hereafter be improved or 
extended, all improvements, additions and extensions thereto or replacements thereof hereafter 
constructed or acquired by purchase, contract or otherwise and all contracts, rights, agreements, 
leases and franchises of every nature owned by the Local Borrower, independently or through the 
Town of Oro Valley Municipal Property Corporation, and used or useful or held for use in the 
operation of said potable and reclaimed system or any part or portion thereof.

The Town’s obligation to make payments under the Loan Agreement does not 
constitute an obligation of the Town or the State of Arizona, or any of its political subdivisions, 
for which the Town or the State of Arizona, or any of its political subdivisions, is obligated to levy 
or pledge any form of ad valorem property taxation, nor does the obligation to make payments 
under the Loan Agreement constitute an indebtedness of the Town or of the State of Arizona of 
any of its political subdivisions within the meaning of the Constitution of the State of Arizona or 
otherwise.

Section 6. Resolution Irrepealable.  After the proceeds of the Loan are
advanced to the Town, this Resolution shall be and remain irrepealable until the principal, interest 
and premium, if any, thereon shall have been fully paid, cancelled and discharged.

Section 7. Execution of Documents and Authorizing and Ratifying Actions.  
Mayor, Town Manager, Town Attorney, Town Clerk, Water Utility Director and Finance Director 
on behalf of the Town are authorized and directed, without further order of the Mayor and 
Council, to execute and deliver any and all documents, certificates, proceedings, agreements and 
instruments and to do and cause to be done any and all acts necessary or proper to carry out the 
transactions contemplated this Resolution and by the Loan Agreement, including, but not limited 
to, executing a certificate that the information concerning the Town and the Loan Agreement in 
the official statement for the WIFA bonds, if any, does not contain an untrue statement of a 
material fact or fail to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the 
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, a 



SCS:kmm  2093529.2  1/3/2014

5

continuing disclosure undertaking of the Town meeting the requirements of Security and 
Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 (the “Disclosure Rule”) and a statement as to whether the 
Town has failed to provide the information requirement under the Disclosure Rule, a certificate 
regarding the Town’s reasonable expectations that the Town’s use of the proceeds of the WIFA 
bonds will remain Tax-Exempt Obligations as defined in the Loan Agreement.  All actions taken 
by officials and agents of the Town which are in conformity with the purposes and intent of this 
Resolution and in furtherance of the Loan Agreement whether heretofore or hereafter taken shall 
be and are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

Section 8. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or phrase of this 
Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or phrase shall not affect any of the remaining 
provisions of this Resolution.

Section 9. Waiver of Inconsistency.  All orders, resolutions and ordinances or 
parts thereof inconsistent herewith are hereby waived to the extent only of such inconsistency.  
This waiver shall not be construed as reviving any order, resolution or ordinance or any part 
thereof.

Section 10. Immediate Effect and Emergency.  The Town has determined that 
WIFA funding is time sensitive and the Loan closing will occur within thirty days, therefore, the 
immediate operation of the provisions of this Resolution is necessary for the preservation of the 
public peace, health and safety and an emergency is hereby declared to exist and this Resolution 
will be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the Mayor and Council and it is hereby 
excepted from the referendum provisions of the Constitution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona, this 15th day of January, 2014.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



SCS:kmm  2093529.2  1/3/2014

6

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK

I, Julie K. Bower, the duly appointed and acting Clerk of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing Resolution No. (R)14-03 was duly passed 
by the Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on January 
15, 2014, and the vote was ____ aye’s and ___ nay’s and that the Mayor and ___ Council 
Members were present thereat.

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk



SCS:kmm  2093529.2  1/3/2014

A-1

EXHIBIT A

Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Meter Replacement Project:

The project consists of replacing aging water meters with new technology electronic water meters.  
Electronic transceivers, also known as smartpoints, will be installed inside the meter box and 
attached to the water meters.  The smartpoints will send and receive radio frequency signals from 
two antennas located in the Town.  This equipment will allow Utility personnel to read the meters 
from the Utility office.  The project consists of 4 phases.  Phase 1 was completed prior to FY 13-
14 and is not included in this project.  The remaining phases are as shown below:

 Phase 2    Replacement of approximately 4,000 meters to be completed in FY 13-14

 Phase 3    Replacement of approximately 5,600 meters to be completed in FY 14-15

 Phase 4    Replacement of approximately 4,700 meters to be completed in FY 15-16



Town Council Regular Session Item #   I.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: David Laws
Submitted By: David Laws, Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)14-04, authorizing and approving an easement agreement between the Town of Oro
Valley and the Oro Valley Country Club Inc.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This easement agreement will allow the Oro Valley Country Club to construct, maintain, and operate a
private force main crossing under Greenock Drive which is a Town owned right-of-way. The force main's
purpose is to allow the Oro Valley Country Club to connect into an existing gravity fed public sewer main
which is owned, operated and maintained by the Pima County Regional Wastewater Reclamation
Department.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
The Oro Valley Country Club is currently serviced by two on-site private septic systems that serve
several buildings. The Country Club has proposed a sewer design to eliminate the use of one of the
on-site septic systems which serves the existing clubhouse and fitness buildings. The design
incorporates a private force main which is required to achieve the proper elevation to connect into the
public sewer main located uphill from the Country Club.

An easement is required for the Country Club to construct, operate, and maintain the portion of the
private line which will pass under the Greenock Drive right-of-way (see Attachment 2 for location) in
order to connect to the public main located within an easement on the opposite side. The portion of the
private line passing through the Greenock Drive right-of-way will be encased in a larger protective steel
pipe. In addition, the alignment will be identified with above ground markers in order to minimize any
impacts to Greenock Drive. The public sewer main is owned, operated and maintained by the Pima
County Regional Wastewater Reclamation Department and requires their separate approval for
connection and discharge authorization. The easement agreement is included as Attachment 1.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve or deny) Resolution No. (R)14-04, authorizing and approving an easement
agreement between the Town of Oro Valley and the Oro Valley Country Club Inc.



Attachments
(R)14-04 Easement Agreement - OVCC Inc.
Attachment 1 - Easement Agreement
Attachment 2 - Location Map



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@9804C3B7\@BCL@9804C3B7.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/080410

RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING AN EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY AND THE ORO VALLEY COUNTRY 
CLUB, INC.

WHEREAS, the Town owns the land more specifically described at the Greenock Right 
of Way located on a portion of Greenock Drive of Valle Del Oro Townhomes; and 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to grant an easement for limited purpose as described in 
Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, for the installation 
of a Force Main; and

WHEREAS, the easement agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” is for the Oro 
Valley Country Club, Inc., to construct, operate, and maintain a private force main 
crossing under Greenock Drive.

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Town to grant the easement agreement to the 
Oro Valley County Club, Inc., for the Greenock Right of Way to install and maintain a 
Force Main. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Oro Valley that the Easement Agreement between the Town of Oro Valley and The Oro 
Valley Country Club, Inc., attached hereto as Exhibit “B”
and incorporated herein by this reference, is hereby authorized and approved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona this 15th day of January, 2014.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@9804C3B7\@BCL@9804C3B7.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/080410

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk                       Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@9804C3B7\@BCL@9804C3B7.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/080410

EXHIBIT “A’



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@9804C3B7\@BCL@9804C3B7.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/080410

EXHIBIT “B”



EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT is made between the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, a 
municipal corporation ("Grantor") and the Oro Valley Country Club Inc. ("Grantees"), collectively ("the 
parties"). The parties agree as follows: 

WHEREAS, The Grantor is the owner of the land more specifically described as the Greenock 
Right-of-Way located on a portion of Greenock Drive of Valle Del Oro Town homes in Oro Valley, 
Arizona. 

WHEREAS, The Grantees land is adjacent to the Greenock Right-of-Way which is owned by the 
Grantor. Grantees have requested an easement to use the property of the Grantor for the limited purpose 
as described in Exhibit "A" to install a Force Main. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following and the mutual conditions set forth in 
this Agreement, Grantor does hereby grant an Easement and privilege to the Grantees subject to the 
conditions set forth in this Easement Agreement, to enter upon the above described land of the Grantor, as 
described and depicted in Exhibit "B" subject to the following conditions. 

Conditions: 

1. This Easement is granted for the purpose as provided in Exhibit "A" and as described in Exhibit 
"B". 

2. The Grantees shall only be permitted to use the subject property for the purpose as described in 
Exhibit "A". All modifications and/or alterations to the property shall be the sole cost and 
expense of the Grantees. 

3. Hours for construction and noise procedures for construction of the force main and for 
construction at the Grantee's property shall be followed in accordance with Oro Valley Town 
Code, Section 1 0-1-4. 

4. The Grantee's responsibility shall be limited to damage caused by the Grantee's agents, employees 
or assigns and only for damage resulting from the actions or negligence of the same. 



5. Grantee shall repair and restore the Premises to a like and equivalent condition as existed prior to 
the construction activity and shall be responsible for any damage, claims or loss occurring on the 
property during the term of this easement caused by Grantee's negligent use of the property or by 
negligent acts or conduct of its employees, agents, contractors or assigns. 

6. For any scheduled construction on the easement, Grantee will provide a minimum of thirty (30) 
days notice to the Grantor. Emergency repairs shall not require advanced notice of any kind, 
however, Grantee shall notify Grantor within 24 hours of any emergency repair activities. 

7. The Grantee shall construct the Force Main in accordance with applicable federal, state and local 
laws, Town code and regulations and obtain any permits as may be required. All permits obtained 
shall be at Grantee's expense and any Town of Oro Valley Property Taxes shall not apply to 
Grantor's land contained within the easement as described in Exhibit "8" as long as the 
Agreement is in effect 

8. Nothing contained in this Easement Agreement shall be construed as granting title to the subject 
land owned by the Grantor. 

9. Grantees shall abide by all applicable federal, state and local ordinances, statues and regulations. 

10. Approval of this Easement Agreement is subject to compliance with all conditions and provisions 
of approved plans and specifications. 

11. The Grantor warrants that he holds good title to the burdened land, and thereby have the authority 
and right sign this Easement Agreement. 

12. All easements and rights described in this Easement Agreement are easements and rights running 
with the land, perpetually in force and effect, and at all times shall inure to the benefit of, and are 
binding on, the Grantee and the Grantor, their successors and assigns, respectively. 

13. Grantees shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Grantor, its officers, employees and 
agents from and against any and all suits, actions, legal or administrative proceedings, claims 
demands or damages of any kind or nature arising out of this Easement, which are attributed to 
any act or omission of the Grantees, their agents, employees, or anyone acting under their 
direction, control or on their behalf, whether intentional or negligent in connection with or incident 
to this Easement. 

14. Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be served by certified mail upon the other party. When served by certified mail service shall 
be conclusively deemed made five (5) days after posting thereof in the United States mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed to the party to whom such notice is to be given as hereinafter provided. 

IF TO THE GRANTOR: 

Oro Valley Country Club Inc. 

2 



IF TO THE GRANTEE: 

Director of Development Infrastructure Services 
Town of Oro Valley 
11000 N. La Canada Drive 
Oro Valley, Arizona 85737 

Legal Services Director 
Town of Oro Valley 
11000 N. La Canada Drive 
Oro Valley, Arizona 85737 

. Or to such other respective addresses as either party may from time to time designate in writing. 

15. This Agreement is subject to A.R.S. § 38-511 which provides for cancellation of contracts by the 
Grantor for certain conflicts of interest. 

16. This is the entire Agreement between the Parties. If any portion(s) of this Agreement is (are) later 
found to be invalid or unenforceable, such portion(s) shall be null and void and without any effect 
on the rest of the Agreement which shall continue in full force and effect. 

17. Upon execution by the Parties, Grantee shall have the Agreement recorded in the Office of the 
Pima County Recorder. 

18. In the event Grantee discontinues use of the easement for the purposes described in Exhibit "A" 
Grantee's easement rights as described in Exhibit "B: shall become null and void. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Easement Agreement as of this _ 
_ day of ,20_. 

GRANTEE 

Date: ___________ _ 

State of Arizona ) 
) ss. 

County of Pima ) 

3 



On this _ day of ,20_, before me personally appeared _________ _ 
whose identity was proven to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person who he or she 
claims to be, and acknowledged that he or she signed the above/attached document. 

Notary Public 

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY 

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director 

Date:. __________ _ Date: __________ _ 

4 



EXHIBIT" A" 

PURPOSE OF USE 

An easement to use the property of the Town (Grantor) as described in Exhibit "8" for the limited 
purpose of construction, installation, maintenance, and repair of an underground force main and 
associated protective casing pipe and above ground identification monuments to serve the Oro Valley 
Country Club Inc. (Grantee). 



'" 

EXHmIT "B" 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

C:\Users\dlaws\Documcnta\Jobs\OV Count/y Cub\ElJsomunl AgnlCllTlunl20130102.doc 



Tn.~ 
~OUQ 

IroC. 

October 10. 2013 
WLB No. 104025-A-007-1003X 

W:\LEGALS\104025A\Sewer Easement_5.doc 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
VALLE DEL ORO TOWNHOMES 
PRIVATE SEWER EASEMENT 

A portion of Greenock Drive of Valle Del Oro Townhomes. a sub-division of record in the 
office of the Pima County. Arizona Recorder. in Book 36 of Maps and Plats at Page 25. lying 
within Section 13. Township 12 South. Range 13 East, Gila and Salt River Meridian. Pima 
County. Arizona. said portion being more particularly described as follows; 

COMMENCING at the centerline intersection of Greenock Drive and Valle Del Oro 
Road as shown on said plat; 

THENCE N 00°04'00" E along the centerline of said Greenock Drive a distance of 
138.06 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE N 89°56'00" W a distance of 30.00 feet to a point on the Westerly right .. of .. 
way line of said Greenock Drive; 

THENCE N 00°04'00" E along said Westerly right-of-way line. a distance of 20.00 
feet; 

THENCE S 89°56'00" E a distance of 60.00 feet to a point on the Easterly right-ot
way line of said Greenock Drive; 

THENCE S 00°04'00" W along said Easterly right-of-way line, a distance of 
20.00feet; 

THENCE N 89°56'OO"W a distance of 30.00 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

Prepared by: 
THE WLB GROUP, INC. 

Robert L. Larson. RLS 
.RLL: rll 

Containing 1,200 square feet. 

Page 1 of 1 



\ 

\ 
" \ 

\ 

\ , 
" \ 

" , 

, 
/" , , 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

/ 

\ 

, , 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\\ BLOCK 9 
" 

\0 
\ 

-----
~ 
~ c 

.. ~lC) 

~~C\l 
~~~ 
~~C,,') 
~ ~ 
~c::)'· 

;J.1';;-::;' ,:;:;:;--~/;;:;::. _;:_:::::::::::- __ = __0____ roc -e- - -

1~ -----

EXHIBIT TO ACCOMPANY DESCRIPTION OF 
PRIVATE SEWER EASEMENT 

;y ~~ .. ::::~~ 
'::.'.~:: ,,;~~, .. :~::'- . ... ~·ft'~·,~· .. ,:rt~2r~ 

WITHIN 
GREENOCK DRIVE 

. 1 u=1 00' 

~~~pJllI ,8 I ~ 
VALLE DEL ORO TOWNHOMES 

BOOK 36 MAPS AND PLATS PAGE 25 
SECTION 13, T. 12 S., R. 13 E., G.S.R.M., 

WLB# project No. 104025-A-007-1003X PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
N:\ 1 04025\Exhibit\Sewer Easement_5.DWG 

'-_0.,.- '. ... ..... -..". " ... ___ ..... , " .. '---- -,-....... , .. ..--..:.... .._- ... , ..•.. _--_._. • __ ~4 ...... _ ,_ ••• , ... _ ....... _ •••••• __ 



 

 

           

 

 

 

 

  

LOCATION MAP 
GREENOCK DRIVE EASEMENT 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                               Attachment 1 



Town Council Regular Session Item #   1.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Submitted By: Julie Bower, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF VICE MAYOR

RECOMMENDATION:
The Mayor and Council are required to elect a Vice Mayor for 2014.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Section 2-1-4 of the Oro Valley Town Code states that "At the first regular meeting in December of each
calendar year, the Town Council shall elect one of its members as Vice Mayor by a majority vote."  This
item was inadvertently left off the December 4, 2013, agenda and therefore, is being heard at the first
meeting in January.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Mayor Hiremath will open and close nominations.  All Councilmembers are eligible for consideration.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to elect ______________ as Vice Mayor for 2014.



Town Council Regular Session Item #   2.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Julie Bower Submitted By: Mike Standish, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
PUBLIC HEARING - DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING AN APPLICATION FOR A
SERIES 7 (BEER & WINE BAR) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR QUALITY INN & SUITES LOCATED AT 7411
N ORACLE ROAD

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this liquor license to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and
Control for the following reasons:

1.  No protests to this license have been received.

2.  The necessary background investigation was conducted by the Police Department.

3.  The Police Department has no objections to the approval of the Series 7 Liquor License.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
An application for a Series 7 (Beer & Wine Bar) Liquor License has been submitted by Kevin Kramber for
Quality Inn & Suites located at 7411 N. Oracle Road.  Owner/Agent Kevin Kramber purchased license
#07107001 from Owner/Agent Andrea Lewkowitz of Cost Plus World Market located at 4821 N. Stone
Ave., Tucson, AZ 85704 and is requesting a Person and Location Transfer of the license.

Owner/Agent Kevin Kramber has submitted all necessary paperwork to the Town of Oro Valley and the
Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. Mr. Kramber has paid all related fees associated
with applying for the liquor license ($500 Application Processing Fee).

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
The Series 7 Liquor License is transferable from person-to-person and/or location-to-location within the
same county and allows the holder both on-premise and off-premise, retail sale privileges.  This license
allows a beer and wine bar retailer to sell and serve beer and wine (no other spirituous liquors), primarily
by individual portions, to be consumed on the premises and in the original container for consumption on
or off the premises.  A retailer with off-sale ("To Go") privileges may also deliver spirituous liquor off of the
licensed premises in connection with a retail sale as long as payment is made no later than the time of
delivery.  A.R.S. 4-206.01.F. states that after January 1, 2011, the off-sale privileges associated with a
bar license shall be limited to no more than 30% of the total annual sales receipts of liquor by the
licensee at that location.  Off-sale ("To Go") package sales can be made on the premises as long as the
area of off-sale operation does not utilize a separate entrance and exit from the one provided for the
bar. 

In accordance with Section 4-201 of the Arizona Revised Statutes, the application was posted for 20



days on the premises of the applicant's property, ending December 6, 2013.  No protests were received
during this time period.

Police Chief Daniel Sharp completed a standard background check on the Quality Inn & Suites and
Owner/Agent Kevin Kramber, and has no objection to the approval of the Series 7 (Beer & Wine
Bar) license.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Per Ordinance No. (O)11-16, the Town of Oro Valley charges a $500 liquor license application
processing fee to cover the costs incurred by the Town to process the application.

Per Section 8-2-6 Schedule of the Oro Valley Town Code, persons licensed by the State of Arizona to
deal in spirituous liquor within the town shall pay an annual license fee of $80.00 to the town.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (recommend / deny) approval of the issuance of a Series 7 Liquor License to the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for Kevin Kramber and principals of Quality Inn & Suites
located at 7411 N. Oracle Road.

Attachments
Quality Inn & Suites Liquor License - Series 7



DANIEL G. SHARP 
C HIEF O F PO LI C E 

TO: Mike Standish Deputy Town Clerk 

FROM: ~Daniel G. Sharp 

DATE: 18 November 2013 

RE: Background Investigation , Application for Liquor License 
Kevin Kramber Owner / Agent 
Quality Inn & Suites 
74 11 N. Oracle Road 

On 18 November, 20 10, the Oro Valley Police Department completed the 
standard background check on Kevin Kramber Owner / Agent of Quality Inn & Suites. 

The Oro Valley Police Department has no objections to the issuing ofa liquor license 
to Kevin Kramber of Quality hm & Suites. 

11000 N. La Canada Drive • Oro Valley, AZ 85737 
Phone 520-229-4900 • Fax 520-229-4979 • www.ovpd.org 



HOU i3'13PI1 J:!?£J,~ 

Arizona Dep~~tt~nt of LiqU~L,is~'~;ses and Control 
, 8QOW~5t,~a5hingtofli:;;:th f loor , ," '.~., '-"'.' '-, -', -'., .,~ ,.,," .. ~'.-.,.-. -," '" ; 

f ,i;!::J'~gef!;,:er.j~p'pt§5iOQ~ , 

"j lJJi~~~~I~J~~~;[:~~~2!\ \.,' 
/'.,APPLlCATiONFORUQUOR [)CENSE 

::" ...... ,·'·~~~~:~;~·:f.:~~¥f~?; ·~~~~~?!l:ER:IN:r~~!t!~~·K ··I~.~J::.;·~_::'~<~-·~;·;'; .. .'.':'.".~.:~. 
Notice: Effective Nov. 1, 1997, 'All Owners; Agents. Partner:s;StO'ckholdersr Officers, or. Managers _actively involved in the day to day operations of 
the business must attend a Depa~~~taep'r~y~d liquoi:i~ ~~f.1~g:;?~~,~j)r~Yiqe ·p.roof of at1;en~~.~;e.-wit .. hin the last five years. See page 5 of 
the Liquor licensing requirements.\\ 'I:;r~'~: {?f~?~:::.f!" ~.~ -···· .. ·~~\::.·~S:L; .. ::.'.~ .. : '\\1::"; ~1 I; .. ::~::;?,.> ... !' /r"' 

~E~J!~~H~NT~i~:ij~~~t~o;,~r~t;t : :;~~ ~, \i~:~'7~~~~i;')iJ 1~~I:CTI?N:2fType of ownership: 

o INTERIM PERMIT Complete S~cri,?~, 5 'jp ""';~' ~ 'co,-:>;;,,,; [] JTVY,R?S, Complete Section 6 
o NEW LICENSE Complete SectlonS,2, 3,4, 13, 14;,15,1,6 /" ,e" ,; 0 INDIVIDUAL Complete SectJOn 6 

.-SPERSON TRANSFE': (Bars & Liqy9r~~re~9~"~tP'I"r:~t -)..::,:'_c,~ 0 PI\~rNERSHIP Complete Section 6 
_ Complete SectIons 2, 3,1, rtl~!'~~'1.~,:'1}~,:li:,'':;':';:';:,::;;,,>'r,:,, l;:tC;().~PO,~TION Complete Section 7 , 

BLOCATION TRANSFER (Bars and LlquorSfor(ls,gNLY),'; l\,' !, 'e,\" ~~IMITED LIABILITY CO, Complete SectIOn 7 
Complete Sections 2, 3;4/h}13) 1 5.~'1 1i~',;;:,,, "',; '.,J: 'I ',.:;'''',_; d~CLUB , C;'niplete Section 8 

o PROBATENVILL ASSIGNMENT/DiVoRCE bEGR!;E ;";~;"~/",. 0 GOVERNrv)ENT Complete Section 10 
Complete Sections 2, 3;'4,''9;''13:' 16 (fe'i;;n6t[equ;~edt:, :':, IJ TRUST Co;:;'plete Section 6 

o GOVERNMENT Complete Sections 2, 3, 4, 10, -13, (t'5, ;:(6,:~>:f"" 0 OTHER (Explain) __________ _ 

SEcTiON3T;;0;;e':;a~ee:-L~N~;~);"';;-f-:j::\- - - -::: -z; - _. 
1, Type of License(s): ~ ~ - 3~"- l., v-, ~ -: \ <' I Departmenl Use Only ! 

t-> / J..- 2, Total fees attached: . $ " 
APPLICA TlON FEE AND INTERIM PERMIT FEES (IF APPLICABLE) ARE NOT REFUNDABLE L.l 

The fees allowed under A,RS, 44-6852 will be charged for all dishonored checks ~ - -- -- - - - - -- -- - - - - -- -- - - - - .. ~ 
SECTION 4 Applicant 9 0J Q ~l 
1, Owner/Agent's Nam?o,:~, ___ "~"",---",J>.=-A,-.r.-._-=';O:..:,2V"J-=---____ -"~",,,,,--,c:.C'--=-.:,:::~=---\__,__\,-D_l\_~'Q ___ ..:A.-_'-----_J'-~=-?2--),'-----'--~. 
(Insert one name ONLY to appear on license) Last Firsh I IlC:-J I-} A n Mid81e l 
2 C /P rt h' /LLC C-"IS :52':;"v":LV~c..l_c..... " Ll....C- 0 l/J. U' 0<. .... k , orp, a ners Ip , , ,:_--,~==,,--=::==-.'-'===,-,-,.,-=:,-:c-,-=-~_=---,c..::.--=-_c..::,---,-______ ---,T'''' 

(Exactly as it appears on Artides of Inc. or Artides of Org.) !~. 

3. Business Name: Q ..... A\.--\.. ,'-::" t t..o '-' 

(Exactly as it appears 0 the exterior of premises) 

4, Principal Street Location _"f,-,4-_l:..;'---'''-'::....=-" -=c:..:,:..r>-.::. .... '-'-'c=-~=-='ii.'--\L_~"9'--.:.. __ -'., ...;:"=--='-",';:.:-:c;' v=-____ ~_,:..~__'__-:.."''--_..:'S=-'5_fc'''''':::+-'--_ 
(Do not use PO Box Number) City County Zip 

5, BUSiness Phone (5:>0) 5,,5 ' 9 '2-55 DaytIme Phone Us"c,> 2.35 - '3'<->61- Ema Il : c::\Z,,,,, ,-eA."'J3~,"", . 

~ . ~~~::~~:~::~oc~e~ :ith; t~e :c:~~~ed~m~: ~~e :;o:~ clty~::c- ~YE~O SS ~.; (-<>~, 
8, Price paid for license on ly bar, beer and ~~e, or liquor store: TypeS';:! $' 'l- :~oo . ",0 Type '" /.... $ "" ) A. 

Fees: o1ao· 
Application Interim Permit 

DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

Site Inspection Finger Prints $ ---=cc-==cf2-,--:c9~f).,'--. t3"",0"-,-,-_ 
TOTAL OF ALL FEES 

Is Arizona Statement of Cilizenship & Al ien Status For State Benefits complete? J YES 0 NO 

Accepted by:--4ff1L.:... __ (L==:: ____ Date: I ( I '7/ ~ t?!.3 Lic. # _-"O,---7..LJ-1l/-j -+7-v-OILO 1--1 __ 

1nf201l ' Disabled individuals requiring special accommodation , please call (602) 542-9027, 

1 



BEER & WINE BAR (SERIES 7) 

The beer and wine bar (series 7) liquor license is a "quota" license 

available only through the Liquor License Lottery or for purchase on the 

open market. Once issued, this liquor license is transferable from person 

to person and/or location to location within the same county and allows the 

holder both on- & off-sale retail privileges. This license allows a beer and 

wine bar retailer to sell and serve beer and wine (no other spirituous 

liquors), primarily by individual portions, to be consumed on the premises 

and in the original container for consumption on or off the premises. A 

retailer with off-sale ("To Go") privileges may deliver spirituous liquor off of 

the licensed premises in connection with a retail sale . A.R.S. 4-206.01.F. 

states that after January 1, 2011, the off-sale privileges associated with a 

bar license shall be limited to no more than 30% of the total annual sales 

receipts of liquor by the licensee at that location. Off-sale ("To Go") 

package sales can be made on the bar premises as long as the area of 

off-sale operation does not utilize a separate entrance and exit from the 

one provided for the bar. Payment must be made no later than the time of 

delivery. 



Town Council Regular Session Item #   3.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Julie Bower Submitted By: Mike Standish, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
PUBLIC HEARING - DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING AN APPLICATION FOR A
SERIES 9S (LIQUOR STORE W/SAMPLING PRIVILEGES) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR FRY'S FOOD &
DRUG #18 LOCATED AT 10661 N ORACLE ROAD AND FRY'S FOOD & DRUG #117 LOCATED AT
10450 N LA CANADA DRIVE

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the liquor license applications to the Arizona Department of Liquor
Licenses and Control for the following reasons:

1.  No protests have been received for either location.

2.  The necessary background investigations were conducted by the Police Department.

3.  The Police Department has no objection to the approval of the Series 9S Liquor License requests for
either location.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Three applications for a Series 9S (Liquor Store W/Sampling Privileges) Liquor License have been
submitted by Robert Nelson for Fry's Food & Drug #18 located 10661 N. Oracle Road (Active License
#09100008 & Inactive License #09100112) and for Fry's Food & Drug #117 located at 10450 N La
Canada Drive (Active License #09100012).  These three requests consist of adding sampling privileges
to existing Series 9 licenses.

Agent Robert Nelson has submitted all necessary paperwork to the Town of Oro Valley and the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. Mr. Nelson has paid all related fees associated with
applying for the liquor licenses ($500 Application Processing Fee per application).

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
The liquor store (series 9) license is a "quota" license available only through the Liquor License Lottery or
for purchase on the open market. Once issued, this liquor license is transferable from person to person
and/or location to location within the same county and allows a spirituous liquor store retailer to sell all
types of spirituous liquors, only in the original unbroken package, to be taken away from the premises of
the retailer and consumed off the premises. A retailer with off-sale privileges may deliver spirituous liquor
off of the licensed premises in connection with a retail sale. Payment must be made no later than the time
of delivery. Series 9 (liquor store) licensees and applicants may apply for unlimited sampling privileges
by completing the Sampling Privileges form. Internet sale of liquor is not permitted in the state of Arizona.
Liquor must be delivered to an Arizona liquor-licensed wholesaler, then an Arizona liquor-licensed retailer
prior to delivery to the consumer.



In accordance with Section 4-201 of the Arizona Revised Statutes, the application was posted for 20
days on the premises of the applicant's properties, ending December 18, 2013. No protests were
received during this time period.

Police Chief Daniel Sharp completed a standard background check on Fry's Food & Drug #18 located at
10661 N. Oracle Road and Fry's Food & Drug #117 located at 10450 N. La Canada Drive and Agent
Robert Nelson and has no objection to the approval of either of the Series 9S (Liquor Store W/Sampling
Privileges) licenses.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Per Ordinance No. (O)11-16, The Town of Oro Valley charges a $500 liquor license application
processing fee to cover the costs incurred by the Town to process the application.

Per Section 8-2-6 Schedule of the Oro Valley Town Code, persons licensed by the State of Arizona to
deal in spirituous liquor within the Town shall pay an annual license fee of $80.00 to the Town.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (recommend / deny) approval of the issuance of a Series 9S Liquor License to the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for Robert Nelson and principals for Fry's Food & Drug #18
located at 10661 N. Oracle Road, license #'s 09100008 and 09100112 and Fry's Food & Drug #117
located at 10450 N. La Canada Drive, license #09100012.

Attachments
Fry's Food & Drug Series 9S Liquor Licenses



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Mike Standish 

DANI EL G. SHARP 
C HIEF OF POLICE 

Daniel G. Sharp O/e., -C ~ 4 ) Ck __ + S'h", ~ 
December II , 2013 

Background Investigation, Application for Liquor Store 
Sampling Privileges 
Fry's Food & Drug 1066 1 N. Oracle Rd 
Fry's Food & Drug 10450 N. LaCanada 
Oro Valley AZ 

On December 11 , 2013 the Oro Valley Police Department completed the standard 
background check on Fry' s Food & Drug. The purpose for this was the addition of 
Sampling Privileges. 

The Oro Valley Police Department has no objection for the issuance ofa liquor Store 
Sampling Privileges license. 

11000 N. La Canada Drive • Oro Valley, AZ 85737 
Phone 520-229-4900 • Fax 520-229-4979 • www.ovpd.org 



/ 
, S!<lteof Arizona 

Department o(LiqUOF licenses and Control 
",., - .- , 

. 806'\'''.w~s~,~~t6~ ~fu: ;i~r> . 
. Phoenix,--Arizona 85007 

" · .(602) 542,5141 .· / 
::(~,'. -.?" .. .• :::~~:~,/,),:. ,":~ \, 

State/ Local Gcive'rhlt1eQt~oljting Sheet 
Add Sa m pi ing · F'rivii~ges To Active 

Liquor Store (series 9) or Beeri3[l~Wine St:ore (series 10) License , 

r£) Liquor Store (series 9) 
[5 Beer and Wine Store (series 10) 

The attached form for sampling must be processed within1 05 days from this date: 

Date Application Received at DLLC: _J.JII-4I-,-1 O"Y~=-' 3-=-_______ ~ ___ _ 

Date of GO-days from receipt: Illi/LO I L{ 1 05-days from receipt: 3/3 /2 b I 'I 

If the local governing body has questions regarding the attached sampling form , please call : 

...... 
00 
r-
:"Q. 

DLLC Contact Name it li c1 Pc- e ~T CV' z- "'-- ~ 
Q.LLC; Contact Phone_Number II 01..<?1! y -0 LJ J L{ . QLLC Cont9ct er:railjWWl,i1l f<,po/k@aZliQUOrg!=& 

Upon local goveming body approval. a new license with a sampling privilege ("S") designation will be issued~ 
this licensee: 

For DLLC Use Only 

Current License #: 0 OJ I D 000 ~ Date of issuance: Z I q / 2~7J 

S License #: Date of issuance: I 1 __ _ 

DLLC Contact: AllCA'tI.. [<?fM hCo... DLLC Phone # : lto2 -3&L(- DG74 

For Local Governing Body Use Only 

Date Receive: ---,-1-'...1 --.J/ d. 0 I 13 Date Approved: __ --'I __ -,I __ _ 
., 

Recommendation: 0 Approve 0 Protest 0 No Recommendation 

I ___ -=-___ ~=--:-:-------' hereby recommend that non-transferrable sampling 
Government Official 

privileges be added to this licensee on behalf of _____ --,-'--_ 
City, Town or County 

( ) ---::c-
Phon e Number Email Address 

February 2013 



State of Arizona 
Department of Liquor Li.censes and Contro l 

800 W. Washington5'" Floor 
. Phoenix, Arizona 85007 . 

(602) 542-5141 

Sampling. Privileges Fo! m 

IX! Liquor Store (series 9) 

o Beer and W ine Store (series 10 ) 

Applicant's Name: __ R""'o"'b"ert"-'-'J""o"'s"'e"'p"-h'-N=e"'ls"'o"'n"-__ -'-cc:-_____ (check one) Owner 0 Agent Iiil 

Mailing Add ress: 736 S Longmore St 
Stree t Address Dr P.O. Box 

_ _ C=h "'an"-d"'I"'e"r ___ _ , AZ , Maricopa 
City State County 

8.5224 -
Zip Code 

Business Phone Number: J~) _7'-'4,,2=---"6"'6"'6,,3L_ _ _ __ Email: _ ______ _____ _ _ 

Business Name: Fry's Food & Drug # 18 Current Lice ns e #: -"0"'9"'1"'0-"0'-'0"'0"'8"---___ __ _ 

Physical Location of B usiness: 

10661 N. Oracle Rd Oro Valley AZ Pima 
-==::..:..:.:...o:.~~~~ _ _ ___ -"'-=-:..=:::o_~ _ _ _ " __ , --'-"=:---:-_ 
- Street Address City State County 

85737-
Zip Code 

I, Robert Joseph Nelson , understand that, upon approval, sampling privi leges for the 
liquor license identified above wi ll require compliance with the fo llowing: 

r-
;=;" 

1. the premise~ shall contain at least five thousand square feet to be e ligible for sompling privi leges for Beer and ~ 
Wine Store (series 10) applicants only (A.R.S. §4-206 .01(J») . ".1 

2. Any open product shall be kept locked by the licensee when the sampling area is not staffed. 

3. The licensee is otherwise subject to all other provisions of this tit le. The licensee is liable for any violation of 
this title committed in connection with the sampling . 

4. The licensed retailer shall make sales of sampled products from the licensed retail premises. 

5. The licensee shall not charge any customer for the sampling of any products. 

~ 6. The sampling shal l be conducted under the supervision of an employee of a sponsoring disti ller, vintner, w:- brewer, wholesaler or retail licensee. 

~ 7. Accurate records of sampling products dispensed shall be retained by the licensee. 

~ 8. Sampling shall be limited to three ounces of beer or cooler-type products, one ounce of wine and one ounce 
of distilled spirits per person, per brand, per day. 

~ 9. The sampling shall be conducted on ly on the licensed premises. 

7fVi O. Upon approval of this fo rm , a license for a liquor store wi th sampling privileges (series 9S) or a beer and 
wine store w ith sampling privileges (series 1 OS) will be issued and mailed to the licensee's address of record . 
The license must be displayed in a conspicuous public area of the licensed premises that is readily accessible 
for inspection by any peace officer, distributor, wholesaler or member of the public. (A.R.S. §4-261.01 ) 

OLLC May 201 2 



~ 11 Liquor store license sampling pri vileges are not transferable. 

~\ 12 I have read, understand, and assume responsibility for compliance wi lh A.R.S. §4-206.01. 

A.~4-206 . 01. Bar. beer and wine bar or liquor store licenses; number permitted; fee; sampling 
privileges 

1. Any open producl shall be kept locked by Ihe licensee when the sampling area is nol slaffed. 
2. The licensee is otherwise subject to all other provisions of this ti tle . The licensee is liable for any violation of 

th is title committed in connection with the sampling. 
3 . The licensed re tailer shal l make sales of sampled products from the licensed reta il premises. 
4. The licensee shall not charge any customer for the sampling of any products. 
5. The sampling shall be conducted under the supervision of an employee of a sponsoring disti ller, vintner, 

brewer I wholesaler or retail licensee. 
6. Accurate records of sampling prod ucts dispensed shall be reta ined by the licensee. 
7. Sampling shall be limited to th ree ounces of beer or cooler-type products, one ounce of wine and one ounce of 

distilled spirits per person, per brand, per day. 
8. The sampling shall be conducted only on the licensed premises. 

1-' 
eM 

I, R ob ert J oseph Nel son , attest that I am the OWNER/AGENT fil ing this form, that I :z: 
have read, and assume responsibil ity for compliance with, A.R.S . §4-206.01 at the licensed establishment named on pag<t:;;! 
I, and verify all statements I have made on this document to be true, correct and complele. I understand that I am f::: 
responsible for the $100 issuance fee and the annual $ 60 renewal fee for these sampling privileges . Sampling privi lege (Xl 

renewal fe r due a t the s -time as the renewal for the "cu rrent license #" identified on page 1 of th is application. C , 

q - ~ ~ 
-~::- =: :-:d --- ,121 a cAD( oj Dp5 t.iJd.JJ) ;;;. 

r~~~~~~~~====~~/~)~ __ -_·-__ ···-_··-__ · _______ T_itl_e ____________________ D_a_te ____ . ______________________ ~~; 
. .-" S 

Notarized Signature 

T he forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 14-
day 

of NO\lembe/ , 2{) 13 
month year 

Notary Public: :lL\,j:.l.!!,6;I!b~...:l.~1:::.~~~"""----------------i=:;;;m;;;, 
tU fe 

My commission expires: __ -,-1 ,.,0«-_, ___ ->0""-''0-';-___ -,-2-,Od.l-L~3,--_ 
day month year 

For DLLC Use Only 

5 Li cense # : Date o f issuance : _ _ --.JI __ ---'I __ _ 

Issu ance fee app l icab le? ~Yes D No ~ $ 100 issu a nce fee co ll ected 

Initia ls: (Jj <:JIb=-

2 



/ . ~ti;tt o!:Ar!jp',la 
Department oeLi qu-or Licenses and Control 

. --".,: '.",_: :;~ ~;,.~,'-/-": ;:.:),> .... ~ 
,- -- epa W, W~~hirigt~n 5tii foi69r:> NOU 29'13AMll:24 TOt) 
'. ~:',~.: Phoehi)(,~Arizon~ ,?50p7: // 

', ' >(602) 542,5141 ,/ 
' . _:'_ ;:r~.' ... _,~. '':/' ,.: .' , . 

!. :\\ '., - .,'-~-",:"~"-",''I'... - y~ .~. 

State/Local GtiveftlriientB,ollting Sheet 
Add Sam~l.ii1gRrlvnJg~sT& ·J,\.ctive 

Liquor Store (series 9) or-BeerandW-in-eStore (series 10) license 
.... -':-'1-',' / 

~ Liquor Store (series 9) 
D Beer and Wine Store (series 10) 

The attached form for sampling must be processed within105 days from this date: 

Date Application Received at DLLC: _1.1...:1+\ -,-I '3"'-\-I=l:..cD..:.I-=3C-. __________ _ 

Date of 60-days from receipt: \ II I./U 1'-1 1 05-days from receipt: 3/3/Z0 14 
I ' 

If the local governing body has questions regarding the attached sampling form , please ca ll : 

, . 
u.:, 
-~ g 
-<-

r-
DLLC Contact Name: Ali fi l' I'.! e-spovr'Z..OL. 
SLLLC; Contact Phone~Numbes; lib1;Ql€~ -D l.t Ilj . 9 LLC Contact el}lai l:j ll,.,yuhL ezpt«7t<@azligUOrg~ 

." 
Upon local governing body approval, a new license with a sampling privilege ("S") designation will be issued:l!J 
this licensee: rD 

.~, 

For DLLC Use Only 

Current License #: 0 q I 0 0 /1 2- Date of i ssua nce: '0 I ZS- 12P7J3 

5 License # : Date of issuance: I 1 __ _ 

DLLC Contact: A ~lrA DL 8'?PMZ--"'-... DLLC Phone #: ~ 01 ,: 3/;'-/ - 0 y 7'-/ 

For Local Governing. Body Use Only 

Date Receive: ---,1-'-.( ~I d. () I i3 Date Approved: __ ~I _ _ -,I __ _ 

Recommendation: 0 Approve 0 Protest 0 No Recommendation 

I ________________ , hereby recommend that non-transferrabl e sampling 
Government Official 

privileges be added to this licensee on behalf of -=:---=-__ --::-__ 
City, Town or County 

( ) --=:-
Phone Number Email Add ress 

February 2013 



State 'of Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Contro l 

'" ' 

800W. 'Wash;~gton 5th Floor 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
.. (602) 542-5141 IX] Liquor Store (series 9) 

-, ,-. "'~ D Beer and Wine Store (series 10) 
Sampling Privileges Form , - .. , .. ; " 

, ..... 
Applicant's Name: _--",R",o:=b",e"-rt"-"-J",o",se,"p",h~N,-,e,,,l,,,so,,,n,,-_~-'7 ______ (check one) Owner D Agent IX] 

Mailing Address: 736 S Longmore St 
Street Address or P.O. Box 

__ C=h"'an"'d""' i"'e"-r ____ , AZ, Maricopa 
Ci ty State County 

8.5224 -
Zip Code 

Business Phone Number: _~),_7"'4=2--'6"'6"'6"-3_'_ ____ Email: _____________ _ 

Business Name: Fry's Food & Drug # 18 Current License #: _ 0=9"'10=0"'1"'12==-___ -'-__ _ 

Physical Location of Business: 

--'1"'0"'6"'6"'I -.:.N:..:.-'O""T""a"'cl"'e:..,:R"'d=-______ -"OC'-r",-o ...:.V-=al",I.o:oey~ ____ , AZ ,_Po..:i~m,,=a,--__ 
Street Address City Stale County 

85737-
Zip Code 

I, Robert Joseph Nelson , understand that, upon approval, sampling privileges for the 
liquor license identified above wi ll requ ire compliance with the fo llowing : 

ere 

1. the prem ises shall contain at least five thousand squa re fect to be eligible for sampling privi leges for Beer and ~ 
Wine Store (series 10) applicants only (A.R.S. §4-206.01(J)). rl.) 

2. Any open product shall be kept locked by the licensee when the sampling area is not staffed. 

3. The licensee is otherwise subject to all other provisions of this title. The licensee is liable for any violation of 
this title committed in connection with the sampling . 

4. The licensed retailer shal l make sales of sampled products from the licensed reta il premises. 

5. The licensee shall not charge any customer for the sampling of any products. 

6. The sampling shall be conducted under the supervision of an employee of a sponsoring distiller, vintner, 
brewer, wholesaler or reta il licensee. 

7. Accurate records of sampling products dispensed shall be reta ined by the li censee. 

8. Sampling shall be limited to three ounces of beer or cooler-type products, one ounce of wine and one ounce 
of distilled spirits per person, per brand, per day. 

9. The sampling shall be conducted only on the licensed premises. 

-~. Upon approval of this form, a license for a liquor store wi th sampling privileges (series 9S) or a beer and 
W- ' u wine store with sampling privi leges (series 10S) will be issued and mailed to the licensee's address of record. 

The license must be displayed in a conspicuous public area of the licensed premises that is readi ly accessible 
for inspection by any peace officer, distributor, wholesaler or member of the public. (A.R.S. §4-261.01) 

DLLC May 2012 



Liquor store license sampling privi leges are not transferable. 

I have read, understand, and assume responsibi lity for compl iance with A.R.S. §4-206.01. 

-206.01 . Bar. beer and wine bar or liquor store licenses ; number permitted: fee: sampling 
privileges 

1. Any open product shall be kept locked by the licensee when the sampling area is not staffed. 
2. The licensee is otherwise subject to all other provisions of this title. The licensee is liable for any violation of 

this title committed in connection with the sampling. 
3. The licensed retailer shall make sa les of sampled products from the licensed retail premises. 
4. The licensee shall not charge any customer for the sampling of any products . 
5. The sampling shall be conducted under the supeNision of an employee of a sponsoring distiller, vintner, 

brewer, wholesaler or retai l licensee. 
6. Accurate records of sampling products dispe'nsed shall be retained by the licensee. 
7. Sampling shall be limited to three ounces of beer or cooler-type products, one ounce of wine and one ounce of 

distilled spirits per person, per brand, per day. W 
8. The sampling sha ll be conducted only on the licensed premises. :z: 

Q 
"'-
>-'

I, Robert Joseph Nel son , attest that I am the OWNER/AGENT filing this form, that I c,,? 
have read, and assume responsibility for compliance with, A.R.S. §4-206.01 at the licensed establishment named on pageS' 
1, and verify all statements I have made on this document to be true, correct and complete. I understand that I am .'" 
resPo~sibl for the $100 issuance fee and the annual $ 60 renewal fee for these sampling privi leges. Sampling privilege G 

)~ 
re a fees are due at th f time as the renewal for the "'current license #" identified on page 1 of this applica tion. 

~ ~ 

Notarized S ignature 

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 14- of N O\ltnJ Dei, 20 I;) 
day month year 

My commission expires: __ 1...,0:-<-__ , _---"Au.u.:~I:"-<tt-"-'--
day m~ 2D13 

year 

For DLLC Use On ly 

5 License #: Date of issuance: __ ---'I __ ~/ _ _ _ 

I,,",c~ fee 'ppIiGbl,' ~" 0 '~ ~ ,100 '''"'c'" fee mil",," 
Initials : ~?,/\ =,. 

2 



State oJ Arizona 
Department of liquorlicenses and Control 

800 W. Washingto'1 5th Floor. 

" . . Ph~~2~xi/~J~c~ai!;007/ ' 
. ~ . ".. . . . 

State/Local ~6ve'rnl11ent ~(')'utin9 Sheet 
Add Sampfil'!9 p,+vilegesTo Active 

1101) 2B'llAM11:24 TO\) 

Liquor Store (series 9) or Beer and Wine Store (series 10) License 

~ liquor Store (series 9) 
D Beer and Wine Store (series 10) 

The attached form for sampling must be processed within 1 05 days from this date: 

Date Application Received at DLLC: ----,-1-,-'1-,-1-'-./ -,,' 0-'C/ --,Z=--tJ_· -=1 .3=-· _ _ _______ _ ---: 

Date of 50-days from receipt: __ 'c'!' /-,-I_:_CJ ,--I _t_.o_· )-,-4 __ _ 105-days from receipt: ___ :3_I_:?_1_2_D_i-'4'--_ _ _ 

If the local governing body has questions regarding the attached sampling form, please call: 

DLLC Contact Name: IN ;' t!ti~ ~Si2t.{dI.Za.J 

DLLC Contact Phone Number:ij'dZ- 9&1--/- OIPW 
J ftJLt11 '-,~L. fC5-f',qqc<...- W 

DLLC Contact emailJ_ @azliguor.gOllZ: 
w 
-< 

Upon local governing body approval, a new license with a sampling privilege ("S") deSignation will be issued tq:o 
this licensee: c. 
,---------------------------------------,~ 

For DLLC Use Only 

Current license #: (;ell /)tJ(} /'c;L Date of issuance: .03 1 (JiJI 1 

S license #: (Jetl t?tPo/...15 Date of issuance: 1 1 _ _ _ 

DLLC Contact: /J I/ !!/I'L <£sp (j·t.- ZCC DLLC Phone #: !.Rot - 30 t/ - ow:trj 

C.l 
Ul 

,----------------- ---------------,--- , . -

For Local Governing Body Use Only 

Date Receive: ---,1.1..1 ____ I ;) 0 1 13 Date Approved: __ ~/ _ _ -,I __ -

Recommendation: D Approve D Protest D No Recommendation 

___ -::-_ _ _ -:-:=-:-: ______ ' hereby recommend that non-transferrable sampling 
Government Official 

privileges be added to this licensee on behalf of 
City, Town or County 

--) - -
Phone Number Email Address 

February 2013 

(! (../'r ;j f- [) n ) Y A-,lI.£f/> 



State cif Arizona 
Department o(Uquor- Li ce nse~ and Contro l 

800 w. Washin'gt bn sth Floor 
. Phoenix, Arizona 8S007 . 
;, (602) 542-5141 IKl liquor Store (se ries 9) 

. ,~ ' .... -. " ~. 

•• d 

SMnJlling Privileges Form 
D Beer and W ine Store (series 10) 

:.~,._:c . ,- -;, '. .. 

Applicant's Name: _....o;R"'o"'b"'e"-rt'-.J"'o"'s"'e"'p"'h"-"-N"'e"'l s"'o"'n"--_________ (check one) Owner D Agent !XI 

Mailing Address: 736 S Longmo re St 
Street Address or P.O. Box 

__ C~h~an~d"l"e,,-r ___ ~. AZ. Maricopa 
City State County 

85224 -
Zip Code 

Business Phone Number: _~) 877-9 2 0 7 

Business Name: Fry's Food & Drug # 117 

Email: ___________ __ _ 

Current License #: ~0=9=:10~0=0~1=2 ______ _ 

Physical Location of Business: 

....-C1c.=0..:.<4-"'5..:c0...;:N"-=L;ca--'C"'a:=;n:=;a"'da=--_______ ...:O~ro,-V--,--"all",e'2'Y'----___ " _AZ_ , ~P~im=a _ _ _ 
Street Address City Stale County 

85737 , 
Zip Code 

I, R ob ert Joseph Nel son , understand that , upon approval , sampling privileges fo r the 
liquor license identified above will require compliance with the fo llowing: 

>-" 
C,~l 

1. the premises shall contain at least five thousand square feet to be e ligible for sampling privileges for Beer anci2 
Wine Store (series 10) applicants only (A.R.S. §4-206.01(J)). ::0 

2. Any open product shall be kept locked by the licensee when the sampling area is not staffed . 
,-

3. The licensee is otherwise subject to all other provisions of this title. The licensee is liable for any violation of ;:;. 
this title committed in connection with the sampling. ~ 

4. The licensed retailer shall make sales of sampled products from the licensed retail premises. 

5. The licensee shall not charge any customer for the sampling of any products. 

6. The sampling shall be conducted under the supervision of an employee of a sponsoring distiller, vintner, 
brewer, wholesaler or retail licensee. 

7. Accurate record s of sampling products dispensed shall be reta ined by the licensee. 

8. Sampling shall be limited to three ounces of beer or cooler-Iype products, one ounce of wine and one Dunce 
of distilled spirits per person , per brand , per day. 

9. The sampling shall be conducted on ly on the licensed premises. 

10. Upon approval of this form . a license for a liquor store wilh sampling privileges (series 9S) or a beer and 
wine store with sampling privileges (series 10S) wi ll be issued and mailed to the licensee's address of record . 
The license must be displayed in a conspicuous public area of the licensed premises that is readi ly accessible 
for inspection by any peace offlCer. distributor, wholesaler or member of the public. (A.R.S. §4-261.01 ) 

DLLC May 2012 

(:;.$., 

Gi 



11. Liquor store license sampl ing privileges are not transferable. 

12. I have read, understand , and assume responsibil ity for compl iance with A.R. S. §4-206.01 . 

Bar. beer and wine bar or liquor store licenses: number permitted; fee; sampling 
privi leges 

1. Any open product shall be kept locked by the licensee when the sampling area is not staffed. 
2. The licensee is otherwise subject to all other provisions of this title. The licensee is liable for any viola tion of 

this title committed in connection with the sampling. 
3. The licensed reta iler shall make sales of sampled products from the licensed retail premises. 
4. The licensee shall not charge any customer for the sampling of any products. 
5. The sampling shall be conducted under the supervision of an employee of a sponsoring distiller, vintner, 

brewer, wholesaler or retail licensee. 
6. Accurate records of sampling products dispensed shall be retained by the licensee. 
7. Sampling shall be limited to three ounces of beer or cooler-type products, one ounce of wine and one ounce of 

distilled spirits per person, per brand, per day. 
8. The sampling shall be conducted on ly on the licensed premises. 

I, Robert Joseph Nelson , attest that I am the OWNER/AGENT filing this form, that I 
have rMd, and assume responsibility for compliance with , A.R.S. §4-206.0 1 at the licensed establishment named on page 
1, and verify all statements I have made on this document to be true, correct and complete. I understand that I am 
responsible for the $100 i a ce fee and the annual $ 60 renewal fee for these sampling privi leges. Sampling privi lege 

e are due e s me time as the renewal for the "current license #" identified on page 1 of this applica tion . 

... -_ .. - / 
Notarized S ignature 

T he forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 14-
day 

Notary PUbliCJ)'UJ 1 NY,," ,S ~ 
Signature 

of NO\lewbei , 70 ) ') . 
month year 

My commission expires: } D ~Ct1...L <it 
--'-:da"y'--' n6bnth ,2M1-

year 

For DLLC Use Only 

S License #: Date of issuance: I 1 __ _ 

I ssuance fee applicable? pves D Na 
/' 

)21 $1 00 issuan ce fee co llected 

Initials: __ ~D;u.·ll""(!~,,,,-____ _ 

2 



Liquor Store w/Sampling Privileges (Series 09) 

The liquor store (series 9) license is a "quota" license available only through the 
Liquor License Lottery or for purchase on the open market. Once issued , this 
liquor license is transferable from person to person and/or location to location 
within the same county and allows a spirituous liquor store retailer to sell all types 
of spirituous liquors , only in the original unbroken package, to be taken away 
from the premises of the retailer and consumed off the premises. A retailer with 
off-sale privileges may deliver spirituous liquor off of the licensed premises in 
connection with a retail sale. Payment must be made no later than the time of 
delivery. Series 9 (liquor store) licensees and applicants may apply for unlimited 
sampling privileges by completing the Sampling Privileges form. Internet sale of 
liquor is not permitted in the state of Arizona. Liquor must be delivered to an 
Arizona liquor-licensed wholesaler, then an Arizona liquor-licensed retailer prior 
to delivery to the consumer. 



Town Council Regular Session Item #   4.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Shirley Seng Submitted By: Shirley Seng, Water
Department: Water

Information
SUBJECT:
PUBLIC HEARING:  RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-06, AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING INCREASES IN
WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

RECOMMENDATION:
The Water Utility Commission voted unanimously on October 14, 2013, to recommend that Council
approve the proposed increase in water rates, fees and charges.  Staff also recommends approval.

The recommendation includes the following: 

A change in the rate structure to a uniform rate (no tiered rates) for commercial and
master-metered multifamily customers.
No changes in the rate structure for residential and irrigation customers (the tiered rate structure
would remain in place).
A slight increase in the commodity rate for the tiered rates and the uniform rate.
Increases to fees and charges for new development design review and inspection fees.
Increase in the late fees to 1% of the outstanding balance or $5.00, whichever is greater.
No increase in the reclaimed water rate.
No increase in the groundwater preservation fees.
No increase in the monthly base rates.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The Oro Valley Water Utility contracted with CH2M HILL to perform a cost of service study and water
rates analysis in order to determine the cost of providing service to the Water Utility's customers,
calculate the system revenue requirements, and develop water rates that would equitably recover these
costs from the various customer classes over a 5-year period.

The results of the cost of service study indicated that the single family residential and irrigation customer
classes were not generating revenue sufficient to meet the cost of providing them with service.  It also
indicated that the commercial and master-metered multifamily customer classes were generating
revenue in excess of the cost to provide them service.  The reclaimed customer class is generating
sufficient revenue to meet its operating costs.  Based on these results, it was recommended that the
water rates be restructured with a rate design based upon the cost of providing service to each customer
class.  It is important to make this change in the rate structure at this time so there is the appropriate
balance between all customer classes with respect to cost of service and to avoid any future
imbalances.

The proposed rate restructuring maintains the tiered rate structure for residential and irrigation customer
classifications, and eliminates the tiered rate structure for commercial and master-metered multifamily
customer classifications.  As a result, commercial and multifamily customers would have a uniform rate



customer classifications.  As a result, commercial and multifamily customers would have a uniform rate
with no tiers.  An increase is recommended for the uniform rate for commercial and multifamily
classifications, as well as for all four tiers of the residential and irrigation classifications. 

There are no proposed increases for the reclaimed water rate, the groundwater preservation fee or the
monthly base rates.  Increases are recommended for cost recovery for new development design review
and construction inspection fees.  In addition, a change to late fees is also recommended. The
proposed rate restructuring and service fee increases meet the revenue requirements for FY 2013-14.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Based on the results of the cost of service study, the Water Utility is recommending a change in the rate
structure to a more equitable structure for commercial and multifamily customers, while maintaining the
existing tiered rate structure for residential and irrigation customers.  The fundamental principle used in
developing an equitable rate structure is to distribute costs so that each user classification pays for its
proportionate share of the total system costs.  If the tiered rate structure were to remain in place for
commercial and multifamily customers additional revenues would be collected that would exceed the cost
of service for commercial and multifamily.  Implementing this rate structure change at this time will avoid
this situation and will balance both rates and revenues with respect to actual cost of service for each
customer classification.  The following describes the proposed rate structures for the various customer
classifications.     
 
For residential customers, indoor water usage and landscape irrigation are billed on the same meter. 
Therefore, all water use will continue to be billed on a tiered rate basis for the residential classification. 

For the irrigation classification, all customers will continue to pay a tiered rate for outdoor watering
of landscaped areas.   Irrigation classification customers are primarily businesses (commercial),
apartments (multifamily) or homeowners associations that have landscaped areas. 

Commercial and multifamily customers typically have 2 or more meters.  These customers are
businesses and apartment complexes that use a separate irrigation meter for the outdoor watering of
landscaped and/or common areas.  Consequently, outdoor water use will continue to be billed on a tiered
rate basis through their irrigation meter. A separate meter is also installed in commercial buildings and
multifamily residences for indoor water use, which will be billed on the uniform rate basis through their
commercial meter.

The proposed water rates include minor increases in the tiered commodity rates for residential and
irrigation customer classes, as well as an increase in the uniform rate for commercial and
master-metered multifamily classes.  The proposed increases for commercial and master-metered
multifamily customer classes will transition from tiered rates to a uniform rate that is equal to the
residential Tier 1 commodity rate.  Both the tiered rate structure and the uniform structure will have slight
increases.  As a result of the proposed changes, the average residential customer using 8,000 gallons of
water per month will experience an increase of $0.23 or a 0.6% increase in their monthly water bill.  A
commercial customer with a 2-inch meter using 50,000 gallons will experience a $1.50 or a 0.6%
monthly increase.  However, due to the change from a tiered rate structure to a uniform rate structure,
the majority of commercial customers that use 60,000 gallons of water or more will experience a slight
reduction on their monthly water bill.  Appendix D of the attached Oro Valley Water Utility Water Rates
Analysis Report includes projected monthly billings based on water usage, meter size and customer
classification. 

The potable water turf rate will be equal to the proposed uniform commodity rate for commercial
customers.  The construction water rate will also increase and will be equal to $1.00 more than the
proposed Tier 4 commodity rate for residential customers.  There is no proposed increase for the
reclaimed water rate for this year.  There are also no proposed increases to the groundwater
preservation fees or the monthly base rates.



Increases are proposed for New Development Hydraulic & Design Review Fees and New Development
Construction Inspection Fees.  The proposed fee increases will recover the costs the utility bears
for providing these services.  The proposed increase in the Late Payment Fee will be $5.00 or 1% of the
outstanding balance, whichever is greater.

Exhibit A of the resolution attachment includes all water rates, groundwater preservation fees, and the
proposed new service fees for New Development Hydraulic & Design Review Fees, New Development
Construction Inspection Fees and the Late Payment Fee.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Adoption of the proposed water rates will change the rates structure to a uniform rate for commercial and
master-metered multifamily customer classifications.  The tiered rate structure will remain for residential
and irrigation customers.  This is based on the cost of service study which indicates that residential and
irrigation customers are not generating sufficient revenues to meet the cost of providing them with
service.  If the tiered rate structure were to continue for commercial and multifamily customers this would
result in additional revenues from commercial and multifamily customers that would exceed their actual
cost of service. 

A slight increase in both the tiered rates and the uniform rate will occur.  The proposed rate changes and
increases will meet revenue requirements and will be revenue neutral.  Adoption of the fees associated
with new development plan review and construction inspection will recover the costs associated with
providing those services.

All proposed rates, fees and charges are designed to maintain the financial stability and fiscal health of
the Town's Water Utility.  There is no significant increase in projected revenues due specifically to the
rate increases and/or the changes in rate structure, since these changes are designed to be revenue
neutral.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve or deny) Resolution No. (R)14-06, authorizing and approving increases in water
rates, fees and charges for the Town of Oro Valley Water Utility.

Attachments
(R)14-06 Water Rate Increase 2013-14
Exhibit A - Rate Sheet
Other Fees and Charges
OVWU Water Rates Analysis



RESOLUTION NO. (R) 14-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING 
INCREASES IN WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to ARS § 9-511, et seq., the Town has the requisite statutory authority to 
acquire, own and maintain a water utility for the benefit of the residents within and without the 
Town’s corporate boundaries; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ARS § 9-511, et seq., the Town finds it necessary to increase water
rates, fees and charges for the Oro Valley Water Utility, which increases are described in Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, on November 20, 2013, Mayor and Council approved Resolution 13-66, providing 
Notice of Intent to increase water rates, fees and charges; and

WHEREAS, Mayor and Council held a Public Hearing to deliberate and vote on the proposed
increases in water rates, fees and charges on January 15, 2014.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro 
Valley, Arizona, that:

1. The Oro Valley Water Utility increases in water rates, fees and charges, as described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, are hereby authorized 
and approved.

2. The Mayor and other administrative officials of the Town of Oro Valley are hereby 
authorized to take such steps as are necessary to implement the increases in water rates, fees 
and charges.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona this
15th day of January, 2014.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@C80A189E\@BCL@C80A189E.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/102210

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@C80A189E\@BCL@C80A189E.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/102210

EXHIBIT “A”



METER SIZE

(in inches)

5/8 x 3/4 $14.19

3/4 x 3/4 $21.29

1 $35.48

1.5 $70.95

2 $113.53

3 $227.05

4 $354.77

6 $709.54

8 $1,135.26

METER COMMODITY COMMODITY COMMODITY COMMODITY

SIZE TIER 1 TIER 2 TIER 3 TIER 4

$2.23 per 1000 gallons $3.01 per 1000 gallons $4.07 per 1000 gallons $5.49 per 1000 gallons

5/8 x 3/4 0 - 7,000 7,001 - 16,000 16,001 - 32,000 OVER 32,000

3/4 x 3/4 0 - 10,000 10,001 - 24,000 24,001 - 48,000 OVER 48,000

1 0 - 17,000 17,001 - 40,000 40,001 - 80,000 OVER 80,000

1.5 0 - 35,000 35,001 - 80,000 80,001 - 160,000 OVER 160,000

2 0 - 56,000 56,001 - 128,000 128,001 - 256,000 OVER 256,000

3 0 - 112,000 112,001 - 256,000 256,001 - 512,000 OVER 512,000

4 0 - 175,000 175,001 - 400,000 400,001 - 800,000 OVER 800,000

6 0 - 860,000 860,001 - 2,000,000 2,000,001 - 3,500,000 OVER 3,500,000

8 0 - 860,000 860,001 - 2,000,000 2,000,001 - 3,500,000 OVER 3,500,000

PROPOSED RATES FOR THE ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

RESIDENTIAL & IRRIGATION CLASSIFICATIONS

E X H I B I T    " A "

   COMMERCIAL CLASSIFICATION      $2.23 per 1000 gallons for all water use

POTABLE & RECLAIMED

BASE RATES

BASE RATE

COMMODITY RATES - RECLAIMED WATER

COMMODITY RATES - POTABLE WATER

   MASTER-METERED MULTIFAMILY CLASSIFICATION

   CONSTRUCTION WATER

     $2.23 per 1000 gallons for all water use

     $6.49 per 1000 gallons for all water use

$ 0.50 per 1000 gallons for all water use   RECLAIMED WATER

$ 2.20 per 1000 gallons for all water use    ALL RECLAIMED WATER USES & CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUNDWATER PRESERVATION FEES

   POTABLE WATER $ 0.95 per 1000 gallons for all water use



Plan Revision

For 0 - 500 feet: $1,555.00

For inspections exceeding 500 feet: $1,555.00 + $1.50 per foot

Repeat Pressure Test $95.00 per test

Repeat Bacteria Test $85.00 per test

For inspection services during other than

normal working hours, this amount will

be charged in addition to above fees: Labor Costs + 30% Benefits

$5.00 or 1% of the outstanding balance owed whichever is greater.

Late Payment Fee

New Development Construction Inspection Fees

Fees will be collected prior to project acceptance.

ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

RATE SCHEDULE

SERVICE FEES AND CHARGES

Fees to be collected prior to receipt of approved plans.

New Development Hydraulic & Design Review Fees

Hydaulic Review Design Review

Base Sheet

Each Add'l Sheet

$170.00

Fees include 2 hydraulic reviews and 2 design reviews.

Additonal reviews to be $85.00 per review.

$255.00

$42.00 $42.00

N/A $42.00 Each



 

  

F in a l  Dra f t  Rep or t  

 

Oro Valley Water Utility 
Water Rates Analysis 

 

 

 

Prepared for 

October 2013 

 

 

 

Prepared by 

 

1840 E. River Road, Suite 200  
 Tucson, Arizona 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 ii 

Executive Summary ...................................................................................................................... ES-1 
1. Introduction/Background.................................................................................................. 1-1 

Scope of Work ...................................................................................................................... 1-1 
Water Use Trends ................................................................................................................ 1-2 
Growth Trends ..................................................................................................................... 1-2 
Organization of this Report ................................................................................................ 1-3 

2. Financial Plan ...................................................................................................................... 2-1 
Structure of Funds ............................................................................................................... 2-1 
General Assumptions.......................................................................................................... 2-2 
Operating Fund ................................................................................................................... 2-2 

Revenue Forecast .................................................................................................... 2-2 
Operations and Maintenance Expenses .............................................................. 2-3 
Debt Service ............................................................................................................. 2-4 
Capital Outlay ......................................................................................................... 2-4 
Summary of Revenue Requirements ................................................................... 2-5 
Cash Flow Analysis ................................................................................................ 2-5 

Development Impact Fee Funds ........................................................................................ 2-6 
Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Fund ......................... 2-6 
Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Fund ..................................... 2-6 

3. Cost of Service ..................................................................................................................... 3-1 
Summary of Results ............................................................................................................ 3-1 

4. Rate Design .......................................................................................................................... 4-1 
Introduction .......................................................................................................................... 4-1 
Assumptions ........................................................................................................................ 4-1 
Existing Rates ....................................................................................................................... 4-1 
Rate Design and Proposed Rates ....................................................................................... 4-2 

Base Rates ................................................................................................................ 4-2 
Commodity Rates ................................................................................................... 4-2 

Other Service Fees and Charges ........................................................................................ 4-6 
Rate Considerations and Recommendations ................................................................... 4-7 

5. Preferred Financial Scenario ............................................................................................ 5-1 
6. Bill Impacts .......................................................................................................................... 6-1 

Preferred Financial Scenario Bill Impact .......................................................................... 6-1 
Comparison to Surrounding Utilities ............................................................................... 6-3 

7. Summary and Conclusions ............................................................................................... 7-1 

Tables 

ES-1 Current and Proposed Commodity Rates ..................................................................... ES-2 
ES-2 Residential Class Customer Bill Impacts (5/8- x 3/4-inch meter) ............................. ES-3 
ES-3 Commercial Class Customer Bill Impacts (2-inch meter) ........................................... ES-4 
2-1 Operating Fund General Assumptions ............................................................................ 2-2 
2-2 Projected Annual Growth in Number of EDUs .............................................................. 2-3 
2-3 Remaining Outstanding Principal Balance as of FY 2012/13 ....................................... 2-4 
2-4 Projection of Operating Fund Revenue Requirements .................................................. 2-5 
3-1 Revenue and Cost of Service for Proposed Customer Classes ..................................... 3-1 
4-1 Oro Valley Existing Water Rates – Residential, Multifamily Residential,  
 Commercial, and Irrigation ................................................................................................ 4-2 



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 iii 

4-2 Distribution of Residential and Irrigation Water Consumption –  
Percentage of Usage by Tier ............................................................................................... 4-3 

4-3 Distribution of Commercial and Master-Metered Multifamily  
Water Consumption – Percentage of Usage by Tier ....................................................... 4-3 

4-4 Current and Proposed Commodity Rates ........................................................................ 4-5 
4-5 Projected Revenue at Proposed Rates .............................................................................. 4-6 
6-1 Residential Class Customer Bill Impacts (5/8-  x 3/4-inch meter) ............................... 6-1 
6-2 Commercial Class Customer Bill Impacts (2-inch meter) .............................................. 6-2 
6-3 Comparison of Residential (5/8- x 3/4-inch Meter) Base and  

Commodity Rates ................................................................................................................ 6-3 
6-4 Residential (5/8- x 3/4-inch Meter) Monthly Bills at Varying Levels of  

Water Use ............................................................................................................................. 6-4 
6-5 Comparison of Commercial (2-inch Meter) Base and Commodity Rates ................... 6-4 
6-6 Commercial (2-inch Meter) Monthly Bills at Varying Levels of Water Use ............... 6-5 

Figures  

1-1 Water Use History Potable and Reclaimed Water .......................................................... 1-2 
1-2 Historical Growth Rates ..................................................................................................... 1-3 
 

Appendices 

Appendix A: Financial Plan Tables 
 A-1 Projected Water Revenue under Existing Rates 
 A-2 Operations and Maintenance Expense Projection 
 A-3 Summary of Existing Debt 
 A-4 Capital Improvement Program – Potable and Reclaimed Water 
 A-5 Projection of Cash Flow 
 A-6 Debt Service Coverage Calculation 

Appendix B: Service Fees 
B-1 Current and Proposed Base Rates and Commodity Rates 
B-2 Proposed Service Fees and Other Charges 

Appendix C: Preferred Financial Scenario  
C-1 Operating Fund 
C-2 Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Fund 
C-3 Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Fund 
C-4 Summary of All Funds 

Appendix D: Bill Impacts  
D-1 Bill Comparisons by Meter Size 
 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 ES-1 

Executive Summary 

The Oro Valley Water Utility (Utility) contracted with CH2M HILL to perform a cost of 
service analysis and rate study for the Utility’s potable and reclaimed water systems. The 
purpose of the cost of service analysis and rate study was to determine the system revenue 
requirements for a 5-year period (through Fiscal Year [FY] 2017/18), estimate the cost of 
providing service to the Utility’s customers, and develop a schedule of rates and fees that 
equitably recovers these costs from the Utility’s various customer classes.  The study also 
involved updating the Utility’s development impact fees, which were provided to the 
Utility under separate cover. 

The proposed adjustments to the Utility’s water rate structure and commodity rates were 
designed to move the commercial and master-metered multifamily customers closer to their 
cost of service based on the cost of service analysis results. Proposed commodity rates 
maintain the current tiered rate structure for residential and irrigation customer classes, but 
commercial and master-metered multifamily customer classes move to a uniform 
commodity rate for all consumption (equal to the proposed residential Tier 1 commodity 
rate).  

In keeping with Oro Valley’s current practice, the potable water turf rate remains equal to 
the Tier 1 residential commodity rate.  Also as per current practice, the proposed potable 
water construction rate remains $1.00 more than the Tier 4 commodity rate. There is no 
increase proposed for reclaimed rates in the next FY (FY 2013/14), however, reclaimed rates 
gradually increase over the 5-year study period. No increase is proposed to the monthly 
base rates for potable or reclaimed water use. Current and proposed commodity rates are 
provided Table ES-1.   



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 ES-2 

 

TABLE ES-1 

Current and Proposed Commodity Rates  

Customer Class 

Current Rate 
FY 2012/13 

($/1,000 gallon) 

Proposed Rate 
FY 2013/14 

($/1,000 gallon) 

Residential 

Tier 1 2.20 2.23 

Tier 2 2.99 3.01 

Tier 3 4.03 4.07 

Tier 4 5.38 5.49 

Irrigation   

Tier 1 2.20 2.23 

Tier 2 2.99 3.01 

Tier 3 4.03 4.07 

Tier 4 5.38 5.49 

Commercial 2.20
1
 2.23 

Master-Metered Multifamily 2.20
1
 2.23 

Turf 2.20 2.23 

Construction 6.38 6.49 

All Reclaimed Classes 2.20 2.20 

1
Commericial and Master-Metered Multifamily Tier 1 rate.  

The recommended commodity rate increases in the above table generate the revenue 
necessary to satisfy the Water Utility’s revenue requirements, comply with debt service 
coverage requirements, and maintain target cash reserve balances as documented in this 
rates analysis report. The Preferred Financial Scenario cash flow results are provided in 
Section 4 and Appendix C. 

Residential rates and bill impacts for customers with a 5/8- x 3/4–inch meter are provided 
in Table ES-2.  The residential tier thresholds (7,000, 16,000, and 32,000) are highlighted in 
yellow and the average consumption level (8,000 gallons) is highlighted in blue.  



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 ES-3 

 

TABLE ES-2 

Residential Class Customer Bill Impacts (5/8- x 3/4-inch meter) 

Gallons 
Used 

Current 

Water Rate 

FY 2012/13
 

Proposed 

Water Rate 

FY 2013/14 

Groundwater 
Preservation 

Fee
1 

Current 
Monthly Bill 
FY 2012/13 

Proposed 
Monthly Bill 
FY 2013/14 

Amount 
of 

Increase 
Percent 
Increase 

0 14.19 14.19 0.00 14.19 14.19 - 0.0% 

1,000 16.39 16.42 0.95 17.34 17.37 0.03 0.2% 

2,000 18.59 18.65 1.90 20.49 20.55 0.06 0.3% 

3,000 20.79 20.88 2.85 23.64 23.73 0.09 0.4% 

4,000 22.99 23.11 3.80 26.79 26.91 0.12 0.4% 

5,000 25.19 25.34 4.75 29.94 30.09 0.15 0.5% 

6,000 27.39 27.57 5.70 33.09 33.27 0.18 0.5% 

7,000 29.59 29.80 6.65 36.24 36.45 0.21 0.6% 

8,000 32.58 32.81 7.60 40.18 40.41 0.23 0.6% 

9,000 35.57 35.82 8.55 44.12 44.37 0.25 0.6% 

10,000 38.56 38.83 9.50 48.06 48.33 0.27 0.6% 

11,000 41.55 41.84 10.45 52.00 52.29 0.29 0.6% 

12,000 44.54 44.85 11.40 55.94 56.25 0.31 0.6% 

13,000 47.53 47.86 12.35 59.88 60.21 0.33 0.6% 

14,000 50.52 50.87 13.30 63.82 64.17 0.35 0.5% 

15,000 53.51 53.88 14.25 67.76 68.13 0.37 0.5% 

16,000 56.50 56.89 15.20 71.70 72.09 0.39 0.5% 

20,000 72.62 73.17 19.00 91.62 92.17 0.55 0.5% 

30,000 112.92 113.87 28.50 141.42 142.37 0.95 0.7% 

32,000 120.98 122.01 30.40 151.38 152.41 1.03 0.7% 

33,000 126.36 127.50 31.35 157.71 158.85 1.14 0.7% 

1
No proposed change in the GPF. 

 
The average residential customer’s monthly bill will increase $0.23 – a 0.6 percent increase in 
their monthly bill under the proposed rates.  Bill impacts are slightly larger at higher 
consumption levels as a result of the increasing proportion of commodity rates to base rates.  

Commercial rates and bill impacts for customers with a 2-inch meter (the most common 
commercial meter size) are provided in Table ES-3.  The 2-inch meter tier thresholds (56,000, 
128,000, and 256,000) are highlighted in yellow and the 2-inch meter average consumption 
level (60,000 gallons) is highlighted in blue.  Negative dollars are shown using parentheses 
and percentages using a minus sign (-).  



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 ES-4 

 

TABLE ES-3 

Commercial Class Customer Bill Impacts (2-inch meter) 

Gallons 
Used 

Current 

Water Rate 

FY 2012/13
 

Proposed 

Water Rate 

FY 2013/14 

Groundwater 
Preservation 

Fee
1
 

Current 
Monthly Bill 
FY 2012/13 

Proposed 
Monthly Bill 
FY 2013/14

 

Amount of 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Percent 
Increase 

0 113.53 113.53 0.00 113.53 113.53 - 0.0% 

10,000 135.53 135.83 9.50 145.03 145.33 0.30 0.2% 

20,000 157.53 158.13 19.00 176.53 177.13 0.60 0.3% 

30,000 179.53 180.43 28.50 208.03 208.93 0.90 0.4% 

40,000 201.53 202.73 38.00 239.53 240.73 1.20 0.5% 

50,000 223.53 225.03 47.50 271.03 272.53 1.50 0.6% 

56,000 236.73 238.41 53.20 289.93 291.61 1.68 0.6% 

60,000 248.69 247.33 57.00 305.69 304.33 (1.36) -0.4% 

70,000 278.59 269.63 66.50 345.09 336.13 (8.96) -2.6% 

80,000 308.49 291.93 76.00 384.49 367.93 (16.56) -4.3% 

90,000 338.39 314.23 85.50 423.89 399.73 (24.16) -5.7% 

100,000 368.29 336.53 95.00 463.29 431.53 (31.76) -6.9% 

120,000 428.09 381.13 114.00 542.09 495.13 (46.96) -8.7% 

128,000 452.01 398.97 121.60 573.61 520.57 (53.04) -9.2% 

140,000 500.37 425.73 133.00 633.37 558.73 (74.64) -11.8% 

160,000 580.97 470.33 152.00 732.97 622.33 (110.64) -15.1% 

180,000 661.57 514.93 171.00 832.57 685.93 (146.64) -17.6% 

200,000 742.17 559.53 190.00 932.17 749.53 (182.64) -19.6% 

220,000 822.77 604.13 209.00 1,031.77 813.13 (218.64) -21.2% 

240,000 903.37 648.73 228.00 1,131.37 876.73 (254.64) -22.5% 

256,000 967.85 684.41 243.20 1,211.05 927.61 (283.44) -23.4% 

260,000 989.37 693.33 247.00 1,236.37 940.33 (296.04) -23.9% 

1
No proposed change in the GPF. 

 
The average (60,000 gallons) commercial customer’s monthly bill will decrease $1.36, 
representing a 0.4 percent decrease in their monthly bill under the proposed rates.  By 
moving toward cost of service rates, a 2-inch commercial customer using more than 
58,000 gallons per month would see a reduction in their bill.  This means that the effect of 
modifying the commercial rate structure is greater than the effect of the Tier 1 commodity 
rate increase for commercial customers using more than 58,000 gallons of water per month. 
It also means that commercial users will receive relatively lower bills while residential users 
receive somewhat higher bills under cost of service rates (as compared to current rates).  



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 1-1 

1. Introduction/Background 

The Oro Valley Water Utility (Utility) contracted with CH2M HILL to perform a cost of 
service analysis and rate study for the Utility’s potable and reclaimed water systems. The 
purpose of the cost of service analysis and rate study was to determine the system revenue 
requirements for a 5-year period (through Fiscal Year [FY] 2017/18), estimate the cost of 
providing service to the Utility’s customers, and develop a schedule of rates and fees that 
equitably recovers these costs from the Utility’s various customer classes.  The study also 
involved updating the Utility’s development impact fees, which were provided to the 
Utility under separate cover. 

Scope of Work 

The scope of the analysis consisted of the following major tasks: 

 Collect information and review goals and assumptions with Utility staff 

 Prepare rate model 

 Determine system revenue requirements and user characteristics 

 Project system revenues 

 Allocate costs to potable water and reclaimed water systems and to the customer classes 
of these systems 

 Update water rates 

 Present results 

 Provide the Utility with rate model for Utility staff use 

References throughout this report made to a year or FY mean the year beginning July 1 and 
ending June 30. Water rates in effect beginning July 1, 2012 are designated as FY 2012/13 
rates.  

The analysis spans a 7-year period beginning in FY 2011/12 and ending in FY 2017/18 – 
hereinafter referred to as the study period. Transition to cost-of-service rates is assumed to 
begin in FY 2013/14 with a rate increase and rate restructuring, followed by additional rate 
increases and transition towards revenue-neutral cost-of-service rates through FY 2017/18.  
The 4-year period between FY 2014/15 and FY 2017/18 is called the adjustment period or 
forecast period. 

It should be noted that this study considers the financial effects of prospective capital 
projects that are included in the Utility’s capital improvement plan (CIP) for the water 
system. This study uses current and anticipated new debt service amounts needed to fund 
the planned improvements at the time this study was prepared. The study also considers 
anticipated system growth rates, assumptions regarding future cost increases, additional 



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 1-2 

operating costs that maybe incurred from new capital improvements, and known changes in 
costs associated with regulatory assessments and water purchases from outside agencies.  

Water Use Trends 

As indicated in the 2012 Water Rates Analysis Report, the Utility has experienced a reduction 
in total water use of 9.2 percent over the last 7 years, and water use decreased by 1.3 percent 
during FY 2011/12 from the previous year (without a rate increase).1  Figure 1-1 provides 
the historic potable and reclaimed water use for the past 7 years.  

 

FIGURE 1-1 

Water use in Oro Valley continues to decline on both a total and average per account basis.  
As such, the Operating Fund revenue projections (discussed in the Financial Plan section of 
this report) incorporates a reduction in billed volumes by 1.3 percent annually for all potable 
water customer classes to account for conservation trends in water use.  The decline in water 
use was incorporated on a per account basis. However, total water consumption increases 
slightly due to account growth.  

Growth Trends 

The historic growth rates for the last 7 years are illustrated in Figure 1-2.  

                                                      
1 Water Rates Analysis Report, Town of Oro Valley, November 7, 2012, page 4. 



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 1-3 

 

FIGURE 1-2 

The historic growth rate declined significantly through FY 2010/11, however it has trended 
upwards again in the past 2 years as the number of new connections per year has been 
increasing from the low point of 61 new connections recorded in FY 2010/11.  

Organization of this Report 

This report is organized into the following sections: 

 Financial Plan – The purpose of this section is to present the basis for projections of 
operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses, CIP, and debt service planned through 
FY 2017/18. This section shows the financial results that would occur by implementing 
the recommended capital projects and levels of operation with annual increases to 
commodity rates and charges.  

 Cost of Service – The purpose of this section is to present the results and key findings of 
the Cost of Service study conducted to evaluate the cost of service for the Utility’s 
existing customer classes.  

 Rate Design – The purpose of this section is to present the results and key findings for 
the rate structure option considered. This section provides recommendations and 
considerations for changes to the existing rate structure to shift each customer class 
closer to its cost of service.  

 Preferred Financial Scenario – The purpose of this section is to present the results of the 
rate study analysis to reflect the Utility’s familiarity of tables developed in previous 
Water Rates Analysis Reports. 

 Bill Impacts – The purpose of this section is to present the bill impact of the new rates 
on the Utility’s most common users. Monthly residential and commercial bills at the 
proposed rates are compared to monthly bills of surrounding utilities at various usage 
levels is also included in this section.  



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 2-1 

2. Financial Plan 

The purpose of this section is to summarize the Town of Oro Valley Water Utility’s (the 
Utility) future Operating Fund revenue requirements, provide a 5-year projection of 
Operating Fund cash flows, and estimate debt service coverage (on a combined-funds 
basis).   

Structure of Funds 

The Utility manages three separate funds; the Operating Fund, the Alternative Water 
Resources Development Impact Fee (AWRDIF) Fund, and the Potable Water System 
Development Impact Fee (PWSDIF) Fund. Each fund is briefly discussed below: 

 Operating Fund - The primary fund for the Utility which includes management of O&M 
and labor expenditures for the potable and reclaimed water systems, and non-growth 
capital expenditures related to the existing system. Revenue for this fund is generated 
through potable and reclaimed water sales, service fees and charges, investment income, 
and other miscellaneous revenue.  

 AWRDIF Fund – This fund includes capital expenditures related to alternative water 
resource projects such as Central Arizona Project (CAP) and reclaimed water and the 
related debt service. Revenue generated from groundwater preservation fees (GPF) is 
transferred to this fund.  Impact fees collected at the time new water meters are 
purchased and interest income on cash reserves is also accrued in this fund.  

 PWSDIF Fund – This fund includes capital expenditures related to expansion or growth 
projects for the potable water system and related debt service.  Revenue for this fund is 
generated through impact fees collected when new water meters are purchased and 
through interest income on cash reserves.  

Revenue and expenses from each of the three funds are combined to calculate the Utility’s 
debt service requirements according to Town policies and as stated in bond covenants. 
However, revenues and expenses from these funds are managed separately.  

Operating Fund revenue generated through water sales is projected based on the 
assumptions and analysis discussed in the following sections. The projected impact fee 
revenue generated for the AWRDIF and PWSDIF Funds are based on growth projections 
discussed herein and proposed impact fees discussed in the Oro Valley Water Utility 
Development Impact Fees Study report2. 

                                                      
2 CH2M HILL, Oro Valley Water Utility Development Impact Fees Study, October 2013.   



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 2-2 

General Assumptions 

The financial plan for the Operating Fund is based on the general assumptions provided in 
Table 2-1.  

TABLE 2-1 

Operating Fund General Assumptions  

Description Unit  

Inflation for O&M Categories and Interest  

Labor and Benefits 3.5% 

General Inflation 2.0% 

Inflation plus Growth (5-year average) 4.0%
1 

Electricity  14%
2 

Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment 
District 

Calculated 

Interest Rate on Cash Reserves 0.5% 

Proposed Bond Terms  

Bond Period 20 years 

Issuance Costs 1% of Principal  

Interest Rate 2.7% 

Debt Service Coverage Requirements  

Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 1.3 

Excise Tax Backed Bonds 1.0 

Number of Months Rates Effective 6 months 

Elasticity of Demand -0.20 

Target Cash Reserve Balance No less than $3,000,000 

1
The average growth rate for the planning period is 2 percent. Annual Inflation plus Growth  

  ranges from 3.6% to 4.2% due to the varying growth rate during the 5-year planning period.  
2
The electricity rate is expected to increase in July of FY 2013/14 and again in FY 2017/18 based  

  upon the tariff currently proposed by TEP to the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

These assumptions are utilized in the analysis as described in following sections. 

Operating Fund 

Revenue Forecast 

The revenue forecast was based on analysis of the Utility’s monthly billing data for 
FY 2009/10 through FY 2011/12 and a projection of water usage and growth in number of 
new connections.  



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 2-3 

The Utility anticipates the growth rate to continue to increase and provided the projected 
number of equivalent dwelling units (EDU) for the next 6 years.  The projected annual 
growth in the number of EDUs is provided in Table 2-2. 

TABLE 2-2 

Projected Annual Growth in Number of EDUs 

Calendar Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Projected Additional System EDUs 300 300 400 400 400 450 

Allocation of EDUs to Customer Classes 

Residential 265 265 353 353 353 397 

Commercial 26 26 35 35 35 39 

Multifamily Residential 3 3 4 4 4 5 

Irrigation 6 6 8 8 8 9 

All Other Classes 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Existing System EDUs 23,208      

Total System EDUs 23,508 23,808 24,208 24,608 25,008 25,458 

       

Annual growth is forecasted to increase from the current level of approximately 300 EDUs 
to 450 EDUs by the end of the forecast period.  Projected additional system EDU’s were 
allocated across all classes according to the distribution in the number of accounts by class. 

The detailed projection of water revenue under existing rates is provided in the attached 
Appendix A – Financial Plan Tables, Table A-1. 

Operations and Maintenance Expenses 

The Utility operations and maintenance (O&M) expenses were analyzed and projected for 
the financial plan period. O&M expenses include personnel, administration, production, 
and distribution expenses for both potable water and reclaimed water.  Baseline O&M 
expenses were based on the Town Manager’s FY 2013/14 budget and future O&M expenses 
were forecasted using the assumptions in Table 2-1.  The Utility does not anticipate hiring 
additional personnel during the financial plan period, therefore, only an annual cost-of-
living and merit increases (3.5 percent combined) were used to project future labor and 
benefits expenditures.  

In addition, annual regulatory assessments and water purchases from outside agencies are 
included in the annual O&M budget.  The Utility purchases CAP water for recharge and for 
water wheeling through Tucson Water. The planned recharge rate for the forecast period is 
anticipated to increase from 7,000 AF to 9,000 AF.  

The Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment District (CAGRD), Tucson Water 
Wheeling Costs, and CAP Recharge costs are also included in the O&M budget.  These costs 
may vary from year-to-year and have been incorporated into the analysis based on figures 
provided by the Utility. 



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 2-4 

The complete O&M expense analysis is provided in Appendix A, Table A-2.  

Debt Service 

Annual debt obligations are met by the revenue generated in the three funds, the Operating 
Fund, the AWRDIF, and the PWSDIF.  A summary of the existing debt allocated to each of 
these funds is provided in the Appendix A, Table A-3. The remaining outstanding principal 
balance for each fund as of the beginning of FY 2012/13 is listed in Table 2-3, below. 

TABLE 2-3 

Remaining Outstanding Principal Balance as of FY 2012/13 

Fund Outstanding Principal Balance 

Operating Fund $30,822,990 

AWRDIF $12,967,610 

PWSDIF $  3,091,660 

Total $46,882,260 

  

Only the Operating Fund debt service was included in the analysis of revenue requirements 
(for potable and reclaimed rates).  However, the combined debt service coverage for all 
funds was calculated using all sources of revenue; the debt service coverage ratio was 
calculated by dividing net revenue from all sources by the combined debt service from all 
three funds. Although the debt service coverage ratio is 1.3 for Senior Lien Loans and 1.0 for 
Excise Tax Loans (which are considered junior obligations) the Utility manages to a target 
1.3 debt service coverage ratio for all loans.   

The Utility’s calculation of debt service coverage is provided in the Preferred Financial 
Scenario proformas located in Appendix C.  Debt service coverage and cash reserves are the 
two primary metrics that govern the determination of required revenues.  

Capital Outlay 

While O&M expenses cover day-to-day operations, the Utility incurs additional capital 
expenditures to replace existing water facilities.  These non-growth-related capital 
expenditures (i.e., existing system improvements) are provided in Appendix A, Table A-4.  
Debt is planned to fund these future capital improvements in FY 2013/14 and FY 2015/16.  

New facilities for planned future growth are identified separately in a long-term CIP 
associated with the PWSDIF for expansion related water projects and the AWRDIF for 
alternative water projects. These growth related capital projects are not funded with 
Operating Fund revenue, and therefore are not considered in this analysis.  



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 2-5 

Summary of Revenue Requirements  

A summary of the Operating Fund revenue requirements for the 5-year planning period is 
presented in Table 2-4.  

TABLE 2-4 

Projection of Operating Fund Revenue Requirements 

Utility Expenditures 
FY 2013/14  

$ 
FY 2014/15  

$ 
FY 2015/16  

$ 
FY 2016/17  

$ 
FY 2017/18  

$ 

Personnel 2,688,464  2,782,560  2,879,950  2,980,748  3,085,074  

Operations & Maintenance 3,800,775  3,606,386  3,689,728  3,774,540  4,009,403  

Groundwater Extinguishment 
Credits 405,000  405,000  405,000  -  -  

CAP Wheeling Costs (includes 
TW + CAP water Costs) 718,065  718,065  918,065  962,512  962,512  

CAP Recharge Costs 1,043,250  1,101,500  1,301,000  1,321,000  1,329,000  

CAGRD Costs 150,000  285,000  359,000  -  -  

Subtotal Expenditures 8,805,554  8,898,512  9,552,743  9,038,800  9,385,989  

Debt Service  3,289,202  3,724,170  3,757,470  3,931,877  3,645,455  

Capital Outlay 2,611,200  2,835,090  3,533,823  3,517,905  745,255  

Total Expenditures 14,705,956 15,457,772 16,844,036 16,488,582 13,776,699 

 

Cash Flow Analysis 

The 5-year financial plan was developed to meet the following objectives: 

 Revenues adjusted to meet annual revenue requirements, cash reserves, and debt service 
coverage requirements. 

 Debt issued to fund capital improvement according to the Utility’s funding plans. 

 The ending cash balance in the Operating Fund maintained to meet the Utility’s 
requirements and financial objectives. 

A summary of the annual revenue increases, debt issuances, and the operating fund balance 
is provided in the Financial Plan tables in Appendix A. The Financial Plan serves as the 
basis for the Cost of Service Analysis, Rate Design, and the Preferred Financial Scenario. 
Following the initial analysis of rate scenarios and discussions of the initial rate study 
results with its stakeholders, the Utility confirmed the basis of the Preferred Financial 
Scenario, which forms the foundation for recommended rates and cash flow summary as 
presented in Section 5: Preferred Financial Scenario.  



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 2-6 

Development Impact Fee Funds 

Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Fund 

The AWRDIF Funds may be used for capital expenditures related to alternative water 
resources including reclaimed water and CAP water. Revenue is generated for this fund 
through impact fees collected when a new water meter is purchased and from interest 
earned on cash balances. Also, the GPF, collected through the Operating Fund, is transferred 
to AWRDIF Fund for repayment of the outstanding debt for the reclaimed water delivery 
system and for future debt on the CAP water delivery system.  

Impact fee revenues projected for the planning period are based on the growth projections 
discussed in the Operating Fund section and using the proposed impact fee in the recent 
development impact fee report. The revenue generated by impact fees was added to the 
projected revenue generated by the GPF with no increase to the current GPF. The revenue 
requirements for this fund include the existing debt service, proposed CIP for alternative 
water projects, and repayment of funds to the Operating Fund. The projected revenue and 
revenue requirements for the 5-year planning period are presented in Appendix C, 
Table C-2.  

Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Fund 

The Potable Water Development Impact Fee (PWSDIF) Fund is used to fund capital water 
projects related to growth. These improvements include new potable water reservoirs, 
pump stations, water mains, and wells that are required to meet the demands of new 
customers. However, there are no capital projects scheduled for the 5-year planning period, 
so revenue generated in this fund will be used for existing debt service. The revenue sources 
for the PWSDIF Fund include impact fees collected when a new water meter is purchased 
and from interest earned on cash balances. An updated impact fee for this fund is discussed 
in the development impact fee report.  

Impact fee revenues projected for the planning period are based on the growth projections 
discussed in the Operating Fund section. The revenue requirements for this fund include 
existing debt and growth-related CIP projects. Since no additional capital improvements are 
planned for this fund over the next 5 years, the revenue will be used to pay down existing 
debt for previously constructed growth related projects. The projected cash flow for this 
fund is provided in Appendix C, Table C-3.  

 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 3-1 

3. Cost of Service 

The purpose of this section is to summarize the results of the Utility’s cost of service 
analysis.  The complete cost of service analysis, discussion, and tables were provided in 
separate technical memorandum, dated June 11, 2013. 

The base-extra capacity method described in American Water Works Association (AWWA) 
Manual M1 – Principles of water Rates, Fees, and Charges was used to allocate Oro Valley’s 
water system costs.  The AWWA Manual M1 defines base-extra capacity as the cost 
allocation method in which “costs of service are classified to the functional cost components 
of base, extra capacity, and customer costs.”3  

The fundamental principle used in developing an equitable rate structure is to distribute 
costs such that each customer class pays its proportionate share of the total system costs. 
Customers are grouped into reasonably homogeneous classes, and the cost of serving each 
class is calculated. Rates can then be developed to recover the cost of serving each customer 
class from the users within that class.  

Summary of Results 

The cost of service results supported a reduction in revenues derived from the commercial 
and master-metered multifamily customers, which would necessitate new customer classes.  
Using the new customer classifications, revenue under existing rates, calculated cost of 
service, and difference between the two is provided in Table 3-1.  

TABLE 3-1 

Revenue and Cost of Service for Proposed Customer Classes 

Customer Class 

Revenue at 
Existing Rates Cost of Service Variance 

$ $ % 

Residential and Irrigation (combined) 8,892,828 9,182,740 3.3 

Commercial and Master-Metered 
Multifamily (combined) 1,383,707 1,125,977 (18.6) 

Turf 109,251 178,030 63.0 

Construction 161,898 60,937 (62.4) 

Reclaimed 1,451,555 1,451,555 (0.0)  

Total System 11,999,239 11,999,239 0.00 

    

                                                      
3 American Water Works Association (AWWA) Manual M1 – Principles of water Rates, Fees, and Charges , Fifth Edition, 
American Water Works Association, Page 51. 



  

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 3-2 

In order to achieve its cost of service, the new commercial and master-metered multifamily 
residential customer classes would require an 18.6 percent reduction in revenues generated 
from water rates while the residential and irrigation customer class would require a 
3.3 percent increase.  These results were a significant factor in recommending changes to the 
Utility’s rates and rate structure in this study, as described in the following Section 4: Rate 
Design.  

While the difference in percentage terms between the turf and construction customer classes 
is relatively large, these classes are insignificant in terms of cost recovery, representing less 
than 2 percent of the Utility’s revenue under existing rates.  In addition, these classes exhibit 
somewhat offsetting results.  Because of their relatively small size, unique customer 
characteristics4, and offsetting results, no rate structure changes were recommended for 
these classes.  Based on the Utility’s internal analysis, the reclaimed customer class is 
currently meeting its cost of service as reclaimed revenues are adequate to pay for reclaimed 
operations and maintenance, and renewal and replacement capital costs.  

                                                      
4 The construction class cost of service is likely understated as a result of the temporary demands these accounts place on the 
system.  Additionally, these accounts do not pay impact fees to fund capital improvements needed to meet their demands. 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 4-1 

4. Rate Design 

Introduction 

The purpose of this rate design section is to develop a schedule of proposed rates that 
recover system revenue requirements based on a number of factors, including customer 
class cost of service, ease of administration and implementation, and conservation 
orientation.  The proposed rate structure includes a new uniform commodity rate for 
commercial and master-metered multifamily customers.  The current rate structure was 
maintained for residential and irrigation customers (a four-tier commodity rate), turf 
customers (a uniform commodity rate equal to the Tier 1 residential rate), and potable-water 
construction customers (a uniform commodity rate equal to $1.00 more than the Tier 4 
residential rate).  Development of the recommended rate adjustments is described in the 
following sections.  

Assumptions 

The following assumptions were used in the water rates analysis: 

 The proposed rate restructuring (to uniform commercial and master-metered 
multifamily commodity rates) and rate increases are revenue neutral over the forecast 
period. 

 Proposed rate increases are levelized over the forecast period to avoid sudden shifts in 
water rates. 

 Operating Fund ending cash balances do not fall below the minimum cash reserve target 
of $3.0 million throughout the forecast period. 

 The rate adjustments consider the price elasticity of demand. An estimated price 
elasticity for Oro Valley was assumed to be approximately -0.2 (i.e., a 10 percent increase 
in price, resulted in approximately a 2 percent reduction in demand). 

 Rates developed for all FYs are assumed to be effective beginning in January of each FY. 

Existing Rates 

The existing Utility rate structure includes a base rate dependent on meter size, and a 
commodity rate for water usage.  Residential, multifamily residential, commercial, and 
irrigation customer classes are charged the same tiered commodity rates for water usage 
that vary by meter size. Water usage for turf and reclaimed classes is assessed the Tier 1 rate 
and the potable construction water rate is $1.00 more than the Tier 4 commodity. Table 4-1 
provides Oro Valley’s current water rates. 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 4-2 

TABLE 4-1 

Oro Valley Existing Water Rates – Residential, Multifamily Residential, Commercial, and Irrigation 

Meter 
Size Base Rate 

Commodity Tier 1 
$2.20 per  

1,000 gallons 

Commodity Tier 2 
$2.99 per  

1,000 gallons 

Commodity Tier 3 
$4.03 per  

1,000 gallons 

Commodity Tier 4 
$5.38 per  

1,000 gallons 

5/8 x 3/4 $14.19 0 - 7,000 7,001 - 16,000 16,001 - 32,000 Over 32,000 

3/4 x 3/4 $21.29 0 - 10,000 10,001 - 24,000 24,001 - 48,000 Over 48,000 

1 $35.48 0 - 17,000 17,001 - 40,000 40,001 - 80,000 Over 80,000 

1.5 $70.95 0 - 35,000 35,001 - 80,000 80,001 - 160,000 Over 160,000 

2 $113.53 0 - 56,000 56,001 - 128,000 128,001 - 256,000 Over 256,000 

3 $227.05 0 - 112,000 112,001 - 256,000 256,000 - 512,000 Over 512,000 

4 $354.77 0 - 175,000 175,001 - 400,000 400,001 - 800,000 Over 800,000 

6 $709.54 0 - 860,000 860,001 - 2,000,000 2,000,001 - 3,500,000 Over 3,500,000 

8 $1,135.26 0 - 860,000 860,001 - 2,000,000 2,000,001 - 3,500,000 Over 3,500,000 

      

Usage for the turf and reclaimed water customer classes is currently billed at the Tier 1 rate 
of $2.20/1,000 gallons. The potable water construction rate is equal to $1.00 greater than the 
Tier 4 rate, or $6.38/1,000 gallons.  

Rate Design and Proposed Rates  

The proposed rate design maintains a tiered structure for the residential and irrigation 
customer classes, transitions the commercial and master-metered multifamily customers 
into new customer classes with a uniform commodity rate, and maintains the uniform 
commodity rate for turf, construction, and reclaimed water customers.   

Base Rates 

The cost of service analysis indicated that base rates should remain the same when 
compared to current base rates. As such, the current base rates assessed to all customer 
classes remain the same in all years of the forecast period.  The current and proposed base 
rates by meter size are listed in Table 4-1 above.  

Commodity Rates 

The block sizes, rate differential between tiers, and rate structure for each customer class 
were evaluated to develop the proposed commodity rates. Water usage block thresholds are 
unchanged for the proposed rate structure for the residential and irrigation customer 
classes.  

An analysis of the residential and irrigation usage indicated the current block structure for 
the residential and irrigation classes is currently achieving the Utility’s cost recovery 
objectives. The distribution of the volume of water consumption between tiers for 
residential, irrigation and the two customer classes combined is provided in Table 4-2. 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 4-3 

TABLE 4-2 

Distribution of Residential and Irrigation Water Consumption – Percentage of Usage by Tier  

Meter 
Size 

Distribution of Residential Volume  Distribution of Irrigation Volume  
Distribution of  

Residential and Irrigation Volume 

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 

5/8" 66% 24% 8% 2% 27% 20% 19% 34% 65% 24% 8% 2% 

3/4" 68% 26% 6% 1% 57% 31% 11% 2% 67% 26% 6% 1% 

1" 68% 24% 7% 1% 38% 28% 21% 14% 58% 25% 11% 5% 

1 1/2" 65% 35% 0% 0% 29% 24% 22% 24% 30% 24% 22% 24% 

2" 100% 0% 0% 0% 28% 23% 24% 25% 28% 23% 24% 25% 

3" 0% 0% 0% 0% 17% 20% 27% 36% 17% 20% 27% 36% 

4" 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 16% 23% 41% 20% 16% 23% 41% 

             

As demonstrated in the table above, the majority of residential water use occurred in the 
Tier 1 block (approximately 65 to 70 percent); approximately 25 percent in the Tier 2 block; 
and less than 10 percent and 5 percent in the Tier 3 and Tier 4 blocks, respectively.  
Irrigation water usage was roughly 25 percent per block (across all meter sizes).  Therefore, 
proposed commodity rates maintain the current tier structure for residential and irrigation 
customer classes with a rate differential between tiers of 35 percent, which is the same as the 
current tier-differential. 

An analysis of the commercial and master-metered multifamily water usage indicated an 
inconstant and more random distribution between tiers and between meter sizes.  The 
distribution of the volume of water consumption between tiers for commercial and master-
metered multifamily customers is provided in Table 4-3. 

TABLE 4-3 

Distribution of Commercial and Master-Metered Multifamily Water Consumption – Percentage of Usage by Tier  

Meter 
Size 

Distribution of Commercial Volume  
Distribution of  

Master-Metered Multifamily Volume 
Distribution of Commercial and 

Master-Metered Multifamily Volume 

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 

5/8" 19% 12% 15% 54% 0% 0% 0% 0% 19% 12% 15% 54% 

3/4" 81% 19% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 81% 19% 0% 0% 

1" 49% 21% 15% 15% 29% 26% 40% 5% 45% 22% 20% 13% 

1 1/2" 53% 19% 14% 14% 76% 19% 4% 1% 63% 19% 9% 9% 

2" 50% 27% 18% 5% 47% 26% 19% 8% 49% 26% 19% 6% 

3" 41% 18% 18% 23% 0% 0% 0% 0% 41% 18% 18% 23% 

4" 18% 21% 27% 34% 28% 36% 31% 5% 23% 27% 28% 22% 

6” 53% 35% 12% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 53% 35% 12% 0% 

             



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 4-4 

As demonstrated in the table above, commercial customers are using significantly more 
water in the upper tiers than other customer classes.  Master-metered multifamily customers 
are also using more water in the Tier 2 and Tier 3 when compared to residential customers.  
These consumption patterns are likely contributing to the commercial and master-metered 
multifamily customers exceeding their cost of service.  In addition, the more random 
distribution of consumption between meter sizes may introduce somewhat arbitrary cost 
recovery within a given customer class.  The cost of service results together with the water 
consumption distribution analysis supports moving commercial and master-metered 
multifamily customers to new, uniform commodity rate for all consumption (equal to 
proposed residential Tier 1 commodity rate).  It should be noted that patio homes, which 
were formerly classified as multifamily customers, are now included as residential 
customers in the proposed rate structure design.  

In keeping with Oro Valley’s current policy, the potable water turf rate is equal to the Tier 1 
residential commodity rate.  There is only one customer in the turf classification, which is a 
golf course that is supplied from the potable water system due to the location and expense 
of construction to extend the reclaimed water system.  Consistent with current policy, the 
proposed potable water construction rate is $1.00 more than the Tier 4 rate since 
construction water is provided through a temporary meter and no impact fees are collected.     

The Utility conducted an analysis of total operating expenses attributable to the reclaimed 
water system, which demonstrated that all reclaimed O&M expenses are currently met with 
revenues from reclaimed water rates.  As a result, reclaimed rates increase more gradually 
than potable water rates, consistent with the Town of Oro Valley Water Policies. 

Proposed rates for the Preferred Financial Scenario 5-year forecast period are listed in 
Table 4-4.  

The rate increases in Table 4-4 vary from year to year in order to achieve the revenue 
requirements defined in Utility’s financial plan.  Rate increases in percentage terms will 
normally be slightly higher than the required revenue increases due to the elasticity of water 
demand (customers will reduce consumption due to an increase in price).  The complete 
schedule of proposed base rates and commodity rates is provided in Appendix B. 

 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 4-5 

 

TABLE 4-4 

Current and Proposed Commodity Rates  

Customer Classes 

FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 

Current Rate 
($/1,000 gallon) 

Proposed Rate 
($/1,000 gallon) 

Proposed Rate 
($/1,000 gallon) 

Proposed Rate 
($/1,000 gallon) 

Proposed Rate 
($/1,000 gallon) 

Proposed Rate  
($/1,000 gallon) 

Residential
 

Tier 1 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30 

Tier 2 2.99 3.01 3.06 3.11 3.11 3.11 

Tier 3 4.03 4.07 4.13 4.19 4.19 4.19 

Tier 4 5.38 5.49 5.58 5.66 5.66 5.66 

Irrigation 

Tier 1 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30 

Tier 2 2.99 3.01 3.06 3.11 3.11 3.11 

Tier 3 4.03 4.07 4.13 4.19 4.19 4.19 

Tier 4 5.38 5.49 5.58 5.66 5.66 5.66 

Commercial 2.20
1
 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30 

Master-Metered Multifamily
 

2.20
1
 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30 

Turf 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30 

Construction 6.38 6.49 6.58 6.66 6.66 6.66 

All Reclaimed Classes 2.20 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.27 2.27 

1 
Commercial and Multifamily Tier 1 rate.  



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 4-6 

Revenue calculated using the proposed commodity rates in Table 4-4 above, along with 
revenue generated from base rates satisfies the revenue requirements for the 5-year 
planning period. The projected revenue from the base rate and proposed commodity rates 
by customer class is provided in Table 4-5. 

TABLE 4-5 

Projected Revenue at Proposed Rates  

Customer Class 
FY 2012/13

1 

(Dollars)
 

FY 2013/14 
(Dollars) 

FY 2014/15 
(Dollars) 

FY 2015/16 
(Dollars) 

FY 2016/17 
(Dollars) 

FY 2017/18 
(Dollars) 

Residential 4,566,073 4,590,059 4,668,356 4,753,674 4,816,682 4,853,076 

Commercial 669,759 506,807 553,006 599,057 642,183 684,987 

Multifamily Residential 237,674 182,390 187,745 193,075 197,528 201,800 

Irrigation 916,175 923,202 941,725 960,550 974,712 983,858 

Turf 104,639 103,741 103,612 103,475 102,891 101,553 

Construction 95,375 94,615 94,573 94,314 93,649 92,435 

Turf-Reclaimed 1,395,759 1,395,759 1,402,009 1,418,693 1,429,254 1,429,254 

Irrigation-Reclaimed 4,368 4,368 4,388 4,440 4,473 4,473 

Construction-Reclaimed 730 730 734 742 748 748 

Sub-Total Commodity Revenue 7,990,552 7,801,672 7,956,146 8,128,019 8,262,120 8,352,183 

Base Rate Revenue 4,008,686 4,088,101 4,194,247 4,300,393 4,406,538 4,526,117 

Total Projected Revenue 11,999,238 11,889,773 12,150,394 12,428,412 12,668,658 12,878,300 

Required Revenue
2
 11,999,238 12,022,642 12,144,394 12,403,832 12,628,369 12,851,268 

% Difference Projected and 
Required Revenue 0.00% 1.12% -0.05% -0.20% -0.32% -0.21% 

1
Revenue projected at existing rates. 

2
Required Revenue as presented in the Financial Plan Section. 

Projected revenues meet the revenue requirement over the 5-year forecast period, with the 
exception of the first year (FY 2013/14), following the rate restructuring.  In the early years 
of the projections, where projected revenues fall short of the indicated revenue requirement, 
ending cash balances will be utilized to smooth the transition to higher water rates, while 
maintaining ending cash balances and debt service coverage requirements. 

Other Service Fees and Charges 

The new development hydraulic and design review fees and the new development 
construction inspection fees are proposed to increase to recover costs incurred to provide 
these services. The Utility is also proposing to increase the late payment fee.  The current fee 
is a flat rate of $5.00.  It is proposed to be $5.00 or 1 percent of the outstanding balance 
whichever is greater.  These updated service fees and charges were developed by the Utility 
and are located in Appendix B.  No change is proposed for the remaining service fees and 
charges. 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 4-7 

Rate Considerations and Recommendations 

The proposed rate design includes a mix of new and existing rates and rate structures that 
recover system revenue requirements, achieve the Utility’s implementation goals, and 
maintain an ongoing conservation orientation.  The overarching rate design consideration 
was the modification of all rates, as appropriate, to move each customer class closer to its 
cost of service while avoiding sudden shifts in rates. 

The proposed residential and irrigation rate structure remains the same, as their combined 
revenue under the current structure effectively recovers their respective costs of service. 
Proposed residential and irrigation commodity rates increase approximately 1.5 percent 
over the next 3 years.  Proposed base rates for all customer classes remain unchanged. 

Commercial and master-metered multifamily customers were moved into new customer 
classes with a new rate structure that reflects their lower cost of service (the combined 
revenue generated by these classes was approximately 30 percent greater than their cost of 
service).  Commercial and master-metered customers were transitioned to a new, uniform 
commodity rate equal to the proposed Tier 1 residential rates, which more closely recovers 
their cost of service.   

The Utility’s existing policy for turf and customers remains the same (i.e., the commodity 
rate equals the proposed Tier 1 residential rate).  The reclaimed rate structure remains the 
same and the proposed reclaimed commodity rate remains the same in the first year of the 
forecast period, followed by gradual increases thereafter.  The construction rate is consistent 
with current rates ($1.00 greater than the proposed Tier 4 residential rate). 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 5-1 

5. Preferred Financial Scenario 

The Preferred Financial Scenario was developed to reflect the Utility’s familiarity with tables 
from previous Water Rates Analysis Reports. The basis for the Preferred Financial Scenario 
and the underlying assumptions are described within the following sections.  Proformas for 
the Preferred Financial Scenario can be found in Appendix C.  

In the development of the Preferred Financial Scenario, the goals were to ensure that all 
existing rate setting policies were met, to propose rate increases that would not result in rate 
shock, and to utilize cash reserves to fund capital projects and minimize future debt.  

WIFA loans to fund capital projects are included in the Preferred Financial Scenario in the 
amounts of $5.0 million in FY 2013/14 and $3.0 million in FY2015/16. Analysis of the 
Preferred Financial Scenario indicates cash reserves can be used to fund FY 2014/15 capital 
projects. Proceeds from the two WIFA loans are received over a 4-year period because loan 
proceeds are received only after the capital expenditures are made.  Capital projects planned 
in the final 2 years of the planning period can be funded by cash reserves. The projected 
ending cash balance of the Operating Fund at the end of the 5-year analysis period is 
$3.4 million.    

The Preferred Financial Scenario also builds the cash balance of the AWRDIF Fund over the 
5-year period. Building this cash balance will be important as the Town moves forward with 
increased deliveries of CAP water.  

The Preferred Financial Scenario financial projections for the PWSDIF Fund assume no new 
growth-related capital projects during the forecast period. Debt service for previously 
constructed growth-related facilities will continue to be paid from revenues collected from 
impact fees. Both the AWRDIF and PWSDIF were recently updated and revised and these 
proposed fees can be found in the Water Utility Development Impact Fees Study, dated 
October 2013. 

The projections for the Operating Fund, AWRDIF Fund, and the PWSDIF Fund were 
combined to evaluate the overall debt service coverage at the end of the FY. Analysis of the 
proposed rates presented in this report and the proposed impact fees discussed in the 
development impact fees report indicate the Utility will meet the debt service coverage 
requirement by the Oro Valley Mayor and Council Water Policies and Bond Covenants for 
all 5 years.  



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 5-2 

Based on the analysis discussed in this report, the following changes to the rate structure are 
recommended: 

 Maintain the current tiered rate structure for Residential customer class and the 
Irrigation customer class. 

 Assess the Commercial customer class and the Master-Metered Multifamily customer 
class a uniform commodity rate equal to the Tier 1 Residential rate. 

 Maintain current Utility policies of setting the Turf rate as a uniform commodity rate 
and equal to the Tier 1 Residential rate.   

 Comply with current Utility policies of setting Reclaimed rates at a reduced rate.  The 
reclaimed rates have no increase in FY 2013/14 but will have a gradual increase over the 
5-year forecast period.   

 Maintain current Utility policy for Construction water rates of $1.00 greater than the 
Tier 4 Residential rate.  

 No increase required to the monthly base rate for potable or reclaimed water use. 

 No increase to the GPF for potable or reclaimed water use. 

 No change in the block thresholds for residential and irrigation classes. 

This Preferred Financial Scenario generates the revenue needed to maintain an adequate 
cash balance in all funds and meets the Utility’s debt service coverage requirements. An 
analysis of the impact of the proposed water rates on single family residential and 
commercial customers is provided in the following Bill Impact section of this report.  



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 6-1 

6. Bill Impacts 

CH2M HILL analyzed the bill impact of the new rates on the Utility’s most common users.  
All potable water users also pay a groundwater preservation fee (GPF) of $0.95 per 
1,000 gallons, which is included in the monthly bill.  There is no change proposed to the 
groundwater preservation fee. 

Preferred Financial Scenario Bill Impact 

The following section provides examples of the bill impacts on a residential customer and a 
commercial customer.  Bill impacts for specific customer classes and individual meter sizes 
are provided in Appendix D. 

Residential rates and bill impacts for customers with a 5/8- x 3/4–inch meter are shown 
below in Table 6-1.  The residential tier thresholds (7,000, 16,000, and 32,000) are highlighted 
in yellow and the average consumption level (8,000 gallons) is highlighted in blue.  

TABLE 6-1 

Residential Class Customer Bill Impacts (5/8- x 3/4-inch meter) 

Gallons 
Used 

Current 

Water Rate 

FY 2012/13
 

Proposed 

Water Rate 

FY 2013/14 

Groundwater 
Preservation 

Fee
1 

Current 
Monthly Bill 
FY 2012/13 

Proposed 
Monthly Bill 
FY 2013/14 

Amount 
of 

Increase 
Percent 
Increase 

0 14.19 14.19 0.00 14.19 14.19 - 0.0% 

1,000 16.39 16.42 0.95 17.34 17.37 0.03 0.2% 

2,000 18.59 18.65 1.90 20.49 20.55 0.06 0.3% 

3,000 20.79 20.88 2.85 23.64 23.73 0.09 0.4% 

4,000 22.99 23.11 3.80 26.79 26.91 0.12 0.4% 

5,000 25.19 25.34 4.75 29.94 30.09 0.15 0.5% 

6,000 27.39 27.57 5.70 33.09 33.27 0.18 0.5% 

7,000 29.59 29.80 6.65 36.24 36.45 0.21 0.6% 

8,000 32.58 32.81 7.60 40.18 40.41 0.23 0.6% 

9,000 35.57 35.82 8.55 44.12 44.37 0.25 0.6% 

10,000 38.56 38.83 9.50 48.06 48.33 0.27 0.6% 

11,000 41.55 41.84 10.45 52.00 52.29 0.29 0.6% 

12,000 44.54 44.85 11.40 55.94 56.25 0.31 0.6% 

13,000 47.53 47.86 12.35 59.88 60.21 0.33 0.6% 

14,000 50.52 50.87 13.30 63.82 64.17 0.35 0.5% 

15,000 53.51 53.88 14.25 67.76 68.13 0.37 0.5% 

16,000 56.50 56.89 15.20 71.70 72.09 0.39 0.5% 

20,000 72.62 73.17 19.00 91.62 92.17 0.55 0.5% 

30,000 112.92 113.87 28.50 141.42 142.37 0.95 0.7% 

32,000 120.98 122.01 30.40 151.38 152.41 1.03 0.7% 

33,000 126.36 127.50 31.35 157.71 158.85 1.14 0.7% 

1
No proposed change in the GPF. 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 6-2 

The average residential customer’s monthly bill will increase $0.23 – a 0.6 percent increase in 
their monthly bill under the proposed rates.  Bill impacts are larger at higher consumption 
levels as a result of the increasing proportion of commodity rates to base rates.  

Commercial rates and bill impacts for customers with a 2-inch meter (the most common 
commercial meter size) are provided in Table 6-2.  The 2-inch meter tier thresholds (56,000, 
128,000, and 256,000) are highlighted in yellow and the 2-inch meter average consumption 
level (60,000 gallons) is highlighted in blue.  Negative dollars are shown using parentheses 
and percentages using a minus sign (-).  

TABLE 6-2 

Commercial Class Customer Bill Impacts (2-inch meter) 

Gallons 
Used 

Current 

Water Rate 

FY 2012/13
 

Proposed 

Water Rate 

FY 2013/14 

Groundwater 
Preservation 

Fee
1
 

Current 
Monthly Bill 
FY 2012/13 

Proposed 
Monthly Bill 
FY 2013/14

 

Amount of 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Percent 
Increase 

0 113.53 113.53 0.00 113.53 113.53 - 0.0% 

10,000 135.53 135.83 9.50 145.03 145.33 0.30 0.2% 

20,000 157.53 158.13 19.00 176.53 177.13 0.60 0.3% 

30,000 179.53 180.43 28.50 208.03 208.93 0.90 0.4% 

40,000 201.53 202.73 38.00 239.53 240.73 1.20 0.5% 

50,000 223.53 225.03 47.50 271.03 272.53 1.50 0.6% 

56,000 236.73 238.41 53.20 289.93 291.61 1.68 0.6% 

60,000 248.69 247.33 57.00 305.69 304.33 (1.36) -0.4% 

70,000 278.59 269.63 66.50 345.09 336.13 (8.96) -2.6% 

80,000 308.49 291.93 76.00 384.49 367.93 (16.56) -4.3% 

90,000 338.39 314.23 85.50 423.89 399.73 (24.16) -5.7% 

100,000 368.29 336.53 95.00 463.29 431.53 (31.76) -6.9% 

120,000 428.09 381.13 114.00 542.09 495.13 (46.96) -8.7% 

128,000 452.01 398.97 121.60 573.61 520.57 (53.04) -9.2% 

140,000 500.37 425.73 133.00 633.37 558.73 (74.64) -11.8% 

160,000 580.97 470.33 152.00 732.97 622.33 (110.64) -15.1% 

180,000 661.57 514.93 171.00 832.57 685.93 (146.64) -17.6% 

200,000 742.17 559.53 190.00 932.17 749.53 (182.64) -19.6% 

220,000 822.77 604.13 209.00 1,031.77 813.13 (218.64) -21.2% 

240,000 903.37 648.73 228.00 1,131.37 876.73 (254.64) -22.5% 

256,000 967.85 684.41 243.20 1,211.05 927.61 (283.44) -23.4% 

260,000 989.37 693.33 247.00 1,236.37 940.33 (296.04) -23.9% 

1
No proposed change in the GPF. 



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 6-3 

The average (60,000 gallons) commercial customer’s monthly bill will decrease $1.36, 
representing a 0.4 percent decrease in their monthly bill under the proposed rates.  By 
moving toward cost of service rates, a 2-inch commercial customer using more than 
58,000 gallons per month would see a reduction in their bill.  This means that the effect of 
modifying the commercial rate structure is greater than the effect of the Tier 1 commodity 
rate increase for commercial customers using more than 58,000 gallons of water per month. 
It also means that commercial users will receive relatively lower bills while residential users 
receive somewhat higher bills under cost of service rates (as compared to current rates). 

Comparison to Surrounding Utilities 

This section compares the proposed rate update to current water rates of utilities in the 
region. The proposed water rates for a single family residential customer with a  
5/8- x ¾-inch water meter, which is the meter size for the majority of customers, is shown 
with residential water rates of surrounding utilities in Table 6-3. The table also includes 
rates for the same meter size. Tucson Water assesses commodity rates based on 100 cubic 
feet, or 748 gallons. As done in previous Water Rates Analysis Reports prepared by the 
Utility, the commodity rate for Tucson Water was converted to represent the charge for 
1,000 gallons.  

TABLE 6-3 

Comparison of Residential (5/8- x 3/4-inch Meter) Base and Commodity Rates  

Water Provider  
Monthly 

Base Rate 

Tier 1 Cost 
Per 1,000 
gallons 

Tier 2 Cost 
Per 1,000 
gallons 

Tier 3 Cost 
Per 1,000 
gallons 

Tier 4 Cost 
Per 1,000 
gallons 

Oro Valley - Current 14.19 2.20 2.99 4.03 5.38 

Oro Valley - Proposed 14.19 2.23 3.01 4.07 5.49 

Tucson Water 9.68 1.73 3.59 9.20 14.79 

Marana Water 15.12 2.46 3.43 4.46 5.50 

Metro Water 20.00 2.00 2.70 4.21 5.62 

      

As demonstrated from the table above, the proposed water rates are within the range of the 
utilities within the region. However, the number of tiers and volume of water within each 
tier varies by utility. So, comparison of raw base rates and commodity rates for the 
neighboring utilities is not as effective as comparing monthly bills for specific consumption 
levels.  



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 6-4 

Table 6-4 provides a better comparison of the proposed rates to the rates of the surrounding 
utilities with a calculation of the monthly bill at specific consumption levels. As noted in 
previous Oro Valley Water Rates Analysis Reports, these charges only reflect water use fees 
and specifically exclude taxes, charges for wastewater service, GPF, and similar renewable 
water resource fees charged by other water providers. 

TABLE 6-4 

Residential (5/8- x 3/4-inch Meter) Monthly Bills at Varying Levels of Water Use 

Water Provider 

Cost for 
8,000 

gallons 

Cost for 
15,000 
gallons 

Cost for 
25,000 
gallons 

Cost for 
40,000 
gallons  

Oro Valley - Current 32.58 53.51 92.77 164.02 

Oro Valley - Proposed 32.81 53.88 93.52 165.93 

Tucson Water 37.71 66.08 129.26 239.56 

Marana Water 34.80 56.87 96.32 173.62 

Metro Water 38.80 63.73 115.70 221.00 

     

As demonstrated in the table above, the monthly bill calculated at the proposed rates for 
Oro Valley water customers with 5/8- x 3/4-inch meters continue to be less than the 
surrounding water providers for all water use levels.  

Since this study proposes a uniform commodity rate for commercial customers, a 
comparison of the proposed commercial customer Oro Valley rates with other regional 
providers was developed. The average commercial customer has a 2-inch meter; these rates 
are shown in Table 6-5.  

TABLE 6-5 

Comparison of Commercial (2-inch Meter) Base and Commodity Rates 

Water Provider  
 Monthly 

Base Rate  

Tier 1 Cost 
Per 1,000 
gallons 

Tier 2 Cost 
Per 1,000 
gallons 

Tier 3 Cost 
Per 1,000 
gallons 

Tier 4 Cost 
Per 1,000 
gallons 

Oro Valley - Current 113.53 2.20 2.99 4.03 5.38 

Oro Valley - Proposed 113.53 2.23 N/A N/A N/A 

Tucson Water 54.03 2.97 N/A N/A N/A 

Marana Water 46.44 3.03 N/A N/A N/A 

Metro Water 160.00 2.00 2.70 4.21 5.62 

      



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 6-5 

The proposed commercial rate for Oro Valley is less than the surrounding utilities’ Tier 1 
rate for all utilities except for Metro water. However, as with the residential comparison, an 
analysis of monthly bills for commercial account customers was performed to provide a 
better idea of how the proposed rates affect a commercial customer with a 2-inch meter at 
varying levels of water use. The comparison of monthly bills for commercial customers is 
shown in Table 6-6. 

TABLE 6-6 

Commercial (2-inch Meter) Monthly Bills at Varying Levels of Water Use 

Water Utility 
Cost for 

50,000 gallons 

Cost for 
100,000 
gallons 

Cost for 
150,000 
gallons 

Cost for 
200,000 
gallons 

Oro Valley – Current 223.53 368.29 540.67 742.17 

Oro Valley – Proposed 225.03 336.53 448.03 559.53 

Tucson Water 252.54 451.09 649.60 848.15 

Marana Water 197.94 349.44 500.94 652.44 

Metro Water 272.60 425.72 644.68 925.68 

     

As demonstrated in the table above, the calculated bills for an Oro Valley 2-inch commercial 
customer is less than Tucson and Metro water customers, but greater than Marana Water 
customers for 50,000 gallons.   

The impact of the proposed rates for all meter sizes is located in Appendix D, along with the 
monthly bill amounts calculated in 1,000-gallon increments for the 5/8- x 3/4-inch meters 
and varying increments for larger meter sizes.  



 

CH2M HILL_FINAL DRAFT RATES ANALYSIS REPORT_11_07_13 7-1 

7. Summary and Conclusions 

This report presents the analysis conducted by CH2M HILL to develop a new water rate 
structure and proposed water rates over a 5-year planning period.  These proposed changes 
form the basis for the Preferred Financial Scenario. A financial plan for the Operating Fund 
was also developed to determine the revenue required over the 5-year planning period 
based on projected O&M expenses, CIP projects, and debt service. The results of the 
financial plan were used to analyze the cost of service for each customer class.  

Changes to the rate structure and the corresponding proposed commodity rate increases are 
intended to move the major customer classes closer to their cost of service. The rate 
structure modifications include maintaining the tiered structure for residential class and 
irrigation class.  Modifications also include charging the commercial customer class and 
master-metered multifamily customer class a new, uniform commodity rate equal to the 
Tier 1 residential rate. There is no increase proposed in the first year of the study period for 
reclaimed water rates, but gradual increases to the reclaimed commodity rate are 
recommended in future years. The rate for Turf customers is equal to the Tier 1 residential 
rate, and Construction water rates are $1.00 greater than the Tier 4 commodity rate.  The 
proposed rate structure complies with current Town policies.  

The changes to the rate structure and the proposed rate increases generate the revenue 
required to meet the required debt service coverage ratios and maintain the required 
minimum cash balance as set by Town policies for the 5-year planning period.  

A typical residential customer with a 5/8- x 3/4-inch meter and water usage of 8,000 gallons 
will experience a 0.6 percent increase in their monthly bill. A commercial customer with a 
2-inch meter and water usage of 60,000 gallons will see a 0.4 percent decrease in their 
monthly bill. The proposed rate increases are within a similar range of the neighboring 
water utilities, when comparing the monthly bills for residential and commercial customers.  

New development hydraulic and design review fees and new development construction 
inspection fees are proposed to increase to recover the costs associated with providing the 
services.  Additionally, late payment fees are proposed to increase from $5.00 to $5.00 or 
1 percent of the outstanding balance, whichever is greater. No change is proposed for the 
remaining service fees and charges. 

 



 

 

APPENDIX A 

Financial Plan Tables 



Line Customer Class FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18
No. Calculated  Calculated  Projected Projected Projected Projected

1 Residential 7,760,198$             7,815,886$            7,908,506$             7,999,597$              8,089,198$             8,195,870$            
2 Commercial 1,006,857 1,071,828 1,160,921 1,248,451 1,334,449 1,429,893
3 Multifamily Residential 376,850 382,554 391,062 399,423 407,638 418,548
4 Irrigation 1,132,630 1,139,053 1,151,288 1,163,176 1,174,719 1,188,855
5 Turf 109,251 107,891 106,549 105,222 103,916 102,624
6 Construction 161,898 160,654 159,435 158,223 157,030 155,856
7 Turf‐Reclaimed 1,438,332 1,438,332 1,438,332 1,438,332 1,438,332 1,438,332
8 Irrigation‐Reclaimed 7,043 7,043 7,043 7,043 7,043 7,043
9 Construction‐Reclaimed 6,180 6,180 6,180 6,180 6,180 6,180

10 Potable System Total 10,547,684 10,677,866 10,877,761 11,074,092 11,266,950 11,491,646
11 Reclaimed System Total 1,451,555 1,451,555 1,451,555 1,451,555 1,451,555 1,451,555

12 Total System 11,999,239$          12,129,421$          12,329,316$          12,525,647$           12,718,505$          12,943,201$         

13 Revenue Growth 1.6% 1.1% 1.6% 1.6% 1.5% 1.8%

Table A‐1
Oro Valley Water Utility

Operating Fund
Projected Water Revenue Under Existing Rates

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 1 of 10



Table A‐2
Oro Valley Water Utility

Operating Fund
Projected O&M Expense

Line Inflation FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18
  No.  Category Description Budgeted Budgeted Projected Projected Projected Projected

06088010 WTR‐ADMIN‐O&M                      
1 General Inflation 6005 OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 150,000$              80,000$                25,000$                25,500$                 26,010$                26,530$               
2 General Inflation 6019 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 1,500                    1,500                    1,530                   1,561                     1,592                    1,624                   
3 General Inflation 6025 RENTALS 5,900                    6,900                    7,038                   7,179                     7,322                    7,469                   
4 General Inflation 6026 INSURANCE 46,000                 46,000                 46,920                 47,858                   48,816                 49,792                
5 General Inflation 6027 FLEET COSTS 135,603               133,864               136,541               139,272                 142,058               144,899              
6 General Inflation 6028 TELECOMMUNICATIONS 1,500                    1,400                    1,428                   1,457                     1,486                    1,515                   
7 General Inflation 6029 POSTAGE 500                       500                       510                      520                        531                       541                      
8 General Inflation 6030 ADVERTISING 200                       200                       204                      208                        212                       216                      
9 General Inflation 6031 PRINTING & BINDING 1,000                    1,000                    1,020                   1,040                     1,061                    1,082                   
10 General Inflation 6034 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,300                    2,300                    2,346                   2,393                     2,441                    2,490                   
11 General Inflation 6035 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 10,835                 10,835                 11,052                 11,273                   11,498                 11,728                
12 General Inflation 6037 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,125                    3,125                    3,188                   3,251                     3,316                    3,383                   
13 Electricity 6038 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRICITY 6,100                    8,400                    8,577                   8,754                     8,931                    10,380                
14 General Inflation 6039 GASOLINE & OIL ‐                            ‐                            ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            ‐                           
15 General Inflation 6045 MISCELLANEOUS OTHER OPERATING 500                       500                       510                      520                        531                       541                      
16 General Inflation 6047 OFFICE LEASE 65,600                 65,600                 66,912                 68,250                   69,615                 71,008                
17 General Inflation 6051 REGULATORY EXPENSE 14,400                 13,400                 13,668                 13,941                   14,220                 14,505                
18 General Inflation 6054 WATER UTILITY COMMISSION 2,000                    2,000                    2,040                   2,081                     2,122                    2,165                   
19 General Inflation 6064 SAFETY COMPLIANCE 350                       200                       204                      208                        212                       216                      
20 General Inflation 6092 BOTTLED WATER ‐                            ‐                            ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            ‐                           
21 General Inflation 6094 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 358,000               358,000               365,160               372,463                 379,912               387,511              
22 General Inflation 6097 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE & LICENSE ‐                            800                       816                      832                        849                       866                      

06088040 WTR‐BILLING&METER‐O&M                      
23 General Inflation 6005 OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  86,800                 94,900                 96,798                 98,734                   100,709               102,723              
24 General Inflation 6019 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE  2,150                    2,000                    2,040                   2,081                     2,122                    2,165                   
25 General Inflation 6021 GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINTENANCE  1,500                    1,000                    1,020                   1,040                     1,061                    1,082                   
26 General Inflation 6028 TELECOMMUNICATIONS  7,300                    6,500                    6,630                   6,763                     6,898                    7,036                   
27 General Inflation 6029 POSTAGE  86,750                 87,250                 88,995                 90,775                   92,590                 94,442                
28 General Inflation 6031 PRINTING & BINDING  19,000                 15,500                 15,810                 16,126                   16,449                 16,778                
29 General Inflation 6034 TRAVEL & TRAINING  3,000                    4,200                    4,284                   4,370                     4,457                    4,546                   
30 General Inflation 6037 OFFICE SUPPLIES  8,400                    8,400                    8,568                   8,739                     8,914                    9,092                   
31 General Inflation 6040 NON‐CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT  4,120                    2,500                    2,550                   2,601                     2,653                    2,706                   
32 General Inflation 6041 UNIFORMS  3,650                    3,300                    3,366                   3,433                     3,502                    3,572                   
33 General Inflation 6043 BAD DEBT EXPENSE  25,000                 25,000                 25,500                 26,010                   26,530                 27,061                
34 General Inflation 6044 FIELD SUPPLIES  2,000                    2,000                    2,040                   2,081                     2,122                    2,165                   
35 General Inflation 6059 EQUIP. R&M‐SERVICES  14,000                 14,000                 14,280                 14,566                   14,857                 15,154                
36 General Inflation 6061 EQUIPMENT R&M ‐ METERS  10,000                 10,000                 10,200                 10,404                   10,612                 10,824                
37 General Inflation 6063 INTEREST ON SECURITY DEPOSITS  250                       200                       204                      208                        212                       216                      
38 General Inflation 6064 SAFETY COMPLIANCE  1,200                    5,030                    5,131                   5,233                     5,338                    5,445                   
39 Constant 6082 WATER PURCHASED FOR RESALE (Wheeling O&M) 854,700               718,065               718,065               918,065                 962,512               962,512              
40 General Inflation 6097 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE & LICENSE 24,000                 34,600                 35,292                 35,998                   36,718                 37,452                

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 2 of 10



Line Inflation FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18
  No.  Category Description Budgeted Budgeted Projected Projected Projected Projected

06088070 WTR‐CONSERV‐O&M                    
41 General Inflation 6005 OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  12,000                 15,000                 15,300                 15,606                   15,918                 16,236                
42 General Inflation 6019 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE  75                         ‐                            ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            ‐                           
43 General Inflation 6028 TELECOMMUNICATIONS  250                       840                       857                      874                        891                       909                      
44 General Inflation 6031 PRINTING & BINDING  1,500                    2,000                    2,040                   2,081                     2,122                    2,165                   
45 General Inflation 6034 TRAVEL & TRAINING  800                       800                       816                      832                        849                       866                      
46 General Inflation 6035 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS  5,330                    5,330                    5,437                   5,545                     5,656                    5,769                   
47 General Inflation 6037 OFFICE SUPPLIES  650                       300                       306                      312                        318                       325                      
48 General Inflation 6040 NON‐CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT ‐                            1,500                    1,530                   1,561                     1,592                    1,624                   
49 General Inflation 6041 UNIFORMS  300                       300                       306                      312                        318                       325                      
50 General Inflation 6044 FIELD SUPPLIES  200                       200                       204                      208                        212                       216                      
51 General Inflation 6064 SAFETY COMPLIANCE  100                       ‐                            ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            ‐                           
52 General Inflation 6084 CONSERVATION  5,000                    2,000                    2,040                   2,081                     2,122                    2,165                   

06088090 WTR‐WTR RES‐O&M                    
53 General Inflation 6005 OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  130,000               80,000                 81,600                 83,232                   84,897                 86,595                
54 CAP 6011 CAP WATER DELIVERY CHARGES (Recharge) 778,500               1,043,250            1,101,500           1,301,000              1,321,000            1,329,000           
55 Water Res. Mgmt. 6051 Groundwater Extinguishment Credit 405,000               405,000               405,000               405,000                 ‐                            ‐                           
56 Water Res. Mgmt. 6051 ADWR 75,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                   10,000                 10,000                
57 Water Res. Mgmt. 6051 CAGRD 315,000               150,000               285,000               359,000                 ‐                            ‐                           

06088110 WTR‐ENG ADMIN‐O&M                  
58 General Inflation 6005 OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  103,591               283,420               180,000               183,600                 187,272               191,017              
59 General Inflation 6025 RENTALS ENG  3,000                    3,900                    3,978                   4,058                     4,139                    4,221                   
60 General Inflation 6028 TELECOMMUNICATIONS  1,200                    1,400                    1,428                   1,457                     1,486                    1,515                   
61 General Inflation 6031 PRINTING & BINDING  2,000                    2,000                    2,040                   2,081                     2,122                    2,165                   
62 General Inflation 6034 TRAVEL & TRAINING  3,200                    3,350                    3,417                   3,485                     3,555                    3,626                   
63 General Inflation 6035 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS  235                       400                       408                      416                        424                       433                      
64 General Inflation 6037 OFFICE SUPPLIES  2,000                    3,500                    3,570                   3,641                     3,714                    3,789                   
65 General Inflation 6040 NON‐CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT ‐                            2,600                    2,652                   2,705                     2,759                    2,814                   
66 General Inflation 6064 SAFETY COMPLIANCE  430                       430                       439                      447                        456                       465                      
67 General Inflation 6097 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE & LICENSE 39,940                 2,650                    2,703                   2,757                     2,812                    2,868                   

06088170 WTR‐CONST INSP‐O&M                 
68 General Inflation 6028 TELECOMMUNICATIONS  1,300                    900                       918                      936                        955                       974                      
69 General Inflation 6031 PRINTING & BINDING CONST  50                         ‐                            ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            ‐                           
70 General Inflation 6034 TRAVEL & TRAINING CONST  250                       250                       255                      260                        265                       271                      
71 General Inflation 6036 TESTING  500                       500                       510                      520                        531                       541                      
72 General Inflation 6037 OFFICE SUPPLIES  200                       200                       204                      208                        212                       216                      
73 General Inflation 6040 NON‐CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT  3,350                    200                       204                      208                        212                       216                      
74 General Inflation 6041 UNIFORMS  1,100                    1,100                    1,122                   1,144                     1,167                    1,191                   
75 General Inflation 6044 FIELD SUPPLIES  200                       250                       255                      260                        265                       271                      
76 General Inflation 6064 SAFETY COMPLIANCE  400                       400                       408                      416                        424                       433                      

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 3 of 10



Line Inflation FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18
  No.  Category Description Budgeted Budgeted Projected Projected Projected Projected

06088230 WTR‐PROD‐POT‐O&M                   
77 General Inflation 6005 OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  18,800                 19,300                 19,686                 20,080                   20,481                 20,891                
78 Electricity 6012 POWER PURCHASED FOR PUMPING  800,000               900,000               918,955               937,910                 956,866               1,112,151           
79 Inflation + Growth 6018 VEHICLE REPAIR  ‐                            ‐                            ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            ‐                           
80 Inflation + Growth 6019 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE  9,600                    9,300                    9,682                   10,075                   10,480                 10,924                
81 Inflation + Growth 6021 GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINTENANCE  3,350                    9,460                    9,848                   10,249                   10,661                 11,111                
82 Inflation + Growth 6024 CHEMICALS  38,000                 32,000                 33,314                 34,667                   36,061                 37,586                
83 Inflation + Growth 6025 RENTALS  1,000                    1,473                    1,533                   1,596                     1,660                    1,730                   
84 Inflation + Growth 6028 TELECOMMUNICATIONS  2,400                    4,100                    4,268                   4,442                     4,620                    4,816                   
85 Inflation + Growth 6031 PRINTING & BINDING  250                       ‐                            ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            ‐                           
86 Inflation + Growth 6034 TRAVEL & TRAINING  2,100                    3,000                    3,123                   3,250                     3,381                    3,524                   
87 Inflation + Growth 6035 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS  300                       400                       416                      433                        451                       470                      
88 Inflation + Growth 6036 TESTING  900                       900                       937                      975                        1,014                    1,057                   
89 Inflation + Growth 6037 OFFICE SUPPLIES  1,000                    1,030                    1,072                   1,116                     1,161                    1,210                   
90 Inflation + Growth 6040 NON‐CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT  4,600                    1,670                    1,739                   1,809                     1,882                    1,962                   
91 Inflation + Growth 6041 UNIFORMS  4,620                    4,770                    4,966                   5,168                     5,375                    5,603                   
92 Inflation + Growth 6044 FIELD SUPPLIES  3,000                    3,100                    3,227                   3,358                     3,493                    3,641                   
93 Inflation + Growth 6055 EQUIP. R&M‐WELLS  88,144                 69,350                 72,198                 75,131                   78,152                 81,456                
94 Inflation + Growth 6056 EQUIP. R&M‐BOOSTERS  33,875                 33,900                 35,292                 36,726                   38,203                 39,818                
95 Inflation + Growth 6058 EQUIP. R&M‐RESERVOIRS  54,300                 127,325               14,023                 14,593                   15,180                 15,821                
96 Inflation + Growth 6064 SAFETY COMPLIANCE  1,725                    2,125                    2,212                   2,302                     2,395                    2,496                   
97 Inflation + Growth 6074 EQUIP. R&M‐TELEMETRY  9,875                    8,480                    8,828                   9,187                     9,556                    9,960                   
98 Inflation + Growth 6085 EQUIP. R&M‐DISINFECTION  26,200                 9,400                    9,786                   10,184                   10,593                 11,041                
99 Inflation + Growth 6097 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE & LICENSI  3,517                    3,517                    3,661                   3,810                     3,963                    4,131                   

06088260 WTR‐PROD‐REC‐O&M                   
100 General Inflation 6005 OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  1,900                    1,900                    1,938                   1,977                     2,016                    2,057                   
101 Electricity 6012 POWER PURCHASED FOR PUMPING  55,000                 63,000                 64,327                 65,654                   66,981                 77,851                
102 Inflation + Growth 6020 BUILDING REPAIR & MAINTENANCE ‐                            7,000                    7,287                   7,583                     7,888                    8,222                   
103 Inflation + Growth 6021 GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINTENANCE  800                       2,050                    2,134                   2,221                     2,310                    2,408                   
104 Inflation + Growth 6024 CHEMICALS  9,000                    9,000                    9,370                   9,750                     10,142                 10,571                
105 Inflation + Growth 6028 TELECOMMUNICATIONS  2,300                    2,240                    2,332                   2,427                     2,524                    2,631                   
106 Inflation + Growth 6036 TESTING  2,100                    2,200                    2,290                   2,383                     2,479                    2,584                   
107 Inflation + Growth 6037 OFFICE SUPPLIES  1,000                    1,200                    1,249                   1,300                     1,352                    1,409                   
108 Inflation + Growth 6040 NON‐CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT  2,400                    1,400                    1,457                   1,517                     1,578                    1,644                   
109 Inflation + Growth 6041 UNIFORMS  770                       795                       828                      861                        896                       934                      
110 Inflation + Growth 6044 FIELD SUPPLIES  1,800                    1,860                    1,936                   2,015                     2,096                    2,185                   
111 Inflation + Growth 6051 REGULATORY EXPENSE  ‐                            1,200                    1,249                   1,300                     1,352                    1,409                   
112 Inflation + Growth 6056 EQUIP. R&M‐BOOSTERS  3,300                    2,300                    2,394                   2,492                     2,592                    2,702                   
113 Inflation + Growth 6058 EQUIP. R&M‐RESERVOIRS  1,000                    1,500                    1,562                   1,625                     1,690                    1,762                   
114 Inflation + Growth 6061 EQUIPMENT R&M ‐ METERS  2,000                    2,000                    2,082                   2,167                     2,254                    2,349                   
115 Inflation + Growth 6064 SAFETY COMPLIANCE  375                       390                       406                      423                        439                       458                      
116 Inflation + Growth 6074 EQUIP. R&M‐TELEMETRY  4,560                    4,560                    4,747                   4,940                     5,139                    5,356                   
117 Inflation + Growth 6085 EQUIP. R&M‐DISINFECTION  2,500                    6,400                    6,663                   6,933                     7,212                    7,517                   
118 Inflation + Growth 6097 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE & LICENSE 3,516                    3,516                    3,660                   3,809                     3,962                    4,130                   
119 General Inflation 6099 RECLAIMED WATER FOR RESALE  700,000               721,000               735,420               750,128                 765,131               780,434              

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 4 of 10



Line Inflation FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18
  No.  Category Description Budgeted Budgeted Projected Projected Projected Projected

06088290 WTR‐DIST‐POT‐O&M                   
120 General Inflation 6005 OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  500                       500                       510                      520                        531                       541                      
121 Inflation + Growth 6015 WASTE DISPOSAL FEES  500                       500                       521                      542                        563                       587                      
122 Inflation + Growth 6019 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE  1,650                    4,650                    4,841                   5,038                     5,240                    5,462                   
123 Inflation + Growth 6025 RENTALS  500                       500                       521                      542                        563                       587                      
124 Inflation + Growth 6028 TELECOMMUNICATIONS  3,150                    5,400                    5,622                   5,850                     6,085                    6,343                   
125 Inflation + Growth 6029 POSTAGE 4,500                    4,500                    4,685                   4,875                     5,071                    5,286                   
126 Inflation + Growth 6031 PRINTING & BINDING  2,650                    2,650                    2,759                   2,871                     2,986                    3,113                   
127 Inflation + Growth 6034 TRAVEL & TRAINING  2,400                    2,400                    2,499                   2,600                     2,705                    2,819                   
128 Inflation + Growth 6035 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS  100                       100                       104                      108                        113                       117                      
129 Inflation + Growth 6036 TESTING  100,000               80,000                 83,285                 86,669                   90,153                 93,966                
130 Inflation + Growth 6037 OFFICE SUPPLIES  1,200                    1,200                    1,249                   1,300                     1,352                    1,409                   
131 Electricity 6038 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRICITY  ‐                            ‐                            ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            ‐                           
132 Inflation + Growth 6040 NON‐CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT  1,750                    6,050                    6,298                   6,554                     6,818                    7,106                   
133 Inflation + Growth 6041 UNIFORMS  5,040                    5,040                    5,247                   5,460                     5,680                    5,920                   
134 Inflation + Growth 6044 FIELD SUPPLIES  2,800                    2,800                    2,915                   3,033                     3,155                    3,289                   
135 Inflation + Growth 6057 EQUIP. R&M‐MAINS  100,000               100,000               104,106               108,336                 112,692               117,457              
136 Inflation + Growth 6059 EQUIP. R&M‐SERVICES  8,000                    8,000                    8,328                   8,667                     9,015                    9,397                   
137 Inflation + Growth 6060 EQUIP. R&M‐HYDRANTS  4,000                    4,000                    4,164                   4,333                     4,508                    4,698                   
138 Inflation + Growth 6061 EQUIPMENT R&M ‐ METERS  500                       500                       521                      542                        563                       587                      
139 Inflation + Growth 6062 BLUESTAKE  4,000                    4,000                    4,164                   4,333                     4,508                    4,698                   
140 Inflation + Growth 6064 SAFETY COMPLIANCE  3,000                    2,400                    2,499                   2,600                     2,705                    2,819                   
141 Inflation + Growth 6088 EQUIP. R&M‐BACKFLOW  2,500                    2,500                    2,603                   2,708                     2,817                    2,936                   

06088320 WTR‐DIST‐REC‐O&M                   
142 Inflation + Growth 6025 RENTALS 400                       400                       416                      433                        451                       470                      
143 Inflation + Growth 6057 EQUIP. R&M‐MAINS  2,500                    2,500                    2,603                   2,708                     2,817                    2,936                   
144 Inflation + Growth 6059 EQUIP. R&M‐SERVICES  1,000                    1,000                    1,041                   1,083                     1,127                    1,175                   
145 Inflation + Growth 6062 BLUESTAKE  450                       450                       468                      488                        507                       529                      

146 Sub‐Total O&M Expenses 6,006,851            6,117,090            6,115,951           6,672,793              6,058,052            6,300,915           
147 Sub‐Total Potable System Expenses 5,208,180            5,277,229            5,258,090           5,796,576              5,163,114            5,377,193           
148 Sub‐Total Reclaimed System Expenses 798,671               839,861               857,862               876,218                 894,937               923,722              

Other Operating Expenses
149 Labor and Benefits Water Utility Personnel 2,547,472            2,688,464            2,782,560           2,879,950              2,980,748            3,085,074           

150 Total Operation and Maintenance Expense 8,554,323$           8,805,554$           8,898,512$          9,552,743$            9,038,800$           9,385,989$          

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 5 of 10



Line Description Year Debt FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18
No. Incurred Budgeted Budgeted Projected Projected Projected Projected

Principal
1 Operating Fund
2      Refunding ‐ Excise  2003 940,000$            1,310,000$         1,030,000$         1,065,000$          1,105,000$         865,000$           
3      Exist Sys. ‐ Sr. Lien 2003 230,000              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
4      MOC Land ‐ Excise  2005 90,750                 95,700                99,000                102,300               105,600             110,550            
5      Refunding ‐ Excise  2007 115,250              119,860             590,080             617,740               645,400             673,060            
6      WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien 2009 89,786                 91,558                94,462                97,457                  100,547             103,736            
7      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2012 82,716                 401,763             410,625             434,259               440,167             456,415            
8           Subtotal Principal 1,548,502           2,018,881          2,224,167          2,316,756            2,396,714          2,208,760         
9 AWRDIF Fund
10      Reclaimed ‐ Sr. Lien 2003 415,000              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
11      Reclamed Settle. Sr. L 2003 ‐                           ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
12      Recl. WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien 2008 192,168              198,963             205,999             213,283               220,825             228,633            
13      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2012 150,772              732,322             748,746             791,554               802,323             831,939            
14           Subtotal Principal 757,940              931,285             954,745             1,004,837            1,023,148          1,060,572         
15 PWSDIF Fund
16      Expansion ‐Sr. Lien 2003 175,000              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
17      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2003 160,000              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
18      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2012 46,512                 225,915             230,898             244,188               247,510             256,646            
19           Subtotal Principal 381,512              225,915             230,898             244,188               247,510             256,646            

20 Total All Principal 2,687,954$         3,176,082$         3,409,810$         3,565,780$          3,667,372$         3,525,979$        

Interest
21 Operating Fund
22      Refunding ‐ Excise  2003 300,536$            253,536$            204,411$            163,211$              120,611$            75,030$             
23      Exist Sys. ‐ Sr. Lien 2003 258,660              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
24      MOC Land ‐ Excise  2005 60,495                 56,865                53,516                49,927                  46,091                41,867               
25      Refunding ‐ Excise  2007 675,861              670,962             665,868             640,790               614,536             582,266            
26      WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien 2009 62,109                 59,262                56,358                53,363                  50,272                47,084               
27      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2012 199,988              179,695             171,660             155,235               146,549             133,344            
28           Subtotal Interest 1,557,648           1,220,320          1,151,813          1,062,526            978,060             879,591            

Table A‐3

Oro Valley Water Utility

Combined Funds

Existing Debt Service Schedule

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 6 of 10



Line Description Year Debt FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18
No. Incurred Budgeted Budgeted Projected Projected Projected Projected
29 AWRDIF Fund
30      Reclaimed ‐ Sr. Lien 2003 471,305              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
31      Reclamed Settle. Sr. L 2003 ‐                           ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
32      Recl. WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien 2008 127,876              121,081             114,045             106,761               99,220                91,411               
33      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2012 364,532              327,542             312,896             282,957               267,126             243,056            
34           Subtotal Interest 963,713              448,623             426,941             389,718               366,345             334,467            
35 PWSDIF Fund
36      Expansion ‐Sr. Lien 2003 197,925              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
37      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2003 107,520              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
38      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2012 112,455              101,044             96,526                87,290                  82,406                74,981               
39           Subtotal Interest 417,900              101,044             96,526               87,290                 82,406               74,981              

40 Total All Interest 2,939,261$         1,769,987$         1,675,280$         1,539,534$          1,426,811$         1,289,039$        

Principal & Interest
41 Operating Fund
42      Refunding ‐ Excise  2003 1,240,536           1,563,536          1,234,411          1,228,211            1,225,611          940,030            
43      Exist Sys. ‐ Sr. Lien 2003 488,660              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
44      MOC Land ‐ Excise  2005 151,245              152,565             152,516             152,227               151,691             152,417            
45      Refunding ‐ Excise  2007 791,111              790,822             1,255,948          1,258,530            1,259,936          1,255,326         
46      WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien 2009 151,894              150,820             150,820             150,820               150,820             150,820            
47      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2012 282,704              581,458             582,285             589,493               586,716             589,759            
48           Subtotal P&I 3,106,150           3,239,202          3,375,980          3,379,281            3,374,774          3,088,352         
49 AWRDIF Fund
50      Reclaimed ‐ Sr. Lien 2003 886,305              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
51      Reclamed Settle. Sr. L 2003 ‐                           ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
52      Recl. WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien 2008 320,044              320,044             320,044             320,044               320,044             320,044            
53      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2012 515,304              1,059,864          1,061,642          1,074,511            1,069,449          1,074,995         
54           Subtotal P&I 1,721,653           1,379,908          1,381,686          1,394,555            1,389,493          1,395,039         
55 PWSDIF Fund
56      Expansion ‐Sr. Lien 2003 372,925              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
57      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2003 267,520              ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                         
58      Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien 2012 158,967              326,959             327,424             331,477               329,916             331,627            
59           Subtotal P&I 799,412              326,959             327,424             331,477               329,916             331,627            

60 Total All Principal & Interest 5,627,215$         4,946,069$         5,085,091$         5,105,313$          5,094,183$         4,815,018$        

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 7 of 10



Table A‐4

Oro Valley Water Utility

Operating Fund

Capital Improvements Program

Line  FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 Total
No. Description Budget Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected CIP
Potable Water CIP

Wells
1 Steam Pump Drill and Construct ‐$                                  ‐$                         650,000$                   1,000,000$                ‐$                          ‐$                      1,650,000$                 
2 Well Meter Replacement 60,000                              60,000                     ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            120,000                      
3 Well E2 Upgrade ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  100,000                    ‐                            100,000                      
4 Replace Well Pumps ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  100,000                    ‐                            100,000                      
5 Well E8 Rehabilitation ‐                                        100,000                   ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            100,000                      

Reservoirs
6 High Mesa control valve/flow meter 50,000                              10,000                     ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            60,000                        
7 El Con Storage Operational Improvements ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 250,000                250,000                      

Boosters
8 Energy Efficiency Booster Upgrades ‐                                        150,000                   200,000                     200,000                     200,000                    ‐                            750,000                      
9 Deer Run Booster PRV Installation ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  40,000                      ‐                            40,000                        

Mains
10 Tangerine Hills ‐ New Hydrants and Valve Replacement 600,000                            200,000                   ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            800,000                      
11 E. Lambert Ln. 16" Main (DIS) Rollover 200,000                            50,000                     ‐                                    ‐                                 ‐                            250,000                      
12 W. Lambert Ln. 12" Main Relocation (DIS) ‐                                        ‐                                75,000                       350,000                     ‐                                 ‐                            425,000                      
13 Naranja Shannon/La Cholla Main Relocation (DIS) ‐                                        75,000                     250,000                     ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            325,000                      
14 Tangerine Shannon/La Canada Main Relocation (DIS) ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  100,000                     300,000                    ‐                            400,000                      
15 Campo Bello ‐ 8 Inch Main Replacement ‐ Rollover 350,000                            ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            350,000                      
16 PRV's Naranja Palisades 200,000                            ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            200,000                      
17 Relocate 3 PRV's OV Area ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  100,000                     ‐                                 ‐                            100,000                      
18 New 6" PRV Cliff Dweller ‐                                        ‐                                60,000                       ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            60,000                        
19 Rancho Verde Hydrants ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  200,000                     ‐                                 ‐                            200,000                      
20 Pusch Ridge Interconnect ‐                                        50,000                     ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            50,000                        
21 Main Valve Replacements ‐                                        50,000                     50,000                       50,000                       50,000                      ‐                            200,000                      
22 CS1 to CS2 12 Inch Main Replacement ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  150,000                     500,000                    ‐                            650,000                      
23 El Con. Patio Homes & Casitas Main Repl. ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 100,000                100,000                      
24 System Connection Upgrades ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  200,000                     ‐                                 200,000                400,000                      

Structures and Walls
25 RV Chlorine Storage Rollover 500,000                            ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            500,000                      
26 Security Wall ‐ Well C‐8 ‐                                        ‐                                100,000                     ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            100,000                      
27 Replace Security Wall at CS‐2 Countryside ‐                                        80,000                     ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            80,000                        
28 Access Road and Wall Well D‐6 ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  100,000                    ‐                            100,000                      

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 8 of 10



Line  FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 Total
No. Description Budget Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected CIP

Meters & Equipment
29 New Telephone Equipment ‐                                        100,000                   ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            100,000                      
30 Permits Plus ‐                                        40,000                     ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            40,000                        
31 Countryside Web Portal ‐ Rollover 50,000                              ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            50,000                        
32 AMI Meter Replacement ‐ Oro Valley 780,000                            1,300,000                900,000                     800,000                     1,500,000                 ‐                            5,280,000                   
33 Meters fro growth & misc. replacement 78,000                              50,000                     50,000                       50,000                       50,000                      50,000                  328,000                      
34 SCADA server and monitors 50,000                              ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            50,000                        
35 Security Equipment 12,000                              ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            12,000                        
36 SCADA Legacy Replacement ‐                                        ‐                                50,000                       ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            50,000                        

Vehicles
37 Vehicle Replacement 104,500                            85,000                     60,000                       60,000                       60,000                      75,000                  444,500                      
38 Production ‐                                        ‐                                70,000                       70,000                       50,000                      ‐                            190,000                      
39 Construction Equipment ‐ Backhoe ‐                                        ‐                                120,000                     ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            120,000                      
40 On Call Service Truck ‐                                        ‐                                90,000                       ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            90,000                        

41 Total Potable Water Capital Improvements 3,034,500                        2,400,000                2,725,000                  3,330,000                  3,050,000                 675,000                15,214,500                 

Reclaimed Water CIP
Booster Pumps

42 Booster Pump & Motor (4) Repl. Recl. Res. ‐                                        ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                                  200,000                    ‐                            200,000                      
Reservoirs

43 Retention basin ‐ geotech liner ‐                                        75,000                       ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            75,000                        
44 Bridge Vault ‐                                        85,000                     ‐                                  ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                            85,000                        

45 Total Reclaimed Water Capital Improvements ‐                                   160,000             ‐                            ‐                             200,000              ‐                       360,000                

46 Total Water Utility Capital Improvements 3,034,500                   2,560,000          2,725,000           3,330,000           3,250,000           675,000          15,574,500          

54 Total Water Utility Capital Improvements (Inflated) 3,034,500$                 2,611,200$        2,835,090$          3,533,823$          3,517,905$          745,255$         16,277,772$         

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 9 of 10



Table A‐5

Oro Valley Water Utility

Operating Fund

Projection of Cash Flow

Line Description FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18
No. Budgeted Budgeted Projected Projected Projected Projected

1 Potable Water Sales Revenue 10,245,856$           10,342,652$           10,877,761$           11,074,092$           11,266,950$           11,491,646$          
2 Reclaimed Water Sales Revenue 1,656,387                1,672,951                1,451,555                1,451,555                1,451,555                1,451,555               
3 Additional Revenue Required ‐                                 (103,427)                  (184,922)                  (121,815)                  (90,136)                    (91,933)                   

4 Total Water Sales Revenue 11,902,243             11,912,176             12,144,394             12,403,832             12,628,369             12,851,268            

5 Operation and Maintenance Expense 8,689,737                8,805,554                8,898,512                9,552,743                9,038,800                9,385,989               

6 Net Revenue Available for Debt Service 3,212,506                3,106,622                3,245,883                2,851,089                3,589,569                3,465,279               

Debt Service
Excise Tax Loans 2,182,892                2,506,924                2,642,875                2,638,968                2,637,238                2,347,773               
Senior Lien 923,258                   732,278                   733,105                   740,313                   737,536                   740,579                  

7 Existing 3,106,150                3,239,202                3,375,980                3,379,281                3,374,774                3,088,352               
8 Proposed ‐                                 50,000                      348,189                   378,189                   557,103                   557,103                  

9 Total Debt Service 3,106,150                3,289,202                3,724,170                3,757,470                3,931,877                3,645,455               

10 Net Revenue After Debt Service 106,356                   (182,579)                  (478,287)                  (906,382)                  (342,308)                  (180,176)                 

Other Cash Inflows/(Outflows)
11 Interest Income 54,734                      66,250                      22,421                      17,906                      16,777                      16,193                     
12 Service Fees/Charges (Non‐Rate Revenue) 549,815                   549,815                   549,815                   549,815                   549,815                   549,815                  
13 Other Income 242,211                   242,211                   242,211                   242,211                   242,211                   242,211                  
14 Loan Proceeds ‐                                 1,425,000                1,025,000                2,725,000                2,825,000                ‐                                
15 Loan Refunding ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                
16 Annual Capital Improvements Program (3,034,500)              (2,611,200)              (2,835,090)              (3,533,823)              (3,517,905)              (745,255)                 

17 Total Other Cash Inflows/(Outflows) (2,187,740)              (327,924)                  (995,643)                  1,110                        115,899                   62,964                    

18 Annual Surplus/(Deficiency) (2,081,385)              (510,503)                  (1,473,930)              (905,272)                  (226,409)                  (117,212)                 
19 Beginning Cash Balance                 6,479,930                5,969,427                4,495,497                3,590,225                3,363,816               

20 Ending Cash Balance* 6,479,930$             5,969,427$             4,495,497$             3,590,225$             3,363,816$             3,246,605$            

* Ending Cash Balance adjusted to FY2012/13 actual.

Revenue Adjustments FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18
Revenue Increase Required 0.0% ‐2.0% 0.6% 0.6% 0.0% 0.0%
Cumulative Revenue Increase 0.0% ‐2.0% ‐1.4% ‐0.8% ‐0.8% ‐0.8%

Appendix A Financial Plan Tables 10 of 10



 

 

APPENDIX B 

Service Fees 



FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18

Base Rate Base Rate Base Rate Base Rate Base Rate Base Rate

(monthly) (monthly) (monthly) (monthly) (monthly) (monthly)

Meter Size (inches) Current

5/8 x 3/4 $14.19 14.19 14.19 14.19 14.19 14.19

3/4 x 3/4 $21.29 21.29 21.29 21.29 21.29 21.29

1 $35.48 35.48 35.48 35.48 35.48 35.48

1.5 $70.95 70.95 70.95 70.95 70.95 70.95

2 $113.53 113.53 113.53 113.53 113.53 113.53

3 $227.05 227.05 227.05 227.05 227.05 227.05

4 $354.77 354.77 354.77 354.77 354.77 354.77

6 $709.54 709.54 709.54 709.54 709.54 709.54

8 $1,135.26 1,135.26 1,135.26 1,135.26 1,135.26 1,135.26

FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18

Commodity Rate Commodity Rate Commodity Rate Commodity Rate Commodity Rate Commodity Rate

($/1,000 gallon) ($/1,000 gallon) ($/1,000 gallon) ($/1,000 gallon) ($/1,000 gallon) ($/1,000 gallon)

Current

Residential

Tier 1 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30

Tier 2 2.99 3.01 3.06 3.11 3.11 3.11

Tier 3 4.03 4.07 4.13 4.19 4.19 4.19

Tier 4 5.38 5.49 5.58 5.66 5.66 5.66

Irrigation

Tier 1 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30

Tier 2 2.99 3.01 3.06 3.11 3.11 3.11

Tier 3 4.03 4.07 4.13 4.19 4.19 4.19

Tier 4 5.38 5.49 5.58 5.66 5.66 5.66

Commercial 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30

Master-Metered Multifamily 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30

Turf 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.30 2.30 2.30

Construction 6.38 6.49 6.58 6.66 6.66 6.66

All Reclaimed Classes 2.20 2.20 2.23 2.27 2.27 2.27

Proposed

Customer Class

1 Existing Commercial and Multifamily Tier 1 rate. 

BASE RATES AND COMMODITY RATES
RATE SCHEDULE

ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

All Customer Classes

Proposed

Appendix B Rate Schedule for Base Rates and Commodity Rates  Page 1 of 1



Plan Revision

For 0 - 500 feet: $1,555.00
For inspections exceeding 500 feet: $1,555.00 + $1.50 per foot

Repeat Pressure Test $95.00 per test
Repeat Bacteria Test $85.00 per test

For inspection services during other than

normal working hours, this amount will

be charged in addition to above fees: Labor Costs + 30% Benefits

ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY
RATE SCHEDULE

SERVICE FEES AND CHARGES

New Development Hydraulic & Design Review Fees

Hydaulic Review Design Review
Base Sheet $170.00 $255.00
Each Add'l Sheet $42.00 $42.00

Fees will be collected prior to project acceptance.

Late Payment Fee

$5.00 or 1% of the outstanding balance owed whichever is greater.

N/A $42.00 Each

Fees include 2 hydraulic reviews and 2 design reviews.
Additonal reviews to be $85.00 per review.

Fees to be collected prior to receipt of approved plans.

New Development Construction Inspection Fees

Appendix B Rate Schedule for Service Fees and Charges 1 of 1

I 



 

 

APPENDIX C 

Preferred Financial Scenario 



Table C‐1
Oro Valley Water Utility

Operating Fund
Preferred Financial Scenario

Revenues FY 2013/14  FY 2014/15  FY 2015/16  FY 2016/17  FY 2017/18 
Water Service
Potable Water Sales 10,438,218$                10,692,567$               10,953,840$                  11,183,487$                11,393,129$                
Total Potable Water Sales 10,438,218 10,692,567 10,953,840 11,183,487 11,393,129
Reclaimed Water Sales 1,451,555 1,457,827 1,474,572 1,485,171 1,485,171
    Total Water Service 11,889,773 12,150,394 12,428,412 12,668,658 12,878,300
Other Operating Revenue
Groundwater Preservation Fee ‐ Potable 2,269,294 2,299,552 2,328,638 2,356,582 2,390,656
Groundwater Preservation Fee ‐ Reclaimed 318,980 318,980 318,980 318,980 318,980
Interest Income 66,250                         22,975                        18,463                           17,336                         16,755                         
Service Fees/Charges (Non‐Rate Revenue) 549,815                       549,815                      549,815                         549,815                       549,815                       
Other Income 242,211                       242,211                      242,211                         242,211                       242,211                       
    Total Other Operating Revenue 3,446,550 3,433,533 3,458,106 3,484,924 3,518,416

    Total Operating Revenue 15,336,323$                15,583,927$               15,886,518$                  16,153,582$                16,396,716$                

Operating Expenses
Potable Operating Expenses
Personnel 2,688,464                    2,782,560                   2,879,950                      2,980,748                    3,085,074                   
Operations & Maintenance 2,960,914                    2,748,525                   2,813,511                      2,879,602                    3,085,681                   
Groundwater Extinguishment Credits 405,000                       405,000                      405,000                         ‐                                    ‐                                   
CAP Wheeling Costs (includes TW + CAP water Costs) 718,065                       718,065                      918,065                         962,512                       962,512                       
CAP Recharge Costs 1,043,250                    1,101,500                   1,301,000                      1,321,000                    1,329,000                   
CAGRD Costs 150,000                       285,000                      359,000                         ‐                                    ‐                                   
Contributions to AWRD Funds ‐ GPF 2,588,274 2,618,531 2,647,618 2,675,562 2,709,636
Total Potable Operating Expenses 10,553,967$                10,659,181$               11,324,143$                  10,819,424$                11,171,903$                
Reclaimed Operating Expenses
Operations & Maintenance 839,861                       857,862                      876,218                         894,937                       923,722                       
Total Reclaimed Operating Expenses 839,861$                      857,862$                     876,218$                        894,937$                      923,722$                     
Total Operating Expenses 11,393,828$                11,517,043$               12,200,361$                  11,714,362$                12,095,624$                

Net Operating Revenue 3,942,495$                  4,066,884$                 3,686,158$                    4,439,220$                  4,301,092$                  

Appendix C Preferred Financial Scenario Tables 1 of 6



Operating Fund
Preferred Financial Scenario

FY 2013‐14  FY 2014‐15  FY 2015‐16  FY 2016‐17  FY 2017‐18 
Debt Service ‐ Potable (P&I)
Refunding ‐ Excise (2003) 1,563,536                    1,234,411                   1,228,211                      1,225,611                    940,030                       
MOC Land ‐ Excise (2005) 152,565                       152,516                      152,227                         151,691                       152,417                       
Refunding ‐ Excise (2007) 790,822                       1,255,948                   1,258,530                      1,259,936                    1,255,326                   
WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien (2009) 150,820                       150,820                      150,820                         150,820                       150,820                       
Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien (2012) 581,458                       582,285                      589,493                         586,716                       589,759                       
Proposed Debt Service (Potable) 50,000                         348,189                      378,189                         557,103                       557,103                       
Total Portable System Debt Service 3,289,202$                  3,724,170$                 3,757,470$                    3,931,877$                  3,645,455$                  

Capital Improvements: Existing System 2,611,200$                  2,835,090$                 3,533,823$                    3,517,905$                  745,255$                     

Net Balance from Operations (1,957,907)$                 (2,492,376)$                (3,605,136)$                   (3,010,561)$                 (89,617)$                      

Loan Proceeds 1,425,000                    1,025,000                   2,725,000                      2,825,000                    ‐                                   

Beginning Cash Balance 6,479,930$                   5,947,023$                  4,479,647$                     3,599,512$                   3,413,951$                  
Net Balance from Operations (532,907)                      (1,467,376)                 (880,136)                        (185,561)                      (89,617)                        
Ending Cash Balance 5,947,023$                   4,479,647$                  3,599,512$                     3,413,951$                   3,324,334$                  

Appendix C Preferred Financial Scenario Tables 2 of 6



Table C‐2
Oro Valley Water Utility

Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Fund
Preferred Financial Scenario

FY 2013/14  FY 2014/15  FY 2015/16  FY 2016/17  FY 2017/18 
Revenues
AWRD Impact Fee Revenue  1,213,500$                  1,618,000$                  1,618,000$                  1,618,000$                  1,820,250$                 
    Subtotal Revenue 1,213,500                     1,618,000                    1,618,000                    1,618,000                     1,820,250                   
Other Operating Revenue
Contribution from Operating Fund ‐ GPF 2,588,274 2,618,531 2,647,618 2,675,562 2,709,636
Interest Income 16,213                          28,300                         38,697                         48,466                          51,176                        
Loan Proceeds
    Subtotal Other Operating Revenue 2,604,487 2,646,831 2,686,314 2,724,028 2,760,812
Total Operating Revenue 3,817,987$                  4,264,831$                  4,304,314$                  4,342,028$                  4,581,062$                 

Operating Expenses
O&M Related to Capital Improvement Projects 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000

Capital Charge Related to TW Wheeling Costs 106,770 106,770 106,770 106,770 106,770

CAP Capital Charges 10,305 acre feet 164,880 175,185 185,490 185,490 185,490
Repayment of Contributions from Operating Fund 100,000                        100,001                       100,002                       100,003                        100,004                      
Total Operating Expenses 451,650$                      461,956$                      472,262$                      472,263$                      472,264$                     

Net Operating Revenue 3,366,337$                  3,802,875$                  3,832,052$                  3,869,765$                  4,108,798$                 

Debt Service
Recl. WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien (2008) 320,044                        320,044                       320,044                       320,044                        320,044                      
Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien (2012) 1,059,864                     1,061,642                    1,074,511                    1,069,449                     1,074,995                   
Proposed Debt Service
Total Debt Service 1,379,908$                  1,381,686$                  1,394,555$                  1,389,493$                  1,395,039$                 

Other Obligations
Capital Improvements
CAP Facilities Engineering & Construction 790,000$                      300,000$                      400,000$                      610,000$                      3,500,000$                 

Total Other Obligations 790,000$                      300,000$                      400,000$                      610,000$                      3,500,000$                 

Net Balance from Operations 1,196,429$                  2,121,189$                  2,037,497$                  1,870,272$                  (786,242)$                   

Beginning Cash Balance 3,402,954$                  4,599,383$                  6,720,572$                  8,758,069$                  10,628,341$               
Net Balance from Operations 1,196,429$                  2,121,189$                  2,037,497$                  1,870,272$                  (786,242)$                   
Ending Cash Balance 4,599,383$                  6,720,572$                  8,758,069$                  10,628,341$                9,842,099$                 

Appendix C Preferred Financial Scenario Tables 3 of 6



Table C‐3
Oro Valley Water Utility

Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Fund
Preferred Financial Scenario

FY 2013/14  FY 2014/15  FY 2015/16  FY 2016/17  FY 2017/18 
Revenues
Development Impact Fees 603,000$                     804,000$                     804,000$                     804,000$                     904,500$                    
    Subtotal Revenue 603,000$                     804,000$                     804,000$                     804,000$                     904,500$                    
Other Operating Revenue
Interest Income 15,813                          20,426                         22,908                         25,395                          28,146                        
    Subtotal Other Operating Revenue 618,813 824,426 826,908 829,395 932,646
Total Operating Revenue 1,221,813$                  1,628,426$                  1,630,908$                  1,633,395$                  1,837,146$                 

Operating Expenses
N/A ‐                                    ‐                                   ‐                                     ‐                                    ‐                                  
Total Operating Expenses ‐$                                  ‐$                                  ‐$                                    ‐$                                  ‐$                                 

Net Operating Revenue 1,221,813$                  1,628,426$                  1,630,908$                  1,633,395$                  1,837,146$                 

Debt Service
Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien (2012) 326,959                        327,424                       331,477                       329,916                        331,627                      
Proposed Debt Service ‐                                    ‐                                   ‐                                     ‐                                    ‐                                  
Total Debt Service 326,959$                     327,424$                     331,477$                     329,916$                     331,627$                    

Other Obligations
Capital Improvements
    Expansion Related Projects ‐                                    ‐                                   ‐                                     ‐                                    ‐                                  
Total Other Obligations ‐$                                  ‐$                                  ‐$                                    ‐$                                  ‐$                                 

Net Balance from Operations 894,854$                     1,628,426$                  1,630,908$                  1,633,395$                  1,837,146$                 

Beginning Cash Balance 3,544,937$                  4,439,791$                  6,068,217$                  7,699,125$                  9,332,520$                 
Net Balance from Operations 894,854$                     1,628,426$                  1,630,908$                  1,633,395$                  1,837,146$                 
Ending Cash Balance 4,439,791$                  6,068,217$                  7,699,125$                  9,332,520$                  11,169,666$               

Appendix C Preferred Financial Scenario Tables 4 of 6



Table C‐4
Oro Valley Water Utility
Summary of All Funds

Preferred Financial Scenario

FY 2013/14  FY 2014/15  FY 2015/16  FY 2016/17  FY 2017/18 
Revenues
Water Service
Potable Water Sales 10,438,218$                10,692,567$                10,953,840$                   11,183,487$                11,393,129$                
Groundwater Preservation Fee ‐ Potable 2,269,294 2,299,552 2,328,638 2,356,582 2,390,656
Total Potable Water Sales 12,707,512 12,992,119 13,282,478 13,540,069 13,783,785
Reclaimed Water Sales 1,451,555 1,457,827 1,474,572 1,485,171 1,485,171
Groundwater Preservation Fee ‐ Reclaimed 318,980 318,980 318,980 318,980 318,980
    Total Water Service 14,478,047 14,768,925 15,076,030 15,344,220 15,587,936
Other Operating Revenue
Potable Water Impact Fees 603,000$                      804,000$                     804,000$                        804,000$                      904,500$                     
Alternative Water Impact Fees 1,213,500                    1,618,000                   1,618,000                      1,618,000                    1,820,250                   
Interest Income 98,276                         71,701                        80,067                            91,197                         96,077                         
Other Income 792,026                       792,026                      792,026                          792,026                       792,026                       
    Total Other Operating Revenue 2,706,802 3,285,727 3,294,093 3,305,223 3,612,853

Total Operating Revenue 17,184,849$                18,054,653$               18,370,123$                   18,649,443$                19,200,788$                

Operating Expenses
Potable Operating Expenses
Personnel 2,688,464                    2,782,560                   2,879,950                      2,980,748                    3,085,074                   
Operations & Maintenance 2,960,914                    2,748,525                   2,813,511                      2,879,602                    3,085,681                   
Water Resource Management Costs 405,000                       405,000                      405,000                          ‐                                    ‐                                   
CAP Wheeling Costs (includes TW + CAP water Costs) 718,065                       718,065                      918,065                          962,512                       962,512                       
CAP Recharge Costs 1,043,250                    1,101,500                   1,301,000                      1,321,000                    1,329,000                   
CAGRD Costs 150,000                       285,000                      359,000                          ‐                                    ‐                                   
Contributions to AWRD Funds ‐ GPF 2,588,274 2,618,531 2,647,618 2,675,562 2,709,636
Total Potable Operating Expenses 10,553,967$                10,659,181$               11,324,143$                   10,819,424$                11,171,903$                
Reclaimed Operating Expenses
Operations & Maintenance 839,861                       857,862                      876,218                          894,937                       923,722                       
Total Reclaimed Operating Expenses 839,861$                      857,862$                     876,218$                        894,937$                      923,722$                     
Total Operating Expenses 11,393,828$                11,517,043$               12,200,361$                   11,714,362$                12,095,624$                

Net Operating Revenue 5,791,021$                  6,537,610$                  6,169,762$                     6,935,081$                  7,105,164$                  

Appendix C Preferred Financial Scenario Tables 5 of 6



Summary of All Funds
Preferred Financial Scenario

Debt Service ‐ Potable (P&I)
Refunding ‐ Excise (2003) 1,563,536                    1,234,411                   1,228,211                      1,225,611                    940,030                       
MOC Land ‐ Excise (2005) 152,565                       152,516                      152,227                          151,691                       152,417                       
Refunding ‐ Excise (2007) 790,822                       1,255,948                   1,258,530                      1,259,936                    1,255,326                   
WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien (2009) 150,820                       150,820                      150,820                          150,820                       150,820                       
Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien (2012) 581,458                       582,285                      589,493                          586,716                       589,759                       
Proposed Debt Service (Potable) 50,000                         348,189                      378,189                          557,103                       557,103                       
Total Portable System Debt Service 3,289,202$                  3,724,170$                  3,757,470$                     3,931,877$                  3,645,455$                  
Debt Service ‐ Alternative Water (P&I)
Reclaimed. WIFA ‐ Sr. Lien (2008) 320,044                       320,044                      320,044                          320,044                       320,044                       
Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien (2012) 1,059,864                    1,061,642                   1,074,511                      1,069,449                    1,074,995                   
Proposed Debt Service ‐                                    ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                                    ‐                                   
Total Alternative Water Debt Service 1,379,908                    1,381,686                   1,394,555                      1,389,493                    1,395,039                   
Debt Service ‐ Potable Expansion Related (P&I)
Refunding ‐ Sr. Lien (2012) 326,959                       327,424                      331,477                          329,916                       331,627                       
Proposed Debt Service ‐                                    ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                                    ‐                                   
Total Potable Expansion Related Debt Service 326,959$                      327,424$                     331,477$                        329,916$                      331,627$                     

Total Water System Debt Service 4,996,069$                  5,433,280$                  5,483,503$                     5,651,286$                  5,372,121$                  

Capital Improvements
Existing System 2,611,200                    2,835,090                   3,533,823                      3,517,905                    745,255                       
Expansion Related  ‐                                    ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                                    ‐                                   
CAP Facilities Engineering & Construction 790,000                       300,000                      400,000                          610,000                       3,500,000                   
Total Capital Improvements 3,401,200$                  3,135,090$                  3,933,823$                     4,127,905$                  4,245,255$                  

Net Balance From Operations (2,606,248)$                 (2,030,760)$                (3,247,564)$                    (2,844,109)$                 (2,512,211)$                 

Debt Service Coverage 1.32                              1.40                             1.24                              1.43                              1.57                             

Percent Impact to residential customer using 8,000 gals: 0.60% 0.80% 0.60% 0.00% 0.00%
Dollar Impact to residential customer using 8,000 gals: 0.23$                            0.33$                            0.26$                             ‐$                              ‐$                              

Appendix C Preferred Financial Scenario Tables 6 of 6



 

 

APPENDIX D 

Bill Impacts 



RESIDENTIAL & IRRIGATION CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 5/8" X 3/4" METER

BASE RATE 14.19             

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 14.19             14.19            -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             14.19               0.0%

1,000          16.39             16.42            0.03            0.2% 0.95                0.95               0.00 0.03           17.37               0.2%

2,000          18.59             18.65            0.06            0.3% 1.90                1.90               0.00 0.06           20.55               0.3%

3,000          20.79             20.88            0.09            0.4% 2.85                2.85               0.00 0.09           23.73               0.4%

4,000          22.99             23.11            0.12            0.5% 3.80                3.80               0.00 0.12           26.91               0.4%

5,000          25.19             25.34            0.15            0.6% 4.75                4.75               0.00 0.15           30.09               0.5%

6,000          27.39             27.57            0.18            0.7% 5.70                5.70               0.00 0.18           33.27               0.5%

7,000          29.59             29.80            0.21            0.7% 6.65                6.65               0.00 0.21           36.45               0.6%

8,000          32.58             32.81            0.23            0.7% 7.60                7.60               0.00 0.23           40.41               0.6%

9,000          35.57             35.82            0.25            0.7% 8.55                8.55               0.00 0.25           44.37               0.6%

10,000        38.56             38.83            0.27            0.7% 9.50                9.50               0.00 0.27           48.33               0.6%

11,000        41.55             41.84            0.29            0.7% 10.45              10.45             0.00 0.29           52.29               0.6%

12,000        44.54             44.85            0.31            0.7% 11.40              11.40             0.00 0.31           56.25               0.6%

13,000        47.53             47.86            0.33            0.7% 12.35              12.35             0.00 0.33           60.21               0.6%

14,000        50.52             50.87            0.35            0.7% 13.30              13.30             0.00 0.35           64.17               0.5%

15,000        53.51             53.88            0.37            0.7% 14.25              14.25             0.00 0.37           68.13               0.5%

16,000        56.50             56.89            0.39            0.7% 15.20              15.20             0.00 0.39           72.09               0.5%

17,000        60.53             60.96            0.43            0.7% 16.15              16.15             0.00 0.43           77.11               0.6%

18,000        64.56             65.03            0.47            0.7% 17.10              17.10             0.00 0.47           82.13               0.6%

19,000        68.59             69.10            0.51            0.7% 18.05              18.05             0.00 0.51           87.15               0.6%

20,000        72.62             73.17            0.55            0.8% 19.00              19.00             0.00 0.55           92.17               0.6%

21,000        76.65             77.24            0.59            0.8% 19.95              19.95             0.00 0.59           97.19               0.6%

22,000        80.68             81.31            0.63            0.8% 20.90              20.90             0.00 0.63           102.21             0.6%

23,000        84.71             85.38            0.67            0.8% 21.85              21.85             0.00 0.67           107.23             0.6%

24,000        88.74             89.45            0.71            0.8% 22.80              22.80             0.00 0.71           112.25             0.6%

25,000        92.77             93.52            0.75            0.8% 23.75              23.75             0.00 0.75           117.27             0.6%

26,000        96.80             97.59            0.79            0.8% 24.70              24.70             0.00 0.79           122.29             0.7%

27,000        100.83           101.66          0.83            0.8% 25.65              25.65             0.00 0.83           127.31             0.7%

28,000        104.86           105.73          0.87            0.8% 26.60              26.60             0.00 0.87           132.33             0.7%

29,000        108.89           109.80          0.91            0.8% 27.55              27.55             0.00 0.91           137.35             0.7%

30,000        112.92           113.87          0.95            0.8% 28.50              28.50             0.00 0.95           142.37             0.7%

31,000        116.95           117.94          0.99            0.8% 29.45              29.45             0.00 0.99           147.39             0.7%

32,000        120.98           122.01          1.03            0.9% 30.40              30.40             0.00 1.03           152.41             0.7%

33,000        126.36           127.50          1.14            0.9% 31.35              31.35             0.00 1.14           158.85             0.7%

34,000        131.74           132.99          1.25            0.9% 32.30              32.30             0.00 1.25           165.29             0.8%

35,000        137.12           138.48          1.36            1.0% 33.25              33.25             0.00 1.36           171.73             0.8%

36,000        142.50           143.97          1.47            1.0% 34.20              34.20             0.00 1.47           178.17             0.8%

37,000        147.88           149.46          1.58            1.1% 35.15              35.15             0.00 1.58           184.61             0.9%

38,000        153.26           154.95          1.69            1.1% 36.10              36.10             0.00 1.69           191.05             0.9%

39,000        158.64           160.44          1.80            1.1% 37.05              37.05             0.00 1.80           197.49             0.9%

40,000        164.02           165.93          1.91            1.2% 38.00              38.00             0.00 1.91           203.93             0.9%

41,000        169.40           171.42          2.02            1.2% 38.95              38.95             0.00 2.02           210.37             1.0%

42,000        174.78           176.91          2.13            1.2% 39.90              39.90             0.00 2.13           216.81             1.0%

43,000        180.16           182.40          2.24            1.2% 40.85              40.85             0.00 2.24           223.25             1.0%

44,000        185.54           187.89          2.35            1.3% 41.80              41.80             0.00 2.35           229.69             1.0%

45,000        190.92           193.38          2.46            1.3% 42.75              42.75             0.00 2.46           236.13             1.1%

46,000        196.30           198.87          2.57            1.3% 43.70              43.70             0.00 2.57           242.57             1.1%

47,000        201.68           204.36          2.68            1.3% 44.65              44.65             0.00 2.68           249.01             1.1%

48,000        207.06           209.85          2.79            1.3% 45.60              45.60             0.00 2.79           255.45             1.1%

49,000        212.44           215.34          2.90            1.4% 46.55              46.55             0.00 2.90           261.89             1.1%

50,000        217.82           220.83          3.01            1.4% 47.50              47.50             0.00 3.01           268.33             1.1%

51,000        223.20           226.32          3.12            1.4% 48.45              48.45             0.00 3.12           274.77             1.1%

52,000        228.58           231.81          3.23            1.4% 49.40              49.40             0.00 3.23           281.21             1.2%

53,000        233.96           237.30          3.34            1.4% 50.35              50.35             0.00 3.34           287.65             1.2%

54,000        239.34           242.79          3.45            1.4% 51.30              51.30             0.00 3.45           294.09             1.2%

55,000        244.72           248.28          3.56            1.5% 52.25              52.25             0.00 3.56           300.53             1.2%

56,000        250.10           253.77          3.67            1.5% 53.20              53.20             0.00 3.67           306.97             1.2%

57,000        255.48           259.26          3.78            1.5% 54.15              54.15             0.00 3.78           313.41             1.2%

58,000        260.86           264.75          3.89            1.5% 55.10              55.10             0.00 3.89           319.85             1.2%

59,000        266.24           270.24          4.00            1.5% 56.05              56.05             0.00 4.00           326.29             1.2%

60,000        271.62           275.73          4.11            1.5% 57.00              57.00             0.00 4.11           332.73             1.3%

61,000        277.00           281.22          4.22            1.5% 57.95              57.95             0.00 4.22           339.17             1.3%

62,000        282.38           286.71          4.33            1.5% 58.90              58.90             0.00 4.33           345.61             1.3%

63,000        287.76           292.20          4.44            1.5% 59.85              59.85             0.00 4.44           352.05             1.3%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 1 of 17



RESIDENTIAL & IRRIGATION CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 3/4" X 3/4" METER

BASE RATE 21.29             

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 21.29             21.29            -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             21.29               0.0%

1,000          23.49             23.52            0.03            0.1% 0.95                0.95               0.00 0.03           24.47               0.1%

2,000          25.69             25.75            0.06            0.2% 1.90                1.90               0.00 0.06           27.65               0.2%

3,000          27.89             27.98            0.09            0.3% 2.85                2.85               0.00 0.09           30.83               0.3%

4,000          30.09             30.21            0.12            0.4% 3.80                3.80               0.00 0.12           34.01               0.4%

5,000          32.29             32.44            0.15            0.5% 4.75                4.75               0.00 0.15           37.19               0.4%

6,000          34.49             34.67            0.18            0.5% 5.70                5.70               0.00 0.18           40.37               0.4%

7,000          36.69             36.90            0.21            0.6% 6.65                6.65               0.00 0.21           43.55               0.5%

8,000          38.89             39.13            0.24            0.6% 7.60                7.60               0.00 0.24           46.73               0.5%

9,000          41.09             41.36            0.27            0.7% 8.55                8.55               0.00 0.27           49.91               0.5%

10,000        43.29             43.59            0.30            0.7% 9.50                9.50               0.00 0.30           53.09               0.6%

11,000        46.28             46.60            0.32            0.7% 10.45              10.45             0.00 0.32           57.05               0.6%

12,000        49.27             49.61            0.34            0.7% 11.40              11.40             0.00 0.34           61.01               0.6%

13,000        52.26             52.62            0.36            0.7% 12.35              12.35             0.00 0.36           64.97               0.6%

14,000        55.25             55.63            0.38            0.7% 13.30              13.30             0.00 0.38           68.93               0.6%

15,000        58.24             58.64            0.40            0.7% 14.25              14.25             0.00 0.40           72.89               0.6%

16,000        61.23             61.65            0.42            0.7% 15.20              15.20             0.00 0.42           76.85               0.5%

17,000        64.22             64.66            0.44            0.7% 16.15              16.15             0.00 0.44           80.81               0.5%

18,000        67.21             67.67            0.46            0.7% 17.10              17.10             0.00 0.46           84.77               0.5%

19,000        70.20             70.68            0.48            0.7% 18.05              18.05             0.00 0.48           88.73               0.5%

20,000        73.19             73.69            0.50            0.7% 19.00              19.00             0.00 0.50           92.69               0.5%

21,000        76.18             76.70            0.52            0.7% 19.95              19.95             0.00 0.52           96.65               0.5%

22,000        79.17             79.71            0.54            0.7% 20.90              20.90             0.00 0.54           100.61             0.5%

23,000        82.16             82.72            0.56            0.7% 21.85              21.85             0.00 0.56           104.57             0.5%

24,000        85.15             85.73            0.58            0.7% 22.80              22.80             0.00 0.58           108.53             0.5%

25,000        89.18             89.80            0.62            0.7% 23.75              23.75             0.00 0.62           113.55             0.5%

26,000        93.21             93.87            0.66            0.7% 24.70              24.70             0.00 0.66           118.57             0.6%

27,000        97.24             97.94            0.70            0.7% 25.65              25.65             0.00 0.70           123.59             0.6%

28,000        101.27           102.01          0.74            0.7% 26.60              26.60             0.00 0.74           128.61             0.6%

29,000        105.30           106.08          0.78            0.7% 27.55              27.55             0.00 0.78           133.63             0.6%

30,000        109.33           110.15          0.82            0.8% 28.50              28.50             0.00 0.82           138.65             0.6%

31,000        113.36           114.22          0.86            0.8% 29.45              29.45             0.00 0.86           143.67             0.6%

32,000        117.39           118.29          0.90            0.8% 30.40              30.40             0.00 0.90           148.69             0.6%

33,000        121.42           122.36          0.94            0.8% 31.35              31.35             0.00 0.94           153.71             0.6%

34,000        125.45           126.43          0.98            0.8% 32.30              32.30             0.00 0.98           158.73             0.6%

35,000        129.48           130.50          1.02            0.8% 33.25              33.25             0.00 1.02           163.75             0.6%

36,000        133.51           134.57          1.06            0.8% 34.20              34.20             0.00 1.06           168.77             0.6%

37,000        137.54           138.64          1.10            0.8% 35.15              35.15             0.00 1.10           173.79             0.6%

38,000        141.57           142.71          1.14            0.8% 36.10              36.10             0.00 1.14           178.81             0.6%

39,000        145.60           146.78          1.18            0.8% 37.05              37.05             0.00 1.18           183.83             0.6%

40,000        149.63           150.85          1.22            0.8% 38.00              38.00             0.00 1.22           188.85             0.7%

41,000        153.66           154.92          1.26            0.8% 38.95              38.95             0.00 1.26           193.87             0.7%

42,000        157.69           158.99          1.30            0.8% 39.90              39.90             0.00 1.30           198.89             0.7%

43,000        161.72           163.06          1.34            0.8% 40.85              40.85             0.00 1.34           203.91             0.7%

44,000        165.75           167.13          1.38            0.8% 41.80              41.80             0.00 1.38           208.93             0.7%

45,000        169.78           171.20          1.42            0.8% 42.75              42.75             0.00 1.42           213.95             0.7%

46,000        173.81           175.27          1.46            0.8% 43.70              43.70             0.00 1.46           218.97             0.7%

47,000        177.84           179.34          1.50            0.8% 44.65              44.65             0.00 1.50           223.99             0.7%

48,000        181.87           183.41          1.54            0.8% 45.60              45.60             0.00 1.54           229.01             0.7%

49,000        187.25           188.90          1.65            0.9% 46.55              46.55             0.00 1.65           235.45             0.7%

50,000        192.63           194.39          1.76            0.9% 47.50              47.50             0.00 1.76           241.89             0.7%

51,000        198.01           199.88          1.87            0.9% 48.45              48.45             0.00 1.87           248.33             0.8%

52,000        203.39           205.37          1.98            1.0% 49.40              49.40             0.00 1.98           254.77             0.8%

53,000        208.77           210.86          2.09            1.0% 50.35              50.35             0.00 2.09           261.21             0.8%

54,000        214.15           216.35          2.20            1.0% 51.30              51.30             0.00 2.20           267.65             0.8%

55,000        219.53           221.84          2.31            1.1% 52.25              52.25             0.00 2.31           274.09             0.8%

56,000        224.91           227.33          2.42            1.1% 53.20              53.20             0.00 2.42           280.53             0.9%

57,000        230.29           232.82          2.53            1.1% 54.15              54.15             0.00 2.53           286.97             0.9%

58,000        235.67           238.31          2.64            1.1% 55.10              55.10             0.00 2.64           293.41             0.9%

59,000        241.05           243.80          2.75            1.1% 56.05              56.05             0.00 2.75           299.85             0.9%

60,000        246.43           249.29          2.86            1.2% 57.00              57.00             0.00 2.86           306.29             0.9%

61,000        251.81           254.78          2.97            1.2% 57.95              57.95             0.00 2.97           312.73             1.0%

62,000        257.19           260.27          3.08            1.2% 58.90              58.90             0.00 3.08           319.17             1.0%

63,000        262.57           265.76          3.19            1.2% 59.85              59.85             0.00 3.19           325.61             1.0%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 2 of 17



RESIDENTIAL & IRRIGATION CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 1" METER

BASE RATE 35.48             

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 35.48             35.48            -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             35.48               0.0%

2,000          39.88             39.94            0.06            0.2% 1.90                1.90               0.00 0.06           41.84               0.1%

4,000          44.28             44.40            0.12            0.3% 3.80                3.80               0.00 0.12           48.20               0.2%

6,000          48.68             48.86            0.18            0.4% 5.70                5.70               0.00 0.18           54.56               0.3%

8,000          53.08             53.32            0.24            0.5% 7.60                7.60               0.00 0.24           60.92               0.4%

10,000        57.48             57.78            0.30            0.5% 9.50                9.50               0.00 0.30           67.28               0.4%

12,000        61.88             62.24            0.36            0.6% 11.40              11.40             0.00 0.36           73.64               0.5%

14,000        66.28             66.70            0.42            0.6% 13.30              13.30             0.00 0.42           80.00               0.5%

16,000        70.68             71.16            0.48            0.7% 15.20              15.20             0.00 0.48           86.36               0.6%

17,000        72.88             73.39            0.51            0.7% 16.15              16.15             0.00 0.51           89.54               0.6%

18,000        75.87             76.40            0.53            0.7% 17.10              17.10             0.00 0.53           93.50               0.6%

20,000        81.85             82.42            0.57            0.7% 19.00              19.00             0.00 0.57           101.42             0.6%

22,000        87.83             88.44            0.61            0.7% 20.90              20.90             0.00 0.61           109.34             0.6%

24,000        93.81             94.46            0.65            0.7% 22.80              22.80             0.00 0.65           117.26             0.6%

26,000        99.79             100.48          0.69            0.7% 24.70              24.70             0.00 0.69           125.18             0.6%

28,000        105.77           106.50          0.73            0.7% 26.60              26.60             0.00 0.73           133.10             0.6%

30,000        111.75           112.52          0.77            0.7% 28.50              28.50             0.00 0.77           141.02             0.5%

32,000        117.73           118.54          0.81            0.7% 30.40              30.40             0.00 0.81           148.94             0.5%

34,000        123.71           124.56          0.85            0.7% 32.30              32.30             0.00 0.85           156.86             0.5%

36,000        129.69           130.58          0.89            0.7% 34.20              34.20             0.00 0.89           164.78             0.5%

38,000        135.67           136.60          0.93            0.7% 36.10              36.10             0.00 0.93           172.70             0.5%

40,000        141.65           142.62          0.97            0.7% 38.00              38.00             0.00 0.97           180.62             0.5%

42,000        149.71           150.76          1.05            0.7% 39.90              39.90             0.00 1.05           190.66             0.6%

44,000        157.77           158.90          1.13            0.7% 41.80              41.80             0.00 1.13           200.70             0.6%

46,000        165.83           167.04          1.21            0.7% 43.70              43.70             0.00 1.21           210.74             0.6%

48,000        173.89           175.18          1.29            0.7% 45.60              45.60             0.00 1.29           220.78             0.6%

50,000        181.95           183.32          1.37            0.8% 47.50              47.50             0.00 1.37           230.82             0.6%

52,000        190.01           191.46          1.45            0.8% 49.40              49.40             0.00 1.45           240.86             0.6%

54,000        198.07           199.60          1.53            0.8% 51.30              51.30             0.00 1.53           250.90             0.6%

56,000        206.13           207.74          1.61            0.8% 53.20              53.20             0.00 1.61           260.94             0.6%

58,000        214.19           215.88          1.69            0.8% 55.10              55.10             0.00 1.69           270.98             0.6%

60,000        222.25           224.02          1.77            0.8% 57.00              57.00             0.00 1.77           281.02             0.6%

62,000        230.31           232.16          1.85            0.8% 58.90              58.90             0.00 1.85           291.06             0.6%

64,000        238.37           240.30          1.93            0.8% 60.80              60.80             0.00 1.93           301.10             0.6%

66,000        246.43           248.44          2.01            0.8% 62.70              62.70             0.00 2.01           311.14             0.7%

68,000        254.49           256.58          2.09            0.8% 64.60              64.60             0.00 2.09           321.18             0.7%

70,000        262.55           264.72          2.17            0.8% 66.50              66.50             0.00 2.17           331.22             0.7%

72,000        270.61           272.86          2.25            0.8% 68.40              68.40             0.00 2.25           341.26             0.7%

74,000        278.67           281.00          2.33            0.8% 70.30              70.30             0.00 2.33           351.30             0.7%

76,000        286.73           289.14          2.41            0.8% 72.20              72.20             0.00 2.41           361.34             0.7%

78,000        294.79           297.28          2.49            0.8% 74.10              74.10             0.00 2.49           371.38             0.7%

80,000        302.85           305.42          2.57            0.8% 76.00              76.00             0.00 2.57           381.42             0.7%

82,000        313.61           316.40          2.79            0.9% 77.90              77.90             0.00 2.79           394.30             0.7%

84,000        324.37           327.38          3.01            0.9% 79.80              79.80             0.00 3.01           407.18             0.7%

86,000        335.13           338.36          3.23            1.0% 81.70              81.70             0.00 3.23           420.06             0.8%

88,000        345.89           349.34          3.45            1.0% 83.60              83.60             0.00 3.45           432.94             0.8%

90,000        356.65           360.32          3.67            1.0% 85.50              85.50             0.00 3.67           445.82             0.8%

92,000        367.41           371.30          3.89            1.1% 87.40              87.40             0.00 3.89           458.70             0.9%

94,000        378.17           382.28          4.11            1.1% 89.30              89.30             0.00 4.11           471.58             0.9%

96,000        388.93           393.26          4.33            1.1% 91.20              91.20             0.00 4.33           484.46             0.9%

98,000        399.69           404.24          4.55            1.1% 93.10              93.10             0.00 4.55           497.34             0.9%

100,000      410.45           415.22          4.77            1.2% 95.00              95.00             0.00 4.77           510.22             0.9%

102,000      421.21           426.20          4.99            1.2% 96.90              96.90             0.00 4.99           523.10             1.0%

104,000      431.97           437.18          5.21            1.2% 98.80              98.80             0.00 5.21           535.98             1.0%

106,000      442.73           448.16          5.43            1.2% 100.70            100.70           0.00 5.43           548.86             1.0%

108,000      453.49           459.14          5.65            1.2% 102.60            102.60           0.00 5.65           561.74             1.0%

110,000      464.25           470.12          5.87            1.3% 104.50            104.50           0.00 5.87           574.62             1.0%

112,000      475.01           481.10          6.09            1.3% 106.40            106.40           0.00 6.09           587.50             1.0%

114,000      485.77           492.08          6.31            1.3% 108.30            108.30           0.00 6.31           600.38             1.1%

116,000      496.53           503.06          6.53            1.3% 110.20            110.20           0.00 6.53           613.26             1.1%

118,000      507.29           514.04          6.75            1.3% 112.10            112.10           0.00 6.75           626.14             1.1%

120,000      518.05           525.02          6.97            1.3% 114.00            114.00           0.00 6.97           639.02             1.1%

122,000      528.81           536.00          7.19            1.4% 115.90            115.90           0.00 7.19           651.90             1.1%

124,000      539.57           546.98          7.41            1.4% 117.80            117.80           0.00 7.41           664.78             1.1%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 3 of 17



RESIDENTIAL & IRRIGATION CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 1 1/2 " METER

BASE RATE 70.95             

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 70.95             70.95            -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             70.95               0.0%

8,000          88.55             88.79            0.24            0.3% 7.60                7.60               0.00 0.24           96.39               0.2%

16,000        106.15           106.63          0.48            0.5% 15.20              15.20             0.00 0.48           121.83             0.4%

24,000        123.75           124.47          0.72            0.6% 22.80              22.80             0.00 0.72           147.27             0.5%

32,000        141.35           142.31          0.96            0.7% 30.40              30.40             0.00 0.96           172.71             0.6%

35,000        147.95           149.00          1.05            0.7% 33.25              33.25             0.00 1.05           182.25             0.6%

40,000        162.90           164.05          1.15            0.7% 38.00              38.00             0.00 1.15           202.05             0.6%

48,000        186.82           188.13          1.31            0.7% 45.60              45.60             0.00 1.31           233.73             0.6%

56,000        210.74           212.21          1.47            0.7% 53.20              53.20             0.00 1.47           265.41             0.6%

64,000        234.66           236.29          1.63            0.7% 60.80              60.80             0.00 1.63           297.09             0.6%

72,000        258.58           260.37          1.79            0.7% 68.40              68.40             0.00 1.79           328.77             0.5%

80,000        282.50           284.45          1.95            0.7% 76.00              76.00             0.00 1.95           360.45             0.5%

88,000        314.74           317.01          2.27            0.7% 83.60              83.60             0.00 2.27           400.61             0.6%

96,000        346.98           349.57          2.59            0.7% 91.20              91.20             0.00 2.59           440.77             0.6%

104,000      379.22           382.13          2.91            0.8% 98.80              98.80             0.00 2.91           480.93             0.6%

112,000      411.46           414.69          3.23            0.8% 106.40            106.40           0.00 3.23           521.09             0.6%

120,000      443.70           447.25          3.55            0.8% 114.00            114.00           0.00 3.55           561.25             0.6%

128,000      475.94           479.81          3.87            0.8% 121.60            121.60           0.00 3.87           601.41             0.6%

136,000      508.18           512.37          4.19            0.8% 129.20            129.20           0.00 4.19           641.57             0.7%

144,000      540.42           544.93          4.51            0.8% 136.80            136.80           0.00 4.51           681.73             0.7%

152,000      572.66           577.49          4.83            0.8% 144.40            144.40           0.00 4.83           721.89             0.7%

160,000      604.90           610.05          5.15            0.9% 152.00            152.00           0.00 5.15           762.05             0.7%

168,000      647.94           653.97          6.03            0.9% 159.60            159.60           0.00 6.03           813.57             0.7%

176,000      690.98           697.89          6.91            1.0% 167.20            167.20           0.00 6.91           865.09             0.8%

184,000      734.02           741.81          7.79            1.1% 174.80            174.80           0.00 7.79           916.61             0.9%

192,000      777.06           785.73          8.67            1.1% 182.40            182.40           0.00 8.67           968.13             0.9%

200,000      820.10           829.65          9.55            1.2% 190.00            190.00           0.00 9.55           1,019.65          0.9%

208,000      863.14           873.57          10.43          1.2% 197.60            197.60           0.00 10.43         1,071.17          1.0%

216,000      906.18           917.49          11.31          1.2% 205.20            205.20           0.00 11.31         1,122.69          1.0%

224,000      949.22           961.41          12.19          1.3% 212.80            212.80           0.00 12.19         1,174.21          1.0%

232,000      992.26           1,005.33       13.07          1.3% 220.40            220.40           0.00 13.07         1,225.73          1.1%

240,000      1,035.30        1,049.25       13.95          1.3% 228.00            228.00           0.00 13.95         1,277.25          1.1%

248,000      1,078.34        1,093.17       14.83          1.4% 235.60            235.60           0.00 14.83         1,328.77          1.1%

256,000      1,121.38        1,137.09       15.71          1.4% 243.20            243.20           0.00 15.71         1,380.29          1.2%

264,000      1,164.42        1,181.01       16.59          1.4% 250.80            250.80           0.00 16.59         1,431.81          1.2%

272,000      1,207.46        1,224.93       17.47          1.4% 258.40            258.40           0.00 17.47         1,483.33          1.2%

280,000      1,250.50        1,268.85       18.35          1.5% 266.00            266.00           0.00 18.35         1,534.85          1.2%

288,000      1,293.54        1,312.77       19.23          1.5% 273.60            273.60           0.00 19.23         1,586.37          1.2%

296,000      1,336.58        1,356.69       20.11          1.5% 281.20            281.20           0.00 20.11         1,637.89          1.2%

304,000      1,379.62        1,400.61       20.99          1.5% 288.80            288.80           0.00 20.99         1,689.41          1.3%

312,000      1,422.66        1,444.53       21.87          1.5% 296.40            296.40           0.00 21.87         1,740.93          1.3%

320,000      1,465.70        1,488.45       22.75          1.6% 304.00            304.00           0.00 22.75         1,792.45          1.3%

328,000      1,508.74        1,532.37       23.63          1.6% 311.60            311.60           0.00 23.63         1,843.97          1.3%

336,000      1,551.78        1,576.29       24.51          1.6% 319.20            319.20           0.00 24.51         1,895.49          1.3%

344,000      1,594.82        1,620.21       25.39          1.6% 326.80            326.80           0.00 25.39         1,947.01          1.3%

352,000      1,637.86        1,664.13       26.27          1.6% 334.40            334.40           0.00 26.27         1,998.53          1.3%

360,000      1,680.90        1,708.05       27.15          1.6% 342.00            342.00           0.00 27.15         2,050.05          1.3%

368,000      1,723.94        1,751.97       28.03          1.6% 349.60            349.60           0.00 28.03         2,101.57          1.4%

376,000      1,766.98        1,795.89       28.91          1.6% 357.20            357.20           0.00 28.91         2,153.09          1.4%

384,000      1,810.02        1,839.81       29.79          1.6% 364.80            364.80           0.00 29.79         2,204.61          1.4%

392,000      1,853.06        1,883.73       30.67          1.7% 372.40            372.40           0.00 30.67         2,256.13          1.4%

400,000      1,896.10        1,927.65       31.55          1.7% 380.00            380.00           0.00 31.55         2,307.65          1.4%

408,000      1,939.14        1,971.57       32.43          1.7% 387.60            387.60           0.00 32.43         2,359.17          1.4%

416,000      1,982.18        2,015.49       33.31          1.7% 395.20            395.20           0.00 33.31         2,410.69          1.4%

424,000      2,025.22        2,059.41       34.19          1.7% 402.80            402.80           0.00 34.19         2,462.21          1.4%

432,000      2,068.26        2,103.33       35.07          1.7% 410.40            410.40           0.00 35.07         2,513.73          1.4%

440,000      2,111.30        2,147.25       35.95          1.7% 418.00            418.00           0.00 35.95         2,565.25          1.4%

448,000      2,154.34        2,191.17       36.83          1.7% 425.60            425.60           0.00 36.83         2,616.77          1.4%

456,000      2,197.38        2,235.09       37.71          1.7% 433.20            433.20           0.00 37.71         2,668.29          1.4%

464,000      2,240.42        2,279.01       38.59          1.7% 440.80            440.80           0.00 38.59         2,719.81          1.4%

472,000      2,283.46        2,322.93       39.47          1.7% 448.40            448.40           0.00 39.47         2,771.33          1.4%

480,000      2,326.50        2,366.85       40.35          1.7% 456.00            456.00           0.00 40.35         2,822.85          1.5%

488,000      2,369.54        2,410.77       41.23          1.7% 463.60            463.60           0.00 41.23         2,874.37          1.5%

496,000      2,412.58        2,454.69       42.11          1.7% 471.20            471.20           0.00 42.11         2,925.89          1.5%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 4 of 17



RESIDENTIAL & IRRIGATION CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 2 " METER

BASE RATE 113.53           

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 113.53           113.53          -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             113.53             0.0%

12,000        139.93           140.29          0.36            0.3% 11.40              11.40             0.00 0.36           151.69             0.2%

24,000        166.33           167.05          0.72            0.4% 22.80              22.80             0.00 0.72           189.85             0.4%

36,000        192.73           193.81          1.08            0.6% 34.20              34.20             0.00 1.08           228.01             0.5%

48,000        219.13           220.57          1.44            0.7% 45.60              45.60             0.00 1.44           266.17             0.5%

56,000        236.73           238.41          1.68            0.7% 53.20              53.20             0.00 1.68           291.61             0.6%

60,000        248.69           250.45          1.76            0.7% 57.00              57.00             0.00 1.76           307.45             0.6%

72,000        284.57           286.57          2.00            0.7% 68.40              68.40             0.00 2.00           354.97             0.6%

84,000        320.45           322.69          2.24            0.7% 79.80              79.80             0.00 2.24           402.49             0.6%

96,000        356.33           358.81          2.48            0.7% 91.20              91.20             0.00 2.48           450.01             0.6%

108,000      392.21           394.93          2.72            0.7% 102.60            102.60           0.00 2.72           497.53             0.5%

120,000      428.09           431.05          2.96            0.7% 114.00            114.00           0.00 2.96           545.05             0.5%

128,000      452.01           455.13          3.12            0.7% 121.60            121.60           0.00 3.12           576.73             0.5%

132,000      468.13           471.41          3.28            0.7% 125.40            125.40           0.00 3.28           596.81             0.6%

144,000      516.49           520.25          3.76            0.7% 136.80            136.80           0.00 3.76           657.05             0.6%

156,000      564.85           569.09          4.24            0.8% 148.20            148.20           0.00 4.24           717.29             0.6%

168,000      613.21           617.93          4.72            0.8% 159.60            159.60           0.00 4.72           777.53             0.6%

180,000      661.57           666.77          5.20            0.8% 171.00            171.00           0.00 5.20           837.77             0.6%

192,000      709.93           715.61          5.68            0.8% 182.40            182.40           0.00 5.68           898.01             0.6%

204,000      758.29           764.45          6.16            0.8% 193.80            193.80           0.00 6.16           958.25             0.6%

216,000      806.65           813.29          6.64            0.8% 205.20            205.20           0.00 6.64           1,018.49          0.7%

228,000      855.01           862.13          7.12            0.8% 216.60            216.60           0.00 7.12           1,078.73          0.7%

240,000      903.37           910.97          7.60            0.8% 228.00            228.00           0.00 7.60           1,138.97          0.7%

252,000      951.73           959.81          8.08            0.8% 239.40            239.40           0.00 8.08           1,199.21          0.7%

256,000      967.85           976.09          8.24            0.9% 243.20            243.20           0.00 8.24           1,219.29          0.7%

264,000      1,010.89        1,020.01       9.12            0.9% 250.80            250.80           0.00 9.12           1,270.81          0.7%

276,000      1,075.45        1,085.89       10.44          1.0% 262.20            262.20           0.00 10.44         1,348.09          0.8%

288,000      1,140.01        1,151.77       11.76          1.0% 273.60            273.60           0.00 11.76         1,425.37          0.8%

300,000      1,204.57        1,217.65       13.08          1.1% 285.00            285.00           0.00 13.08         1,502.65          0.9%

312,000      1,269.13        1,283.53       14.40          1.1% 296.40            296.40           0.00 14.40         1,579.93          0.9%

324,000      1,333.69        1,349.41       15.72          1.2% 307.80            307.80           0.00 15.72         1,657.21          1.0%

336,000      1,398.25        1,415.29       17.04          1.2% 319.20            319.20           0.00 17.04         1,734.49          1.0%

348,000      1,462.81        1,481.17       18.36          1.3% 330.60            330.60           0.00 18.36         1,811.77          1.0%

360,000      1,527.37        1,547.05       19.68          1.3% 342.00            342.00           0.00 19.68         1,889.05          1.1%

372,000      1,591.93        1,612.93       21.00          1.3% 353.40            353.40           0.00 21.00         1,966.33          1.1%

384,000      1,656.49        1,678.81       22.32          1.3% 364.80            364.80           0.00 22.32         2,043.61          1.1%

396,000      1,721.05        1,744.69       23.64          1.4% 376.20            376.20           0.00 23.64         2,120.89          1.1%

408,000      1,785.61        1,810.57       24.96          1.4% 387.60            387.60           0.00 24.96         2,198.17          1.1%

420,000      1,850.17        1,876.45       26.28          1.4% 399.00            399.00           0.00 26.28         2,275.45          1.2%

432,000      1,914.73        1,942.33       27.60          1.4% 410.40            410.40           0.00 27.60         2,352.73          1.2%

444,000      1,979.29        2,008.21       28.92          1.5% 421.80            421.80           0.00 28.92         2,430.01          1.2%

456,000      2,043.85        2,074.09       30.24          1.5% 433.20            433.20           0.00 30.24         2,507.29          1.2%

468,000      2,108.41        2,139.97       31.56          1.5% 444.60            444.60           0.00 31.56         2,584.57          1.2%

480,000      2,172.97        2,205.85       32.88          1.5% 456.00            456.00           0.00 32.88         2,661.85          1.3%

492,000      2,237.53        2,271.73       34.20          1.5% 467.40            467.40           0.00 34.20         2,739.13          1.3%

504,000      2,302.09        2,337.61       35.52          1.5% 478.80            478.80           0.00 35.52         2,816.41          1.3%

516,000      2,366.65        2,403.49       36.84          1.6% 490.20            490.20           0.00 36.84         2,893.69          1.3%

528,000      2,431.21        2,469.37       38.16          1.6% 501.60            501.60           0.00 38.16         2,970.97          1.3%

540,000      2,495.77        2,535.25       39.48          1.6% 513.00            513.00           0.00 39.48         3,048.25          1.3%

552,000      2,560.33        2,601.13       40.80          1.6% 524.40            524.40           0.00 40.80         3,125.53          1.3%

564,000      2,624.89        2,667.01       42.12          1.6% 535.80            535.80           0.00 42.12         3,202.81          1.3%

576,000      2,689.45        2,732.89       43.44          1.6% 547.20            547.20           0.00 43.44         3,280.09          1.3%

588,000      2,754.01        2,798.77       44.76          1.6% 558.60            558.60           0.00 44.76         3,357.37          1.4%

600,000      2,818.57        2,864.65       46.08          1.6% 570.00            570.00           0.00 46.08         3,434.65          1.4%

612,000      2,883.13        2,930.53       47.40          1.6% 581.40            581.40           0.00 47.40         3,511.93          1.4%

624,000      2,947.69        2,996.41       48.72          1.7% 592.80            592.80           0.00 48.72         3,589.21          1.4%

636,000      3,012.25        3,062.29       50.04          1.7% 604.20            604.20           0.00 50.04         3,666.49          1.4%

648,000      3,076.81        3,128.17       51.36          1.7% 615.60            615.60           0.00 51.36         3,743.77          1.4%

660,000      3,141.37        3,194.05       52.68          1.7% 627.00            627.00           0.00 52.68         3,821.05          1.4%

672,000      3,205.93        3,259.93       54.00          1.7% 638.40            638.40           0.00 54.00         3,898.33          1.4%

684,000      3,270.49        3,325.81       55.32          1.7% 649.80            649.80           0.00 55.32         3,975.61          1.4%

696,000      3,335.05        3,391.69       56.64          1.7% 661.20            661.20           0.00 56.64         4,052.89          1.4%

708,000      3,399.61        3,457.57       57.96          1.7% 672.60            672.60           0.00 57.96         4,130.17          1.4%

720,000      3,464.17        3,523.45       59.28          1.7% 684.00            684.00           0.00 59.28         4,207.45          1.4%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 5 of 17



RESIDENTIAL & IRRIGATION CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 3" METER

BASE RATE 227.05           

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 227.05           227.05          -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             227.05             0.0%

22,000        275.45           276.11          0.66            0.2% 20.90              20.90             0.00 0.66           297.01             0.2%

44,000        323.85           325.17          1.32            0.4% 41.80              41.80             0.00 1.32           366.97             0.4%

66,000        372.25           374.23          1.98            0.5% 62.70              62.70             0.00 1.98           436.93             0.5%

88,000        420.65           423.29          2.64            0.6% 83.60              83.60             0.00 2.64           506.89             0.5%

110,000      469.05           472.35          3.30            0.7% 104.50            104.50           0.00 3.30           576.85             0.6%

112,000      473.45           476.81          3.36            0.7% 106.40            106.40           0.00 3.36           583.21             0.6%

132,000      533.25           537.01          3.76            0.7% 125.40            125.40           0.00 3.76           662.41             0.6%

154,000      599.03           603.23          4.20            0.7% 146.30            146.30           0.00 4.20           749.53             0.6%

176,000      664.81           669.45          4.64            0.7% 167.20            167.20           0.00 4.64           836.65             0.6%

198,000      730.59           735.67          5.08            0.7% 188.10            188.10           0.00 5.08           923.77             0.6%

220,000      796.37           801.89          5.52            0.7% 209.00            209.00           0.00 5.52           1,010.89          0.5%

242,000      862.15           868.11          5.96            0.7% 229.90            229.90           0.00 5.96           1,098.01          0.5%

256,000      904.01           910.25          6.24            0.7% 243.20            243.20           0.00 6.24           1,153.45          0.5%

264,000      936.25           942.81          6.56            0.7% 250.80            250.80           0.00 6.56           1,193.61          0.6%

286,000      1,024.91        1,032.35       7.44            0.7% 271.70            271.70           0.00 7.44           1,304.05          0.6%

308,000      1,113.57        1,121.89       8.32            0.7% 292.60            292.60           0.00 8.32           1,414.49          0.6%

330,000      1,202.23        1,211.43       9.20            0.8% 313.50            313.50           0.00 9.20           1,524.93          0.6%

352,000      1,290.89        1,300.97       10.08          0.8% 334.40            334.40           0.00 10.08         1,635.37          0.6%

374,000      1,379.55        1,390.51       10.96          0.8% 355.30            355.30           0.00 10.96         1,745.81          0.6%

396,000      1,468.21        1,480.05       11.84          0.8% 376.20            376.20           0.00 11.84         1,856.25          0.6%

418,000      1,556.87        1,569.59       12.72          0.8% 397.10            397.10           0.00 12.72         1,966.69          0.7%

440,000      1,645.53        1,659.13       13.60          0.8% 418.00            418.00           0.00 13.60         2,077.13          0.7%

462,000      1,734.19        1,748.67       14.48          0.8% 438.90            438.90           0.00 14.48         2,187.57          0.7%

484,000      1,822.85        1,838.21       15.36          0.8% 459.80            459.80           0.00 15.36         2,298.01          0.7%

506,000      1,911.51        1,927.75       16.24          0.8% 480.70            480.70           0.00 16.24         2,408.45          0.7%

512,000      1,935.69        1,952.17       16.48          0.9% 486.40            486.40           0.00 16.48         2,438.57          0.7%

528,000      2,021.77        2,040.01       18.24          0.9% 501.60            501.60           0.00 18.24         2,541.61          0.7%

550,000      2,140.13        2,160.79       20.66          1.0% 522.50            522.50           0.00 20.66         2,683.29          0.8%

572,000      2,258.49        2,281.57       23.08          1.0% 543.40            543.40           0.00 23.08         2,824.97          0.8%

594,000      2,376.85        2,402.35       25.50          1.1% 564.30            564.30           0.00 25.50         2,966.65          0.9%

616,000      2,495.21        2,523.13       27.92          1.1% 585.20            585.20           0.00 27.92         3,108.33          0.9%

638,000      2,613.57        2,643.91       30.34          1.2% 606.10            606.10           0.00 30.34         3,250.01          0.9%

660,000      2,731.93        2,764.69       32.76          1.2% 627.00            627.00           0.00 32.76         3,391.69          1.0%

682,000      2,850.29        2,885.47       35.18          1.2% 647.90            647.90           0.00 35.18         3,533.37          1.0%

704,000      2,968.65        3,006.25       37.60          1.3% 668.80            668.80           0.00 37.60         3,675.05          1.0%

726,000      3,087.01        3,127.03       40.02          1.3% 689.70            689.70           0.00 40.02         3,816.73          1.1%

748,000      3,205.37        3,247.81       42.44          1.3% 710.60            710.60           0.00 42.44         3,958.41          1.1%

770,000      3,323.73        3,368.59       44.86          1.3% 731.50            731.50           0.00 44.86         4,100.09          1.1%

792,000      3,442.09        3,489.37       47.28          1.4% 752.40            752.40           0.00 47.28         4,241.77          1.1%

814,000      3,560.45        3,610.15       49.70          1.4% 773.30            773.30           0.00 49.70         4,383.45          1.1%

836,000      3,678.81        3,730.93       52.12          1.4% 794.20            794.20           0.00 52.12         4,525.13          1.2%

858,000      3,797.17        3,851.71       54.54          1.4% 815.10            815.10           0.00 54.54         4,666.81          1.2%

880,000      3,915.53        3,972.49       56.96          1.5% 836.00            836.00           0.00 56.96         4,808.49          1.2%

902,000      4,033.89        4,093.27       59.38          1.5% 856.90            856.90           0.00 59.38         4,950.17          1.2%

924,000      4,152.25        4,214.05       61.80          1.5% 877.80            877.80           0.00 61.80         5,091.85          1.2%

946,000      4,270.61        4,334.83       64.22          1.5% 898.70            898.70           0.00 64.22         5,233.53          1.2%

968,000      4,388.97        4,455.61       66.64          1.5% 919.60            919.60           0.00 66.64         5,375.21          1.3%

990,000      4,507.33        4,576.39       69.06          1.5% 940.50            940.50           0.00 69.06         5,516.89          1.3%

1,012,000   4,625.69        4,697.17       71.48          1.5% 961.40            961.40           0.00 71.48         5,658.57          1.3%

1,034,000   4,744.05        4,817.95       73.90          1.6% 982.30            982.30           0.00 73.90         5,800.25          1.3%

1,056,000   4,862.41        4,938.73       76.32          1.6% 1,003.20         1,003.20        0.00 76.32         5,941.93          1.3%

1,078,000   4,980.77        5,059.51       78.74          1.6% 1,024.10         1,024.10        0.00 78.74         6,083.61          1.3%

1,100,000   5,099.13        5,180.29       81.16          1.6% 1,045.00         1,045.00        0.00 81.16         6,225.29          1.3%

1,122,000   5,217.49        5,301.07       83.58          1.6% 1,065.90         1,065.90        0.00 83.58         6,366.97          1.3%

1,144,000   5,335.85        5,421.85       86.00          1.6% 1,086.80         1,086.80        0.00 86.00         6,508.65          1.3%

1,166,000   5,454.21        5,542.63       88.42          1.6% 1,107.70         1,107.70        0.00 88.42         6,650.33          1.3%

1,188,000   5,572.57        5,663.41       90.84          1.6% 1,128.60         1,128.60        0.00 90.84         6,792.01          1.4%

1,210,000   5,690.93        5,784.19       93.26          1.6% 1,149.50         1,149.50        0.00 93.26         6,933.69          1.4%

1,232,000   5,809.29        5,904.97       95.68          1.6% 1,170.40         1,170.40        0.00 95.68         7,075.37          1.4%

1,254,000   5,927.65        6,025.75       98.10          1.7% 1,191.30         1,191.30        0.00 98.10         7,217.05          1.4%

1,276,000   6,046.01        6,146.53       100.52        1.7% 1,212.20         1,212.20        0.00 100.52       7,358.73          1.4%

1,298,000   6,164.37        6,267.31       102.94        1.7% 1,233.10         1,233.10        0.00 102.94       7,500.41          1.4%

1,320,000   6,282.73        6,388.09       105.36        1.7% 1,254.00         1,254.00        0.00 105.36       7,642.09          1.4%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 6 of 17



RESIDENTIAL & IRRIGATION CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 4" METER

BASE RATE 354.77           

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 354.77           354.77          -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             354.77             0.0%

22,000        403.17           403.83          0.66            0.2% 20.90              20.90             0.00 0.66           424.73             0.2%

44,000        451.57           452.89          1.32            0.3% 41.80              41.80             0.00 1.32           494.69             0.3%

66,000        499.97           501.95          1.98            0.4% 62.70              62.70             0.00 1.98           564.65             0.4%

88,000        548.37           551.01          2.64            0.5% 83.60              83.60             0.00 2.64           634.61             0.4%

110,000      596.77           600.07          3.30            0.6% 104.50            104.50           0.00 3.30           704.57             0.5%

132,000      645.17           649.13          3.96            0.6% 125.40            125.40           0.00 3.96           774.53             0.5%

154,000      693.57           698.19          4.62            0.7% 146.30            146.30           0.00 4.62           844.49             0.6%

175,000      739.77           745.02          5.25            0.7% 166.25            166.25           0.00 5.25           911.27             0.6%

176,000      742.76           748.03          5.27            0.7% 167.20            167.20           0.00 5.27           915.23             0.6%

198,000      808.54           814.25          5.71            0.7% 188.10            188.10           0.00 5.71           1,002.35          0.6%

220,000      874.32           880.47          6.15            0.7% 209.00            209.00           0.00 6.15           1,089.47          0.6%

242,000      940.10           946.69          6.59            0.7% 229.90            229.90           0.00 6.59           1,176.59          0.6%

264,000      1,005.88        1,012.91       7.03            0.7% 250.80            250.80           0.00 7.03           1,263.71          0.6%

286,000      1,071.66        1,079.13       7.47            0.7% 271.70            271.70           0.00 7.47           1,350.83          0.6%

308,000      1,137.44        1,145.35       7.91            0.7% 292.60            292.60           0.00 7.91           1,437.95          0.6%

330,000      1,203.22        1,211.57       8.35            0.7% 313.50            313.50           0.00 8.35           1,525.07          0.6%

352,000      1,269.00        1,277.79       8.79            0.7% 334.40            334.40           0.00 8.79           1,612.19          0.5%

374,000      1,334.78        1,344.01       9.23            0.7% 355.30            355.30           0.00 9.23           1,699.31          0.5%

396,000      1,400.56        1,410.23       9.67            0.7% 376.20            376.20           0.00 9.67           1,786.43          0.5%

400,000      1,412.52        1,422.27       9.75            0.7% 380.00            380.00           0.00 9.75           1,802.27          0.5%

418,000      1,485.06        1,495.53       10.47          0.7% 397.10            397.10           0.00 10.47         1,892.63          0.6%

440,000      1,573.72        1,585.07       11.35          0.7% 418.00            418.00           0.00 11.35         2,003.07          0.6%

462,000      1,662.38        1,674.61       12.23          0.7% 438.90            438.90           0.00 12.23         2,113.51          0.6%

484,000      1,751.04        1,764.15       13.11          0.7% 459.80            459.80           0.00 13.11         2,223.95          0.6%

506,000      1,839.70        1,853.69       13.99          0.8% 480.70            480.70           0.00 13.99         2,334.39          0.6%

528,000      1,928.36        1,943.23       14.87          0.8% 501.60            501.60           0.00 14.87         2,444.83          0.6%

550,000      2,017.02        2,032.77       15.75          0.8% 522.50            522.50           0.00 15.75         2,555.27          0.6%

572,000      2,105.68        2,122.31       16.63          0.8% 543.40            543.40           0.00 16.63         2,665.71          0.6%

594,000      2,194.34        2,211.85       17.51          0.8% 564.30            564.30           0.00 17.51         2,776.15          0.6%

616,000      2,283.00        2,301.39       18.39          0.8% 585.20            585.20           0.00 18.39         2,886.59          0.6%

638,000      2,371.66        2,390.93       19.27          0.8% 606.10            606.10           0.00 19.27         2,997.03          0.6%

660,000      2,460.32        2,480.47       20.15          0.8% 627.00            627.00           0.00 20.15         3,107.47          0.7%

682,000      2,548.98        2,570.01       21.03          0.8% 647.90            647.90           0.00 21.03         3,217.91          0.7%

704,000      2,637.64        2,659.55       21.91          0.8% 668.80            668.80           0.00 21.91         3,328.35          0.7%

726,000      2,726.30        2,749.09       22.79          0.8% 689.70            689.70           0.00 22.79         3,438.79          0.7%

748,000      2,814.96        2,838.63       23.67          0.8% 710.60            710.60           0.00 23.67         3,549.23          0.7%

770,000      2,903.62        2,928.17       24.55          0.8% 731.50            731.50           0.00 24.55         3,659.67          0.7%

792,000      2,992.28        3,017.71       25.43          0.8% 752.40            752.40           0.00 25.43         3,770.11          0.7%

800,000      3,024.52        3,050.27       25.75          0.9% 760.00            760.00           0.00 25.75         3,810.27          0.7%

814,000      3,099.84        3,127.13       27.29          0.9% 773.30            773.30           0.00 27.29         3,900.43          0.7%

836,000      3,218.20        3,247.91       29.71          0.9% 794.20            794.20           0.00 29.71         4,042.11          0.7%

858,000      3,336.56        3,368.69       32.13          1.0% 815.10            815.10           0.00 32.13         4,183.79          0.8%

880,000      3,454.92        3,489.47       34.55          1.0% 836.00            836.00           0.00 34.55         4,325.47          0.8%

902,000      3,573.28        3,610.25       36.97          1.0% 856.90            856.90           0.00 36.97         4,467.15          0.8%

924,000      3,691.64        3,731.03       39.39          1.1% 877.80            877.80           0.00 39.39         4,608.83          0.9%

946,000      3,810.00        3,851.81       41.81          1.1% 898.70            898.70           0.00 41.81         4,750.51          0.9%

968,000      3,928.36        3,972.59       44.23          1.1% 919.60            919.60           0.00 44.23         4,892.19          0.9%

990,000      4,046.72        4,093.37       46.65          1.2% 940.50            940.50           0.00 46.65         5,033.87          0.9%

1,012,000   4,165.08        4,214.15       49.07          1.2% 961.40            961.40           0.00 49.07         5,175.55          1.0%

1,034,000   4,283.44        4,334.93       51.49          1.2% 982.30            982.30           0.00 51.49         5,317.23          1.0%

1,056,000   4,401.80        4,455.71       53.91          1.2% 1,003.20         1,003.20        0.00 53.91         5,458.91          1.0%

1,078,000   4,520.16        4,576.49       56.33          1.2% 1,024.10         1,024.10        0.00 56.33         5,600.59          1.0%

1,100,000   4,638.52        4,697.27       58.75          1.3% 1,045.00         1,045.00        0.00 58.75         5,742.27          1.0%

1,122,000   4,756.88        4,818.05       61.17          1.3% 1,065.90         1,065.90        0.00 61.17         5,883.95          1.1%

1,144,000   4,875.24        4,938.83       63.59          1.3% 1,086.80         1,086.80        0.00 63.59         6,025.63          1.1%

1,166,000   4,993.60        5,059.61       66.01          1.3% 1,107.70         1,107.70        0.00 66.01         6,167.31          1.1%

1,188,000   5,111.96        5,180.39       68.43          1.3% 1,128.60         1,128.60        0.00 68.43         6,308.99          1.1%

1,210,000   5,230.32        5,301.17       70.85          1.4% 1,149.50         1,149.50        0.00 70.85         6,450.67          1.1%

1,232,000   5,348.68        5,421.95       73.27          1.4% 1,170.40         1,170.40        0.00 73.27         6,592.35          1.1%

1,254,000   5,467.04        5,542.73       75.69          1.4% 1,191.30         1,191.30        0.00 75.69         6,734.03          1.1%

1,276,000   5,585.40        5,663.51       78.11          1.4% 1,212.20         1,212.20        0.00 78.11         6,875.71          1.1%

1,298,000   5,703.76        5,784.29       80.53          1.4% 1,233.10         1,233.10        0.00 80.53         7,017.39          1.2%

1,320,000   5,822.12        5,905.07       82.95          1.4% 1,254.00         1,254.00        0.00 82.95         7,159.07          1.2%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 7 of 17



RESIDENTIAL & IRRIGATION CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 6" METER

BASE RATE 709.54           

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 709.54           709.54          -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             709.54             0.0%

60,000        841.54           843.34          1.80            0.2% 57.00              57.00             0.00 1.80           900.34             0.2%

120,000      973.54           977.14          3.60            0.4% 114.00            114.00           0.00 3.60           1,091.14          0.3%

180,000      1,105.54        1,110.94       5.40            0.5% 171.00            171.00           0.00 5.40           1,281.94          0.4%

240,000      1,237.54        1,244.74       7.20            0.6% 228.00            228.00           0.00 7.20           1,472.74          0.5%

300,000      1,369.54        1,378.54       9.00            0.7% 285.00            285.00           0.00 9.00           1,663.54          0.5%

360,000      1,501.54        1,512.34       10.80          0.7% 342.00            342.00           0.00 10.80         1,854.34          0.6%

420,000      1,633.54        1,646.14       12.60          0.8% 399.00            399.00           0.00 12.60         2,045.14          0.6%

480,000      1,765.54        1,779.94       14.40          0.8% 456.00            456.00           0.00 14.40         2,235.94          0.6%

540,000      1,897.54        1,913.74       16.20          0.9% 513.00            513.00           0.00 16.20         2,426.74          0.7%

600,000      2,029.54        2,047.54       18.00          0.9% 570.00            570.00           0.00 18.00         2,617.54          0.7%

660,000      2,161.54        2,181.34       19.80          0.9% 627.00            627.00           0.00 19.80         2,808.34          0.7%

720,000      2,293.54        2,315.14       21.60          0.9% 684.00            684.00           0.00 21.60         2,999.14          0.7%

780,000      2,425.54        2,448.94       23.40          1.0% 741.00            741.00           0.00 23.40         3,189.94          0.7%

840,000      2,557.54        2,582.74       25.20          1.0% 798.00            798.00           0.00 25.20         3,380.74          0.8%

860,000      2,601.54        2,627.34       25.80          1.0% 817.00            817.00           0.00 25.80         3,444.34          0.8%

900,000      2,721.14        2,747.74       26.60          1.0% 855.00            855.00           0.00 26.60         3,602.74          0.7%

960,000      2,900.54        2,928.34       27.80          1.0% 912.00            912.00           0.00 27.80         3,840.34          0.7%

1,020,000   3,079.94        3,108.94       29.00          0.9% 969.00            969.00           0.00 29.00         4,077.94          0.7%

1,080,000   3,259.34        3,289.54       30.20          0.9% 1,026.00         1,026.00        0.00 30.20         4,315.54          0.7%

1,140,000   3,438.74        3,470.14       31.40          0.9% 1,083.00         1,083.00        0.00 31.40         4,553.14          0.7%

1,200,000   3,618.14        3,650.74       32.60          0.9% 1,140.00         1,140.00        0.00 32.60         4,790.74          0.7%

1,260,000   3,797.54        3,831.34       33.80          0.9% 1,197.00         1,197.00        0.00 33.80         5,028.34          0.7%

1,320,000   3,976.94        4,011.94       35.00          0.9% 1,254.00         1,254.00        0.00 35.00         5,265.94          0.7%

1,380,000   4,156.34        4,192.54       36.20          0.9% 1,311.00         1,311.00        0.00 36.20         5,503.54          0.7%

1,440,000   4,335.74        4,373.14       37.40          0.9% 1,368.00         1,368.00        0.00 37.40         5,741.14          0.7%

1,500,000   4,515.14        4,553.74       38.60          0.9% 1,425.00         1,425.00        0.00 38.60         5,978.74          0.6%

1,560,000   4,694.54        4,734.34       39.80          0.8% 1,482.00         1,482.00        0.00 39.80         6,216.34          0.6%

1,620,000   4,873.94        4,914.94       41.00          0.8% 1,539.00         1,539.00        0.00 41.00         6,453.94          0.6%

1,680,000   5,053.34        5,095.54       42.20          0.8% 1,596.00         1,596.00        0.00 42.20         6,691.54          0.6%

1,740,000   5,232.74        5,276.14       43.40          0.8% 1,653.00         1,653.00        0.00 43.40         6,929.14          0.6%

1,800,000   5,412.14        5,456.74       44.60          0.8% 1,710.00         1,710.00        0.00 44.60         7,166.74          0.6%

1,860,000   5,591.54        5,637.34       45.80          0.8% 1,767.00         1,767.00        0.00 45.80         7,404.34          0.6%

1,920,000   5,770.94        5,817.94       47.00          0.8% 1,824.00         1,824.00        0.00 47.00         7,641.94          0.6%

1,980,000   5,950.34        5,998.54       48.20          0.8% 1,881.00         1,881.00        0.00 48.20         7,879.54          0.6%

2,040,000   6,129.74        6,179.14       49.40          0.8% 1,938.00         1,938.00        0.00 49.40         8,117.14          0.6%

2,000,000   6,010.14        6,058.74       48.60          0.8% 1,900.00         1,900.00        0.00 48.60         7,958.74          0.6%

2,100,000   6,413.14        6,465.74       52.60          0.8% 1,995.00         1,995.00        0.00 52.60         8,460.74          0.6%

2,160,000   6,654.94        6,709.94       55.00          0.8% 2,052.00         2,052.00        0.00 55.00         8,761.94          0.6%

2,220,000   6,896.74        6,954.14       57.40          0.8% 2,109.00         2,109.00        0.00 57.40         9,063.14          0.6%

2,280,000   7,138.54        7,198.34       59.80          0.8% 2,166.00         2,166.00        0.00 59.80         9,364.34          0.6%

2,340,000   7,380.34        7,442.54       62.20          0.8% 2,223.00         2,223.00        0.00 62.20         9,665.54          0.6%

2,400,000   7,622.14        7,686.74       64.60          0.8% 2,280.00         2,280.00        0.00 64.60         9,966.74          0.7%

2,460,000   7,863.94        7,930.94       67.00          0.9% 2,337.00         2,337.00        0.00 67.00         10,267.94        0.7%

2,520,000   8,105.74        8,175.14       69.40          0.9% 2,394.00         2,394.00        0.00 69.40         10,569.14        0.7%

2,580,000   8,347.54        8,419.34       71.80          0.9% 2,451.00         2,451.00        0.00 71.80         10,870.34        0.7%

2,640,000   8,589.34        8,663.54       74.20          0.9% 2,508.00         2,508.00        0.00 74.20         11,171.54        0.7%

2,700,000   8,831.14        8,907.74       76.60          0.9% 2,565.00         2,565.00        0.00 76.60         11,472.74        0.7%

2,760,000   9,072.94        9,151.94       79.00          0.9% 2,622.00         2,622.00        0.00 79.00         11,773.94        0.7%

2,820,000   9,314.74        9,396.14       81.40          0.9% 2,679.00         2,679.00        0.00 81.40         12,075.14        0.7%

2,880,000   9,556.54        9,640.34       83.80          0.9% 2,736.00         2,736.00        0.00 83.80         12,376.34        0.7%

2,940,000   9,798.34        9,884.54       86.20          0.9% 2,793.00         2,793.00        0.00 86.20         12,677.54        0.7%

3,000,000   10,040.14      10,128.74     88.60          0.9% 2,850.00         2,850.00        0.00 88.60         12,978.74        0.7%

3,060,000   10,281.94      10,372.94     91.00          0.9% 2,907.00         2,907.00        0.00 91.00         13,279.94        0.7%

3,120,000   10,523.74      10,617.14     93.40          0.9% 2,964.00         2,964.00        0.00 93.40         13,581.14        0.7%

3,180,000   10,765.54      10,861.34     95.80          0.9% 3,021.00         3,021.00        0.00 95.80         13,882.34        0.7%

3,240,000   11,007.34      11,105.54     98.20          0.9% 3,078.00         3,078.00        0.00 98.20         14,183.54        0.7%

3,300,000   11,249.14      11,349.74     100.60        0.9% 3,135.00         3,135.00        0.00 100.60       14,484.74        0.7%

3,360,000   11,490.94      11,593.94     103.00        0.9% 3,192.00         3,192.00        0.00 103.00       14,785.94        0.7%

3,420,000   11,732.74      11,838.14     105.40        0.9% 3,249.00         3,249.00        0.00 105.40       15,087.14        0.7%

3,480,000   11,974.54      12,082.34     107.80        0.9% 3,306.00         3,306.00        0.00 107.80       15,388.34        0.7%

3,500,000   12,055.14      12,163.74     108.60        0.9% 3,325.00         3,325.00        0.00 108.60       15,488.74        0.7%

3,540,000   12,270.34      12,383.34     113.00        0.9% 3,363.00         3,363.00        0.00 113.00       15,746.34        0.7%

3,600,000   12,593.14      12,712.74     119.60        0.9% 3,420.00         3,420.00        0.00 119.60       16,132.74        0.7%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 8 of 17



COMMERCIAL & MASTER METERED MULTIY FAMILY CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 5/8" X 3/4" METER

BASE RATE 14.19             

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 14.19             14.19            -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             14.19               0.0%

2,000          18.59             18.65            0.06            0.3% 1.90                1.90               0.00 0.06           20.55               0.3%

4,000          22.99             23.11            0.12            0.5% 3.80                3.80               0.00 0.12           26.91               0.4%

6,000          27.39             27.57            0.18            0.7% 5.70                5.70               0.00 0.18           33.27               0.5%

8,000          31.79             32.03            0.24            0.8% 7.60                7.60               0.00 0.24           39.63               0.6%

7,000          29.59             29.80            0.21            0.7% 6.65                6.65               0.00 0.21           36.45               0.6%

10,000        38.56             36.49            (2.07)           -5.4% 9.50                9.50               0.00 (2.07)          45.99               -4.3%

12,000        44.54             40.95            (3.59)           -8.1% 11.40              11.40             0.00 (3.59)          52.35               -6.4%

14,000        50.52             45.41            (5.11)           -10.1% 13.30              13.30             0.00 (5.11)          58.71               -8.0%

16,000        56.50             49.87            (6.63)           -11.7% 15.20              15.20             0.00 (6.63)          65.07               -9.2%

18,000        64.56             54.33            (10.23)         -15.8% 17.10              17.10             0.00 (10.23)        71.43               -12.5%

20,000        72.62             58.79            (13.83)         -19.0% 19.00              19.00             0.00 (13.83)        77.79               -15.1%

22,000        80.68             63.25            (17.43)         -21.6% 20.90              20.90             0.00 (17.43)        84.15               -17.2%

24,000        88.74             67.71            (21.03)         -23.7% 22.80              22.80             0.00 (21.03)        90.51               -18.9%

26,000        96.80             72.17            (24.63)         -25.4% 24.70              24.70             0.00 (24.63)        96.87               -20.3%

28,000        104.86           76.63            (28.23)         -26.9% 26.60              26.60             0.00 (28.23)        103.23             -21.5%

30,000        112.92           81.09            (31.83)         -28.2% 28.50              28.50             0.00 (31.83)        109.59             -22.5%

32,000        120.98           85.55            (35.43)         -29.3% 30.40              30.40             0.00 (35.43)        115.95             -23.4%

34,000        131.74           90.01            (41.73)         -31.7% 32.30              32.30             0.00 (41.73)        122.31             -25.4%

36,000        142.50           94.47            (48.03)         -33.7% 34.20              34.20             0.00 (48.03)        128.67             -27.2%

38,000        153.26           98.93            (54.33)         -35.4% 36.10              36.10             0.00 (54.33)        135.03             -28.7%

40,000        164.02           103.39          (60.63)         -37.0% 38.00              38.00             0.00 (60.63)        141.39             -30.0%

42,000        174.78           107.85          (66.93)         -38.3% 39.90              39.90             0.00 (66.93)        147.75             -31.2%

44,000        185.54           112.31          (73.23)         -39.5% 41.80              41.80             0.00 (73.23)        154.11             -32.2%

46,000        196.30           116.77          (79.53)         -40.5% 43.70              43.70             0.00 (79.53)        160.47             -33.1%

48,000        207.06           121.23          (85.83)         -41.5% 45.60              45.60             0.00 (85.83)        166.83             -34.0%

50,000        217.82           125.69          (92.13)         -42.3% 47.50              47.50             0.00 (92.13)        173.19             -34.7%

52,000        228.58           130.15          (98.43)         -43.1% 49.40              49.40             0.00 (98.43)        179.55             -35.4%

54,000        239.34           134.61          (104.73)       -43.8% 51.30              51.30             0.00 (104.73)      185.91             -36.0%

56,000        250.10           139.07          (111.03)       -44.4% 53.20              53.20             0.00 (111.03)      192.27             -36.6%

58,000        260.86           143.53          (117.33)       -45.0% 55.10              55.10             0.00 (117.33)      198.63             -37.1%

60,000        271.62           147.99          (123.63)       -45.5% 57.00              57.00             0.00 (123.63)      204.99             -37.6%

62,000        282.38           152.45          (129.93)       -46.0% 58.90              58.90             0.00 (129.93)      211.35             -38.1%

64,000        293.14           156.91          (136.23)       -46.5% 60.80              60.80             0.00 (136.23)      217.71             -38.5%

66,000        303.90           161.37          (142.53)       -46.9% 62.70              62.70             0.00 (142.53)      224.07             -38.9%

68,000        314.66           165.83          (148.83)       -47.3% 64.60              64.60             0.00 (148.83)      230.43             -39.2%

70,000        325.42           170.29          (155.13)       -47.7% 66.50              66.50             0.00 (155.13)      236.79             -39.6%

72,000        336.18           174.75          (161.43)       -48.0% 68.40              68.40             0.00 (161.43)      243.15             -39.9%

74,000        346.94           179.21          (167.73)       -48.3% 70.30              70.30             0.00 (167.73)      249.51             -40.2%

76,000        357.70           183.67          (174.03)       -48.7% 72.20              72.20             0.00 (174.03)      255.87             -40.5%

78,000        368.46           188.13          (180.33)       -48.9% 74.10              74.10             0.00 (180.33)      262.23             -40.7%

80,000        379.22           192.59          (186.63)       -49.2% 76.00              76.00             0.00 (186.63)      268.59             -41.0%

82,000        389.98           197.05          (192.93)       -49.5% 77.90              77.90             0.00 (192.93)      274.95             -41.2%

84,000        400.74           201.51          (199.23)       -49.7% 79.80              79.80             0.00 (199.23)      281.31             -41.5%

86,000        411.50           205.97          (205.53)       -49.9% 81.70              81.70             0.00 (205.53)      287.67             -41.7%

88,000        422.26           210.43          (211.83)       -50.2% 83.60              83.60             0.00 (211.83)      294.03             -41.9%

90,000        433.02           214.89          (218.13)       -50.4% 85.50              85.50             0.00 (218.13)      300.39             -42.1%

92,000        443.78           219.35          (224.43)       -50.6% 87.40              87.40             0.00 (224.43)      306.75             -42.3%

94,000        454.54           223.81          (230.73)       -50.8% 89.30              89.30             0.00 (230.73)      313.11             -42.4%

96,000        465.30           228.27          (237.03)       -50.9% 91.20              91.20             0.00 (237.03)      319.47             -42.6%

98,000        476.06           232.73          (243.33)       -51.1% 93.10              93.10             0.00 (243.33)      325.83             -42.8%

100,000      486.82           237.19          (249.63)       -51.3% 95.00              95.00             0.00 (249.63)      332.19             -42.9%

102,000      497.58           241.65          (255.93)       -51.4% 96.90              96.90             0.00 (255.93)      338.55             -43.1%

104,000      508.34           246.11          (262.23)       -51.6% 98.80              98.80             0.00 (262.23)      344.91             -43.2%

106,000      519.10           250.57          (268.53)       -51.7% 100.70            100.70           0.00 (268.53)      351.27             -43.3%

108,000      529.86           255.03          (274.83)       -51.9% 102.60            102.60           0.00 (274.83)      357.63             -43.5%

110,000      540.62           259.49          (281.13)       -52.0% 104.50            104.50           0.00 (281.13)      363.99             -43.6%

112,000      551.38           263.95          (287.43)       -52.1% 106.40            106.40           0.00 (287.43)      370.35             -43.7%

114,000      562.14           268.41          (293.73)       -52.3% 108.30            108.30           0.00 (293.73)      376.71             -43.8%

116,000      572.90           272.87          (300.03)       -52.4% 110.20            110.20           0.00 (300.03)      383.07             -43.9%

118,000      583.66           277.33          (306.33)       -52.5% 112.10            112.10           0.00 (306.33)      389.43             -44.0%

120,000      594.42           281.79          (312.63)       -52.6% 114.00            114.00           0.00 (312.63)      395.79             -44.1%

122,000      605.18           286.25          (318.93)       -52.7% 115.90            115.90           0.00 (318.93)      402.15             -44.2%

124,000      615.94           290.71          (325.23)       -52.8% 117.80            117.80           0.00 (325.23)      408.51             -44.3%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 9 of 17



COMMERCIAL & MASTER METERED MULTIY FAMILY CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 3/4" X 3/4" METER

BASE RATE 21.29             

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 21.29             21.29            -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             21.29               0.0%

2,000          25.69             25.75            0.06            0.2% 1.90                1.90               0.00 0.06           27.65               0.2%

4,000          30.09             30.21            0.12            0.4% 3.80                3.80               0.00 0.12           34.01               0.4%

6,000          34.49             34.67            0.18            0.5% 5.70                5.70               0.00 0.18           40.37               0.4%

8,000          38.89             39.13            0.24            0.6% 7.60                7.60               0.00 0.24           46.73               0.5%

7,000          36.69             36.90            0.21            0.6% 6.65                6.65               0.00 0.21           43.55               0.5%

10,000        43.29             43.59            0.30            0.7% 9.50                9.50               0.00 0.30           53.09               0.6%

12,000        49.27             48.05            (1.22)           -2.5% 11.40              11.40             0.00 (1.22)          59.45               -2.0%

14,000        55.25             52.51            (2.74)           -5.0% 13.30              13.30             0.00 (2.74)          65.81               -4.0%

16,000        61.23             56.97            (4.26)           -7.0% 15.20              15.20             0.00 (4.26)          72.17               -5.6%

18,000        67.21             61.43            (5.78)           -8.6% 17.10              17.10             0.00 (5.78)          78.53               -6.9%

20,000        73.19             65.89            (7.30)           -10.0% 19.00              19.00             0.00 (7.30)          84.89               -7.9%

22,000        79.17             70.35            (8.82)           -11.1% 20.90              20.90             0.00 (8.82)          91.25               -8.8%

24,000        85.15             74.81            (10.34)         -12.1% 22.80              22.80             0.00 (10.34)        97.61               -9.6%

26,000        93.21             79.27            (13.94)         -15.0% 24.70              24.70             0.00 (13.94)        103.97             -11.8%

28,000        101.27           83.73            (17.54)         -17.3% 26.60              26.60             0.00 (17.54)        110.33             -13.7%

30,000        109.33           88.19            (21.14)         -19.3% 28.50              28.50             0.00 (21.14)        116.69             -15.3%

32,000        117.39           92.65            (24.74)         -21.1% 30.40              30.40             0.00 (24.74)        123.05             -16.7%

34,000        125.45           97.11            (28.34)         -22.6% 32.30              32.30             0.00 (28.34)        129.41             -18.0%

36,000        133.51           101.57          (31.94)         -23.9% 34.20              34.20             0.00 (31.94)        135.77             -19.0%

38,000        141.57           106.03          (35.54)         -25.1% 36.10              36.10             0.00 (35.54)        142.13             -20.0%

40,000        149.63           110.49          (39.14)         -26.2% 38.00              38.00             0.00 (39.14)        148.49             -20.9%

42,000        157.69           114.95          (42.74)         -27.1% 39.90              39.90             0.00 (42.74)        154.85             -21.6%

44,000        165.75           119.41          (46.34)         -28.0% 41.80              41.80             0.00 (46.34)        161.21             -22.3%

46,000        173.81           123.87          (49.94)         -28.7% 43.70              43.70             0.00 (49.94)        167.57             -23.0%

48,000        181.87           128.33          (53.54)         -29.4% 45.60              45.60             0.00 (53.54)        173.93             -23.5%

50,000        192.63           132.79          (59.84)         -31.1% 47.50              47.50             0.00 (59.84)        180.29             -24.9%

52,000        203.39           137.25          (66.14)         -32.5% 49.40              49.40             0.00 (66.14)        186.65             -26.2%

54,000        214.15           141.71          (72.44)         -33.8% 51.30              51.30             0.00 (72.44)        193.01             -27.3%

56,000        224.91           146.17          (78.74)         -35.0% 53.20              53.20             0.00 (78.74)        199.37             -28.3%

58,000        235.67           150.63          (85.04)         -36.1% 55.10              55.10             0.00 (85.04)        205.73             -29.2%

60,000        246.43           155.09          (91.34)         -37.1% 57.00              57.00             0.00 (91.34)        212.09             -30.1%

62,000        257.19           159.55          (97.64)         -38.0% 58.90              58.90             0.00 (97.64)        218.45             -30.9%

64,000        267.95           164.01          (103.94)       -38.8% 60.80              60.80             0.00 (103.94)      224.81             -31.6%

66,000        278.71           168.47          (110.24)       -39.6% 62.70              62.70             0.00 (110.24)      231.17             -32.3%

68,000        289.47           172.93          (116.54)       -40.3% 64.60              64.60             0.00 (116.54)      237.53             -32.9%

70,000        300.23           177.39          (122.84)       -40.9% 66.50              66.50             0.00 (122.84)      243.89             -33.5%

72,000        310.99           181.85          (129.14)       -41.5% 68.40              68.40             0.00 (129.14)      250.25             -34.0%

74,000        321.75           186.31          (135.44)       -42.1% 70.30              70.30             0.00 (135.44)      256.61             -34.5%

76,000        332.51           190.77          (141.74)       -42.6% 72.20              72.20             0.00 (141.74)      262.97             -35.0%

78,000        343.27           195.23          (148.04)       -43.1% 74.10              74.10             0.00 (148.04)      269.33             -35.5%

80,000        354.03           199.69          (154.34)       -43.6% 76.00              76.00             0.00 (154.34)      275.69             -35.9%

82,000        364.79           204.15          (160.64)       -44.0% 77.90              77.90             0.00 (160.64)      282.05             -36.3%

84,000        375.55           208.61          (166.94)       -44.5% 79.80              79.80             0.00 (166.94)      288.41             -36.7%

86,000        386.31           213.07          (173.24)       -44.8% 81.70              81.70             0.00 (173.24)      294.77             -37.0%

88,000        397.07           217.53          (179.54)       -45.2% 83.60              83.60             0.00 (179.54)      301.13             -37.4%

90,000        407.83           221.99          (185.84)       -45.6% 85.50              85.50             0.00 (185.84)      307.49             -37.7%

92,000        418.59           226.45          (192.14)       -45.9% 87.40              87.40             0.00 (192.14)      313.85             -38.0%

94,000        429.35           230.91          (198.44)       -46.2% 89.30              89.30             0.00 (198.44)      320.21             -38.3%

96,000        440.11           235.37          (204.74)       -46.5% 91.20              91.20             0.00 (204.74)      326.57             -38.5%

98,000        450.87           239.83          (211.04)       -46.8% 93.10              93.10             0.00 (211.04)      332.93             -38.8%

100,000      461.63           244.29          (217.34)       -47.1% 95.00              95.00             0.00 (217.34)      339.29             -39.0%

102,000      472.39           248.75          (223.64)       -47.3% 96.90              96.90             0.00 (223.64)      345.65             -39.3%

104,000      483.15           253.21          (229.94)       -47.6% 98.80              98.80             0.00 (229.94)      352.01             -39.5%

106,000      493.91           257.67          (236.24)       -47.8% 100.70            100.70           0.00 (236.24)      358.37             -39.7%

108,000      504.67           262.13          (242.54)       -48.1% 102.60            102.60           0.00 (242.54)      364.73             -39.9%

110,000      515.43           266.59          (248.84)       -48.3% 104.50            104.50           0.00 (248.84)      371.09             -40.1%

112,000      526.19           271.05          (255.14)       -48.5% 106.40            106.40           0.00 (255.14)      377.45             -40.3%

114,000      536.95           275.51          (261.44)       -48.7% 108.30            108.30           0.00 (261.44)      383.81             -40.5%

116,000      547.71           279.97          (267.74)       -48.9% 110.20            110.20           0.00 (267.74)      390.17             -40.7%

118,000      558.47           284.43          (274.04)       -49.1% 112.10            112.10           0.00 (274.04)      396.53             -40.9%

120,000      569.23           288.89          (280.34)       -49.2% 114.00            114.00           0.00 (280.34)      402.89             -41.0%

122,000      579.99           293.35          (286.64)       -49.4% 115.90            115.90           0.00 (286.64)      409.25             -41.2%

124,000      590.75           297.81          (292.94)       -49.6% 117.80            117.80           0.00 (292.94)      415.61             -41.3%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 10 of 17



COMMERCIAL & MASTER METERED MULTIY FAMILY CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 1" METER

BASE RATE 35.48             

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 35.48             35.48            -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             35.48               0.0%

4,000          44.28             44.40            0.12            0.3% 3.80                3.80               0.00 0.12           48.20               0.2%

8,000          53.08             53.32            0.24            0.5% 7.60                7.60               0.00 0.24           60.92               0.4%

12,000        61.88             62.24            0.36            0.6% 11.40              11.40             0.00 0.36           73.64               0.5%

16,000        70.68             71.16            0.48            0.7% 15.20              15.20             0.00 0.48           86.36               0.6%

17,000        72.88             73.39            0.51            0.7% 16.15              16.15             0.00 0.51           89.54               0.6%

20,000        81.85             80.08            (1.77)           -2.2% 19.00              19.00             0.00 (1.77)          99.08               -1.8%

24,000        93.81             89.00            (4.81)           -5.1% 22.80              22.80             0.00 (4.81)          111.80             -4.1%

28,000        105.77           97.92            (7.85)           -7.4% 26.60              26.60             0.00 (7.85)          124.52             -5.9%

32,000        117.73           106.84          (10.89)         -9.2% 30.40              30.40             0.00 (10.89)        137.24             -7.4%

36,000        129.69           115.76          (13.93)         -10.7% 34.20              34.20             0.00 (13.93)        149.96             -8.5%

40,000        141.65           124.68          (16.97)         -12.0% 38.00              38.00             0.00 (16.97)        162.68             -9.4%

44,000        157.77           133.60          (24.17)         -15.3% 41.80              41.80             0.00 (24.17)        175.40             -12.1%

48,000        173.89           142.52          (31.37)         -18.0% 45.60              45.60             0.00 (31.37)        188.12             -14.3%

52,000        190.01           151.44          (38.57)         -20.3% 49.40              49.40             0.00 (38.57)        200.84             -16.1%

56,000        206.13           160.36          (45.77)         -22.2% 53.20              53.20             0.00 (45.77)        213.56             -17.6%

60,000        222.25           169.28          (52.97)         -23.8% 57.00              57.00             0.00 (52.97)        226.28             -19.0%

64,000        238.37           178.20          (60.17)         -25.2% 60.80              60.80             0.00 (60.17)        239.00             -20.1%

68,000        254.49           187.12          (67.37)         -26.5% 64.60              64.60             0.00 (67.37)        251.72             -21.1%

72,000        270.61           196.04          (74.57)         -27.6% 68.40              68.40             0.00 (74.57)        264.44             -22.0%

76,000        286.73           204.96          (81.77)         -28.5% 72.20              72.20             0.00 (81.77)        277.16             -22.8%

80,000        302.85           213.88          (88.97)         -29.4% 76.00              76.00             0.00 (88.97)        289.88             -23.5%

84,000        324.37           222.80          (101.57)       -31.3% 79.80              79.80             0.00 (101.57)      302.60             -25.1%

88,000        345.89           231.72          (114.17)       -33.0% 83.60              83.60             0.00 (114.17)      315.32             -26.6%

92,000        367.41           240.64          (126.77)       -34.5% 87.40              87.40             0.00 (126.77)      328.04             -27.9%

96,000        388.93           249.56          (139.37)       -35.8% 91.20              91.20             0.00 (139.37)      340.76             -29.0%

100,000      410.45           258.48          (151.97)       -37.0% 95.00              95.00             0.00 (151.97)      353.48             -30.1%

104,000      431.97           267.40          (164.57)       -38.1% 98.80              98.80             0.00 (164.57)      366.20             -31.0%

108,000      453.49           276.32          (177.17)       -39.1% 102.60            102.60           0.00 (177.17)      378.92             -31.9%

112,000      475.01           285.24          (189.77)       -40.0% 106.40            106.40           0.00 (189.77)      391.64             -32.6%

116,000      496.53           294.16          (202.37)       -40.8% 110.20            110.20           0.00 (202.37)      404.36             -33.4%

120,000      518.05           303.08          (214.97)       -41.5% 114.00            114.00           0.00 (214.97)      417.08             -34.0%

124,000      539.57           312.00          (227.57)       -42.2% 117.80            117.80           0.00 (227.57)      429.80             -34.6%

128,000      561.09           320.92          (240.17)       -42.8% 121.60            121.60           0.00 (240.17)      442.52             -35.2%

132,000      582.61           329.84          (252.77)       -43.4% 125.40            125.40           0.00 (252.77)      455.24             -35.7%

136,000      604.13           338.76          (265.37)       -43.9% 129.20            129.20           0.00 (265.37)      467.96             -36.2%

140,000      625.65           347.68          (277.97)       -44.4% 133.00            133.00           0.00 (277.97)      480.68             -36.6%

144,000      647.17           356.60          (290.57)       -44.9% 136.80            136.80           0.00 (290.57)      493.40             -37.1%

148,000      668.69           365.52          (303.17)       -45.3% 140.60            140.60           0.00 (303.17)      506.12             -37.5%

152,000      690.21           374.44          (315.77)       -45.7% 144.40            144.40           0.00 (315.77)      518.84             -37.8%

156,000      711.73           383.36          (328.37)       -46.1% 148.20            148.20           0.00 (328.37)      531.56             -38.2%

160,000      733.25           392.28          (340.97)       -46.5% 152.00            152.00           0.00 (340.97)      544.28             -38.5%

164,000      754.77           401.20          (353.57)       -46.8% 155.80            155.80           0.00 (353.57)      557.00             -38.8%

168,000      776.29           410.12          (366.17)       -47.2% 159.60            159.60           0.00 (366.17)      569.72             -39.1%

172,000      797.81           419.04          (378.77)       -47.5% 163.40            163.40           0.00 (378.77)      582.44             -39.4%

176,000      819.33           427.96          (391.37)       -47.8% 167.20            167.20           0.00 (391.37)      595.16             -39.7%

180,000      840.85           436.88          (403.97)       -48.0% 171.00            171.00           0.00 (403.97)      607.88             -39.9%

184,000      862.37           445.80          (416.57)       -48.3% 174.80            174.80           0.00 (416.57)      620.60             -40.2%

188,000      883.89           454.72          (429.17)       -48.6% 178.60            178.60           0.00 (429.17)      633.32             -40.4%

192,000      905.41           463.64          (441.77)       -48.8% 182.40            182.40           0.00 (441.77)      646.04             -40.6%

196,000      926.93           472.56          (454.37)       -49.0% 186.20            186.20           0.00 (454.37)      658.76             -40.8%

200,000      948.45           481.48          (466.97)       -49.2% 190.00            190.00           0.00 (466.97)      671.48             -41.0%

204,000      969.97           490.40          (479.57)       -49.4% 193.80            193.80           0.00 (479.57)      684.20             -41.2%

208,000      991.49           499.32          (492.17)       -49.6% 197.60            197.60           0.00 (492.17)      696.92             -41.4%

212,000      1,013.01        508.24          (504.77)       -49.8% 201.40            201.40           0.00 (504.77)      709.64             -41.6%

216,000      1,034.53        517.16          (517.37)       -50.0% 205.20            205.20           0.00 (517.37)      722.36             -41.7%

220,000      1,056.05        526.08          (529.97)       -50.2% 209.00            209.00           0.00 (529.97)      735.08             -41.9%

224,000      1,077.57        535.00          (542.57)       -50.4% 212.80            212.80           0.00 (542.57)      747.80             -42.0%

228,000      1,099.09        543.92          (555.17)       -50.5% 216.60            216.60           0.00 (555.17)      760.52             -42.2%

232,000      1,120.61        552.84          (567.77)       -50.7% 220.40            220.40           0.00 (567.77)      773.24             -42.3%

236,000      1,142.13        561.76          (580.37)       -50.8% 224.20            224.20           0.00 (580.37)      785.96             -42.5%

240,000      1,163.65        570.68          (592.97)       -51.0% 228.00            228.00           0.00 (592.97)      798.68             -42.6%

244,000      1,185.17        579.60          (605.57)       -51.1% 231.80            231.80           0.00 (605.57)      811.40             -42.7%

248,000      1,206.69        588.52          (618.17)       -51.2% 235.60            235.60           0.00 (618.17)      824.12             -42.9%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 11 of 17



COMMERCIAL & MASTER METERED MULTIFAMILY CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 1 1/2" METER

BASE RATE 70.95             

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 70.95             70.95            -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             70.95               0.0%

5,000          81.95             82.10            0.15            0.2% 4.75                4.75               0.00 0.15           86.85               0.2%

10,000        92.95             93.25            0.30            0.3% 9.50                9.50               0.00 0.30           102.75             0.3%

15,000        103.95           104.40          0.45            0.4% 14.25              14.25             0.00 0.45           118.65             0.4%

20,000        114.95           115.55          0.60            0.5% 19.00              19.00             0.00 0.60           134.55             0.4%

25,000        125.95           126.70          0.75            0.6% 23.75              23.75             0.00 0.75           150.45             0.5%

30,000        136.95           137.85          0.90            0.7% 28.50              28.50             0.00 0.90           166.35             0.5%

35,000        147.95           149.00          1.05            0.7% 33.25              33.25             0.00 1.05           182.25             0.6%

40,000        162.90           160.15          (2.75)           -1.7% 38.00              38.00             0.00 (2.75)          198.15             -1.4%

45,000        177.85           171.30          (6.55)           -3.7% 42.75              42.75             0.00 (6.55)          214.05             -3.0%

50,000        192.80           182.45          (10.35)         -5.4% 47.50              47.50             0.00 (10.35)        229.95             -4.3%

55,000        207.75           193.60          (14.15)         -6.8% 52.25              52.25             0.00 (14.15)        245.85             -5.4%

60,000        222.70           204.75          (17.95)         -8.1% 57.00              57.00             0.00 (17.95)        261.75             -6.4%

65,000        237.65           215.90          (21.75)         -9.2% 61.75              61.75             0.00 (21.75)        277.65             -7.3%

70,000        252.60           227.05          (25.55)         -10.1% 66.50              66.50             0.00 (25.55)        293.55             -8.0%

75,000        267.55           238.20          (29.35)         -11.0% 71.25              71.25             0.00 (29.35)        309.45             -8.7%

80,000        282.50           249.35          (33.15)         -11.7% 76.00              76.00             0.00 (33.15)        325.35             -9.2%

85,000        302.65           260.50          (42.15)         -13.9% 80.75              80.75             0.00 (42.15)        341.25             -11.0%

90,000        322.80           271.65          (51.15)         -15.8% 85.50              85.50             0.00 (51.15)        357.15             -12.5%

95,000        342.95           282.80          (60.15)         -17.5% 90.25              90.25             0.00 (60.15)        373.05             -13.9%

100,000      363.10           293.95          (69.15)         -19.0% 95.00              95.00             0.00 (69.15)        388.95             -15.1%

105,000      383.25           305.10          (78.15)         -20.4% 99.75              99.75             0.00 (78.15)        404.85             -16.2%

110,000      403.40           316.25          (87.15)         -21.6% 104.50            104.50           0.00 (87.15)        420.75             -17.2%

115,000      423.55           327.40          (96.15)         -22.7% 109.25            109.25           0.00 (96.15)        436.65             -18.0%

120,000      443.70           338.55          (105.15)       -23.7% 114.00            114.00           0.00 (105.15)      452.55             -18.9%

125,000      463.85           349.70          (114.15)       -24.6% 118.75            118.75           0.00 (114.15)      468.45             -19.6%

130,000      484.00           360.85          (123.15)       -25.4% 123.50            123.50           0.00 (123.15)      484.35             -20.3%

135,000      504.15           372.00          (132.15)       -26.2% 128.25            128.25           0.00 (132.15)      500.25             -20.9%

140,000      524.30           383.15          (141.15)       -26.9% 133.00            133.00           0.00 (141.15)      516.15             -21.5%

145,000      544.45           394.30          (150.15)       -27.6% 137.75            137.75           0.00 (150.15)      532.05             -22.0%

150,000      564.60           405.45          (159.15)       -28.2% 142.50            142.50           0.00 (159.15)      547.95             -22.5%

155,000      584.75           416.60          (168.15)       -28.8% 147.25            147.25           0.00 (168.15)      563.85             -23.0%

160,000      604.90           427.75          (177.15)       -29.3% 152.00            152.00           0.00 (177.15)      579.75             -23.4%

165,000      625.05           438.90          (186.15)       -29.8% 156.75            156.75           0.00 (186.15)      595.65             -23.8%

170,000      658.70           450.05          (208.65)       -31.7% 161.50            161.50           0.00 (208.65)      611.55             -25.4%

175,000      685.60           461.20          (224.40)       -32.7% 166.25            166.25           0.00 (224.40)      627.45             -26.3%

180,000      712.50           472.35          (240.15)       -33.7% 171.00            171.00           0.00 (240.15)      643.35             -27.2%

185,000      739.40           483.50          (255.90)       -34.6% 175.75            175.75           0.00 (255.90)      659.25             -28.0%

190,000      766.30           494.65          (271.65)       -35.4% 180.50            180.50           0.00 (271.65)      675.15             -28.7%

195,000      793.20           505.80          (287.40)       -36.2% 185.25            185.25           0.00 (287.40)      691.05             -29.4%

200,000      820.10           516.95          (303.15)       -37.0% 190.00            190.00           0.00 (303.15)      706.95             -30.0%

205,000      847.00           528.10          (318.90)       -37.7% 194.75            194.75           0.00 (318.90)      722.85             -30.6%

210,000      873.90           539.25          (334.65)       -38.3% 199.50            199.50           0.00 (334.65)      738.75             -31.2%

215,000      900.80           550.40          (350.40)       -38.9% 204.25            204.25           0.00 (350.40)      754.65             -31.7%

220,000      927.70           561.55          (366.15)       -39.5% 209.00            209.00           0.00 (366.15)      770.55             -32.2%

225,000      954.60           572.70          (381.90)       -40.0% 213.75            213.75           0.00 (381.90)      786.45             -32.7%

230,000      981.50           583.85          (397.65)       -40.5% 218.50            218.50           0.00 (397.65)      802.35             -33.1%

235,000      1,008.40        595.00          (413.40)       -41.0% 223.25            223.25           0.00 (413.40)      818.25             -33.6%

240,000      1,035.30        606.15          (429.15)       -41.5% 228.00            228.00           0.00 (429.15)      834.15             -34.0%

245,000      1,062.20        617.30          (444.90)       -41.9% 232.75            232.75           0.00 (444.90)      850.05             -34.4%

250,000      1,089.10        628.45          (460.65)       -42.3% 237.50            237.50           0.00 (460.65)      865.95             -34.7%

255,000      1,116.00        639.60          (476.40)       -42.7% 242.25            242.25           0.00 (476.40)      881.85             -35.1%

260,000      1,142.90        650.75          (492.15)       -43.1% 247.00            247.00           0.00 (492.15)      897.75             -35.4%

265,000      1,169.80        661.90          (507.90)       -43.4% 251.75            251.75           0.00 (507.90)      913.65             -35.7%

270,000      1,196.70        673.05          (523.65)       -43.8% 256.50            256.50           0.00 (523.65)      929.55             -36.0%

275,000      1,223.60        684.20          (539.40)       -44.1% 261.25            261.25           0.00 (539.40)      945.45             -36.3%

280,000      1,250.50        695.35          (555.15)       -44.4% 266.00            266.00           0.00 (555.15)      961.35             -36.6%

285,000      1,277.40        706.50          (570.90)       -44.7% 270.75            270.75           0.00 (570.90)      977.25             -36.9%

290,000      1,304.30        717.65          (586.65)       -45.0% 275.50            275.50           0.00 (586.65)      993.15             -37.1%

295,000      1,331.20        728.80          (602.40)       -45.3% 280.25            280.25           0.00 (602.40)      1,009.05          -37.4%

300,000      1,358.10        739.95          (618.15)       -45.5% 285.00            285.00           0.00 (618.15)      1,024.95          -37.6%

305,000      1,385.00        751.10          (633.90)       -45.8% 289.75            289.75           0.00 (633.90)      1,040.85          -37.9%

310,000      1,411.90        762.25          (649.65)       -46.0% 294.50            294.50           0.00 (649.65)      1,056.75          -38.1%

315,000      1,438.80        773.40          (665.40)       -46.2% 299.25            299.25           0.00 (665.40)      1,072.65          -38.3%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 12 of 17



COMMERCIAL & MASTER METERED MULTIFAMILY CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 2" METER

BASE RATE 113.53           

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 113.53           113.53          -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             113.53             0.0%

5,000          124.53           124.68          0.15            0.1% 4.75                4.75               0.00 0.15           129.43             0.1%

10,000        135.53           135.83          0.30            0.2% 9.50                9.50               0.00 0.30           145.33             0.2%

15,000        146.53           146.98          0.45            0.3% 14.25              14.25             0.00 0.45           161.23             0.3%

20,000        157.53           158.13          0.60            0.4% 19.00              19.00             0.00 0.60           177.13             0.3%

25,000        168.53           169.28          0.75            0.4% 23.75              23.75             0.00 0.75           193.03             0.4%

30,000        179.53           180.43          0.90            0.5% 28.50              28.50             0.00 0.90           208.93             0.4%

35,000        190.53           191.58          1.05            0.6% 33.25              33.25             0.00 1.05           224.83             0.5%

40,000        201.53           202.73          1.20            0.6% 38.00              38.00             0.00 1.20           240.73             0.5%

45,000        212.53           213.88          1.35            0.6% 42.75              42.75             0.00 1.35           256.63             0.5%

50,000        223.53           225.03          1.50            0.7% 47.50              47.50             0.00 1.50           272.53             0.6%

55,000        234.53           236.18          1.65            0.7% 52.25              52.25             0.00 1.65           288.43             0.6%

56,000        236.73           238.41          1.68            0.7% 53.20              53.20             0.00 1.68           291.61             0.6%

60,000        248.69           247.33          (1.36)           -0.5% 57.00              57.00             0.00 (1.36)          304.33             -0.4%

65,000        263.64           258.48          (5.16)           -2.0% 61.75              61.75             0.00 (5.16)          320.23             -1.6%

70,000        278.59           269.63          (8.96)           -3.2% 66.50              66.50             0.00 (8.96)          336.13             -2.6%

75,000        293.54           280.78          (12.76)         -4.3% 71.25              71.25             0.00 (12.76)        352.03             -3.5%

80,000        308.49           291.93          (16.56)         -5.4% 76.00              76.00             0.00 (16.56)        367.93             -4.3%

85,000        323.44           303.08          (20.36)         -6.3% 80.75              80.75             0.00 (20.36)        383.83             -5.0%

90,000        338.39           314.23          (24.16)         -7.1% 85.50              85.50             0.00 (24.16)        399.73             -5.7%

95,000        353.34           325.38          (27.96)         -7.9% 90.25              90.25             0.00 (27.96)        415.63             -6.3%

100,000      368.29           336.53          (31.76)         -8.6% 95.00              95.00             0.00 (31.76)        431.53             -6.9%

105,000      383.24           347.68          (35.56)         -9.3% 99.75              99.75             0.00 (35.56)        447.43             -7.4%

110,000      398.19           358.83          (39.36)         -9.9% 104.50            104.50           0.00 (39.36)        463.33             -7.8%

115,000      413.14           369.98          (43.16)         -10.4% 109.25            109.25           0.00 (43.16)        479.23             -8.3%

120,000      428.09           381.13          (46.96)         -11.0% 114.00            114.00           0.00 (46.96)        495.13             -8.7%

125,000      443.04           392.28          (50.76)         -11.5% 118.75            118.75           0.00 (50.76)        511.03             -9.0%

128,000      452.01           398.97          (53.04)         -11.7% 121.60            121.60           0.00 (53.04)        520.57             -9.2%

130,000      460.07           403.43          (56.64)         -12.3% 123.50            123.50           0.00 (56.64)        526.93             -9.7%

135,000      480.22           414.58          (65.64)         -13.7% 128.25            128.25           0.00 (65.64)        542.83             -10.8%

140,000      500.37           425.73          (74.64)         -14.9% 133.00            133.00           0.00 (74.64)        558.73             -11.8%

145,000      520.52           436.88          (83.64)         -16.1% 137.75            137.75           0.00 (83.64)        574.63             -12.7%

150,000      540.67           448.03          (92.64)         -17.1% 142.50            142.50           0.00 (92.64)        590.53             -13.6%

155,000      560.82           459.18          (101.64)       -18.1% 147.25            147.25           0.00 (101.64)      606.43             -14.4%

160,000      580.97           470.33          (110.64)       -19.0% 152.00            152.00           0.00 (110.64)      622.33             -15.1%

165,000      601.12           481.48          (119.64)       -19.9% 156.75            156.75           0.00 (119.64)      638.23             -15.8%

170,000      621.27           492.63          (128.64)       -20.7% 161.50            161.50           0.00 (128.64)      654.13             -16.4%

175,000      641.42           503.78          (137.64)       -21.5% 166.25            166.25           0.00 (137.64)      670.03             -17.0%

180,000      661.57           514.93          (146.64)       -22.2% 171.00            171.00           0.00 (146.64)      685.93             -17.6%

185,000      681.72           526.08          (155.64)       -22.8% 175.75            175.75           0.00 (155.64)      701.83             -18.2%

190,000      701.87           537.23          (164.64)       -23.5% 180.50            180.50           0.00 (164.64)      717.73             -18.7%

195,000      722.02           548.38          (173.64)       -24.0% 185.25            185.25           0.00 (173.64)      733.63             -19.1%

200,000      742.17           559.53          (182.64)       -24.6% 190.00            190.00           0.00 (182.64)      749.53             -19.6%

205,000      762.32           570.68          (191.64)       -25.1% 194.75            194.75           0.00 (191.64)      765.43             -20.0%

210,000      782.47           581.83          (200.64)       -25.6% 199.50            199.50           0.00 (200.64)      781.33             -20.4%

215,000      802.62           592.98          (209.64)       -26.1% 204.25            204.25           0.00 (209.64)      797.23             -20.8%

220,000      822.77           604.13          (218.64)       -26.6% 209.00            209.00           0.00 (218.64)      813.13             -21.2%

225,000      842.92           615.28          (227.64)       -27.0% 213.75            213.75           0.00 (227.64)      829.03             -21.5%

230,000      863.07           626.43          (236.64)       -27.4% 218.50            218.50           0.00 (236.64)      844.93             -21.9%

235,000      883.22           637.58          (245.64)       -27.8% 223.25            223.25           0.00 (245.64)      860.83             -22.2%

240,000      903.37           648.73          (254.64)       -28.2% 228.00            228.00           0.00 (254.64)      876.73             -22.5%

245,000      923.52           659.88          (263.64)       -28.5% 232.75            232.75           0.00 (263.64)      892.63             -22.8%

250,000      943.67           671.03          (272.64)       -28.9% 237.50            237.50           0.00 (272.64)      908.53             -23.1%

255,000      963.82           682.18          (281.64)       -29.2% 242.25            242.25           0.00 (281.64)      924.43             -23.4%

256,000      967.85           684.41          (283.44)       -29.3% 243.20            243.20           0.00 (283.44)      927.61             -23.4%

260,000      989.37           693.33          (296.04)       -29.9% 247.00            247.00           0.00 (296.04)      940.33             -23.9%

265,000      1,016.27        704.48          (311.79)       -30.7% 251.75            251.75           0.00 (311.79)      956.23             -24.6%

270,000      1,043.17        715.63          (327.54)       -31.4% 256.50            256.50           0.00 (327.54)      972.13             -25.2%

275,000      1,070.07        726.78          (343.29)       -32.1% 261.25            261.25           0.00 (343.29)      988.03             -25.8%

280,000      1,096.97        737.93          (359.04)       -32.7% 266.00            266.00           0.00 (359.04)      1,003.93          -26.3%

285,000      1,123.87        749.08          (374.79)       -33.3% 270.75            270.75           0.00 (374.79)      1,019.83          -26.9%

290,000      1,150.77        760.23          (390.54)       -33.9% 275.50            275.50           0.00 (390.54)      1,035.73          -27.4%

295,000      1,177.67        771.38          (406.29)       -34.5% 280.25            280.25           0.00 (406.29)      1,051.63          -27.9%

300,000      1,204.57        782.53          (422.04)       -35.0% 285.00            285.00           0.00 (422.04)      1,067.53          -28.3%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 13 of 17



COMMERCIAL & MASTER METERED MULTIFAMILY CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 3" METER

BASE RATE 227.05           

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 227.05           227.05          -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             227.05             0.0%

20,000        271.05           271.65          0.60            0.2% 19.00              19.00             0.00 0.60           290.65             0.2%

40,000        315.05           316.25          1.20            0.4% 38.00              38.00             0.00 1.20           354.25             0.3%

60,000        359.05           360.85          1.80            0.5% 57.00              57.00             0.00 1.80           417.85             0.4%

80,000        403.05           405.45          2.40            0.6% 76.00              76.00             0.00 2.40           481.45             0.5%

100,000      447.05           450.05          3.00            0.7% 95.00              95.00             0.00 3.00           545.05             0.6%

112,000      473.45           476.81          3.36            0.7% 106.40            106.40           0.00 3.36           583.21             0.6%

120,000      497.37           494.65          (2.72)           -0.5% 114.00            114.00           0.00 (2.72)          608.65             -0.4%

140,000      557.17           539.25          (17.92)         -3.2% 133.00            133.00           0.00 (17.92)        672.25             -2.6%

160,000      616.97           583.85          (33.12)         -5.4% 152.00            152.00           0.00 (33.12)        735.85             -4.3%

180,000      676.77           628.45          (48.32)         -7.1% 171.00            171.00           0.00 (48.32)        799.45             -5.7%

200,000      736.57           673.05          (63.52)         -8.6% 190.00            190.00           0.00 (63.52)        863.05             -6.9%

220,000      796.37           717.65          (78.72)         -9.9% 209.00            209.00           0.00 (78.72)        926.65             -7.8%

240,000      856.17           762.25          (93.92)         -11.0% 228.00            228.00           0.00 (93.92)        990.25             -8.7%

256,000      904.01           797.93          (106.08)       -11.7% 243.20            243.20           0.00 (106.08)      1,041.13          -9.2%

260,000      920.13           806.85          (113.28)       -12.3% 247.00            247.00           0.00 (113.28)      1,053.85          -9.7%

280,000      1,000.73        851.45          (149.28)       -14.9% 266.00            266.00           0.00 (149.28)      1,117.45          -11.8%

300,000      1,081.33        896.05          (185.28)       -17.1% 285.00            285.00           0.00 (185.28)      1,181.05          -13.6%

320,000      1,161.93        940.65          (221.28)       -19.0% 304.00            304.00           0.00 (221.28)      1,244.65          -15.1%

340,000      1,242.53        985.25          (257.28)       -20.7% 323.00            323.00           0.00 (257.28)      1,308.25          -16.4%

360,000      1,323.13        1,029.85       (293.28)       -22.2% 342.00            342.00           0.00 (293.28)      1,371.85          -17.6%

380,000      1,403.73        1,074.45       (329.28)       -23.5% 361.00            361.00           0.00 (329.28)      1,435.45          -18.7%

400,000      1,484.33        1,119.05       (365.28)       -24.6% 380.00            380.00           0.00 (365.28)      1,499.05          -19.6%

420,000      1,564.93        1,163.65       (401.28)       -25.6% 399.00            399.00           0.00 (401.28)      1,562.65          -20.4%

440,000      1,645.53        1,208.25       (437.28)       -26.6% 418.00            418.00           0.00 (437.28)      1,626.25          -21.2%

460,000      1,726.13        1,252.85       (473.28)       -27.4% 437.00            437.00           0.00 (473.28)      1,689.85          -21.9%

480,000      1,806.73        1,297.45       (509.28)       -28.2% 456.00            456.00           0.00 (509.28)      1,753.45          -22.5%

500,000      1,887.33        1,342.05       (545.28)       -28.9% 475.00            475.00           0.00 (545.28)      1,817.05          -23.1%

512,000      1,935.69        1,368.81       (566.88)       -29.3% 486.40            486.40           0.00 (566.88)      1,855.21          -23.4%

520,000      1,978.73        1,386.65       (592.08)       -29.9% 494.00            494.00           0.00 (592.08)      1,880.65          -23.9%

540,000      2,086.33        1,431.25       (655.08)       -31.4% 513.00            513.00           0.00 (655.08)      1,944.25          -25.2%

560,000      2,193.93        1,475.85       (718.08)       -32.7% 532.00            532.00           0.00 (718.08)      2,007.85          -26.3%

580,000      2,301.53        1,520.45       (781.08)       -33.9% 551.00            551.00           0.00 (781.08)      2,071.45          -27.4%

600,000      2,409.13        1,565.05       (844.08)       -35.0% 570.00            570.00           0.00 (844.08)      2,135.05          -28.3%

620,000      2,516.73        1,609.65       (907.08)       -36.0% 589.00            589.00           0.00 (907.08)      2,198.65          -29.2%

640,000      2,624.33        1,654.25       (970.08)       -37.0% 608.00            608.00           0.00 (970.08)      2,262.25          -30.0%

660,000      2,731.93        1,698.85       (1,033.08)    -37.8% 627.00            627.00           0.00 (1,033.08)   2,325.85          -30.8%

680,000      2,839.53        1,743.45       (1,096.08)    -38.6% 646.00            646.00           0.00 (1,096.08)   2,389.45          -31.4%

700,000      2,947.13        1,788.05       (1,159.08)    -39.3% 665.00            665.00           0.00 (1,159.08)   2,453.05          -32.1%

720,000      3,054.73        1,832.65       (1,222.08)    -40.0% 684.00            684.00           0.00 (1,222.08)   2,516.65          -32.7%

740,000      3,162.33        1,877.25       (1,285.08)    -40.6% 703.00            703.00           0.00 (1,285.08)   2,580.25          -33.2%

760,000      3,269.93        1,921.85       (1,348.08)    -41.2% 722.00            722.00           0.00 (1,348.08)   2,643.85          -33.8%

780,000      3,377.53        1,966.45       (1,411.08)    -41.8% 741.00            741.00           0.00 (1,411.08)   2,707.45          -34.3%

800,000      3,485.13        2,011.05       (1,474.08)    -42.3% 760.00            760.00           0.00 (1,474.08)   2,771.05          -34.7%

820,000      3,592.73        2,055.65       (1,537.08)    -42.8% 779.00            779.00           0.00 (1,537.08)   2,834.65          -35.2%

840,000      3,700.33        2,100.25       (1,600.08)    -43.2% 798.00            798.00           0.00 (1,600.08)   2,898.25          -35.6%

860,000      3,807.93        2,144.85       (1,663.08)    -43.7% 817.00            817.00           0.00 (1,663.08)   2,961.85          -36.0%

880,000      3,915.53        2,189.45       (1,726.08)    -44.1% 836.00            836.00           0.00 (1,726.08)   3,025.45          -36.3%

900,000      4,023.13        2,234.05       (1,789.08)    -44.5% 855.00            855.00           0.00 (1,789.08)   3,089.05          -36.7%

920,000      4,130.73        2,278.65       (1,852.08)    -44.8% 874.00            874.00           0.00 (1,852.08)   3,152.65          -37.0%

940,000      4,238.33        2,323.25       (1,915.08)    -45.2% 893.00            893.00           0.00 (1,915.08)   3,216.25          -37.3%

960,000      4,345.93        2,367.85       (1,978.08)    -45.5% 912.00            912.00           0.00 (1,978.08)   3,279.85          -37.6%

980,000      4,453.53        2,412.45       (2,041.08)    -45.8% 931.00            931.00           0.00 (2,041.08)   3,343.45          -37.9%

1,000,000   4,561.13        2,457.05       (2,104.08)    -46.1% 950.00            950.00           0.00 (2,104.08)   3,407.05          -38.2%

1,020,000   4,668.73        2,501.65       (2,167.08)    -46.4% 969.00            969.00           0.00 (2,167.08)   3,470.65          -38.4%

1,040,000   4,776.33        2,546.25       (2,230.08)    -46.7% 988.00            988.00           0.00 (2,230.08)   3,534.25          -38.7%

1,060,000   4,883.93        2,590.85       (2,293.08)    -47.0% 1,007.00         1,007.00        0.00 (2,293.08)   3,597.85          -38.9%

1,080,000   4,991.53        2,635.45       (2,356.08)    -47.2% 1,026.00         1,026.00        0.00 (2,356.08)   3,661.45          -39.2%

1,100,000   5,099.13        2,680.05       (2,419.08)    -47.4% 1,045.00         1,045.00        0.00 (2,419.08)   3,725.05          -39.4%

1,120,000   5,206.73        2,724.65       (2,482.08)    -47.7% 1,064.00         1,064.00        0.00 (2,482.08)   3,788.65          -39.6%

1,140,000   5,314.33        2,769.25       (2,545.08)    -47.9% 1,083.00         1,083.00        0.00 (2,545.08)   3,852.25          -39.8%

1,160,000   5,421.93        2,813.85       (2,608.08)    -48.1% 1,102.00         1,102.00        0.00 (2,608.08)   3,915.85          -40.0%

1,180,000   5,529.53        2,858.45       (2,671.08)    -48.3% 1,121.00         1,121.00        0.00 (2,671.08)   3,979.45          -40.2%

1,200,000   5,637.13        2,903.05       (2,734.08)    -48.5% 1,140.00         1,140.00        0.00 (2,734.08)   4,043.05          -40.3%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 14 of 17



COMMERCIAL & MASTER METERED MULTIFAMILY CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 4" METER

BASE RATE 354.77           

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 354.77           354.77          -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             354.77             0.0%

30,000        420.77           421.67          0.90            0.2% 28.50              28.50             0.00 0.90           450.17             0.2%

60,000        486.77           488.57          1.80            0.4% 57.00              57.00             0.00 1.80           545.57             0.3%

90,000        552.77           555.47          2.70            0.5% 85.50              85.50             0.00 2.70           640.97             0.4%

120,000      618.77           622.37          3.60            0.6% 114.00            114.00           0.00 3.60           736.37             0.5%

150,000      684.77           689.27          4.50            0.7% 142.50            142.50           0.00 4.50           831.77             0.5%

175,000      739.77           745.02          5.25            0.7% 166.25            166.25           0.00 5.25           911.27             0.6%

180,000      754.72           756.17          1.45            0.2% 171.00            171.00           0.00 1.45           927.17             0.2%

210,000      844.42           823.07          (21.35)         -2.5% 199.50            199.50           0.00 (21.35)        1,022.57          -2.0%

240,000      934.12           889.97          (44.15)         -4.7% 228.00            228.00           0.00 (44.15)        1,117.97          -3.8%

270,000      1,023.82        956.87          (66.95)         -6.5% 256.50            256.50           0.00 (66.95)        1,213.37          -5.2%

300,000      1,113.52        1,023.77       (89.75)         -8.1% 285.00            285.00           0.00 (89.75)        1,308.77          -6.4%

330,000      1,203.22        1,090.67       (112.55)       -9.4% 313.50            313.50           0.00 (112.55)      1,404.17          -7.4%

360,000      1,292.92        1,157.57       (135.35)       -10.5% 342.00            342.00           0.00 (135.35)      1,499.57          -8.3%

390,000      1,382.62        1,224.47       (158.15)       -11.4% 370.50            370.50           0.00 (158.15)      1,594.97          -9.0%

400,000      1,412.52        1,246.77       (165.75)       -11.7% 380.00            380.00           0.00 (165.75)      1,626.77          -9.2%

420,000      1,493.12        1,291.37       (201.75)       -13.5% 399.00            399.00           0.00 (201.75)      1,690.37          -10.7%

450,000      1,614.02        1,358.27       (255.75)       -15.8% 427.50            427.50           0.00 (255.75)      1,785.77          -12.5%

480,000      1,734.92        1,425.17       (309.75)       -17.9% 456.00            456.00           0.00 (309.75)      1,881.17          -14.1%

510,000      1,855.82        1,492.07       (363.75)       -19.6% 484.50            484.50           0.00 (363.75)      1,976.57          -15.5%

540,000      1,976.72        1,558.97       (417.75)       -21.1% 513.00            513.00           0.00 (417.75)      2,071.97          -16.8%

570,000      2,097.62        1,625.87       (471.75)       -22.5% 541.50            541.50           0.00 (471.75)      2,167.37          -17.9%

600,000      2,218.52        1,692.77       (525.75)       -23.7% 570.00            570.00           0.00 (525.75)      2,262.77          -18.9%

630,000      2,339.42        1,759.67       (579.75)       -24.8% 598.50            598.50           0.00 (579.75)      2,358.17          -19.7%

660,000      2,460.32        1,826.57       (633.75)       -25.8% 627.00            627.00           0.00 (633.75)      2,453.57          -20.5%

690,000      2,581.22        1,893.47       (687.75)       -26.6% 655.50            655.50           0.00 (687.75)      2,548.97          -21.2%

720,000      2,702.12        1,960.37       (741.75)       -27.5% 684.00            684.00           0.00 (741.75)      2,644.37          -21.9%

750,000      2,823.02        2,027.27       (795.75)       -28.2% 712.50            712.50           0.00 (795.75)      2,739.77          -22.5%

780,000      2,943.92        2,094.17       (849.75)       -28.9% 741.00            741.00           0.00 (849.75)      2,835.17          -23.1%

800,000      3,024.52        2,138.77       (885.75)       -29.3% 760.00            760.00           0.00 (885.75)      2,898.77          -23.4%

810,000      3,078.32        2,161.07       (917.25)       -29.8% 769.50            769.50           0.00 (917.25)      2,930.57          -23.8%

840,000      3,239.72        2,227.97       (1,011.75)    -31.2% 798.00            798.00           0.00 (1,011.75)   3,025.97          -25.1%

870,000      3,401.12        2,294.87       (1,106.25)    -32.5% 826.50            826.50           0.00 (1,106.25)   3,121.37          -26.2%

900,000      3,562.52        2,361.77       (1,200.75)    -33.7% 855.00            855.00           0.00 (1,200.75)   3,216.77          -27.2%

930,000      3,723.92        2,428.67       (1,295.25)    -34.8% 883.50            883.50           0.00 (1,295.25)   3,312.17          -28.1%

960,000      3,885.32        2,495.57       (1,389.75)    -35.8% 912.00            912.00           0.00 (1,389.75)   3,407.57          -29.0%

990,000      4,046.72        2,562.47       (1,484.25)    -36.7% 940.50            940.50           0.00 (1,484.25)   3,502.97          -29.8%

1,020,000   4,208.12        2,629.37       (1,578.75)    -37.5% 969.00            969.00           0.00 (1,578.75)   3,598.37          -30.5%

1,050,000   4,369.52        2,696.27       (1,673.25)    -38.3% 997.50            997.50           0.00 (1,673.25)   3,693.77          -31.2%

1,080,000   4,530.92        2,763.17       (1,767.75)    -39.0% 1,026.00         1,026.00        0.00 (1,767.75)   3,789.17          -31.8%

1,110,000   4,692.32        2,830.07       (1,862.25)    -39.7% 1,054.50         1,054.50        0.00 (1,862.25)   3,884.57          -32.4%

1,140,000   4,853.72        2,896.97       (1,956.75)    -40.3% 1,083.00         1,083.00        0.00 (1,956.75)   3,979.97          -33.0%

1,170,000   5,015.12        2,963.87       (2,051.25)    -40.9% 1,111.50         1,111.50        0.00 (2,051.25)   4,075.37          -33.5%

1,200,000   5,176.52        3,030.77       (2,145.75)    -41.5% 1,140.00         1,140.00        0.00 (2,145.75)   4,170.77          -34.0%

1,230,000   5,337.92        3,097.67       (2,240.25)    -42.0% 1,168.50         1,168.50        0.00 (2,240.25)   4,266.17          -34.4%

1,260,000   5,499.32        3,164.57       (2,334.75)    -42.5% 1,197.00         1,197.00        0.00 (2,334.75)   4,361.57          -34.9%

1,290,000   5,660.72        3,231.47       (2,429.25)    -42.9% 1,225.50         1,225.50        0.00 (2,429.25)   4,456.97          -35.3%

1,320,000   5,822.12        3,298.37       (2,523.75)    -43.3% 1,254.00         1,254.00        0.00 (2,523.75)   4,552.37          -35.7%

1,350,000   5,983.52        3,365.27       (2,618.25)    -43.8% 1,282.50         1,282.50        0.00 (2,618.25)   4,647.77          -36.0%

1,380,000   6,144.92        3,432.17       (2,712.75)    -44.1% 1,311.00         1,311.00        0.00 (2,712.75)   4,743.17          -36.4%

1,410,000   6,306.32        3,499.07       (2,807.25)    -44.5% 1,339.50         1,339.50        0.00 (2,807.25)   4,838.57          -36.7%

1,440,000   6,467.72        3,565.97       (2,901.75)    -44.9% 1,368.00         1,368.00        0.00 (2,901.75)   4,933.97          -37.0%

1,470,000   6,629.12        3,632.87       (2,996.25)    -45.2% 1,396.50         1,396.50        0.00 (2,996.25)   5,029.37          -37.3%

1,500,000   6,790.52        3,699.77       (3,090.75)    -45.5% 1,425.00         1,425.00        0.00 (3,090.75)   5,124.77          -37.6%

1,530,000   6,951.92        3,766.67       (3,185.25)    -45.8% 1,453.50         1,453.50        0.00 (3,185.25)   5,220.17          -37.9%

1,560,000   7,113.32        3,833.57       (3,279.75)    -46.1% 1,482.00         1,482.00        0.00 (3,279.75)   5,315.57          -38.2%

1,590,000   7,274.72        3,900.47       (3,374.25)    -46.4% 1,510.50         1,510.50        0.00 (3,374.25)   5,410.97          -38.4%

1,620,000   7,436.12        3,967.37       (3,468.75)    -46.6% 1,539.00         1,539.00        0.00 (3,468.75)   5,506.37          -38.6%

1,650,000   7,597.52        4,034.27       (3,563.25)    -46.9% 1,567.50         1,567.50        0.00 (3,563.25)   5,601.77          -38.9%

1,680,000   7,758.92        4,101.17       (3,657.75)    -47.1% 1,596.00         1,596.00        0.00 (3,657.75)   5,697.17          -39.1%

1,710,000   7,920.32        4,168.07       (3,752.25)    -47.4% 1,624.50         1,624.50        0.00 (3,752.25)   5,792.57          -39.3%

1,740,000   8,081.72        4,234.97       (3,846.75)    -47.6% 1,653.00         1,653.00        0.00 (3,846.75)   5,887.97          -39.5%

1,770,000   8,243.12        4,301.87       (3,941.25)    -47.8% 1,681.50         1,681.50        0.00 (3,941.25)   5,983.37          -39.7%

1,800,000   8,404.52        4,368.77       (4,035.75)    -48.0% 1,710.00         1,710.00        0.00 (4,035.75)   6,078.77          -39.9%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 15 of 17



COMMERCIAL & MASTER METERED MULTIFAMILY CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 6" METER

BASE RATE 709.54           

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 709.54           709.54          -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             709.54             0.0%

50,000        819.54           821.04          1.50            0.2% 47.50              47.50             0.00 1.50           868.54             0.2%

100,000      929.54           932.54          3.00            0.3% 95.00              95.00             0.00 3.00           1,027.54          0.3%

150,000      1,039.54        1,044.04       4.50            0.4% 142.50            142.50           0.00 4.50           1,186.54          0.4%

200,000      1,149.54        1,155.54       6.00            0.5% 190.00            190.00           0.00 6.00           1,345.54          0.4%

250,000      1,259.54        1,267.04       7.50            0.6% 237.50            237.50           0.00 7.50           1,504.54          0.5%

300,000      1,369.54        1,378.54       9.00            0.7% 285.00            285.00           0.00 9.00           1,663.54          0.5%

350,000      1,479.54        1,490.04       10.50          0.7% 332.50            332.50           0.00 10.50         1,822.54          0.6%

400,000      1,589.54        1,601.54       12.00          0.8% 380.00            380.00           0.00 12.00         1,981.54          0.6%

450,000      1,699.54        1,713.04       13.50          0.8% 427.50            427.50           0.00 13.50         2,140.54          0.6%

500,000      1,809.54        1,824.54       15.00          0.8% 475.00            475.00           0.00 15.00         2,299.54          0.7%

550,000      1,919.54        1,936.04       16.50          0.9% 522.50            522.50           0.00 16.50         2,458.54          0.7%

600,000      2,029.54        2,047.54       18.00          0.9% 570.00            570.00           0.00 18.00         2,617.54          0.7%

650,000      2,139.54        2,159.04       19.50          0.9% 617.50            617.50           0.00 19.50         2,776.54          0.7%

700,000      2,249.54        2,270.54       21.00          0.9% 665.00            665.00           0.00 21.00         2,935.54          0.7%

750,000      2,359.54        2,382.04       22.50          1.0% 712.50            712.50           0.00 22.50         3,094.54          0.7%

800,000      2,469.54        2,493.54       24.00          1.0% 760.00            760.00           0.00 24.00         3,253.54          0.7%

850,000      2,579.54        2,605.04       25.50          1.0% 807.50            807.50           0.00 25.50         3,412.54          0.8%

860,000      2,601.54        2,627.34       25.80          1.0% 817.00            817.00           0.00 25.80         3,444.34          0.8%

900,000      2,721.14        2,716.54       (4.60)           -0.2% 855.00            855.00           0.00 (4.60)          3,571.54          -0.1%

950,000      2,870.64        2,828.04       (42.60)         -1.5% 902.50            902.50           0.00 (42.60)        3,730.54          -1.1%

1,000,000   3,020.14        2,939.54       (80.60)         -2.7% 950.00            950.00           0.00 (80.60)        3,889.54          -2.0%

1,050,000   3,169.64        3,051.04       (118.60)       -3.7% 997.50            997.50           0.00 (118.60)      4,048.54          -2.8%

1,100,000   3,319.14        3,162.54       (156.60)       -4.7% 1,045.00         1,045.00        0.00 (156.60)      4,207.54          -3.6%

1,150,000   3,468.64        3,274.04       (194.60)       -5.6% 1,092.50         1,092.50        0.00 (194.60)      4,366.54          -4.3%

1,200,000   3,618.14        3,385.54       (232.60)       -6.4% 1,140.00         1,140.00        0.00 (232.60)      4,525.54          -4.9%

1,250,000   3,767.64        3,497.04       (270.60)       -7.2% 1,187.50         1,187.50        0.00 (270.60)      4,684.54          -5.5%

1,300,000   3,917.14        3,608.54       (308.60)       -7.9% 1,235.00         1,235.00        0.00 (308.60)      4,843.54          -6.0%

1,350,000   4,066.64        3,720.04       (346.60)       -8.5% 1,282.50         1,282.50        0.00 (346.60)      5,002.54          -6.5%

1,400,000   4,216.14        3,831.54       (384.60)       -9.1% 1,330.00         1,330.00        0.00 (384.60)      5,161.54          -6.9%

1,450,000   4,365.64        3,943.04       (422.60)       -9.7% 1,377.50         1,377.50        0.00 (422.60)      5,320.54          -7.4%

1,500,000   4,515.14        4,054.54       (460.60)       -10.2% 1,425.00         1,425.00        0.00 (460.60)      5,479.54          -7.8%

1,550,000   4,664.64        4,166.04       (498.60)       -10.7% 1,472.50         1,472.50        0.00 (498.60)      5,638.54          -8.1%

1,600,000   4,814.14        4,277.54       (536.60)       -11.1% 1,520.00         1,520.00        0.00 (536.60)      5,797.54          -8.5%

1,650,000   4,963.64        4,389.04       (574.60)       -11.6% 1,567.50         1,567.50        0.00 (574.60)      5,956.54          -8.8%

1,700,000   5,113.14        4,500.54       (612.60)       -12.0% 1,615.00         1,615.00        0.00 (612.60)      6,115.54          -9.1%

1,750,000   5,262.64        4,612.04       (650.60)       -12.4% 1,662.50         1,662.50        0.00 (650.60)      6,274.54          -9.4%

1,800,000   5,412.14        4,723.54       (688.60)       -12.7% 1,710.00         1,710.00        0.00 (688.60)      6,433.54          -9.7%

1,850,000   5,561.64        4,835.04       (726.60)       -13.1% 1,757.50         1,757.50        0.00 (726.60)      6,592.54          -9.9%

1,900,000   5,711.14        4,946.54       (764.60)       -13.4% 1,805.00         1,805.00        0.00 (764.60)      6,751.54          -10.2%

1,950,000   5,860.64        5,058.04       (802.60)       -13.7% 1,852.50         1,852.50        0.00 (802.60)      6,910.54          -10.4%

2,000,000   6,010.14        5,169.54       (840.60)       -14.0% 1,900.00         1,900.00        0.00 (840.60)      7,069.54          -10.6%

2,050,000   6,211.64        5,281.04       (930.60)       -15.0% 1,947.50         1,947.50        0.00 (930.60)      7,228.54          -11.4%

2,100,000   6,413.14        5,392.54       (1,020.60)    -15.9% 1,995.00         1,995.00        0.00 (1,020.60)   7,387.54          -12.1%

2,150,000   6,614.64        5,504.04       (1,110.60)    -16.8% 2,042.50         2,042.50        0.00 (1,110.60)   7,546.54          -12.8%

2,200,000   6,816.14        5,615.54       (1,200.60)    -17.6% 2,090.00         2,090.00        0.00 (1,200.60)   7,705.54          -13.5%

2,250,000   7,017.64        5,727.04       (1,290.60)    -18.4% 2,137.50         2,137.50        0.00 (1,290.60)   7,864.54          -14.1%

2,300,000   7,219.14        5,838.54       (1,380.60)    -19.1% 2,185.00         2,185.00        0.00 (1,380.60)   8,023.54          -14.7%

2,350,000   7,420.64        5,950.04       (1,470.60)    -19.8% 2,232.50         2,232.50        0.00 (1,470.60)   8,182.54          -15.2%

2,400,000   7,622.14        6,061.54       (1,560.60)    -20.5% 2,280.00         2,280.00        0.00 (1,560.60)   8,341.54          -15.8%

2,450,000   7,823.64        6,173.04       (1,650.60)    -21.1% 2,327.50         2,327.50        0.00 (1,650.60)   8,500.54          -16.3%

2,500,000   8,025.14        6,284.54       (1,740.60)    -21.7% 2,375.00         2,375.00        0.00 (1,740.60)   8,659.54          -16.7%

2,550,000   8,226.64        6,396.04       (1,830.60)    -22.3% 2,422.50         2,422.50        0.00 (1,830.60)   8,818.54          -17.2%

2,600,000   8,428.14        6,507.54       (1,920.60)    -22.8% 2,470.00         2,470.00        0.00 (1,920.60)   8,977.54          -17.6%

2,650,000   8,629.64        6,619.04       (2,010.60)    -23.3% 2,517.50         2,517.50        0.00 (2,010.60)   9,136.54          -18.0%

2,700,000   8,831.14        6,730.54       (2,100.60)    -23.8% 2,565.00         2,565.00        0.00 (2,100.60)   9,295.54          -18.4%

2,750,000   9,032.64        6,842.04       (2,190.60)    -24.3% 2,612.50         2,612.50        0.00 (2,190.60)   9,454.54          -18.8%

2,800,000   9,234.14        6,953.54       (2,280.60)    -24.7% 2,660.00         2,660.00        0.00 (2,280.60)   9,613.54          -19.2%

2,850,000   9,435.64        7,065.04       (2,370.60)    -25.1% 2,707.50         2,707.50        0.00 (2,370.60)   9,772.54          -19.5%

2,900,000   9,637.14        7,176.54       (2,460.60)    -25.5% 2,755.00         2,755.00        0.00 (2,460.60)   9,931.54          -19.9%

2,950,000   9,838.64        7,288.04       (2,550.60)    -25.9% 2,802.50         2,802.50        0.00 (2,550.60)   10,090.54        -20.2%

3,000,000   10,040.14      7,399.54       (2,640.60)    -26.3% 2,850.00         2,850.00        0.00 (2,640.60)   10,249.54        -20.5%

3,050,000   10,241.64      7,511.04       (2,730.60)    -26.7% 2,897.50         2,897.50        0.00 (2,730.60)   10,408.54        -20.8%

3,100,000   10,443.14      7,622.54       (2,820.60)    -27.0% 2,945.00         2,945.00        0.00 (2,820.60)   10,567.54        -21.1%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 16 of 17



TURF CUSTOMER BILL IMPACT WITH 4" METER

BASE RATE 354.77           

AMOUNT OF PERCENT CURRENT PROPOSED TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

GALLONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/ INCREASE/ GROUNDWATER GROUNDWATER AMOUNT OF MONTHLY AMOUNT OF PERCENT

USED WATER RATE WATER RATE (DECREASE) DECREASE PRESERVATION PRESERVATION INCREASE INCREASE/ MONTHLY INCREASE/

WATER RATE WATER RATE FEE FEE GPF (DECREASE) BILL DECREASE

0 354.77           354.77          -              0.0% -                 -                 0.00 -             354.77             0.0%

150,000      684.77           689.27          4.50            0.7% 142.50            142.50           0.00 4.50           831.77             0.5%

300,000      1,014.77        1,023.77       9.00            0.9% 285.00            285.00           0.00 9.00           1,308.77          0.7%

450,000      1,344.77        1,358.27       13.50          1.0% 427.50            427.50           0.00 13.50         1,785.77          0.8%

600,000      1,674.77        1,692.77       18.00          1.1% 570.00            570.00           0.00 18.00         2,262.77          0.8%

750,000      2,004.77        2,027.27       22.50          1.1% 712.50            712.50           0.00 22.50         2,739.77          0.8%

900,000      2,334.77        2,361.77       27.00          1.2% 855.00            855.00           0.00 27.00         3,216.77          0.8%

1,050,000   2,664.77        2,696.27       31.50          1.2% 997.50            997.50           0.00 31.50         3,693.77          0.9%

1,200,000   2,994.77        3,030.77       36.00          1.2% 1,140.00         1,140.00        0.00 36.00         4,170.77          0.9%

1,350,000   3,324.77        3,365.27       40.50          1.2% 1,282.50         1,282.50        0.00 40.50         4,647.77          0.9%

1,500,000   3,654.77        3,699.77       45.00          1.2% 1,425.00         1,425.00        0.00 45.00         5,124.77          0.9%

1,650,000   3,984.77        4,034.27       49.50          1.2% 1,567.50         1,567.50        0.00 49.50         5,601.77          0.9%

1,800,000   4,314.77        4,368.77       54.00          1.3% 1,710.00         1,710.00        0.00 54.00         6,078.77          0.9%

1,950,000   4,644.77        4,703.27       58.50          1.3% 1,852.50         1,852.50        0.00 58.50         6,555.77          0.9%

2,100,000   4,974.77        5,037.77       63.00          1.3% 1,995.00         1,995.00        0.00 63.00         7,032.77          0.9%

2,250,000   5,304.77        5,372.27       67.50          1.3% 2,137.50         2,137.50        0.00 67.50         7,509.77          0.9%

2,400,000   5,634.77        5,706.77       72.00          1.3% 2,280.00         2,280.00        0.00 72.00         7,986.77          0.9%

2,550,000   5,964.77        6,041.27       76.50          1.3% 2,422.50         2,422.50        0.00 76.50         8,463.77          0.9%

2,700,000   6,294.77        6,375.77       81.00          1.3% 2,565.00         2,565.00        0.00 81.00         8,940.77          0.9%

2,850,000   6,624.77        6,710.27       85.50          1.3% 2,707.50         2,707.50        0.00 85.50         9,417.77          0.9%

3,000,000   6,954.77        7,044.77       90.00          1.3% 2,850.00         2,850.00        0.00 90.00         9,894.77          0.9%

3,150,000   7,284.77        7,379.27       94.50          1.3% 2,992.50         2,992.50        0.00 94.50         10,371.77        0.9%

3,300,000   7,614.77        7,713.77       99.00          1.3% 3,135.00         3,135.00        0.00 99.00         10,848.77        0.9%

3,450,000   7,944.77        8,048.27       103.50        1.3% 3,277.50         3,277.50        0.00 103.50       11,325.77        0.9%

3,600,000   8,274.77        8,382.77       108.00        1.3% 3,420.00         3,420.00        0.00 108.00       11,802.77        0.9%

3,750,000   8,604.77        8,717.27       112.50        1.3% 3,562.50         3,562.50        0.00 112.50       12,279.77        0.9%

3,900,000   8,934.77        9,051.77       117.00        1.3% 3,705.00         3,705.00        0.00 117.00       12,756.77        0.9%

4,050,000   9,264.77        9,386.27       121.50        1.3% 3,847.50         3,847.50        0.00 121.50       13,233.77        0.9%

4,200,000   9,594.77        9,720.77       126.00        1.3% 3,990.00         3,990.00        0.00 126.00       13,710.77        0.9%

4,350,000   9,924.77        10,055.27     130.50        1.3% 4,132.50         4,132.50        0.00 130.50       14,187.77        0.9%

4,500,000   10,254.77      10,389.77     135.00        1.3% 4,275.00         4,275.00        0.00 135.00       14,664.77        0.9%

4,650,000   10,584.77      10,724.27     139.50        1.3% 4,417.50         4,417.50        0.00 139.50       15,141.77        0.9%

4,800,000   10,914.77      11,058.77     144.00        1.3% 4,560.00         4,560.00        0.00 144.00       15,618.77        0.9%

4,950,000   11,244.77      11,393.27     148.50        1.3% 4,702.50         4,702.50        0.00 148.50       16,095.77        0.9%

5,100,000   11,574.77      11,727.77     153.00        1.3% 4,845.00         4,845.00        0.00 153.00       16,572.77        0.9%

5,250,000   11,904.77      12,062.27     157.50        1.3% 4,987.50         4,987.50        0.00 157.50       17,049.77        0.9%

5,400,000   12,234.77      12,396.77     162.00        1.3% 5,130.00         5,130.00        0.00 162.00       17,526.77        0.9%

5,550,000   12,564.77      12,731.27     166.50        1.3% 5,272.50         5,272.50        0.00 166.50       18,003.77        0.9%

5,700,000   12,894.77      13,065.77     171.00        1.3% 5,415.00         5,415.00        0.00 171.00       18,480.77        0.9%

5,850,000   13,224.77      13,400.27     175.50        1.3% 5,557.50         5,557.50        0.00 175.50       18,957.77        0.9%

6,000,000   13,554.77      13,734.77     180.00        1.3% 5,700.00         5,700.00        0.00 180.00       19,434.77        0.9%

6,150,000   13,884.77      14,069.27     184.50        1.3% 5,842.50         5,842.50        0.00 184.50       19,911.77        0.9%

6,300,000   14,214.77      14,403.77     189.00        1.3% 5,985.00         5,985.00        0.00 189.00       20,388.77        0.9%

6,450,000   14,544.77      14,738.27     193.50        1.3% 6,127.50         6,127.50        0.00 193.50       20,865.77        0.9%

6,600,000   14,874.77      15,072.77     198.00        1.3% 6,270.00         6,270.00        0.00 198.00       21,342.77        0.9%

6,750,000   15,204.77      15,407.27     202.50        1.3% 6,412.50         6,412.50        0.00 202.50       21,819.77        0.9%

6,900,000   15,534.77      15,741.77     207.00        1.3% 6,555.00         6,555.00        0.00 207.00       22,296.77        0.9%

7,050,000   15,864.77      16,076.27     211.50        1.3% 6,697.50         6,697.50        0.00 211.50       22,773.77        0.9%

7,200,000   16,194.77      16,410.77     216.00        1.3% 6,840.00         6,840.00        0.00 216.00       23,250.77        0.9%

7,350,000   16,524.77      16,745.27     220.50        1.3% 6,982.50         6,982.50        0.00 220.50       23,727.77        0.9%

7,500,000   16,854.77      17,079.77     225.00        1.3% 7,125.00         7,125.00        0.00 225.00       24,204.77        0.9%

7,650,000   17,184.77      17,414.27     229.50        1.3% 7,267.50         7,267.50        0.00 229.50       24,681.77        0.9%

7,800,000   17,514.77      17,748.77     234.00        1.3% 7,410.00         7,410.00        0.00 234.00       25,158.77        0.9%

7,950,000   17,844.77      18,083.27     238.50        1.3% 7,552.50         7,552.50        0.00 238.50       25,635.77        0.9%

8,100,000   18,174.77      18,417.77     243.00        1.3% 7,695.00         7,695.00        0.00 243.00       26,112.77        0.9%

8,250,000   18,504.77      18,752.27     247.50        1.3% 7,837.50         7,837.50        0.00 247.50       26,589.77        0.9%

8,400,000   18,834.77      19,086.77     252.00        1.3% 7,980.00         7,980.00        0.00 252.00       27,066.77        0.9%

8,550,000   19,164.77      19,421.27     256.50        1.3% 8,122.50         8,122.50        0.00 256.50       27,543.77        0.9%

8,700,000   19,494.77      19,755.77     261.00        1.3% 8,265.00         8,265.00        0.00 261.00       28,020.77        0.9%

8,850,000   19,824.77      20,090.27     265.50        1.3% 8,407.50         8,407.50        0.00 265.50       28,497.77        0.9%

9,000,000   20,154.77      20,424.77     270.00        1.3% 8,550.00         8,550.00        0.00 270.00       28,974.77        0.9%

9,150,000   20,484.77      20,759.27     274.50        1.3% 8,692.50         8,692.50        0.00 274.50       29,451.77        0.9%

9,300,000   20,814.77      21,093.77     279.00        1.3% 8,835.00         8,835.00        0.00 279.00       29,928.77        0.9%

9,450,000   21,144.77      21,428.27     283.50        1.3% 8,977.50         8,977.50        0.00 283.50       30,405.77        0.9%

Appendix D Monthly Charges and Percent Increase Comparison 17 of 17



Town Council Regular Session Item #   5.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Stacey Lemos Submitted By: Stacey Lemos, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
SUBJECT:
RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-07, ADOPTING THE 2013-2023 LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PLANS DATED OCTOBER 4, 2013, FOR THE TOWN OF ORO
VALLEY

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
At the December 4, 2013, Town Council Regular Session meeting, the Council held a public hearing to
receive public comment on the infrastructure improvement plans (IIPs) and land use assumption (LUA)
sections of the development impact fee studies prepared for parks, police, transportation, potable water
system and alternative water resources development impact fees. 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Council approval of the IIPs and LUAs in compliance with the
new impact fee statute, A.R.S. Section 9-463.05.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Development impact fees are fees assessed by the Town to fund infrastructure improvements required
due to new growth.  These fees are accumulated to construct specific improvements or portions of
improvements within the Town based on development fee studies.

In the 2011 legislative session, the Arizona Legislature passed Senate Bill (SB) 1525 which updated
Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS) Section 9-463.05.  This new law restricts the types of facilities for which
impact fees may be charged and requires jurisdictions to prepare new impact fee studies to include land
use assumptions and infrastructure improvement plans (IIPs) that must be approved prior to the updated
fees being effective on August 1, 2014. Land use assumptions and IIPs are defined as follows:

1.  Land Use Assumptions - Projections of changes in land uses, densities, intensities and population for
a specified service area over a period of at least ten (10) years and pursuant to the general plan of the
municipality.

2.  Infrastructure Improvement Plan (IIP) - A written plan that identifies each necessary public service or
facility expansion that is proposed to be the subject of a development fee that complies with the
requirements of ARS.  This is based on the Town's capital improvements plan.

The last comprehensive update of the Town's impact fees was completed in 2008.  At that time, the
Town adopted fees for parks, police, general government, and library.  The transportation and water
utility impact fees were already in place at that time.  On January 1, 2012, the Town eliminated its



general government impact fees and significantly reduced its park and police fees to comply with the
January 1, 2012, requirements of SB 1525.  On July 1, 2012, the Town discontinued collecting library
impact fees due to the transfer of library operations to the Pima County Library District.

In March 2013, the Town hired Duncan Associates to prepare the update of its remaining non-utility
development impact fees for parks, police and transportation.  In addition, the Water Utility hired CH2M
HILL to prepare the update of its alternative water resources system and potable water system
development impact fees. 

The draft public review reports from each consultant are provided as attachments 2 and 3.  These reports
have been on file with the Town Clerk's Office and made available on the Town's website for public
review.  Copies of the draft reports have also been provided to the Southern Arizona Home Builders
Association (SAHBA) and Metropolitan Pima Alliance (MPA). 

Land Use Assumptions 

Both draft impact fee reports are consistent in their 10-year land use assumptions and growth
projections.  The consultants utilized population and employment projection data from the U.S. Census
Bureau and Pima Association of Governments.  Based on these sources, it is projected that the Town's
population will grow from an estimation of 43,070 in 2013 to 47,735 in 2023.  Total anticipated housing
units (single-family and multi-family) are expected to grow from 21,361 in 2013 to 22,749 in 2023.  More
details relating to the land use assumptions for the non-utility impact fees can be found on pages 13 - 14
of the Duncan Associates report. 

For the water utility service area, total service units are expected to grow from 23,200 in 2013 to 27,758
in 2023.  This includes residential and commercial development with an annual growth rate ranging from
1.3% to 1.9% over the 10-year period.  To determine service units, a GIS database with land use
assumptions consistent with the Town's General Plan was used.  Details on the land use assumptions
for the Water Utility impact fees can be found on pages 2-4 and 2-5 of the CH2M HILL report.

The Water Utility service area does not include the entire Town since parts of the Town are served by
other water providers.  The water service area also includes Countryside, which is located outside of
Town boundaries (Appendix A of CH2M HILL report).

Infrastructure Improvement Plans (IIPs) 

The new impact fee law requires that an IIP be prepared for each category of fee in each service area. 
Both reports assume a single service area for the collection of fees.  For the non-utility impact fees, the
service area is defined as the incorporated boundaries of the Town.  The Water Utility service area is
defined in the section above. 

Impact fees may only be collected for improvements identified in the IIP.  Therefore, the IIPs must
identify planned projects over a period of not more than 10 years and are limited to include those
improvements that add capacity to accommodate future growth.  The impact fee law requires that the IIPs
be updated at a minimum of once every 5 years.

For reference, the Duncan Associates report (Attachment 2) contains tables listing the planned projects
in each non-utility fee category on the following pages:

Transportation - Table 24, page 24
Parks - Table 32, page 28
Police - Table 40, page 34

The CH2M HILL report (Attachment 3) contains a list and description of the planned projects in each
Water Utility impact fee category on the following pages:



Alternative Water Resources - Table 3-6, page 3-7 and Appendix C
Potable Water System - Table 3-7, page 3-7 and Appendix D

Next Steps 

The following schedule of public hearings and Town Council meeting dates has been established in
order to comply with the timeframes mandated in the impact fee law and to accommodate
implementation of the new development impact fees prior to August 1, 2014:

January 15, 2014 - Town Council meeting to consider adoption of land use assumptions and IIPs
February 19, 2014 - Public hearing on updated impact fees
April 2, 2014 - Town Council meeting to consider adoption of updated impact fees
July 1, 2014 - Effective date of new impact fees
August 1, 2014 - Legal deadline to have new impact fees effective

FISCAL IMPACT:
The analysis included in the land use assumptions and infrastructure improvement plans serve as the
basis for the calculation of the development impact fees. In April, Council will consider adoption of the
fees which would change as described below.

Based on the Duncan Associates draft report, the combined total of the three non-utility fees would be
approximately 12% higher for residential uses, approximately 19% lower for most retail/commercial uses
and range from 47% to 95% higher for most office and industrial/warehouse uses, depending on the
specific use.  Table 2 on page 2 of the Duncan Associates report compares the Town's current impact
fees to the proposed updated fees for parks, police and transportation.

Based on the CH2M HILL draft report, the combined Water Utility development impact fees for alternative
water resources and the potable water system would be 20% lower for residential customer classes, 13%
lower for the commercial customer class and 17% higher for irrigation uses.

In conclusion, when the proposed utility and non-utility impact fees are combined, the results are overall
decreases in most land use categories.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to approve Resolution No. (R)14-07, adopting the 2013-2023 land use assumptions and
infrastructure improvement plans for the Town of Oro Valley dated October 4, 2013.

or

I MOVE...

Attachments
(R)14-07 Land Use Assumptions & IIP
Duncan Associates Report
CH2M HILL Report



RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-07

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA ADOPTING THE 2013-2023 LAND USE 
ASSUMPTIONS AND INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PLANS
FOR THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY DATED OCTOBER 4, 2013

WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley is required, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes 
(“A.R.S”) 9-463.05(D), to adopt Land Use Assumptions and Infrastructure Improvement Plans
as a requirement of assessing development impact fees to offset costs to the municipality 
associated with providing necessary public services to a development; and 

WHEREAS, the Land Use Assumptions and Infrastructure Improvement Plans must be 
developed by qualified professionals using generally accepted engineering practices; and 

WHEREAS, the Land Use Assumptions and Infrastructure Improvement Plans were prepared 
for the Town of Oro Valley in the manner required by law by Duncan Associates for Town non-
utility development impact fees and by CH2M HILL for water utility development impact fees; 
and

WHEREAS, the statutory requirements for posting, public notice , and public hearing regarding 
the Land Use Assumptions and Infrastructure Improvement Plans were all duly met in the 
manner required by Law.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley,
Arizona, that:

1. The 2013-2023 Land Use Assumptions and Infrastructure Improvement Plans of 
the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona dated October 4, 2013, are hereby adopted in 
their entirety, copies of which are made part of and incorporated into this 
Resolution as though fully set forth herein.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley,
Arizona this 15th day of January, 2014.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

_____________________________
Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Transportation, Park and Police  

Impact Fee Study 

for the 

Town of Oro Valley, Arizona 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
October 2013 

 

 PUBLIC Review Draft



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

prepared by 

 

Duncan Associates 

 

Clancy Mullen, Vice President, Project Manager 

 

 

 

for the 

 

Town of Oro Valley, Arizona 

 

Stacey Lemos, Finance Director, Project Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Duncan Associates, 360 Nueces St., Suite 2701, Austin, TX 78701, 512-258-7347; clancy@duncanassociates.com 

  



Table of Contents 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................ 1 

Background ...................................................................................................................................... 1 
Summary of Findings ...................................................................................................................... 2 

LEGAL FRAMEWORK ................................................................................................................... 4 
Eligible Facilities .............................................................................................................................. 4 
Compliance Deadlines .................................................................................................................... 5 
Service Areas .................................................................................................................................... 6 
Service Units ..................................................................................................................................... 6 
Methodologies .................................................................................................................................. 6 
Level of Service (LOS) Standards ................................................................................................. 7 
Land Use Assumptions ................................................................................................................... 7 
Infrastructure Improvements Plan ............................................................................................... 7 
Refunds ............................................................................................................................................. 8 
Offsets ............................................................................................................................................... 8 

SERVICE AREAS ............................................................................................................................. 10 
Transportation ............................................................................................................................... 11 
Parks ................................................................................................................................................ 12 
Police ............................................................................................................................................... 12 

LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS ........................................................................................................ 13 
TRANSPORTATION ...................................................................................................................... 15 

Existing Level of Service .............................................................................................................. 15 
Service Units ................................................................................................................................... 17 
Cost per Service Unit .................................................................................................................... 20 
Net Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................................................ 21 
Potential Impact Fees ................................................................................................................... 22 
Capital Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 23 

PARKS ................................................................................................................................................ 25 
Service Units ................................................................................................................................... 25 
Cost per Service Unit .................................................................................................................... 26 
Net Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................................................ 27 
Potential Impact Fees ................................................................................................................... 27 
Capital Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 28 

POLICE .............................................................................................................................................. 29 
Service Units ................................................................................................................................... 29 
Cost per Service Unit .................................................................................................................... 30 
Net Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................................................ 32 
Potential Impact Fees ................................................................................................................... 33 
Capital Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 34 

APPENDIX A:  AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD SIZE .................................................................. 35 
APPENDIX B:  FUNCTIONAL POPULATION ..................................................................... 36 

Residential Functional Population .............................................................................................. 36 
Nonresidential Functional Population ....................................................................................... 36 

APPENDIX C:  REVENUE FORECAST ................................................................................... 38 
APPENDIX D:  UPDATE STUDY COST ................................................................................. 40 
 

List of Tables 

 
Table 1.  Current Non-Utility Impact Fee Schedule ....................................................................... 1 
Table 2.  Updated and Current Non-Utility Impact Fees .............................................................. 2 



Table 3.  Historical and Projected Annual Impact Fee Revenues ................................................ 3 
Table 4.  Planned Costs and Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 ................................................................... 3 
Table 5.  Existing Housing Units by Type, 2013 ........................................................................... 13 
Table 6.  Population, Housing and Employment, 2013-2023 ..................................................... 14 
Table 7.  Employee Density Ratios ................................................................................................. 14 
Table 8.  Population, Housing and Nonresidential Sq. Ft., 2013-2023 ...................................... 14 
Table 9.  Existing Major Road Inventory ....................................................................................... 16 
Table 10.  Existing Transportation Level of Service .................................................................... 17 
Table 11.  Local Trip Length Adjustment Factor ......................................................................... 18 
Table 12.  Average Trip Lengths ..................................................................................................... 19 
Table 13.  Transportation Service Unit Multipliers ....................................................................... 19 
Table 14.  Transportation Service Units, 2013-2023 .................................................................... 20 
Table 15.  Cost of Planned Major Road Projects .......................................................................... 20 
Table 16.  Capacity Added by Planned Major Road Projects ...................................................... 20 
Table 17.  Transportation Cost per Service Unit .......................................................................... 21 
Table 18.  Transportation Outside Funding Offset per Service Unit ........................................ 21 
Table 19.  Excess Construction Sales Tax Offset per Service Unit ............................................ 22 
Table 20.  Transportation Net Cost per Service Unit ................................................................... 22 
Table 21.  Transportation Net Cost Schedule ............................................................................... 22 
Table 22.  Current and Updated Transportation Impact Fees .................................................... 23 
Table 23.  Potential Transportation Impact Fee Revenue ........................................................... 23 
Table 24.  Transportation Capital Plan, 2013-2023 ...................................................................... 24 
Table 25.  Park Service Unit Multipliers ......................................................................................... 25 
Table 26.  Park Service Units, 2013-2023 ....................................................................................... 25 
Table 27.  Existing Park Facilities .................................................................................................... 26 
Table 28.  Existing Park Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................. 27 
Table 29.  Park Net Cost Schedule .................................................................................................. 27 
Table 30.  Current and Updated Park Impact Fees ...................................................................... 28 
Table 31.  Potential Park Impact Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 ......................................................... 28 
Table 32.  Park Capital Plan, 2013-2023 ......................................................................................... 28 
Table 33.  Police Service Units, 2013-2023 .................................................................................... 29 
Table 34.  Existing Police Facilities ................................................................................................. 30 
Table 35.  Existing Police Vehicles .................................................................................................. 31 
Table 36.  Police Cost per Service Unit .......................................................................................... 32 
Table 37.  Police Net Cost Schedule ............................................................................................... 33 
Table 38.  Current and Updated Police Impact Fees .................................................................... 33 
Table 39.  Potential Police Impact Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 ...................................................... 34 
Table 40.  Police Capital Plan, 2013-2023 ...................................................................................... 34 
Table 41.  Average Household Size, 2000 and 2010 ..................................................................... 35 
Table 42.  Average Household Size by Housing Type, 2000 ...................................................... 35 
Table 43.  Current Average Household Size by Housing Type .................................................. 35 
Table 44.  Functional Population per Unit for Residential Uses ................................................ 36 
Table 45.  Functional Population per Unit for Nonresidential Uses ......................................... 37 
Table 46.  Revenue Attributable to New Development, 2013-2023 .......................................... 39 
Table 47.  Update Study Cost per Service Unit ............................................................................. 40 
 

List of Figures 

 
Figure 1.  Comparative Total Non-Utility Impact Fees ................................................................. 3 
Figure 2.  Town Limits Map ............................................................................................................. 10 
Figure 3.  Functional Classification Map ........................................................................................ 11 
Figure 4.  Nonresidential Functional Population Formula .......................................................... 37 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 1 October 2, 2013 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Duncan Associates has been retained by the Town of Oro Valley to update the Town’s development 
impact fees for transportation, parks and police facilities in compliance with the new State impact 
fee enabling act.  The Town’s water impact fees are being updated separately.  This report provides 
all of the analysis required by the new State act prior to the adoption of new or updated impact fees, 
including land use assumptions, infrastructure improvements plan and impact fee calculations. 
 

Background 

 
In 2011, the legislature passed SB 1525, which was signed by the governor on April 26, 2011. SB 
1525 constituted a major overhaul of Arizona’s impact fee enabling act for municipalities.  Among 
other things, SB 1525 restricts the types of facilities for which impact fees may be charged and 
mandates the preparation of land use assumptions and an infrastructure improvements plan. 
 
The last comprehensive update of the Town’s impact fees was based on a 2008 study.1  On January 
1, 2012, the Town reduced its park and police fees to remove unauthorized components in 
compliance with the January 1, 2012 requirements of SB 1525.  The current non-utility impact fees 
that have been effective since January 1, 2012 are summarized in Table 1. 
 

Table 1.  Current Non-Utility Impact Fee Schedule 

Land Use Type Unit Roads Parks Police Total

Single-Family* Dwelling $1,933 $555 $296 $2,784

All Other Housing Dwelling $1,331 $336 $176 $1,843

Lodging Room $556 n/a $14 $570

Commercial 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sf $5,533 n/a $146 $5,679

Commercial, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sf $4,807 n/a $126 $4,933

Commercial, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sf $4,014 n/a $105 $4,119

Commercial, 100,001-200,000 sf 1,000 sf $3,436 n/a $91 $3,527

Commercial, >200,000 sf 1,000 sf $2,921 n/a $76 $2,997

Office/Institutional, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sf $1,812 n/a $43 $1,855

Office/Institutional, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sf $1,547 n/a $37 $1,584

Office/Institutional, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sf $1,318 n/a $32 $1,350

Office/Institutional, 100,000 sf+ 1,000 sf $1,123 n/a $27 $1,150

Business Park 1,000 sf $1,260 n/a $30 $1,290

Light Industrial 1,000 sf $689 n/a $16 $705

Manufacturing 1,000 sf $378 n/a $9 $387

Warehousing 1,000 sf $490 n/a $12 $502  
* includes single-family attached 

Source:  Town of Oro Valley, Development Fee Summary, July 1, 2012. 

 
The Town must now update its fees to be in full compliance with all provisions of the new enabling 
act by August 1, 2014.  Assisting the Town in this endeavor for the non-utility fees is the purpose of 
this project. 
 

  

                                                 
1 TischlerBise, Development Fee Study and Infrastructure Improvements Plan prepared for Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, April 7, 2008. 



Executive Summary 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 2 October 2, 2013 

Summary of Findings 

 
One of the recommendations of this study is to combine some of the current land use categories.  
Specifically, the current five commercial size categories are recommended to be combined, as well as 
the current four office/institutional size categories.  In addition, business park, light industrial and 
manufacturing are proposed to be combined into a single industrial category. These consolidations 
are consistent with available demand data (e.g., higher trip generation size categories also tend to 
have shorter trip lengths and more pass-by traffic) and will simplify impact fee administration. 
 
The updated transportation, park and police impact fees are summarized in Table 2, along with a 
comparison to current fees.  The combined total of the three non-utility fees would be about 12% 
higher for residential uses, lower for most retail/commercial uses, and higher for most office and 
industrial/warehouse uses.  
 

Table 2.  Updated and Current Non-Utility Impact Fees 

Land Use Type Unit Roads Parks Police Total

Updated Fees

Single-Family Detached Dwelling $1,990 $856 $310 $3,156

Multi-Family Dwelling $1,231 $599 $215 $2,045

Mobile Home Park Space $649 $651 $234 $1,534

Hotel/Motel Room $758 $0 $200 $958

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft $2,412 $0 $447 $2,859

Office 1,000 sq ft $1,822 $0 $156 $1,978

Industrial 1,000 sq ft $983 $0 $65 $1,048

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft $915 $0 $63 $978

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft $1,379 $0 $118 $1,497

Current Fees

Single-Family Detached Dwelling $1,933 $555 $296 $2,784

Multi-Family Dwelling $1,331 $336 $176 $1,843

Mobile Home Park Space $1,331 $336 $176 $1,843

Hotel/Motel Room $556 $0 $14 $570

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft $3,436 $0 $91 $3,527

Office 1,000 sq ft $1,318 $0 $32 $1,350

Industrial 1,000 sq ft $689 $0 $16 $705

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft $490 $0 $12 $502

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft $1,318 $0 $32 $1,350

Percent Change

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 3% 54% 5% 13%

Multi-Family Dwelling -8% 78% 22% 11%

Mobile Home Park Space -51% 94% 33% -17%

Hotel/Motel Room 36% n/a  1329% 68%

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft -30% n/a  391% -19%

Office 1,000 sq ft 38% n/a  388% 47%

Industrial 1,000 sq ft 43% n/a  306% 49%

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft 87% n/a  425% 95%

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft 5% n/a  269% 11%  
Source:  Updated fees from Table 21 (transportation), Table 29 (parks), and Table 37 (police); 

current fees from Table 1 (retail/commercial based on 100,001-200,000 sq. ft., office and 

institutional based on 50,001-100,000 sq. ft., industrial based on light industrial).  

 
Average annual revenues anticipated over the next ten years, assuming the updated fees are adopted 
at 100%, are compared to actual revenues in recent years in Table 3. 
 



Executive Summary 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 3 October 2, 2013 

Table 3.  Historical and Projected Annual Impact Fee Revenues 

Year Roads   Parks    Police  Total    

FY 07-08 $910,741 n/a n/a $910,741

FY 08-09 $316,954 $43,186 $8,206 $368,346

FY 09-10 $341,034 $162,756 $37,044 $540,834

FY 10-11 $263,302 $117,584 $28,061 $408,947

FY 11-12 $238,733 $99,542 $30,618 $368,893

Avg. 2013-2023 $494,909 $109,654 $72,770 $677,333  
Source:  Historical revenues from Town of Oro Valley Finance Department, March 

19, 2013; average annual revenues for 2013-2023 from Table 23 (transportation), 

Table 31 (parks) and Table 39 (police). 

 
Anticipated impact fee revenues are compared with the costs of planned capital improvements in 
Table 4.  The updated impact fees will cover approximately one-fifth of the Town costs for planned 
transportation, park and police capital improvements over the next ten years. 
 

Table 4.  Planned Costs and Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 

Planned    Potential  Share of

Fee Type Costs      Revenue  Costs   

Transportation $27,189,600 $4,949,094 18.2%

Parks $5,025,000 $1,096,536 21.8%

Police $2,225,000 $727,700 32.7%

Total $34,439,600 $6,773,330 19.7%  
Source:  Transportation costs and revenues from Table 24 and Table 23, respectively; 

parks from Table 32 and Table 31; police from Table 40 and Table 39. 

 
The Town’s current and proposed total non-utility fees are compared with those currently charged 
by Marana, Tucson and Pima County, as well as the Arizona average, in Figure 1.  This comparison 
shows that the Town’s current and updated fees are relatively low compared to nearby communities 
and the state and national averages. 
 

Figure 1.  Comparative Total Non-Utility Impact Fees 

 
 

Source:  Duncan Associates survey, May 2013 (national average excludes California) 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 4 October 2, 2013 

LEGAL FRAMEWORK 

 
Impact fees are a way for local governments to require new developments to pay a proportionate 
share of the infrastructure costs they impose on the community.  In contrast to traditional 
“negotiated” developer exactions, impact fees are charges that are assessed on new development 
using a standard formula based on objective characteristics, such as the number and type of dwelling 
units constructed.  The fees are one-time, up-front charges, with the payment usually made at the 
time of building permit issuance.  Impact fees require each new development project to pay its pro-
rata share of the cost of new capital facilities required to serve that development. 
 
Arizona’s enabling act for municipalities is codified in Sec. 9-463.05, Arizona Revised Statutes 
(ARS).  In 2011, the legislature passed SB 1525, which was signed by the governor on April 26, 
2011. SB 1525 constituted a major overhaul of Arizona’s enabling act for municipalities.  This 
section summarizes some of the major provisions of the new state act. 
 

Eligible Facilities 

 
Prior to SB 1525, municipalities could assess impact fees for any “necessary public services” (which 
was not defined) that constituted “costs to the municipality.”  SB 1525 amended the statute to limit 
the types of facilities for which impact fees can be assessed.  Authorized facilities for which impact 
fees can be assessed, after January 1, 2012, are limited to the following defined “necessary public 
services:” 
 

"Necessary public service" means any of the following facilities that have a life expectancy of three or more 
years and that are owned and operated by or on behalf of the municipality:  
 
(a)  Water facilities, including the supply, transportation, treatment, purification and distribution of 
water, and any appurtenances for those facilities.  
 
(b)  Wastewater facilities, including collection, interception, transportation, treatment and disposal of 
wastewater, and any appurtenances for those facilities.  
 
(c)  Storm water, drainage and flood control facilities, including any appurtenances for those facilities.  
 
(d)  Library facilities of up to ten thousand square feet that provide a direct benefit to development, not 
including equipment, vehicles or appurtenances.  
 
(e)  Street facilities located in the service area, including arterial or collector streets or roads that have 
been designated on an officially adopted plan of the municipality, traffic signals and rights-of-way and 
improvements thereon.  
 
(f)  Fire and police facilities, including all appurtenances, equipment and vehicles. Fire and police 
facilities do not include a facility or portion of a facility that is used to replace services that were once provided 
elsewhere in the municipality, vehicles and equipment used to provide administrative services, helicopters or 
airplanes or a facility that is used for training firefighters or officers from more than one station or substation.  
 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 5 October 2, 2013 

(g)  Neighborhood parks and recreational facilities on real property up to thirty acres in area, or parks 
and recreational facilities larger than thirty acres if the facilities provide a direct benefit to the development. 
Park and recreational facilities do not include vehicles, equipment or that portion of any facility that is used 
for amusement parks, aquariums, aquatic centers, auditoriums, arenas, arts and cultural facilities, bandstand 
and orchestra facilities, bathhouses, boathouses, clubhouses, community centers greater than three thousand 
square feet in floor area, environmental education centers, equestrian facilities, golf course facilities, 
greenhouses, lakes, museums, theme parks, water reclamation or riparian areas, wetlands, zoo facilities or 
similar recreational facilities, but may include swimming pools.  
 
(h)  Any facility that was financed and that meets all of the requirements prescribed in subsection R of 
this section. (Sec. 9-463.05.S.5, ARS) 

 
No longer authorized are fees for general government facilities, sanitation facilities, library buildings 
larger than 10,000 square feet and library books or equipment, fire and police administrative and 
training facilities and aircraft, parks larger than 30 acres and community centers larger than 3,000 
square feet.  No changes were made to authorized improvements for road, stormwater drainage, 
water or wastewater facilities, other than the new requirement that eligible facilities must have a life 
expectancy of at least three years. 
 

Compliance Deadlines 

 
Municipalities may continue to collect fees for unauthorized facilities after January 1, 2012 if the fees 
were pledged to retire debt for such facilities prior to June 1, 2011.   However, the Town of Oro 
Valley had not pledged fee revenue in this sense for any of its development impact fees.   
 
SB 1525 added numerous new requirements related to how impact fees are calculated.  Land use 
assumptions (growth projections) must be prepared for each service area, covering at least a ten-year 
period.  Many new requirements were added for the infrastructure improvements plan (IIP) and the 
impact fee analysis.  However, compliance with these is not required until August 1, 2014: 
 

A development fee that was adopted before January 1, 2012 may continue to be assessed only to the extent 
that it will be used to provide a necessary public service for which development fees can be assessed pursuant to 
this section and shall be replaced by a development fee imposed under this section on or before August 1, 
2014. (9-463.05K, ARS) 

 
Significant changes were made to the requirements for adopting updated infrastructure 
improvements plans and fee schedules.  These requirements are effective as of January 1, 2012, but 
only apply to the updated IIP and impact fee schedules that must be in place by August 1, 2014. 
 
Provisions were also added relating to refunds.  However, these provisions only apply to fees 
collected after August 1, 2014. 
 
Other changes, however, are effective as of January 1, 2012.  These include new provisions or 
amendments related to developer credits, the locking-in of fee schedules for 24 months following 
development approval, and annual reporting requirements.  In addition, the expenditure of impact 
fees collected after January 1 is restricted to facilities authorized by SB 1525 (and repayment of 
pledged debt for unauthorized facilities, although this is not an option for Oro Valley). 
 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 6 October 2, 2013 

Service Areas 

 
Service areas are a key requirement for impact fees under SB 1525.  A service area is defined as “any 
specified area within the boundaries of a municipality in which development will be served by 
necessary public services or facility expansions and within which a substantial nexus exists between 
the necessary public services or facility expansions and the development being served as prescribed 
in the infrastructure improvements plan.” Land use assumptions (growth projections) and an 
infrastructure improvements plan (list of capital improvements and impact fee analysis) must be 
prepared for each service area.   
 
It should be noted that multiple service areas are not mandated by SB 1525.  A service area may 
include all of the area within the Town limits, as long as it can be shown that developments located 
anywhere within the service area will be served by or benefit from improvements located in the 
service area. 
 

Service Units 

 
In impact fee analysis, demand for facilities must be expressed in terms of a common unit of 
measurement, called a “service unit.”  SB 1525 defines a service unit as “a standardized measure of 
consumption, use, generation or discharge attributable to an individual unit of development 
calculated pursuant to generally accepted engineering or planning standards for a particular category 
of necessary public services or facility expansions.”  The recommended service units are described in 
the individual facility sections of this report.   
 

Methodologies 

 
SB 1525 is sometimes misunderstood to dictate a particular methodology for calculating impact fees.  
Because cities must forecast anticipated growth over a fixed time period and identify improvements 
over the same time period, some are lead to think that a “plan-based” methodology is required, 
where the cost per service unit is calculated by dividing planned costs by anticipated new service 
units.  In fact, however, SB 1525 does not dictate this methodology, and most impact fees in the 
state have not been calculated in this way.  The reason is that, to support a plan-based methodology, 
the list of planned improvements must be developed using a rigorous analysis, such as the modeling 
used to develop a transportation master plan, in order to establish the required nexus between the 
anticipated growth and the specific list of improvements required to serve that growth.  In many 
cases, such a master plan is not available.   
 
The principal alternative to the plan-based methodology is “standards-based.” The key difference is 
that the plan-based approach is based on a complex level of service (LOS) standard, such as “every 
road shall function at LOS D or better,” or “the average fire response time shall not exceed three 
minutes,” that requires projecting growth by small areas and using sophisticated modeling or analysis 
to determine the specific improvements needed to maintain the desired LOS.  In contrast, a 
standards-based approach uses a generalized LOS standard, such as the ratio of park acres to 
population, which does not require an extensive master planning effort in order to determine the 
improvements and costs that are attributable to a specific quantity of growth.   
 
There are advantages and disadvantages to the two methodologies.  The major advantage of a 
standards-based methodology is that it is more flexible, since the fees are not dependent on the 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 7 October 2, 2013 

specific projects included in the list of improvements, only on the average cost to construct a unit of 
capacity.  Changing the list of planned projects typically does not require recalculation of standards-
based impact fees, since a single project is likely to have an insignificant impact on the average cost 
of capacity added by all of the improvements.  This allows the capital plan to change in response to 
unforeseen development without triggering the need for an impact fee update.  
 

Level of Service (LOS) Standards 

 
SB 1525 does not define the term “level of service” (LOS), nor does it require the formal adoption 
of LOS standards.  It does require, however, that impact fees be based on the same LOS provided 
to existing development in the service area.  This reflects a basic principle of impact fees, which is 
that new development should not be charged for a higher LOS than existing development.  This 
does not mean that impact fees cannot be based on a higher standard than is currently actually 
provided to existing development in a service area.  If the fees are based on a higher-than-existing 
LOS, however, there must be a plan to use non-impact fee funds to remedy the existing deficiency.   
 

Land Use Assumptions 

 
An impact fee update must now include the development of land use assumptions (growth 
projections) for each service area.  SB 1525 defines land use assumptions as “projections of changes 
in land uses, densities, intensities and population for a specified service area over a period of at least 
ten years and pursuant to the general plan of the municipality.”  Since the infrastructure 
improvements plan (IIP) that must be prepared for each service area must identify improvement 
needs for a period not to exceed 10 years, a 10-year time-frame would seem to be the most 
appropriate for both the land use assumptions and the IIP.   
 

Infrastructure Improvements Plan 

 
SB 1525 requires that an infrastructure improvements plan (IIP) be prepared for facility type for 
each service area.  Impact fees may only be collected to pay for improvements identified in the IIP.  
By implication, impact fees can only be spent on improvements listed in the IIP.   
 
The IIP is often confused with a list of planned capital improvements.  While the IIP must include 
such a list, it must also contain much more analysis.  The IIP is basically the impact fee study.  To 
avoid confusion, we suggest referring to the list of improvements that must be included in the IIP as 
the “capital plan.”  The consultant proposes to prepare a single, consolidated document that 
includes land use assumptions, infrastructure improvement plans and impact fee analyses for the 
Town’s transportation, parks and police impact fees.   
 
As noted above, the IIP must identify planned projects over a period of not more than 10 years, and 
it is suggested that the Town’s IIPs and capital plans cover a 10-year period.  Of course, the impact 
fee analysis could cover a longer period, such as to build-out, which may be required if the fees are 
based on build-out master plans. 
 
The cost of the projects listed in the capital plan will not necessarily determine the impact fee 
amounts.  As described earlier, there are two basic methodologies.  Under a plan-based approach, 
the fee will be determined by the projects listed in the applicable master plan, some but not all of 
which will be listed in the impact fee capital plan.  Under the standards-based approach, the fees will 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 8 October 2, 2013 

be based on the existing level of service and the average cost per unit of capacity.  Consequently, 
under the standards-based approach, the impact fee capital plan is primarily a list of improvements 
that are eligible to be funded with impact fees. 
 
Eligible improvements are those that add capacity to accommodate future growth.  Replacing an 
existing police patrol vehicle or remodeling or repairing an existing building are examples of 
improvements that do not add capacity.  Some projects may be partially eligible.  In addition, 
existing facilities that have outstanding debt that is to be repaid with impact fees should be listed in 
the capital plan.   
 

Refunds 

 
A common and understandable misinterpretation of SB 1525 is that a municipality may be required 
to refund fees collected if any improvement listed in the IIP is not completed within the timeframe 
of the IIP.  Section 9-463.05.B.7 provides that collection of impact fees is allowed only to pay for a 
project that is identified in the IIP, “and the municipality plans to complete construction and have 
the service available within the time period established in the infrastructure improvements plan, but 
in no event longer than the time period provided in subsection H, paragraph 3 of this section [i.e., 
15 years for water and wastewater, and 10 years for other facilities].”  The key terms in this section 
are “plans to complete” and “have the service available.”  No community has a crystal ball that 
allows them to know with certainty how much development is going to occur over a 10-15 year 
period in the future.  While the Town may plan to complete an improvement in this time period in 
order to serve anticipated growth, if the anticipated growth does not materialize and the need for the 
improvement is not required to serve the growth that does occur, it is highly unlikely that a court 
would find that the Town is compelled to refund the fees that it did collect.   
 
The refund provisions in the referenced refund subsection (H) reinforce this interpretation.  Section 
9-463.05.B.7 directly references only the final paragraph of subsection H (H.3), which simply 
requires that the impact fees be spent within a certain time period (15 years for water and 
wastewater, and 10 years for other facilities) from the date they were collected.  It is reasonable to 
conclude that this is the only refund provision that will likely be applicable, as long as the Town 
does not collect impact fees and deny access to services.  However, there is always the possibility 
that refunds could be required if a construction project comes in significantly lower than its 
estimated cost. 
 

Offsets 

 
A fundamental principle of impact fees is that new development should not be required to pay twice 
for the cost of new facilities – once through impact fees and again through other taxes or fees that 
are used to fund the same facilities.  To avoid such potential double-payment, impact fees may be 
reduced, and such a reduction is referred to as an “offset.”  Typically, offsets are incorporated into 
the impact fee calculation, although they can also be addressed through an independent fee study for 
an individual development project.  While this has long been a part of impact fee practice in 
Arizona, SB 1525 amended the state enabling act to add the following provision (Section 9-
463.05.B.12): 
 
 The municipality shall forecast the contribution to be made in the future in cash or by taxes, fees, assessments 

or other sources of revenue derived from the property owner towards the capital costs of the necessary public 



Legal Framework 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 9 October 2, 2013 

service covered by the development fee and shall include these contributions in determining the extent of the 
burden imposed by the development. Beginning August 1, 2014, for purposes of calculating the required offset 
to development fees pursuant to this subsection, if a municipality imposes a construction contracting or similar 
excise tax rate in excess of the percentage amount of the transaction privilege tax rate imposed on the majority 
of other transaction privilege tax classifications, the entire excess portion of the construction contracting or 
similar excise tax shall be treated as a contribution to the capital costs of necessary public services provided to 
development for which development fees are assessed, unless the excess portion was already taken into account 
for such purpose pursuant to this subsection. 

 
The revenue forecast required by Section 9-463.05.B.12 is provided in Appendix C. 
 
In general, offsets are only required for funding that is dedicated for capacity-expanding 
improvements of the type addressed by the impact fee.  A municipality is not required to use general 
fund revenue to pay for growth-related improvements.  If, for example, a municipality decides that 
the existing level of service on which impact fees are based is insufficient, and opts to use general 
revenue to raise the level of service for both existing and new development, no offset would be 
required. 
 
The clearest situation that requires an offset is when there is outstanding debt on the facilities that 
are providing existing development with the level of service that new development will be expected 
to pay for through impact fees.  In this case, new development will be paying for the facilities that 
will serve them, while also paying for a portion of the cost of facilities serving existing development 
through property or other taxes.  Consequently, the impact fees should be reduced to avoid this 
potential double-payment. 
 
Another clear case requiring offsets is when the impact fees have been adopted based on a level of 
service that is higher than what is currently provided to existing development in the service area.  In 
such a case, the cost of remedying the existing deficiency will almost always be funded by future 
revenue sources to which new development will contribute.  To the extent that this is the case, an 
offset is required. 
 
As noted above, an offset will generally be warranted when new development will be contributing 
toward a funding source that is dedicated to fund the same growth-related improvements addressed 
by the impact fee.  Offsets are also often provided for anticipated grant funding that may be 
available to help fund growth-related improvements, although the uncertainty of such funding and 
the fact that it is not paid for by property owners make this type of offset discretionary. 
 
Finally, the new language inserted in the state enabling act by SB 1525, cited above, now requires 
municipalities to provide offsets for the excess portion of any construction contracting excise tax.  
Oro Valley has five classifications:  Privilege Tax (2%), Hotel/Motel (6%), Construction Contracting 
(4%), Utilities (4%) and Pre-Existing Contracts (2%).  Construction is higher than two of the other 
four categories, but two is not a majority of four.  However, the Town has received a legal opinion 
that the word “classification” in the statute refers to the “taxable activities” on the Arizona 
Department of Revenue (“ADOR”) chart.  This includes all taxable activities, such as 
bars/restaurants, transportation, commercial lease, amusement, job printing etc.  Based on this 
interpretation, the transaction privilege tax on most of the Oro Valley classifications (taxable 
activities) is 2%.  Consequently, an offset is provided for half of the construction sales tax against 
the transportation impact fees. 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 10 October 2, 2013 

SERVICE AREAS 

 
As noted in the Legal Framework section, service areas are a key requirement for impact fees under 
SB 1525.  Land use assumptions (growth projections) and an infrastructure improvements plan (list 
of capital improvements and impact fee analysis) must be prepared for each service area.  Multiple 
service areas are not mandated by SB 1525, as long as it can be shown that developments located 
anywhere within the service area will be served by or benefit from improvements anywhere in the 
service area – which is another way of saying that a “substantial nexus” can be demonstrated. 
 
Oro Valley currently charges non-utility impact fees for transportation, parks and police facilities.  
The Town currently has a single, town-wide service area for all three fee types.  The current Oro 
Valley town limits are shown in Figure 2 below.     
 

Figure 2.  Town Limits Map 

  



Service Areas 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 11 October 2, 2013 

Transportation 

 
Transportation planners classify roadways according to function.  Local streets primarily function to 
provide access to adjacent development.  Collector roads serve a dual function, providing both 
access and a way for traffic to get to the arterial.  Arterial roadways also provide some access to 
adjacent properties, but their primary function is to move traffic long distances with a community.  
The functional classifications of the Town’s existing major roadways are shown in Figure 3. 
 

Figure 3.  Functional Classification Map 

 
 
The Town’s transportation impact fees are limited to arterials and major collectors.  Since these 
roadway classifications are designed to move traffic throughout the community, a town-wide service 
area continues to be appropriate.  
 



Service Areas 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 12 October 2, 2013 

Parks 

 
SB 1525 authorizes fees for “neighborhood parks,” although the term is undefined except for 
certain restrictions.  The most important restriction is that neighborhood parks cannot not exceed 
30 acres, unless a “direct benefit” (another undefined term) can be demonstrated.     
 
While the Town’s does not have a park master plan, typical standards are that a neighborhood park 
should be 5-10 acres and have a service area of about a one-half mile radius, while a community park 
should be 30-80 acres in size and have a service area of about a three-mile radius.  The 30-acre park 
size authorized for impact fees falls somewhere between a neighborhood and community park. 
 
Park impact fee service areas can reasonably be larger than the service area of a single park.  
Residents do not always use the park closest to them.  A park impact fee system where each existing 
or potential park has its own service area would be unworkable.  The entire town limits is roughly 
the size of two community park areas, and is recommended for the park impact fees.     
 

Police  

 
The current and recommended service area for police impact fees is town-wide.  Most police 
facilities are centralized in the Main Police Station, and police protection is provided throughout the 
city from roving patrol cars.   
  
 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 13 October 2, 2013 

LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS 

 
This section presents land use assumptions covering a ten-year period (2013-2023) to serve as the 
basis for the infrastructure improvements plan and impact fee calculations for the Town of Oro 
Valley’s transportation, park and police impact fees.   
 
SB 1525 requires that land use assumptions be developed for each service area.  All of the Town’s 
impact fees will continue to be based on a single town-wide service area.   
  
SB 1525 requires that land use assumptions be developed “pursuant to the general plan.”  The Oro 
Valley General Plan, adopted in 2005, does not include projections of future population or land use.  
Consequently, other data sources will be used to develop projections. 
 
The 2010 U.S. Census provides a total count of housing units, but no information on units by 
housing type.  Information on housing type is available from sample data collected by the Census 
Bureau as part of the annual American Housing Survey.  The most recent available data is a 
weighted 5% sample, which consist of five annual 1% samples taken in 2007 through 2011.  These 
figures are adjusted to match the 2010 total housing count from the 2010 Census.  Adding the 
number of units for which building permits were issued by the Town over the last three years yields 
an estimate of existing housing units by type for 2013, as shown in Table 5.   
 

Table 5.  Existing Housing Units by Type, 2013 

2007-11 2010  2010-12 2013 

ACS     Census Permits Est.  

Single-Family Detached 14,677 15,285 264 15,549

Multi-Family 4,486 4,672 757 5,429

Mobile Home 368 383 0 383

Total Housing Units 19,531 20,340 1,021 21,361  
Source:  2007-2011 ACS data is from the U.S. Census Bureau’s American 

Community Survey, based on a 5% sample taken over five years; 2010 total units 

from 2010 U.S. Census, SF1 100% count data; 2010 units by type based on 

distribution of units from ACS data; building permits issued in calendar years 2010 

through 2012 from Town of Oro Valley Development and Infrastructure Services 

Department, March 22, 2013 (includes an additional 750 multi-family units per 

Town, August 20, 2013). 

 
The best available source of information on growth projections for Oro Valley is the small area 
population, housing and employment estimates and projections prepared by the Pima Association of 
Governments (PAG).  The boundaries of these small areas, called Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZ), 
coincide very closely with the Town’s boundaries, and can be aggregated to the Town limits.  
Current PAG data sets are available for 2005 estimates and 2040 projections.  2013 estimates for 
housing and population are based on current housing unit estimates derived in Table 5 above.  
Employment estimates for 2013 are derived from 2005 PAG employment estimates, which are 
adjusted upward by the 2005-2013 growth in housing units.  2023 population, housing and 
employment estimates are based on a straight-line interpolation between 2013 estimates and 2040 
PAG projections.  The resulting 2013-2023 forecasts are presented in Table 6. 
 
  



Land Use Assumptions 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 14 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 6.  Population, Housing and Employment, 2013-2023 

2005  2013  2023  2040  

Total Population 39,028 43,070 47,735 55,666

Total Housing Units 18,509 21,361 22,749 25,109

Retail/Commercial Employment 3,367 3,886 4,941 6,736

Office Employment 2,487 2,870 4,083 6,145

Industrial Employment 2,405 2,776 3,042 3,493

Warehouse Employment 130 150 121 71

Public Employment 1,016 1,173 1,787 2,832  
Source:  2005 estimates and 2040 projections for Traffic Analysis Zones consistent with 

Town of Oro Valley town limits from Pima Association of Governments; 2013 housing units 

from Table 5; 2013 population based on 2013 housing and 2010 ratio of population to 

housing from 2010 U.S. Census; 2013 employment based on 2005 estimates and 2013 to 

2005 housing unit ratio; 2023 population, housing and employment is straight-line 

interpolation between 2013 and 2040. 

 
The number of employees can be converted to building square footage estimates using the employee 
density ratios shown in Table 7. 
 

Table 7.  Employee Density Ratios 

Sq. Feet/ Employees/

Land Use Type Employee 1,000 Sq. Ft.

Retail/Commercial 487 2.05

Office 205 4.88

Industrial 460 2.17

Warehouse 1,236 0.81

Public 800 1.25  
Source:  Sample survey data collected by City of Chandler, 

Arizona, Economic Development Department, 2005. 

 
Land use assumptions for 2013-2023 are summarized in Table 8 below for population, housing units 
by type and nonresidential building square footage by land use type. 
 

Table 8.  Population, Housing and Nonresidential Sq. Ft., 2013-2023 

2013  2023  

Total Population 43,070 47,735

Single-Family Detached Units 15,549 16,578

Multi-Family Units 5,429 5,788

Mobile Home Units 383 383

Total Housing Units 21,361 22,749

Retail/Commercial Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 1,892 2,406

Office Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 588 837

Industrial Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 1,277 1,399

Warehouse Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 185 150

Public Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 938 1,430

Total Nonresidential Sq. Ft. (1,000s) 4,880 6,222  
Source:  2013 and 2023 population and total housing units from Table 6; 

2013 housing units by type from Table 5; 2023 housing units by type 

assumes no growth in mobile homes and new units distributed according to 

2013 distribution of non-mobile home units; nonresidential square fee based 

on employment from Table 6 and employee density ratios from Table 7. 

 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 15 October 2, 2013 

TRANSPORTATION 

 
This section updates the Town’s transportation impact fees in compliance with the new Arizona 
impact fee enabling act for municipalities. 
 
There are two basic transportation impact fee methodologies:  consumption-based and plan-based.  
In the standard consumption-based approach, the total cost of a representative set of improvements 
is divided by the capacity added by those improvements in order to determine an average cost per 
vehicle-mile of capacity (VMC).  This cost per VMC is then multiplied by the vehicle-miles of travel 
(VMT) generated by a unit of development of a particular land use type to determine the gross 
impact fee.  A variant is the modified consumption-based approach, which uses a system-wide 
VMC/VMT ratio higher than the 1:1 ratio implicit in the standard approach. 
 
The alternative is the plan-based approach.  The key to a defensible plan-based methodology is a 
well-designed transportation master plan that establishes a strong nexus between anticipated growth 
over a 10-20 year period and the improvements that will be required to accommodate growth over 
that planning horizon.  The cost per VMT (or per trip) is determined by dividing the cost of the 
planned improvements by the growth in VMT.  The cost per VMT is then multiplied by the vehicle-
miles of travel (VMT) generated by a unit of development of a particular land use type to determine 
the gross impact fee.  The level of service standard under the plan-based approach is facility-specific 
(e.g., “all major road segments and intersections shall function at LOS D or better”). 
 
There are advantages and disadvantages to the two methodologies.  The consumption-based 
approach, at least in its standard form, tends to be conservative and generally results in lower impact 
fees than the plan-based approach.  This is because most roadway systems need more than one unit 
of capacity (VMC) for each unit of travel demand (VMT) in order to function at an acceptable level 
of service (the modified consumption-based approach addresses this issue and is less conservative).  
Plan-based fees using a transportation plan that identifies all of the improvements needed to provide 
acceptable levels of service on all roadways will almost always result in higher fees.   
 
The major advantage of a consumption-based methodology is that it is more flexible, since the fees 
are not dependent on the specific projects included in the list of improvements, only on the average 
cost to construct a vehicle-mile of capacity.  Changing the list of planned projects typically does not 
require recalculation of consumption-based road impact fees, since a single project is likely to have 
an insignificant impact on the average cost of capacity added by all of the improvements.  This 
allows the capital plan to change in response to unforeseen development without triggering the need 
for an impact fee update.  This update uses the consumption-based methodology.   

 

Existing Level of Service 

 
As described above, the level of service used in the consumption-based methodology is a system-
wide capacity/demand (VMC/VMT) ratio of one.  This section demonstrates that the existing level 
of service exceeds this standard. 
 
An inventory of the existing arterial/major collector road network is summarized in Table 9 below.  
For each roadway segment, information was gathered on segment length in miles, number of 
through lanes, and current traffic volumes (annualized average daily trips or AADT).  The number 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 16 October 2, 2013 

of vehicle-miles of travel (VMT) is the product of segment miles and AADT.  The number of 
vehicle-miles of capacity (VMC) is the product of segment miles and roadway capacity. 
 

Table 9.  Existing Major Road Inventory 

Street From To Class Miles Lns. AADT VMT VMC

1st Ave Oracle Rd Lambert Ln Minor Art 0.414 4 24,340 10,077 10,350

1st Ave Lambert Ln Naranja Dr Minor Art 0.365 4 15,746 5,747 9,125

1st Ave Naranja Dr Tangerine Rd Minor Art 0.997 4 15,746 15,699 24,925

Calle Buena Vista Calle Concordia Hardy Collector 1.000 2 3,533 3,533 10,000

Calle Concordia Calle Loma Linda Calle Buena Vista Minor Art 0.499 2 4,300 2,146 4,990

Calle Concordia Calle Buena Vista Overlook Minor Art 0.708 2 4,300 3,044 7,080

Calle Concordia Overlook Hwy 77 Minor Art 0.708 2 4,300 3,044 7,080

Hardy Rd Calle Loma Linda Calle Buena Vista Minor Art 0.501 2 5,384 2,697 5,010

Hardy Rd Calle Buena Vista Oracle Rd Minor Art 0.534 2 5,384 2,875 5,340

Innovation Park SR -989 Rancho Vistoso Minor Art 1.248 2 6,000 7,488 12,480

La Canada Dr Oro Valley TB Calle Concordia Minor Art 0.505 4 11,749 5,933 12,625

La Canada Dr Oro Valley TB Rancho Sonora Minor Art 0.647 4 11,750 7,602 16,175

La Canada Dr Rancho Sonora Dr Lambert lane Minor Art 0.414 4 11,750 4,865 10,350

La Canada Dr Lambert Ln Naranja Dr Minor Art 0.997 4 14,658 14,614 24,925

La Canada Dr Naranja Dr Tangerine Rd Minor Art 0.971 4 10,382 10,081 24,275

La Canada Dr Tangerine Rd Moore Rd Minor Art 1.000 4 5,058 5,058 25,000

La Cholla Blvd 0.5 mi. S of Lambert Lambert Ln Minor Art 0.500 2 14,246 7,123 5,000

La Cholla Blvd Lambert Ln Naranja Dr Minor Art 1.007 2 10,669 10,744 10,070

La Cholla Blvd Naranja Dr Tangerine Rd Minor Art 0.966 2 9,870 9,534 9,660

La Cholla Blvd Tangerine Rd Oro Valley TB Collector 0.258 2 2,798 722 2,580

Lambert Ln 0.5 mi. E of Shannon La Cholla Blvd Collector 0.496 2 7,178 3,560 4,960

Lambert Ln La Cholla Blvd Rancho Sonora Minor Art 0.625 2 9,437 5,898 6,250

Lambert Ln Rancho Sonora Dr La Canada Dr Minor Art 0.369 2 9,437 3,482 3,690

Lambert Ln La Canada Dr Highlands Dr Minor Art 1.290 2 11,938 15,400 12,900

Lambert Ln Pusch View 1st Ave Minor Art 1.017 2 11,931 12,134 10,170

Magee Road Northern Ave Oracle Rd Minor Art 0.219 2 14,146 3,098 2,190

Magee Road Oracle Rd Town Limits Collector 0.787 2 1,888 1,486 7,870

Moore Road La Cholla Blvd Copper Spring Trl Collector 1.558 2 3,621 5,642 15,580

Moore Road Copper Spring Trl Woodburne Ave. Collector 0.804 2 3,621 2,911 8,040

Moore Road Woodburne Ave. Rancho Vistoso Bd Collector 0.286 2 3,621 1,036 2,860

Naranja Dr Shannon Road La Cholla Blvd Collector 1.000 2 2,000 2,000 10,000

Naranja Dr La Cholla Blvd La Canada Dr Collector 0.998 2 7,883 7,867 9,980

Naranja Dr La Canada Dr 1st Ave Collector 2.020 2 3,977 8,034 20,200

Northern Ave. Magee Road Camino Cortaro Collector 0.496 2 8,440 4,186 4,960

Northern Ave. Camino Cortaro Hardy Road Collector 0.507 2 8,440 4,279 5,070

Pusch View Lane Lambert Lane Oracle Road Minor Art 0.644 4 5,926 3,816 16,098

Rancho Vistoso Tangerine Rd Moore Rd Minor Art 1.466 4 18,566 27,218 36,650

Rancho Vistoso Moore Rd Sun City Blvd Minor Art 2.447 4 3,481 8,518 61,175

Rancho Vistoso Sun City Blvd Del webb Blvd Minor Art 1.117 4 8,209 9,169 27,925

Rancho Vistoso Del webb Blvd Innovation Park Minor Art 0.815 4 12,938 10,544 20,375

Rancho Vistoso Innovation Park Dr SR-77 Minor Art 0.414 4 12,932 5,354 10,350

Shannon Rd Lambert Ln Naranja Collector 0.985 2 2,582 2,543 9,850

Tangerine Rd Shannon Rd La Cholla Blvd Prin Art 0.981 2 11,242 11,028 9,810

Tangerine Rd La Cholla Blvd La Canada Dr Prin Art 1.007 2 13,316 13,409 10,070

Tangerine Rd La Canada Dr Mandarin Ln Prin Art 1.580 4 18,640 29,451 39,500

Vistoso Comm Lp Rancho Vistoso Bd Oracle Road Collector 0.444 4 1,538 682 11,094

Total Vehicle-Miles 335,371 614,657  
Source:  Segment descriptions, miles, lanes and AADT from Town of Oro Valley, March 27, 2013; VMT is product of miles and 

AADT; VMC is product of miles and 25,000 vehicles per day for 4-lane and 10,000 for 2-lane. 

duncaniassociates 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 17 October 2, 2013 

The results of the existing level of service analysis are shown in Table 10.  While some individual 
road segments are operating at a level of service worse than LOS D, the appropriate level of service 
measurement for a consumption-based road fee is the overall ratio of capacity to demand for the 
service area.  As shown below, existing level of service exceeds the minimum VMC/VMT ratio of 
one. 
 

Table 10.  Existing Transportation Level of Service 

Total Vehicle-Miles of Capacity (VMC) 614,657

÷ Total Vehicle-Miles of Travel (VMT) 335,371

Existing VMC/VMT Ratio 1.83  
Source:  Vehicle-miles of capacity (VMC) and vehicle-miles of travel 

(VMT) from Table 9. 

 
 

Service Units 

 
A service unit creates the link between supply (roadway capacity) and demand (traffic generated by 
new development).  An appropriate service unit basis for road impact fees is vehicle-miles of travel 
(VMT).  Vehicle-miles is a combination of the number of vehicles traveling during a given time 
period and the distance (in miles) that these vehicles travel.   
 
The two time periods most often used in traffic analysis are the 24-hour day (average daily trips or 
ADT) and the single hour of the day with the highest traffic volume (peak hour trips or PHT).  Due 
to the fact that available traffic counts are in terms of ADT and to be consistent with the Town’s 
current fees, which are based on ADT, daily VMT will be used as the service unit for the 
transportation impact fees.   
 
Transportation service units are defined in terms of vehicle travel.  The travel demand generated by 
a specific land use is a product of three factors:  1) trip generation, 2) percent primary trips and 3) 
average trip length. 
 
Trip Generation 

Trip generation rates are based on information published in the most recent edition of the Institute 
of Transportation Engineers’ (ITE) Trip Generation manual.  Trip generation rates represent trip 
ends, or driveway crossings at the site of a land use.  Thus, a single-one way trip from home to work 
counts as one trip end for the residence and one trip end for the work place, for a total of two trip 
ends.  To avoid over counting, all trip rates have been divided by two.  This places the burden of 
travel equally between the origin and destination of the trip and eliminates double charging for any 
particular trip. 
 
Primary Trip Factor 

Trip rates must also be adjusted by a “primary trip factor” to exclude pass by and diverted-linked 
trips.  This adjustment is intended to reduce the possibility of over-counting by only including 
primary trips generated by the development.  Pass by trips are those trips that are already on a 
particular route for a different purpose and simply stop at a development on that route.  For 
example, a stop at a convenience store on the way home from the office is a pass by trip for the 
convenience store.  A pass by trip does not create an additional burden on the street system and 
therefore should not be counted in the assessment of impact fees.  A diverted-linked trip is similar 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 18 October 2, 2013 

to a pass by trip, but a diversion is made from the regular route to make an interim stop. The 
reduction for pass by and diverted-linked trips was drawn from ITE and other published 
information. 
 
Average Trip Length 

In the context of a transportation impact fee based on a consumption-based methodology, it is 
necessary to determine the average length of a trip on the major roadway system within Oro Valley.  
The point of departure in developing local trip lengths is to utilize national data.  The U.S. 
Department of Transportation’s 2009 National Household Travel Survey identifies average trips 
lengths for specific trip purposes.  However, these trip lengths are unlikely to be representative of 
travel on the major roadway system in Oro Valley, since the national data includes travel on Federal 
and State highways, minor collectors and local streets, as well as travel outside any one jurisdiction.  
An adjustment factor for local trip lengths can be derived by dividing the vehicle-miles of travel 
(VMT) that is actually observed on the major roadway system by the VMT that would be expected 
using national average trip lengths and trip generation rates.   
 
The first step is to estimate the total VMT that would be expected to be generated by existing 
development in Oro Valley based on national travel demand characteristics.  This can be 
accomplished by multiplying existing development in each land use category by the appropriate 
national trip generation rate, primary trip factor and trip length, and summing for all land use types, 
as shown in Table 11.  The expected VMT is considerably higher than the actual estimated VMT on 
the Town’s major roadway system.  This is not surprising, since the major roadway system does not 
include State roads, minor collectors, local streets or any portion of a trip that occurs outside the 
Town limits.  Consequently, it is necessary to develop an adjustment factor to account for this 
variation.  The local adjustment factor is the ratio of actual to projected VMT on the major roadway 
system.  The national average trip length for each land use type should be multiplied by a local 
adjustment factor of 0.311. 
 

Table 11.  Local Trip Length Adjustment Factor 

ITE 2013 Trip  Primary Daily Length Daily  

Land Use Type Code Unit Units Rate Trips  Trips (miles) VMT  

Single-Family Detached 210 Dwelling 15,549 4.76 100% 74,013 9.75 721,627

Multi-Family 220 Dwelling 5,429 3.33 100% 18,079 8.62 155,841

Mobile Home Park 240 Space 383 2.50 100% 958 6.03 5,777

Retail/Commercial 820 1,000 sq ft 1,892 21.35 42% 16,966 6.27 106,377

Office 710 1,000 sq ft 588 5.52 80% 2,597 9.61 24,957

Industrial 140 1,000 sq ft 1,277 1.91 100% 2,439 11.98 29,219

Warehouse 150 1,000 sq ft 185 1.78 100% 329 11.98 3,941

Public/Institutional 620 1,000 sq ft 938 3.80 100% 3,564 8.47 30,187

Total Expected VMT 1,077,926

÷ Total Actual VMT 335,371

Ratio of Actual to Expected VMT 0.311
 

Source:  Existing 2013 units from Table 8; trip rates are one-half daily trip ends during a weekday from Institute of Transportation 

Engineers (ITE), Trip Generation, 9th ed., 2012 (commercial based on shopping center, office on general office, industrial on 

manufacturing, public/institutional on nursing home); primary trip percentage from ITE, Trip Generation Handbook, June 2004; 

daily trips is product of units, trip rate and primary trip percentage; national average trip lengths from Table 12; daily VMT is 

product of daily trips and average trip length; actual city-wide VMT from Table 9. 

 
National average trip lengths derived from the U.S. Department of Transportation’s 2009 National 
Household Travel Survey are available for a variety of trip types and purposes.  These have been 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 19 October 2, 2013 

adjusted downward by the local adjustment factor to determine local trip lengths, as shown in Table 
12 below. 
 

Table 12.  Average Trip Lengths 

National Local Local   

Trip     Adjustment Trip    

Land Use Trip Type Length  Factor Length 

Single-Family Detached Single-Family 9.75 0.311 3.03

Multi-Family Multi-Family 8.62 0.311 2.68

Mobile Home Mobile Home 6.03 0.311 1.88

Retail/Commercial Shopping 6.27 0.311 1.95

Office Medical/Dental 9.61 0.311 2.99

Industrial/Warehouse To or From Work 11.98 0.311 3.73

Public/Institutional School/Church 8.47 0.311 2.63  
Source:  National average trip lengths from U.S. Department of Transportation, National Household 

Travel Survey, 2009; local adjustment factor from Table 11; local trip length is product of national trip 

length and local adjustment factor. 

 
 
Service Unit Summary 

The result of combining trip generation rates, primary trip factors and localized average trip lengths 
is a travel demand schedule that establishes the daily VMT during the average weekday on the major 
roadway system generated by various land use types per unit of development for Oro Valley.  The 
recommended travel demand schedule is presented in Table 13. 
 

Table 13.  Transportation Service Unit Multipliers 

ITE Trip  Primary Length VMT/

Land Use Type Code Unit Rate Trips  (miles) Unit 

Single-Family Detached 210 Dwelling 4.76 100% 3.03 14.42

Multi-Family 220 Dwelling 3.33 100% 2.68 8.92

Mobile Home Park 240 Space 2.50 100% 1.88 4.70

Hotel/Motel 320 Room 2.82 100% 1.95 5.49

Retail/Commercial 820 1,000 sq ft 21.35 42% 1.95 17.48

Office 710 1,000 sq ft 5.52 80% 2.99 13.20

Industrial 140 1,000 sq ft 1.91 100% 3.73 7.12

Warehouse 150 1,000 sq ft 1.78 100% 3.73 6.63

Public/Institutional 620 1,000 sq ft 3.80 100% 2.63 9.99  
Source:  Trip rates are one-half daily trip ends during a weekday from Institute of 

Transportation Engineers (ITE), Trip Generation, 9th ed., 2012; retail primary trip percentage 

from ITE, Trip Generation Handbook, June 2004 (office estimated); average trip lengths from 

Table 12; daily VMT per unit is product of trip rate, primary trip percentage and average trip 

length. 

 
Transportation service units are expressed in terms of vehicle-miles of travel (VMT).  VMT 
projections for the 2013-2023 planning period are shown in Table 14 below.  Note that using 
existing land uses and the transportation service unit multipliers under-estimates actual town-wide 
VMT by about three-tenths of a percent.  This indicates that the calibration worked well and that the 
multipliers are slightly conservative in terms of reflecting actual demand. 
  



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 20 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 14.  Transportation Service Units, 2013-2023 

VMT/      

Land Use Type Unit 2013  2023  Unit        2013  2023  

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 15,549 16,578 14.42 224,217 239,055

Multi-Family Dwelling 5,429 5,788 8.92 48,427 51,629

Mobile Home Park Space 383 383 4.70 1,800 1,800

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft 1,892 2,406 17.48 33,072 42,057

Office 1,000 sq ft 588 837 13.20 7,762 11,048

Industrial 1,000 sq ft 1,277 1,399 7.12 9,092 9,961

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft 185 150 6.63 1,227 995

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft 938 1,430 9.99 9,371 14,286

Total Service Units (VMT) 334,968 370,831

         Units                   VMT          

 
Source:  2013 and 2023 units from Table 8; VMT per unit from Table 13; VMT is product of units and VMT 

per unit. 

 
 

Cost per Service Unit 

 
The cost per service unit is derived from the actual cost of one soon-to-be-completed project and 
three planned major road projects in Oro Valley.  The descriptions and costs of these projects are 
summarized in Table 15.  The average cost per new lane-mile added by these projects is $4.29 
million. 
 

Table 15.  Cost of Planned Major Road Projects 

New  Cost per 

Project Description Ex  Fut New Miles Ln-Mi. Total Cost Lane-Mile

Tangerine Rd, Shannon to La Canada 2 4 2 2.0 4.0 $19,896,770 $4,974,193

Naranja Drive, La Cholla to Shannon 2 3 1 1.0 1.0 $4,187,000 $4,187,000

Lambert Lane, La Canada-Rancho Sonora 2 4 2 0.5 1.0 $4,700,000 $4,700,000

Lambert Lane, Pusch View Ln-La Canada 2 4 2 1.6 3.2 $10,700,000 $3,343,750

Total 9.2 $39,483,770 $4,291,714

Lanes

 
Source:  Town of Oro Valley, April 15, 2013. 

 
To determine the cost per service unit, it is necessary to divide the cost by the capacity added by the 
improvements.  As shown in Table 16, the four projects will add 69,000 vehicle-miles of capacity. 
 

Table 16.  Capacity Added by Planned Major Road Projects 

New   

Project Description Before After New Miles VMC  

Tangerine Rd, Shannon to La Canada 10,000 25,000 15,000 2.0 30,000

Naranja Drive, La Cholla to Shannon 10,000 17,500 7,500 1.0 7,500

Lambert Lane, La Canada-Rancho Sonora 10,000 25,000 15,000 0.5 7,500

Lambert Lane, Pusch View Ln-La Canada 10,000 25,000 15,000 1.6 24,000

Total Vehicle-Miles of Capacity (VMC)  Added 69,000

Daily Capacity (LOS D)

 
Source:  Project descriptions and miles from Table 15; daily capacities at LOS D assumed; new VMC is 

product of new capacity and miles. 

 
The cost per service unit is the product of the cost per VMC and the level of service (LOS).  The 
standard consumption-based approach is based on a 1.00 ratio of capacity to demand.  Under the 
standard consumption-based approach, the cost per VMT is the same as the cost per VMC, as 
shown in Table 17. 
 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 21 October 2, 2013 

Table 17.  Transportation Cost per Service Unit 

Total Cost of Planned Improvements $39,483,770

÷ Total Vehicle-Miles of Capacity (VMC) Added 69,000

Average Cost per Vehicle-Mile of Capacity (VMC) $572

x VMC/VMT Ratio 1.00

Average Cost per Vehicle-Mile of Travel (VMT) $572  
Source:  Total cost from Table 15; new VMC added from Table 16; average cost 

per VMC is ratio of total cost to VMC added. 

 
 

Net Cost per Service Unit 

 
As noted in the Legal Framework section of this report, impact fees should be reduced (or “offset”) 
in order to account for other types of revenues that will be generated by new development and used 
to fund capacity-expanding improvements of the same type as those to be funded by the impact 
fees.  Cases in which such an offset is warranted include funding of existing deficiencies, outstanding 
debt payments on existing facilities, and dedicated revenue sources to fund growth-related 
improvements.   
 
The transportation impact fees calculated in this report are based on a system-wide level of service 
that is lower than the existing level of service, so there are no existing deficiencies.  The Town has 
no debt associated with previous capacity-expanding major road system improvements.  Other than 
impact fees, the Town has no dedicated source of revenue to fund growth-related road capacity 
improvements.  Non-local revenues sources, such as Highway User Revenue Funds, are used solely 
for road maintenance.   
 
The draft FY 2014-2018 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) shows $15.04 million in 
regional transportation funding programmed for major road improvements in Oro Valley.  While 
not necessarily generated locally, this funding comes at least partially from motor fuel taxes, some of 
which will be generated by new development.  The amount that is attributable to new development 
in Oro Valley over the next 25 years equates to a net present value of $166 per daily VMT, as shown 
in Table 18.  This represents an appropriate offset to account for new development’s contribution to 
regional funding for major road improvements in Oro Valley. 
 

Table 18.  Transportation Outside Funding Offset per Service Unit 

5-Year TIP Capacity Funding for Town Major Roads $15,037,000

÷ Number of Years 5

Annual TIP Capacity Funding $3,007,400

÷ Existing Vehicle-Miles of Travel (VMT) 335,371

Annual TIP Capacity Funding per VMT $8.97

x Present Value Factor, 25 Years 18.47

Outside Funding Offset per VMT $166  
Source:  Five-year TIP funding from Pima Association of Governments, 2014-

2018 TIP, 5-Year Regional Transportation Improvement Program, March 2013 

draft; existing VMT from Table 9; 25-year present value factor based on 2.48% 

discount rate, which is the average inflation rate over the last ten years, from 

U.S Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index, All Urban Consumers 

(average annual change in annual index for 2002-2012).  

 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 22 October 2, 2013 

As noted in the Legal Framework section, SB 1525 requires that an offset be provided for any 
“excess” construction sales tax, and it has been determined that one-half of the 4% construction 
sales tax meets the description of an excess tax.  Even though the Town’s construction sales tax 
revenues are not earmarked to be used for any specific purpose, SB 1525 apparently requires that an 
offset be provided against one or more of the Town’s impact fees.  It has been determined that the 
offset will be provided against the transportation impact fee.  The excess construction sales tax 
offset is calculated in Table 19.     
 

Table 19.  Excess Construction Sales Tax Offset per Service Unit 

Average Construction Sales Tax per Single-Family Unit $7,800

x Percent Excess 50%

Excess Construction Sales Tax per Single-Family Unit $3,900

÷ Daily VMT per Single-Family Detached Unit 14.42

Excess Construction Sales Tax Offset per VMT $270  
Source:  Average tax per single-family unit based on a $300,000 home from Town of 

Oro Valley Finance Department, March 16, 2013; daily VMT per single-family unit 

from Table 13. 

 
The net cost per service unit (VMT), after deducting the offsets for outside funding and excess 
construction sales tax and adding the cost of impact fee updates, is $138 per VMT, as shown in 
Table 20. 
 

Table 20.  Transportation Net Cost per Service Unit 

Cost per VMT $572

– Outside Funding Offset per VMT -$166

– Excess Construction Sales Tax Offset per VMT -$270

Impact Fee Study Cost per VMT $2

Net Cost per VMT $138  
Source:  Cost per VMT from Table 17; outside funding offset from Table 18; 

excess construction sales tax offset from Table 19; study cost from Table 47. 

 

Potential Impact Fees 

 
The maximum transportation impact fees that may be adopted by the Town based on this study is 
the product of the number of vehicle-miles of travel (VMT) generated by a unit of development and 
the net cost per VMT calculated above.  The resulting fee schedule is presented in Table 21. 
 

Table 21.  Transportation Net Cost Schedule 

VMT/ Net Cost/ Net Cost/

Land Use Type Unit Unit  VMT      Unit     

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 14.42 $138 $1,990

Multi-Family Dwelling 8.92 $138 $1,231

Mobile Home Park Space 4.70 $138 $649

Hotel/Motel Room 5.49 $138 $758

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft 17.48 $138 $2,412

Office 1,000 sq ft 13.20 $138 $1,822

Industrial 1,000 sq ft 7.12 $138 $983

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft 6.63 $138 $915

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft 9.99 $138 $1,379  
Source:  VMT per unit from Table 13; net cost per VMT from Table 20. 

  



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 23 October 2, 2013 

The updated transportation impact fees are compared to the Town’s current fees in Table 22.  Note 
that the current land use categories differ from the proposed land use categories in that the 
proposed land use categories (a) separate office and institutional uses, and (b) do not vary 
commercial, office and institutional fees by the size of the development.  The updated fees are 
higher for single-family, office, industrial/warehouse and larger institutional uses, and lower for 
multi-family, commercial and smaller institutional uses. 
 

Table 22.  Current and Updated Transportation Impact Fees 

Current Updated Percent

Current Land Use Type Unit Fee   Fee   Change

Single-Family Dwelling $1,933 $1,990 3%

All Other Housing Dwelling $1,331 $1,231 -8%

Lodging Room $556 $758 36%

Commercial, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $5,533 $2,412 -56%

Commercial, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $4,807 $2,412 -50%

Commercial, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $4,014 $2,412 -40%

Commercial, 100,001-200,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $3,436 $2,412 -30%

Commercial, >200,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $2,921 $2,412 -17%

Office, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $1,812 $1,822 1%

Office, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $1,547 $1,822 18%

Office, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $1,318 $1,822 38%

Office, 100,000 sf+ 1,000 sq. ft. $1,123 $1,822 62%

Institutional, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $1,812 $1,379 -24%

Institutional, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $1,547 $1,379 -11%

Institutional, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $1,318 $1,379 5%

Institutional, 100,000 sf+ 1,000 sq. ft. $1,123 $1,379 23%

Business Park 1,000 sq. ft. $1,260 $983 -22%

Light Industrial 1,000 sq. ft. $689 $983 43%

Manufacturing 1,000 sq. ft. $378 $983 160%

Warehousing 1,000 sq. ft. $490 $915 87%  
Source:  Current fees from Town of Oro Valley, Development Fee Summary, July 1, 2012; updated fees 

from Table 21. 

 

 

Capital Plan 

 
Assuming that the updated fees are adopted at 100%, potential transportation impact fee revenue 
over the next ten years, based on new development anticipated by the land use assumptions, could 
be as much as $4.9 million, as shown in Table 23.  This revenue projection also includes the value of 
developer-constructed improvements, for which developers are given credit against their 
transportation impact fees.  
 

Table 23.  Potential Transportation Impact Fee Revenue 

New Vehicle-Miles of Travel (VMT), 2013-2023 35,863

x Net Cost per Vehicle-Mile of Travel (VMT) $138

Potential Revenue at 100%, 2013-2023 $4,949,094  
Source:  New VMT from Table 14; net cost per VMT from Table 20. 

 
Assuming that growth occurs as projected in the land use assumption, the Town plans to complete 
approximately $27.2 million in growth-related improvement to the major road system over the next 
ten years, as summarized in Table 24. Anticipated transportation impact fee revenues will cover 



Transportation 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 24 October 2, 2013 

approximately 18% of the Town’s cost of planned improvements if adopted at 100%.  The timing of 
individual improvements will be dependent on the pace and location of development that actually 
occurs, and not all of the planned improvements will necessarily be completed in the next ten years.  
Some portions of the improvements may be constructed by developers in return for credits against 
their impact fees.   
 

Table 24.  Transportation Capital Plan, 2013-2023 

Improvement Location Planned Improvement Town Cost

Tangerine Rd, Shannon Rd-La Canada Dr Widen to four lanes, drainage facilities, & landscaping $1,000,000

La Cholla Blvd, Tangerine Rd-Lambert Ln Widen to 4 lanes, drainage, landscaping, retaining walls $800,000

Shannon Rd, Tangerine Rd-Naranja Dr New three lane road $4,200,000

Lambert Ln, 0.5 mi. E of Shannon-Rancho Sonora Widen to four lanes, drainage facilities, & landscaping $17,280,000

Moore Rd, Yellow Orchard-Mystic View Construct two lanes of new road (north side) $1,440,000

Rancho Vistoso & Woodburne Intersection Traffic Signal $750,000

Oracle Rd & Rams Field Intersection Traffic Signal $750,000

Moore Rd La Cholla Blvd Intersection Traffic Signal $900,000

Transportation Fee Update Study Costs (2) Impact Fee Study $69,600

Total $27,189,600  
Source:  Planned improvements from Town of Oro Valley, July 3, 2013; study cost from Table 47. 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 25 October 2, 2013 

PARKS 

 
This section updates the Town’s park impact fees in compliance with the new Arizona impact fee 
enabling act for municipalities. 
 

Service Units 

 
The demand for Town park facilities is generated by people.  However, the use of population 
directly as the service unit would pose some issues, since a community’s total population includes 
people in group quarters (primarily nursing homes), who do not typically generate much demand for 
public park facilities.  A preferable service unit, for the purposes of park impact fees, is the single-
family Equivalent Dwelling Unit, or EDU.  A single-family detached unit is by definition one park 
service unit (equivalent dwelling unit or EDU).  The numbers of service units associated with other 
housing types are determined by dividing the average household size by the average household size 
of a single-family unit.  Average household size (the ratio of household population to occupied 
units) is preferable as the basis of the service unit to persons per unit (the ratio of household 
population to total units), because it eliminates the volatile factor of occupancy rates.  The resulting 
service unit multipliers are presented in Table 25. 
 

Table 25.  Park Service Unit Multipliers 

Avg. HH EDUs/

Housing Type Size    Unit   

Single-Family Detached 2.43 1.00

Multi-Family 1.69 0.70

Mobile Home 1.84 0.76  
Source:  Average household size (AHHS) from Table 43; EDUs 

per unit is ratio of AHHS to single-family detached AHHS. 

  
The number of service units in Oro Valley can be determined by multiplying the number of housing 
units by the service unit multipliers for each housing type and summing for all housing types.  
Existing and projected service units (EDUs) are calculated in Table 26. 
 

Table 26.  Park Service Units, 2013-2023 

Housing  EDUs/

Housing Type Units    Unit   EDUs  

Single-Family Detached 15,549 1.00 15,549

Multi-Family 5,429 0.70 3,800

Mobile Home 383 0.76 291

Total EDUs, 2013 21,361 19,640

Single-Family Detached 16,578 1.00 16,578

Multi-Family 5,788 0.70 4,052

Mobile Home 383 0.76 291

Total EDUs, 2023 22,749 20,921  
Source:  2013 and 2023 units from Table 8; EDUs per unit from Table 25. 

 
 
  



Parks 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 26 October 2, 2013 

Cost per Service Unit 

 
SB 1525 limits park impact fees to “neighborhood parks,” an undefined term that excludes parks 
larger than 30 acres in size, unless a larger park can be shown to provide a “direct benefit” to 
development.  SB 1525 also excludes a number of park improvements from being funded with park 
impact fees, including “that portion of any facility that is used for amusement parks, aquariums, 
aquatic centers, auditoriums, arenas, arts and cultural facilities, bandstand and orchestra facilities, 
bathhouses, boathouses, clubhouses, community centers greater than three thousand square feet in 
floor area, environmental education centers, equestrian facilities, golf course facilities, greenhouses, 
lakes, museums, theme parks, water reclamation or riparian areas, wetlands, zoo facilities or similar 
recreational facilities, but may include swimming pools.”   
 
In general, impact fees should be based on the current level of service being provided to existing 
development.  The inventory of existing eligible park facilities is provided below.  The replacement 
cost of existing facilities in the park service area can be determined based on current unit costs.  The 
total replacement value of eligible land and facilities is estimated to be about $16 million, as shown 
in Table 27.  
 

Table 27.  Existing Park Facilities 

West   Honey 

Canada Jame D. Lambert Bee   

Park Name del Oro Kriegh  Lane   Naranja Canyon Total Unit Cost Total Cost

Total Acres 30.0 20.0 40.0 213.0 77.0 380.0 n/a  n/a  

Eligible Acres 30.0 20.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 140.0 $49,000 $6,860,000

Eligible Developed Acres 30.0 20.0 0.2 8.0 58.2 $68,769 $4,002,356

Restrooms (lighted) 2 2 1 5 $215,000 $1,075,000

Playground (shaded) 1 1 2 $150,000 $300,000

Accessible Playground (shaded) 1 1 $150,000 $150,000

Covered Ramada (lighted) 3 1 4 $90,000 $360,000

Covered Ramada 2 2 $50,000 $100,000

Soccer Fields (lighted) 2 2 $210,000 $420,000

Softball Fields (lighted) 2 2 4 $250,000 $1,000,000

Baseball Fields (lighted) 3 3 $250,000 $750,000

Sand Volleyball 1 1 2 $25,000 $50,000

Horseshoe Pits 2 2 $1,000 $2,000

Concession Stand 1 1 2 $150,000 $300,000

Tennis Court (lighted) 1 1 $140,000 $140,000

Basketball Court (lighted) 1 1 $100,000 $100,000

Performance Stage 1 1 $50,000 $50,000

Walking Path 1 1 $54,400 $43,520

Raquetball Courts (lighted) 4 4 $50,000 $200,000

Dog Park 1 1 $150,000 $150,000

Archery Range (fixed) 1 1 $150,000 $150,000

Archery Range (walk around) 1 1 $75,000 $75,000

Total Replacement Cost $16,277,876  
Source:  Town of Oro Valley, March 25, 2013; eligible park acres limited to 30 acres of larger parks. 

 
  



Parks 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 27 October 2, 2013 

The existing level of service in the park service area can be expressed in terms of current cost per 
service unit.  Including the cost of impact fee update studies that will be required over the next ten 
years, the park cost per service unit is $856 per EDU, as shown in Table 28. 
 

Table 28.  Existing Park Cost per Service Unit 

Total Existing Eligible Park Capital Cost $16,277,876

÷ Total Existing Park Service Units 19,640

Direct Park Cost per Service Unit $829

Impact Fee Study Cost per Service Unit $27

Existing Park Cost per Service Unit $856  
Source:  Total park cost from Table 27; existing (2013) EDUs from 

Table 26; study cost from Table 47. 

 
 

Net Cost per Service Unit 

 
As noted in the Legal Framework section of this report, impact fees should be reduced (or “offset”) 
in order to account for other types of revenues that will be generated by new development and used 
to fund capacity-expanding improvements of the same type as those to be funded by the impact 
fees.  Cases in which such an offset is warranted include funding of existing deficiencies, outstanding 
debt payments on existing facilities, and dedicated revenue sources to fund growth-related 
improvements.   
 
The park impact fees calculated in this report are based on the existing level of service, so there are 
no existing deficiencies.  There is no outstanding debt for existing park facilities.  Other than impact 
fees, the Town has no dedicated source of revenue to fund growth-related park improvements.  The 
Town has not received any grant funding for park improvements in recent years, and does not 
anticipate any grants over the next ten years.  Consequently, no offsets against the park impact fees 
are warranted, and the net cost per service unit is the same as the cost per service unit calculated 
above. 
 

Potential Impact Fees 

 
The maximum park impact fees that may be adopted by the Town based on this study are the 
product of the number of service units generated by a unit of development and the net cost per 
service unit calculated above.  The resulting fee schedule is presented in Table 29.   
 

Table 29.  Park Net Cost Schedule 

EDUs/ Net Cost/ Net Cost/

Housing Type Unit Unit EDU Unit     

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 1.00 $856 $856

Multi-Family Dwelling 0.70 $856 $599

Mobile Home Park Space 0.76 $856 $651  
Source:  EDUs per unit from Table 25; net cost per EDU is cost per EDU from Table 28. 

 
The updated park fees are compared to current fees in Table 30.  The updated park fees are 
significantly higher than the current fees. 
  



Parks 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 28 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 30.  Current and Updated Park Impact Fees 

Current Updated Percent

Current Land Use Type Unit Fee    Fee     Change

Single-Family Detached Dwelling $555 $856 54%

Multi-Family Dwelling $336 $599 78%

Mobile Home Park Space $336 $651 94%  
Source:  Current fees from Town of Oro Valley, Development Fee Summary, July 1, 2012; 

updated fees from Table 29. 

 
 

Capital Plan 

 
Assuming that the updated fees are adopted at 100%, potential park impact fee revenue over the 
next ten years, based on new development anticipated by the land use assumptions, could be as 
much as $1.1 million, as shown in Table 31.   
 

Table 31.  Potential Park Impact Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 

New Park EDUs, 2013-2023 1,281

x Net Cost per EDU $856

Potential Revenue, 2013-2023 $1,096,536  
Source:  New EDUs from Table 26; net cost per EDU is cost per EDU from 

Table 28. 

 
Assuming that growth occurs as projected in the land use assumption, the Town plans to complete 
approximately $5 million in growth-related improvement to the park system over the next ten years, 
as summarized in Table 32. Anticipated park impact fee revenues will cover approximately 22% of 
the total cost of planned improvements. The timing of individual improvements will be dependent 
on the pace and location of development that actually occurs, and not all of the planned 
improvements will necessarily be completed in the next ten years.   
 

Table 32.  Park Capital Plan, 2013-2023 

Naranja Park Development - 30 acres $4,000,000

James D. Kriegh Park Expansion $1,000,000

Impact Fee Update Studies (2) $34,800

Total $5,025,000  
Source:  Planned park improvements, Town of Oro Valley, July 1, 2013; 

study cost from Table 47. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 29 October 2, 2013 

POLICE 

 
This section updates the Town’s police impact fees in compliance with the new Arizona impact fee 
enabling act for municipalities. 
 

Service Units 

 
Disparate types of development must be translated into a common unit of measurement that reflects 
the impact of new development on the demand for police facilities.  This unit of measurement is 
called a “service unit.”  The 2008 study used population as the residential service unit and vehicle 
trips as the nonresidential service unit, while allocating costs between residential and nonresidential 
land uses based on call volumes.  A problem with relying on call data is that it is unstable over time.  
This means that fees can go up or down significantly for individual land uses each time the fees are 
updated.   
 
The most commonly-used alternative to call data in police impact fees is based on a concept called 
“functional population.”  Similar to the concept of full-time equivalent employees, functional 
population represents the number of “full-time equivalent” people present at the site of a land use.  
Functional population represents the average number of equivalent persons present at the site of a 
land use for an entire 24-hour day.  For residential development, functional population is simply 
average household size times the percent of time people spend at home.  For nonresidential 
development, functional population is based on a formula that includes square foot per employee 
ratios, trip generation rates, average vehicle occupancy and average number of hours spent by 
employees and visitors at a land use.  These all tend to be stable characteristics that do not change 
significantly over short periods of time.  Functional population multipliers by land use are calculated 
in Appendix B. 
 
The number of police service units can be determined by multiplying the amount of existing 
development by the service unit multipliers for each land use type and summing for the area.  
Existing and projected service units (functional population) are calculated in Table 33 for the 2013-
2023 planning horizon. 
 

Table 33.  Police Service Units, 2013-2023 

Func. Pop.

Land Use Type Unit 2013  2023  per Unit   2013  2023  

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 15,549 16,578 1.63 25,345 27,022

Multi-Family Dwelling 5,429 5,788 1.13 6,135 6,540

Mobile Home Park Space 383 383 1.23 471 471

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq ft 1,892 2,406 2.35 4,446 5,654

Office 1,000 sq ft 588 837 0.82 482 686

Industrial 1,000 sq ft 1,277 1,399 0.34 434 476

Warehouse 1,000 sq ft 185 150 0.33 61 50

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq ft 938 1,430 0.62 582 887

Total Service Units (VMT) 37,956 41,786

         Units         Func. Population

 
Source:  2013 and 2023 units from Table 8; functional population per unit from Table 44 (residential) and 

Table 45 (nonresidential) in Appendix B. 

 
 



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 30 October 2, 2013 

Cost per Service Unit 

 
The cost per service unit to provide police protection to new development is based on the existing 
level of service provided to existing development.  The level of service is quantified as the ratio of 
the replacement cost of existing police capital facilities to existing police service units.  The 
inventory of the Town’s existing police facilities is provided in Table 34.  
 

Table 34.  Existing Police Facilities 

Building

Sq. Feet Acres

Main Police Station 15,165 1.58

Impound Facility n/a 0.55

Total 15,165 2.13  
Source:  Main police station data from Town of Oro Valley, April 

10, 2013 and Deutsch Associates, Town-Wide Space Needs 

Study, Phase I, May 16, 2007; impound facility acres from Town 

Police Department, April 2, 2013.. 

 
In addition to land and buildings, police services require vehicles and equipment.  The Town’s 
current police vehicles have a total replacement cost, based on current unit costs, of $4.21 million, as 
summarized in Table 35 on the following page. 
  



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 31 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 35.  Existing Police Vehicles 

Make Model Year Life  Repl. Cost Make Model Year Life Repl. Cost

Police Department - Field Operations Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 10 $49,500 Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 Toyota Camry 2012 6 $33,000

Toyota Tacoma 2007 8 $24,000 Police Department - Motorcycle

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 BMW R1150RT-P 2006 10 $26,000

Ford Expedition 2007 6 $48,000 BMW R1150RT-P 2006 10 $26,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2007 10 $27,000

Ford Crown Vic 2007 6 $48,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2007 10 $27,000

Dodge Magnum 2007 8 $51,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2007 10 $27,000

Ford Crown Vic 2005 7 $48,000 BMW R1150RT-P 2004 9 $25,000

Ford F250 4x4 2006 8 $48,000 BMW R1150RT-P 2004 9 $25,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2009 8 $27,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 BMW R1200RT-P 2009 8 $27,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000  BMW R1200RT-P 2009 10 $28,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 Police Department - Support Services

Ford Crown Vic 2008 6 $49,500 Toyota Camry 2007 8 $30,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000   Ford Taurus 2004 9 $25,500

Ford Crown Vic 2008 6 $49,500  Dodge Van 2007 10 $34,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 Ford Crown Vic 2005 12 $52,500

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000 Ford Crown Vic 2005 8 $48,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 Ford Crown Vic 2005 8 $48,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 8 $51,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 7 $48,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 8 $49,500

Ford F350 4x4 2008 10 $52,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 9 $51,000

Ford Crown Vic 2008 5 $48,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 9 $51,000

Toyota Camry 2007 7 $27,000 Ford Crown Vic 2006 7 $48,000

Nissan Altima 2005 8 $25,500 Ford Crown Vic 2006 8 $49,500

Toyota Camry 2006 7 $25,500 Toyota Camry 2006 10 $31,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 7 $51,000 Toyota Camry 2006 10 $31,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Ford E250 Van 2006 8 $34,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 5 $49,500 Dodge Peace Keeper 1986 40 $100,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 5 $49,500 Toyota Camry 2003 13 $31,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Toyota Camry 2003 10 $25,500

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Nissan Altima 2004 10 $30,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Ford E150 8 Pass 2001 15 $38,000

Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000 Ford E150 8 Pass 2001 15 $38,000

Toyota Camry 2009 8 $32,000 Ford Motor Home 1999 20 $200,000

Ford Expedition 2008 6 $52,000 Toyota Camry 2008 7 $31,000

Ford Crown Vic 2011 6 $52,500 Ford F250 4x4 2008 10 $53,000

Ford Crown Vic 2011 6 $52,500 Chevrolet Silverado 2007 8 $25,000

Ford Crown Vic 2011 6 $52,500 Ford Crown Vic 2009 6 $51,000

Nissan Maxima 2005 10 $31,000 Chrysler Chrysler 300 2006 7 $25,500

Ford Crown Vic 2011 6 $52,500 Pontiac Van LUX 2003 12 $32,000

Chevrolet Silverado 2007 10 $30,000 Police Department - Courts

Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000 Ford E250 Cargo 2001 15 $35,000

Chevrolet Tahoe 4x4 2012 6 $57,500 Police Department - Professional Development

Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000 Dodge Van 2007 12 $35,000

Chevrolet Tahoe 2012 6 $55,000 Total $4,210,000  
Source:  Town of Oro Valley Fleet Management Schedule, March 19, 2013. 

 

duncaniassociates 



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 32 October 2, 2013 

The replacement cost of existing facilities can be determined based on current unit costs.  The total 
replacement value of existing police land and facilities is estimated to be about $6.9 million, as 
shown in Table 36.  The resulting police cost per service unit is $190 per functional population. 
 

Table 36.  Police Cost per Service Unit 

Units  Cost/Unit Total Cost

Building Square Feet 15,165 $143 $2,166,429

Acres of Land 2.13 $199,367 $424,652

Vehicles n/a n/a $4,210,000

Impound Facility Improvements n/a n/a $84,000

Total Replacement Cost $6,885,081

– Outstanding Debt on MOC Impound Facility Land -$106,256

Net Replacement Cost $6,778,825

÷ Existing Functional Population 37,956

Direct Cost per Functional Population $181

Study Cost per Functional Population $9

Total Cost per Functional Population $190  
Source:  Building sq. ft. and acres from Table 34; cost per square foot from Town of Oro 

Valley Police Department, March 14, 2013 based on cost of planned property and 

evidence facility; cost per acre is actual cost per acre for 2005 MOC land purchase from 

Town of Oro Valley, March 19, 2013; outstanding debt on police MOC land is ratio of 

acres for police impound facility from Table 34 to total 23.7 acre purchase times 

outstanding debt of $4,580,000 prior to July 1, 2013 payment from Town of Oro Valley, 

March 20, 2013; existing (2013) functional population from Table 33; study cost per 

service unit from Table 47. 

 
 

Net Cost per Service Unit 

 
As noted in the Legal Framework section of this report, impact fees should be reduced (or “offset”) 
in order to account for other types of revenues that will be generated by new development and used 
to fund capacity-expanding improvements of the same type as those to be funded by the impact 
fees.  Cases in which such an offset is warranted include funding of existing deficiencies, outstanding 
debt payments on existing facilities, and dedicated revenue sources to fund growth-related 
improvements.   
 
The police impact fees calculated in this report are based on the existing level of service, so there are 
no existing deficiencies.  The Town’s only outstanding debt for existing police facilities is the small 
portion of the Municipal Operations Center land that was purchased with 2006 bonds.  The 
outstanding debt related to that land used for the existing impound facility has already been excluded 
from the cost per service unit, and no further offset is warranted.  Other than impact fees, the Town 
has no dedicated source of revenue to fund growth-related police improvements.  The Town has not 
received any grant funding for police improvements in recent years, and does not anticipate any 
grants over the next ten years.  Given that no offsets against the police impact fees are required, the 
net cost per service unit is the same as the cost per service unit calculated above. 
  



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 33 October 2, 2013 

 

Potential Impact Fees 

 
The maximum police impact fees that may be adopted by the Town based on this study is the 
product of the number of service units generated by a unit of development and the net cost per 
service unit calculated above.  The resulting fee schedule is presented in Table 37.   
 

Table 37.  Police Net Cost Schedule 

Func. Pop./ Net Cost/ Net Cost/

Land Use Type Unit Unit Func. Pop. Unit     

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 1.63 $190 $310

Multi-Family Dwelling 1.13 $190 $215

Mobile Home Park Space 1.23 $190 $234

Hotel/Motel Room 1.05 $190 $200

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq. ft. 2.35 $190 $447

Office 1,000 sq. ft. 0.82 $190 $156

Industrial 1,000 sq. ft. 0.34 $190 $65

Warehouse 1,000 sq. ft. 0.33 $190 $63

Public/Instititional 1,000 sq. ft. 0.62 $190 $118  
Source:  Functional population per unit from Table 44 and Table 45 in Appendix B; net cost 

per functional population is cost per functional population from Table 36. 

 
The updated police fees are compared to current fees in Table 38.  The updated fees are slightly 
higher than current fees for residential uses, and are significantly higher for nonresidential uses. 
 

Table 38.  Current and Updated Police Impact Fees 

Current Updated Percent

Current Land Use Type Unit Fee    Fee    Change

Single-Family Dwelling $296 $310 5%

All Other Housing Dwelling $176 $215 22%

Lodging Room $14 $200 1329%

Commercial, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $146 $447 206%

Commercial, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $126 $447 255%

Commercial, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $105 $447 326%

Commercial, 100,001-200,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $91 $447 391%

Commercial, >200,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $76 $447 488%

Office/Institutional, 25,000 sf or less 1,000 sq. ft. $43 $156 263%

Office/Institutional, 25,001-50,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $37 $156 322%

Office/Institutional, 50,001-100,000 sf 1,000 sq. ft. $32 $156 388%

Office/Institutional, 100,000 sf+ 1,000 sq. ft. $27 $156 478%

Business Park 1,000 sq. ft. $30 $156 420%

Light Industrial 1,000 sq. ft. $16 $65 306%

Manufacturing 1,000 sq. ft. $9 $65 622%

Warehousing 1,000 sq. ft. $12 $63 425%  
Source:  Current fees from Town of Oro Valley, Development Fee Utilization Report, FY 2011-2012, September 

25, 2012; updated fees from Table 37. 

 
 

  



Police 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 34 October 2, 2013 

Capital Plan 

 
Assuming that the updated fees are adopted at 100%, potential police impact fee revenue over the 
next ten years, based on new development anticipated by the land use assumptions, could be as 
much as $0.7 million, as shown in Table 39.     
 

Table 39.  Potential Police Impact Fee Revenue, 2013-2023 

New Functional Population, 2013-2023 3,830

x Net Cost per Functional Population $190

Potential Revenue, 2013-2023 $727,700  
Source:  New functional population from Table 33; net cost per functional 

population is total cost per functional population from Table 36. 

 
Assuming that growth occurs as projected in the land use assumption, the Town plans to complete 
approximately $2.2 million in growth-related police improvements over the next ten years, as 
summarized in Table 40. Anticipated police impact fee revenues would cover approximately 33% of 
the total cost of planned improvements. The timing of individual improvements will be dependent 
on the pace and location of development that actually occurs, and not all of the planned 
improvements will necessarily be completed in the next ten years.  Some of the improvements may 
be constructed by developers in return for credits against their impact fees.   
 

Table 40.  Police Capital Plan, 2013-2023 

Property and Evidence Facility $1,000,000

South Police Substation $1,200,000

Impact Fee Update Studies (2) $34,800

Total $2,225,000  
Source:  Planned projects and estimated costs from Town Police 

Department, July 3, 2013; study cost from Table 47. 

 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 35 October 2, 2013 

APPENDIX A:  AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD SIZE 

 
A key input into impact fee analysis is the average number of people residing in different types of 
dwelling units. This statistic, known as average household size, is the ratio of household population 
to households (which is the same as occupied dwelling units). 
 
The most reliable data on average household size comes from the decennial census counts.  
Unfortunately, these 100%-count data are only available for all housing units, with no distinction by 
housing type.  Overall, there was a 4.6% decline in Oro Valley between the 2000 and 2010 census in 
the average size of a household (ratio of household population to occupied units), as shown in Table 
41. 
 

Table 41.  Average Household Size, 2000 and 2010 

Household Occupied Avg. HH

Population Units    Size   

2010 Census 40,943 17,804 2.30

2000 Census 29,541 12,249 2.41

AHHS Ratio: 2010/2000 0.954  
Source:  2000 and 2010 U.S. Census for Oro Valley, AZ, SF1 data (100% 

counts). 

 
The 2000 census provided data on average household size by housing type for a 1-in-6 sample 
(about 17%).  Those data are shown in Table 42.  Household population and occupied units are 
weighted estimates designed to approximate the 100% counts.   
 

Table 42.  Average Household Size by Housing Type, 2000 

Household Occupied Avg. HH

Housing Type Population Units    Size   

Single-Family Detached 25,025 9,814 2.55

Multi-Family 4,064 2,298 1.77

Mobile Home 435 225 1.93

Total 29,524 12,337 2.39  
Source:  2000 U.S. Census for Oro Valley, AZ, SF3 data (1-in-6 sample) 

 
An estimate of current average household size by housing type starts with the data from the 2000 
census.  The average household sizes from the 2000 census are adjusted downward for all housing 
types by the overall decline, as shown in Table 43. 
  

Table 43.  Current Average Household Size by Housing Type 

2000   2010/2000 2010   

Housing Type AHHS  Ratio    AHHS  

Single-Family Detached 2.55 0.954 2.43

Multi-Family 1.77 0.954 1.69

Mobile Home 1.93 0.954 1.84  
Source:  2000 average household size (AHHS) by housing type from Table 42; 

2010/2000 ratio from Table 41; 2010 AHHS by housing type is product of 2000 

AHHS and ratio. 

 
 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 36 October 2, 2013 

APPENDIX B:  FUNCTIONAL POPULATION 

 
The two most common methodologies used in calculating public safety service units and impact fees 
are the “calls-for-service” approach and the “functional population” approach.  This update utilizes 
the “functional population” approach to calculate and assess the police impact fees.  This approach 
is a generally-accepted methodology for these impact fee types and is based on the observation that 
demand for public safety facilities tends to be proportional to the presence of people at a particular 
site.   
 
Functional population is analogous to the concept of “full-time equivalent” employees.  It 
represents the number of “full-time equivalent” people present at the site of a land use, and it is 
used for the purpose of determining the impact of a particular development on the need for 
facilities.  For residential development, functional population is simply average household size times 
the percent of time people spend at home.  For nonresidential development, functional population 
is based on a formula that factors in trip generation rates, average vehicle occupancy, employee 
density and average number of hours spent by employees and visitors at a land use.   
 

Residential Functional Population 

 
For residential land uses, the impact of a dwelling unit on the need for police capital facilities is 
generally proportional to the number of persons residing in the dwelling unit.  This can be measured 
for different housing types in terms of either average household size (average number of persons per 
occupied dwelling unit) or persons per unit (average number of persons per dwelling unit, including 
vacant as well as occupied units).  In this analysis, average household size is used to develop the 
functional population multipliers, as it avoids the need to make assumptions about occupancy rates. 
 
Determining residential functional population multipliers is considerably simpler than the 
nonresidential component.  It is estimated that people, on average, spend 16 hours, or 67 percent, of 
each 24-hour day at their place of residence and the other 33 percent away from home.  A similar 
approach is used for the hotel/motel category.  The functional population per unit for these uses is 
shown in Table 44.   
 

Table 44.  Functional Population per Unit for Residential Uses 

Average Occupancy Func. Pop.

Housing Type Unit HH Size Factor    per Unit  

Single-Family Detached Dwelling 2.43 0.67 1.63

Multi-Family Dwelling 1.69 0.67 1.13

Mobile Home Dwelling 1.84 0.67 1.23

Hotel/Motel Room 1.57 0.67 1.05  
Source:  Average household size for dwelling units from Table 43; hotel/motel room occupancy 

based on one-half of average vehicle occupancy on vacation trips from U.S. Department of 

Transportation, National Household Travel Survey, 2009.   

 
 

Nonresidential Functional Population 

 
The functional population methodology for nonresidential land uses is based on trip generation data 
utilized in developing the transportation demand schedule prepared for the updated transportation 
impact fees.  Functional population per 1,000 square feet is derived by dividing the total number of 



Appendix B:  Functional Population 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 37 October 2, 2013 

hours spent by employees and visitors during a weekday by 24 hours. Employees are estimated to 
spend 8 hours per day at their place of employment, and visitors are estimated to spend one hour 
per visit. The formula used to derive the nonresidential functional population estimates is 
summarized in Figure 4. 
 

Figure 4.  Nonresidential Functional Population Formula 

FUNCPOP/UNIT = (employee hours/1000 sf + visitor hours/1000 sf) ÷ 24 hours/day

Where:

Employee hours/1000 sf = employees/1000 sf x 8 hours/day

Visitor hours/1000 sf = visitors/1000 sf x 1 hour/visit

Visitors/1000 sf = weekday ADT/1000 sf x avg. vehicle occupancy – employees/1000 sf

Weekday ADT/1000 sf = one-way avg. daily trips (total trip ends ÷ 2)

 
Using this formula and information on trip generation rates, vehicle occupancy rates from the 
National Household Travel Survey and other sources and assumptions, nonresidential functional 
population estimates per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area are calculated in Table 45.   
 

Table 45.  Functional Population per Unit for Nonresidential Uses 

Trip Persons/ Employee/ Visitors/ Func. Pop./

Land Use Unit Rate Trip Unit Unit    Unit      

Retail/Commercial 1,000 sq. ft. 21.47 1.96 2.04 40.04 2.35

Office 1,000 sq. ft. 5.51 1.24 1.82 5.01 0.82

Industrial 1,000 sq. ft. 1.91 1.24 0.82 1.55 0.34

Warehouse 1,000 sq. ft. 1.78 1.24 0.82 1.39 0.33

Public/Institutional 1,000 sq. ft. 3.79 1.86 1.11 5.94 0.62  
Source: Trip rates from Table 13; persons/trip is average vehicle occupancy from Federal Highway Administration, 

Nationwide Household Travel Survey, 2009; employees/unit from Table 7; visitors/unit is trips times persons/trip minus 

employees/unit; functional population/unit calculated based on formula in Figure 4. 

 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 38 October 2, 2013 

APPENDIX C:  REVENUE FORECAST 

 
SB 1525 requires that the infrastructure improvements plan include (Section 9-463.05.E.7): 
 

A forecast of revenues generated by new service units other than development fees, which shall include 
estimated state-shared revenue, highway users revenue, federal revenue, ad valorem property taxes, construction 
contracting or similar excise taxes and the capital recovery portion of utility fees attributable to development 
based on the approved land use assumptions, and a plan to include these contributions in determining the 
extent of the burden imposed by the development as required in subsection B, paragraph 12 of this section. 

 
The total revenues from these sources that can be attributed to new development over the next ten 
years are summarized in Table 46.  However, most of this revenue will be used for ongoing 
operations and maintenance purposes.   
 
Only revenue generated by new development that is dedicated to growth-related capital 
improvements needs to be considered in determining the extent of the burden imposed by new 
development.  As discussed in greater detail in the Legal Framework section, offsets against impact 
fees are warranted in the following cases:  (a) new development will be paying taxes or fees used to 
retire debt on existing facilities serving existing development; (b) new development will be paying 
taxes or fees used to fund an existing deficiency, (c) new development will be paying taxes or fees 
that are dedicated to be used for growth-related improvements, or (d) excess construction sales tax.   
 
The analyses provided in the legal framework, transportation, parks and police sections of this 
report have identified that the only need for offsets is against the transportation impact fees for 
future Federal and State funding for major road improvements and excess construction sales tax.  
The reasons for this conclusion are, in the order listed above, as follows. 
 
(a) The Town has no debt for past capacity-expanding transportation or park facilities.  The 
only Town debt for police facilities is for the portion of the Municipal Operations Center that is 
used for the new police impound facility.  That debt has been excluded from the value of existing 
police facilities on which the existing level of service and the impact fees are based; consequently, no 
additional offsets for future contributions from new development to retire that debt are warranted. 
 
(b) The transportation, parks and police impact fees are all calculated on the basis of the 
existing, system-wide level of service (actually, a lower level of service in the case of transportation 
impact fees).  Consequently, there are no existing deficiencies, and no offsets for deficiencies are 
warranted. 
 
(c) The only funding the Town has that is dedicated to capacity-expanding capital 
improvements is future regional funding for major road improvements.  An offset against the 
transportation impact fees is provided for anticipated future regional funding. 
 
(d) The Town appears to assess an excess construction sales tax as defined by State law, and the 
offset is provided against the transportation impact fee. 
 
Revenues that will be generated by new development and dedicated for eligible capital 
improvements are identified in Table 46.   



Appendix C:  Revenue Forecast 

 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 39 October 2, 2013 

 
Table 46.  Revenue Attributable to New Development, 2013-2023 

FY 2014  FY 2015  FY 2016  FY 2017  FY 2018  

Local Sales Tax $1,096,969 $1,231,211 $1,358,745 $1,490,825 $1,623,419

Licenses & Permits $15,819 $35,468 $44,929 $56,419 $64,464

State & Federal Grants $22,097 $39,419 $65,679 $87,949 $110,447

State Shared Revenues $102,311 $211,659 $329,397 $446,438 $567,336

Other Intergovernmental $318 $629 $934 $1,232 $1,524

Charges for Services $15,289 $30,290 $44,964 $59,337 $73,417

Fines $2,013 $3,983 $5,912 $7,802 $9,653

Interest Income $660 $1,363 $2,063 $2,777 $3,505

Miscellaneous $1,208 $2,411 $3,578 $4,722 $5,843

Bed Tax General Fund Alloc. $1,960 $3,878 $5,757 $7,597 $9,399

Total Growth Revenues $1,258,644 $1,560,311 $1,861,958 $2,165,098 $2,469,007

State/Federal Highway Funds $22,097 $39,419 $65,679 $87,949 $110,447

Excess Construction Sales Tax $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $968,220

Total Dedicated Growth Revenues $990,317 $1,007,639 $1,033,899 $1,056,169 $1,078,667

FY 2019  FY 2020  FY 2021  FY 2022  FY 2023  Total      

Local Sales Tax $1,106,623 $1,245,753 $1,385,654 $1,526,368 $1,667,939 $13,733,506

Licenses & Permits $70,718 $75,430 $78,822 $81,088 $82,404 $605,561

State & Federal Grants $133,165 $156,112 $179,296 $202,725 $226,425 $1,223,314

State Shared Revenues $692,206 $821,183 $954,405 $1,092,015 $1,234,250 $6,451,200

Other Intergovernmental $1,811 $2,091 $2,367 $2,636 $2,901 $16,443

Charges for Services $87,215 $100,737 $113,993 $126,990 $139,746 $791,978

Fines $11,468 $13,246 $14,989 $16,698 $18,375 $104,139

Interest Income $4,247 $5,003 $5,775 $6,562 $7,365 $39,320

Miscellaneous $6,941 $8,017 $9,072 $10,106 $11,122 $63,020

Bed Tax General Fund Alloc. $11,166 $12,897 $14,594 $16,258 $17,891 $101,397

Total Growth Revenues $2,125,560 $2,440,469 $2,758,967 $3,081,446 $3,408,418 $23,129,878

State/Federal Highway Funds $133,165 $156,112 $179,296 $202,725 $226,425 $1,223,314

Excess Construction Sales Tax $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $968,220 $9,682,200

Total Dedicated Growth Revenues $1,101,385 $1,124,332 $1,147,516 $1,170,945 $1,194,645 $10,905,514  
Source:  Based on FY 2014-FY 2018 revenue forecasts from Town of Oro Valley Finance Department, April 24, 2013, with revenue 

forecasts for FY 2019-FY 2023 based on FY 2017-FY 2018 revenue growth; total growth revenues based on growth share of total 

transportation service units from Table 14 (assuming linear growth in VMT between 2013 and 2023); sales tax based on annual growth 

in transportation service units and construction sales tax per service unit estimated at $270 per VMT; excess construction sales tax 

based on annual growth in transportation service units and excess construction sales tax per service unit from Table 19.  

 
 



 
 

 

Town of Oro Valley, AZ public review draft 

Non-Utility Impact Fee Update 40 October 2, 2013 

APPENDIX D:  UPDATE STUDY COST 

 
According to State law, impact fees may be used to pay for the costs of “professional services 
required for the preparation or revision of a development fee” (Sec. 9-463.05.A, ARS).  This impact 
fee study cost the Town $69,600 for the update of the transportation, park and police impact fees.  
Since SB 1525 requires impact fees to be updated every five years, two additional studies will be 
required over the next ten years.  Dividing the 10-year cost of the required update studies for each 
facility by the new EDUs projected over the next ten years results in the following study costs per 
service unit. 

 

Table 47.  Update Study Cost per Service Unit 

Cost/  Updates 10-Year New Service Cost per  

Type of Fee Share Update Required Cost   Units       Serv. Unit

Transportation 50% $34,800 2 $69,600 35,863 $2

Park 25% $17,400 2 $34,800 1,281 $27

Police 25% $17,400 2 $34,800 3,830 $9

Total 100% $69,600 $139,200 na na  
Source:  Shares estimated by Duncan Associates; total update cost is actual cost of this impact fee study 

update; other update costs based on shares; updates required based on State law requirement that fees be 

updated at least every five years;  new service units from Table 14 (transportation), Table 26 (parks) and Table 33 

(police); cost per service unit is 10-year cost times new service units. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PUBL I C REVI EW DRA FT  

Oro Valley Water Utility 
Development Impact Fees Study 

 

 

 

October 2013 

Prepared for 

 

 

Prepared by 

 

1840 E. River Road, Suite 200  
 Tucson, Arizona



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  II 

Contents 

Executive Summary ...................................................................................................................... ES-1 

1.0 Introduction ......................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.1 Objectives ................................................................................................................. 1-1 
1.2 Background ............................................................................................................. 1-1 

1.2.1 Water Utility Policies ................................................................................ 1-2 
1.2.2 Structure of Funds ..................................................................................... 1-2 

1.3 Impact Fee Methodologies .................................................................................... 1-3 

2.0 Legal Framework ................................................................................................................ 2-1 
2.1 Necessary Public Services ..................................................................................... 2-1 
2.2 Service Area ............................................................................................................. 2-2 
2.3 Land Use Assumptions.......................................................................................... 2-4 
2.4 Changes in Growth and Development ................................................................ 2-5 
2.5 Credits ...................................................................................................................... 2-5 

3.0 Infrastructure Improvements Plan .................................................................................. 3-1 
3.1 Description of Existing Necessary Public Services ............................................ 3-1 
3.2 Service Unit Characteristics .................................................................................. 3-2 
3.3 Projected Service Units .......................................................................................... 3-3 
3.4 Projected Water Demands ..................................................................................... 3-3 
3.5 Analysis of Excess Available Capacity ................................................................ 3-4 

3.5.1 Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity .................... 3-4 
3.5.2 Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity ................................ 3-5 

3.6 Description of Infrastructure Attributable to New Development ................... 3-6 
3.6.1 Alternative Water Resources Expansion Projects ................................. 3-7 
3.6.2 Potable Water System Expansion Projects ............................................. 3-7 

3.7 Forecast of Non-Development Impact Fee Revenue ......................................... 3-8 
3.8 Interest Charges and Finance Costs ..................................................................... 3-8 
3.9 Subfund Accounting .............................................................................................. 3-8 
3.10 Summary and Conclusions ................................................................................... 3-9 

4.0 Determination of Development Impact Fees ................................................................ 4-1 
4.1 Proposed Development Impact Fees Schedule .................................................. 4-2 

Tables 

ES-1 Existing and Proposed Development Impact Fees ...................................................... ES-1 
2-1 Service Area Land Use Assumptions ............................................................................... 2-5 
3-1 Oro Valley Water Utility Service Unit Characteristics and Capacity Factors ............. 3-3 
3-2 Projected Annual Growth in Number of Service Units ................................................. 3-3 
3-3 Projected Potable Water Demands .................................................................................... 3-4 
3-4 Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity ................ 3-5 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  III 

3-5 Water Facilities - Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity............................ 3-6 
3-6 Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Expansion Projects ............................ 3-7 
3-7 Water Facilities - Potable Water System Expansion Projects ........................................ 3-7 
4-1 Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Infrastructure Summary ................... 4-1 
4-2 Water Facilities - Potable Water System Infrastructure Summary ............................... 4-2 
4-3 Alternative Water System Development Impact Fee Schedule .................................... 4-3 
4-4 Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Schedule ........................................... 4-4 
4-5 Comparison of Existing and Proposed AWRDIF and PWSDIF ................................... 4-5 

Figures 

2-1 Water Service Area Map ..................................................................................................... 2-3 

Appendices 

Appendix A: Water Utility Service Area Map   

Appendix B: Excess Available Capacity Tables 
  B-1  Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity 
  B-2  Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity 

Appendix C: Alternative Water Resources Expansion Related Projects 
  C-1 Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee  
   Project Descriptions 
  C-2 Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Projects Map 

Appendix D:  Potable Water System Expansion Related Projects 
  D-1 Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions 
  D-2 Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Projects Map 

Appendix E: Expansion Related Capital Improvements 
E-1 Alternative Water Resources Expansion Related  

Capital Improvements 
  E-2 Potable Water System Expansion Related Capital Improvements 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  ES-1 

Executive Summary 

The Town of Oro Valley Water Utility (Water Utility) contracted with CH2M HILL to 
prepare this development impact fee study in order to comply with recent amendments to 
the Arizona Revised Statutes, which require existing impact fee programs in Arizona to be 
replaced with new fees prior to August 1, 2014.1   

Based on CH2M HILL’s review and analysis of the Water Utility’s customer characteristics, 
growth projections, and capital improvements plan projects and costs, adjustments are 
proposed to the existing Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee (AWRDIF) 
and Potable Water System Development Impact Fee (PWSDIF).  Adjustments to the Water 
Utility’s existing development impact fees are provided in Table ES-1 for the base (5/8-inch) 
meter size and for a multifamily unit. 

TABLE ES-1 

Existing and Proposed Development Impact Fees 

Customer 
Class 

Existing 
AWRDIF 

Proposed 
AWRDIF 

Percent 
Variance 

Existing 
PWSDIF 

Proposed 
PWSDIF 

Percent 
Variance 

Net 
Change 

Single Family 
(5/8-inch meter) 

$4,982 $4,045 -19% $2,567 $2,015 -22% -20% 

Multi-Family  
(per unit) 

$2,390 $1,941 -19% $1,230 $967 -21% -20% 

Commercial  
(5/8-inch meter) 

$4,982 $5,258 6% $4,110 $2,619 -36% -13% 

Irrigation 
(5/8-inch meter) 

$4,982 $7,280 46% $4,360 $3,626 -17% 17% 

  

The proposed development impact fees would result in decreases across all customer classes 
with the exception of the commercial and industrial AWRDIF and the irrigation AWRDIF.  
On a combined basis, the net change in proposed Water Utility development impact fees 
would be a decrease for all customer classes except irrigation, which would increase 17 
percent.  The complete schedule of AWRDIF and PWSDIF fees is provided in Section 4 of 
this report. 

 

                                                           
1 Arizona Revised Statutes §9-463.05(K) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  1-1 

1.0 Introduction 

Recent amendments to ARS §9-463.05 require existing impact fee programs in Arizona to be 
replaced with fees adopted under the new statute by August 1, 2014.2  The Town of Oro 
Valley Water Utility (Water Utility) retained CH2M HILL to assist with its update to the 
Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee (AWRDIF) and Potable Water 
System Development Impact Fee (PWSDIF) in order to meet the August 2014 deadline.  This 
report contains CH2M HILL’s findings and recommendations for both the AWRDIF and 
PWSDIF.  The development impact fee analysis and the associated infrastructure 
improvements plan (IIP) span a 10-year period beginning in year 2014 and ending in year 
2023 – hereinafter referred to as the study period.   

Calculations throughout this report are based on analysis conducted using Microsoft Excel® 
software. Calculation results may use rounded figures, but the analysis itself uses figures 
carried to their ultimate decimal places. As such, the sums and products generated in the 
analysis may not equal the sum or product if the reader replicates the calculation with the 
factors shown in the report due to the rounding. 

1.1 Objectives 

The objectives of the analysis were to develop fair and equitable impact fees that recover the 
average cost to construct a unit of capacity for a customer connecting to the Water Utility 
system, and to comply with Town policies, Arizona State Statutes, and impact fee case law. 

1.2 Background 

Development impact fees in Arizona must meet the requirements of the Arizona Revised 
Statutes (ARS §9-463.05, as amended) and impact fee case law, namely the rational nexus 
criterion.  The rational nexus criterion in essence means that development impact fees must 
be administered in a nondiscriminatory manner and must bear a reasonable and 
proportionate relationship to the burden imposed upon the municipality to provide 
additional necessary public facilities.   

While the most recent changes in ARS §9-463.05 tightened the standards for demonstrating 
compliance with the rational nexus test, the underlying purpose and intent of the law 
remains the same - that development impact fees should reflect the average cost to construct 
a unit of capacity required to serve new development. Based on our review and analysis of 
the Water Utility’s customer characteristics, growth projections, and capital improvements 
plan projects and costs, CH2M HILL designed the PWSDIF and AWRDIF to recover the 
average cost of Water Utility infrastructure required to serve a new customer.  

                                                           
2 Arizona Revised Statutes §9-463.05(K) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  1-2 

This development impact fee analysis follows and makes frequent reference to the recently 
amended ARS §9-463.05.  The requirements defined in this statute include a detailed 
analysis of the land use and growth assumptions, level of service, and infrastructure 
required to serve new growth. 

1.2.1 Water Utility Policies 

The Town of Oro Valley Water Policies establish “the Valley Water Utility as a financially 
self-supporting enterprise.”3  As such, all costs associated with the operation of the Water 
Utility are funded from revenues derived from the sale of water and other water-related 
income sources, including development impact fees.  Furthermore, “water revenues in 
excess of operating needs of the Water Utility shall be carried forward for future operating 
or future bond funding requirements and shall not be transferred to the Town’s General 
Fund.”4 

1.2.2 Structure of Funds 

The Water Utility manages three separate funds; the Operating Fund, the AWRDIF Fund, 
and the PWSDIF Fund. Each fund is briefly discussed below: 

 Operating Fund - The primary fund for the Utility which includes management of O&M 
and labor expenditures for the potable and reclaimed water systems, and non-growth 
capital expenditures related to the existing water system. Revenue for this fund is 
generated through potable and reclaimed water sales, service fees and charges, 
groundwater preservation fees, investment income, and other miscellaneous revenue.  

 AWRDIF Fund – This fund includes capital expenditures related to alternative water 
resource projects such as Central Arizona Project (CAP), and the related debt service. 
Revenue for this fund is generated from impact fees collected at the time new water 
meters are purchased, and interest income on AWRDIF fund cash reserves.  

 PWSDIF Fund – This fund includes capital expenditures related to expansion or growth 
projects for the potable water system and related debt service.  Revenue for this fund is 
generated through impact fees collected when new water meters are purchased and 
through interest income on PWSDIF fund cash reserves.  

Revenues and expenses from these funds are segregated and managed separately. The 
forecasted impact fee revenue generated for the AWRDIF and PWSDIF Funds are based on 
the growth projections and the proposed impact fees described herein.  Development 
impact fee revenue is restricted to pay for new infrastructure and water acquisitions to serve 
future customers only. 

                                                           
3 Town of Oro Valley Mayor and Town Council Water Policies, Adopted October 23, 1996, as amended. 

4 Ibid, Section II, A.1.c. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  1-3 

1.3 Impact Fee Methodologies 

For the purposes of the AWRDIF and PWSDIF development, CH2M HILL evaluated 
industry-standard impact fee calculation methodologies defined by the American Water 
Works Association (AWWA) M1 Manual “Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges” These 
methods include: 

 Equity Buy-In method 

 Incremental Cost method  

 Hybrid method 

The goal of the equity buy-in method is to achieve an equity position between new and 
existing customers of the system.  This approach is best suited for existing facilities that 
have been oversized and have excess capacity available.  It utilizes the original cost of 
existing assets, escalated to current value using a standard cost index such as Engineering 
News-Record Construction Cost Index. Adjustments are made to account for outstanding 
debt, developer contributions, and accumulated depreciation. The resulting estimate of 
current system equity is divided by the number of system service units (SUs) connected to 
the system to compute an average cost per SU. 

The incremental cost method assigns to new development the incremental cost of system 
expansion needed to serve new development.  This approach is best suited for communities 
that have limited existing capacity, and have prepared detailed growth-related capital 
project plans and acquisition plans.  The cost of recently completed and proposed projects, 
including interest and financing costs, for a specified time frame (i.e., 10 years per Arizona 
State Statutes) is divided by the number of equivalent customers that will be served by the 
additional capital projects to compute an average cost per SU.  

Incremental average costs per SU may be additive for separate infrastructure components or 
may be combined on a weighted-average basis for similar infrastructure components.   

The hybrid method applies principles from both methods and is appropriate where some 
existing reserve capacity for growth is available and new capacity is planned.   

CH2M HILL primarily utilized the incremental cost method to compute both the AWRDIF 
and PWSDIF using both recently-completed and proposed infrastructure projects as the 
basis for the incremental average cost per SU calculation. 

 

 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-1 

2.0 Legal Framework 

2.1 Necessary Public Services 

Recent amendments to ARS §9-463.05 include a new definition of “necessary public 
services” for which development impact fees may be assessed.  “Necessary public service” 
means facilities that have a life expectancy of 3 or more years and that are owned and 
operated by or on behalf of the municipality.  For the purpose of the Water Utility, 
necessary public services include: 

“Water facilities, including the supply, transportation, treatment, purification, and 
distribution of water, and any appurtenances to those facilities.” 5 

CH2M HILL designed the PWSDIF and AWRDIF to include the infrastructure components 
defined in statute, as further described below: 

 Water Facilities 

- Supply – means infrastructure related to sources of supply, including but not limited 
to groundwater and CAP water, and any appurtenances and engineering services 
related to such water supply facilities. 

- Transportation – means infrastructure related to the transportation, pumping, and 
storage of water, and any appurtenances to such facilities. 

- Treatment – means infrastructure related to water treatment and any appurtenances 
and engineering services related to such facilities.   Oro Valley does not include any 
of its Water Utility assets in this category for the purposes of determining 
development impact fees. 

- Purification – means infrastructure related to purification of water and any 
appurtenances and engineering services related to such facilities.   Oro Valley does 
not include any of its Water Utility assets in this category for the purposes of 
determining development impact fees. 

- Distribution – means local distribution pipelines (typically less than 12 inches 
diameter) and main extensions and any appurtenances and engineering services 
related to such facilities.  Oro Valley does not include any of its Water Utility assets 
in this category for the purposes of determining development impact fees. 

- Appurtenances – appurtenances are included together with the categories described 
above for the purposes of determining development impact fees. 

                                                           
5 ARS §9-463.05.T.7(a) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-2 

 Real Property – includes real property required for location of the infrastructure 
facilities described above. 

 Engineering Services – engineering services are included together with the water 
infrastructure categories described above for the purposes of determining development 
impact fees.  

 Financing – includes interest and other finance costs related to the portion of the bonds 
issued to finance construction of necessary public services and/or facility expansions 
identified in the IIP. 

 Development Impact Fee Study – includes the cost of conducting the development 
impact fee study in accordance with ARS §9-463.05. 

This impact fee analysis demonstrates that the required capital facilities are a consequence 
of new development and necessary for new development to occur, and that the AWRDIF 
and PWSDIF are proportionate to and a result of the additional demands of new 
development.  These capital facilities as defined in the IIP will result in a beneficial use to 
new development. 

In addition, CH2M HILL conducted an evaluation of credits for exactions or other 
dedications, as described in this report. This impact fee analysis also compares the new fees 
to Water Utility’s current fee schedule, and recommends adjustments, where needed, to 
comply with ARS 9-463.05 and fulfill the rational nexus criterion. 

2.2 Service Area 

ARS 9-463.05 defines the "Service area" as the specified area within the boundaries of a 
municipality in which development will be served by necessary public services or facility 
expansions and within which a substantial nexus exists between the necessary public 
services or facility expansions and the development being served as prescribed in the IIP.6  
The Water Utility has chosen to define its water service area for the AWRDIF and PWSDIF, 
as shown in Figure 1 below.  This figure is also provided in 11x17 size in Appendix A: Water 
Utility Service Area Map.   

 

                                                           
6 ARS 9-463.05.T.(9) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-3 

 

FIGURE 2-1 

Water Service Area Map 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-4 

If adopted, the Water Utility development impact fees would only apply to future growth 
and development  within the Water Utility’s defined service area and as it may change in 
the future due to annexations or other inclusions in the service area.  Any development not 
located within, annexed into or included in the service area would not be entitled to or 
eligible to receive water service from the Water Utility. 

2.3 Land Use Assumptions 

The land use assumptions serve as the basis for the IIP and subsequent impact fee 
calculations for the Water Utility.  ARS 9-463.05 defines "Land use assumptions" as the 
projections of changes in land uses, densities, intensities and population for a specified 
service area over a period of at least 10 years and pursuant to the general plan of the 
municipality.7  The Oro Valley General Plan, adopted in 2005, does not include projections of 
future population, land use, or Water Utility SUs.  As such, land use assumptions were 
derived using GIS mapping according to current zoning and consistent with the Town’s 
General Plan, as well as recent population growth forecasts submitted to the Arizona 
Department of Water Resources.8 

When considering future Water Utility infrastructure investments (or utilization of existing 
capacity), it is difficult to provide an exact matching between the population and/or other 
measures of development growth and the necessary capital investment within a given 
timeframe due to such factors as:  

 Water Utility infrastructure investments are made to serve long-term needs and require 
large, one-time financial commitments to serve growth over a period that may exceed 
the 10-year study period. 

 Capacity utilization depends on the actual rate of development growth and new 
connections to the water system rather than the study period.   

 Capacity must be available to serve new customers immediately upon connection to the 
Water Utility, requiring up-front investment and project construction prior to having 
exact certainty over the timing of those connections. 

As such, the Water Utility performed an analysis of future land use using GIS based 
mapping to determine the SUs remaining in the existing water service area boundary 
depicted in Figure 1.  The land use assumptions were based on current zoning for each 
remaining undeveloped and/or unserved parcel.  The results of the analysis indicate a total 
of 4,131 new SUs in the Water Utility service area.  These GIS land use maps are available 
electronically from the Water Utility upon request.  The Water Utility service area land use 
assumptions are detailed in Table 2-1. 

                                                           
7 ARS 9-463.05.T.(6) 

8 ADWR Annual Water Withdrawal and Use Report-Provider Summary 2012– March 25, 2013 – Schedule AWS – Part 2, page 7. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-5 

TABLE 2-1 

Service Area Land Use Assumptions 

 
Current 
(2013)* 

Future 
(2023) 

Future 
Buildout Increase 

Single Family 18,710 NA 21,184 2,474 

Multi-Family 1,860 NA 2,472 612 

Commercial 830 NA 1,596 766 

Irrigation 1,540 NA 1,819 279 

Other 260 NA - - 

Total SUs (Buildout) 23,200 NA 27,331 4,131 

Total Population 43,062 47,182 NA 4,120 

* Calendar year-end projection 

Future growth within the service area in total SUs is anticipated at buildout - a period of at 
least 10 years and pursuant to the general plan of the Town.  Future growth is comprised of 
single family, multi-family, commercial and irrigation SUs.  The Water Utility anticipates an 
increase of 4,131 total SUs at buildout.  The population is estimated to increase by 
4,120 persons over the 10-year study period.   

2.4 Changes in Growth and Development 

ARS §9-463.05 requires that the municipality perform one of the following to monitor and 
respond to changes in growth and development over time:  

 Appoint an infrastructure advisory committee to inform and monitor the municipality 
on a number of issues related to the land use assumptions and IIP, or 

 Provide for a biennial certified audit of the municipality’s land use assumptions, IIP, and 
development impact fees.   

The Water Utility will conduct the biennial certified audit in order to comply with this 
requirement. 

2.5 Credits 

“If a municipality requires as a condition of development approval the construction or 
improvement of, contributions to or dedication of any facilities that were not included in a 
previously adopted IIP, the municipality shall cause the IIP to be amended to include the 
facilities and shall provide a credit toward the payment of a development impact fee for the 
construction, improvement, contribution or dedication of the facilities to the extent that the 
facilities will substitute for or otherwise reduce the need for other similar facilities in the IIP 
for which development impact fees were assessed.”9 

                                                           
9 §9-463.05, B 11. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  2-6 

The Water Utility expects to enter into line extension agreements with developers to provide 
for water system expansion through pipelines and local distribution infrastructure to meet 
future demands for their specific development.  Since this infrastructure is not included in 
the IIP, it is therefore not eligible for a credit toward development impact fee payments. 
Because the Water Utility is a financially self-supporting enterprise, impact fee credits, if 
any, may not be transferred between Water Utility and non-Water Utility sources.  
Furthermore, Town water policy prohibits entering into a “development agreement for any 
purpose that permits the developer to pay reduced water rates and/or reduced 
development impact fees.”10 

Developers or other private parties may offer (but are not required as a condition of 
development approval) to provide or develop water infrastructure (transmission, 
distribution, storage, or pumping facilities) that may exceed the water demand and/or 
supply for proposed commercial or residential development. In these instances, it may be 
appropriate to offer an offset to the proposed PWSDIF, if such infrastructure is included in 
the IIP. Such offsets would depend upon the ability to integrate with the Town’s existing 
water system and would be subject to review and acceptance by the Town.  In addition, the 
developer and Water Utility could enter into an over-sizing agreement consistent with 
Town Water Code.  In this case the Water utility would pay for the incremental cost of over 
sizing and there would be no eligible credits to offset impact fees.   

                                                           
10 Town of Oro Valley Mayor and Town Council Water Policies, Section II, A.1.f, adopted October 23, 1996, as amended. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-1 

3.0 Infrastructure Improvements Plan 

A written plan that identifies each necessary public service or facility expansion that is 
proposed to be the subject of the development impact fee and complies with the specific 
requirements of ARS 9-463.05.(E) is provided in the following sections.  These sections 
follow and comply with the seven subchapters of ARS 9-463.05.(E), which define the 
infrastructure improvements requirements.  Engineering analysis and capacity calculations 
in this report were prepared by qualified professionals licensed in the State of Arizona, as 
applicable. 

3.1 Description of Existing Necessary Public Services 

The Water Utility has approximately 18,800 customer connections serving a population of 
43,000, which includes customers within the Town boundaries and the Countryside service 
area.  The Water Utility currently delivers water from three sources of supply: 

 Groundwater is pumped from wells in the aquifer below the Town and delivered 
through the potable water distribution system.  

 CAP water is delivered to the Oro Valley potable water system through Tucson Water’s 
distribution system. Oro Valley also uses its CAP water indirectly through groundwater 
storage credits. 

 Reclaimed water is used for irrigation of turf, predominantly for golf courses, and is 
delivered through a separate reclaimed water distribution system.  

In 2012, a total of 7,444 acre feet of potable water was produced to deliver water supply to 
Water Utility customers.  The wells in the Oro Valley Water Service Area produced 5,415 
acre feet (1.76 billion gallons) and the wells in the Countryside Water Service Area produced 
746 acre feet (243 million gallons) to deliver water supply to our customers.  In addition, 
1,283 acre feet of CAP water was delivered to the potable water system in accordance with 
an intergovernmental agreement with the City of Tucson.  The total pumped from Water 
Utility wells in 2012 was 1,573 acre feet (513 million gallons) less than in 2011 primarily due 
to the Water Utility’s CAP deliveries and ongoing water conservation efforts.  

In 2012, the Water Utility also stored CAP water to obtain groundwater storage credits 
within the Tucson Active Management Area. The use of groundwater storage credits for 
recovery wells reduces the Water Utility’s financial obligations to the Central Arizona 
Groundwater Replenishment District.  

Groundwater levels continue to decline in the Oro Valley aquifer but to a significantly lesser 
extent than in previous years due to reductions in groundwater pumping. Well water levels 
declined an average of 1.29 feet in the Oro Valley Water Service Area and declined 2.75 feet 
in the Countryside Water Service Area in 2012. Operation of the reclaimed water system and 
the delivery of CAP water have slowed the groundwater decline, thus conserving, 
preserving and protecting the aquifer and groundwater supply. The Water Utility plans to 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-2 

continue to utilize a mix of source water, including its remaining CAP water allocation, in 
the foreseeable future.  

The following are some of the Water Utility’s existing resources and assets as of 
December 31, 2012:  

 Water Resources:  

- Groundwater Supply (Assured Water Supply):   13,384 acre feet per year  
- Groundwater Supply (Sustainable Supply Target)  5,500 acre feet per year 
- Reclaimed Water:       2,300 acre feet per year  
- Effluent Water:       1,500 acre feet per year  
- CAP Water:        10,305 acre feet per year  

 

 Assets:  

- Water Distribution Storage Reservoirs:    19 
- Potable Water Reservoir Capacity:     11,600,000 gallons  
- Reclaimed Water Reservoir Capacity:    1,500,000 gallons  
- Potable Water Mains:       343 miles  
- Reclaimed Water Mains      12 miles  
- Potable Water Booster Stations:     25 
- Reclaimed Water Booster Stations:     2  
- Operating Wells:       22  

The Water Utility has budgeted capital expenditures to repair, replace, and upgrade existing 
water facilities.  These non-growth-related capital expenditures are funded with Operating 
Fund revenue (predominantly from water rates) and therefore are not considered in the 
AWRDIF and PWSDIF analysis. 

3.2 Service Unit Characteristics 

In order to present water demands using a standardized measure of consumption, average 
consumption attributable to an individual unit of development (calculated pursuant to 
generally accepted engineering and planning standards) is expressed in terms of SUs.  A 
Water Utility SU is represented by a residential customer with a 5/8-inch (or 5/8 x 3/4 inch) 
meter, which is the most common meter size in Oro Valley.  Based on an examination of 
historic billing statistics and water system characteristics, the Water Utility’s current SU 
demand characteristics are 110,790 gallons per year (9,232 gallons per month) or 0.34 AF 
annually. 

If development impact fees are assessed, they must be assessed against commercial, 
industrial and residential development.11  As such, the Water Utility will continue to charge 
proportionate fees across development categories based on the relative burdens imposed by 
and differential cost of providing water to specific categories of development.  The level of 
consumption for each development category is provided in Table 3-1. 

                                                           
11 ARS 9-463.05.B.(13) 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-3 

TABLE 3-1 

Oro Valley Water Utility Service Unit Characteristics and Capacity Factors 

Development Category 
Water Demand 

(gallons/year/SU) 
Water Demand 

(acre feet/year/SU) 
Service Unit 

Capacity Factor 

Residential 110,790 0.34 1.00 

Multifamily 53,180 0.16 0.48 

Commercial and Industrial 144,000 0.44 1.30 

Irrigation 199,400 0.61 1.80 

    

The capacity factors express water demand on a SU basis and were determined based on an 
analysis of the Town’s water billing data. Capacity factors indicate that commercial, 
industrial, and irrigation categories demand more water per SU than the residential 
category, while the multifamily SU demands less water than all other categories. 

3.3 Projected Service Units 

The Water Utility installed 171 new water connections in year 2012 (or 245 SUs), 
approximately a 1.0 percent growth rate, and expects to add 300 new SUs in 2013.  The 
projected number of SUs necessitated by and attributable to new development in the service 
area based on the approved land use assumptions and calculated pursuant to generally 
accepted engineering criteria are provided in Table 3-2. 

TABLE 3-2 

Projected Annual Growth in Number of Service Units 

Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

2013 System SUs 23,200          

Projected Additional 
SUs 

300 400 400 400 450 450 450 500 500 500 

Total System SUs 23,500 24,208 24,608 25,008 25,458 25,908 26,358 26,808 27,258 27,758 

Annual Growth (percent) 1.3% 1.7% 1.7% 1.6% 1.8% 1.8% 1.7% 1.9% 1.9% 1.8% 

           

Annual growth is forecasted to increase from the current level of approximately 300 SUs in 
2013 to 500 SUs annually by the end of the forecast period.  The total number of additional 
SUs forecasted over the 10-year period is 4,050 SUs – just under the 4,131 SUs anticipated at 
buildout.  The annual growth rate in SUs ranges from 1.3 to 1.9 percent, averaging 1.7 
percent over the study period. 

3.4 Projected Water Demands 

The projected demand for water services required by new SUs over the 10-year forecast 
period is provided in Table 3-3. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-4 

TABLE 3-3 

Projected Potable Water Demands 

Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

2013 System SUs 23,200          

Projected Additional 
SUs 

300 400 400 400 450 450 450 500 500 500 

Total System SUs 23,500 24,208 24,608 25,008 25,458 25,908 26,358 26,808 27,258 27,758 

Potable Water System 
Demand (AF/year) 

 7,990  8,130  8,260  8,400  8,550  8,700  8,860  9,030  9,200  9,370 

           

Annual growth in water demand is forecasted to increase from the current level of 
approximately 7,990 acre-feet to 9,370 acre-feet by the end of the study period.  The annual 
growth rate in potable water system demand ranges from 1.3 to 1.9 percent, averaging 
1.7 percent over the study period. 

3.5 Analysis of Excess Available Capacity 

3.5.1 Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity 

Since the 1940’s groundwater levels have declined within the Water Utility’s service area 
and it is anticipated that levels will continue to decline in the future without proactive 
measures.  Based on the Town’s 2002 Assured Water Supply Hydrology Report12 and 2004 
Groundwater Action Plan13, the Town has established a target “sustainable groundwater 
supply” of 5,500 AF per year.  In 2005, the Water Utility pumped 10,520 acre feet, which 
represents the Water Utility’s highest groundwater pumpage.  In 2012, the Water Utility’s 
total deliveries dropped to 9,543 AF (potable and reclaimed combined). Of that amount, 
6,160 AF was groundwater pumpage and 1,283 AF was CAP water delivered to the potable 
system.  The remaining amount was reclaimed water deliveries of 2,100 AF. 

Until year 2005 the Water Utility’s only source of water supply was groundwater from 
existing wells. In October 2005, the Water Utility began operation of the first phase of its 
reclaimed water system. The Water Utility current water supplies include: 

 Groundwater from Town wells – groundwater from Town wells is limited to a 
“sustainable groundwater supply” of approximately 5,500 AF per year. 

 Reclaimed Water – reclaimed water includes the delivery of treated wastewater effluent 
to irrigation customers. The total capacity of reclaimed water is approximately 2,300 AF. 

 Colorado River water delivered through the CAP - The Town currently has a 
subcontract with CAWCD for 10,305 AF of CAP water rights.  Of this amount, 1,283 AF 
was delivered in 2012 through a wheeling agreement with Tucson Water.  It is 

                                                           
12 Assured Water Supply Hydrology Report for the Oro Valley Water Utility, Brown and Caldwell, June 2002. 

13 Groundwater Action Plan, Oro Valley Water Utility, Oro Valley, Arizona; Brown and Caldwell, August 2004. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-5 

anticipated that CAP water delivery capacity will increase to a cumulative total of 3,500 
AF over the 10-year study period. 

The Town will increasingly rely on renewable reclaimed water and CAP water to meet its 
needs as existing groundwater production is reduced to approximately 5,500 AF per year in 
the future to protect and preserve the aquifer and minimize groundwater mining.  

Existing customers use 6,160 AF per year of groundwater, which is 660 AF per year greater 
than the sustainable groundwater production flow rate of 5,500 AF per year.  In early 2014, 
the Water Utility will complete its development of an additional 500 AF of the 660 AF of 
CAP water for existing customers.  This leaves an additional amount of 160 AF needed for 
existing customers from the proposed infrastructure in the IIP for the AWRDIF projects.   

Total water demand is expected to increase from the current 9,543 AF per year to 
approximately 11,760 AF by 2023. It is anticipated that this demand will be met via 5,870 AF 
of groundwater; 2,300 AF of reclaimed water; and 3,500 AF of CAP water. Of the 3,500 AF of 
CAP water, 2,000 AF has been developed for and paid by existing (current) customers.  Of 
the remaining 1,500 (and the basis for this AWRDIF analysis), 1,340 AF will be allocated to 
and paid by new development and 160 AF will be allocated to and paid by existing 
customers. The 160 AF will be funded with revenue collected from existing customers 
through the Water Utility’s groundwater preservation fee (GPF), which is included in the 
monthly bills to existing customers.  

The source of supply for the AWRDIF is the Town’s allocation of CAP water.  In 2007, the 
Town acquired 3,557 acre feet of additional CAP water to meet the water demands for 
future growth and development.  The total acquisition cost including finance charges was 
$2,607,471 for a cost of approximately $733 per acre foot (or $249 per SU). An analysis of the 
alternative water resources excess capacity available for new development is provided in 
Table 3-4. 

TABLE 3-4 

Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Source of Supply $ 2,362,129 3,557 10,462 $226 

Financing 245,342 3,557 10,462     23 

TOTAL $2,607,471 3,557 10,464 $249 

     

The Water Utility’s investment in its source of supply water facilities results in an average 
cost per SU of $249, including financing expenses.   Detailed calculations are provided in 
Appendix B: Excess Available Capacity Tables. 

3.5.2 Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity 

The potable water system consists of the resources and assets as described in Section 3.1.  
All of the Water Utility’s resources and assets work together to provide consistent water 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-6 

pressure and flow to approximately 18,800 customer accounts (or approximately 23,200 
SUs).  Estimating network system capacity is subjective, so the potable water system excess 
available capacity was estimated using: 

 Pumping capacity  

 Normalized pipe capacity per SU 

 Hydraulic flow modeling   

The results from all three estimates were consistent and demonstrated that the 2000 and 
2003 bond projects were constructed with excess capacity of approximately 40 percent, or 
4,300 SUs versus the 10,524 SUs designed to be served those projects. The excess available 
capacity analysis indicates that the current system therefore has sufficient capacity to serve a 
total of 27,500 SUs (or an additional 4,300 SUs more than the 2013 system SUs).  However, it 
should be noted that capacity is determined based on a network basis for the entire water 
system, which does not preclude the need for additional capacity investments in certain 
portions of the system where capacity may be constrained. 

An analysis of the potable water system excess available capacity to meet the water 
demands of future growth and development is provided in Table 3-5 below. 

TABLE 3-5 

Water Facilities - Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

$13,104,410 3,578 10,524 $1,245 

Financing     4,688,669 3,578 10,524      446 

TOTAL $17,793,079 3,578 10,524 $1,691 

     

The Water Utility’s previous investment in its potable water system water transportation 
facilities provides excess available capacity with an average cost per SU of $1,691, including 
financing expenses.   Detailed calculations are provided in Appendix B: Excess Available 
Capacity Tables. 

3.6 Description of Infrastructure Attributable to New 
Development 

The Water Utility provided a description of the necessary facility expansions and their costs 
necessitated by and attributable to new development in the service area based on the 
approved land use assumptions.  These include the alternative water expansion projects 
funded via AWRDIF revenue, and the potable water expansion projects funded via PWSDIF 
revenue.   



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-7 

Necessary facility expansions are described in Appendix C: Alternative Water Resources 
Expansion Related Projects and Appendix D: Potable Water System Expansion Related 
Projects.  Detailed calculations of the AWRDIF and PWSDIF are provided in Appendix E: 
Expansion Related Capital Improvements. 

3.6.1 Alternative Water Resources Expansion Projects 

A summary of the alternative water facilities expansion projects and their costs necessitated 
by and attributable to new development in the service area is provided in Table 3-6 below. 

TABLE 3-6 

Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Expansion Projects 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

$12,660,000 1,500 4,412 $2,870 

Financing     4,051,200 1,500 4,412      918 

TOTAL $16,771,200 1,500 4,412 $3,788 

     

The Water Utility’s future investment in its alternative water resources transportation 
projects will provide additional capacity with an average cost per SU of $3,788, including 
financing expenses.   

3.6.2 Potable Water System Expansion Projects 

A summary of the potable water facilities expansion projects and their costs necessitated by 
and attributable to new development in the service area is provided in Table 3-7 below. 

TABLE 3-7 

Water Facilities - Potable Water System Expansion Projects 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

$3,750,000 386 1,135 $3,304 

Real Property 500,000 386 1,135 581 

Financing   1,360,000 386 1,135   1,198 

TOTAL $5,610,000 386 1,135 $4,943 

     

The Water Utility’s future investment in its potable water system transportation projects 
and real property will provide additional capacity with an average cost per SU of $4,943, 
including financing expenses.   



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-8 

3.7 Forecast of Non-Development Impact Fee Revenue 

The Town of Oro Valley Water Policies establish the “the Oro Valley Water Utility as a 
financially self-supporting enterprise”14  and therefore new SUs connecting to the Water 
Utility potable water system are subject to both the PWSDIF and AWRDIF will not generate 
any additional revenues through state-shared revenue, federal revenue, ad valorem 
property taxes, construction contracting or similar excise taxes that would inure to the 
benefit of the Water Utility.  Construction sales taxes collected by the Town of Oro Valley 
will inure to the benefit of the Town’s general fund, not to the Water Utility.  The Water 
Utility may collect certain taxes on behalf of the Town of Oro Valley or other taxing 
authorities, but the associated revenues are transferred to the Town or other authorities and 
the Water Utility does not receive any tax revenue.  The capital recovery portion of the 
Water Utility’s current rates and fees are recovered for repair and replacement capital costs, 
not new growth.  As such, a forecast of non-development impact fee revenue is not 
applicable and associated non-development impact fee credits are not applicable to the 
Water Utility. 

In addition, PWSDIF and AWRDIF fund debt is paid with impact fee revenue and therefore 
no debt-service credit is provided. 

3.8 Interest Charges and Finance Costs 

The Water Utility will fund all or a portion of the potable water system or alternative water 
resources projects by issuing revenue bonds.  Projected interest charges and other finance 
costs may be included in determining the amount of development impact fees if the monies 
are used for the payment of principal and interest on the portion of the bonds issued to 
finance the construction of the necessary public services or facility expansions identified in 
the IIP. 

For the purposes of this analysis, CH2M HILL assumed a 3.75 percent interest rate, 
2 percent debt issuance expense, and 0.5 percent bond insurance expense.  Based on these 
assumptions, interest and financing added approximately 32 percent to the cost of the future 
improvements.  Actual interest charges and finance costs incurred were included for 
existing infrastructure with excess capacity.  

3.9 Subfund Accounting 

Monies received from the proposed AWRDIF and PWSDIF will be placed in separate funds 
(the AWRDIF Fund and PWSDIF Fund) and accounted for separately from the Water Utility 
Operating Fund.  Interest earned on monies in these funds will be credited back to the 
respective fund. 

                                                           
14 Town of Oro Valley Mayor and Town Council Water Policies, Adopted October 23, 1996, as amended. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  3-9 

3.10 Summary and Conclusions 

CH2M HILL computed the infrastructure and finance cost per SU for the water utility’s IIP 
using the project categories defined by ARS §9-463.05. Both excess available capacity and 
expansion projects were included in the calculation of an average cost to construct a new 
unit of capacity (or to utilize an existing unit of capacity).  This methodology arrives at an 
average cost to construct a new unit of capacity (or utilize an existing unit of capacity) at the 
same level of service; it does not rely on the timing of new development, but applies the cost 
of new capacity across all SUs that will be served by that capacity regardless of when 
growth may occur. Minor changes to the list of projects (or existing infrastructure) that 
provide capacity for new development should not require recalculation of the development 
impact fee since a single project is likely to have an insignificant impact on the average cost 
of capacity across all necessary system infrastructure.



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-1 

4.0 Determination of Development Impact Fees 

Based on the foregoing analysis in the IIP presented in Section 3, the development impact 
fees were determined according to the project categories defined by ARS §9-463.05.  The 
results of the analysis and cost per SU for both the AWRDIF and PWSDIF are summarized 
in Tables 4-1 and 4-2, respectively. 

TABLE 4-1 

Water Facilities - Alternative Water Resources Infrastructure Summary  

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Source of Supply $ 2,362,129 3,557 10,462 $  226 

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

12,660,000 1,500 4,412 2,870 

   Treatment - - - - 

   Purification - - - - 

   Distribution - - - - 

Real Property - - - - 

Engineering Services Included above Included above Included above Included above 

Financing 245,342 

4,051,200 

3,557 

1,500 

10,462 

4,412 

23 

918 

Development impact 
fee Study

1
 

         30,028 - 4,050          7 

TOTAL $19,348,699 - - $4,045 

1.  The Development Impact Fee Study was conducted for $60,056 in total and was evenly applied to the Water Utility’s  
      two impact fees. 

 

The total cost per SU and the basis for the AWRDIF is $4,045. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-2 

TABLE 4-2 

Water Facilities - Potable Water System Infrastructure Summary 

Project Category Project Costs 

Additional 
Capacity 

(acre-feet) Service Units 
Capital Cost per 

Service Unit 

Water Facilities     

   Source of Supply - - - - 

   Transportation and 
Appurtenances 

$16,854,410 3,964 11,659 $1,446 

   Treatment - - - - 

   Purification - - - - 

   Distribution - - - - 

Real Property 500,000 - 11,659 43 

Engineering Services Included above Included above Included above Included above 

Financing 6,048,669 - 11,659 519 

Development impact 
fee Study

1
 

         30,028 - 4,050          7 

TOTAL $23,433,107 - - $2,015 

1.  The Development Impact Fee Study was conducted for $60,056 in total and was evenly applied to the Water Utility’s  
      two impact fees. 

 

The total cost per SU and the basis for the PWSDIF is $2,015. 

4.1 Proposed Development Impact Fees Schedule 

The Water Utility’s development impact fees are a one-time payment by new customers to 
recover costs required to support growth. The proposed AWRDIF and PWSDIF are 
applicable to new single-family residential; multifamily residential; commercial and 
industrial; and irrigation meters. New connections with meter sizes larger than 5/8 inch are 
adjusted based on their relative meter capacities currently utilized by the Water Utility 
(originally derived from capacity ratios published by the AWWA) such that the fee 
assessment schedule is proportionate, fair and equitable.   Tables 4-3 through 4-5 provide 
the proposed impact fee assessment schedules. 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-3 

TABLE 4-3 
Alternative Water System Development Impact Fee Schedule 

Customer Class

Existing 

Demand 

Adjustment 

Factor

Proposed 

Demand 

Adjustment 

Factor

AWWA Meter 

Capacity Ratio

Existing 

AWRDIF

Proposed 

AWRDIF

Single Family Residential

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.0 1.0 1.0 4,982$              4,045$              

3/4-inch 1.0 1.0 1.5 7,470$              6,067$              

1-inch 1.0 1.0 2.5 12,450$            10,111$            

1.5-inch 1.0 1.0 5.0 24,910$            20,223$            

2-inch 1.0 1.0 8.0 39,850$            32,356$            

Multifamily Residential

(per unit)

Per Unit 0.48 0.48 NA 2,390$              1,941$              

Commercial and Industrial

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.0 1.3 1.0 4,982$              5,258$              

3/4-inch 1.0 1.3 1.5 7,470$              7,887$              

1-inch 1.0 1.3 2.5 12,450$            13,145$            

1.5-inch 1.0 1.3 5.0 24,910$            26,289$            

2-inch 1.0 1.3 8.0 39,850$            42,063$            

3-inch 1.0 1.3 16 79,710$            84,126$            

4-inch 1.0 1.3 25 124,550$          131,447$         

6-inch 1.0 1.3 50 249,100$          262,894$         

8-inch 1.0 1.3 80 398,560$          420,631$         

Irrigation

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.0 1.8 1.0 4,982$              7,280$              

3/4-inch 1.0 1.8 1.5 7,470$              10,920$            

1-inch 1.0 1.8 2.5 12,450$            18,200$            

1.5-inch 1.0 1.8 5.0 24,910$            36,401$            

2-inch 1.0 1.8 8.0 39,850$            58,241$            

3-inch 1.0 1.8 16 79,710$            116,482$         

4-inch 1.0 1.8 25 124,550$          182,004$         

6-inch 1.0 1.8 50 249,100$          364,007$         

8-inch 1.0 1.8 80 398,560$          582,412$         

ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

ALTERNATIVE WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES

 

1 1 1 

I 
I I I 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-4 

TABLE 4-4 
Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Schedule 

Customer Class

Existing 

Demand 

Adjustment 

Factor

Proposed 

Demand 

Adjustment 

Factor

AWWA Meter 

Capacity Ratio

Existing 

PWSDIF

Proposed 

PWSDIF

Single Family Residential

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.0 1.0 1.0 2,567$              2,015$              

3/4-inch 1.0 1.0 1.5 3,850$              3,022$              

1-inch 1.0 1.0 2.5 6,420$              5,037$              

1.5-inch 1.0 1.0 5.0 12,840$            10,074$            

2-inch 1.0 1.0 8.0 20,540$            16,118$            

Multifamily Residential

(per unit)

Per Unit 0.48 0.48 NA 1,230$              967$                  

Commercial and Industrial

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.6 1.3 1.0 4,110$              2,619$              

3/4-inch 1.6 1.3 1.5 6,170$              3,929$              

1-inch 1.6 1.3 2.5 10,280$            6,548$              

1.5-inch 1.6 1.3 5.0 20,550$            13,096$            

2-inch 1.6 1.3 8.0 32,880$            20,953$            

3-inch 1.6 1.3 16 65,760$            41,906$            

4-inch 1.6 1.3 25 102,750$          65,478$            

6-inch 1.6 1.3 50 205,500$          130,956$         

8-inch 1.6 1.3 80 328,800$          209,530$         

Irrigation

(per meter)

5/8-inch 1.7 1.8 1.0 4,360$              3,626$              

3/4-inch 1.7 1.8 1.5 6,540$              5,440$              

1-inch 1.7 1.8 2.5 10,900$            9,066$              

1.5-inch 1.7 1.8 5.0 21,800$            18,132$            

2-inch 1.7 1.8 8.0 34,880$            29,012$            

3-inch 1.7 1.8 16 69,760$            58,024$            

4-inch 1.7 1.8 25 109,000$          90,662$            

6-inch 1.7 1.8 50 218,000$          181,324$         

8-inch 1.7 1.8 80 348,800$          290,118$         

ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

POTABLE WATER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES

 

i i i i 

I I I I 



 

WATER UTLITY DEVELOPMENT IMPCAT FEES STUDY  4-5 

Customer Class
Existing

AWRDIF

Proposed

AWRDIF

Percent

Variance

Existing

PWSDIF

Proposed

PWSDIF

Percent

Variance

Existing Fees

(combined)

Proposed Fees

(combined)

Net 

Change

Single Family 

Residential

(per meter)

5/8-inch 4,982$        4,045$        -19% 2,567$        2,015$        -22% 7,549$             6,059$                -20%

3/4-inch 7,470$        6,067$        -19% 3,850$        3,022$        -22% 11,320$          9,089$                -20%

1-inch 12,450$     10,111$     -19% 6,420$        5,037$        -22% 18,870$          15,148$             -20%

1.5-inch 24,910$     20,223$     -19% 12,840$     10,074$     -22% 37,750$          30,296$             -20%

2-inch 39,850$     32,356$     -19% 20,540$     16,118$     -22% 60,390$          48,474$             -20%

Multifamily 

Residential

(per unit)

Per Unit 2,390$        1,941$        -19% 1,230$        967$           -21% 3,620$             2,908$                -20%

Commercial and 

Industrial

(per meter)

5/8-inch 4,982$        5,258$        6% 4,110$        2,619$        -36% 9,092$             7,877$                -13%

3/4-inch 7,470$        7,887$        6% 6,170$        3,929$        -36% 13,640$          11,816$             -13%

1-inch 12,450$     13,145$     6% 10,280$     6,548$        -36% 22,730$          19,693$             -13%

1.5-inch 24,910$     26,289$     6% 20,550$     13,096$     -36% 45,460$          39,385$             -13%

2-inch 39,850$     42,063$     6% 32,880$     20,953$     -36% 72,730$          63,016$             -13%

3-inch 79,710$     84,126$     6% 65,760$     41,906$     -36% 145,470$        126,032$           -13%

4-inch 124,550$   131,447$   6% 102,750$   65,478$     -36% 227,300$        196,925$           -13%

6-inch 249,100$   262,894$   6% 205,500$   130,956$   -36% 454,600$        393,850$           -13%

8-inch 398,560$   420,631$   6% 328,800$   209,530$   -36% 727,360$        630,161$           -13%

Irrigation

(per meter)

5/8-inch 4,982$        7,280$        46% 4,360$        3,626$        -17% 9,342$             10,907$             17%

3/4-inch 7,470$        10,920$     46% 6,540$        5,440$        -17% 14,010$          16,360$             17%

1-inch 12,450$     18,200$     46% 10,900$     9,066$        -17% 23,350$          27,267$             17%

1.5-inch 24,910$     36,401$     46% 21,800$     18,132$     -17% 46,710$          54,533$             17%

2-inch 39,850$     58,241$     46% 34,880$     29,012$     -17% 74,730$          87,253$             17%

3-inch 79,710$     116,482$   46% 69,760$     58,024$     -17% 149,470$        174,506$           17%

4-inch 124,550$   182,004$   46% 109,000$   90,662$     -17% 233,550$        272,666$           17%

6-inch 249,100$   364,007$   46% 218,000$   181,324$   -17% 467,100$        545,331$           17%

8-inch 398,560$   582,412$   46% 348,800$   290,118$   -17% 747,360$        872,530$           17%

ORO VALLEY WATER UTILITY

EXISTING AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES

TABLE 4-5 
Comparison of Existing and Proposed AWRDIF and PWSDIF 

i i i i i i 

T T T 

I I I 

I A 
I I I 



 

 

 



 

 

APPENDIX A 

Water Utility Service Area Map 



OR
AC

LE
 RD

INA RD

MOORE RD

TANGERINE RD

LAMBERT LN

MAGEE RD

LA
 CA

NA
DA

 DR

LA
 CH

OL
LA

 BL

NARANJA DR

1S
T

OVERTON RD

NO
RT

HE
RN

 AV
E

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

CALLE CONCORDIA

CO
YO

TE
 CR

OS
SIN

G T
R

EL C
AMINO DE M

ANANA

LINDA VISTA BL

LA
 CH

OL
LA

 BL

HARDY RD

WATER SERVICE AREA MAP

J
E:\GIS and other Projects\10-15 Year Improvement\

Water Service Area Map_11x17.mxd
Revised 08/05/2013 by IS

HA
RT

MA
N

LINDA VISTA

CA
MI

NO
 DE

 OE
ST

E

CORTARO FARMS

HARDY

ST
AR

 GR
AS

S

COUNTRYSIDE

J

Legend
Oro Valley Water Main

Oro Valley Town Limits

Marana Town Limits

Oro Valley Water



 

 

APPENDIX B 

Excess Available Capacity Tables 



APPENDIX B

Town of Oro Valley Water Utility

Table B-1: Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity

CAP Water Acquisition Source of Supply 2007 2,362,129$    245,342$      2,607,471$    3,557          10,462       249$                      

TOTAL 2,362,129$    245,342$      2,607,471$    3,557          10,462       249$                      

Interest and

Financing

Cost

Project

No.
Project Name

Project

Type

Completion

Year

Capital

Cost

Total

Project

Cost

Additional

Capacity

(acre-feet)

Additional

Service

Units

Development 

Impact Fee per 

Service Unit

Page 1 of 1



APPENDIX B

Town of Oro Valley Water Utility

Table B-2: Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity

Series 2000 Bond Expansion Related Projects
1 WP 4 Well, Booster and Reservoir Transportation 2003 1,678,816$      698,937$            2,292,149$      
2 WP1 D Zone Booster Transportation 2003 415,587           173,020              567,416           
3 WP 14 "H & I" Zone Booster Transportation 2002 1,155,169        480,928              1,577,194        
4 12 Inch Steam Pump Mains Transportation 2001 467,196           194,506              637,879           
5 16" South "C" Zone Main Transportation 2004 428,542           178,414              585,104           
6 CDO Crossing to WP1 Transportation 2004 596,023           248,141              813,772           
7 16" WP1 to WP4 Main Transportation 2003 661,725           275,494              903,478           
8 12" El Con Main  NO COSTS Transportation NA NA NA NA
9 12" Well Feed Main NO COSTS Transportation NA NA NA NA

10 16" Oracle Main (20%) Ventana Transportation 2001 256,356           106,728              350,011           
11 12" Moore Rd Interconnect Transportation 2003 113,297           47,169                154,688           

Subtotal - Series 2000 Bond 5,772,710$      2,403,337$         8,176,047$      

Series 2003 Bond - Expansion Related Projects
12 South Oracle "D" Zone 16" Main Transportation 2004 741,245$         231,050$            943,996$         
13 New Well - TW C-99 Transportation 2005 500,074           155,876              636,859           
14 North La Canada E-Zone 16" Main Transportation 2004 413,284           128,823              526,329           
15 Shadow Mountain Estates 12" Main Transportation 2005 505,001           157,412              643,133           
16 WP 15 Reservoir Transportation 2007 1,828,736        570,027              2,328,947        
17 Stone Canyon H-Zone 12" Main Transportation 2007 257,530           80,274                327,972           
18 La Canada E-Zone Reservoir 3.0 MG Transportation 2011 2,792,137        870,325              3,555,866        
19 La Canada E-Zone 24" Main Transportation 2011 293,693           91,546                374,026           

Subtotal Series 2003 Bond 7,331,700$      2,285,332$         9,617,032$      

TOTAL 13,104,410$    4,688,669$         17,793,079$    3,578 10,524 1,691$                

Project

No.
Project Name

Project

Type

Completion

Year

Capital

Cost

Total

Project

Cost

Additional

Capacity

(acre-feet)

Additional

Service

Units

Development 

Impact Fee per 

Service Unit

Interest and

Financing

Cost

3,578

3,578 10,524

$777

$914

10,524

Page 1 of 1



 

 

APPENDIX C 

Alternative Water Resources  
Expansion Related Projects 



Appendix C-1 
Town of Oro Valley Water Utility 

Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions 
 

New water infrastructure is needed to meet demands in the water service area served by 
the Oro Valley Water Utility.  These demands will be met by the development of the 
Town of Oro Valley’s Central Arizona Project water. The Town of Oro Valley Water 
Utility is regulated by the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR) and is a 
member of the Tucson Active Management Area (TAMA). The Town needs to develop 
and use alternative renewable water resources, including its CAP water, to reduce ground 
water mining and reach safe yield in TAMA in 2025. 
 
The following projects are part of the Infrastructure Improvements Plan to be built over 
the next 10 years to develop and deliver water supply to meet future demands.   
 
1- La Cholla D-E Blending Booster Station (Transportation) 
 
Infrastructure improvements associated with blending groundwater with CAP water will 
be located on Naranja Drive near La Cholla Blvd.  Blending is necessary for water 
quality and reducing total dissolved solids (TDS) in the water system prior to delivering 
additional CAP water to meet future demands.  A new booster pump facility will deliver 
groundwater to mix with CAP water.  The facility will consist of booster pumps, flow 
meters, valves, electrical controls, telemetry and security wall.  Engineering services will 
be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost: $ 300,000 
 
2 – Wheeling of 1,000 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley (Transportation) 
 
This project will wheel (deliver) an additional 1,000 acre feet per year through the 
Tucson Water Naranja Reservoir facility to the Oro Valley water system. Construction of 
a booster station and associated pipelines at the Tucson Water Oasis reservoir site is 
required.  This project is required to increase flow and provide adequate pressure to 
deliver additional CAP water. Engineering services will be required and are included in 
the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 930,000 
 
3 – 24-Inch Pipeline – Naranja to La Cholla to Tangerine.  (Transportation) 
 
The addition of a new 24-inch pipeline from the Tucson Water Naranja reservoir facility 
to La Cholla north to Tangerine Road is required to deliver Oro Valley CAP water into 
the Oro Valley Water Utility’s distribution system.  Engineering services will be required 
and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost: $ 2,800,000 



 
4 – Oro Valley Water Utility Naranja CAP Booster Station Upgrade.  
(Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new pump at the Tucson Water Naranja facility and an upgrade of 
electrical service and controls is required to deliver Oro Valley CAP water into our 
distribution system.   
Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 1,200,000 
 
5 – E to C PRV Naranja Reservoir (OV).  (Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new pressure reducing valve (PRV) at Naranja Reservoir on the Oro 
Valley system to efficiently deliver additional CAP water to meet future demands.  
Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 100,000 
 
6 – Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 12-Inch Pipeline.  (Transportation) 
  
Installation of a new 12-inch CAP water main located on W. Camino Alto. The new main 
will reduce water velocity and excessive pressure for the efficient delivery of additional 
CAP water.   Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost: $ 880,000 
 
 
7 – Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 16-Inch Pipeline. (Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new 16-inch pipeline from the Tucson Water Oasis booster station to the 
Tucson Water Naranja reservoir facility for delivery of additional CAP water to the Oro 
Valley water system.   Engineering services will be required and are included in the 
project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 1,100,000 
 
8 – Wheeling of 500 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley. (Transportation). 
 
This project will wheel (deliver) an additional 500 acre feet per year of Oro Valley’s 
CAP water through the Tucson Water Naranja reservoir facility to the Oro Valley water 
system.  This project includes system improvements and the extension of a new 24-inch 
pipeline on Tangerine Road from La Cholla to La Canada. This is required to transport 
and convey the additional 500 acre feet per year of CAP water.  On the west end, it will 
connect to the 24-inch pipeline that will be constructed to La Cholla and Tangerine.  On 



the east end, it will connect the existing main at the intersection of La Canada and 
Tangerine.  Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 3,300,000 
 
9 – Steam Pump C-D Booster Station. (Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new C to D zone Booster Station at Steam Pump Ranch. The new pump 
is required to efficiently deliver additional CAP water to meet future demmands.  
Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 1,200,000 
 
10– Big Wash D-E Booster Station. (Transportation ) 
 
Installation of a new D to E zone Booster Station at the Big Wash reservoir facility 
located at the Oro Valley Marketplace. This new pump station will efficiently deliver 
CAP water to meet future demands.   Engineering services will be required and are 
included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 800,000 
 
11 – Inlet/Outlet Modifications at Allied Signal Reservoir. (Transportation)  
 
Installation of a new level control valve to prevent overfilling at the Oro Valley Allied 
Signal reservoir.  This project is required as additional CAP water is delivered to meet 
future demands.  Engineering services will be required and are included in the project 
cost. 
 
Total cost: $ 50,000 



!(

!(

!

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(

§̈¦10

OR
AC

LE 
RD

TH
OR

NY
DA

LE 
RD

LA 
CA

NA
DA

 DR

LA 
CH

OL
LA 

BL

LAMBERT LN

SH
AN

NO
N R

D

NARANJA DR

OVERTON RD

1ST
 AV

MAGEE RD

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

NO
RT

HE
RN

 AV

CHR
IST

IE D
R

CALLE CONCORDIA

TW
IN 

LAK
ES 

DR

EL C
AMINO DE M

ANANA

CAMINO DEL NORTE

MO
NA

 LIS
A R

D

CA
MIN

O D
E O

ES
TE

LAMBERT LN

LINDA VISTA BL

CO
YO

TE 
CR

OS
SIN

G T
R

HARDY RD

N C
AM

INO
 DE

 OE
STE

LA 
CA

NA
DA

 DR

MAGEE RD

HARDY RDHARDY RD

MOORE RD

LA 
CH

OL
LA 

BL

CA
MIN

O D
E O

ES
TE

SH
AN

NO
N R

D

INA RD

LAMBERT LN

CORTARO FARMS RD

108

6

2

3

1

4

7

7

9
5

11

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP,
swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

TOWN  OF  OR O  VAL LE Y  WAT ER  UT I L I TYTOWN  OF  OR O  VAL LE Y  WAT ER  UT I L I TY
10  YEAR  ALE R NAT IVE10  YEAR  ALE R NAT IVE

WAT E R  RE SOUR CES  IMP ROVE MEN TSWAT E R  RE SOUR CES  IMP ROVE MEN TS

PIMA  COUNTY
PINAL  COUNTY

Legend
Pima County Boundary

Oro Valley Town Limits

Marana Town Limits

Oro Valley Water Main

AWRDIF System Improvements

AWRDIF System Improvements
!(

!(

!

!(

!(

!(

E:\GIS and other Projects\10-15 Year Improvement\Alternative Water Resoucesr (10Year)_11x17.mxd

±
N.T.S.

ALTERNATIVE WATER RESOURCES 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE PROJECTS

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

La Cholla D-E Blending Booster Station

OVWU CAP 12" Pipe

Wheeling OVWU CAP 1000 AF/Year

24" Pipe - Naranja La Cholla to Tangerine

OVWU CAP Naranja Booster Station Upgrade

E to C PRV Naranja Reservoir

8
9
10
11

OCWU CAP 16-Inch Pipe Oasis

Big Wash D-E Booster Station

Inlet Outlet Modifications at Allied Signal Reservoir

Steam Pump C-D Booster Station

Wheeling OVWU CAP 500 AF/Year



 

 

APPENDIX D 

Potable Water System 
Expansion Related Projects 



 
 
 

Appendix D-1 
Town of Oro Valley Water Utility 

Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions 
 
 
1 – Property Acquisition. (Real Property) 
 
Acquisition of property for a new Palisades Reservoir. The property is located in the 
vicinity of First Ave. and Palisades. The property is required for a new 1.0 million gallon 
reservoir and future booster station to meet future demands.  
 
Total cost:  $  500,000 
 
2 – Palisade Reservoir Facility C-E Booster Station. (Transportation) 
 
Installation of a new C-E zone booster station at the Palisades reservoir site. This 
includes new electrical service, telemetry, controls and piping system to meet future 
demands.  Engineering services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 450,000 
 
3 – 1.0 Million Gallon Palisades Reservoir.  (Transportation) 
 
Construct a new 1.0 million gallon potable water reservoir, control building and security 
wall at the new Palisades site to meet future demands.  Engineering services will be 
required and are included in the project cost. 
Total cost:  $ 1,650,000 
 
 
4 – New 16-Inch Pipeline.  (Transportation)  
 
Installation of a  new 16-inch main from the Palisades reservoir site to First Ave. The 
main will connect to an existing C zone pipe to meet future demands.   Engineering 
services will be required and are included in the project cost. 
 
Total cost:  $ 1,650,000 
 



!(

!(

!(

!(

(

(

(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

§̈¦10

OR
AC

LE 
RD

TH
OR

NY
DA

LE 
RD

LA 
CA

NA
DA

 DR

LA 
CH

OL
LA 

BL

LAMBERT LN

SH
AN

NO
N R

D

NARANJA DR

OVERTON RD

1ST
 AV

MAGEE RD

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

RANCHO VISTOSO BL

NO
RT

HE
RN

 AV

CHR
IST

IE D
R

CALLE CONCORDIA

TW
IN 

LAK
ES 

DR

EL C
AMINO DE M

ANANA

CAMINO DEL NORTE

MO
NA

 LIS
A R

D

CA
MIN

O D
E O

ES
TE

LAMBERT LN

LINDA VISTA BL

CO
YO

TE 
CR

OS
SIN

G T
R

HARDY RD

N C
AM

INO
 DE

 OE
STE

LA 
CA

NA
DA

 DR

MAGEE RD

HARDY RDHARDY RD

MOORE RD

LA 
CH

OL
LA 

BL

CA
MIN

O D
E O

ES
TE

SH
AN

NO
N R

D

INA RD

LAMBERT LN

CORTARO FARMS RD

2 1

3

4

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP,
swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

TO WN  OF  OR O  VAL LE Y  WATE R  UT I L I TYTO WN  OF  OR O  VAL LE Y  WATE R  UT I L I TY
10  YE AR  P OTABL E10  YE AR  P OTABL E

WAT E R  S YS T EM  I MP RO VE ME NT SWAT E R  S YS T EM  I MP RO VE ME NT S

PIMA  COUNTY
PINAL  COUNTY

±
N.T.S.

Legend
Pima County Boundary

Oro Valley Town Limits

Marana Town Limits

Oro Valley Water Main

Potable Water System Improvement

!( Potable Water System Improvement

(

!(

(

(

E:\GIS and other Projects\10-15 Year Improvement\Potable Water (10Year)_11x17.mxd

POTABLE WATER SYSTEM 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE FUND PROJECTS

1
2
3
4

Property Acquisition C Zone Reservoir

Booster Station C to E Zone

1.0 MG Reservoir C Zone

New 16" Main C Zone 



 

 

APPENDIX E 

Expansion Related Capital Improvements 



APPENDIX E

Town of Oro Valley Water Utility

Table E-1: Alternative Water Resources Expansion Related Capital Improvements

Phase 1 Projects (1,000 AF/Year)

1 CAP La Cholla D-E Blending Booster Station Transportation 2014 300,000$          96,000$            396,000$          

2 Wheeling of 1000 Acre Feet CAP Water to Oro Valley Transportation 2016 930,000            297,600            1,227,600         

3 24-Inch Pipeline - Naranja to La Cholla to Tangerine Transportation 2018 2,800,000         896,000            3,696,000         

4 Oro Valley Water Utility Naranja CAP Booster Station Upgrade Transportation 2018 1,200,000         384,000            1,584,000         

5 E to C PRV Naranja Reservoir Transportation 2018 100,000            32,000              132,000            

6 Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 12-Inch Pipeline Transportation 2018 880,000            281,600            1,161,600         

7 Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 16-inch Pipeline Transportation 2019 1,100,000         352,000            1,452,000         

Phase 2 Projects (500 AF/Year)

8 Wheeling of 500 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley Transportation 2019 3,300,000         1,056,000         4,356,000         

9 Steam Pump C-D Booster Station Transportation 2021 1,200,000         384,000            1,584,000         

10 Big Wash D-E Booster Station Transportation 2021 800,000            256,000            1,056,000         

11 Inlet/Outlet Mod. at Allied Signal Reservoir. Transportation 2021 50,000              16,000              66,000              

TOTAL 12,660,000$    4,051,200$      16,711,200$    1,500 4,412 3,788$              

Project

No.
Project Name

Completion

Year

Capital

Cost

Interest and

Financing

Cost

Project

Type

Total

Project

Cost

Additional

Capacity

(acre-feet)

Additional

Service

Units

3,281

4,802

Development 

Fee per Service 

Unit

1,000

500

2,941

1,471

Page 1 of 1



APPENDIX E

Town of Oro Valley Water Utility

Table E-2: Potable Water System Expansion Related Capital Improvements

1 Property Acquisition Real Property 2019 500,000$              160,000$            660,000$            

2 Palisade Reservoir Facility C-E Booster Station Transportation 2021 450,000$              144,000$            594,000$            

3 1.0 Million Gallon Palisades Reservoir Transportation 2022 1,650,000$          528,000$            2,178,000$         

4 New 16-Inch Pipeline Transportation 2022 1,650,000$          528,000$            2,178,000$         

TOTAL 4,250,000$          1,360,000$         5,610,000$         386 1,135          4,943$                

386 1,135          4,943$                

Development 

Fee per Service 

Unit

Project

No.
Project Name

Project

Type

Completion

Year

Capital

Cost

Interest and

Financing

Cost

Total

Project

Cost

Additional

Capacity

(acre-feet)

Additional

Service

Units



Town Council Regular Session Item #   6.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: David Williams
Submitted By: Rosevelt Arellano

Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE NO. (O)14-01, AMENDING THE RANCHO VISTOSO PLANNED
AREA DEVELOPMENT ZONING FOR A 4.9 ACRE PROPERTY, LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF LA CANADA DRIVE AND MOORE ROAD FROM COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR)

RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval, subject to the conditions in Attachment 1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The applicant proposes an amendment to the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development zoning from
Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) on a 4.9 acre site located on the northeast
corner of La Canada Drive and Moore Road (see Attachment 2). The proposed rezoning will allow the
applicant to develop a residential subdivision similar to the adjacent neighborhoods to the north, west and
east.

On September 4, 2013, the Town Council approved a Minor General Plan Amendment for this property
allowing Medium Density Residential (MDR, 2.1 – 5.0 du/ac).

On December 3, 2013, the Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) voted to recommend approval of the
rezoning with conditions.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
The applicant proposes to rezone 4.9 acres to Medium Density Residential (MDR). The application
depicts 19 lots with a minimum lot size of 5,000 sq. ft., open space, one access point on La Canada
Drive and one access point on Moore Road. An additional 0.78 acre portion of the parcel located along
the east boundary is not part of the proposed development and will be set aside as natural open space
(see Attachment 3). The applicant’s site analysis has been included as Attachment 4.

Current Site Conditions

Zoning is Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development, Commercial (C-1)
Vacant property

Approvals-To-Date

June 1987: Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development Adopted
Sept. 2013: Minor General Plan Amendment to Medium Density Residential (MDR, 2.1 – 5.0 du/ac)



Approved

General Plan Conformance 

The proposed rezoning conforms to the existing Medium Density Residential (MDR, 2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) land
use designation of the General Plan Land Use Map. An MDR land use designation is characterized as
an area containing single-family homes with a density of 2.1 to 5.0 du/ac. The application proposes
detached single-family homes with a density of 3.8 du/ac.

The applicant’s proposed subdivision has been evaluated with the vision statement, goals and policies of
the General Plan. To meet General Plan expectations, two conditions have been added related to
cut-through traffic and pedestrian connectivity and are included in the Planning and Zoning
Commission’s (PZC) recommended conditions of approval in Attachment 1. A detailed analysis
regarding the application’s consistency with the General Plan is provided in the PZC staff report in
Attachment 5.

Planning and Zoning Commission Review

The applicant’s request was heard by the PZC on December 3, 2013.

At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Commission voted to recommend approval of the rezoning
with conditions based on conformance with the General Plan goals, policies and Land Use Map. The
PZC staff report is included as Attachment 5 and the PZC draft minutes are included as Attachment 6.

Public Notification and Comment 

Public notice has been provided to the following:

• Notification of all property owners within 600 feet and extended area
• Homeowners Association mailing
• Advertisement in The Daily Territorial newspaper
• Post on property
• Post at Town Hall and on website

A neighborhood meeting was held on May 2, 2013, with approximately six (6) residents attending. At the
meeting, the residents expressed a general support of the proposed subdivision due to the expectations
that the proposed use will contain shorter building heights and less traffic. The summary notes from the
meeting are provided as Attachment 7.

A “petition of concern” has also been received from several nearby property owners to the west (see
Attachment 8). The concerns identified in the petition include view preservation, headlight pollution, and
traffic hazards associated with future motorists making left turns onto La Canada Drive.

In some cases, these can be planning and design issues of concern.  However, due to the existing site
conditions and town regulations and requirements, staff does not believe these concerns require any
additional mitigation. The Zoning Code limits the number of 2-story homes to no more than 60% of the
lots, and requires that no more than two 2-story homes be located side-by-side on the same street.
Building height was raised as a concern at the PZC meeting; however, it was not perceived as a
significant issue due to the existing zoning which allows commercial building and the code limitations on
2-story homes.

The petition's concern for a left turn exit on La Canada Drive will be reviewed during the site plan process
in accordance with engineering standards. However, it is the opinion of the Town Engineer that traffic
hazards are minimized due to the proximity of the access points on La Canada Drive and Moore Road,
and the adjacent all-way stop condition intersection of these streets. 



Staff has also researched the headlight trespass concern along the west side of La Canada Drive which
was included in the petition. Consequently, staff has concluded that the existing vegetation and the six
(6) foot high block wall located on top of a two (2) foot high slope will provide reasonable mitigation.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to approve Ordinance No. (O)14-01, rezoning 4.9 acres on the northeast corner of Moore Road
and La Canada Drive from PAD Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR), subject to the
conditions in Attachment 1, finding that the request is consistent with the General Plan.

OR

I MOVE to deny Ordinance No. (O)14-01, finding that the proposed rezoning does not meet the General
Plan Land Use Map and the applicable goals and policies ______________________.

Attachments
Attachment 1 (O)14-01 Rancho Vistoso PAD Amendment
Attachment 2 Existing Zoning Map
Attachment 3 Location Map
Attachment 4 Site Analysis
Attachment 5 P&ZC Staff Report
Attachment 6 Draft P&ZC Minutes
Attachment 7 Neighborhood Meeting Summary
Attachment 8 Petition of Concern



ORDINANCE NO. (O)14-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE RANCHO VISTOSO PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT FROM COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR) 4.9 ACRE SITE LOCATED ON
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LA CANADA DRIVE AND 
MOORE ROAD

WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley residents ratified the Oro Valley General Plan on 
November 8, 2005; and

WHEREAS, Paul Oland of WLB Group, Inc., (“applicant”) is requesting an amendment 
of the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development from Commercial (C-1) to Medium 
Density Residential (MDR) for the 4.9 acre site on the northeast corner of La Canada 
Drive and Moore Road; and, 

WHEREAS, the applicant’s requested rezoning complies with the recently amended 
General Plan change approved by Council September 4, 2013; and, 

WHEREAS, Mayor and Council duly considered the amendment of the Rancho Vistoso 
Planned Area Development from Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) for the 4.9 acre site on the northeast corner of La Canada Drive and Moore Road
at a public hearing on January 5, 2014.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Town Council of the 
Town of Oro Valley that:

SECTION 1.  The Mayor and Council hereby adopts the amendment of the Rancho 
Vistoso Planned Area Development from Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density 
Residential (MDR) for the 4.9 acre site on the northeast corner of La Canada Drive and 
Moore Road as depicted on Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of the 
resolution or any part of the General Plan Amendment adopted herein is for any reason 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona 
this 15th day of January, 2014.

       



       TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

         ___
                                                                                 Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST:         APPROVED AS TO FORM:

       ___
Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk        Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date:         Date: ___



EXHIBIT “A”

Conditions of Approval 
Parcel 10T Rezoning

OV913-001
January 15, 2014

Planning:

1. The .78 acre area along the east boundary of the subject property, remaining C-1,
shall be permanently designated as open space on the subdivision plat.

2. Potential cut-through traffic will be evaluated by a professional engineer at the 
expense of the developer.  Traffic  calming  measures  may  be  required  to  be  
installed  by  the developer, if determined necessary by the Town Engineer.

3. A trail connection shall be constructed between the existing trail in the northeast 
corner of the property and the proposed internal sidewalk.



  

                    

                         

EXISTING ZONING MAP 
Parcel 10T (OV913-001) 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                               Attachment 2 

'CDR 
(PAD) 

"'" (PAD) 

I 

.," 
(PAD) 

R1 -20 



             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

           
                   

                 

 

  

         LOCATION MAP 
Parcel 10T (OV913-001) 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                               Attachment 3 



Attachment 4

Prepared For 

Bourne Investments LLC & 
JDW Investments Management LLC 

12475 N. Rancho Vistoso Blvd., Ste. 155 
Oro Valley, AZ 85755 

Prepared By 
The WLB Group, Inc. 

4444 East Broadway Blvd. 
Tucson, Arizona 85711 

Contact: Paul Oland 
520.881.7480 

gpoland@wlbgroup.com 

WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Prepared For 

Bourne Investments LLC & 
JDW Investments Management LLC 

12475 N. Ra ncho Vistoso Blvd., Ste. 155 
Oro Va lley, AZ 85755 

Prepared By 
The WLB Group, Inc. 

4444 East Broadway Blvd. 
Tucson, Arizona 85711 

Contact: Paul Oland 
520.881.7480 

gpoland@wlbgroup.com 

WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Tn."s WLB ~ouP 



Attachment 4

{' 

( 

( , 

( 

( , 

( 

( 

( . 

( , 

f _, 
( ) 
c 
( ) 
( J 

{ / 

() 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
{) 

() 

0 
() 

0 
() I 

( ) 
( ) 
( ) 
( ) 
( J 

( ) 
{ ~ 

( ) 
( / 

{ ) I 

( I 

c 

( 

( 

.
( 

{ 

( 

.
( 

( 

{ 

{,. 

(. 

(, 

C 
(, 

o 
C 
() 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
() 

o 
o 
() 

() 

() 

() 

() 

( 

() 

{1 

{ I 

() 



Attachment 4

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction .... ..... ..... ........ ...... .. ................................................ ... ... ..................... ...... .......... ...... .. ........ ......... 1 

I. INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS 
A. Existing Land Uses ............................................................................... .. .. ....... .... .................. .. ....... ......... 3 
B. Topography and Grading .. ..................................... .. ..................... ..... ..... ........................ .... .. ..... ... .......... 9 
c. Hydrology .... ........ ..... ...... .. ............ .... .... .. .... ..... .. ... .... .... ...... ... ... ................................................... .... .. .. . 11 
D. Vegetation .... .... ..... .... .. ..... ...... .... .... ... .. ..... ..... ..... ..... ... ... ....... ... ......... ..... ...... ..... ...... ... ... ... ... .. ........ ..... ... 13 
E. Wildlife ...................... .. .......... ........................ ..... ... ...... ...... ... .... ......... .. ..... ..... ... .. ............................. .... . 15 
F. Viewsheds ... ..... .... ....... ..... ......... ....... ...... ... ..... ..... .... ...................... ... .... ................................. ......... ....... 23 
G. Traffic ..... ..... ...... ........ ...... .. .... ........... ........... .. ......... .. ...... .. ... .. .......... ... ..... .... ... .......... .......... ... ..... .... ... .. .. 25 
H. Recreation and Trails .... ... .......... .... ... ... ..... .......... .. .... ..... ..... ........ ..... ............................. ....... .. .. ............. 39 
I. Cultural/ Archaeologica l/Historic Resources ............. .. ... .... .. ..... ... .. ..... .... .. .... ........ ...... ..... ..... ..... .. ... ..... 31 
J. Schools .. .. .................... .... .. ....... .. .. ........ ..... ... ..... ... ... .... ......... .. ............................................... ... .. .. ....... .. 33 
K. Water ..... .. .... ... .. .. .... ...... .......... ... ....... ... ..... ...... ..... ... ... .... ..... .......................................... .... ..... ........ ....... 33 
L. Sewers ................ ...................................................... ...... .... .. .... ....... ..... ... ... .... .. ..... ...... ..... ........ .... ........ 33 
M. McHarg Composite Map ..... ............. ..... .... ..... ...... ..... ...... ... ....................................................... .... ...... .. 36 

II. LAND USE PROPOSAL 
A. Project Overview ..... ...... ..... ... .. ..... .. ..... ....... ......... ...... ........ .... .. .... ... ........ .. ..... ...... ... ... ....... ... ................. 38 
B. Preliminary Development Plan ........... .. ...... .. ... ..... .. ... .. ..... .... ...... ......... ... ... .... ... .. ..... ......... .. ......... ... .... .. 38 
c. Existing Land Uses ......................... ..... ...... ..... ... ... ...... .......... ......... ......... .... .. .... ....... .. ........ .. .... ....... .... ... 41 
D. Topography .. ...................... .. ... ..... ... .. ... ...... .. ........ ...... ..... ................................................. .... .. .. ... ......... 41 
E. Hydrology ............... ... ... .............................................. ..... .... .. .... ....... ..... ...... ..... ...... ...... .................... .... 42 
F. Vegetation ... .. ...... .... .. ... ........................... .... .... .. ... .......... ...... ..... ... .................................................... ... . 44 
G. Wi ldlife ..... ... ... ... .. .... ... ............. ............. ... ... ..... .... ....... .. ... ............................................ ...... .... ... ........ .... 44 
H. Buffer Plan .................................................................. .. ........ ...... ... .... ..... .. .... ..... ..... ....... ..... ....... ........ ... 44 
I. Viewsheds .. .. ....... ......... .................... ... ...... ..... ..... ... ... ..... ................................................ ..... ... .. .. .... .... ... 46 
J. Traffic ...... .. ... .. .... .. .... .... .... ............. .......................... .. ............... ..... ... ..... .......... ... ................................... 49 
K. Sewers ............... .. .... ... ................ .... ...... .. .... ..... .. ................................. ..... ........... ......................... ......... 50 
L. Recreation and Trails .............................................................. ..... ..... ....... ...... ...... .... ... ... ...... ...... ... ... .... . 51 
M. Cultural, Archaeological, and Historic Resources ................................................................. ................ 52 
N. Schools ......... .. ..... .. ..... .. ....... .. .... ... .. .... .... .. .... ..... ..... .. .... ..... ............. ........................ ...... .... ............... .... .. 52 
0. Water .... ...... .. .......... ..... .. .............................. .................... .. .... ........ ..... ..... .. ... ... ... .. .... .. ..................... .... . 54 

TheWLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 18SOSO-JW-02 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction ... .... ...... ... ...... .... ... ......... .. ........... ... ... .... ...... ... .. .. ........ ... .... .... ..... .... .. ..... .. .... ........... .. ........ .. ...... .. 1 

I. INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS 

A. Existing Land Uses ............................................... ... .... ..... ... ... ....... ........... ... .. ... ... ........ ........ ......... .. ... ... ... 3 
B. Topography and Grading ........ .......... ............... ....... ........ , ... """' , ... ,., .. , ...... ". ,"' ..... , .... .. .. . , .... . , .. ......... .. ," 9 
C. Hydrology ., .. " ... , .. " ... , .. ,', .. , ...... ,., ..... .. .. ,., ... , .. .. , .... , ..... .... " ... , .. , .. , ... .... ... ,' .... ,., .. ' ..... ' .. "' ..... ,', .. , .. .. , ... .. , .. . , 11 
D. Vegetation ... ...... , .. , ... .. .... .. , .......... , ....... ,., .. ,' ........ " ...... , ......... , .. ", ... .. , ......... , ............... ..... ...... ..... "',.,"'" 13 
E. Wild life ,. '., ,., ,. , .. , , .. , ..... .. , .......... , .. ,', .... . ' ,., ,. , .... ' , ... . , .... , ... ...... , .. , .. , ........ ,., ,. ' .. ,. ,.' , .... , , .. , .. '. ' .. ,.,', ..... " . , .... ,., 15 
F. Viewsheds .. , .... , .. , .. ,., ... , .. , .. ,.,.,."".,., .. , .. ,.,"', ... ',."., .... ,.".".,",."., ...... , .... ,.,., ... ,".,' .. , ... , ... .. . , ... ,.,' .. ".,.',.,., 23 
G. Traffic .. , ....... , .. , .. , .. , .... ,', ..... , ..... , ..... ' , ... " ....... ...... , ........ ......... ..... ..... .. ... " ....... . " ....... , .. , .... , .. .. , .. , ....... , ... .... 25 
H. Recreation and Trails ....... . , .... , ... ... ... ,',., .. "., ...... . , ........... , .... ,', .. , .. .... ........ ..... , .. " .... , .. , .... ...... ..... ....... ... , .. 39 
I. Cu ltural/Archaeologica l/Historic Resources " .. " .. , ................. . , ........ .... , .. ... . " ......... ', ... , .. , .. ' ........... .... .. , 31 
J. Schools .. , ........ .. , ... ... .. .. , .... . , .. ... .... . , .... . , ... ... .. .. , ... ... .... .. , .. , .. ... .. . ,'" , ....... , .. ,' ..... , .. , ...... , .. , ...... ..... ... .. ... . ,., ... . 33 
K. Water .. .. , ..... , ... " ..... ,., .. , ..... ... .. ... ... , .. , .... , .. " ., ....... , .. , ... . , .. ,',., .. ,.,"", .. ,.,.,",.,, .,""',., .. ', .. "., ..... ,',., .... , .. ,., .. ,' 33 
L. Sewers ., .. ....... ,', .. .. ,', .. , ........ ,' .. , ...... , ........ , .... , .... ,", ...... .. .. .... ..... , ....... .... , ... .. .. .. , .... .... .. . ,', .... ... .... , .... ,' , ... .. 33 
M. McHarg Composite Map., .. , ... ....... , .. .. .... .. .. .. , .... , ............. ... , .... . " ....... , ...... .. .... , .. , .... .... " .. ... , .. " ........ ... ,'" 36 

II . LAND USE PROPOSAL 

A. Project Overview ., ... ... .. ,., .... .. , .. , ... .. , ......... ,., .. . , .. ,', ........ " .... ......... .... , .. , ... , ....... " ..... .. .. . , .................. , .. , .. , 38 
B. Preliminary Deve lopment Pl an" .... ", ...... , ... , .... , ........ ..... , .. , ........... ....... ... .. ... ... "., .... .... ,' .. ........ , .. ...... , ... , 38 
C. Existing Land Uses .................. .. .. ..... .. .. . " .... ... .... . , ... ..... .. , .. , ...... ,', ..... ,' .... , ..... , .. , .. , ....... , .. ,' .. .. .. ......... ... , .. , 41 
D. Topography .. . , ... ......... .. .. , .......... ... ... .. .. ... .. .. ... ....... ...... . , ... ..... ', ...... , .... , ... , .... .. .. , .... .. .. .. , .. , .. .. ... . , ....... ... ... , 41 
E. Hydrology ..... ..... ... , ........ ', ... , ...... , ..... , ....... , .. " ... " ... , ...... ', ... , .. .. , ......... .. ...... ,. , .. ....... ... ... ... ... ... .. ,' .. , ....... ... , 42 
F. Vegetation ., .. " ... , ........... .................. , .......... ... .. ..... ..... .. .... . , .... , .. ...... ..... , .. , ......... " .. .. ...... , .. .. , .. , .. .. ..... . , .. .. 44 
G. Wildlife ........... ...... ... ... ... " ... ... , .. , ... ... , .... . , .... , .. .. ... , .. , .. .. ... ... , .... .. , .. ,' , .. .. .. , .. , .. , .. .. , .. , ......... ......... ,', .. , .. .. ,., .. , 44 
H. Buffer Plan .... ,', ... ", .. , .. .... ,., ....... ,.,', .. "., .. ", ..... , .. ", ....... ... ... .. .. ..... , .. ... .. ..... ... .. .. , ... , ...... , ...... .... ........ ... . , ... , 44 
I. Viewsheds, ...... , .... , .. ,., ... .... , .. . , ... , ..... .. , ..... " .,.,' ... " ., .. ,' .... ,.,." ... "."., ... .. ".,.,', ... ".,."', ... ,", .. , .. .. ,., ., ... . , .. , ... , 46 
J. Traffic., ... .. " ... " ." .. ,., .. , .. . ,.,""", ... ,""",.' .. ' .. ,.,', ... "',."., ... , ..... ... . , .. , ... , .... , ..... , .. ... .. ,."., .. . ,.,." ... ,""", •. , .. , .... 49 
K. Sewers, ... ", .... , .. , ..... , ....... ,., ... , ......... ,." ... .. , ... . , ... . ,."." .... ,."" .... , .... " .. .. .. " .. , ..... ,., .. , .... .. ..... , ..... , .. " ... ... , ... , 50 
L. Recreat ion and Trails ... ... ,', ........ ,", .. ,' " .. ,',., .. ', ..... ',.,', .. ,"',., ... .. , .... , ... . , ................. . , .. .. ', ..... .. .. ,., .,' .. " ,' , ... 51 
M. Cultural, Archaeo logica l, and Historic Reso urces ." ." .. ", .. ,., .... " ., .. , .. .. , ... ", .... " .. ", " .... .. ,", .... .. ,., ' ...... " ., 52 
N. Schools, .. , .... , .. , .. , .. , .. , .... ... , .. , .. , ......... ,." .... " ., .... " ... "."., .. .... ,' .... ', ... ,.,' .. .. ,"', .... "', .. ," ..... ,', ..... ..... . , .... '.'.," 52 
O. Water. , .. " .. ,."., .... , ,.,"" .... .. ,'" ' .... . ,.,"",. , .. ,",., ' .. .. ,."." ... . ,., .. , .. .. " ... , .. , .. .. , ...... ... , ... .. ,' .... " , .. ,. ' .. ,. , .. , .... ,., .. ,. 54 

TheWLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parce l l0-T 
WLB No. 1850S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4
-~---~~-- ------

( 

f 
(, 

( 

( 

(y 

(! 
{) 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
Ol 
0 
0 
(~ 

0 
0 
(~ 

0 
0 
(; 

{) 
() 

(,. 

(~ 

(, 

( 

() 

c 
{) 

( 

( 

« 
( 

( 

c 
c· 
( 

( 

() 
(" 

ft 
() 
( 

(; 

{ 

o 
( 

o 
01 
O· 
() 

o 
o 
o 
() 

() 

() 

o 
(: 
() 

() 
( 

() 
( 

( 

V 
() 

« 
{' 

( 

(, 



Attachment 4

.EXHIBITS 

A. Location M ap ... .... ... ..... ... ... .... ... ........................... .. ... .. .... .. ..... ..... .............................. ...... .. ................. 2 
B. Aerial Photograph .............................................. ..... .. .... ..... ........ .. ..... ... ..... .... .... .. .... ........... ... ............. . 6 
C. Existing Land Uses ............................ .. ....... .. .. .... .. .. .. .................................. .......................................... 7 
D. Existing Zoning .. ....... .............. ... .... ............................................... ...... .......... .. .... .. ..... ...... ... ........ .. ....... 8 
E. Topography and Slope Analysis Map ........................ ....................................................................... . 10 
F. Pre-Development Hydrology ................................ ......... ..... ..... ... ... ... ... ...... .. ...... .. .... .. ..... ... ... ..... ... .... 12 
G. Vegetation Map .... .. ..... .. .. ... .. .. ..... ..... ...... .... .. .... ... .. ............................................ .. ..... ..... ............. ..... . 14 
H. Arizona Game and Fish Department Letter .. .... ...... ...... ......................... .. ...... ........ ........ ................... 16 
I. Viewsheds and Visibility Analysis .. ........ .. ............ .. .............................................................. .. .... ........ 24 
J. Roadway System and Traffic Volumes .......... .. .. .... .... .......................................... .............................. 27 
K. Bikeways Map .. .... ...................................... .. ................... .... ... ..................................... .. .. ... .. ............. 38 
L. Recreation and Trai ls .......................... ........ .. .................. .. .. ........ ................................ .. ..... .. .. .......... . 30 
M . Arizona State Museum Letter .. ... ........ ............... .. ............................................................................ . 32 
N. Schools ......................................... ...... .... .. .. .. ... .... ..... .. .. .. .. ............................... .......................... .. .... .. 34 
0. Sewers .................... ... ......... ..... ....... ...... ...... .... ........ ........... ..... ... ... ..... ... ...... .... ..... .. .... ............ ............ 35 
P. McHarg Composite Map .......... ........... ...... .................................................................................. .... .. 37 
Q. Tentative Development Plan (TOP) ...................... ............................................................. ............ .... 39 
R. Proposed Zoning .. .................... ................................ .. ...... .. .............................. ........... ... .. ................. 40 
S. Post-Development Hydrology .... .. ..... .. .... ...... .. .... .. .... ... ...... .. .. .... .. ........ ... ... .... .... .... .. .... ....... .. ..... ....... 43 
T. Buffer Areas ................................. ...... ... .... ................................ ..... .. ..... .. .... ....... ........ ........ ...... ......... 45 
U. Cross-Section Key Map .. ........... .. ....... ...... ..... .... ...... .... ................... ............................ .... .. ...... ............ 47 
V. Cross-Section Illustrations .. ... ... .. ....... .... .......... .... ..... .. ... ... ..... .. .. .. .... ...... ... .... .......... .. .... .... ... .. .. .......... 48 
W. Amphitheater School District Letter ................................. .... .. ..... .... ............. .. .............................. .. .. 53 

The 1n.J3 WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

_EXHIBITS 

A. Location Map ... ................................ ... ................. .... ............. ... ............. .......... .......... .. ...... ................ 2 
B. Aerial Photograph ................. .. ....... ... .. .................... .. .......... ...................... .......... .......... ....... ............ ... 6 
C. Existing Land Uses ................................. .. .... ..................... ............ ....................................................... 7 
D. Existing Zoning ........................................... ............................................ ....... .. .............. .. ........... ......... 8 
E. Topography and Slope Analysis Map ............ ............ ................................................... ..................... 10 
F. Pre-Development Hydrology ................................. ..... .... ................ .......... .............. .......................... 12 
G. Vegetation Map ......................................................... .......... ..................... ...... .... ...... ... .... ................. 14 
H. Arizona Game and Fish Department Letter ........ ...... ....... ............. ..................................... ............... 16 
I. Viewsheds and Visibility Analysis ........................................... ..... ........................................... ......... .. 24 
J. Roadway System and Traffic Vo lumes .......... .. .......... .. ............................................................... ....... 27 
K. Bikeways Map ................................................................................................................... ........ .. ...... 38 
L. Recreation and Trails ...................... ... .......... .. .......... .. ............. .................. .. ...................................... 30 
M. Arizona State Museum Letter .......................................................................................................... 32 
N. Schools ..................................................................... .. ....................................................... ................ 34 
O. Sewers ...................................................................... .. ............... ..... ................................................... 35 
P. McHarg Composite Map ....... .......... .. .. ........ .... ........ .. ......... .. ............ ................................................. 37 
Q. Tentative Development Plan {TDP) .............. ......... ... .............................. ............. .. .... .......... ............. . 39 
R. Proposed Zoning .............. .... .... ... ................................... ...... ....... ..... ................... .. ......... .. .... .. .. ......... 40 
s. Post-Development Hydrology ......... ... .... ..... ....... ......... ....................... .. ... ..... .............................. ....... 43 
T. Buffer Areas .......................... .................. ................ .................................................................... ...... 45 
U. Cross-Section Key Map .................................. .. ... .................. .. ........ .. .................................. .... ......... .. 47 
V. Cross-Section Illustrations ............................. .... ...... ... ......... .... .... ................ .. ........ .. ........ ... ............... 48 
W. Amphitheater School District Letter ............................ .... ......................................... ...... ... ............... 53 

The :wLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcell0-T 

WLB No. 1850S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4

f 
( 

( 

{ 

( 

f 

'~ 
t~ I 

(_ 

{JJ I 

() 
(~ 

{) 
(p 

() 
(~ 

(D 
0 
() 

() 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
() 
() 

(J 

0 
(P 
(~ 

() 
() 
() 

0 
(! 

{) 
{~ 

{? 

(~ 

(~ 

{ 

(J 

( 

c 
{ 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

(, 

() 
() 
(; 

o 
(I 

(..I 

o 
(. 

() 

o 
() 

() 

() 

o 
(t 

o 
o 
() 

o 
o 
{} 
(; 

(1 

{ 

() 
( 

f' 
fJ 
(. 

H 
l 
( 

(.. 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

PART 1- INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS 

Introduction 

This site analysis has been prepared in support of a proposed rezoning of Neighborhood 10 Parcel T 
(Parcel 10-T) in the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development. This project is a proposed residential 
subdivision located at the northeast corner of Moore Road and La Canada Drive. (Please refer to Exhibit 
A: Location Map.) As a master planned community, Rancho Vistoso appropriately included sufficient 
commercial land to meet the needs of its anticipated population. However, over the years Rancho 
Vistoso has developed at roughly two-thirds of its originally envisioned residential density. A 
commensurate drop in need for commercial land has resulted, which has caused this property to remain 
undeveloped. As Rancho Vistoso rapidly approaches build-out, the prospects grow dim that enough 
additional homes will be built in the area to support the development of the smaller, neighborhood
level commercial lands such as this one within the PAD. Of course, the General Plan's future land use 
designations reflect the original PAD design, and not the market reality that has manifested since then. 
A General Plan amendment application was submitted to the Town of Oro Valley in June 2013 to allow 
residential land uses to replace the current commercial entitlements due to the non-viability of 
commercial interest in this property's immediate vicinity. 

This proposal is to request a rezoning of the approximately 4.9-acre site from Commercial (C-1) to 
Medium Density Residential (MDR) within the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development (PAD). The 
proposed rezoning is supported by several factors, including its proximity to existing commercial 
developments and other undeveloped commercial property, compatibility with surrounding residential 
land uses, and adjacency to two arterial roadways. The anticipated overall gross density of Rancho 
Vistoso Parcel 10-T is approximately 3.8 dwelling units per acre, which is similar to existing 
neighborhoods on adjacent parcels. 

In order to make this project a reality, the appropriate land entitlements must be acquired for the 
property. The current land entitlements are not consistent with historic, current, or anticipated market 
demand; as such, the property owner is focused on acquiring the necessary entitlements in the Town of 
Oro Valley. 

TheWLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso PartellO-T 
WLB No. 18SOSO-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

PART I-INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS 

Introduction 

This site analysis has been prepared in support of a proposed rezoning of Neighborhood 10 Parcel T 
(Parcel 10-T) in the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development. This project is a proposed residential 
subdivision located at the northeast corner of Moore Road and La Canada Drive. (Please refer to Exhibit 
A: Location Map.) As a master planned community, Rancho Vistoso appropriately included sufficient 
commercial land to meet the needs of its anticipated population. However, over the years Rancho 
Vistoso has developed at roughly two-thirds of its originally envisioned residential density. A 
commensurate drop in need for commercial land has resulted, which has caused this property to remain 
undeveloped. As Rancho Vistoso rapidly approaches build-out, the prospects grow dim that enough 
additional homes wil l be built in the area to support the development of the smaller, neighborhood
level commercial lands such as this one within the PAD. Of course, the General Plan's future land use 
designations reflect the origina l PAD design, and not the market reality that has manifested since then. 
A General Plan amendment application was submitted to the Town of Oro Valley in June 2013 to allow 
residential land uses to replace the current commercial entitlements due to the non-viability of 
commercia l interest in this property's immediate vicinity. 

This proposal is to request a rezoning of the approximately 4.9-acre site from Commercial (C-l) to 
Medium Density Residential (MDR) within the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development (PAD). The 
proposed rezoning is supported by several factors, including its proximity to existing commercial 
developments and other undeveloped commercial property, compatibi lity with surrounding residential 
land uses, and adjacency to two arterial roadways. The anticipated overa ll gross density of Rancho 
Vistoso Parcel lO-T is approximately 3.8 dwelling units per acre, which is similar to existing 
neighborhoods on adjacent parcels. 

In order to make this project a reality, the appropriate land entitlements must be acquired for the 
property. The current land entitlements are not consistent with historic, current, or anticipated market 
demand; as such, the property owner is focused on acquiring the necessary entitlements in the Town of 
Oro Valley. 

The WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 

WLB No. 18S050-JW-02 



Attachment 4

{ 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Ana lysis 

1-A. Existing Land Uses 

1. Site Location 

The property subject to this rezoning request consists of 4.99 acres located on the 
northeast corner of Moore Road and La Canada Drive, Township llS, Range 13E, 
Section 26, Town of Oro Valley, Pima County, Arizona. It is within and bounded by the 
Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development to the north, east, and west. The subject 
property is bounded by the Vistoso Highlands subdivision to the south. Pima County 
tax assessor designates the subject property as parcel number 219-22-422H. 

Refer to Exhibit A for a location map of the subject property and to Exhibit 8 for an 
aerial photograph of the subject property. 

2. Existing Land Uses- On-site 

The subject property is currently undeveloped and vacant. Please refer to Exhibit C: 
Existing Land Uses. 

The subject property is currently zoned Commercial (C-1) in the Rancho Vistoso Planned 
Area Development (PAD). Please refer to Exhibit 0: Existing Zoning. The Town of Oro 
Valley recently approved an amendment which redesignated the subject property from 
Neighborhood Commercial/Office (NCO) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) in the 
General Plan land use map. The subject property is not located within the General Plan 
Significant Resource Areas Overlay District. 

3. Properties within one-quarter mile of site: 

Please refer to Exhibit C: Existing Land Uses and Exhibit 0 : Existing Zoning. The subject 
property is surrounded by the following existing zonings and land uses: 

a/b: Existing Zoning and Land Uses 

North: Existing zoning: 

Existing land use: 

North-East: Existing zoning: 

Existing land use: 

East: Existing zoning: 

MDR (Medium Density Residential- PAD) 
MHDR (Medium-High Density Residential- PAD) 
Golf Course (Golf Course- PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space- PAD) 
Residential and open space. 

MDR (Medium Density Residential- PAD) 
MHDR (Medium-High Density Residential- PAD) 
HDR (High Density Residential- PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space- PAD) 
Residential and open space 

MDR (Medium Density Residential- PAD) 

The UJLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 

WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-A. Existing Land Uses 

1. Site Location 

The property subject to this rezoning request consists of 4.99 acres located on the 
northeast corner of Moore Road and La Canada Drive, Township 11S, Range 13E, 
Section 26, Town of Oro Valley, Pima County, Arizona. It is within and bounded by the 
Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development to the north, east, and west. The subject 
property is bounded by the Vistoso Highlands subdivision to the south. Pima County 
tax assessor designates the subject property as parcel number 219-22-422H. 

Refer to Exhibit A for a location map of the subject property and to Exhibit B for an 
aerial photograph of the subject property. 

2. Exist ing Land Uses - On-site 

The subject property is currently undeveloped and vacant. Please refer to Exhibit C: 
Existing Land Uses. 

The subject property is currently zoned Commercial (C-l) in the Rancho Vistoso Planned 
Area Development (PAD). Please refer to Exhibit D: Existing Zoning. The Town of Oro 
Valley recently approved an amendment which redesignated the subject property from 
Neighborhood Commercial/Office (NCO) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) in the 
General Plan land use map. The subject property is not located within the General Plan 
Significant Resource Areas Overlay District. 

3. Properties within one-quarter mile of site : 

Please refer to Exhibit C: Existing Lond Uses and Exhibit D: Existing Zoning. The subject 
property is surrounded by the following existing zonings and land uses: 

alb: Existing Zoning and Land Uses 

North: Existing zoning: 

Existing land use: 

North-East: Existing zoning: 

Existing land use: 

East: Existing zoning: 

MDR (Medium Density Residential - PAD) 
MHDR (Medium-High Density Residential- PAD) 
Golf Course (Golf Course - PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space - PAD) 
Residential and open space. 

MDR (Medium Density Residential- PAD) 
MHDR (Medium-High Density Resi dentia l - PAD) 
HDR (High Density Residential- PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space - PAD) 
Residential and open space 

MDR (Medium Density Residential- PAD) 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 

WlB No. 1850S0·JW-Ol 



Attachment 4

Existing land use: 

South-East: Existing zoning: 

Existing land use: 

South: Existing zoning: 
Existing land use: 

South-West: Existing zoning: 

Existing land use: 

West: Exi sting zoning: 

Existing land use: 

North-West: Existing zoning: 

Existing land use: 

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

MHDR (Medium-High Density Residential- PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space- PAD) 
Residential and open space. 

Rl-10 (Single-Family Residential) 
Rl-20 (Single-Family Residential) 
Residential 

Rl-20 (Single-Family Residential) 
Residential. 

SR (Suburban Ranch- Pima County) 
Rl-20 (Single-Family Residential) 
Residential and vacant land. 

MDR (Medium Density Residential- PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space- PAD) 

Residential and open space. 

MDR (Medium Density Residential- PAD) 
VLDR (Very Low Density Residential- PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space- PAD) 
Residential and open space. 

c. Number of Stories of Existing Structures 

( 

( 

Adjacent structures within one-quarter mile of the subject property include both ( 
one and two-story single-family detached homes. 

d. Pending Rezonings 

There are no pending rezonings within a quarter mile of the subject property. ( 

e. Conditionally Approved Zonings 

( 
There are no conditionally approved zonings within a quarter mile of the subject ( 
property. 

f . Subdivisions and/or Development Plans Approved. 

Besides the existing subdivisions surrounding the site, no subdivision or 
development plans have been approved within a quarter mile of the subject 
property. 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Existing land use: 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

MHDR (Medium-High Density Residential- PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space - PAD) 
Residential and open space. 

South-East: Existing zoning: Rl-10 (Single-Family Residential) 
Rl-20 (Single-Family Residential) 

Residential Existing land use: 

South: Existing zoning: Rl-20 (Single-Family Residential) 
Residential. Existing land use: 

South-West: Existing zoning: SR (Suburban Ranch - Pima County) 
Rl-20 (Single-Family Residential) 
Residential and vacant land. Existing land use: 

West: Existing zoning: 

Existing land use: 

MDR (Medium Density Residential- PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space - PAD) 

Residential and open space. 

North-West: Existing zoning: MDR (Medium Density Residential- PAD) 
VLDR (Very Low Density Residential - PAD) 
Open Space (Open Space - PAD) 
Residential and open space. Existing land use: 

c. Number of Stories of Existing Structures 

d. 

e. 

f. 

~rB ..... ,.... n 
GrOuRW'~ 

Adjacent structures within one-quarter mile of the subject property include both 
one and two-story single-family detached homes. 

Pending Rezonings 

There are no pending rezonings within a quarter mile of the subject property. 

Conditionally Approved Zonings 

There are no conditionally approved zonings within a quarter mile of the subject 
property. 

Subdivisions and/or Development Plans Approved. 

Besides the existing subdivisions surrounding the site, no subdivision or 
development plans have been approved within a quarter mile of the subject 
property. 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 18S0S0-JW-02 

( 

• 
c 

« 

( 

( 

« 

( 

{ 

{ 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

g. Architectural styles used in adjacent projects. 

The architectural styles used in adjacent projects are mainly wood frame or slump 
block homes with either flat or tiled roofs. 

4. Location and ownership of wells/well sit es within 100 feet of site 

According to the Arizona Department of Water Resources, there are no wells located 
within 100 feet of the project site. 

The 1\TLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 1850SO-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

g. Architectural styles used in adjacent projects. 

The architectural styles used in adjacent projects are mainly wood frame or slump 
block homes with either flat or tiled roofs. 

4. Location and ownership of wells/well sites within 100 feet of site 

According to the Arizona Department of Water 
within 100 feet of the project site. 

Resources, there are no wells located 

The :wLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO·T 
WlB No. 1850S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4



Attachment 4

RESIDENTIAL 

REZONING 
AREA 

RESIDENTIAL 

• 

• 



Attachment 4

VLDR 
(PAD) 

0/S 
(PAD) 

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

MEDIUM-HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

VERY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

GOLF COURSE 

R1-7: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

R1-10: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

R1-20: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SR: SUBURBAN RANCH (PIMA COUNTY) 

VLDR 
(PAD) 

0/5 
(PAD) 

D 

C·l : 

HDR: 

MDHR: 

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

MEDIUM·HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

VERY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

GOLF COURSE 

MDR: 

VLDR: 

G/C: 

-Q 

D 
D 
D 

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY 
LEGEND 

R1·7: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

Rl·10: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

R1-20: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

R1·36: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SINGLE-FAMilY RESIDENnAL 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

1-B. Topography 

1. The topography of the subject property is characterized by flat terrain and some gentle 
slopes in the southwest and southeast portions of the site . The subject property 
generally slopes downward from north to south toward Moore Road. Refer to Exhibit E: 

Topography for a map of site topography, including slope ana lysis. 

Elevations range from approximately 2,884 feet at the highest point on the north side of 
the subject property to 2,868 feet at the lowest point on the southeast side of the 
subject property. The site does not contain any regulated 25% slopes, restricted 
peaks/ridges, or rock outcrops. No areas of this development are subject to the Hillside 
Development Zone, Section 24.2 of the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code. 

1. The pre-development average cross-slope 

The pre-development average cross-slope for the area of rezoning is approximately 4.5 
percent. This figure is derived using the formula set forth by the Hillside Development 
Zone, section 24.2.K of the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code. 

Average cross slope was calculated as follows: 

(I)(L)(0.0023) = (1' )(9,556.51' )(0.0023) = ~4.51% 
A 4.9 ac. 

The W'LB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vlstoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-B. Topography 

1. The topography of the subject property is characterized by flat terrain and some gentle 
slopes in the southwest and southeast portions of the site. The subject property 
generally slopes downward from north to south toward Moore Road. Refer to Exhibit E: 
Topography for a map of site topography, including slope ana lysis. 

Elevations range from approximate ly 2,884 feet at the highest point on the north side of 
the subject property to 2,868 feet at the lowest point on the southeast side of the 
subject property. The site does not contain any regulated 25% slopes, restricted 
peaks/ridges, or rock outcrops. No areas of this development are subject to the Hill si de 
Development Zone, Section 24.2 of the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code. 

1. The pre-development average cross-slope 

The pre-development average cross-slope for the area of rezoning is approximately 4.5 
percent. This figure is derived using the formula set forth by the Hillside Development 
Zone, section 24.2.K of the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code. 

Average cross slope was calculated as follows: 

(I)(L)(0.0023) = (1')(9.556.51')(0.0023) = -4.51% 

A 4.9 ac. 

JJl"s ..... ,... n 
Group"" A.!D 

Rancho Vistoso Parcell0-T 
WlB No . 18S0S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4

(NONE) 

-··-
REGULATED SLOPES 
25% OR GREATER (PER 
RANCHO VISTOSO PAD) 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY 

( 

( 

LEGEND 

(NONE) 

_ .. -
REGULATED SLOPES 
25% OR GREATER (PER 
RANCHO VISTOSO PAD) 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY 

( 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Ana lysis 

1-C. Hydrology 

The subject property is impacted by the watersheds of Parcels S, U, and V in Rancho Vistoso 
Neighborhood 10. Because upstream areas are entirely developed, st ormwater enters the 
vicinity of the subject property via channels, culverts and basins. The watershed of Parcel S 
discharges along the eastern boundary of Parcel T. The watershed of Parcel U discharges into 
channel adjacent to the north boundary of Parcel T. Finally, the watershed of Parcel V 
discharges into a culvert undern eath La Canada Drive and into a small basin located in the 
southeast corner of the site. On-site stormwater flow drains from the northeast to the 
southwest predominately by natura l drainage swales and braided overland sheet flow. The 
average slope of the site is greater than 2 percent. Onsite di scharges are insignificant compared 
t o offsite f lows. Existing drainage along the downstream property boundaries of Parcel 10-T is 
in a sheet f low condition or in very minor ill-defined braided channels. All flows are then 
directed south through culverts underneath Moore Road. From there, stormwater flows are 
intercepted by the Highlands Wash before ultimately discharging into the Canada Del Oro Wash 
(approximately 4.3 miles southwest of the subject property) . Refer to Exhibit F: Pre

Development Hydrology for a map of the local watersheds impacting the subject properties. 

The development site is located within a Zone X, which states that it is in the 500-year flood 
hazard area as defined by FIRM Panels 04019C1080L, effective date June 16, 2011. According to 
the Town Oro Valley Floodplain Ordinance article 17-3 (section 17-3-2), floodplains associated 
with washes and/or sheet flow areas having 100-year peak discharges of 50 cfs or more, are the 
minimum areas of applicability of this ordinance. In other words, all non-FEMA washes greater 
than 50 cfs need to be mapped on-site for stormwater flows exiting and entering the project 
site. A small portion of the southwest corner of Parcel 10-T is located within a floodplain with a 
discharge flow rate greater t han 50 cfs. However, the majority of the floodplain is contained 
within the stormwater management basin. To examine t he post-development hydrology 
concept, please refer to Section 11-E. 

TheWLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-C. Hydrology 

The subject property is impacted by the watersheds of Parcels 5, U, and V in Rancho Vistoso 
Neighborhood 10. Because upstream areas are entirely developed, stormwater enters the 
vicinity of the subject property via channels, culverts and basins. The watershed of ParcelS 
discharges along the eastern boundary of Parcel T. The watershed of Parcel U discharges into 
channel adjacent to the north boundary of Parcel T. Finally, the watershed of Parcel V 
discharges into a culvert underneath La Canada Drive and into a small basin located in the 
southeast corner of the site. On-site stormwater flow drains from the northeast to the 
southwest predominately by natural drainage swa les and braided overland sheet flow. The 
average slope of the site is greater than 2 percent. Onsite discharges are insignificant compared 
to offsite flows . Existing drainage along the downstream property boundaries of Parcel 10-T is 
in a sheet flow condition or in very minor ill-defined braided channels. All flows are then 
directed south through culverts underneath Moore Road. From there, stormwater flows are 
inte rcepted by the Highlands Wash before ultimately discharging into the Canada Del Oro Wash 
(approximately 4.3 miles southwest of the subject property). Refer to Exhibit F: Pre
Development Hydrology for a map of the local watersheds impacting the subject properties. 

The development site is located within a Zone X, which states that it is in the SOD-year flood 
hazard area as defined by FIRM Panels 04019C1080L, effective date June 16, 2011. According to 
the Town Oro Valley Floodplain Ordinance article 17-3 (section 17-3-2), floodplains associated 
with washes and/or sheet flow areas having 100-year peak discharges of 50 cis or more, are the 
minimum areas of applicability of this ordinance. In other words, all non-FEMA washes greater 
than 50 cis need to be mapped on-site for stormwater flows exiting and entering the project 
site. A small portion of the southwest corner of Parcel10-T is located within a floodplain with a 
discharge flow rate greater than 50 cis. However, the majority of the floodplain is contained 
within the stormwater management basin. To examine the post-development hydro logy 
concept, please refer to Section II-E. 

J/[}' 11 'K TT n 
Group tJI( .a...a.D 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
Wl B No. 1850S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4

LEGEND 

100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN/PONDING LIMITS 

WATERSHED BOUNDARY 

GENERAL FLOW DIRECTION ARROWS 

MOORE ROAD 

~--------~ 
MOORE ROAD 

~-y-------

LEGEND 

~
~ IOO-YEAR flOODf'lAJN/PONDING LIMITS 

, ...... , WATERSHED 60UNDARY 

, GENERAL FLOW DIRECTION ARROWS 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

1-D. Vegetation 

1. Vegetative communities and associations on the site 

The vegetation community on the property is typical of the Apacherian-Chihuahuan 
Mesquite Upland Scrub and Sonoran Paloverde-Mixed Cacti Desert Scrub (David E. 
Brown: Biotic Communities). 

2. Significant cacti and groups of trees and Federally-listed threatened or endangered 
species. 

The vegetation on the property consists of Velvet Mesquite (Prosopis velutina), Foothill 
Palo Verde (Cercid ium microphyllum), saguaro (Carnegiea gigantea), barrel cactus 
(Ferocactus wislizenii), and ocotil lo (Fouqueria splendens). 

3. Vegetative densities by approximate percentage of plant cover 

As determined by field reconnaissance and analysis of aerial photographs, the subject 
property contains no sign ificant vegetation (per Section 27.10 Environmentally Sensitive 
Lands in the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code). Please refer to Exhibit G: Vegetation 
Map. 

The WLB WLB 
GrOUR 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel tO-T 
WLB No . 185050-JW -02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-D. Vegetation 

1. Vegetative communities and associations on the site 

The vegetation community on the property is typical of the Apacherian-Chihuahuan 
Mesquite Upland Scrub and Sonoran Paloverde-Mixed Cacti Desert Scrub (David E. 
Brown: Biotic Communities) . 

2. Significant cacti and groups of trees and Federally-listed threatened or endangered 
species. 

The vegetation on the property consi sts of Velvet Mesquite (Prosopis velutinal. Foothill 
Pa lo Verde (Cercidium microphyllum), saguaro (Carnegiea gigantea), barrel cactus 
(Ferocactus wislizenii), and ocotillo (Fouqueria splendens). 

3. Vegetative densities by approximate percentage of plant cover 

As determined by field reconnaissance and analysis of aerial photographs, the subject 
property contains no significant vegetation (per Section 27 .10 Environmentally Sensitive 
Lands in the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code). Please refer to Exhibit G: Vegetation 
Map. 

TheWLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WlB No. IBSOSO-JW-02 



Attachment 4

(NONE) 

-··-
SIGNIFICANT 
VEGETATION (PER ORO 
VALLEY ZONING CODE) 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY 

LEGEND 

(NONE) 

_ .. -
SIGNIFICANT 
VEGETATION (PER ORO 
VALLEY ZONING CODE) 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Ana lysis 

1-E. Wildlife 

According to Arizona's Online Environmental Review Tool, there are three special species and 
one wildlife corridor within three miles of the project site. These are the Golden Eagle, Cactus 
Ferruginous Pygmy-owl, Sonoran Desert Tortoise, and the Tucson - Tortolita - Santa Catalina 
Mountains Linkage Design. See Exhibit H: Arizona Game and Fish Department Online 
Environmental Review Tool Printout. 

The :wLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Ana lysis 

I-E. Wildlife 

According to Arizona's Online Environmental Review Tool, there are three special species and 
one wil dlife corridor within three miles of the project site. These are the Golden Eagle, Cactus 
Ferruginous Pygmy-owl, Sonoran Desert Tortoise, and the Tucson - Tortolita - Santa Catalina 
Mountains Linkage Design. See Exhibit H: Arizona Game and Fish Department Online 
Environmental Review Tool Printout. 

The :wLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 1850S0-JW-02 



A
ttachm

ent 4

Gl::§!-1 

! 

"' AI 
::1 

:;E g. 
r-o 
"' < 
2 - · 
0 ~ 
0 0 
.... "' co o 
lll ..., 
O o. 
lll ~ 
O n 
.!..,11> 
:;E ;: 
' O o. 

IV -l 

.----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------, m 
Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool 
Search ID: 20 130628020671 
Project Name: Rancho Vistoso Par 10-T 
Date: 6/28/20 13 2:59: 16 PM 

Project Location 

~ 

" ~ 
n 

a 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

"'"~"""(I)Q..~"'t 

TIK,JlUI!: ' -·~· \ I 

------------1 

OR~~ALLEY 

M --- ..--./ - ___ I - ,_ 
- --

' 

Project Name: Rancho Vistoso Par 10-T 
Submitted By: Gregory McDowell 
On behalf of: PRIVATE 
Project Search ID: 20130628020671 
Date: 612812013 2:59:06 PM 

--
I 

~ 
I-~ .. ~~ -

• • ! 
ft!IIW!Itllbll:JO! !-

• .,;;;...""t' ~ 

I f 
0 ,. 

> 
f ·" '""""..I.~ 

Project Category: Development Within Municipalities (Urban 
Growth), Residential subdivision and associated infrastructure,New 
construction 
Project Coordinates (UTM Zone 12-NAD 83): 500897.903, 3589081.809 
meter 
Project Length: 445.995 meter 
County: PIMA 
USGS 7.5 Minute Quadrangle ID: 1684 
Quadrangle Name: ORO VALLEY 
Project locality is not anticipated to change 

Location Accuracy Disclaimer 
Project locations are assumed to be both precise and 
accurate for the purposes of environmental review. The 
creator/owner of the Project Review Receipt is solely 
responsible for the project location and thus the 
correctness of the Project Review Receipt content. 

The Department appreciates the opportunity to provide in-depth comments and project review when 
additional information or environmental documentation becomes available. 

Special Status Species Occurrences/Critical Habitat/Tribal Lands within 3 
miles of Project Vicinity: 

Name Common Name FWS USFS BLM I State 

Aquila chrysaetos Golden Eagle BGA s 
Glaucidium brasilianum cactorum Cactus Ferruginous Pygmy-owl sc s s IWSC 

Gopherus morafkai Sonoran Desert Tortoise c· s IWSC 

Tucson - Tortol ita- Santa Catalina Wildlife Corridor 
Mountains Linkage Design 

Page 1 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

~ ~ ~ 

X 
:r 
cr 
~ 
~ 

~ 
~ N. 
0 
~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

3 
~ 

~ 
~ 
CL 
~ 

~
:r 
0 
~ 
~ 
~ 
~ 
~ 

3 
~ 
~ 
~ 

~ -~ ~ 
~ 

~ 
QJ 

OQ 
~ .... -

-o 
QJ -. ,.... 

::J 
< ro 
::J ,.... 
0 -. 
-< 
QJ 
::J 
c.. 
)> 
::J 
QJ 

-< 
V> 
v;· 

'" • , 
:;: 8-
~ o 
~< z _. 
o ~ . 0 -. ~ o 

~ " O. 
~ " O n 
"- 0 :;: ;: 
' 0 0 , 

N .... 

Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Too l 
Search 1 D: 20130628020671 
Projecl Name: Rancho Vistoso Par 10-T 
Date: 6/28/2013 2:59: 16 PM 

Project Location 
'. 

T he Department appreciates the opportunity to provide in-depth comments and project review when 
additional information or environmental documentation becomes available 

J ~ Special Status Species Occurrences/Critical HabitatITribal lands within 3 . ! ,- i miles of Project Vic inity: 

n : 
Name Common Name FWS USFS BLM 

: .. " .. J __ -::: 
Aqu ila chrysaetos Golden Eagle BGA 5 , "'cr.""", ,, 

! 
,.. , Glaucidium brasil ianum cactorum Cactus Ferruginous Pygmy-owl 5C 5 5 , 

\ _ ..... , • , " .... ". ,,.,......,... ...... Gopherus morafkai Sonoran Desert Tortoise C- 5 , OR~,},':'LLEY 
, 

\ 
, 

1 ! Tucson - Tortolita - Santa Catalina Wi ldlife Corr idor 

------------! 
, 
~ 

...... "'-'" , Mountains linkage Design 
.. , . I ~ ......... ..,,,, 
~ - "- ~ -~ 

I - - -

t l 
- -, '- , 

~......" ......... ~. ,. -
: __ ..c, 

-- '" /-

Project Name: Rancho Vistoso Par 10-T 
Submitted By: Gregory McDowell 
On behalf of: PRIVATE 
Project Search 10: 20130628020671 
Dat.o 6128120 13 2059:06 PM 
Project Category: Development Within Municipalities (Urban 
Growth), Residential subdivision and associated infrastructure,New 
construction 
Project Coordinates (UTM Zone 12-NAD 83): 500897.903,3589081.809 
meter 
Project Length: 445.995 meter 
County: PIMA 
USGS 7.5 Minute Quadrangle 10: 1684 
Quadrangle Name: ORO VALLEY 
Project loca lity is not anticipated to change 

Location Accuracy Disclaimer 
Project locations are assumed to be both precise and 
accurate for the purposes of environmental review. The 
creator/owner of the Project Review Receipt is solely 
responsible for the project location and thus the 
correctness of the Project Review Receipt content. 

Page 1 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

- I 

State 

W5C 

W5C 

m 
)C 
:T 

IT 
;:;: 
:z: 
l> 
::!, 
N o 
::J 
II> 
G) 
II> 

3 
/1) 

II> 
::J 
a. 
." 
in' 
:T 

C 
/1) 

" '" ~ 
3 
/1) 

::J 
~ 

[ 
~ 
/1) 
~ 



A
ttachm

ent 4

£?~~ 

~ 

::0 ... 
::J 

~ g. 
•o 
"' < z - -
0 ~ 
. 0 ,__.., 
co o 
VI -, a., 
VI ~ 
O n 
~ !!. 
~ ... 
' 0 o, 
N ~ 

,--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------, m 
Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool ~ 
Search 10: 2013062802067 1 0: 
Project Name: Rancho Yistoso Par I 0-T ;::;: 
Date: 6/28/2013 2:59: 16 PM :I: 

Please review the entire receipt for project type recommendations 
and/or species or location information and retain a copy for future 
reference. If any of the information you provided did not accurately 
reflect th is project, or if project plans change, another review should be 
conducted , as this determination may not be valid. 

Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool: 

1. This On-line Environmental Review Tool inquiry has generated 
recommendations regarding the potential impacts of your project on 
Special Status Species (SSS) and other wildlife of Arizona. SSS 
include all U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service federally listed, U.S. Bureau 
of Land Management sensitive, U.S. Forest Service sensitive, and 
Arizona Game and Fish Department (Department) recognized species 
of concern. 
2. These recommendations have been made by the Department, under 
authority of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 5 (Amusements and 
Sports), 17 (Game and Fish), and 28 (Transportation). These 
recommendations are preliminary in scope, designed to provide early 
considerations for all species of wildlife, pertinent to the project type 
you entered. 
3. This receipt , generated by the automated On-line Environmental 
Review Tool does not constitute an official project review by 
Department biologists and planners. Further coordination may be 
necessary as appropriate under the National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA) and/or the Endangered Species Act (ESA). 

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) has regulatory authority 
over all federally listed species under the ESA. Contact USFWS 
Ecological Services Offices: http://arizonaes.fws.gov/. 

Phoenix Main Office 
2321 W. Royal Palm Road, Suite 103 
Phoenix, AZ 85021 
Phone 602-242-0210 
Fax 602-242-2513 

Tucson Sub-Office 
201 North Bonita, Suite 141 
Tucson, AZ 85745 
Phone 520-670-6144 
Fax 520-670-6154 

Flagstaff Sub-Office 
323 N. Leroux Street, Suite 101 
Flagstaff, AZ 86001 
Phone 928-226-0614 
Fax 928-226-1 099 

Disclaimer: 

1. This is a preliminary environmental screening tool. It is not a 
substitute for the potential knowledge gained by having a biologist 
conduct a field survey of the project area. 
2. The Department's Heritage Data Management System (HDMS) data 
is not intended to include potential distribution of special status 
species. Arizona is large and diverse with plants, animals, and 
environmental conditions that are ever changing. Consequently, many 
areas may contain species that biologists do not know about or 
species previously noted in a particular area may no longer occur 
there. 
3. Not all of Arizona has been surveyed for special status species, and 
surveys that have been conducted have varied greatly in scope and 
intensity. Such surveys may reveal previously undocumented 
population of species of special concern. 
4. HDMS data contains information about species occurrences that 
have actually been reported to the Department. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Mission 

To conserve, enhance, and restore Arizona's diverse wildlife 
resources and habitats through aggressive protection and 

Page 2 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

)> 
::::!. 
N 
0 
::J 
Qj 

G') 
Qj 

3 
11) 

Qj 

::J 
c. 
:!! 
VI 
=r 
0 
11) 
"0 
Qj 

~ 
3 
11) 
::J .... 
r-
11) .... .... 
11) .., 

"0 
Qj 

(IQ 
11) 

~ 

"'0 
OJ ...., .... 
::l 
< 
11) 
::l .... 
0 ...., 
-< 
OJ 
::l 
c.. 
)> 
::l 
OJ 

-< 
Vl 

VI 

'" • , 
:< 9-
r 0 
ro < z 
o ~ 
. 0 
~. 
00 0 
~~ o . 
gj ;; 
"- . :< ;:: 
' 0 0, 
~ .... 

,---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------O m 
Ari zona's On- line Environmental Review Tool x 
Search ID: 20 130628020671 ~ 
Project Name: R,mcho Vistoso Par 10-T ;::::j." 

Date: 6/28/2013 2:59: 16 PM :I: 

Please review the entire receipt fo r project type recommendations 
andlor species o r location information and retain a copy for future 
reference. If any of the information you provided did not accurately 
reflect this project , or if project plans change, another review should be 
conducted , as this determination may not be valid . 

Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool: 

1. Th is On-line Envi ronmental Review Tool inquiry has generated 
recommendations regarding the potential impacts of your project on 
Special Slatus Species (SSS) and other wi ldlife of Arizona. SSS 
include all U.S. Fish and Wild life Service federal ly listed, U.S. Bureau 
of Land Management sensitive, U.S. Forest Service sensitive, and 
Arizona Game and Fish Department (Department) recognized species 
of concern . 
2. These recommendations have been made by the Department, under 
authority of A rizona Revised Statutes Title 5 (Amusements and 
Sports), 17 (Game and Fish), and 28 (Transportation) . These 
recommendations are prelim inary in scope, designed to provide early 
considerations for all species of wildlife , pertinent to the project type 
you entered . 
3. This receipt , generated by the automated On-line Environmental 
Review Tool does not constitute an offi cia l project review by 
Department biologists and planners. Further coordination may be 
necessary as appropriate under the National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA) andlor the Endangered Species Act (ESA). 

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) has regulatory authority 
over all federally listed species under the ESA. Conlact USFWS 
Ecologica l Services Offices: http://a rizonaes.fws .gov/. 

Phoenix Main Office 
2321 W. Royal Palm Road, Suite 103 
Phoenix, AZ 85021 
Phone 602-242-0210 
Fax 602-242-2513 

Tucson Sub-Office 
201 North Bonita, Suite 141 
Tucson, AZ 85745 
Phone 520-670-6144 
Fax 520-670-6154 

Flagstaff Sub-Office 
323 N. Leroux Street, Suite 101 
Flagstaff, AZ 86001 
Phone 928-226-0614 
Fax 928-226-1099 

Disclaimer: 

1. This is a preliminary environmental screening tool. It is not a 
substitute for the potential knowledge gained by having a biologist 
conduct a field survey of the project area . 
2. The Department's Heritage Data Management System (HDMS) data 
is not intended to include potential d istribution of special status 
species. Arizona is large and diverse with plants, animals, and 
environmental conditions that are ever changing. Consequently, many 
areas may contain species that biologists do not know about or 
species previously noted in a particular area may no longer occur 
there. 
3. Not all of Arizona has been surveyed for special status species, and 
surveys that have been conducted have varied greatly in scope and 
intensity. Such surveys may revea l previously undocumented 
population of species of special concern. 
4. HDMS data contains information about species occurrences that 
have actually been reported to the Department. 

Arizona Game and Fish Department Mission 

To conserve, enhance, and restore Arizona's diverse wildlife 
resources and habitats through aggressive protection and 

Page 2 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

l> 
~ ,,' o 
" III 
C') 
III 

3 
t1> 
III 

" Co 
.." 
V; ' 
:r 
C 
t1> 

" III 
~ 
3 
t1> 

" ~ 
i 
~ 

t1> 
~ 



A
ttachm

ent 4

~~;! 
.-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------,m 

·~ 

;a ., 
::> 

:E g. 
• o 
"" < z -· 
0 !!:. . 0 ..... ., 
coo 
lll_, o., 
lll ...., 
On 
' "" ~ ;: 
' 0 Oo 
N-1 

Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool 
Search I D: 20 130628020671 
Project Name: Rancho Yistoso Par I 0-T 
Date: 6/28/20 I 3 2:59: I 6 PM 

management programs, and to provide wildlife resources and 
safe watercraft and off-highway vehicle recreation for the 
enjoyment, appreciation, and use by present and future 
generations. 

Project Category: Development 
Within Municipalities (Urban 
Growth),Residential subdivision and 
associated infrastructure,New 
construction 
Project Type Recommendations: 

All degraded and disturbed lands should be restored to their natural 
state. Vegetation restoration projects (including treatments of invasive 
or exotic species) should have a completed site-evaluation plan 
(identifying environmental conditions necessary to re-establish native 
vegetation), a revegetation plan (species, density, method of 
establishment), a short and long-term monitoring plan, including 
adaptive management guidelines to address needs for replacement 
vegetation. 

Based on the project type entered; coordination with Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality may be requ ired 
(http://www.azdeq.gov/). 

Based on the project type entered; coordination with Arizona 
Department of Water Resources may be required 
(http://www. water. az. gov/adwr/) 

Based on the project type entered; coordination with County Flood 

Control districts may be required. 

Based on the project type entered; coordination with State Historic 
Preservation Office may be required 
http://azstateparks. com/SHPO/index. htm I 

Based on the project type entered; coordination with U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers may be required 
(http:!/www.spl.usace.army.mil/regulatory/phonedir.html) 

Communities can actively support the sustainability and mobility of 
wildlife by incorporating wildlife planning into their 
regional/comprehensive plans, their regional transportation plans, and 
their open space/conservation land system programs. An effective 
approach to wildlife planning begins with the identification of the wildl ife 
resources in need of protection, an assessment of important habitat 
blocks and connective corridors, and the incorporation of these critical 
wildlife components into the community plans and programs. 
Community planners should identify open spaces and habitat blocks 
that can be maintained in their area, and the necessary connections 
between those blocks to be preserved or protected. Community 
planners should also work with State and local transportation planning 
entities, and planners from other communities, to foster coordination 
and cooperation in developing compatible development plans to 
ensure wildlife habitat connectivity. The Department's guidelines for 
incorporating wildlife considerations into community planning and 
developments can be found at 
http :1/www .azgfd. gov/hgis/gu idelines. aspx. 

Development plans should provide for open natural space for wildlife 
movement, while also minimizing the potential for wildlife-human 
interactions through design features. Please contact Project Evaluation 
Program for more information on living with urban wildlife. 

During planning and construction, minimize potential introduction or 
spread of exotic invasive species. Invasive species can be plants, 

Page 3 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

(&.,....,...1'&,..~-~.- ,.. ,.. ,.., ~ .... - .-.. ... ~ fA, !fa.. f"'!>. .... .... ~~- --.,A-~-.-. 

X 
:r 
cr 
~ 

:I: 

)> .... 
j:;j ' 
0 
::I 
Ql 

Ci) 
Ql 

3 
It) 

Ql 
::I 
c. 
'TI 
iii' 
:r 
c 
It) 

"C 
Ql .... .... 
3 
It) 
::I .... ,... 
It) .... .... 
It) .... -"C 
Ql 

(IQ 
It) 

~ 

""0 
Ql ..... ..... 

:::::1 
< ro 
:::::1 ..... 
0 ..... 
< 
Ql 
:::::1 
c. 
)> 
:::::1 
!l) 

-< 
V> 
V> 

,co, -. -. - -. --

" • , 
:;:g. 
r 0 
~< z _. 
o :0 . 0 
~. 
000 
~ ~ 
0. 
~, 
00 
"- . :;: ;: 
'0 0, 

N .... 

r-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------'m 
Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool ~ 
Search [0: 20 [3062802067 [ <T 
Project Name: Rancho Vistoso IJar 10-T ;:t: 
Date: 6/28/20 [3 2:59: [6 PM 

management programs, and to provide wildlife resources and 
safe watercraft and off-highway vehicle recreation for the 
enjoyment, appreciation, and use by present and future 
generations. 

Project Category: Development 
Within Municipalities (Urban 
Growth),Residential subdivision and 
associated infrastructure,New 
construction 

Project Type Recommendations: 

All degraded and disturbed lands should be restored to their natural 
state. Vegetation restoration projects (including treatments of invasive 
or exotic species) should have a completed site-evaluation plan 
(identifying environmental conditions necessary to re-establish native 
vegetation), a revegetation plan (species, density, method of 
establishment), a short and long-term monitoring plan , including 
adaptive management guidelines to address needs for replacement 
vegetation. 

Based on the project type entered; coord ination with Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality may be required 
(http://www.azdeq.govl). 

Based on the project type entered; coordination with Arizona 
Department of Water Resources may be required 
(http://www.water.az.gov/adwrl) 

Based on the project type entered; coordination with County Flood 

Control districts may be required , 

Based on the project type entered; coordination with State Historic 
Preservation Office may be required 
http://azstateparks.comISHPOlindex.htm [ 

Based on the project type entered; coordination with U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers may be required 
(http://www.sp[.usace.army.mi[l regu[atorylphonedir.htm[ ) 

Communities can actively support the sustainability and mobility of 
wildlife by incorporating wildlife planning into their 
regional/comprehensive plans, their regional transportation plans, and 
their open space/conservation land system programs. An effective 
approach to wildlife planning begins with the identification of the wildlife 
resources in need of protection, an assessment of important habitat 
blocks and connective corridors, and the incorporation of these critica l 
wildlife components into the community plans and programs. 
Community planners should identify open spaces and habitat blocks 
that can be maintained in their area, and the necessary connections 
between those blocks to be preserved or protected. Community 
planners should also work with State and local transportation planning 
entities, and planners from other communities, to foster coordination 
and cooperation in developing compatible development plans to 
ensure wi ldlife habitat connectivity. The Department's guidelines for 
incorporating wildlife considerations into community planning and 
developments can be found at 
http://www.azgfd.gov/hgislguide[ines.aspx. 

Development plans should provide for open natural space for wildlife 
movement, while also minimizing the potential for wildlife-human 
interactions through design features. Please contact Project Evaluation 
Program for more information on living with urban wildlife. 

During planning and construction , minimize potential introduction or 
spread of exotic invasive species. Invasive species can be plants, 

Page 3 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

::t: 

l> 
~ 

",' 
o 
::s 

'" G) 

'" 3 
11> 

'" ::s 
Co .., 
U;' 
:::r 
C 
11> 
." 

'" ~ 
3 
11> 
::s 
~ 

i 
~ 

11> 
~ 



A
ttachm

ent 4

0~d 

~ 

"' .. 
:I 

:iE9-
r- 0 

"'< z -· 
0 :!: . 0 
.... "' co o 
1,/1"0 
0 .. 
1,11 ~ 
0 n 
~ p_ 

:iE ..... 
' 0 o. 
N-i 

.--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------,m 
Ari zona's On-line Enviromnental Review Tool ~ 
Search I D: 20 13062802067 1 a= 
Project Name: Rancho Yistoso Par I 0-T ;:+ 
Date: 6/28/201 3 2:59:16 PM :;: 

animals (exotic snails}, and other organisms (e.g. microbes), which 
may cause alteration to ecological functions or compete with or prey 
upon native species and can cause social impacts (e.g. livestock 
forage reduction, increase wildfire risk). The terms noxious weed or 
invasive plants are often used interchangeably. Precautions should be 
taken to wash all equipment utilized in the project activities before and 
after project activities to reduce the spread of invasive species. Arizona 
has noxious weed regulations (Arizona Revised Statutes, Rules 
R3-4-244 and R3-4-245). See Arizona Department of Agriculture 
website for restricted plants 
http://www.azda.gov/PSD/quarantine5.htm. Additionally, the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture has information regarding pest and invasive 
plant control methods including: pesticide, herbicide, biological control 
agents, and mechanical control: 
http://www. usda.gov/wps/portallusdahome. The Department regulates 
the importation, purchasing, and transportation of wildlife and fish 
(Restricted Live Wild life), please refer to the hunting regulations for 
further information http://www.azgfd.gov/h_f/hunting_rules.shtml. 

During the planning stages of your project, please consider the local or 
regional needs of wildlife in regards to movement, connectivity, and 
access to habitat needs. Loss of this permeability prevents wildlife from 
accessing resources, finding mates, reduces gene flow, prevents 
w ildlife from re-colonizing areas where local extirpations may have 
occurred , and ultimately prevents wildlife from contributing to 
ecosystem functions, such as pollination, seed dispersal, control of 
prey numbers. and resistance to invasive species. In many cases, 
streams and washes provide natural movement corridors for wildlife 
and should be maintained in their natural state. Uplands also support a 
large diversity of species, and should be contained within important 
wild life movement corridors. In addition, maintaining biodiversity and 
ecosystem functions can be facilitated through improving designs of 
structures, fences, roadways, and culverts to promote passage for a 
variety of wildlife. 

Hydrological considerations: design culverts to minimize impacts to 

channel geometry, or design channel geometry (low flow, overbank, 
floodplains) and substrates to carry expected discharge using local 
drainages of appropriate size as templates. Aquatic wildlife 
considerations: reduce/minimize barriers to migration of amphibians or 
fish (e.g. eliminate falls). Terrestrial wildlife : washes and stream 
corridors often provide important corridors for movement. Overall 
culvert width, height, and length should be optimized for movement of 
the greatest number and diversity of species expected to utilize the 
passage. Culvert designs should consider moisture, light, and noise, 
while providing clear views at both ends to maximize uti lization . For 
many species, fencing is an important design feature that can be 
utilized with culverts to funnel wildlife into these areas and minimize 
the potential for roadway collisions. Guidelines for culvert designs to 
facilitate wildlife passage can be found at 
http://www.azgfd.gov/hgis/guidelines.aspx. 

Minimization and mitigation of impacts to wildlife and fish species due 
to changes in water quality, quantity, chemistry, temperature, and 
alteration to flow regimes (timing, magnitude, duration, and frequency 
of floods) should be evaluated. Minimize impacts to springs, in-stream 
flow, and consider irrigation improvements to decrease water use. If 
dredging is a project component, consider timing of the project in order 
to minimize impacts to spawning fish and other aquatic species 
(including spawning seasons), and to reduce spread of exotic invasive 
species. We recommend early direct coordination with Project 
Evaluation Program for projects that could impact water resources, 
wetlands, streams, springs, and/or riparian habitats. 

Planning: consider impacts of lighting intensity on mammals and birds 
and develop measures or alternatives that can be taken to increase 
human safety while minimizing potential impacts to wildl ife. Conduct 
wildlife surveys to determine species within project area, and evaluate 
proposed activities based on species biology and natural history to 
determine if artificial lighting may disrupt behavior patterns or habitat 
use. 

Page 4 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

)> 
::!. 
N 
0 
::I 
Q) 

G) 
Q) 

3 
Ill 
Q) 

::::J 
c. 
"T'' 
iii' 
::r 
0 
Ill 
'0 
Q) .... 
r+ 

3 
Ill 
::::J 
r+ 
r
Ill 
r+ 
r+ 
Ill .... 
'0 
Q) 

O'Q 
Ill 

~ 

"'0 
Q) ..... ....... 

::::J 
< ro 
:::J 
....... 
0 ..... 
< 
OJ 
::::J 
c. 
)> 
:::J 
OJ 

< 
Vl 
Vl 

'" • 
" "g. 

r 0 
~< z _. 
o ~ 
. 0 
~ . 
000 
~." 

~ !!: 
On 
'- 0 ,, ;: 
• 0 
O. 
~ -< 

r---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Om 
Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool 
Search 10: 201 30628020671 
Project Name: Rancho Vistoso Par 10-T 
Date: 6/28/2013 2:59: 16 PM 

animals (exotic snails), and other organisms (e.g. microbes), which 
may cause alteration to ecological functions or compete with or prey 
upon native species and can cause social impacts (e.g. livestock 
forage reduction , increase wildfire risk). The terms noxious weed or 
invasive plants are often used interchangeably. Precautions should be 
taken to wash all equipment utilized in the project activities before and 
after project activities to reduce the spread of invasive species. Arizona 
has noxious weed regulations (Arizona Revised Statutes, Rules 
R3-4-244 and R3-4-245). See Arizona Department of Agriculture 
website for restricted plants 
http://www.azda.gov/PSD/quarantine5.htm. Additionally. the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture has information regarding pest and invasive 
plant control methods including: pesticide, herbicide, biological control 
agents, and mechanical control : 
http://www.usda .gov/wps/portal/usdahome. The Department regulates 
the importation , purchasing, and transportation of wildlife and fish 
(Restricted Live Wildlife), please refer to the hunting regu lations for 
further information http://www.azgfd .gov/h_f/hunting_rules.shtml. 

During the planning stages of your project, please consider the local or 
regional needs of wildlife in regards to movement, connectivity , and 
access to habitat needs. Loss of this permeability prevents wildlife from 
accessing resources, finding mates, reduces gene flow, prevents 
wildlife from re-colonizing areas where local extirpations may have 
occurred, and ultimately prevents wildlife from contributing to 
ecosystem functions, such as pollination, seed dispersal, control of 
prey numbers, and resistance to invasive species. In many cases, 
streams and washes provide natural movement corridors for wildlife 
and should be maintained in their natural state. Uplands also support a 
large diversity of species, and should be contained within important 
wi ldlife movement corridors. In addition, maintaining biodiversity and 
ecosystem functions can be facilitated through improving designs of 
structures, fences, roadways, and culverts to promote passage for a 
variety of wildlife . 

Hydrological considerations: design culverts to minimize impacts to 

channel geometry, or design channel geometry (low flow, overbank, 
floodplains) and substrates to carry expected discharge using local 
drainages of appropriate size as templates. Aquatic wildlife 
considerations: reduce/min imize barriers to migration of amphibians or 
fish (e.g. eliminate falls). Terrestrial wildlife: washes and stream 
corridors often provide important corridors for movement. Overall 
culvert width. height. and length should be optimized for movement of 
the greatest number and diversity of species expected to utilize the 
passage. Culvert designs should consider moisture, light, and noise, 
while providing clear views at both ends to maximize utilization . For 
many species, fencing is an important design feature that can be 
utilized with culverts to funnel wildlife into these areas and minimize 
the potential for roadway collisions. Guidelines for culvert designs to 
facilitate wildlife passage can be found at 
http://www.azgfd.gov/hgis/guidelines.aspx. 

Minimization and mitigation of impacts to wildlife and fish species due 
to changes in water quality, quantity, chemistry, temperature, and 
alteration to flow regimes (timing, magnitude, duration, and frequency 
of floods) should be eva luated. Minimize impacts to springs, in-stream 
flow, and consider irrigation improvements to decrease water use. If 
dredging is a project component, consider timing of the project in order 
to minimize impacts to spawning fish and other aquatic species 
(including spawning seasons), and to reduce spread of exotic invasive 
species. We recommend early direct coord ination with Project 
Evaluation Program for projects that could impact water resources, 
wetlandS, streams, springs, and/or riparian habitats. 

Planning: consider impacts of lighting intensity on mammals and birds 
and develop measures or alternatives that can be taken to increase 
human safety while minimizing potential impacts to wildlife. Conduct 
wildlife surveys to determine species within project area, and evaluate 
proposed activities based on species biology and natural history to 
determine if artificia l lighting may disrupt behavior patterns or habitat 
use. 

Page 4 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

x 
::T 

0-
;:;: 
:I: 

l> 
~ 

N' 
o 
::l .. 
Gl .. 
3 
'" .. 
:::l 
Co 
." V;. 
::T 

C 

'" "0 .. 
~ 

3 
'" ::l .... 
i .... 
'" ~ 



A
ttachm

ent 4

0:!E::;l arm 

! 

:>:l ., 
"' :§! g. 

r-o 
"" < z - · 
0 ~ 
. 0 ....... 
co o 
lll -g 
o., 
lll ~ 

9~ 
~;: 
' 0 

0 ' 
N -i 

.-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------.m 
Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool ; 
Search ID: 20130628020671 c;: 
Project Name: Rancho Yistoso Par I 0-T ;:::;: 
Date: 6128/2013 2:59: 16 PM :L 

The Department recommends that wildlife surveys are conducted to 
determine if noise-sensitive species occur within the project area. 
Avoidance or minimization measures could include conducting project 
activities outside of breeding seasons. 

The Department requests further coordination to provide 
projecUspecies specific recommendations, please contact Project 
Evaluation Program directly. 

The construction or maintenance of water developments should 
include: incorporation of aspects of the natural envi ronment and the 
visual resources, maintaining the water for a variety of species, water 
surface area (e.g. bats require a greater area due to in-flight drinking), 
accessibility, year-round availability, minimizing potential for water 
quality problems, frequency of flushing, shading of natural features, 
regular clean-up of debris, escape ramps, minimizing obstacles, and 
minimizing accumulation of silt and mud. 

Trenches should be covered or back-filled as soon as possible. 
Incorporate escape ramps in ditches or fencing along the perimeter to 
deter small mammals and herptefauna (snakes, lizards, tortoise) from 
entering ditches. 

Project Location and/or Species recommendations : 

Heritage Data Management System records indicate that one or more 
listed, proposed, or candidate species or Critical Habitat (Designated 
or Proposed) have been documented in the vicinity of your project 
(refer to page 1 of the receipt). Please contact: 
Ecological Services Office 
US Fish and Wildlife Service 
2321 W. Royal Palm Rd. 
Phoenix, AZ 85021-4951 
Phone: 602-242-0210 
Fax: 602-242-2513 

HDMS records indicate your project is in or near an identified wildl ife 
habitat linkage corridor. Project planning and implementation efforts 
should focus on maintaining adequate opportunities for wildlife 
permeability. For information on the linkage assessment and wildlife 
species that may be affected refer to: 
http://www.corridordesign .org/arizona. Contact your Arizona Game and 
Fish Department Regional Office for specific project recommendations: 
http://www.azgfd.gov/inside_ azgfd/agency_directory.shtml 

Recommendations Disclaimer: 

1. Potential impacts to fish and wildlife resources may be minimized or 
avoided by the recommendations generated from information 
submitted for your proposed project. 
2. These recommendations are proposed actions or guidelines to be 
considered during preliminary project development. 
3. Additional site specific recommendations may be proposed during 
further NEPNESA analysis or through coordination with affected 
agencies. 
4 . Making this information directly available does not substitute for the 
Department's review of project proposals, and should not decrease our 
opportunity to review and evaluate additional project information and/or 
new project proposals. 
5. The Department is interested in the conservation of all fish and 
wildlife resources, including those Special Status Species listed on this 
receipt, and those that may have not been documented w ithin the 
project vicinity as well as other game and nongame wildlife. 
6. Further coordination requires the submittal of this initialed and 
signed Environmental Review Receipt with a cover letter and 
project plans or documentation that includes project narrative, 
acreage to be impacted, how construction or project activity(s) 
are to be accomplished, and project locality information 
(including site map). 

Page 5 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

)> .... ;:::;· 
0 
::J 
Q,) 

Cj') 
Q,) 

3 
f'D 
Q,) 

::J 
c. 
"T'' 
Vi' 
::r 
0 
f'D 
-c 
Q,) .... .... 
3 
f'D 
::J .... 
r
f'D 
r+ 
r+ 
f'D .... 
-c 

Q,) 
OQ 
f'D 

~ 

iJ 
Q,) 

;:+ 

::J 
< ro 
::J ..... 
0 ..... 
-< 
Q,) 

::J 
c.. 
)> 
::J 
Q,) 

-< V> 
v;· 

'" • , 
:;; 9-
r 0 
m < 
z 
o :<: . 0 
~. 
00 0 
~ ~ 

5::~ 
On 
.!.o 
:;; ;: 
' 0 0, 
~ .... 

,-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------' m 
Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool 
Search I D: 20130628020671 
Projeci Name: Rancho Visloso Par 10-T 
Date: 6128/2013 2:59: 16 PM 

The Department recommends that wi ldlife surveys are conducted to 
determine if noise-sensitive species occur within the project area. 
Avoidance or minimization measures could include conducting project 
activities outside of breeding seasons. 

The Department requests further coordination to provide 
project/species specific recommendations, please contact Project 
Evalual ion Program directly. 

The construction or maintenance of water developments should 
include: incorporation of aspects of the natural environment and the 
visual resources, maintaining the water for a variety of species, water 
surface area (e.g. bats require a greater area due to in-flight drinking), 
accessibility, year-round availability, minimizing potentia l for water 
quality problems, frequency of flushing, shading of natural features, 
regular clean-up of debris, escape ramps, minimizing obstacles, and 
minimizing accumulation of silt and mud . 

Trenches should be covered or back-filled as soon as possible. 
Incorporate escape ramps in ditches or fencing along the perimeter to 
deter small mammals and herptefauna (snakes, lizards, tortoise) from 
entering ditches. 

Project Location and/or Species recommendations : 

Heritage Data Management System records indicate that one or more 
listed, proposed, or candidate species or Critical Habitat (Designated 
or Proposed) have been documented in the vicinily of your projecl 
(refer to page 1 of the receipt). Please contact: 
Ecological Services Office 
US Fish and Wildl ife Service 
2321 W. Royal Palm Rd. 
Phoenix, AZ 85021-4951 
Phone: 602-242-0210 
Fax: 602-242-251 3 

HDMS records indicate your project is in or near an identified wildlife 
habitat linkage corridor. Project planning and implementation efforts 
should focus on maintaining adequate opportunities for wildlife 
permeability. For information on the linkage assessment and wildlife 
species that may be affected refer to: 
http://www.corridordesign .org/arizona. Contact your Arizona Game and 
Fish Department Regional Office for specific project recommendations: 
http://www.azgfd.gov/inside_azgfd/agency_directory.shtml 

Recommendations Disclaimer: 

1. Potential impacts to fish and wildlife resources may be minimized or 
avoided by the recommendations generated from information 
submitted for your proposed project. 
2. These recommendations are proposed actions or guidelines to be 
considered during preliminary project development. 
3. Additional site specific recommendations may be proposed during 
further NEPAIESA analysis or through coord ination with affected 
agencies. 
4 . Making this information directly available does not substitute for the 
Department's review of project proposals, and should not decrease our 
opportunity to review and evaluate additional project information and/or 
new project proposals. 
5. The Department is interested in the conservation of all fish and 
wildlife resources, including those Special Status Species listed on this 
receipt, and those that may have not been documented within the 
project vicinity as well as other game and nongame wi ldl ife. 
6. Further coordination requires the submittal of this initialed and 
signed Environmental Review Receipt with a cover letter and 
project plans or documentation that includes project narrative, 
acreage to be impacted, how construction or project activity(s) 
are to be accomplished, and project locality information 
(including site map). 

Page 5 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

" ,.. 
C" 
;:;: 
:I: 

l> 
~ 

N' 
o 
:::> ., 
G'l ., 
3 
'" ., 
:::> 
Co 
." 
0;' 
:r 
o 
'" '0 ., 
~ 
~ 

3 
ro 
:::> 
~ 

~ 
'" ~ 

--



A
ttachm

ent 4

~~~ 

! 

:>:> 
Qj 

" ;E g. 
r- 0 

"' < z -· 
0 ~ 
. 0 
..... "' 00 0 cn ., 
0 ... 
l.n ~ 
On 
' "' ~~ 
' O o. 
N -1 

Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool ~ 
Search I D: 20 130628020671 =. 
Project Name: Rancho Yistoso Par I 0-T !2: 
Date: 6/28/20 13 2:59: 16 PM ,. 

7. Upon receiving information by AZGFD, please allow 30 days for 
completion of project reviews. Mail requests to: 

Project Evaluation Program, Habitat Branch 
Arizona Game and Fish Department 
5000 West Carefree Highway 
Phoenix, Arizona 85086-5000 
Phone Number: (623) 236-7600 
Fax Number: (623) 236-7366 

Terms of Use 

By using this site, you acknowledge that you have read and 
understand the terms of use. Department staff may revise these terms 
periodically. If you continue to use our website after we post changes 
to these terms, it will mean that you accept such changes. If at any 
time you do not wish to accept the Terms, you may choose not to use 
the website. 

1. This Environmental Review and project planning website was 
developed and intended for the purpose of screening projects for 
potential impacts on resources of special concern. By indicating your 
agreement to the terms of use for this website, you warrant that you 
will not use this website for any other purpose. 
2. Unauthorized attempts to upload information or change information 
on this website are strictly prohibited and may be punishable under the 
Computer Fraud and Abuse Act of 1986 and/or the National 
Information Infrastructure Protection Act . 
3. The Department reserves the right at any time, without notice, to 
enhance, modify, alter, or suspend the website and to terminate or 
restrict your access to the website. 
4. This Environmental Review is based on the project study area that 
was entered. The review must be redone if the project study area, 
location, or the type of project changes. If additional information 
becomes available, this review may need to be reconsidered. 
5. A signed and initialed copy of the Environmental Review Receipt 

indicates that the entire receipt has been read by the signer of the 
Environmental Review Receipt. 

Security: 

The Environmental Review and project planning web application 
operates on a complex State computer system. This system is 
monitored to ensure proper operation, to verify the functioning of 
applicable security features, and for other like purposes. Anyone using 
this system expressly consents to such monitoring and is advised that 
if such monitoring reveals possible evidence of criminal activity, system 
personnel may provide the evidence of such monitoring to law 
enforcement officials. Unauthorized attempts to upload or change 
information; to defeat or circumvent security measures; or to utilize this 
system for other than its intended purposes are prohibited. 

This website maintains a record of each environmental review search 
result as well as all contact information. This information is maintained 
for internal tracking purposes. Information collected in this application 
will not be shared outside of the purposes of the Department. 

If the Environmental Review Receipt and supporting material are not 
mailed to the Department or other appropriate agencies within six (6) 
months of the Project Review Receipt date, the receipt is considered to 
be null and void, and a new review must be initiated. 

Print this Environmental Review Receipt using your Internet browser's 
print function and keep it for your records. Signature of this receipt 
indicates the signer has read and understands the information 
provided. 

Signature: _______________ _ 

Page 6 of? APPLICATION INITIALS: 

:I: 

l> .... 
p:j' 
0 
::J 
llJ 

Ci') 
llJ 

3 
ttl 
llJ 
::J c. 
:!'!. 
Ill 
::r 
0 
ttl 
"0 
llJ .... .. 
3 
ttl 
::J .. 
r
ID .. .. 
ttl .... 

"0 
llJ 

C7Q 
ttl 

~ 

"0 
llJ ..., ...... 

:::l 
< 
ttl 
:::l ...... 
0 ..., 
< 
OJ 
:::l 
Cl... 

l> 
:::l 
O.l 

< 
l.n 

l.n 

'" • , 
:;:9-
r 0 

"' < z -. 
o ~ 
. 0 
~ . 
000 

~ " 
a:~ 
~@ 
:;:;::; 
' 0 0 , 

N .... 

r-~--~~~-=--~----~~~-=~~----------------------------------------------------------------'m 
Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool x 
Search [0: 20 [3062802067 [ ::r 
Proj ect Name: Rancho Vistoso Pa r 10-T ~ 
Date: 6/28/20 [3 2:59 :[6 PM :I: 

7. Upon receiving information by AZGFD, please allow 30 days for 
completion of project reviews. Mail requests to : 

Project Evaluation Program, Habitat Branch 
Arizona Game and Fish Department 
5000 West Carefree Highway 
Phoenix, Arizona 85086-5000 
Phone Number: (623) 236-7600 
Fax Number: (623) 236-7366 

Terms of Use 

By using this site, you acknowledge that you have read and 
understand the terms of use. Department staff may revise these terms 
periodically. If you continue to use our website after we post changes 
to these terms, it will mean that you accept such changes. If at any 
time you do not wish to accept the Terms, you may choose not to use 
the website. 

1. This Environmental Review and project planning website was 
developed and intended for the purpose of screening projects for 
potential impacts on resources of special concern. By indicating your 
agreement to the terms of use for this website, you warrant that you 
will not use this website for any other purpose. 
2. Unauthorized attempts to upload information or change information 
on th is website are strictly prohibited and may be punishable under the 
Computer Fraud and Abuse Act of 1966 andlor the Nationa[ 
Information Infrastructure Protection Act . 
3. The Department reserves the right at any time, without notice, to 
enhance, mOdify, alter, or suspend the website and to terminate or 
restri ct your access to the website. 
4 . This Environmental Review is based on the project study area that 
was entered. The review must be redone if the project study area , 
location , or the type of project changes. If additional information 
becomes available, this review may need to be reconsidered. 
5. A signed and initia led copy of the Environmental Review Receipt 

indicates that the entire receipt has been read by the signer of the 
Environmental Review Receipt. 

Security: 

The Environmental Review and project planning web application 
operates on a complex State computer system. This system is 
monitored to ensure proper operation, to verify the functioning of 
applicable security features, and for other like purposes. Anyone using 
this system expressly consents to such monitoring and is advised that 
if such monitoring reveals possible evidence of criminal activity, system 
personnel may provide the evidence of such monitoring to law 
enforcement officials. Unauthorized attempts to upload or change 
information : to defeat or circumvent security measures; or to utilize th is 
system for other than its intended purposes are prohibited. 

This website maintains a record of each environmental review search 
result as well as all contact information. This information is maintained 
for internal tracking purposes. Information collected in this application 
will not be shared outside of the purposes of the Department. 

If the Environmental Review Receipt and supporting material are not 
mailed to the Department or other appropriate agencies within six (6) 
months of the Project Review Receipt date, the receipt is considered to 
be null and void, and a new review must be initiated . 

Print this Environmental Review Receipt using your Internet browser's 
print function and keep it for your records. Signature of this receipt 
indicates the signer has read and understands the information 
provided. 

Signature: ________________ _ 

Page 6 of7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

l> 
~ 

N' 
o 
:J 
0/ 

G'l 
0/ 

3 
It> 
0/ 
:J 
Co 
." 
;;;' 
::r 
o 
It> 

" 0/ 
~ 
3 
It> 
:J 
~ 

§: 
~ 

It> 
~ 



A
ttachm

ent 4

~~;! 

~ 

:>:) 

"" " :E 9-
r- 0 
"" < z -· 
0 ~ . 0 ...... ., 
oo o 
"'"" Ocu "' ... 0 n 
' II) 

~ ;: 
'0 o. 
N-4 

Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool 
Search I D: 201 30628020671 
Project Name: Rancho Yistoso Par I 0-T 
Date: 6/28/20 13 2:59:16 PM 

Date: ______________________________ __ 

Proposed Date of Implementation: --------------------

Please provide point of contact information regarding this 
Environmental Review. 

Contact Name: ---------------------

Address: ----,--------------

City, State, Zip:--------

Application or organization responsible for project implementation Phone: ________________ _ 

Agency/organization: __________________ _ 

E-mail: -----------------------

Contact Name: ---------------------

Address: -----------------

City, State, Zip:--------

Phone: __________________ _ 

E-mail: -----------------------

Person Conducting Search (if not applicant) 

Agency/organization : __________________ __ 

Page 7 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

~ ~ .... 

m 
X 
:r 
C'" 
;::;: 
:I: 

l> 
::!. 
N 
0 
::::s 
Ill 
C) 
Ill 
3 
tD 
Ill 
::::s 
c.. 
:!! 
Ill 
:r 
0 
tD 
"C 
Ill .., ..... 
3 
tD 
::::s ..... 
I"'"' 

!a ..... 
tD .., 

"C 
Ill 

O'Q 
tD 
-...! -

"0 
Q} .... ...... 

::::s 
< ro 
::::s ...... 
0 .... 
< 
Q} 

:::J 
c.. 
l> 
:::J 
Q} 

-< 
"' Vl 

I!'"'. 

Arizona's On-line Environmental Review Tool 
Search I D: 201 30628020671 
Pro ject Name: Rancho Vistoso Par 10-T 
Date: 6/2812013 2:59: 16 PM 

Date: ______________ _ 

Proposed Date of Implementation: _________ _ 

Please provide point of contact information regarding this 
Environmental Review. 

Contact Name: __________ _ 

Address: ________ _ 

City, State, Zip: ________ _ 

Application or organization responsible for project implementation Phone: ________ ___ 

Agencylorganizalion: _________ _ 
E-mail: __________ ___ 

Contact Name: ___________ _ 

Address: ______ __ _ 

City, State, Zip: _______ _ ___ 

Phone: ________ _ 

E-mail : ___________ _ 

Person Conducting Search (if not applicant) 

Agency/organization: __________ _ 

Page 7 of 7 APPLICATION INITIALS: 

m 
x =. 
c
;:;: 
::t: 

l> 
~ 

N" 
o 
" '" G) 

'" 3 
to 

'" " Q. 

." 
in" 
::r 
C 
to 

" '" ;:::. 
3 
to 

" ... 
!i ... 
to 
~ 

" '" .. 
to 

..::! 

..... 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

1-F. Viewsheds 

The residential community proposed for this site will not negatively affect the views 
from adjacent properties. In fact, the type of commercial development permitted by 
the current zoning would allow for taller buildings and greater potential for blocking 
views from adjacent properties. For instance, C-1 Commercial zoning allows for a three
story building with a maximum height of 34-foot whereas Medium Density Residential 
zoning allows for a two-story residential home with a maximum height of 30-foot. 
Moreover, commercial development may generate a greater negative visual impact due 
to parking requirements, loading zones, dumpsters, etc. Residential development is 
more consistent with the existing surroundings and has minimal negative visual impact. 
Please refer to Exhibit 1: Viewsheds and Visibility Analysis on the following page. 

~~B .. 'IT"W' "D 
Group ft' .L.&D 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 

WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-F . Viewsheds 

The residential community proposed for this site will not negat ively affect the views 
from adjacent properties. In fact, the type of commercial development permitted by 
the current zoning would allow for taller buildings and greater potential for blocking 
views from adjacent properties. For instance, C-1 Commercial zoning allows for a three
story building with a maximum height of 34-foot whereas Medium Density Residential 
zoning allows for a two-story residential home with a maximum height of 30-foot. 
Moreover, commercial development may generate a greater negative visual impact due 
to parking requirements, loading zones, dumpsters, etc. Residential development is 
more consistent with the existing surroundings and has minimal negative visual impact. 
Please refer to Exhibit I: Viewsheds and Visibility Analysis on the following page. 

The :wLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcell0-T 
WlB No. 18S0S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4

w 
~ 
0:: 
c 
<( 
c 
<( 
z 
<( 
(.J 

<( 
..J 

FAIRWAYS 

MOORE ROAD 

HIGH VISIBILITY 

MEDIUM VISIBILITY 

LOW VISIBILITY 

FAIRWAYS 

MOORE ROAD ( 

w 
> 
~ ( 
c 
« c « HIGH VISIBILITY 

Z MEDIUM VISIBILITY « 
0 LOW V ISIBILITY 

« 
...J 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

1-G. Traffic 

1. All existing and proposed off-site streets between the development and the nearest 
arterial streets. 

The access points to the subject property will be from Moore Road and La Canada Drive. 
Roads adjacent to and within one-mile distance from the subject property are in good 
condition. 

Please refer to Exhibit J: Roadway System and Traffic Volumes. 

2. All arterial streets within one mile of the project site: 

Moore Road 

Moore Road is a four-lane (two in each direction) paved arterial road with a divided 
landscaped median and left turn- in lanes with a posted speed limit of 35 mph. The 
existing and ultimate right-of-way is 150 feet, which is continuous between. According 
to Pima Association of Governments (PAG) 2010 Traffic Volumes in Metropolitan Tucson 
and Eastern Pima County, the average daily trip (ADT) is 3,608. Please refer to Exhibit J. 

La Canada Drive 

La Canada Drive is a four-lane (two in each direction) paved road with left turn-in lanes 
at the intersection with Moore Road. It has a posted speed limit of 35 mph. The 
existing and ultimate right-of-way is 150 feet which jogs as it travels west of Moore 
Road. According to Pima Association of Governments (PAG) 2010 Traffic Volumes in 
M etropolitan Tucson and Eastern Pima County, the average daily trip (ADT) is 5,058. 
Please refer to Exhibit J. 

Tangerine Road 

Tangerine Road is a four-lane (two in each direction) paved road with left/right turn-in 
lanes at the intersection with La Canada Drive. It has a posted speed limit of 45 mph. 
The existing right-of-way is 300 feet which is nearly continuous as it travels east of La 
Canada Drive, jogging as it travels west. The ultimate right-of-way is 300 feet. 
According to Pima Association of Governments (PAG) 2010 Traffic Volumes in 
Metropolitan Tucson and Eastern Pima County, the average daily trip (ADT) is between 
13,681 and 18,640. Please refer to Exhibit L. 

~Ill .. 'K,... "D 
Group tJII .L.I.D 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO·T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-G. Traffic 

1. All existing and proposed off-s ite streets between the development and the nearest 
arterial street s. 

The access points to the subject property wi ll be from Moore Road and La Canada Drive. 
Roads adjacent to and within one-mile distance from the subject property are in good 
condition . 

Please refer to Exhibit J: Roadway System and Traffic Volumes. 

2. All arterial streets within one mile of the project site: 

Moore Road 

Moore Road is a four-lane (two in each direction) paved arterial road with a divided 
landscaped median and left turn-in lanes with a posted speed lim it of 35 mph. The 
existing and ultimate right-of-way is 150 feet , which is continuous between. According 
to Pima Association of Governments (PAG) 2010 Traffic Volumes in Metropolitan Tucson 
and Eastern Pima County, the average daily trip (ADT) is 3,608. Please refer to Exhibit J. 

La Canada Drive 

La Canada Drive is a four-lane (two in each direction) paved road with left turn-in lanes 
at the intersection with Moore Road. It has a posted speed limit of 35 mph. The 
existing and ultimate right-of-way is 150 feet which jogs as it travels west of Moore 
Road. According to Pima Association of Governments (PAG) 2010 Traffic Volumes in 
Metropolitan Tucson and Eastern Pima County, the average daily t rip (ADT) is 5,058. 
Please refer to Exhibit J. 

Tangerine Road 

Tangerine Road is a four-lane (two in each direct ion) paved road with left/ right turn-in 
lanes at the intersection with La Canada Drive. It has a posted speed limit of 45 mph. 
The existing right-of-way is 300 feet which is nearly continuous as it travels east of La 
Canada Drive, jogging as it travels west. The ultimate right-of-way is 300 feet. 
According to Pima Association of Governments (PAG) 2010 Traffic Volumes in 
Metropolitan Tucson and Eastern Pima County, the average daily trip (ADT) is between 
13,681 and 18,640. Please refer to Exhibit L. 

JJI:'e ll'KTT n 
Group till .a.....D 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 18S0S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

3. Existing and proposed intersections on arterials within one mile of the site, most likely 

to be used by traffic from this site 

4. 

The arterial intersection within one mile of the site that will likely carry traffic generated 
by this development is Moore Road and La Canada Drive. The intersection located at 
Moore Road and Rancho Vistoso Blvd and the intersection located at Tangerine Road 
and La Canada Drive are also expected to carry traffic generated by this development, 
although these are slightly further than one mile away. 

Existing bicycle and pedestrian ways adjacent to the site and their connections with 

streets, parks, and schools. 

According to the Oro Valley Bikeways Map Existing Routes and Surfaces 2006, there is a 
signed bicycle-route with on-street bike lane along Moore Road and La Canada Drive. 
Additionally, there is a shared-use path on La Canada Drive. These bikeways are 
classified as follows: 

• La Canada Drive and Moore Road (signed bicycle route with on-street bicycle 
lane) 

• La Canada Drive (shared-use path) 
• Copper Spring Trail (signed bicycle route with on-street bicycle lane) 

Additionally, Woodshade Linear Park provides an approximately half-mile long multi-use 
path from Hidden Springs Drive to Rancho Vistoso. These routes provide convenient 
access to the parks and natural open space in the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area 
Development. Please refer to Exhibit K: Bikeways Map. 

TheWLB WLB 
Group_ 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

{ 

( 

( 

( 

( 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

3. Existing and proposed intersections on arterials within one mile of the site, most likely 
to be used by traffic from this site 

The arterial intersection within one mile of the site that will likely carry traffic generated 
by this development is Moore Road and La Canada Drive. The intersection located at 
Moore Road and Rancho Vistoso Blvd and the intersection located at Tangerine Road 
and La Canada Drive are also expected to carry traffic generated by this development, 
although these are slightly further than one mile away. 

4. Existing bicycle and pedestrian ways adjacent to the site and their connections with 
streets, parks, and schools. 

According to the Oro Valley Bikeways Map Existing Routes and Surfaces 2006, there is a 
signed bicycle-route with on-street bike lane along Moore Road and La Canada Drive. 
Additionally, there is a shared-use path on La Canada Drive. These bikeways are 
classified as follows: 

• La Canada Drive and Moore Road (signed bicycle route with on-street bicycle 
lane) 

• La Canada Drive (shared-use path) 
• Copper Spring Trail (signed bicycle route with on-street bicycle lane) 

Additionally, Woodshade Linear Park provides an approximately half-mile long multi-use 
path from Hidden Springs Drive to Rancho Vistoso. These routes provide convenient 
access to the parks and natural open space in the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area 
Development. Please refer to Exhibit K: Bikeways Map. 

The WLB WLB 
Group_ 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WlB No. 1850S0-1W-02 

( 

{ 

( 

( 

( 

( 



Attachment 4

TRAFFIC DATA INFORMATION PROVIDED BY PIMA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
(PAG) 2010 TRAFFIC VOLUMES IN METROPOLITIAN TUCSON AND EASTERN PIMA 
COUNTY. 



Attachment 4

LEGEND 

-- BICYCLE ROUTE 

-- BICYCLE ROUTE W/ STRIPED 
SHOULDER 

-

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 

f 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

LEGEND 

--- BICYCLE ROUTE 
_
__ BICYCLE ROUTE WI STRIPED ,..--=, 

SHOULDER 

SUBJECT 
ROP RTY 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

1-H. Recreation and Trails 

1. Trails, parks and recreation areas within one mile of site 

Seven parks are located within one mile of the subject property. Additionally, 
approximately 28,750 linear feet of -shared-use paths and natural trails exist within one 
mile of the site. 

Please refer to Exhibit L: Recreation and Trails. 

1. Size and type of the parks and recreation areas identified 

Approximately 18.5 acres of parks exist within one mile of the site. Another 260 acres of 
parks and designated recreation areas exist within two miles of the site, which includes 
Honey Bee Park and Naranja Town Site. The nearby parks provide amenities such as dog 
parks, children's playground equipment, ramadas, barbeques, restroom facilities, tennis 
courts, volleyball courts, and basketball courts. 

The Golf Club at Vistoso also provides recreational facilities, and is open to the public. 

Pl ease refer to Exhibit L: Recreation and Trails. 

The lVLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO·T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-H. Recreation and Trails 

1. Trails, parks and recreation areas within one mile of site 

Seven parks are located within one mile of the subject property. Additionally, 
approximately 28,750 linear feet of -shared-use paths and natural trails exist within one 
mile of the site. 

Please refer to Exhibit L: Recreation and Trails. 

1. Size and type of the parks and recreation areas identified 

Approximately 18.5 acres of parks exist within one mile of the site. Another 260 acres of 
parks and designated recreation areas exist within two miles of the site, which includes 
Honey Bee Park and Naranja Town Site. The nearby parks provide amenities such as dog 
parks, children's playground equipment, ramadas, barbeques, restroom facilities, tennis 
courts, volleyball courts, and basketball courts. 

The Golf Club at Vistoso also provides recreational facilities, and is open to the public. 

Please refer to Exhibit L: Recreation and Trails. 

Tlle WLB WLB 
GrOlJp 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 1850S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4

LEGEND 

- - - NATURAL TRAIL 

--- SHARED-USE PATH 

--- PARK OR RECREATION AREA 

( 

c 
( 

( 

LEGEND 
__ _ NATURAL TRAIL 

--- SHARED-USE PATH 

___ PARK OR RECREATION AREA 

( 

4 
4 , 
( 

• • 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Ana lysis 

1-1. Cultural/Archaeological/Historic Resources 

1. Please refer to Exhibit M : Arizona State Museum Letter. 

a. Determine whether the site has been field surveyed for cultural resources 

The subject property was intensively surveyed by professional archaeologists in 
1986, with no evidence of historically significant properties being identified 
within the project area. 

b. Identify any previously recorded archaeological or historic resources known to 
exist on the property 

There are no cultural resources identified within the boundary of the subject 
property. Furthermore, no significant archaeological properties have been 
identified in adjacent properties. 

c. State the probability that buried archaeological resources not visible from the 
surface would be discovered on the site 

According to the Arizona State Museum Archaeological Records Search Results 
Letter, it is possible, though unlikely, that cultural resources may be uncovered 
during construction. The State Museum recommends that this proposed 
development proceed as planned without further archaeological investigation. 

Tl1e WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-I. Cultural/Archaeological/Historic Resources 

1. Please refer to Exhibit M: Arizona State Museum Letter. 

a. Determine whether the site has been field surveyed for cultural resources 

The subject property was intensively surveyed by professional archaeo logists in 
1986, with no evidence of historically significant properties being identified 
within the project area . 

b. Identify any previously recorded archaeologica l or historic resources known to 
exist on the property 

There are no cultural resources identified within the boundary of the subject 
property. Furthermore, no significant archaeological properties have been 
identified in adjacent properties. 

c. State the probability that buried archaeological resources not vi sible from the 
surface would be discovered on the site 

According to the Arizona State Museum Archaeological Records Search Results 
Letter, it is possible, though unlikely, that cultural resources may be uncovered 
during construction. The State Museum recommends that this proposed 
development proceed as planned without further archaeological investigation. 

The lVLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcell0-T 
Wl8 No. 185DSO-JW-02 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

Exhibit M: Arizona State Museum letter 

m THE UNIVERSilY 
~. OF ARIZONA. 

Arizona Slalc Museum 1'.0. Box 210026 
Tucson, AZ 8572 1-0016 
Tel: (520) 621-6302 
Fax: (520) 621-2976 

ARCHAEOLOGICAL RECORDS SEARCH RESULTS 

E-mail Request Received: 7/22/2013 Records Search Completed: 8/7/2013 

Requester Name and Title: 
Company: 
Address: 
City, State, Zip Code: 
Phone/Fax/or E-mail : 

Project Name and/or Number 

Gregory McDowell, Land Planner 
The WLB Group, Inc. 
4444 East Broadway 
Tucson, AZ 85711-3508 
(520) 881-7480 

Project Description 
Rancho Vistoso 10-T I Parcei2 19-22-422H Residential development on 1.33 ac 

Project Area Location: NEC Moore Rd & La Canada Dr, Oro Valley, Pima County, Arizcna. 

Legal Description: a portion of the SW, SE, SW, S26, T1 1 S, R13E, G&SR B&M, Town of Oro Valley, 
Pima County, Arizona. 

Search Results : A records search of the archaeological site fi les retained at the Arizona State Museum 
(ASM) found that the subject project area was intensively surveyed by professional archeologists in 1986. 
Six additional archaeological inspections were completed within a mile of the proposed project between 
1979 and 2011 . No cultural resources are identified within the proposed project area. Eleven 
archaeological properties have been recorded within a mile of the project area, including Sleeping Snake 
Village, a prehistoric habitation site. A 2012 color orthophotograph of the proposed project area , 
enclosed, depicts an undeveloped ground surface covered with native vegetation. Recreational dirt trails 
crisscross the property. The property is bounded by paved roads, residential developments, and 
developed vacant lots. 

Sites in Project Area: None. 

Recommendations: The subject project area was intensively inspected for cultural resources in 1986 
with no evidence of historically significant properties being identified in the parcels. Furthermore, no 
significant archaeological properties have been identified in adjacent properties. The ASM recommends 
that the proposed development may proceed as planned Without any additional archaeological 
investigation. 

Because significant cultural resources do exist in the vicinity, however, it is possible, though unlikely, that 
cultural resources may be uncovered during construction. In that unlikely event, the ASM recommends 
that a professional archaeologist evaluate the exposed material before any work continues in the area of 
the discovery. In the event that buried deposits are exposed, you will need to consult with one of the 
qualified archaeological contractors whose contact information is posted on the ASM website at the 
following address: http://www.statemuseum.arizona.edu/crservices/index.shtml. 

Pursuant to ARS §41 -865, if any human remains or funerary objects are uncovered at any time during the 
project work, all effort will stop with in the area of the discovered remains and Dr. Todd Pitezel, ASM 
assistant curator of archaeology, will be contacted im mediately at (520) 621-4795. 

If you have any questions concerning the results of this records search, please contact me at the 
letterhead address or at the e-mail address or phone number as follows. 

Sincerely, 

~:£~"" 
Assistant Permits Administrator 
(520) 62 1-2096 
nepearso@email.arizona.edu 

The WLB WLB 
Group_ 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

Exhibit M: Arizona State Museum letter 

~ THE UN IVERSllY 
~. Of A RI ZONA. 

Ari,w ua Stale Museum 

Pa rt I: Inventory and Analysis 

1'.0 . Box 2.1002('i 
Tl\cson, A1. 857 11-0016 
T<:l: (5 20) 621 -6302 
F~)c (510) 621·2976 

ARCHAEOLOGICAL RECORDS S EARCH R ESULTS 

E·mail Request Receiv ed: 7/22/2013 Records Searc h Completed: 81712013 

Requester Name and Title: 
Company : 
Address: 
City, State, Zip Code : 
Phone/Fax/or E-mail : 

Project Name andlor Number 

Gregory McDowell, Land Planner 
The WLS Group, Inc. 
4444 East Broadway 
Tucson, AZ 8571 1-3508 
(520) 881 -7480 

Project Description 
Rancho Vistoso 10-T I Parcel 219-22-422H Res idential development on 1.33 ae 

Project Area Location: NEG Moore Rd & La Canada Dr, Oro Valley, Pima County, ,l\.,rizcna. 

Legal Description: a portion of the SW, SE, SW, S26, T11S, R13E, G&SR B&M, Town of Oro Valley, 
Pima County, Arizona. 

Search Results: A records search of the archaeological site files retained at the Arizona State Museum 
(ASM) found that the subject project area was intensively surveyed by professional archeologists in 1986 
Six additional archaeological inspections were completed within a mile of the proposed project between 
1979 and 2011. No cultural resources are identified within the proposed project area. Eleven 
archaeological properties have been recorded within a mile of the project area, including Sleeping Snake 
Viffage, a prehistoric habitation site. A 2012 color orthophotograph of the proposed project area, 
enclosed, depicts an undeveloped ground surface covered with native vegetation. Recreational dirt trails 
crisscross the property. The property is bounded by paved roads, residential developments, and 
developed vacant lots. 

Sites in Project Area: None. 

Recommendations: The subject project area was intensively inspected for cultural resources in 1986 
with no evidence of historically significant properties being identified in the parcels. Furthermore, no 
significant archaeological properties have been identified in adjacent properties. The ASM recommends 
that the proposed development may proceed as planned without any additional archaeological 
investigation. 

Because significant cultural resources do exist in tile vicinity, however, it is possible, though unlikely, that 
cultural resources may be uncovered during construction. In that unlikely event, the ASM recommends 
that a professional archaeologist evaluate the exposed material before any work continues in the area of 
the discovery. In the event that buried deposits are exposed, you will need to consult with one of the 
qualified archaeological contractors whose contact information is posted on the ASM website at the 
following address: http://W.NW.statemuseum.arizona.edu/crservices/index.shtml. 

Pursuant to ARS §41 -865, if any human remains or funerary objects are uncovered at any time during the 
project work, all effort will stop within the area of the discovered remains and Dr. Todd Pitezel, ASM 
assistant curator of archaeology. will be contacted immediately at (520) 621-4795. 

If you have any questions concerning the results of this records search, please contact me at the 
letterhead address or at the e-mail address or phone number as follows. 

Sincerely, 

~:£~~ 
Assistant Permits Administrator 
(520) 621-2096 
nepearso@email.arizona.edu 

The :wLB WLB 
Group_ 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 18S0S0-JW-02 

f 
( 

• .-

.
( 

.
( 

( 

( 

( 

« 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

1-J. Schools 

Four public schools and one private school may serve Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-T. The distance 
from the proposed development site to each school are shown below. See Exhibit N: Schools. 

• 1.3 miles southeast Painted Sky Elementary School 

• 1.8 miles south Copper Creek Elementary School 

• 2.0 miles southwest Wilson K-8 School 

• 2.5 miles southwest Ironwood Ridge High School 

• 2.5 miles southwest Casa Christian School 

1-K. Water 

1. Indicate name, address and contact person for water service provider 

Contact information: Mark Moore, Oro Valley Water Utility located at 11000 North La 
Canada Drive, Oro Va lley, AZ 85737. 

2. If not within a defined water service area, explain how domestic water supply will be 
provided and address adequacy for future uses on the site 

The subject property fa lls within the service area of the Oro Valley Water Utility. The 
subject property will connect to the water line along Moore Road for its potable and 
irrigation water needs. The water line is owned and maintained by the Oro Valley Water 
Utility. 

1-L. Sewers 

An 8-inch sewer line and a 12-inch sewer line are located within the arterial rights-of-way 
adjacent to t he western and southern boundaries of the site. Refer to Exhibit 0: Sewers for a 
map of existing sewer alignments. 

TheWLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-J. Schools 

Four public schools and one private school may serve Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-T. The distance 
from the proposed development site to each school are shown be low. See Exhibit N: Schools. 

• 1.3 miles southeast Painted Sky Elementary School 

• 1.8 miles south Copper Creek Elementary School 

• 2.0 miles southwest Wilson K-8 School 

• 2.5 miles southwest Ironwood Ridge High School 

• 2.5 miles southwest Casa Christian School 

I-K. Water 

1. Indicate name, address and contact person for water service provider 

Contact information : Mark Moore, Oro Va lley Water Util it y located at 11000 North La 
Canada Drive, Oro Va lley, AZ 85737. 

2. If not within a defined water service area, explain how domestic water supply wi ll be 
provided and address adequacy for future uses on the site 

The subject property falls within the se rvice area of the Oro Valley Water Utility. The 
subject property will connect to the water line along Moore Road for its potable and 
irrigation water needs. The water line is owned and maintained by the Oro Valley Water 
Utility. 

I-L. Sewers 

An 8-inch sewer line and a 12-inch sewer line are located within t he arterial rights-of-way 
adjacent to t he western and southern boundaries of the site . Refer to Exhibit 0 : Sewers for a 
map of existing sewer alignments. 

The WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 18S0S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4



Attachment 4L:\18505Cmelgh1~Par T\2013 R •zonlng\Site Anll'yala\EUtiblts\0. Sewers .... 

SUBJECT 
I PROPERTY 

I--==~ \ '--'::::::':~~ J _ I '10-.-.-. ___ -111--. ___________ ..;.; 

- - - 8" - - .I 
I 
I 

~ I 
a::: 

~ I 
~ I 
<1: 

~ I 
..J 

I --

MOORE ROAD 



Attachment 4

Part 1: Inventory and Analysis 

1-M. McHarg Composite Map 

Exhibit P: McHarg Composite Map offers a graphic representation of a cumulative number of 
site inventory characteristics. The following is a list of such characteristics: 

a. Topography. 
b. Hydrology (100-yr floodplains and federally mapped floodplains, etc). 
c. Vegetation (areas of high vegetative density, etc.). 
d. Wildlife. 
e. Viewsheds (areas of high visibility). 

The WLB WLB 
GrouP. 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

{ 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

(; 

Part I: Inventory and Analysis 

I-M. McHarg Composite Map 

.
( 

Exhibit P: McHarg Composite Map offers a graphic representation of a cumulative number of ( 
site inventory characteristics. The following is a list of such characteristics: 

a. 
b. 
c. 
d. 

Topography. 
Hydrology (lOO-yr floodplains and federally mapped floodplains, etc). 
Vegetation (areas of high vegetative density, etc.). 
Wildlife. 

e. Viewsheds (areas of high visibility). 

The WLB WLB 
GrouR 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 18S0S0-JW-02 

« 
( 

( 

{ 

{ 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

« 

« 
( 

( 

« 
( 

( 



Attachment 4

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

£t: 
0 
<( 
0 
<( 
z 
<( 
(.) 

:3 

~ 

\ 

~ 

(. 
\ 

_) ----. L__ 

0) 
----. \.. 

SIGN IFICANT (NONE) 
VEGETATION 

-··- SUBJECT PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY 

K8XXX8I HIGH VISIBILITY AREAS 

100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN 
~ LIMITS 

~ 

~ 
.._-

__-/ 

c- MOORE ROAD 
) © 

\ LEGEND 

\ 
(NONE) SIGN IFICANT 

VEGETATION 
- -- --- ( \ SUBJECT PROPERTY _ .. -

BOUNDARY 

) 
IMMS'Xl HIGH VISIBILITY AREAS 

~ 
100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN 
LIMITS 

\ " 

a::: 
c 
<I: c 
<I: 
z \ <I: r 
() / :s ) 

( I ~J!~ 
L L..-----j 

\ 
I 

1 "---
~J '---, , ---

\ f.( SC 
MOORE ROAD r t-

©J 

~-------- '-

---



Attachment 4

{ 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

c 
( 

t / I 

( I I 

( ~ I 

( ,. 

(; 

( ) 

0 
() 

() 

() 

() 

c 
( ) 
0 
{ 

( ) 
(~ 

( ' 
l t 
( 

( 

( 

( ; 

( 

( " 

{ , 

( , 

(~ 

( / 

c 
- ~--- --- --. --- - . -----

f 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

() 

o 
o 
o 
o 
( 

o 
() 

o 
o 
( 

( 

l 
( 

o 
( 

( 

( 

( 

(J 

( 

(j 

( . 
(j 



Attachment 4

Part II: Land Use Plan 

PART II - LAND USE PROPOSAL 

11-A. Project Overview 

This project proposes a single-family detached residential neighborhood in an approximately 
4.9-acre portion of the subject property. This resident ial neighborhood, consisting of 
approximately 19 lots, w ill include site built homes of one or two-stories with a minimum lot 
size of 45 feet by 112 feet (45' X 112'). The architectural design of these homes will be 
consistent w ith nearby existing residential developments, including materials such as stucco, 
adobe, and wood frame. Landscape treatments and design will be integrated with surrounding 
neighborhood, which are also within the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development (PAD). 
Please refer to Exhibit Q: Tentative Development Plan (TOP). 

As mentioned before, actua l residential densities in Rancho Vistoso are significantly lower t han 
planned. A commensurate drop in demand for commercial land has resulted, which has caused 
th is property to remain undeveloped. Little potential exists for significant residential densit ies 
to develop anywhere near the subject property, meaning that this property is very unlikely ever 
to deve lop as a commercial use. Significant demand exists for residential development, which is 
more compatible with surrounding neighborhoods than the existing commercial entitlements. 
Please refer to Exhibit T: Proposed Zoning. 

11-B. Tentative Development Plan Map 

Please refer to Exhibit Q: Tentative Development Plan (TOP) for an overview of the Tentative 
Development Plan. 

~l:s ''K TT "D 
Groupw.' ......0 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO·T 
WLB No. 18SOSO-JW-02 

Part II: Land Use Plan 

PART II - LAND USE PROPOSAL 

II-A. Project Overview 

This project proposes a single-family detached residential neighborhood in an approximately 
4.9-acre portion of the subject property. This residential neighborhood, consisting of 
approximate ly 19 lots, wi ll include site built homes of one or two-stories with a minimum lot 
size of 45 feet by 112 feet (45' X 112'). The architectural design of these homes will be 
consistent with nearby existing residential developments, including materials such as stucco, 
adobe, and wood frame. Landscape treatments and design wi ll be integrated with surrounding 
neighborhood, which are also within the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development (PAD). 
Please refer to Exhibit Q: Tentative Development Plan (TDP). 

As mentioned before, actual residential densities in Rancho Vistoso are significantly lower than 
planned. A commensurate drop in demand for commercia l land has resulted, which has caused 
this property to remain undeveloped. Little potential exists for significant residential densities 
to develop anywhere near the subject property, meaning that this property is very unlikely ever 
to develop as a commercial use. Significant demand exists for residential development, which is 
more compatible with surrounding neighborhoods than the existing commercial entitlements. 
Please refer to Exhibit T: Proposed Zoning. 

II-B. Tentative Development Plan Map 

Please refer to Exhibit Q: Tentative Development Plan (TOP) for an overview of the Tentative 
Development Plan. 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WlB No . 1850S0-JW-0 2 



Attachment 4

PLAN SUMMARY 

Rezoning Area= 4.99 Acres 

Open Space= 1.1± Acres (-23%) 

Total Lots= 19 

Lot Size= 45ft x 112ft (Minimum) 

Density= 3.8 DU/AC (Gross) 

Proposed Zone = MDR (Rancho Vistoso PAD) 

. 
I 

MOORE ROAD 

PLAN SUMMARY 

Rezoning Area = 4.99 Acres 

Open Space = 1.1± Acres (-23%) 

Total Lots = 19 
Lot Size = 45 It x 112 It (Minimum) 

Density = 3.8 DUlAC (Gross) 

Proposed Zone = MDR (Rancho Vistoso PAD) 

• , 



Attachment 4

/ 

0/S 
(PAD) 

D e-1: 

D HDR: 

D MOHR: 

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

MEDIUM-HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

VERY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

GOLF COURSE 

D MDR: 

D VLDR: 

R1 -7: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

~ SR: SUBURBAN RANCH (PIMA COUNTY) 

VLDR 
(PAD) 

/' 

OIS 
(PAD) 

C-1 : 

HDR: HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAl 

MDHR: MEDIUM·HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

MDR MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

VERY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

GOLF COURSE 

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY 
LEGEND 

R1·7: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

R1· 10: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

R1-20: S1NGLE·FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

R1·36: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SINGLE·FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 



Attachment 4

11-C. 

11-D. 

Part II: Land Use Plan 

Existing Land Uses 

1. Map of zoning boundaries and existing land uses on adjacent properties. 

2. 

Please refer to Exhibit C: Existing Land Uses, Exhibit D: Existing Zoning, and Exhibit R: 
Proposed Zoning. 

A description of the effect that the proposed development will have on existing land 
uses on and off-site. 

Development of Parcel 10-T would unify existing neighborhoods, increase sense of 
community, and eliminate any negative visual impacts that may be created by a 
commercial development. 

Topography 

1. Describe how the TDP responds to topographic characteristics described in Part 1. 

As the site has no challenging topographic constraints, development can proceed 
without special grading consideration. 

2. Describe any areas of encroachment of building, lots, driveways, etc. onto the slopes of 
15%+ or greater. 

The subject property does not contain any regulated slopes, and as such there are no 
areas of encroachment. 

3. Describe the new average cross-slope, ca lculations, and values if allowances are to be 
made under Hillside District Regulations. 

The ACS is not expected to change significantly. No significant slopes exist on the site, 
and therefore no allowances will be made under Hillside District Regulations. 

4. Describe the map perimeter of the area used in the new cross slope calculations (if done 
in item 3 above) and labels areas to be left natural. 

Not Applicable. 

5/6. Describe and state percentage of total site and map all areas to be disturbed, graded, 
and/or revegetated. 

The entire site will be graded. Approximately 20% of the graded area will either be 
revegetated adjacent to the existing wash along the east side of the property, or will be 
landscaped common area. 

The U/LJ3 WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

( 

( 

( 

{ 

( 

f 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

• 
( 

( 

( 

( 

{ 

( 

( 

( 

{ 

( 

t 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

t 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

II-C. 

Part II: Land Use Plan 

Existing land Uses 

1. Map of zoning boundaries and existing land uses on adjacent properties. 

2. 

Please refer to Exhibit C: Existing Land Uses, Exhibit D: Existing Zoning, and Exhibit R: 
Proposed Zoning. 

A description of the effect that the proposed development will have on existing land 
uses on and off-site. 

Development of Parcel 10-T would unify existing neighborhoods, increase sense of 
community, and eliminate any negative visual impacts that may be created by a 
commercial development. 

II-D. Topography 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5/6. 

Describe how the TDP responds to topographic characteristics described in Part 1. 

As the site has no challenging topographic constraints, development can proceed 
without special grading consideration. 

Describe any areas of encroachment of building, lots, driveways, etc. onto the slopes of 
15%+ or greater. 

The subject property does not contain any regulated slopes, and as such there are no 
areas of encroachment. 

Describe the new average cross-slope, calculations, and values if allowances are to be 
made under Hillside District Regulations. 

The ACS is not expected to change significantly. No significant slopes exist on the site, 
and therefore no allowances will be made under Hillside District Regulations. 

Describe the map perimeter of the area used in the new cross slope calculations (if done 
in item 3 above) and labels areas to be left natural. 

Not Applicable. 

Describe and state percentage of total site and map all areas to be disturbed, graded, 
and/or revegetated. 

The entire site will be graded. Approximately 20% of the graded area will either be 
revegetated adjacent to the existing wash along the east side of the property, or will be 
landscaped common area. 

The lVLB WLB 
GfOlJJ:t 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-T 
WLB No. 1850S0-JW-02 

( 

.
f 
f 
t 
f 
.-
• 
( 

f 
( 

( 

f 
4 
f 
f 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

« 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 



Attachment 4

Part II: Land Use Plan 

11-E. Hydrology 

Offsite flows from upstream watersheds will be collected in channels and/or culverts directing 
the runoff through the project site. Drainage design within the proposed development will 
convey offsite and onsite flows using constructed channels, storm drain pipes, onsite basins, 
etc., in accordance with the Town of Oro Valley Floodplain Management Code and the Drainage 
Criteria Manual. Channel and basin geometry and construction will follow accepted standards 
regarding erosion and flow velocity control. Horizontal elements constructed within this 
project will be set at or near existing grade so as to minimize impacts to existing drainage 
patterns. Finished floor elevations will be set to be one foot above the established base flood 
elevations of adjacent floodplains. Individual lots will be graded according to Town standards, 
which will provide adequate room and grades to handle stormwater runoff. Encroachment into 
the existing floodplain along the eastern boundary has occurred upstream, and is proposed as 
part of this project. Erosion protection will be installed along the edge of proposed lots where 
necessary to mitigate erosion hazards caused by adjacent floodplains. All erosion protection 
proposed in the development will include appropriate toe down depths for scour protection. 
The post-developed 100-year discharges exiting the site will be reduced in accordance with 
Town policy, which requires all development to conform to "critical basin" requirements and 
not result in any adverse impacts for adjacent or downstream property owners. 

See Exhibit 5: Post-Development Hydrology Concept. 

The WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO· T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part II: Land Use Plan 

II-E. Hydrology 

Offsite flows from upstream watersheds will be collected in channels and/or culverts directing 
the runoff through the project site. Drainage design within the proposed development will 
convey offsite and onsite flows using constructed channels, storm drain pipes, onsite basins, 
etc., in accordance with the Town of Oro Valley Floodplain Management Code and the Drainage 
Criteria Manual. Channel and basin geometry and construction will follow accepted standards 
regarding erosion and flow velocity control. Horizontal elements constructed within this 
project wil l be set at or near existing grade so as to minimize impacts to existing drainage 
patterns. Finished floor elevations will be set to be one foot above the established base flood 
elevations of adjacent floodplains. Individual lots wil l be graded according to Town standards, 
which will provide adequate room and grades to handle stormwater runoff. Encroachment into 
the existing floodplain along the eastern boundary has occurred upstream, and is proposed as 
part of this project. Erosion protection will be installed along the edge of proposed lots where 
necessary to mitigate erosion hazards caused by adjacent floodplains. All erosion protection 
proposed in the development will include appropriate toe down depths for scour protection . 
The post-developed IOO-year discharges exiting the site will be reduced in accordance with 
Town policy, which requires all development to conform to "critical basin" requirements and 
not result in any adverse impacts for adjacent or downstream property owners. 

See Exhibit 5: Post-Development Hydrology Concept. 

Th' WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO·T 
WlB No. 1850S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4

I DO-YEAR FLOODPLAIN/PONDING LIMITS 

WATERSHED BOUNDARY 

GENERAL FLOW DIRECTION ARROWS 

{ 

( 

~------------~--~--~--~~~~----~~--~-----r~( 

LEGEND 

~ 
lQO.YEAI! flOODPlAINJPONDING LIMITS 

" ..... ., WATERSHED SOUNDA!!Y 

'-0... GENERAl FLOW DlRECTION ARROWS 

.--------~ 
Th'>-·~ 
-~ 

MOORE ROAD ..,~ 

~"''' -~ 

( 

(" 

{ 

( 

(" 

( 

( 

l 



Attachment 4

Part II: Land Use Plan 

11-F. Vegetation 

1. Provide an explanation of how the TOP responds to veget ative characteristics described 
in Part 1, including a discussion of the vegetation to be transplanted. 

The Tentative Development Plan (TOP) responds to the vegetative characteristics 
described in Part 1 while also recognizing the value of native plants onsite. The 
development design avoids the wash and the vegetation in the wash area on the eastern 
portion of the subject property. Additionally, any vegetation that is disturbed will meet 
the requirements of the Town of Oro Valley's Zoning Code. 

11-G. Wildlife 

1. Describe and map steps to be taken to mitigate dest ruction of wildlife habitat identified 
in Part 1. 

No wildlife habitat s are located on or near the subject property. 

11-H Buffer Plan 

1. Provide a map of buffer areas, if used, and describe techniques used to mitigate sound, 
visibility, exterior lighting, and t raffic impacts. 

A landscape buffer will mitigate the negative impacts of the adjacent uses, including 
sound, exterior lighting, and t raffic impacts. A minimum of 10 feet width will be used 
for the development's bufferyards, in accordance with the Bufferyard "A" criteria in the 
Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code. 

Please refer to Exhibit T: Buffer Areas for an overview of the proposed landscape 
buffers. 

Please refer to Exhibit U for a cross-section key map and Exhibit V for cross-section 
il lustrat ions showing proposed treatments to be used adjacent to existing developments 
and street s. 

TheWLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part II: Land Use Plan 

II-F. Vegetation 

1. Provide an explanation of how the TOP responds to vegetative characteristics described 
in Part 1, including a discussion of the vegetation to be transplanted. 

The Tentative Development Plan (TOP) responds to the vegetative characteristics 
described in Part 1 while also recognizing the value of native plants onsite. The 
development design avoids the wash and the vegetation in the wash area on the eastern 
portion of the subject property. Additionally, any vegetation that is disturbed will meet 
the requirements of the Town of Oro Valley's Zoning Code. 

II-G. Wildlife 

1. Describe and map steps to be taken to mitigate destruction of wild life habitat identified 
in Part 1. 

No wildlife habitats are located on or near the subject property. 

II-H Buffer Plan 

1. Provide a map of buffer areas, if used, and describe techniques used to mitigate sound, 
visibility, exterior lighting, and traffic impacts. 

A landscape buffer will mitigate the negative impacts of the adjacent uses, including 
sound, exterior lighting, and traffic impacts. A minimum of 10 feet width wil l be used 
for the development's bufferyards, in accordance with the Bufferyard "A" criteria in the 
Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code. 

Please refer to Exhibit T: Buffer Areas for an overview of the proposed landscape 
buffers. 

Please refer to Exhibit U for a cross-section key map and Exhibit V for cross-section 
illustrations showing proposed treatments to be used adjacent to existing developments 
and streets. 

The WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 

WLB No. 1850S0-JW-02 



Attachment 4

Area 

MOORE RQAD ( 



Attachment 4

Part II : Land Use Plan 

11-1. Viewsheds 

1. Describe and map how TOP mitigates impacts to: 

i. Views and vistas from off-site 

The proposed residential use will restrict building heights to 30 feet, thereby 
lessening the impact to surrounding views and vistas off-site compared to 
height of structures currently al lowed under the commercial zoning. 

ii. Areas of high visibility 

The proposed development is not expected to impact the areas of high visibility. 

2. Provide drawings and narrative explaining methods for roadway construction in a 
manner compatible w ith the natural terrain and document scarring to be mitigated at 
the completion of construction. 

The project's internal roadway network will minimally disturb the site. Little impact is 
anticipated due to the site's flat terrain and previous ground disturbance. 

Please refer to Exhibit U: Cross-Section Key Map and Exhibit V: Cross-Section 
Illustrations. 

TheWLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vist oso Parcel lO-T 

WLB No. 185050-JW-0 2 

Part II: Land Use Plan 

II-I. Viewsheds 

1. Describe and map how TDP mitigates impacts to: 

i. Views and vistas from off-site 

The proposed resident ial use witt restrict building heights to 30 feet, thereby 
lessening the impact to surrounding views and vistas off-site compared to 
height of structures currently allowed under the commercial zoning. 

ii. Areas of high visibility 

The proposed development is not expected to impact the areas of high visibility. 

2. Provide drawings and narrative explaining methods for roadway construction in a 
manner compatible with the natural terrain and document scarring to be mitigated at 
the completion of construction. 

The project's internal roadway network witt minimally disturb the site. Little impact is 
anticipated due to the site's flat terrain and previous ground disturbance. 

Please refer to Exhibit U: Cross-Section Key Map and Exhibit V: Cross-Section 
Illustrations. 

~J:B .. '1''''' n 
Group""~ 

Rancho Vistoso Parcell0·T 
WLB No. 185QSO-JW-02 



Attachment 4

-, . . ., ~ 
. ",1"'6'\..., · 

MOORE ROAD 



A
ttachm

ent 4

@ 

® 

© 

@ 

F roposc d 
N eigh borhood 

O pen 
Space Open 

Space 

E_xi5 t:ing 

A dJocen t 
Neig hbo rhood 

:;\1;,:. ·" 
-----L-s 1' . ..,, . ·"./ so·-...1..------

f"ro p o:5oed 
N eighborhood 

Open 
Spnc.e 

1 8 8 ' 

M oore R.ond 
Open 
Space 

___ .__77' l",\10$ l' i j," ~· , .t ~ $§$ ~ a a t 9 ''If ·'>~Jf'l'f}~~~ .~ ·ftl=vt .Jt= ,,1 1 
7

1. 

F ro pod>ed 
N eigh borhood O pen 

.Sp a c e L a Can ada Drive 

17' ' 

Open 
S p nc.e 

___ .....__., 0 , l ·' li'"V-1?£4/W 'J f M W e "W'fe H {::::;? -!' 1 JXrl'w1 so· 

f"ro p o &ed 
Neighbo rh ood 

1 2 5' 

E...xi& t ing 

Adj acent 

N e ig h borhood 

l.lJf• ! ~ 8 9 jt}!!IYnjl < ~ \, ''il' , I " 6:-
Open 
.Spac e 

90' 

Exis tin g 

A djace nt 
N e ig h borh ood 

6 

V is t oso 

H ig hland6 

6 

"" 00 

Open 
Space Subject 

Fropcrt~ 
5oun d.,r!j 

Opcn 
Space 

L..xi"ting 

Adjacent 
Neighbo rhood 

Wash 

® ~ .. -'.~" ~~~~iiiL-~~" "';';'" ~"O,~( 

© 

® 

Fropo"",d 
N<:ighborhood 

f"ropo"",d 
Neighborhood 

Open 
Space 

Open 
Space 

9°' 

17 ~ ' 

I:z.,,' 

IlJ8 ' 

Open 
Sp""c;",, 

Lxi .. tinS 

Adjacent N6 
· 6'_"'-___ _ 

E..."isting 

Adj",een~. 

Ncighborhood 

Vi,.to,.o 

Highland" 

The .... ,. .., RANCHO VISTOSO PARCEL 10-T "'''''' 0' 30' 

)i'~~p ".&.10 EXHIBIT 'V' _ CROSS-SECTION ILLUSTRATIONS WLBN, '8505{).JW~2 ~ 



Attachment 4

Part II: Land Use Plan 

11-J. Traffic 

1. Provide a traffic analysis report to include: 

The :wLB WLB 
GrouP. 

i. The proposed internal circulation and access to/from arterial streets, explaining 
location and rationale for placement. 

Two ingress/egress points will connect this proposed neighborhood directly to 
the adjacent arterial streets. This will allow an additional entrance for safety 
vehicles (although not required due to the small amount of lots proposed). The 
proposed ingress/egress points are placed at a safe distance from the arterial 
intersection of La Canada Drive and Moore Road. 

ii. If off-site road improvements are required, indicate which roads and time frame 
for improvements. 

Not applicable. 

iii. Projected ADT for internal circulation system at build out and level of service to 
all streets. Include a projection of traffic volumes and capacity analysis for 
intersections. 

The proposed single-family homes will generate approximately 10 vehicle trips 
per day per home. At 19 home sites, this community is expected to generate 
190 Average Daily Trips (ADT). Half of the traffic volume (95 ADT) will access 
the community from La Canada Drive, with the remaining half {95 ADT) using 
Moore Road. 

iv. Impact to existing development abutting off-site streets. 

Since this proposed neighborhood will connect directly to the arterial roadways, 
no off-site streets are proposed. 

v. Capacity analyses for proposed internal and off-site streets, including right-of
way and pavement widths, geometries, design speeds, and traffic control 
improvements needed. 

Arterial and collector roadways in this vicinity have been constructed to 
accommodate a significantly higher residential density than has been or will be 
built in this area. An adequate level of service is expected to continue to exist 
after this project is constructed. 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 

W LB No. 185050-JW-02 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

Part II: Land Use Plan 

II-J. Traffic 

1. Provide a traffic analysis report to include: 

The WLB WLB 
Group 

i. The proposed internal circulation and access to/from arterial streets, explaining 
location and rationale for placement. 

Two ingress/egress points will connect this proposed neighborhood directly to 
the adjacent arterial streets. This will allow an additional entrance for safety 
vehicles (although not required due to the small amount of lots proposed). The 
proposed ingress/egress points are placed at a safe distance from the arterial 
intersection of La Canada Drive and Moore Road. 

ii. If off-site road improvements are required, indicate which roads and time frame 
for improvements. 

Not applicable. 

iii. Projected ADT for internal circulation system at build out and level of service to 
all streets. Include a projection of traffic volumes and capacity analysis for 
intersections. 

The proposed single-family homes will generate approximately 10 vehicle trips 
per day per home. At 19 home sites, this community is expected to generate 
190 Average Daily Trips (ADT). Half of the traffic volume (95 ADT) will access 
the community from La Canada Drive, with the remaining half (95 ADT) using 
Moore Road. 

iv. Impact to existing development abutting off-site streets. 

Since this proposed neighborhood will connect directly to the arterial roadways, 
no off-site streets are proposed. 

v. Capacity analyses for proposed internal and off-site streets, including right-of
way and pavement widths, geometrics, design speeds, and traffic control 
improvements needed. 

Arterial and collector roadways in this vicinity have been constructed to 
accommodate a significantly higher residential density than has been or will be 
built in this area. An adequate level of service is expected to continue to exist 
after this project is constructed. 

Rancho Vistoso Parcell0-T 
WLB No. 18S0S0-JW-02 

(" 

.
f 

• 
(' 

.
• 
C 
( 

( 

( 

( 

« 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 



Attachment 4

Part II: Land Use Plan 

vi. A description of improvements required for those streets described in sub
paragraph e above. 

Specific offsite improvements, if necessary, will be identified in a traffic report 
to be prepared during the Conceptual Site Plan (CSP) process. 

vii. The party/agency whom the applicant believes to be responsible for making 
necessary improvements. 

The builder will make any necessary improvements. 

viii. Evidence that proposed turning movements will meet safety standards in 
relationship to traffic volumes. 

The roadways will be built to Town of Oro Valley design standards, and as such, 
will meet the safety standards in relationship to traffic volumes. 

b. A description of on-site street rights-of-way, including typical roadway section, and 
indicate proposed ownership. 

The on-site streets will consist of a 50-foot wide public right-of-way. 

c. A description of any proposed bicycle and pedestrian pathways within the development 
and indicate whether they are connected to external pathways, arterial streets, parks, 
and schools. 

Bicycle lanes are provided immediately adjacent to the 4.9-acre project site. As such, no 
bicycle pathways are proposed for the proposed development. Sidewalks will be 
constructed on both sides of the public streets within the project site (per Section 1.2 C, 
Neighborhood 10 Policy, of the Rancho Vistoso PAD), and will connect to La Canada 
Drive and Moore Road. 

11-K. Sewers 

1. Describe method for providing sewer service. If Pima County is responsible, provide 
letter from Wastewater Department addressing capacity and ability to serve the site. 

When Rancho Vistoso was originally constructed, the property owner built two sewers 
located adjacent to t he project site. Rancho Vistoso 10-T will connect to one of these 
sewer lines. 

Tl•e WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part II: Land Use Plan 

vi. A description of improvements required for those streets described in sub
paragraph e above. 

Specific offsite improvements, if necessary, will be identified in a traffic repo rt 
to be prepared during the Conceptual Site Plan (CSP) process. 

vii. The party/agency whom the applicant believes to be responsible for making 
necessary improvements. 

The builder will make any necessary improvements. 

viii. Evidence that proposed turning movements will meet safety standards in 
relationship to traffic volumes. 

The roadways will be built to Town of Oro Valley design standards, and as such, 
will meet the safety standards in relationship to traffic volumes. 

b. A description of on-site street rights-of-way, including typical roadway section, and 
indicate proposed ownership. 

The on-site streets will consist of a 50-foot wide public right-of-way. 

c. A description of any proposed bicycle and pedestrian pathways within the development 
and indicate whether they are connected to external pathways, arteria l streets, parks, 
and schools. 

Bicycle lanes are provided immediately adjacent to the 4.9-acre project site. As such, no 
bicycle pathways are proposed for the proposed development. Sidewalks will be 
constructed on both sides of the public streets within the project site (per Section 1.2 C, 
Neighborhood 10 Policy, of the Rancho Vistoso PAD), and will connect to La Canada 
Drive and Moore Road. 

II-K. Sewers 

1. Describe method for providing sewer service. If Pima County is responsible, provide 
letter from Wastewater Department addressing capacity and ability to serve the site. 

When Rancho Vistoso was originally constructed, the property owner built two sewers 
located adjacent to the project si te . Rancho Vistoso 10-T will connect to one of these 
sewer lines. 

TI1t:l WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO·T 
WLB No. 185050-JW-02 



Attachment 4

Part II: Land Use Plan 

11-L. Recreation and Trails 

1. Describe and map all trails, parks, and recreation areas within one mile ofthe site. 

This development is part of the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development. As such, 
this development will utilize the trails, parks, and recreation areas already constructed 
for this master planned community. These include seven parks and the Golf Club at 
Vistoso located within one mile of the subject property. Additionally, approximately 
28,750 linear feet of -shared-use paths and natural trails exist within one mile of the 
site. 

2. State the size (in acres) and type (i.e. active or passive recreation) of the parks and 
recreat ion areas identified. 

Approximately 18.5 acres of parks exist within one mile of the site. Another 260 acres of 

( 

{ 

( 

parks and designated recreation areas exist within two miles of the site, which includes ( 
Honey Bee Park and Naranja Town Site. The nearby parks provide amenities such as dog 
parks, children's playground equipment, ramadas, barbeques, restroom facilities, tennis 
courts, volleyball courts, and basketball courts. 

3. Describe how the development will facilitate access to off-site trails and how access will 

be maintained. 

This development will construct sidewalks that connect to the existing adjacent 
sidewalks on Moore Road and La Canada Drive. 

4. Describe the proposed ownership of natural and modified open space within the 
development. 

The Homeowners Association (HOA) will own and maintain the open space within the 
development. 

The WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 1850SO-JW-02 

( 

( 

( 

( 

Part II: Land Use Plan 

II-L. Recreation and Trails 

1. Describe and map all trails, parks, and recreation areas within one mile of the site. 

This development is part of the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development. As such, 
this development will utilize the trails, parks, and recreation areas already constructed 
for this master planned community. These include seven parks and the Golf Club at 
Vistoso located within one mile of the subject property. Additionally, approximately 
28,750 linear feet of -shared-use paths and natural trails exist within one mile of the 

site. 

2. State the size (in acres) and type (i.e. active or passive recreation) of the parks and 
recreation areas identified . 

Approximately 18.5 acres of parks exist within one mile of the site. Another 260 acres of 

( 

( 

t 
( 

parks and designated recreation areas exist within two miles of the site, which includes ( 
Honey Bee Park and Naranja Town Site. The nearby parks provide amenities such as dog 
parks, children's playground equipment, ramadas, barbeques, restroom facilities, tennis 
courts, volleyball courts, and basketball courts. 

3. Describe how the development will facilitate access to off-site trails and how access will 
be maintained. 

This development will construct sidewalks that connect to the existing adjacent 
sidewalks on Moore Road and La Canada Drive. 

4. Describe the proposed ownership of natural and modified open space within the 
development. 

The Homeowners Association (HOA) will own and maintain the open space within the 
development. 

The :wLB WLB 
GrouP. 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 18S0S0-JW-02 

( 

t 
( 

( 

( 



Attachment 4

Part II: Land Use Plan 

11-M. Cultural, Archaeological, and Historic Resources 

1. Describe what measures will be used for protection of all cultural and historical 
resources on the site. 

If any cultural resources are discovered during construction, State and local rules will be 
followed regarding handling and treatment of cultural resources. 

2. Describe how the resources will be incorporated into the development. 

Not applicable. 

3. Describe if an archaeologica l survey has been recommended and/or there is a high 
probability for the discovery of archaeological resources, what measures will be taken. 

According to the Arizona State Museum Archaeological Records Search Results Letter, it 
is possible, though unlikely, that cultural resources may be uncovered during 
construction. In that unlike ly event, a professional archaeologist will eva luate the 
exposed material before any work continues in the area of t he discovery. In the event 
that buried deposits are exposed, we will consult with one of the ASM qualified 
archaeological contractors. 

11-N. Schools 

1. Indicate number of elementary, junior, and senior high school students generated by 
this rezoning. 

This proposed development is expected to generate approximately 5 elementary 
students and 2 secondary students (using t he accepted standard student multiplier of 
0.25 elementary schoo l students per home and 0.1 secondary school students per 
home). 

2. Indicate rem aining capacity within t he area schools serving the site. 

According to the letter suppl ied by the Amphitheater School District (Exhibit W), there is 
availab le capacity for this proposed development. 

3. Provide a letter from the affected school district indicating that a proposed site can 
accommodate the educational space requirements for the projected number of 
residents. 

A letter is provided as Exhibit W: Amphitheater School District Letter. 

TheWLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel lO-T 
W LB No. 185050-JW-0 2 

Part II : Land Use Plan 

II-M. Cultural, Archaeological, and Historic Resources 

1. Describe what measures will be used for protection of all cultural and historica l 
resources on the site. 

If any cultural resources are discovered during construction, State and loca l ru les will be 
followed rega rding handling and treatment of cultural resources. 

2. Describe how the resources will be incorporated into the development. 

Not applicable. 

3. Describe if an archaeo logical survey has been recommended and/or there is a high 
probabil ity for the discovery of archaeological resources, what measures will be taken. 

According to the Arizona State Museum Archaeological Records Search Results Letter, it 
is possible, though unlikely, that cultural resources may be uncovered during 
construction . In that unlike ly event, a professional archaeologist will eva luate the 
exposed material before any work contin ues in the area of the discovery. In the event 
that buried deposits are exposed, we will consult wi th one of the ASM qualified 
arch aeo logical contractors. 

II-N. Schools 

1. Indicate number of elementary, junior, and senior high school students generated by 
this rezoning. 

Thi s proposed deve lopment is expected to generate approximate ly 5 elementary 
students and 2 secondary students (using the accepted standard student mult iplier of 
0.25 elementary school students per home and 0.1 secondary school students per 
home). 

2. Indicate remaining capacity within the area schools serving the site. 

According to the letter supplied by the Amphitheater School District (Exhibit W). there is 
ava ilable capacity for this proposed development. 

3. Provide a letter from the affected school district ind icating that a proposed site can 
accommodate the educational space requirements for the projected number of 
residents. 

A letter is provided as Exhibit W: Amphitheater School District Letter. 

The :w:LB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso ParcellO-T 
WLB No. 18S0S0-1W-02 



Attachment 4

08/ 16/201 3 08 : 49 6955074 LEGAL PAGE 01 / 01 

OFFICE OF LEGAL COUNSEL 
Todd A. Jaeger, J.D. 

Associate to the Superintendent 
(520) 696-5156 

FAX (520) 696-5074 

701 W. W~more Road • Tucson. AZ 85705 • TDD (520) 696·5055 

GOVERMN0 !3()ARU MEMBERS 

S!!Pl!THNTEfliiJEi'Ji' 

Patdck NdsiJn 

Sus.1n Zi!Jrnt 
Fn:sidcnt 

Via fax to 881-7492 

Gregory McDowell 
Planner 
The WLB Group 
4444 E Broadway 
Tucson AZ 85711 

Kent Pnul D:llr.'lbcc. Ph.D. 
Vi~,;c Prc.ttidcnt 

August 15, 2013 

RE: Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 10 Parcel T 
WLB # 185050..JW.02 

Dear Mr. McDowell: 

De;1nno M. Dn.y. M Ed. 

I am responding to your correspondence to our district's Chief Financial 
OHicer Scott Little regarding your development of 19 single-family residential units 
located at the northeast corner of Moore Road and La Canada Drive in Oro Valley. 

As you requested, this will seiVe as written verification that Amphitheater 
School District does have availability and capacity to accommodate the educational 
space requirements of your planned development. 

Thank you. 

R"ar~~ - ~ 
J:;::JPL- (_/1. uv 
Todd A. Jaeger, J.D. 
Associate to the Superintendent 
General Counsel 

A(11phirhm1er High • ('.an yon del Oro High • lrcm v..'OOCI Ridge High 
Amphitheater Middle School • Coron<~do K·B School • Cr<'Ss Middle School • La Cimn Micldlc School • Will on K-S Sdto.>l 

C'.QPJ1Cr Creek Etcmcnmry • Dannld~;on Elcm."lllllly • Barelsan El~ment~l)' • liol~way Elemt:Jll~ry • Keeling Elcmrnr.uy 
MC3(1 Verde El~mcn~:~ ry • N;,~h Elcmcntnry • Painted Sky Elcmcnrnry • Prince ~lcmmllmy · Rio Vista Elementary • Walker .Elemcnwy 

Rilliro Ccnrcr • El Hognr 

Jo Gr;~nt 

( 

08/16/2013 @8: 49 6955074 LEGAL PAGE 01 / 01 

I!J!\ 
OFFICE OF LEGAL COUNSEL 

Todd A. Jaeger. J.D. 

........ 
I • • • • 

Aswcia(e to the Superintendent 
(520) 696·5156 

. ' . FAX (520) 696·5074 

AM.P·H.~"I3A'liEA 
701 W. W~tmore Road . Tucson. AZ 85705 • TOO (520) 696·5055 

G OVERNTNG BOARD MEt.1'BERS 

SI IrJ!llMENIJENT 
Patrick Nct~l)n 

SUS-In Zibrnt 
ftttidcnt 

Via fax to 881-7492 

Gregory McDowell 
Planner 
The WLB Group 
4444 E Broadway 
Tucson AZ 85711 

KCfl,l Paul O.ttr;'Itx:C. Ph.D. Julie COl..1.d. M.Ed. 
Vk;e r~~ i Clcnt 

August 15,2013 

RE: Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 10 Parcel T 
WLB # 185050,",W.Q2 

Dear Mr. McDowell: 

De.vlt}tI M. lJn~' . ~tEd. 

I am responding to your correspondence to our district's Chief Financial 
OHieer Scott Little regarding your development of 19 single-family residential units 
located at the northeast corner of Moore Road and La Canada Drive in Oro Valley. 

As you requested, this will serve as written verification that Amphitheater 
School District does have availability and capacity to accommodate the educational 
space requ irements of your planned development. 

Thank you. 

R~" ~ ",.",,~ . (/1. U V 

Todd A. Jaeger, J.D. 
Associate to the Superintendent 
General Counsel 

Ar:nph i rh ~'\lef High ' (:anyon del Oro High ' Iron tA.'CXXI Ridge High 
Ampbilhcul'Cf Middle School- Coronildo K-8 School ' Cross Middle: School ' 1....3 Cimll MicJdlcSchool • \Vil~on K-S $c.n())1 

C...QJlPcr Creek Elcmcnory ' lJonnld"on E1cm..~Illl'Y · Harelson Elemenli\IY ' HoJilWil.Y Blemerlftlry ' Keeling E1cmtntal)' 
Mesa Verde Ekmctltlry · Nor.h Elementary · Painted Sky E1crncnrnr:.' ~ Prince l!.lcmt.'1lI<'JrY · Rio Visl" ElcmCnl;\l)" Walker ElCII1Cilctry 

Rillilo ("'.cnlct · El Hognr 

10 Gr;'tn! 



Attachment 4

Part II : Land Use Plan 

11-0. Water 

1. Indicate additional domestic water demand that this rezoning will generate. 

A good estimate for domestic water usage is 230 gallons per day per lot dry weather 
flow. At 19 lots for this development, the total domestic water use is projected at 4,370 
gallons per day. 

2. Indicate water service capacity and current demand (percentage of existing capacity) 
from applicable water company. 

Oro Valley Water has capacity and infrastructure available to serve this project. 

The WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vis toso Pa rcellO-T 

WLB No. 185050-JW-02 

Part II : Land Use Plan 

11-0. Water 

1. Indicate additional domestic water demand that th is rezoning will generate. 

A good estimate fo r domestic water usage is 230 galions per day per lot dry weather 
flow. At 19 lots for this development, the total domest ic water use is projected at 4,370 
ga llons per day. 

2. Indicate water se rvice capacity and current demand (percentage of existing capacity) 
from applicable water company. 

Oro Valley Water has capacity and infrastructure available to serve th is project. 

The WLB WLB 
Group 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-T 
WlB No. 1850S0-JW-Ol 



Attachment 4

( 

( 

{ 

( 

f 
( 

( 

( , 

( 

( , 

c 
() 

(~ 

c 
0 
() 

0 
0 ' 
() 

{ 

() 

( 

( ) 
(~ 

{) 
( 

( 

( 

{) 

{ 

( ) 
( 

t 
() 

f 
{ 

( 

{ 

( 

• 
( 

( 

~J I 
( 

() 

• c 
( 

{ 

(} 

() 

() 

o 
o 
o 
() 

() 

(} 

(} 

() 

( 

( 

() 

(, 

() 

(i 
() 

( 

( 

( 

( 

{ 
(0 

( 

( 

{.. 



                                                          Attachment 5 
PAD Amendment                                                    
Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 

 
 

CASE NUMBER:  OV913-01 Rancho Vistoso, Parcel 10T 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 3, 2013 

 
AGENDA ITEM:  2 
 
STAFF CONTACT:  Rosevelt Arellano, Planner 
    rarellano@orovalleyaz.gov (520) 229-4817 

 
 
Applicant:   Paul Oland of WLB Group, Inc. (520) 881-7480 
 
Request: Amend the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development from 

Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
 
Location:   Northeast corner of La Canada Drive and Moore Road 
 
Recommendation: Approval with conditions 

 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The applicant requests an amendment to the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development 
from Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) on a 4.9 acre site located on 
the northeast corner of La Canada Drive and Moore. Road.   
 
The applicant proposes to develop a residential subdivision with similar lot sizes and design 
as the adjacent neighborhoods to the north, west and east.  The Tentative Development 
Plan depicts 19 lots with a minimum lot size of 5,000 sq. ft., open space, bufferyards, and 
two access points on La Canada Drive and Moore Road.   The Location Map (Attachment 
2) provides context of the site in relation to the surrounding area.   

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Approvals-To-Date 
 
June 1987:  Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development Adopted 
 
Sept. 2013:  Minor General Plan Amendment to Medium Density Residential 

(MDR, 2.1 – 5.0 du/ac) Approved  
 
 



OV913-001 Parcel 10T, Rancho Vistoso   Page 2 of 6 

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 

 
Land Use Context 
 
The existing site conditions, land use and zoning designations for the property and the 
surrounding area are summarized below and depicted on Attachments 2, 3 and 4. 
 

 EXISTING USES 
 

          GENERAL PLAN                    
LAND USE DESIGNATION 

ZONING 

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 

Vacant Medium Density Residential  Ranch Vistoso PAD C-1 

NORTH 
 

Single-family Residential 
5,000-plus sq. ft. Lots 

Medium Density Residential Rancho Vistoso PAD                 
Medium High Density Residential 

SOUTH 
 

Single-family Residential 
20,000-plus sq. ft. Lots 

Medium Density Residential R1-20 

EAST 
 

Common Area/               
Open Space 

Medium Density Residential Rancho Vistoso PAD                
Medium High Density Residential 

WEST 
 

Single-family Residential 
5,000-plus sq. ft. Lots 

Low Density Residential  Rancho Vistoso PAD                
Medium Density Residential 

 
Proposed Zoning District 
 
The Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development defines the proposed zoning district for 
the amendment area as follows: 
 

Medium Density Residential (MDR) This district is intended to provide detached and 
attached single-family homes in areas containing fewer natural constraints than Very 
Low and Low Density Residential zoning districts.  Significant vegetation or topography 
and minor washes should be preserved as common open space whenever possible.   

 
Cultural Resources  
 
The applicant has requested an archaeological records check from the Arizona State Museum.  
According to the letter received from the Arizona State Museum (see Attachment 5, Section                
I-I), there are no records indicating the presence of cultural resources on the property.   
 
Environmentally Sensitive Lands (ESL) 
 
The property does not contain any sensitive environmental resources, Including Major Wildlife 
Linkage, Critical Resource, Core Resource and Resource Management as defined by the 
Zoning Code.   
 
Proposed PAD Amendment  
 
The applicant proposes to change the zoning for the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area 
Development in accordance with the General Plan from Commercial (C-1) to Medium 
Density Residential (MDR) on a 4.9 acre site located on the northeast corner of La Canada 
Drive and Moore Road (see Attachment 5, Exhibit R).    
 



OV913-001 Parcel 10T, Rancho Vistoso   Page 3 of 6 

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 

 
The MDR zoning district allows detached and attached single-family homes.  The MDR 
zoning district permits two-story homes up to 30’ and requires a 5,000 sq. ft. minimum lot 
size.  Although it is not required, the Tentative Development Plan depicts 1.1 acres of open 
space.  
 
The proposed subdivision design appears compatible with the surrounding residential area 
as it incorporates similar lot sizes, landscaping and circulations connections. 

 
 
DISCUSSION / ANALYSIS: 
 
Tentative Development Plan  
 
The Tentative Development Plan (Attachment 5, Exhibit Q) depicts 19 lots with a minimum 
lot size of 5,000 sq. ft, a perimeter landscape buffer, open space, areas for drainage and 
two access points.   
 
The Tentative Development Plan provides a conceptual-level site layout, including site 
access, lot layout, circulation, bufferyards and open space. The plan is used to evaluate the 
viability of the proposed zoning and overall function of the site.  Specific uses and features 
of the Tentative Development Plan may be modified during the Conceptual and Final 
Design phases, subject to conformance with the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area 
Development, the Zoning Code and any rezoning conditions.  
 
Access and Circulation 
 
One access point is located on La Canada Drive, and the second access point is located 
on Moore Road.  An internal public roadway and sidewalks are proposed through the 
development to provide vehicular and pedestrian circulation.  The proposed roadway 
improvements can enhance user connectivity by providing an alternative route for bicyclists 
and pedestrians.  The property contains a trail in the northeast corner of the property.  This 
trail connects the adjoining neighborhoods located north and east of the proposed 
subdivision.   
 
Development Standards  
 
Following is a summary of development standards for the C-1 and MDR zoning districts per 
the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development: 
 

 C-1 MDR 

Building Heights  34’, three-stories 
 

30’, two-stories 

Open Space 10% of the site  
 

Required: 0 
Proposed: 23% 

Setbacks Front: 20’, Sides: 0 Rear: 25’ 
 

Front: 20, Sides 5’ or 0 Rear: 10’ 



OV913-001 Parcel 10T, Rancho Vistoso   Page 4 of 6 

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 

 
A .78 acre portion of the subject property located along the east boundary is not part of this 
rezoning request.  The applicant has indicated that this property will remain as natural open 
space.  A condition has been included on Attachment 1 reflecting this applicant 
commitment and requiring this area to be preserved permanently as natural open space.    
 
General Plan Conformance Analysis  
 
The applicant proposes to develop a residential subdivision at 3.8 du/ac.  The proposed 
zoning conforms to the existing Medium Density Residential (MDR, 2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) land 
use designation per the General Plan Land Use Map (see Attachment 3).   
 
The following General Plan goals and polices are notable for this application:  
 
Policy 5.1.9 The Town shall employ traffic calming techniques in local street design. 
 
Staff Comment:  The proposed subdivision could promote cut-through traffic between La 
Canada Drive and Moore Road.  A condition has been added requiring the applicant to 
study this traffic issue and provide any necessary traffic calming measures as a component 
of the site plan. 
 
Policy 8.5.1 The Town shall encourage and participate in the development of a multiple-

use trail system in accordance with the Trails Task Force report to ultimately, 
where possible, connect to public preserves and the regional trail network per 
the applicable Town trails plan, and the pedestrian and bicycle plan. 

 
Staff Comment:  The Tentative Development Plan depicts an internal sidewalk connecting 
to existing sidewalks on La Canada Drive and Moore Road.  There is an existing trail 
located in the northeast corner of the property.  This trail should connect to the proposed 
sidewalk system which provides pedestrians with access to La Canada Drive and Moore 
Road.  The General Plan Open Space element identifies trail and open space connectivity 
as a priority.  A condition has been added requiring a trail connection.   
 
Engineering 
 
The PAD amendment addresses issues related to drainage and traffic.  The proposed PAD 
amendment acknowledges that the development will be designed so that post-developed 
drainage conditions are consistent with pre-developed conditions in accordance with Town 
requirements.  Furthermore, a traffic analysis is provided within the PAD amendment to 
address traffic related issues.  Two points of ingress/egress are proposed; one that 
connects into Moore Road and the other that connects into La Canada Road.  Both 
roadways are arterials with a large amount of available capacity since they were originally 
designed to accommodate a higher density than what the surrounding neighborhoods were 
actually constructed to.  The anticipated volume of traffic generated by a use of the 
proposed size is generally very low and therefore would not have a noticeable impact on 
the surrounding roadway system. 
 



OV913-001 Parcel 10T, Rancho Vistoso   Page 5 of 6 

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 

 
If the PAD Amendment request is successful, the final analysis of drainage and traffic 
impacts will be evaluated during the site plan review process 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Summary of Public Notice 
 
Public notice has been provided: 
 

• Notification of all property owners within 600 feet and extended area 

• Homeowners Association mailing 

• Advertisement in The Daily Territorial newspaper 

• Post on property 

• Post at Town Hall and on website 
 
Neighborhood Meetings 
 
A neighborhood meeting was held on May 2, 2013.  Six residents attended the meeting and 
expressed general support of the applicant’s request.  The neighbors’ primary concerns 
included commercial building height and traffic.  A copy of the neighborhood meeting 
minutes has been attached (see Attachment 7).   

 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The applicant’s proposal has been evaluated using the development standards found in the 
Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development and the General Plan.   
 
The proposed PAD Amendment as modified through the recommended conditions of 
approval will increase conformance with the General Plan goals and policies.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the finding that the proposed PAD Amendment is consistent with the General 
Plan, it is recommended that the Planning and Zoning Commission take the following 
action: 
 
Recommend to Town Council approval of the PAD Amendment subject to the conditions in 
Attachment 1. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



OV913-001 Parcel 10T, Rancho Vistoso   Page 6 of 6 

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to recommend approval of the PAD Amendment for Parcel 10T, Rancho Vistoso 
from Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR), based on the finding that the 
request complies with the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development and the General 
Plan, subject to the conditions in Attachment 1.   
 
      OR 
 
I move to recommend denial of the PAD Amendment for Parcel 10T, Rancho Vistoso from 
Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR), based on the finding that the 
request does not comply with the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development and the 
General Plan, specifically _________________________.  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Conditions of Approval 
2. Location Map 
3. General Plan Land Use Map 
4. Current Zoning Map 
5. Site Analysis 
6. Proposed Zoning Map 
7. Neighborhood Meeting Summary Notes 
 
     ___________________________________________ 
     Chad Daines, Principal Planner 



Attachment 6 

2. PUBLIC HEARING: AMENDMENT TO THE RANCHO VISTOSO PLANNED 
AREA DEVELOPMENT FROM COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL (MDR) FOR PARCEL 10T, LOCATED ON THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF LA CANADA DRIVE AND MOORE ROAD, OV913-001 

Rosevelt Arellano, Planner, presented the following: 

- Location Map 
- Vicinity 
- Proposed Zoning Rancho Vistoso PAD - MDR 
- Approvals to Date 
- Neighborhood Meeting 
- Review Tools 
- Compatibility 
- General Plan Policies Review 
- Conclusion/Recommendation 

Paul Oland , WLB, representing the property owner presented the following : 

- Location Map 
- Tentative Development Plan 
- Surrounding two-story Homes 
- Commercial Demand 

Chairman Swope opened the Public Hearing. 

Erica Wiese, Oro Valley Resident, commented that cut through traffic is very dangerous 
and a big concern . Ms. Wiese is concerned with the amount of traffic and asked why 
there wasn't a connection to existing neighborhoods. 

Art Wiese, Oro Valley Resident, commented that the views of the Catalina 
Mountains with two-story homes is a concern . 

Bill Adler, Oro Valley Resident , commented that he is opposed to using similarity of 
adjacent developments as a criteria to determine the acceptance of a new 
proposal. There has been increased difficultly with variances on smaller lots and larger 
homes which seems to be the market demand. There should be a careful review of 
market demand for larger homes on smaller lots . 

Chairman Swope closed the Public Hearing. 

Paul Oland , commented on the questions asked during the Public Hearing, including 
connecting to existing neighborhoods. 



MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Caine and seconded by Commissioner 
Rodman to Recommend Approval of the PAD Amendment for Parcel 10T, Rancho 
Vistoso from Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR), based on the 
finding that the request complies with the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development 
and the General Plan , subject to the conditions in Attachment 1. 

Attachment 1 
Conditions of Approval Parcel10T RV PAD Amendment OV913-001 

December 3,2013, Planning and Zoning Commission 

Planning : 
1. The remainder .78 acres along the east boundary of the subject property shall be 

permanently designated as open space in accordance with the Environmentally 
Sensitive Lands requirements on the subdivision plat. 

2. Potential cut-through traffic will be evaluated by a professional engineer. Traffic 
calming measures may be required to be installed by the developer, if 
determined necessary by the Town Engineer. 

3. A trail connection shall be constructed between the existing trail in the northeast 
corner of the property and the proposed internal sidewalk. 

MOTION carried , 5-0. 



Neighborhood Meeting Summary 
4.9-Acre Residential Development 

Parcel10T in Rancho Vistoso, Neighborhood 10 
May 2, 2013 

6:00 - 7:30 PM 

Prepared by Rosevelt Arellano 

1. Introductions and Welcome 

Attachment 7 

David Williams introduced the Oro Valley Project Manager Rosevelt Arellano. He also introduced Council 
Member Mike Zinkin and Board of Adjustment Member Bill Adler. He introduced project team member Paul 
Oland of WLB Group. Six residents attended the meeting. 

2. Staff Presentation 

Project Manager. Rosevelt Arellano. provided a presentation that included: 

• General information of the project site 
• Review Process for a Minor General Plan Amendment and Planned Area Development (PAD) 

Amendment 
• Review Criteria 
• Public Participation Opportunities 
• Next Steps 

3. Applicant Presentation 

The project team provided a presentation that included: 

• Proposed Site Design 
• Project Timeline 

4. Public Comments and Questions 

• Mr. Adler objected to processing both applications concurrently because each application is 
subject to different criteria. 

o The applicant responded that the proposed applications will not be heard at the same 
public hearings. 

• What is the permitted building height for the existing C-1 (Commercial) zone and the proposed 
MDR (Medium Density Residential) zoning districts? 

o C-1 : 34', 3-stories 
o MDR: 30', 2-stories 

• What is the zoning district for the property located on the southwest corner of Moore Road and 
La Canada Drive? 

o The Pima County Zoning Map designates this property as SR (Suburban Ranch). The 
zoning district permits single family residence and requires a minimum lot size of 3.3-
acres. 

• What types of commercial uses are permitted in a C-1 (Commercial) zoning district? 

o The permitted commercial uses include (but are not limited to): grocery stores. professional 
offices, bakeries, barber shops, and schools. 



• Neighbors had concerns with commercial traffic being greater than residential traffic. 

• How do 5,000 square foot lots translate into 4 dwelling units per acre on a 4.9 acre site? 

o The applicant's proposed density (4 dwelling units per acre) accounts for the installation 
of roadways, open space, bufferyards, and drainage areas. As a result, the site lot yield 
will be approximately 19 lots. 

• What is the largest commercial building (in square feet) that can be built on the site today? 

o The site can accommodate about 40,000 to 50,000 square feet of commercia l building. 

• What is the closest recreational area to the site? 

o The closest recreational areas are located approximately three-tenths of a mile north, 
and one-half mile west of the project site. 

• Will the proposed development include a recreational area? 

o The applicant responded that a small recreat ional area (tot lot) may be provided. 

• Will the applicant install a right turn lane into the site from La Canada Drive? 

o The applicant responded that a right turn lane will likely not be installed. 

• How far will the proposed subdivision be setback from La Canada Drive? 

o The Town Zoning Code requires a 25' landscape bufferyard on arterial roadways. 

• How many 1 and 2-story homes are proposed to be built? 

o The Zoning Code provides that no more than 60% of the subdivision can consist of 
2-story homes. Approximately 19 lots are proposed to be developed on the site . 

• A neighbor to the west had concerns with preserving their existing views and preferred that only 
1-story homes be built along the southwest portion of the property . 

o The applicant responded that larger lots are proposed in this area, and will likely consist 
of larger backyards that will help mitigate their concern. 

o The applicant wi ll consider placing story poles in the southwest portion of the property to 
help neighbors better understand the view impacts of a 2-story home. 

• Will a signal light be placed at the intersection of La Canada Drive and Moore Road? 

5. Next Steps 

o The applicant responded that the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development shows a 
signal light planned at the intersection; however additional traffic studies may be required 
to determine whether a signal light is warranted. 

• The next steps include an application submittal followed by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and Town Council public hearings. The public hearing dates wi ll be determined 
upon review of the submitted application. For more information , please contact Rosevelt 
Arellano, Planner, at (520) 229-4817 or rarellano@orovalleyaz .gov. 



Attachment 8 

12/13/13 

To: Roosevelt Arellano 

Dave Williams 

Oro Va lley Town Board 

Re: The proposed subdivision on the NE corner of Moore and LaCanada; we, the neighbors of this 

proposal have the following concerns: 

1) Housing built on LaCanada wi ll partially or totally block existing views of the Catalina mountains. 

Two story houses would total ly block views. Homeowners paid a premium for lots on the west 

side of LaCanada for the mountain view. Therefore blockage of the view reduces the quality of 

life and lowe rs property values . 

2) Traffic exiting west on to La Canada from the north end of the proposed subdivision may 

present headlight pollution for residents on the wes t side of La Canada . 

3) Traffic ex iting on to LaCanada from the north end of the subd ivision needs to cross 4 lanes to go 

sout h which would be a main route. This route is dangerous conSide ri ng the volume and speed 

of traffic. 

Remediation of these concerns is requested. 

Possible remedie s to these concerns might be, but are not limited to: 

A) Change housing plan by moving housing eastward, away from LaCanada 

B) Reduce density/increase lot size 

C) limit housing to one story 

D) Provide exit on to Desert Fa irways/e liminate exit on to LaCanada 

E) Reduce speed limit on La Canada to 25mph 

Respectfu lly Submitted 



Page 2 

Re: The propos db ' . . . e su division on the NE corn 
ind icate their concerns and ask for mitigation

er 
of Moore and LaCanada : the undersigned hom 

. eowners 

c. l.;r w ~~ 1:Z '67 y; N W~ · It ~T . W,I~5 '" . "r." ,t'/Si/E: ,,<- tJ tl 7 Lt . - -
-LtvttL .. \I::' (UlQA.1: £c~~'n I\j lU Q~~(l·i j ;fI 2[) 2-1 ~:> > 
I /.(J.J "'.f! 1. (u II:' <.1_ .- t!,l.-a\.t-\, 1. 1 ~'( J.L ." / '2. { -' ,,/ 

'-K. Cv"i Y1r~ ' i c \_ ~ . '- ., "'-=:1- • :7:...;1 I;::. 
(.;L...C ';(" (}["vv- · .J'.... CJ' 17< 'u ·1 

/ 1 Ki /1 ,-,\ /'-Vi I -, r J\, k-t.5-1/)lUl:yk
c DC 

- J r \..l.lCl " . 

/;tf>~ 
8(../1 (\r-v,Ax// 

'( '> .-)) ,_ 7, f-
- .., 'I / 

- I ) 



The applicant proposes a 4.9 acre single-family 
residential development similar to existing residential 
development patterns in Rancho Vistoso, with 2. 1 to 
5.0 dwelling units per acre. 

Applicant: 
The WLB Group, Inc. 
Attn : Paul Oland, 520-881-7480 

Property Owner: 
Bourne Investment LLC & JDW Investments Management LLC 

Property Location: 
NE corner of Moore Road and La Canada Drive 

Property Area: 
4.9 Acres 

Current General Plan Designations: 
Neighborhood Commercial! Office: Commercial and office areas 
located with good arterial access that are close to residential areas. Within 
these areas, uses such as grocery stores, drugstores and offices tend to 
serve the surrounding neighborhoods and are integrated with those 
neighborhoods. Offices include professional offices, tourism-related 
businesses, and services. 

Proposed General Plan Designation: 
Medium Density Residential : Single-family detached, townhouse or 
patio home development ranging from 2.1 to 5. a dwelling units per acre. 
These areas should be located close to schools. shopping and 
employment. 

Number of dwellings, building heights, site plans and many other details are 
fixed in the Rezoning and Site Planning processes, when the public will be 
consulted again. 

For additional information contact: 

Rosevelt Arellano 
Development and Infrastructure Services 
Planning Division 
'1 '1000 N La Canada Drive 
Oro Valley, Arizona 85737 

(520) 229-4817 
rarellano@orovalleyaz.gov 
www.orovalleyaz.govlgeneralplanlamendments 

Location 

Existing Designation 

Proposed Designation 



Town Council Regular Session Item #   7.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Amanda Jacobs Submitted By: Amanda Jacobs, Town Manager's Office
Department: Town Manager's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING EXTENSION OF THE TEMPORARY USE OF
A-FRAMES, NON-PROFIT SIGNS AND OUTDOOR DISPLAYS UNTIL FEBRUARY 2, 2015 (Council
Communication updated on 1/13/14 at 4:00 pm)

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the temporary use of A-frames, non-profit signs and outdoor displays be extended for
two years until February 1, 2016, due to the economy continuing to recover. The two year extension
shows commitment to the business community and allows them to feel confident in their investment to
pay for temporary signage.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised (OVZCR) does not permit outdoor displays or A-frames; however,
on September 21, 2011, Council approved the temporary use of outdoor displays and A-frames for Oro
Valley businesses. On February 1, 2012, Council expanded the temporary use of A-frame signs to
include non-profit organizations. As part of the temporary relief, certain fees and administrative reviews
are waived and the only requirement is a permit for tracking purposes. These temporary sign relief
measures are scheduled to expire February 3, 2014.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Since Council approved the temporary use of A-frames, non-profit signs and outdoor displays, the
following permits have been received:

A-frames: 52 businesses
Non-profit: 1 businesses
Outdoor displays: 21 businesses

Fees and administrative reviews have been waived for outdoor display and non-profit A-frame permits. A
one-time $50 fee is charged for users of A-frame signs and an over-the-counter (or walk-in) review is
completed prior to permit issuance.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Town currently collects a one time $50 permit fee for A-frames and waives the permit fee for outdoor
displays and non-profit A-frames.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve or deny) extending the temporary use of A-frame signs, non-profit signs and outdoor



I MOVE to (approve or deny) extending the temporary use of A-frame signs, non-profit signs and outdoor
displays until February 2, 2015; or

I MOVE to (approve or deny) extending the temporary use of A-frame signs, non-profit signs and outdoor
displays until February 1, 2016. 

Attachments
Aframe and Nonprofit Sign Permits
Outdoor Display Permits



Activities 1 Projects 1 Developments 11 :34 01/13/2014 

; or I Status Type Sub Type Leve Type_C I Balance j Title 
I ! I at 
151100186 ! 7645 N ORACLE RD OV 10/;2/2011 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME A BLDG 10 1 MAS: 
' c- .......... o..,. 110785NORACLE RO OV .... ,.">, ... ,.. •• ,C" .... ",.... .......... ,,....... II r-n It ur- "no ...... ,......... ,J', 

'ENVY SPA 
I 1"'\ • ULU.... I U r'\OKO FITCLUB 

;1" 

I S1100199 

i S1100200 

1 S1100204 

I :::'llUUL1U 

~10645 N ORACLE RD OV 
10785 N ORACLE RD OV 

l4,05 W TORTOLITA MOUNTAIN 1 10/20/2011 I ISSUED 
CI OV_ 
121 42 N RANCHO VISTQSO BL t IV/L.Uf£:U I 

OV 
11575N 1STAV OV 
7645 N ORACLE RD OV 

7790 N ORACLE RD OV 
7607 N ORACLE RD OV 

11 
10/27/2011 

~ 
lUI.,) I/Lull 

11/0212011 

1 SIGN 

I SIGN 

= A BLDG 0 I UPS STORE A FRAME 
= II. I 01 nr- I n PUSCH R1DGI= 

r: II=ANI=RS_ 

1 A I BLDG 10 

j A I BLDG 10 
I 

STO-NE CANYON PROP 
INFO CENTER A FRAME 

J CAFE A 
FRAME 

SIGN A-FRAME BLDG I 0 JAZZERCISE 
1 SIGN 1 A-FRAME BLDG 10 EUROPEAN 'MAY 

I SIGN ' I A-FRAME I A I BLDG 1 ON 
SIGN 1 A-FRAME A BLDG SAFFRON INDIAN 

BISTROA---
SIGN I A-FRAME I A I BLDG 0 I SOUl HWe~ I KII "HeN 

I I A FRAMES 
I S1100213 I 7780 N ORACLE RD OV 

1 S1100220 12450 N RANCHO VISTOSO BL ISSUED SIGN I A-FRAME BLDG 0 MOUN, TA,IN VISTA REAL 
OV~~IATE ",FRAM~~IG_ 

S1100225 10515 N ORACLE RD OV A-FRAME I A I BLDG 10 I GREAT CLIPS 
1 S11 00237 7930 N ORACLE RD OV A-FRAME A BLDG I 0 R_~~O_L~T~~~SA_ 

1 S1100242 

I S1100247 

! S1100251 

~100253 

I S1 

I S1200011 

! 01 

I S1200013 
S1200037 

I S1200055 

I S1200059 

..::II"::UUUO£ 

17888 N 

17974 N 

17635 N 

: 7619 N 

7645 N 

'RD OV 

,RD -OV 

,RD OV 

,RD OV 

'RD OV 

12113/2011 

12114/2011 

, 12/16/2011 

ISSUED 

ISSUED 

7621 N ORACLE RD OV 101111/2012 I ISSUED 

11901 N 1STAV OV 101/1312012 I ISSUED 

10645 N ' 'RD OV 101117/2012 I ISSUED 

0875 N ORACLE RD OV 
10355 N LA CANADA DR OV 

12142 N RANCHO VISTOSO BL I 03/28/2012 
OV 

[
645 E VUELT A CAMINATA DEL 1 04/10/2012 
RIO OV 
11045 N ORACLE RD OV 104113/2012 

I FRAME 
I SIGN I A-FRAME I A I BLDG i 0 I TROUVAILLE SALON 

AND SPA A FRAME 
I SIGN I A-FRAME I A I BLDG I 0 I GAP MINISTRIES A 

FRAME 
I SIGN I A-FRAME I A I BLDG 10 I CARRABBAS ITALIAN 

GRILL A FRAME SIGN 
<:::HI= ~ I SIGN A-FRAME BLDG 0 

1 DIAMONDS A-FRAME 
i SIGN A-FRAME 1 BLDG 0 FRAMED TO 

-------'ON A FRAME 
I SIGN 1 A-FRAME 1 A [ BLDG I 0 I PETER PIPER PIZZA A 

FRAME SIGN 
I SIGN I A-FRAME I A I BLDG I 0 I BODY WORKS PILATES 

A FRAME SIGN 
SIGN A-FRAME A BLDG 0 H & R BLOCK A FRAME 

SIGN I 
SIGN A-FRAME A BLDG 0 BEDMART A FRAME 
SIGN A-FRAME A BLDG 0 FRIENDS OF THE , 1 

LIBRARY TOO A FRAME 
1 SIGN 1 A-FRAME 1 A 1 BLDG 1 0 I LADY OF AMERICA A 

FRAME SIGN 
rSIG N - I A-FRAME I A I BLDG I 0 I BRAKE MASTERS 

I SIGN I A-FRAME I A I BLDG I 0 I QUIK TRIP A FRAME 
SIGN 

Page 1 



Activities 1 Projects 1 Developments 

, S1200068 10515 N ORACLE RD OV 104/17/2012 ! ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

. S1200075 7942 N ORACLE RD OV I 04/23/2012 ISSUED SiGN A-FRAME 

. S1200077 10625 N ORACLE RD OV 04/3012012 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME , 
51 200095 9040 N ORACLE RD OV 05/18/2012 ISSUED SIGN I A-FRAME 
I 
I S1200100 10515 N ORACLE RD OV 0512512012 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

S1200117 110605 N ORACLE RD OV 07/11/2012 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

i 
S1200130 110333 N ORACLE RD OV 07/31/2012 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

I 
S1200231 1305 W NARANJA DR OV 1 10/25/2012 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

I , 
S1200234 1305 W NARANJA DR OV 111/01 /2012 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

, S1200243 17881 N ORACLE RD OV 11 /08/2012 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

S1300016 7645 N ORACLE RD OV 0112212013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME I S1300030 1305 W NARANJA DR OV 01/3112013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

1 S1300036 1 10132 N ORACLE RD OV 02/12/2013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

S1300050 113101 N ORACLE RD OV 03/01/2013 ISSUED SIGN 1 A-FRAME 

S1300074 12985 N ORACLE RD OV 03/29/2013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

I S1300087 10785 N ORACLE RD OV 04/05/2013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

S1300130 110580 N LA CANADA DR OV 05/17/2013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

S1 300138 10529 N ORACLE RD OV 05/24/2013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 
S1300148 17725 N ORACLE RD OV 05/30/2013 ISSUED SIGN I A-FRAME 

I 

S1300152 110645 N ORACLE RD OV 06/13/2013 I ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 
S1300154 7725 N ORACLE RD OV 06/18/2013 ISSUED SIGN I A-FRAME 
S1300179 112142 N RANCHO VISTOSO BL 06/07/2013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

OV 
S1300189 1 10540 N LA CANADA DR OV 09/05/2013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

S1300190 111931 N 1ST AV OV 09/05/2013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

S1300202 I 7607 N ORACLE RD OV 09/20/2013 ISSUED SIGN A-FRAME 

Total Rows: 52 

*- = i~ ~ f At, fi~/ ( l3u~ tIJ J.ltllJJfJJage 2 

./UulV d 11 t71-;n'j t--- '4/ f /[/ 

A I BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 
A I BLDG 0 

, 
I 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 
A BLDG 0 

A BLDG ' 0 
I A BLDG 10 
A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 10 

A BLDG 0 

A BLDG 0 

11 :34 01/13/2014 

I THE BACK ALLEY 
. CHIROPRACTIC I 

MY GYM A FRAME 
SIGN 
PETS MART A FRAME 

I SIGN 
TOSCANA A FRAME I SIGN I 

ORO VALLEY EYECARE ! 
A FRAME SIGN ' 
PIZZA HUT A FRAME : 
SIGN 
ROCK RIDGE 
APARTMENTS-A-
FRAME 
FRIENDS OF THE ~ 
LIBRARY A FRAME 
FRIENDS OF THE 
LIBRARY A FRAME 
ARIZONA BEDS A 
FRAME SPECIALS 
THE JOINT A FRAME 
FRIENDS OF THE 
LIBRARY A FRAME 
SIGN 
AMERICAN FAMILY 
INSURANCE A FRAME 
RANCHO VlSTOSO 
URGENT CARE A 
FRAMES 
ALA BUZZ A FRAME 
SIGN 
FRUIT SHACK A FRAME 
SIGN 
RUBS MASSAGE 
STUDIO - A-FRAME 
BRAKEMAX - A FRAM E 
SOUTHERN ARIZONA 
URGENT CARE 
UNIQUELY NAILS 
EL CHARRO CAFE 
TUTORING CENTER A 
FRAME SIGN 
GOODWILL 
DONATIONS 
GOODWILL 
DONATIONS 
FLEET FEET 



Activities / Projects / Developments 11 :34 01/13/2014 

Number Address or Location Balance Title I Entered Status 1 Ty-p-e:--- I Sub Type -I' Leve 1 Type_C 
I I I at I MB1f60548 1 7~63 N ORACLE RD bv __ J 1012112011 ISSUED - ~'SC_BL i ~OUTDOO 1 A BLDG 0 I PLAY IT AGAIN SPORTS I 

MB1'00557 17685 N ORACLE RD OV , '01251201' ISSUED MISC_BL ! COUTDOO I A BLDG 0 1 TODAYS PATIO -
I D I R OUTDOOR DISPLAY 

MB,,0057, '192' N ,ST AV -bv 1'1102/20" I ISSUED I ~'SC_BL r~6lJTbOOTA I BLDG 10 ---- I ACE HARDWARE 

MB, '00573 17607 N ORACLE RD OV '1102/20'1 ISSUED ~'SC_BL I ~OUTDOO --A I BLDG i 0 

MB1100581 1'0885 N ORACLE RD OV 11104/20', ISSUED 1 MISC_BL : COUTDOO A , BLDG 10 
, D I R 

MB1'00582 179'2 N ORACLE RD OV T , 1I04/20n - rsSUEb l~iSC_BL -r~OUTDOO T A BLDG - [0 

I MB1100595 '1 '1015 N ORACLE RD OV 1111012011 I 'SSUED j MISC_BL I COUTDOO I A 
I ' D R 

BLDG o 

MB, '00602 I '0355 N LA CANADA DR OV 111'6120'1 I 'SSUED I MISC_BL 1 COUTDOO I A 
I I D R 

BLDG o 

MB1100607 1880 E TANGERINE RD OV 11116/2011 I 'SSUED I ~'SC_8L-T~6U-Tb6(YTJ\ BLDG o 

MB,100658 ISSUED MI$C~9L I COUTDOO I A 
D R 

110450 N LA CANADA DR OV , 12121/2011 BLDG o 

MB1100659 1 '066' N ORACLE RD OV 12/21/2011 ISSUED MISC_BL 1 COUTDOO I A 
D R 

BLDG o 

MB, 2000' 3 MISc::8L -I COUTDOO I A 
D R 

7645 N ORACLE RD OV 01106/2012 ISSUED BLDG o 

o MB,200016 MISC_BL i COUTDOO I A 
o ! R 

7951 N ORACLE RD OV 01/09/2012 I ISSUED BLDG 

MB,200027 17936 N ORACLE RD OV 0111712012 ISSUED MISC BL I CbUTDOO 1 A 
D - I R 

BLDG o 

MB1200069 '2985 N ORACLE RD OV 0210612012 ISSUED o 

LIFE TIME MARTIAL 
ARTS 
BIG 0 TIR~---- l 

OUTDOOR DISPLAY 
TRADER JOE'S 

FINALE II 

FRIENDS OF ORO 
VALLEY LIBRARY 
BIKE MASTERS 

FRYS LA CANADA 

FRYS ORACLE 

TREK BICYCLES OF 
TUCSON 
WALMART 

SWEET REPEATS 

ORO VALLEY BICYCLE , A - I BLDG 

MB1200100 i ' 0560 N LA CANADA DR OV "''''-~=''''''=C+''----';lhB''LrD'''G--+-1 O;;----+-A;cC'"E""H·A"'R"'DW=ArR;rE~_--I 
, OUTDOOR DISPLAY 

MB1200279 / 10575 N ORACLE RD OV 105/21/2012 I 'SSUED I ~'SC_BL I ~OUTDOO I A I BLDG 10- -T rU::R 1 IMPORTS 

! MB1200294 1"935 N ORACLE RD OV -T b5i25i2(ff2- l 'S$UED I ~'SC_BL I ~OUTDOO i A I BLDG 10 

! MB1300133 110885 NORACLE RD OV 10212712013 I 'SSU-ED I ~'SC_BL I ~OUTDOO I A BLDG 10 

' MB'300567 7665 N ORACLE RD OV 08119/2013 ISSUED MISC BL COUTDOO I A 
D - R 

h.M"'B7-13"0;n0'>'73"9---+1 "1 0"'5"1F5'N;-;O"'RA=C'"L-'E"R"'D~"O"V;---tI·'-;;0/"'2:r5/"'2"0'''3rl",S'''S"'U"E=-;D~-1I -~jSC _BL ~OUTD06 TA 

BLDG 10 

BLDG 10 

Total Rows: 21 

Page 1 

DICKS SPORTING 
GOODS 
BIG o TIRES 

SPROUTS FARMERS 
MARKET 
ORO VALLEY EYE 
CARE 



Town Council Regular Session Item #   8. a.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Submitted By: Chad Daines, Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-08, DECLARING THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ORO VALLEY
ZONING CODE REVISED SECTION 27.3 AND CHAPTER 31 RELATING TO PUBLIC ART, PROVIDED
AS EXHIBIT "A" WITHIN THE ATTACHED RESOLUTION AND FILED WITH THE TOWN CLERK, A
PUBLIC RECORD

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This is a procedural item to declare the draft ordinance a matter of public record. The draft ordinance has
been posted online and made available in the Town Clerk's Office. If the final version is adopted, as
approved by Town Council, it will be made available in the same manner.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Once adopted by Town Council, this proposed resolution will become a public record and will save the
Town on advertising costs since the Town will forgo publishing the entire draft ordinance in print form.
The current draft version of the draft ordinance has been posted on the Town's website and a printed
copy is available for public review in the Town Clerk's Office. Once adopted, the final version will be
published on the Town's website.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Town will save on advertising costs by meeting publishing requirements by reference, without
including the pages of amendments.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (adopt or deny) Resolution No. (R)14-08, declaring the proposed amendments to the Oro
Valley Zoning Code Revised Section 27.3 and Chapter 31, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and filed with
the Town Clerk, a public record.

Attachments
(R)14-08 Declaring Amendments to Section 27.3 & Ch 31 a Public Record



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7012D8A0\@BCL@7012D8A0.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/arm/91008

RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-08

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, DECLARING THAT CERTAIN 
DOCUMENT ENTITLED “THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY PUBLIC 
ART PROVISIONS, SECTION 27.3 ORO VALLEY ZONING CODE 
REVISED” AND CHAPTER 31 “DEFINITIONS”, ATTACHED 
HERETO AS EXHIBIT “A” AND FILED WITH THE TOWN 
CLERK, A PUBLIC RECORD

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ORO 
VALLEY, ARIZONA, that certain document called “Town of Oro Valley Art Review 
Commission Scope and Duties and Public Art Provisions, Sections 27.3 Oro Valley Zoning Code 
Revised” and Chapter 31 “Definitions”, three copies of which are on file in the office of the 
Town Clerk, is hereby declared to be a public record, and said copies are ordered to remain on 
file with the Town Clerk. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona this 15th day of January, 2014.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

____________________________________
Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk

Date: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7012D8A0\@BCL@7012D8A0.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/arm/91008

Exhibit “A”

Additions shown in ALL CAPS font

Deletions shown in Strikethrough font

Additions / Deletions based on SAACA and Resident input shown in BOLD

Section 27.3 Public Artwork Provisions

A. Purpose

The purpose of these public artwork requirements is to implement the General Plan Arts 
and Culture Element and support the cultural and educational enrichment of the citizens
and visitors to Oro Valley through the creation of artwork that is accessible to all 
members of the community. The Town seeks enhancements to community beauty, artistic 
entertainment and enrichment for all its residents and visitors, and education in and 
through the arts.

B. Applicability

1. Public artwork is a required element of new private and public construction projects 
in Oro Valley as specified in this section.

2. Artwork projects created for private development as a result of the requirements of 
this section shall be privately owned and included in all nonresidential development 
projects, including religious institutions and nonprofit organizations, with the 
exception of communication facilities, utility installations and similar projects as 
determined by the Planning and Zoning Administrator.

3. All projects where public artwork has not been provided in accordance with Town 
Council requirements and legal nonconforming uses that propose twenty-five percent 
(25%) or more cumulative addition or structural modifications, such as changes in 
square footage, gross floor area, and building facade, shall meet the requirements of 
this section.

4. Public artwork is required for all new public construction projects involving 
construction costs over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), with the following 
exceptions:

i. Public art expenditure is not legally permissible due to the constraints imposed by 
the funding mechanism;

ii. Maintenance projects such as surface treatments;

iii. Safety improvements such as sidewalks and overlays with shouldering for bike 
lanes;



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7012D8A0\@BCL@7012D8A0.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/arm/91008

iv. Significant budgetary constraints necessitate cost reduction, subject to Town 
Council approval.

C. Artwork Budget

1. A budget for public artwork shall be established based on one percent (1%) of the 
building permit valuation for the project, including all phases of a multi-phase 
project. THE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION SHALL BE CONFIRMED 
BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL. The itemized budget and a copy of the contract 
or agreement with the artist shall be submitted for Town review. The budget shall be 
spent on the design, fabrication, installation, and the Town review process of public 
artwork for the project.

2. For applicable public construction projects, one percent (1%) of the project 
construction cost shall be used for public artwork.

3. If specifically approved by the Planning and Zoning Administrator, artwork budgets 
may include integrated pedestals, bases, walls, utility extensions and architect’s fees 
exclusively required for the artwork.

4. Artwork budgets shall not be used for normally required improvements and 
development costs, including but not limited to land acquisition, grading, paving, 
sidewalks and landscaping.

5. For multi-phase projects OR WHERE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION HAS 
CHANGED, an updated public artwork budget, based on the most current building 
valuation tables, will be submitted for each phase at the time of application for public 
artwork approval.

D. Fee in Lieu of Public Art

1. If the building permit valuation is less than TWO one million dollars ($2,000,000 
$1,000,000), the owner/developer may elect to contribute the one percent (1%) to the 
Town of Oro Valley as an in-lieu fee. It shall be earmarked specifically for public 
artwork projects.

2. If the building permit valuation is ten million dollars ($10,000,000) or more, the 
owner may elect to contribute that portion of the one percent (1%) over one hundred 
thousand dollars ($100,000) to the Town of Oro Valley earmarked specifically for 
public artwork projects.

3. A portion of the one percent (1%) may also be used to construct on-site performing 
art facilities used for and by the public for the promotion and production of the arts.

4. THE PLANNING AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR MAY DETERMINE THAT 
DUE TO REMOTENESS OF LOCATION, LIMITED ACCESS, OR ANY OTHER 
CAUSE THAT MAY PREVENT THE REQUIRED PUBLIC ARTWORK FROM 
FULFILLING THE INTENT OF THESE PROVISIONS, THE ONE PERCENT 
(1%) MONIES BE MADE AS AN IN-LIEU FEE.

4. 5. The in-lieu fees paid to the public art fund may be used for the maintenance of 
publicly owned artwork.



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7012D8A0\@BCL@7012D8A0.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/arm/91008

E. CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS

1. IF THE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION IS OF ONE MILLION DOLLARS 
($1,000,000) OR MORE, BUT LESS THAN FOUR MILLION DOLLARS 
($4,000,000), A CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS IS REQUIRED AND MUST BE 
AT LEAST REGIONALLY ADVERTISED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
PUBLIC ART GUIDELINES.

2. IF THE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION IS OF FOUR MILLION DOLLARS 
($4,000,000) OR MORE, A CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS IS REQUIRED. THE 
CALL SHALL BE ADVERTISED NATIONALLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
PUBLIC ART GUIDELINES. 

3. IF THE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION IS LESS THAN ONE MILLION 
DOLLARS ($1,000,000), NO CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS IS REQUIRED. 
THE CONTRACTED ARTIST SHALL WORK AND RESIDE IN SOUTHERN 
ARIZONA.

4. THE PLANNING AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR SHALL ADOPT 
GUIDELINES TO BE KNOWN AS THE "PUBLIC ART GUIDELINES", 
AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, TO SPECIFY THE CALL-FOR-ARTIST 
PROCESS.

F. Processing

1. Public artwork shall be reviewed in a two (2) THREE (3) step process: CALL FOR 
ARTISTS (IF REQUIRED), conceptual review, and final review. Conceptual public 
artwork shall be reviewed by the Conceptual Design Review Board AND TOWN 
COUNCIL; and final public art submittals shall be reviewed by Town staff.

2. A “QUALIFIED AGENT” SHALL BE USED TO PERFORM A CALL FOR 
ARTIST PROCESS AS REQUIRED IN SECTION F, ABOVE. THIS PROCESS IS 
TO BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PUBLIC ART 
GUIDELINES PRIOR TO SUBMITTING A CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PROPOSAL 
TO THE TOWN. 

3. FOLLOWING THE CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS, APPLICANT SHALL 
SUBMIT CONCEPTUAL PUBLIC ARTWORK DESIGNS TO BE 2. Public artwork
for public construction projects shall be reviewed by the Conceptual Design Review 
Board AND TOWN COUNCIL. Timing for public construction projects’ artwork 
conceptual and final review by the Conceptual Design Review Board shall be 
determined by the Town Engineer and the Planning and Zoning Administrator.

3. 4. The conceptual design review of artwork shall assess artist qualifications (FOR NON 
CALL FOR ARTIST PROPOSALS), conceptual artwork design and artwork 
location(s) as provided in subsection H of this section. Conceptual review and 
approval are required prior to completion of a final review by Town staff.

4. 5. Subsequent to conceptual review, the Planning and Zoning Administrator (PZA) shall 
complete a final review. The applicant shall provide information on the artwork’s 
final design and a maintenance plan per subsection F.8 J.8 of this section. in sufficient 
detail to permit the Commission to completely evaluate the application using the 
standards and criteria included in subsection H of this section. Changes to the 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7012D8A0\@BCL@7012D8A0.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/arm/91008

approved artwork design or the approved maintenance plan shall require approval of 
the PZA.

5. 6. Project completion shall be certified by the acceptable installation of the approved 
artwork and submittal by the property owner of a certification package including the 
following: a statement that the artwork, artist and site meet the criteria established by 
the ordinance codified in this section, the date on which the installation was 
completed, and an itemized account of the expenses incurred in fulfilling the 
requirements of the ordinance codified in this section. Certification shall be 
completed before the Town issues a final certificate of occupancy.

6. 7. For existing development, previously approved projects, subsequent phases of phased 
projects, or projects that do not require a landscape plan, final review of public 
artwork shall be approved prior to the issuance of the building permit.

7. 8. Decisions of the Town Council on conceptual art shall be final.

G. Design and Location Requirements

1. Public artwork shall be designed by an artist as defined in Chapter 31. If a design 
team is employed to create public artwork, at least one (1) team member shall be an 
artist as defined in Chapter 31.

2. Public artwork shall not include any of the following unless specifically allowed by 
the Conceptual Design Review Board and the item is designed by an artist: 
architectural elements or structural parts of a building or other structure; fixtures or 
features such as grates, shade screens, streetlights, benches, signs, and bike racks. 
Designs of such items shall clearly result in artistic expression beyond the normally 
anticipated functional appearance.

3. Public artwork shall be in an area easily accessible and clearly visible to the general 
public. The location shall allow for unrestricted viewing from a variety of vantage 
points.

4. Public artwork may be located on a publicly viewable building facade, provided such 
location improves overall public accessibility to the artwork.

5. Artwork may be located within a building subject to Conceptual Design Review 
Board approval. The applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Conceptual 
Design Review Board that the interior location for artwork provides equal or superior 
public access relative to outdoor locations. Indoor locations shall be readily accessible 
to the public such as lobbies and entryways and shall be accessible to the public for a 
minimum of forty (40) hours each week.

6. The location of public artwork shall be indicated on the landscape plan, development 
plan, plat or other appropriate document as determined by the Planning and Zoning 
Administrator.

7. Public artwork shall be permanent and fixed, and may be integrated with the work of 
other design professionals.

8. Public artwork shall not be located in sight visibility triangles.

9. Location of art in a proposed or existing Town right-of-way shall be approved by the 
Town Engineer.



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7012D8A0\@BCL@7012D8A0.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/arm/91008

10. Off-site locations within the Town for public artwork may be approved by the Town 
Council, upon review and recommendation by the Conceptual Design Review Board. 

11. The Planning and Zoning Administrator may determine that the proposed public art 
location is remote and that public access to or visibility of the public art will be 
severely limited. This determination may result in the property owner electing to 
utilize the in-lieu option as outlined in subsection D of this section. The in-lieu fee 
provision may be applied to all or a portion of the one percent (1%) contribution for 
public artwork.

H. REVIEW CRITERIA PUBLIC ART DESIGN PRINCIPLES

The Conceptual Design Review Board shall assess individual applications based on 
conformance with the adopted design standards – Addendum “A” of the Zoning Code 
and fulfillment of the following principles:

1. QUALITY: ARTWORK DEMONSTRATES ORIGINALITY, ARTISTIC 
QUALITY, AND EXCELLENCE IN DESIGN AND CRAFTSMANSHIP; TO 
BE DEMONSTRATED THROUGH RENDERINGS, EXPLANATION OF 
CONSTRUCTION, MATERIALS, AND ARTIST RESUME.

2. RESPONSE TO CONTEXT: ARTWORKS SHOULD BE APPROPRIATE IN 
SCALE, MATERIAL, FORM AND CONTENT FOR THE IMMEDIATE AND 
GENERAL SOCIAL AND PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENTS WITH WHICH 
THEY ARE TO RELATE.

3. DURABILITY: CONSIDERATION SHOULD BE GIVEN TO STRUCTURAL 
AND SURFACE INTEGRITY, PERMANENCE, AND PROTECTION 
AGAINST THEFT, VANDALISM, WEATHERING, AND EXCESSIVE 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR COSTS.

4. INTEGRATION: WHERE POSSIBLE, IN ADDITION TO MEETING 
AESTHETIC REQUIREMENTS, ARTWORKS SHOULD ALSO SERVE TO 
ESTABLISH FOCAL POINTS, MODIFY, ENHANCE OR DEFINE SPECIFIC 
SPACES OR ESTABLISH IDENTITY.

5. SAFETY: ARTWORKS SHOULD NOT PRESENT A HAZARD OR CREATE 
UNSAFE CONDITIONS.

6. DIVERSITY: ARTWORKS SHOULD CONTRIBUTE TO A DIVERSITY OF 
STYLE, SCALE, MEDIA, ARTISTS, COMMUNITY VALUES AND FORMS 
OF EXPRESSION WITHIN THE TOWN.

7. VISIBILITY: ARTWORKS SHOULD BE VISIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE FOR 
THE PURPOSES OF PUBLIC ENJOYMENT AND SECURITY, 
CONSIDERING PEDESTRIAN AND VEHICULAR TRAFFIC, LIGHTING, 
ACTIVE HOURS ON SITE AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND 
VEGETATION GROWTH.

8. FEASIBILITY: CONSIDERATION SHOULD BE GIVEN TO THE 
LIKELIHOOD OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF THE ARTWORK. 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7012D8A0\@BCL@7012D8A0.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/arm/91008

FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO: 
PROJECT BUDGET, TIMELINE, ARTIST'S EXPERIENCE AND 
SOUNDNESS OF MATERIALS.

H. Review Criteria

Public art is an integral element of project design and contributes to the overall quality of 
life for Oro Valley residents and visitors. Public art contributes to a sense of place, 
defines and reinforces community identity, and reflects the unique character of the Town.

The Conceptual Design Review Board shall assess individual applications based on 
conformance with the adopted design standards – Addendum A of the Zoning Code and 
fulfillment of the following principles:

1.    Public art should serve as a distinctive and integral element in the overall design of a 
project or development.

2.    Public art should relate to the context and character of the project. Where appropriate, 
public art may employ themes associated with activities within the development.

3.    Public art should relate to the historical, cultural or natural context of the project area, 
the neighborhood or the Town.

4.    Public art shall not include corporate advertising elements of a business including colors, 
graphics, logos or other representations of corporate identity.

5.    Public art shall be designed to prevent hazards to the public. Durability and safety of 
materials shall be considered including potential areas of excessive wear or damage, 
which shall be mitigated.

6.    Potential obstructions, including landscape materials at maturity or future construction, 
shall be considered when locating public art.

7.    Public art shall be original and not duplicate existing artwork in the Town and shall 
conform to community standards.

I. Installation and Maintenance

1. Public artwork shall be installed, inspected and certified complete prior to the 
issuance of a final certificate of occupancy. If a certificate of occupancy has 
previously been issued, any business license or other Town approvals shall not be 
granted until public artwork installation is complete.

2. An artwork installation schedule, addressing timing, budget allocation, artwork 
location(s), and specific details for each phase of a phased development project, shall 
be submitted for review by the Planning and Zoning Administrator. Each 
development phase shall include public artwork allocated proportionally to building 
valuation as determined by the Planning and Zoning Administrator.

3. Public artworks must remain on public display AND SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN 
THE under optimum conditions in which they were originally installed.

4. The installation of the artwork will be done in a manner that will protect the artwork 
and the public. The general safety and permanence of artwork installation shall be 
inspected as determined by the Town Building Official, Town Engineer and the 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7012D8A0\@BCL@7012D8A0.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/arm/91008

Planning and Zoning Administrator. Incomplete or unsafe installations shall not be 
approved.

5. Artwork projects may SHALL have a small plaque not to exceed eighty (80) square 
inches in size identifying the TITLE, DATE work, AND artist and contributors. THE 
PLAQUE SHALL CONTAIN THE WORDS "ORO VALLEY 1% FOR PUBLIC 
ART PROGRAM".

6. Continued maintenance of the artwork shall be the responsibility of the property 
owner. The artwork shall be maintained to preserve its intended appearance as 
specified in the approved application. Faded paint, missing or damaged parts, or 
deteriorated finishes represent unacceptable maintenance conditions.

7. The original artist shall be offered the opportunity to provide maintenance and repair 
services for the artworks they create. If the original artist will not be maintaining the 
artwork, documentation of the property owner’s request to the artist for maintenance 
and repair services shall be submitted with the maintenance plan required in 
subsection F.8 of this section.

8. A maintenance plan specifying the party(ies) intended to complete repairs, 
REQUIRED MAINTENANCE STEPS, AND FREQUENCY OF EXPECTED 
MAINTENANCE, shall be submitted with the application for public artwork 
approval. If the party identified to perform maintenance and repairs is not the original 
artist, a statement of the individual’s qualifications to repair and maintain public 
artwork shall be submitted with the maintenance plan. Qualified individuals shall 
have experience working with the media and materials used in the artwork.

9. Public artwork responsibilities shall transfer from property owner to property owner.

10. The property owner shall be responsible for the services and utilities necessary to 
operate and/or maintain public artworks over time.

11. The property owner shall provide evidence of insurance in a minimum amount equal 
to the purchase and installation costs of the public artwork.

12. Replacement of missing or damaged public artworks is required, unless the property 
owner provides documentation that shows that the artwork was properly maintained 
in accordance with the approved maintenance plan. Property owners are required to 
respond to inquiries from the Town regarding damaged or missing public artwork 
within fifteen (15) days of written notice.

13. Failure to maintain the artwork, as determined by the Planning and Zoning 
Administrator, shall constitute a violation of this code, and/or cause liens against the 
real property.

14. Public artwork cannot be permanently removed, relocated or altered in any way 
without the review and approval of the Conceptual Design Review Board, as long as 
the establishment remains open for business or maintains an Oro Valley business 
license.

15. In the event public artwork must be temporarily moved or altered due to construction 
or other activity, the property owner shall submit in writing a request to the Planning 
and Zoning Administrator detailing the purpose, time frame, and intended temporary 
location for the artwork. Only the individual identified in the maintenance plan shall 
be permitted to move or alter public artwork. The request must be approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Administrator, WITH REFERENCE TO THE 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7012D8A0\@BCL@7012D8A0.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/arm/91008

MAINTENANCE PLAN, prior to movement or alteration of the artwork. The 
artwork shall be returned to its original location.

Chapter 31: Definitions

1. “Artist” shall mean an individual generally recognized by critics and peers as a 
professional, full time practitioner of the visual arts, as judged by the quality of that 
professional practitioner’s body of work, education, experience, past commissions, 
exhibition record, publications, and production of artwork.

2. “Public Artwork” shall mean artwork that is accessible to the community and the 
general public. It may be privately funded and owned or it may be fully funded by 
public agencies for public benefit. Public artwork adds aesthetic appeal, draws 
visitors and improves the image of the Town. It entails the application of skill and 
taste by an artist in creating an original work of art. Examples of appropriate public 
artwork include, but are not limited to: sculpture – freestanding, wall supported or 
suspended; murals or paintings; earthworks; fiber works; and mosaics. Privately 
funded and owned public artwork may not include: directional graphics or color-
coded location indicators; mass-produced or standard “off-the-shelf” items, including 
playground equipment, fountains, or statuary, and most art reproductions.



Town Council Regular Session Item #   8. b.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: David Williams
Submitted By: Chad Daines, Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE NO. (O)14-02, AMENDING SECTION 27.3 AND CHAPTER 31 OF
THE ZONING CODE RELATIVE TO PUBLIC ART

RECOMMENDATION:
On December 3, 2013, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the amendment
(Attachment 1).

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Town Council initiated this code amendment on May 15, 2013, which is intended to improve the variety of
new public art through updated code provisions, including establishment of a Call For Artists selection
process and updated review principles. The draft amendment specifically addresses the following
sections:

• Establishes a Call For Artists process for public art budgets over $10,000 in value
• Increases the value of public art threshold from $10,000 to $20,000 for in-lieu fee allowance
• Revises the Conceptual Public Art Design Review Principles
• Modifies the definition of public art to delete the narrow list of examples of "appropriate art"

A review group was assembled consisting of the Vice Mayor, Town Manager and art design members of
the Conceptual Design Review Board to review and provide direction on the draft amendment. The
amendment was also distributed to art organizations and other interested parties for review and
comment. The list of outside reviewers is provided as Attachment 2.  Public Art Guidelines, which are
intended to be administratively maintained, establish the detailed requirements for the proposed Call For
Artists process and are provided as Attachment 3.

The amendment was considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission on December 3, 2013.  At the
conclusion of the public hearing, the Commission voted to recommend approval of the amendment.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
The Town’s 1% Public Artwork Program was established in 1997. This program requires that
non-residential development provide public art in an amount equal to 1% of the building permit valuation.
 For example, a project valued at $2,000,000 would require the developer to provide 1%, or $20,000, in
public art on the subject property.

The Public Artwork provisions were amended in early 2011 to increase the art value threshold for in-lieu
fee allowance and allow the use of in-lieu fees for public art maintenance. In mid 2011, the Public Artwork
provisions were further amended to provide updated review criteria (Conceptual Public Art Design



provisions were further amended to provide updated review criteria (Conceptual Public Art Design
Review Principles) and to reflect the newly established Conceptual Design Review Board.

The Town Council has initiated this current code amendment with the goal of improving the variety of
public art through updated design review principles and modifications to the selection and approval
processes for public art. Listed below are discussion and analysis on the areas of amendment.

Call For Artists Process

Review of recent projects shows developers typically select from a narrow list of artists.  This has not
provided the continued diversity in art desired by the Town.  To resolve this issue, the amendment
includes a requirement to conduct a Call For Artists process to expand the diversity of artists considered
for a project.  This change will require the developer to retain a Qualified Agent to conduct the Call For
Artists process.

A Qualified Agent is an individual or organization with experience in conducting Call For Artists
processes who will assist the developer in managing the artist selection process.  It is important to note
that this is a developer managed process, not a Town managed process.  Upon selection of the artist, the
art concept will be designed and submitted to the Town for review.

A Call For Artists process includes advertisement of a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) or possibly a
Request for Proposals (RFP) (depending on the desired level of specificity) through art listservs, clearing
houses and publications. An artist is then selected for the project from the responding artists. A
competitive selection process is intended to improve the variety of art concepts and designs through an
expanded pool of artists.

The requirements for a Call For Artists process are based on the art value which is as follows:

Art Budget Call For Artists Requirement
Less than $10,000 No Call For Artists process is required; artist must reside and work in

Southern Arizona
Between $10,000 and
$40,000

Regionally advertised Call For Artists process is required

Over $40,000 Nationally advertised Call For Artists process is required

The Public Art Guidelines (Attachment 3) outline the basic steps in the Call For Artists process.  The
Planning and Zoning Commission staff report (Attachment 6) provides additional detailed information
relative to the steps in the Call For Artists process.

In-Lieu Fees for Public Art

The current Public Artwork provisions provide the option for an owner/developer to elect to contribute the
1% art funds to the Town of Oro Valley, if the art value is less than $10,000. The amendment proposes to
increase the threshold from $10,000 to $20,000 for the in-lieu fee option in order to allow additional
smaller scale projects to contribute the 1% to the Town's public art fund instead of funding their own
artwork.  The Town's public art fund is used to complete needed maintenance of Town-owned public art.

Public Art Design Review Principles

In 2011, the Public Artwork provisions were amended to update the review criteria (Conceptual Public Art
Design Review Principles) in conjunction with the establishment of the Conceptual Design Review Board.
The review group recommended updated Conceptual Design Review Principles to enhance the review
criteria by which public art proposals are assessed.  The amended art principles do not attempt to judge



the aesthetic qualities of art, but instead focus on originality of the artwork, response to context,
integration into development and visibility standards.

Public Art Definition

Comments were received during the review of the draft amendment that the definition of art is too narrow
and precludes consideration of a variety of art mediums.  The draft amendment modifies the existing
definition of "Public Art" to delete references to appropriate examples of art, which may have the indirect
effect of limiting art to traditional static sculpture art pieces. 

Public Artwork Plaque

The current Code provides that the Town may require a small plaque to be placed on public art
identifying the work and artist. This provision has been modified to require a plaque including reference
to “Oro Valley 1% for Public Art Program” to promote the Town’s commitment to the arts.

Public Art Guidelines

In conjunction with the amendment to the Zoning Code, Public Art Guidelines have been included to
define administrative procedures related to the Call For Artists process. These guidelines, which will be
administratively adopted, provide detailed requirements such as the definition of “Qualified Agent,"
explanation of required information and additional administrative details related to the Call For Artists
process.

Public Participation

The proposed amendment was distributed to art organizations and interested parties for review and
comment. Comments on the amendment were received from five residents, which are provided in
Attachment 4. These comments were evaluated by the public art review group in the formulation of the
draft amendment.  A member of the public art review group has provided a letter of support for the
amendment, including background information on the origins of the Town’s Public Art Program and
general information on Call For Artist processes (Attachment 5).

The amendment was considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) on December 3, 2013.
 The PZC staff report includes background information and is included as Attachment 6.  Members of the
public spoke for and against the proposed Call For Artists process.  Additional discussion focused on
whether the Southern Arizona Arts & Culture Alliance (SAACA) should be the sole "Qualified Agent," as
well as the need to expand the definition of Public Art to encourage other art mediums.  At the conclusion
of the public hearing, the PZC voted to recommend approval of the amendment.  The draft Planning and
Zoning Commission minutes are provided as Attachment 7.

SAACA and Additional Resident Input

Outreach efforts on the proposed amendment have been ongoing since August 2013, and include
SAACA.  Staff met recently with the Executive Director of SAACA who discussed a number of proposed
changes to the amendment and guidelines.  SAACA also provided a letter outlining additional comments
for consideration (Attachment 8).  This letter, dated December 18, 2013, requests that the Town consider
a contract with SAACA to be the sole "Qualified Agent" for development projects within the Town.  The
letter proposes that SAACA services be funded by a 5% administration fee from the 1% art budget for
each project managed.  This concept was introduced through resident comments on the draft
amendment.  The concept was not supported by the review group or PZC.

The SAACA letter suggests several additional changes to the Public Art Guidelines, including a request
that the guidelines be modified to require Qualified Agents to have experience in the development and
creation of a Call For Artists process, not merely experience in posting a Call For Artist process.  This



experience was intended by the original draft and staff has incorporated this change for clarification
purposes.  SAACA further requests the Town consider a Request For Proposal (RFP) based Call For
Artist process, rather than a Request For Qualifications (RFQ) based process.  Staff is agreeable to
provide the developer the flexibility (at their discretion) to conduct an RFP or RFQ based process. 

Additional comments discussed by SAACA focused on suggested improvements to clarify process
guides, and checklists to clearly define submittal requirements and steps in the approval process. Staff
supports updating administrative documents to address concerns raised.  

SAACA has requested clarification with regard to the source used by the Town to determine building
valuation, which is then used to establish the 1% art budget.  The draft has been amended to clarify that
the Building Official is responsible for determining building valuation based on the International Building
Code.  Staff has included a minor change clarifying that the artwork budget must be increased when the
building valuation is increased.

A request by a resident has been incorporated into the Public Art Guidelines to clarify that a RFQ or RFP
may include more detailed information relative to the desired art medium and art style, at the applicant's
discretion. More detailed information in the RFQ/RFP will ensure that responding artists possess the
necessary background and experience in the type and style of art preferred by the applicant.  

Lastly, a minor change has been incorporated into the draft amendment deleting the requirement that art
be "fixed." This minor change is consistent with the goal of removing any impediments to expanding art
mediums available to developers.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The amendment creates the potential for additional revenues in the Town's public art fund by expanding
in-lieu fee options.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to adopt Ordinance No. (O)14-02, amending Section 27.3 and Chapter 31 of the Oro Valley
Zoning Code Revised relative to public art, finding that the amendment will encourage diversity in public
art through the addition of a Call For Artists process and updated Design Review Principles.

OR

I MOVE to deny Ordinance No. (O)14-02, amending Section 27.3 and Chapter 31 of the Oro Valley
Zoning Code Revised, finding that
______________________________________________________________________.

Attachments
(O)14-02 Public Art Amendments
Attachment 2 - Outside Reviewers
Attachment 3 - Public Art Guidelines
Attachment 4 - Resident Comments
Attachment 5 - Dick Eggerding Comments
Attachment 6 - Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report
Attachment 7 - Planning and Zoning Commission Draft Minutes
Attachment 8 - SAACA Letter



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/020411

ORDINANCE NO. (O)14-02

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE ORO VALLEY ZONING CODE REVISED, BY
AMENDING CHAPTER 27, GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, 
SECTION 27.3, PUBLIC ARTWORK PROVISIONS AND CHAPTER 31, 
DEFINITIONS, AS THEY RELATE TO PUBLIC ART; REPEALING ALL 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND RULES OF THE TOWN OF ORO 
VALLEY IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; PRESERVING THE RIGHTS 
AND DUTIES THAT HAVE ALREADY MATURED AND PROCEEDINGS 
THAT HAVE ALREADY BEGUN THEREUNDER

WHEREAS, on March 13, 1981, the Mayor and Council approved Ordinance (O)81-58, which 
adopted that certain document entitled “Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised (OVZCR); and

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2013, Council directed staff to amend Section 27.3, Public Artwork 
Provisions and Chapter 31, Definitions to improve the diversity of public art; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the proposed amendments at a 
duly noticed public hearing on December 3, 2013, in accordance with State Statutes and 
recommended approval of the proposed amendments to the Town Council; and

WHEREAS, the Oro Valley Town Council has considered the proposed amendments to Chapter 
27, General Development Standards, Section 27.3, Public Artwork Provisions; Chapter 31, 
Definitions, as they relate to Public Art Provisions and the Planning and Zoning Commission’s 
recommendation and finds that it is consistent with the Town's General Plan and other Town 
ordinances; and

WHEREAS, at a duly noticed Town Council Meeting on January 15, 2014, Chapter 27, General 
Development Standards, Section 27.3, Public Artwork Provisions and Chapter 31, Definitions, 
was declared a public record by Mayor and Council.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro 
Valley, Arizona, that certain document entitled Chapter 27, General Development Standards, 
Section 27.3, Public Artwork Provisions and Chapter 31 Definitions, attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A” and incorporated herein by this reference, is hereby amended with additions being shown in 
ALL CAPS and deletions in strikethrough text.

SECTION 2. All Oro Valley Ordinances, Resolutions, or Motions and parts of Ordinances, 
Resolutions, or Motions of the Council in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are 
hereby repealed.

SECTION 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/0810102

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona this
15th day of January, 2014.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/0810103

EXHIBIT “A”

Additions shown in ALL CAPS font

Deletions shown in Strikethrough font

Additions / Deletions based on SAACA and Resident input shown in BOLD

Section 27.3 Public Artwork Provisions

A. Purpose

The purpose of these public artwork requirements is to implement the General Plan Arts 
and Culture Element and support the cultural and educational enrichment of the citizens 
and visitors to Oro Valley through the creation of artwork that is accessible to all 
members of the community. The Town seeks enhancements to community beauty, artistic 
entertainment and enrichment for all its residents and visitors, and education in and 
through the arts.

B. Applicability

1. Public artwork is a required element of new private and public construction projects 
in Oro Valley as specified in this section.

2. Artwork projects created for private development as a result of the requirements of 
this section shall be privately owned and included in all nonresidential development 
projects, including religious institutions and nonprofit organizations, with the 
exception of communication facilities, utility installations and similar projects as 
determined by the Planning and Zoning Administrator.

3. All projects where public artwork has not been provided in accordance with Town 
Council requirements and legal nonconforming uses that propose twenty-five percent 
(25%) or more cumulative addition or structural modifications, such as changes in 
square footage, gross floor area, and building facade, shall meet the requirements of 
this section.

4. Public artwork is required for all new public construction projects involving 
construction costs over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), with the following 
exceptions:

i. Public art expenditure is not legally permissible due to the constraints imposed by 
the funding mechanism;

ii. Maintenance projects such as surface treatments;

iii. Safety improvements such as sidewalks and overlays with shouldering for bike 
lanes;

iv. Significant budgetary constraints necessitate cost reduction, subject to Town 
Council approval.



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/0810104

C. Artwork Budget

1. A budget for public artwork shall be established based on one percent (1%) of the 
building permit valuation for the project, including all phases of a multi-phase 
project. THE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION SHALL BE CONFIRMED 
BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL. The itemized budget and a copy of the contract 
or agreement with the artist shall be submitted for Town review. The budget shall be 
spent on the design, fabrication, installation, and the Town review process of public 
artwork for the project.

2. For applicable public construction projects, one percent (1%) of the project 
construction cost shall be used for public artwork.

3. If specifically approved by the Planning and Zoning Administrator, artwork budgets 
may include integrated pedestals, bases, walls, utility extensions and architect’s fees 
exclusively required for the artwork.

4. Artwork budgets shall not be used for normally required improvements and 
development costs, including but not limited to land acquisition, grading, paving, 
sidewalks and landscaping.

5. For multi-phase projects OR WHERE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION HAS 
CHANGED, an updated public artwork budget, based on the most current building 
valuation tables, will be submitted for each phase at the time of application for public 
artwork approval.

D. Fee in Lieu of Public Art

1. If the building permit valuation is less than TWO one million dollars ($2,000,000 
$1,000,000), the owner/developer may elect to contribute the one percent (1%) to the 
Town of Oro Valley as an in-lieu fee. It shall be earmarked specifically for public 
artwork projects.

2. If the building permit valuation is ten million dollars ($10,000,000) or more, the 
owner may elect to contribute that portion of the one percent (1%) over one hundred 
thousand dollars ($100,000) to the Town of Oro Valley earmarked specifically for 
public artwork projects.

3. A portion of the one percent (1%) may also be used to construct on-site performing 
art facilities used for and by the public for the promotion and production of the arts.

4. THE PLANNING AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR MAY DETERMINE THAT 
DUE TO REMOTENESS OF LOCATION, LIMITED ACCESS, OR ANY OTHER 
CAUSE THAT MAY PREVENT THE REQUIRED PUBLIC ARTWORK FROM 
FULFILLING THE INTENT OF THESE PROVISIONS, THE ONE PERCENT 
(1%) MONIES BE MADE AS AN IN-LIEU FEE.

4. 5. The in-lieu fees paid to the public art fund may be used for the maintenance of 
publicly owned artwork.

E. CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS

1. IF THE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION IS OF ONE MILLION DOLLARS 
($1,000,000) OR MORE, BUT LESS THAN FOUR MILLION DOLLARS 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/0810105

($4,000,000), A CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS IS REQUIRED AND MUST BE 
AT LEAST REGIONALLY ADVERTISED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
PUBLIC ART GUIDELINES.

2. IF THE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION IS OF FOUR MILLION DOLLARS 
($4,000,000) OR MORE, A CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS IS REQUIRED. THE 
CALL SHALL BE ADVERTISED NATIONALLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
PUBLIC ART GUIDELINES. 

3. IF THE BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION IS LESS THAN ONE MILLION 
DOLLARS ($1,000,000), NO CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS IS REQUIRED. 
THE CONTRACTED ARTIST SHALL WORK AND RESIDE IN SOUTHERN 
ARIZONA.

4. THE PLANNING AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR SHALL ADOPT 
GUIDELINES TO BE KNOWN AS THE "PUBLIC ART GUIDELINES", 
AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, TO SPECIFY THE CALL-FOR-ARTIST 
PROCESS.

F. Processing

1. Public artwork shall be reviewed in a two (2) THREE (3) step process: CALL FOR 
ARTISTS (IF REQUIRED), conceptual review, and final review. Conceptual public 
artwork shall be reviewed by the Conceptual Design Review Board AND TOWN 
COUNCIL; and final public art submittals shall be reviewed by Town staff.

2. A “QUALIFIED AGENT” SHALL BE USED TO PERFORM A CALL FOR 
ARTIST PROCESS AS REQUIRED IN SECTION F, ABOVE. THIS PROCESS IS 
TO BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PUBLIC ART 
GUIDELINES PRIOR TO SUBMITTING A CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PROPOSAL 
TO THE TOWN. 

3. FOLLOWING THE CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS, APPLICANT SHALL 
SUBMIT CONCEPTUAL PUBLIC ARTWORK DESIGNS TO BE 2. Public artwork
for public construction projects shall be reviewed by the Conceptual Design Review 
Board AND TOWN COUNCIL. Timing for public construction projects’ artwork 
conceptual and final review by the Conceptual Design Review Board shall be 
determined by the Town Engineer and the Planning and Zoning Administrator.

3. 4. The conceptual design review of artwork shall assess artist qualifications (FOR NON 
CALL FOR ARTIST PROPOSALS), conceptual artwork design and artwork 
location(s) as provided in subsection H of this section. Conceptual review and 
approval are required prior to completion of a final review by Town staff.

4. 5. Subsequent to conceptual review, the Planning and Zoning Administrator (PZA) shall 
complete a final review. The applicant shall provide information on the artwork’s 
final design and a maintenance plan per subsection F.8 J.8 of this section. in sufficient 
detail to permit the Commission to completely evaluate the application using the 
standards and criteria included in subsection H of this section. Changes to the 
approved artwork design or the approved maintenance plan shall require approval of 
the PZA.



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/0810106

5. 6. Project completion shall be certified by the acceptable installation of the approved 
artwork and submittal by the property owner of a certification package including the 
following: a statement that the artwork, artist and site meet the criteria established by 
the ordinance codified in this section, the date on which the installation was 
completed, and an itemized account of the expenses incurred in fulfilling the
requirements of the ordinance codified in this section. Certification shall be 
completed before the Town issues a final certificate of occupancy.

6. 7. For existing development, previously approved projects, subsequent phases of phased 
projects, or projects that do not require a landscape plan, final review of public 
artwork shall be approved prior to the issuance of the building permit.

7. 8. Decisions of the Town Council on conceptual art shall be final.

G. Design and Location Requirements

1. Public artwork shall be designed by an artist as defined in Chapter 31. If a design 
team is employed to create public artwork, at least one (1) team member shall be an 
artist as defined in Chapter 31.

2. Public artwork shall not include any of the following unless specifically allowed by 
the Conceptual Design Review Board and the item is designed by an artist: 
architectural elements or structural parts of a building or other structure; fixtures or 
features such as grates, shade screens, streetlights, benches, signs, and bike racks. 
Designs of such items shall clearly result in artistic expression beyond the normally 
anticipated functional appearance.

3. Public artwork shall be in an area easily accessible and clearly visible to the general 
public. The location shall allow for unrestricted viewing from a variety of vantage 
points.

4. Public artwork may be located on a publicly viewable building facade, provided such 
location improves overall public accessibility to the artwork.

5. Artwork may be located within a building subject to Conceptual Design Review 
Board approval. The applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Conceptual 
Design Review Board that the interior location for artwork provides equal or superior 
public access relative to outdoor locations. Indoor locations shall be readily accessible 
to the public such as lobbies and entryways and shall be accessible to the public for a 
minimum of forty (40) hours each week.

6. The location of public artwork shall be indicated on the landscape plan, development 
plan, plat or other appropriate document as determined by the Planning and Zoning 
Administrator.

7. Public artwork shall be permanent and fixed, and may be integrated with the work of 
other design professionals.

8. Public artwork shall not be located in sight visibility triangles.

9. Location of art in a proposed or existing Town right-of-way shall be approved by the 
Town Engineer.

10. Off-site locations within the Town for public artwork may be approved by the Town 
Council, upon review and recommendation by the Conceptual Design Review Board. 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/0810107

11. The Planning and Zoning Administrator may determine that the proposed public art 
location is remote and that public access to or visibility of the public art will be 
severely limited. This determination may result in the property owner electing to 
utilize the in-lieu option as outlined in subsection D of this section. The in-lieu fee 
provision may be applied to all or a portion of the one percent (1%) contribution for 
public artwork.

H. REVIEW CRITERIA PUBLIC ART DESIGN PRINCIPLES

The Conceptual Design Review Board shall assess individual applications based on 
conformance with the adopted design standards – Addendum “A” of the Zoning Code 
and fulfillment of the following principles:

1. QUALITY: ARTWORK DEMONSTRATES ORIGINALITY, ARTISTIC 
QUALITY, AND EXCELLENCE IN DESIGN AND CRAFTSMANSHIP; TO 
BE DEMONSTRATED THROUGH RENDERINGS, EXPLANATION OF 
CONSTRUCTION, MATERIALS, AND ARTIST RESUME.

2. RESPONSE TO CONTEXT: ARTWORKS SHOULD BE APPROPRIATE IN 
SCALE, MATERIAL, FORM AND CONTENT FOR THE IMMEDIATE AND 
GENERAL SOCIAL AND PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENTS WITH WHICH 
THEY ARE TO RELATE.

3. DURABILITY: CONSIDERATION SHOULD BE GIVEN TO STRUCTURAL 
AND SURFACE INTEGRITY, PERMANENCE, AND PROTECTION 
AGAINST THEFT, VANDALISM, WEATHERING, AND EXCESSIVE 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR COSTS.

4. INTEGRATION: WHERE POSSIBLE, IN ADDITION TO MEETING 
AESTHETIC REQUIREMENTS, ARTWORKS SHOULD ALSO SERVE TO 
ESTABLISH FOCAL POINTS, MODIFY, ENHANCE OR DEFINE SPECIFIC 
SPACES OR ESTABLISH IDENTITY.

5. SAFETY: ARTWORKS SHOULD NOT PRESENT A HAZARD OR CREATE
UNSAFE CONDITIONS.

6. DIVERSITY: ARTWORKS SHOULD CONTRIBUTE TO A DIVERSITY OF 
STYLE, SCALE, MEDIA, ARTISTS, COMMUNITY VALUES AND FORMS 
OF EXPRESSION WITHIN THE TOWN.

7. VISIBILITY: ARTWORKS SHOULD BE VISIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE FOR 
THE PURPOSES OF PUBLIC ENJOYMENT AND SECURITY, 
CONSIDERING PEDESTRIAN AND VEHICULAR TRAFFIC, LIGHTING, 
ACTIVE HOURS ON SITE AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND 
VEGETATION GROWTH.

8. FEASIBILITY: CONSIDERATION SHOULD BE GIVEN TO THE 
LIKELIHOOD OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF THE ARTWORK. 
FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO: 
PROJECT BUDGET, TIMELINE, ARTIST'S EXPERIENCE AND 
SOUNDNESS OF MATERIALS.



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/0810108

H. Review Criteria

Public art is an integral element of project design and contributes to the overall quality of 
life for Oro Valley residents and visitors. Public art contributes to a sense of place, 
defines and reinforces community identity, and reflects the unique character of the Town. 

The Conceptual Design Review Board shall assess individual applications based on 
conformance with the adopted design standards – Addendum A of the Zoning Code and 
fulfillment of the following principles:

1.    Public art should serve as a distinctive and integral element in the overall design of a 
project or development.

2.    Public art should relate to the context and character of the project. Where appropriate, 
public art may employ themes associated with activities within the development.

3.    Public art should relate to the historical, cultural or natural context of the project area, 
the neighborhood or the Town.

4.    Public art shall not include corporate advertising elements of a business including colors, 
graphics, logos or other representations of corporate identity.

5.    Public art shall be designed to prevent hazards to the public. Durability and safety of 
materials shall be considered including potential areas of excessive wear or damage, 
which shall be mitigated.

6.    Potential obstructions, including landscape materials at maturity or future construction, 
shall be considered when locating public art.

7.    Public art shall be original and not duplicate existing artwork in the Town and shall 
conform to community standards.

I. Installation and Maintenance

1. Public artwork shall be installed, inspected and certified complete prior to the 
issuance of a final certificate of occupancy. If a certificate of occupancy has 
previously been issued, any business license or other Town approvals shall not be 
granted until public artwork installation is complete.

2. An artwork installation schedule, addressing timing, budget allocation, artwork 
location(s), and specific details for each phase of a phased development project, shall 
be submitted for review by the Planning and Zoning Administrator. Each 
development phase shall include public artwork allocated proportionally to building 
valuation as determined by the Planning and Zoning Administrator.

3. Public artworks must remain on public display AND SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN 
THE under optimum conditions in which they were originally installed.

4. The installation of the artwork will be done in a manner that will protect the artwork 
and the public. The general safety and permanence of artwork installation shall be 
inspected as determined by the Town Building Official, Town Engineer and the 
Planning and Zoning Administrator. Incomplete or unsafe installations shall not be 
approved.

5. Artwork projects may SHALL have a small plaque not to exceed eighty (80) square 
inches in size identifying the TITLE, DATE work, AND artist and contributors. THE 



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/0810109

PLAQUE SHALL CONTAIN THE WORDS "ORO VALLEY 1% FOR PUBLIC 
ART PROGRAM".

6. Continued maintenance of the artwork shall be the responsibility of the property 
owner. The artwork shall be maintained to preserve its intended appearance as 
specified in the approved application. Faded paint, missing or damaged parts, or 
deteriorated finishes represent unacceptable maintenance conditions.

7. The original artist shall be offered the opportunity to provide maintenance and repair 
services for the artworks they create. If the original artist will not be maintaining the 
artwork, documentation of the property owner’s request to the artist for maintenance 
and repair services shall be submitted with the maintenance plan required in 
subsection F.8 of this section.

8. A maintenance plan specifying the party(ies) intended to complete repairs, 
REQUIRED MAINTENANCE STEPS, AND FREQUENCY OF EXPECTED 
MAINTENANCE, shall be submitted with the application for public artwork 
approval. If the party identified to perform maintenance and repairs is not the original 
artist, a statement of the individual’s qualifications to repair and maintain public 
artwork shall be submitted with the maintenance plan. Qualified individuals shall 
have experience working with the media and materials used in the artwork.

9. Public artwork responsibilities shall transfer from property owner to property owner.

10. The property owner shall be responsible for the services and utilities necessary to 
operate and/or maintain public artworks over time.

11. The property owner shall provide evidence of insurance in a minimum amount equal 
to the purchase and installation costs of the public artwork.

12. Replacement of missing or damaged public artworks is required, unless the property 
owner provides documentation that shows that the artwork was properly maintained 
in accordance with the approved maintenance plan. Property owners are required to 
respond to inquiries from the Town regarding damaged or missing public artwork 
within fifteen (15) days of written notice.

13. Failure to maintain the artwork, as determined by the Planning and Zoning 
Administrator, shall constitute a violation of this code, and/or cause liens against the 
real property.

14. Public artwork cannot be permanently removed, relocated or altered in any way 
without the review and approval of the Conceptual Design Review Board, as long as 
the establishment remains open for business or maintains an Oro Valley business 
license.

15. In the event public artwork must be temporarily moved or altered due to construction 
or other activity, the property owner shall submit in writing a request to the Planning 
and Zoning Administrator detailing the purpose, time frame, and intended temporary 
location for the artwork. Only the individual identified in the maintenance plan shall 
be permitted to move or alter public artwork. The request must be approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Administrator, WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
MAINTENANCE PLAN, prior to movement or alteration of the artwork. The 
artwork shall be returned to its original location.



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@7C0EA7D5\@BCL@7C0EA7D5.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/08101010

Chapter 31: Definitions

1. “Artist” shall mean an individual generally recognized by critics and peers as a 
professional, full time practitioner of the visual arts, as judged by the quality of that 
professional practitioner’s body of work, education, experience, past commissions, 
exhibition record, publications, and production of artwork.

2. “Public Artwork” shall mean artwork that is accessible to the community and the general 
public. It may be privately funded and owned or it may be fully funded by public agencies for 
public benefit. Public artwork adds aesthetic appeal, draws visitors and improves the image of 
the Town. It entails the application of skill and taste by an artist in creating an original work of 
art. Examples of appropriate public artwork include, but are not limited to: sculpture –
freestanding, wall supported or suspended; murals or paintings; earthworks; fiber works; and 
mosaics. Privately funded and owned public artwork may not include: directional graphics or 
color-coded location indicators; mass-produced or standard “off-the-shelf” items, including 
playground equipment, fountains, or statuary, and most art reproductions



Public Art Code Amendment 

Outside Reviewers 

 

 

 

Organization Contact 

SAACA Kate Marquez 

Tuscon Pima Arts Council Mary Ellen Wooten 

Arizona Commission of the Arts Robert C. Booker 

Metropolitan Pima Alliance Amber Smith 

Arizona Citizens for the Arts Rusty Foley 

Arizona Builders Alliance Tom Dunn 

Tucson Museum or Art Robert Knight or Alba Roja Sugar 

Santa Teresa Tile Works Susan Gamble 

Joe Tyler n/a 

Mark Rossi n/a 

Bill Adler n/a 

David Voisard n/a 

Mathew Moutafis n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         Attachment 2 



Public Art Guidelines 

Attachment 3 – Draft Date December 20, 2013 

NOTE: These guidelines are provided for informational purposes and will 
not be adopted as part of the Public Art Code Amendment.  These 
guidelines will be administratively approved following adoption of the Code 
Amendment. 

 

A. PURPOSE 

1. THE PURPOSE OF THE PUBLIC ART GUIDELINES IS TO 
CLARIFY THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CALL FOR ARTISTS 
PROCESS AND REQUIREMENTS. 

B. APPLICABILITY 

1. APPLICABILITY: THESE GUIDELINES SHALL APPLY TO ALL 
PROJECTS SUBJECT TO THE PUBLIC ARTWORK PROVISIONS 
IN SECTION 27.3 OF THE ORO VALLEY ZONING CODE. 

2. ALL PROJECTS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE ORO VALLEY 
ZONING CODE. THESE GUIDELINES ARE INTENDED TO 
COMPLEMENT THE ZONING CODE. IF ANY PROVISION OF 
THESE GUIDELINES IS IN CONFLICT WITH THE ZONING 
CODE, THE ZONING CODE SHALL PREVAIL. 

C. CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS 

1. PUBLIC ARTWORK PROJECTS REQUIRING A CALL FOR 
ARTISTS PROCESS AS DEFINED BY SECTION 27.3 OF THE 
ORO VALLEY ZONING CODE SHALL BE ADMINISTERED BY A 
QUALIFIED AGENT. 

2. THE PLANNING AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR SHALL 
MAINTAIN A LIST OF QUALIFIED AGENTS AS DEFINED IN 
SUBSECTION D OF THESE GUIDELINES. 

3. QUALIFIED AGENTS SHALL ADMINISTER THE CALL IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCESS REQUIREMENTS IN 
SUBSECTION E OF THESE GUIDELINES. 

D. QUALIFIED AGENTS 

1. AGENTS SHALL BE QUALIFIED BY THE PLANNING AND 
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING 
CRITERIA: 

A. NOT-FOR-PROFIT STATUS 

B. DEDICATED STAFF 

C. PAST EXPERIENCE IN DEVELOPING AND CONDUCTING 
CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESSES 



Public Art Guidelines 
Draft Date December 20, 2013 
Attachment 3 
Page 2 of 3 
 

D. ACCESS TO REGIONAL AND NATIONAL LISTSERVES, 
CLEARING HOUSES AND PUBLICATIONS 

E. FEE POLICIES 

F. TIMEFRAMES 

E. CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS REQUIREMENTS 

1. A REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) IS ADVERTISED.  AT 
THE DISCRETION OF THE APPLICANT, THE CALL FOR 
ARTISTS PROCESS MAY UTILIZE A REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSALS (RFP) BASED PROCESS. 

A. INFORMATION IN THE RFQ SHALL INCLUDE, BUT IS 
NOT LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING: 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND GOALS, INCLUDING 
APPLICANT DESIRED ART MEDIUM AND STYLE 

II. PROJECT PARAMETERS AND SCOPE-OF-WORK 

III. APPLICATION DEADLINE AND TIMELINE 

IV. APPLICATION PROCEDURE AND SUBMITTAL 
REQUIREMENTS 

V. SELECTION PROCEDURE 

VI. CRITERIA FOR SELECTION OF ARTIST AND/OR 
ARTWORK 

VII. BUDGET 

B. THE RFQ MUST BE ADVERTISED FOR AT LEAST 30 
DAYS ON AT LEAST TWO LISTSERVES, DATABASES OR 
CLEARING HOUSES, THAT ARE OPENLY ACCESSIBLE 
TO PRACTICING ARTISTS.  

C. PROJECTS WITH BUILDING PERMIT VALUATIONS OVER 
$1,000,000 BUT LESS THAN $4,000,000 SHALL BE AT 
LEAST ADVERTISED REGIONALLY. AT LEAST ONE 
LISTSERVE, DATABASE OR CLEARING HOUSE 
PUBLICATION MUST BE REGIONALLY DISTRIBUTED 
(SOUTHWESTERN OR ADJACENT STATES TO 
ARIZONA) AND ACCESSIBLE.  

D. PROJECTS WITH BUILDING PERMIT VALUATIONS OVER 
$4,000,000 SHALL BE ADVERTISED NATIONALLY. AT 
LEAST ONE LISTSERVE, DATABASE OR CLEARING 
HOUSE PUBLICATION MUST BE NATIONALLY 
DISTRIBUTED AND ACCESSIBLE. 



Public Art Guidelines 
Draft Date December 20, 2013 
Attachment 3 
Page 3 of 3 
 

E. THE RFQ MAY BE SENT TO INDIVIDUAL ARTISTS AS AN 
INVITATION TO PARTICIPATE, STRICTLY IN ADDITION 
TO THE REQUIREMENTS IN THIS SECTION. 

2. A SELECTION PANEL, CHOSEN BY THE “QUALIFIED AGENT” 
AS DIRECTED BY THE APPLICANT, REVIEWS RESPONSES TO 
THE RFQ AND SELECTS NO LESS THAN TWO (2) FINALISTS. 

A. PANEL COMPOSITION: 

I. AT LEAST ONE (1) REPRESENTATIVE OF THE 
APPLICANT. 

II. AT LEAST TWO (2) ARTS PROFESSIONALS.  

III. AT LEAST ONE (1) RESIDENT OF THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY.  

IV. THE PLANNING AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 
SHALL VERIFY THE SELECTION PANEL MEETS 
THE ABOVE COMPOSITION REQUIREMENTS. 

B. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: PERSONS WHO WOULD 
DIRECTLY BENEFIT FROM THE SELECTION OF A 
PARTICULAR ARTIST OR ARTWORK ARE INELIGIBLE 
AS PANELISTS (I.E. GALLERY OWNERS, BROKERS, 
ARTIST REPRESENTATIVES, ETC.). PROSPECTIVE 
PANELISTS MAY BE ASKED TO FILL OUT A CONFLICT 
OF INTEREST FORM PRIOR TO BEING APPROVED FOR 
SERVICE ON A SELECTION PANEL. 

3. FINALISTS ARE INVITED TO INTERVIEW AND MAY BE 
REQUIRED TO SUBMIT CONCEPTUAL PROPOSALS. 

4.  THE SELECTION PANEL SELECTS AN ARTIST TO COMPLETE 
THE PROJECT. 

5.  THE QUALIFIED AGENT SHALL PRODUCE A SUMMARY OF 
THE CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS AND RESULTS. THIS 
SUMMARY SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE FORMAL SUBMITTAL 
TO THE TOWN.  

  A. SUMMARY SHALL INCLUDE: 

I. WHEN, WHERE, AND FOR HOW LONG THE CALL 
FOR ARTISTS ADVERTISEMENT WAS LISTED OR 
PUBLISHED 

II. NUMBER OF APPLICANTS AND FINALISTS 

III. PANEL COMPOSITION  

 



Combined Resident Comments 

Attachment 4 

Page 1 of 9 

 

Bill Adler Comments 

Public Artwork Provisions 

27.3 B. Applicability 

 

4. iv. – Public art necessitated by this ordinance may not be waived due to budget 

constraints. This could be abused arbitrarily. The art project may be suspended pending 

acquisition of funds, but not canceled. 

 

D.1., 2. & 4. Since the Town has no “Culture” department or staff, any funds donated 

must be to SAACA, which has a local understanding, staff, and expertise. 

 

5. Add: publicly owned public art 

 

E. 1. “advertising” needs to be qualified. I believe E Mail is sufficient notification versus 

conventional media. 

 

2. Same as above. National advertising is excessive. 

 

3. I see no reason for an artist to be required to live in southern Arizona. If the proposed 

art meets the artistic expectations of the property and location, who cares where the 

person lives? 

 

4. I oppose the guidelines and call-for- artist process. It’s excessive in time and creates 

hardship and no improvement. 

 

F. 1. If Conceptual proposals are reviewed by CDRB and Council and, if changes are 

required, final review should be by the same bodies. 

 

2. There’s only one “qualified” agent in our area and that’s SAACA. They are neutral 

which many local artists and artistic non profits are not. 

 

3. Public projects conceptual review should be the same as privately proposed. 

 

4. Review of qualifications is unnecessary. Any artist approved by the Agent and the 

property owner is “qualified”. Only review of artwork location is necessary. Art design 

cannot be judged if the artist is already qualified! 

 

5. CDRB and Council approval is sufficient. 

 

8. If Council approval is final, no further review by staff should be stipulated. It’s an 

option for Council to remand the proposal to the CDRB to re consider certain aspects 

proposed. 

 

Attachment 4



Combined Resident Comments 

Attachment 4 

Page 2 of 9 

 

G.1. No design “team” is necessary if SAACA is the agent. SAACA already contracts 

with hundreds of artists for events and festivals. If any additional in put is desired, 

SAACA remains qualified. 

 

2. We should not try to pre judge art, as this paragraph does. 

 

3. I don’t think “unrestricted” viewing is necessary. I think “clearly” visible is enough. 

Page two 

 

G. 4. By stressing importance of public access, we may diminish the attractiveness of the 

art. Let the location be proposed…clearly visible in whatever way is suggested will be 

reviewed. 

 

5. Artwork ought to be permitted within a pedestrian arcade, breezeway or courtyard, as 

long as it meets the “clearly visible” standard. The environment in which artwork is 

displayed has a lot to do with its value and appreciation. 

 

7. Here we go again. By “permanent” and” fixed” we are limiting the manner, style and 

type of art. I’ve said from the very outset, the form of art needs to be broadened well 

beyond permanent and fixed. We need to expand artists who deal in mobility, live, 

performing, graphic, botanical and virtual art. Allow the process of selection by SAACA 

and the property owner/developer the freedom to work with a wider range of talent. We 

want originality, we say, but this is contradictory. 

 

8. As long as there is no hazard, why? 

 

9. No public art ought to be permitted in ROW. 

 

H. 1. – 4. I’m strongly opposed to any attempt to pre judge art by arbitrary standards. If 

an artist is “qualified” and they work within the field of art, we can’t decide in advance 

what is “quality”, ”excellence”, ”craftsmanship”, “identity”. These terms cannot be 

“demonstrated” to anyone’s satisfaction. It’s ART and is by definition, an expression that 

is in the eye of the beholder. I took my granddaughters to the Phoenix Art Museum some 

months ago. What intrigued them or others was inconsistent from one exhibit to another. 

Go to any musical performance – even when the works are well known – the appreciation 

varies from one orchestra, band, singer to another. 

 

6. “Originality” is sufficient. Diversity is confusing. However, Originality does NOT 

exclude “similarity”. Words are important, and we need to be clear what we mean, but 

always encourage creativity.  

 

7. Lighting of public art should not be permitted, unless indoors. 

 

I.3. I don’t understand what we’re requiring here. Maintenance ought to retain desirable 

conditions, if not optimum. 

Attachment 4



Combined Resident Comments 

Attachment 4 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 

4. “installation” again limits the manner, form or style of art. “permanence” also limits 

the form, manner and style of art, and contradicts why we are revising this ordinance to 

begin with. 

5. Plague should be limited to title, date and artist name. The detail that the art is required 

by ordinance is superfluous.  

 

7.-8. I believe a “plan” is unnecessary. If the artwork upkeep is the responsibility of the 

property owner that is enough, as in 13. The cost of removal of art that is deteriorated is 

owner’s cost. 

 

Chapter 31 

Page three 

 

Chapter 31 1. To attempt to define Artist when the Agent goes through a filtering 

process; the property owner or representative decides what they want that complimentary 

to the use, and the proposed work is reviewed by citizens and staff, is unnecessary. The 

proposal speaks for itself. 

 

2. Public Art doesn’t need qualifiers such as “aesthetic appeal”, “draws visitors” [ this 

can’t be determined anyway], “improves image”. These are simply subjective and are 

reasons for annoyance of artists and property owners in the past. 

Guidelines 

 

A.1. Guidelines do NOT clarify. They simply provide language that arouses confusion, 

differences and irritation. 

 

C.2. I don’t see any reason to go beyond SAACA. Obviously, if SAACA’s management 

and performance shows signs of unreliability, change is always possible. At this point, it 

undermines an organization that contributes – and has contributed – significant sales tax 

dollars through successful events by including in a “list” other agents. 

E.1. SAACA has a well- established process that is working well as attendance at any 

SAACA event testifies. 

2. Creating another step with a “selection” panel is fraught with delay and controversy, 

and inadvisable. 

 

I would have preferred to participate in a discussion, and still would if one is decided 

upon. 

 

Bill Adler 

8/19/13 

 

Attachment 4



Combined Resident Comments 

Attachment 4 

Page 4 of 9 

 

 

Don Bristow Comments 

 

27.3 Public Art Provisions 

 

27.3 B Applicability 
4. iv Public art may not be waived or cancelled. The art may be delayed pending 
availability of funds 

 

27.3 C Artwork Budget 

4.  Add to normally required improvements: irrigation and erosion control 

 

27.3 D Fee in Lieu of Public Art 

As the Town has no Art or Culture Department, an agreement should be instituted 

so in-lieu fee are received and administered by SAACA.  SAACA should use 

these funds to maintain publicly-owned artwork and select and engage artists to 

create and install public-owned art. 

 
27.3 E Call for Artists Process 

Let SAACA be responsible for the Call-for-Artists Process.  There should be no 
geographic restrictions for where the artist resides.  
 

27.3 F Processing 
1.  Staff has no function or added value to contribute here as they are not 
qualified to judge artistic changes.  Final public review should be with the original 
reviewing bodies, in this case the CSRB and Town Council. 
2.  Use SAACA as the qualifying agent  
3. Public projects should be handled in the same manner as private art.  The 
Town Engineer and the Planning and zoning Administrator should only advise 
and coordinate timing issues. 
4.  No need for artist qualification if Agent (SAACA) approves the artist.  Any 
artist approved by SAACA or the property owner is qualified.  Again no need for 
Town Staff to be the final reviewer. Staff should only be involved in timing and 
location issues. 
5. Planning and Zoning Administrator involvement is unnecessary.  CDRB and 
Council approval is sufficient. 
 

27.3 G Design and Location Requirements 
3.  Art should be easily and clearly visible to the general public.  No need for a 
variety of vantage points 
4.  Architectural elements shall not be public artwork in G2, but in G4 public 
artwork may be located on a viewable building façade.  Could the latter be 
considered an architectural element? 
5.  7a minimum of forty (40) hours each week or indoor business hours. Art 
should also be allowed in pedestrian arcades, breezeways or courtyards as long 
as the clearly visibility standard is met. 

Attachment 4



Combined Resident Comments 

Attachment 4 

Page 5 of 9 

 
7.  Permanent and fixed limits the type/forms of art.  Need to allow for other 
forms of art such as public gardens, etc. 
 8.  Mr. Keesler in August 2013 cited that the visibility triangle does not apply to 
private property.  Therefore, change to apply to public project artwork. 
9.  Delete.  Artwork should not be located in the Town right-of-way. 
 

27.3 H Review Criteria 
1 – 4 Artwork cannot be judged based on the criteria in paragraphs 1-4.  Art is an 
individual taste.  A wide latitude of Creativity is necessary and must be allowed. 
What is distasteful to some can be completely acceptable to others.  Unless the 
art would be considered pornographic by the OV Police Department based on 
court ruling, it should be allowed.   
6.  Delete end of sentence starting with community values.  What are “community 
values and forms of expression within the Town”?  This is an unknown and 
cannot be used to reject artwork. 
 

27.3 I Installation and Maintenance 
3.  What is “optimum conditions”?  Avoid rusting, within original color space after 
fading, no piece/sections missing or broken are these characteristics of desired 
condition?  Need to define, does I 6 address the conditions? 
5.  Delete from plaque: “Oro Valley 1% Percent for Public Art”  
7-8 As the property owner is responsible for the maintenance, the Town can only 
recommend the owner obtain a maintenance plan for the original artist, but not 
require one. Nor should the property owner be required to submit a maintenance 
plan to the Town.  The owner of the art work can determine the qualifications of 
the repair person/company.  
12.  Town should not be involved in determining or requiring a maintenance plan 
for private art. With or without a maintenance plan the property owner should be 
required and responsible for the replacement of missing or damaged art.   
 

Chapter 31 Definitions 
1.  No need to try and define an “Artist”.  SAACA and private owners’ 

representative will decide the art and the capabilities of “Artist”. 
2. Too many subjective terms. How can one determine:  aesthetic appeal, 

draws visitors and improves the image of the Town.  The art itself will not 
draw visitors.  
 

Public Art Guidelines 
A.1 Guidelines for Call-for-Artist process and requirements will only confuse and 
limit the results.  Let the professional agent (SAACA) clarify 
B 2 doesn’t exist. Goes from B.1 to B.3 
C. Complete D: Qualified Agents, once selected, the agent can determine 
process for sections C 1-3 and E1-5.   
 

Please keep me inform of additional activities regarding Section 27.3 
 
Thank you, 
Donald Bristow 
 

Attachment 4



Combined Resident Comments 

Attachment 4 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 

John Musolf Comments 

 

27.3 Public Artwork Provisions 

B. Applicability 

4. iv. Public Art may not be waived or canceled but placed on hold 

until funds are available. 

C. Artwork Budget 

4. …but not limited to land acquisition, grading, paving, sidewalks, 

landscaping, irrigation, and erosion control. 

D. Fee in lieu of Public Art 

Current town memo of understanding between the Town of Oro 

Valley and the Southern Arizona Arts and Cultural Alliance 

(SAACA) should be amended to have SAACA become the town 

representative and be authorized to receive in lieu fees specifically 

for public works projects. SAACA would be responsible for 

selection and engaging artists. 

E. Call for Artists Process 

1-4. If SAACA is the authorized agent for Public Art let them 

write a call for artists process with appropriate guidelines and 

advertising. 

F. Processing 

2. The qualifying Agent should be SAACA. 

4. No need for artist qualification if SAACA is providing a list of 

qualified artists. The CDRB and Town Council can select from the 

pre-qualified list. 

4-5. Planning and Zoning Administrator review unnecessary. 

G. Design and Location Requirements 

3. Access to public art may be limited to indoor open business 

hours. 

5. Drop 40 hours requirement to indoor open business hours. 

7. Use different wording like “creative” instead of permanent or 

fixed. 

8. Unecessary. 

Attachment 4



Combined Resident Comments 

Attachment 4 

Page 7 of 9 

 

H. Review Criteria 

1-4. Art is in the eyes of the beholder. As long as it is not 

distasteful (e.g. pornographic) a wide latitude of “creativity” 

should be allowed. 

6. Need a definition of “diversity” if it is retained. Alternative 

would be to substitute another word or eliminate reference. 

7. Lighting limited to indoors. 

I. Installation and Maintenance. 

3. Not “optimum” but “reasonable” condition to avoid rust or 

fading paint 

5. Drop the words on plaque: Oro Valley 1 % percent for Public 

Art> 

7-8. Drop original artist from maintenance. 

Chapter 31 Definitions. 

1. Artist definition should be provided by SAACA. 

2. Public Works definition should be provided by SAACA. 

Public Works Guidelines 

A. Let a professional organization like SAACA clarify. 

B. Rely on SAACA. 

C. Rely on SAACA. 

D. Rely on SAACA. 

 

 

Attachment 4



Combined Resident Comments 

Attachment 4 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 
 

Attachment 4

August 29, 2013 Apt # 236 

TO: Bill Adler, Request for worklog artist Inputs on Public Art Amendment 
FROM: Bob G<lodman, Working artist at large. 

SUBJECT: Section 27.3 Public Artwork Provisions 

Bill. I essentially .~ with your eorun,""ts on the amendments. ~'pe<ially in Tegard 
to naming SAACA to seNe as the major oversight organization. They >Te qu.llfoed. 
and have the people that can do wba'. needed. 

0·5: lJ»~ 2) The woros -may be" can also be Inferred as "may not be". Suggest 
change to "shall be". 

E·1 : (page2) I noted a call forl"",,1 arti, .. is needed at a $1,000.000 v.lu ,tlon. 

E·3: [paC" 3) Question. why is there nO call for .rtI>ts at I .... than $1.000.0('0 level? II 
d~I"'.'·> (I •• , ",,11 k"uwll art!> ... are ,el«Ud to do that level or project. If.o, Ir. vety 
difficult for ' new" artists to be<:ome moWl'! and recognized fur what they might have 
accomplished U awarded a smaller art commission In order to develop a qWlltlYlng 
reputation. While. lesser amoun t m,y .""m small to S<lme. if' unfair for a ' new"" 
artist 10 not have a chance to show "hat he/she c,n produce. 

Se<:tlon 22 .9 Oe<lgn RevIew, Public At1: Guidelines. E·]e (page.ll) 
As written, " ... permlt valuations ove, $200.000 (two hundred thousand) 'hall be 
advertised regionally". The Inconsistency of amoun .. and when 'caIls fur artists'" 
occurs is noted in above two paragr.phs. 

Overall: ! don~ see allowan"" of Incl.sion fora team of artists (2 10 4) who together 
can bring" variety of ahilitie, and te-;hniques to de<lgn and produce , public artwork 
or ""' <t. "rlloe m~rit I, , h;. 'n .. poo<t ofPubl!c Art P«>sram< ,hat i. to bo g. " or,lly 
undmtood rather than S/1JfeIfr 

[s the name oFthe company buildingthe structure. their type of business. and the 
appear.tn<e of the finished structure knOWl'! to the ani't at the .tart of the creative 
bidding pro<ess to allow for visual or tactile Integration to the finished strue,,"re? 

END 



Combined Resident Comments 

Attachment 4 

Page 9 of 9 

 

 

Attachment 4

PubI" "" • "do,_ 
Auroost, :IIl l l 

C _"""''''"'- e. Dtvil,~ llJOON. _ V ..... __ .Apl 426, 

o...V...,.A2: "ru. 

l_ ..... __ ...... "_~~, __ ~_ ... O"V>lley'". __ 

"' .... · .. (_lIof.~CGdo} 1_ ""'. f'iO'I_ boo od<Io:d. "-""' bodo!inJ __ ..... Ihom "'" 

boO ...... ....".., or ... ·v ... ~ ... ... ....... tho- boOl ... ·",. ........... the O<ti,,;t;e, 

to'<ioot piace iIi= ... too one..l .... 0«0UiI by oroistJ I. p1>pOSOd N>li< "". MOo')' 

oroists.l botiow. __ iIoQ ............. "" ............ io _ .. .-,~ 

_cop-' .01',"."": I. :_"'" u .. """ ....... __ 
............. , .... _01' ... ~ 1_00 .... '-"""~OI'iUbo -.. ........... _ .... 1.- ' .... _ofboU.__ .. 
.... """"" Nt """""" If...., __ ............ ""' .... 11Il00 ... -....., .... 
.. ~ .... Ii .. _~ ......... 01'1110_ ........ ... ;' 1 l . On .... 
_ -. if"'" build ............. 1 <l<liood _ ......... _ • ....,., __ 

ro.oJ<h or .. """""" li<ilit)-, .... louiklil!l', II'I'f<* ... y i"... ..... ..u.o to dosil" 

l'oobIio: Ali "'"' olIo.".,.. ..... ~;" . ,ositi ... way to .... pobIio. T1oio coW<l erNn<e 

"" " ·_ofl'>lblioAli"tho-._ -..... . ........ lboIloYo .... _ ... 

~tOr"" n, v ... 01'.~ ...... iapuo ...... ...,... .... ' d _AIi .. o .... _of •• _ ........ -.;n.... priotoio,....., ....... 

'"G • ..,fOr.fooI ....... oil' _ ·""Ia ... _ ... ' ....... , .. _ ...... 



Attachment 5

November 7,2013 

To: Planning and Zoning Commission 

From: Dick Eggerding 

Subject: Public Art Amendment 

Please accept this document as support for the proposed amendment to the Public Art 
Program. I apologize for the personal references and extensive support data. 
In order to clarify my recommendation it is helpful to review the "How" and "Why" of Public 
Art in Oro Valley. 

ASSUMPTION #1--0RO VALLEY PUBLIC ART HISTORY 

The complete subject of OV Public Art dates back to 1994. The writer was heavily involved 
with Town Staff in compiling data for the purpose of proposing a 1% for Public Art Code. 
Please see Attachment #1. You will note that it was a 4 year process, and interestingly 
enough it involved the first General Plan. 
Reading through the document you will see that there are 3 types of Public Art: Public Art on 
Private Commercial Projects; Public Art on Town Projects; and Youth Summer Public Art 
Projects. Each must be administered by Town Staff and periodic use of outsourcing. 

ASSUMPTION #2-0V PUBLIC ART IS A SUCCESS 

There are nearly 350 Public Art Programs in the US today. We can hold our heads high, 

because there are examples everywhere of the media and various organizations praising the 

OV community support. Pictures of such pieces as the "Tree of Knowledge" by the Library, 

the Sun Dial on Innovation Drive, etc., have appeared on covers of the Chamber of Commerce 

Guide and Map, Airline Magazines, Travel Brochures, Internet sources and our own Internet 

Art Tour located at the Town Home Page. 

There are 250 Private Art Pieces located throughout the town. There are 112 Community 
Project Art Pieces. At this juncture it is hard to estimate the total value of all of them. It is 
arguably safe to say they exceed 1 million dollars. The Art alone in the OV Hospital is valued 
at $438,000. The Art for the new St. Marks Church will be a wonderful addition. 

It is always satisfying to see Citizens having their pictures taken in front of the Library Tree, 
and the Figures at the Retail Center located at First and Tangerine, the Lions at Town Center, 
and other locations. 



Attachment 5

The intrinsic value of all of the Art is immeasurable. Art of this nature is a reflection of the 
quality of life, a common foundation, and a sense of place. One homeowner recently said 
"One of the reasons we moved here was after seeing all the Public Art, we came to the 
conclusion that this Town cares!" 

At the recent meeting of the Towns and Cities, hosted by Oro Valley, the Public Art Program 
was a big hit-particularly after several went on Public Art Tours conducted by the Town 
Staff. The Economic Development Staff now makes Public Art part of their ongoing efforts. 
There is much more that could be said. Take the Virtual Art Tour on the Town Web Site! 

ASSUMPTION #3-PUBLIC ART MUST REMAIN PART OF THE PLANNING PROCESS 

The reason for the above success was primarily due to total support of Town Council, 
Volunteers and most importantly---Town Staff. 

From the first day of submission by the developer, Public Art requirements kick in and it is the 
task of Staff to educate the applicant as to their responsibilities. For the last 15 years Sr. 
Planners have been doing an excellent job educating applicants about the 1% Program and 
what the Call for Artist Program is. 

One concept must be kept in mind. Pubic Art is a fully recognized Discipline with its own set 
of Professional Guidelines. There is an Organization named Public Art Network, which is a 
division of Americans for the Arts. Our Town is a member and the contact point is DIS. See 
Attachment #2 for the type of structured material available for use. Our Staff developed a 
Call for Artists procedure which involves some outsourcing when applicable. It is a challenge 
for Staff to advise when to outsource. Past history reveals a sound track record. 
The important factor is to keep it democratic in explaining options. 

We have been blessed in the past because SACCA (Greater OV Arts Council) had a woman 
with a Master's Degree in Public Art Administration. Also, TPAC always had a full time staff 
of Public Art Administrators. Qualifications of outsourcing organizations are vital. 
It is also important to have professional Public Artists who understand the media to use in 
the outdoors and what maintenance is required. All of this is addressed in the application 
process. 

CONCLUSIONS 

I Support the proposed Amendment because it improves the selection process by adding an 
updated Call For Artists. This keeps a structured, competitive concept for the origination of 
Public Art. This should improve the quality of art selected for a project. 
The amendment also updates the Public Art Design Review Process to provide for effective 
review tools for the evaluation of Public Art. 

Dick Eggerding 



Attachment 5

THE BEGINNING 

In 1994, Oro Valley was still a small suburban community of the greater Tucson 
area. For the first time the population exceeded 5,000. The timing and political 
environment were conducive to exciting and progressive ideas related to fine arts 
and overall cultural development. 

Town Council appointed an Arts Advisory Board in 1994, and in October of that 
year, Dick Eggerding became Chairman. In addition, the Arizona Commission on 
the Arts was engaged to prepare a "Community Cultural Assessment". The results 
of the study would prove to be pivotal. 

Don Chatfield was the Oro Valley Community Development Director during this 
period and would be a strong supporter of the Arts. He and Dick Eggerding met 
frequently to discuss the results of the Cultural Assessment. After the Mayor and 
Council accepted the study, steps were taken to research possible action for cultural 
quality of life issues. 

The final report made several suggestions for Action Plans. One of the seminal 
ideas was: " ... consider the possibility of establishing a Percent for Public Art 
Program." Such a program would require that all public and commercial 
construction provide 1 % of their total building costs for onsite Public Art. A 
concentrated effort began to find other communities in Arizona and elsewhere that 
had such a requirement. Tempe, Arizona was one such community. This 
provided the motivation to create a Town Code establishing a 1 % for Public Art in 
Oro Valley on all public and commercial construction. 

Then came the next crucial step. Eggerding was appointed to the 1996 General 
Plan Advisory Committee. He was able to insert in that Plan an action item within 
the Cultural and Historic Element: "Adopt and implement a Percent for Art 
Ordinance". (A time frame of 1-3 years was suggested). The importance of having 
the subject in the General Plan cannot be overstated, because of the official 
recognition it unanimously received from the Council. 

In May of 1997, Chatfield appointed Jim Copus, a City Planner from his staff to 
work with Eggerding to draft a new Town Code that would require a 1 % for Public 
Art Program. The code was quite specific as to what acceptable Art was, and how 
it would be displayed, etc. It also provided for a Public Art Review Committee 
(p ARC) whose main responsibility was to review all Public Art submissions by the 
Town and Commercial developers. (pARC was recently dissolved, and all art 
projects are finally approved by Staff, a Conceptual Design Review Board, and 
Town Council). The Arts Advisory Board proposed the new Town Code and it 
passed unanimously. 



Attachment 5

Copus and Eggerding held a series of meetings at Town Hall with staff and 
commercial developers in order to facilitate implementation and alleviate any 
concerns. These sessions helped to bring focus on the idea that Public Art would be 
an integral part offuture growth in Oro Valley. 

Since this was an era of dynamic growth in the community, many of the projects 
included extensive Art. Sculptures, murals, paintings, etc., located strategically at 
various construction sites began to appear. These initial installations brought 
substantial local and state attention. 

The program created economic opportunities for public artists, as well. Some of 
the larger projects utilized the services ofthe Greater Oro Valley Arts Council, 
whereby a professional consultant would assist the developer in preparing proposals 
and in securing qualified public artists. 

As the number of Art sites grew in number, locator maps were made available for 
Public use. Citizens were seen having their pictures taken in front of the more 
animated sculptures and the Art began to appear in various publications. 

The Pima Association of governments made available funds for summer youth art 
projects concurrent with the passage of the Public Art Code. 

Thus, as you drive throughout Oro Valley three types of Public Art are displayed: 

1. Public Art on Town Building sites and roads 

2. Public Art on Commercial Building sites. 

3. Youth summer Public Art projects, primarily in parks and along roads. 

Note: the first youth project was the "Welcome to Oro Vaney" signs on Oracle 
Road. Another project was the tiled lizards on Grenoch Road, which won a 
national award for the best trailhead design at the entrance to the CDO Riverfront 
Linear Park. The Sign System Guideline for the entire Rancho Vistoso planned 
community development was also a result of the Public Art Code, because it made 
citizens aware of the impact of colors, form and function. 

Space does not allow for a complete historical description of the myriad of 
volunteers and the hours expended to create the inspiring and beautiful Oro Valley 
Public Art program. Thus, the visionary dream of a few individuals, combined 
with the surrounding natural beauty of Oro Valley, guarantees our Public Art will 
be enjoyed for years to come by residents and visitors alike! 



Attachment 5

•. 

Call for Artists Resource Guide 

What is a Call for Artists? 

Public art programs and organizations 
commissioning public art projects enlist artists 
to be considered for their projects in a variety of 
ways, including calls for artists,juried slide 
registries, and direct invitations. 

A Call for Artists is an opportunity notice that 
gives artists the information they need to know 
in order to apply to be considered for the 
project. Issuing a Call for Artists is a standard 
practice of the public art field. 

There are currently over 347 publ ic art 
programs in the United States. They can be 
[ural or urban; government agenCies based in 
'~unicipalities, counties, or statewide; or private 
nonprofit organizations run independently or as 
part of a local arts agency. 

Types of Calls 

There are two types of Calls for Artists: 
Requests for Qualifications (RFQ) and 
Requests for Proposals (RFP). 

An RFQ asks artists to send in their 
qualifications to be reviewed by the selection 
panel but does not ask for a specific proposal to 
be submitted. Organizations use RFQs when 
they choose to work with a smaller pool of 
artists, or a single artist, based on their 
qualifications, to develop a detailed proposal for 
the site at a later stage. 

An RFP asks artists to submit their 
qualifications as well as a proposal for a specific 
site. Organizations use RFPs when they want 
to solicit proposals from a larger pool of artists 
or need to solicit proposals based on funding or 
government regulations. 

There has been discussion within the field of 
public art about the appropriateness of RFPs and 
RFQs. PAN's issue paper, Methods of Artist 
Selection: Best Practices, discusses this topic 
online at www.AmericansForTheArts.orglPAN. 

Public Art Network 

1 

Call Elements: 
Definitions and Descriptions 
. - ~ - ,~ 

Below is a list of content typically found in a 
Call for Artists, with advice on how to clearly 
convey your information. 

Call Summary 
A brief project summary 

The Call Summary helps artists quickly decide 
whether they are interested or eligible for the 
call, and lets organizations posting your call 
decide how it should be advertised. Include the 
project name, commissioning organization, 
application deadline, prqject timeline, budget, 
geographic eligibility requirements, and 
whether it is an RFP or RFQ. 

Project Description 
An overview of the artist's scope of services 

Discuss whether it is a design-team project, a 
commission of new work, an artist reSidency, a 
purchase of existing work, or another type of 
opportunity. Include a description of the 
organizations involved with the project. 

Artwork Goals 
A list of any predetermined goals for the artwork 
established by the commissioning organization, 
funder, or community 

The specificity of the artwork goals will range 
by commissioning organization and project. 
They can be broad-e.g .. create a sense of place 
within the community--or specific-e.g., 
design streetscape elements that reflect the 
industrial history of the neighborhood. 

Artwork Location Description 
A description of where the artwork will be placed 
within the commission site 

Sometimes the location for an artwork is 
predetermined by the funder, commissioning 
organization, or community before a Call for 
Artists is distributed. If this applies to your 
project, give a highly detailed description of 
where the artwork will be located within the 
site, especially for an RFP. The description 
should include, but not be limited to: 

www.AmericansForTheArts.org 



Attachment 5

Call for Artists Resource Guide 

engineering or architectural information about 
the location's structure, materials used at the 
location, visibility within the site, and lighting. 

If the artwork location is not predetermined, 
state whether or not the artist will be able to 
participate in selecting the artwork location{s). 

Site or Artwork Location Plans 
Plans, photographs, or other visual information 
of the site or artwork location 

If available, or applicable, include plans or 
photographs for the artwork location and project 
site. If this is not feasible, post the information 
online and include a link in the Call for Artists. 

Site History or Description 
Information about the site where the artwork will 
be located 

Describe the site's function, including what 
activities will happen there and who uses it. Be 
sure to include whether or not the site is open 
to the public, or if the public can see the facility 
but not enter the site. Also include a 
description or history of the site and community 
where the artwork will be placed and list 
additional resources for the artist to research. 

Budget 
The amount of funding allocated for the project 

Clearly state the budget and what aspects of the 
project it must cover, as not all projects have 
the same prqject costs allocated within the 
budget. For example, in a design-team project, 
the budget may include only the costs of the 
artist's fee and travel. In the commissioning of 
a permanent artwork, project costs may include 
the artist's fee, travel, and the fabrication, 
installation, and documentation of the art, in 
addition to costs such as signage, liability 
insurance, fine arts insurance, postage, and 
telephone ca lis. 

I f the project budget has not been set, clearly 
state the amount that has been secured and to 
what range the project may be raised. 

Public Art Network 

Artist E ligibi lity 
The qualifications that an artist must meet in 
order to be eligib le for a project 

Questions to consider include: 

2 

• Must the artist live in a certain geographic 
area or is the call open to artists nationally? 

• 

• 

• 

Is the call open to professional artists or are 
students eligible? 

Are artist teams eligible for the project? 

Must the artist have completed a project 
with a similar budget, scale, or scope? 

If you are seeking to reach out to certain types 
of artists, include a sentence encouraging artists 
that meet those goals to apply. For example, if 
the commissioning organization is seeking to 
reach out to emerging artists, include a 
statement such as "professional artists who are 
new to the field of public art are encouraged to 
apply." Or if the project is one that will involve 
a high level of interaction in a high school 
setting, include a statement such as "artists who 
have experience working with young adults are 
encouraged to apply." 

This is also the place to include an equal 
opportunity statement that may be required by 
the commissioning org anization, local 
municipality, or funder. 

Application Requirements 
The list of materials artists should send with 
their applications 

Be very specific about the information artists 
should include with their application materials 
since it will determine how they are presented 
to the panel reviewing applications. 

Typical application requirements include: 

• Number and type of visual support materials 

• Annotated support materials list 

• Resume 

• References 

• Letter of interest 

• Self-addressed stamped envelope (SASE) 

• Project proposal (for RFPs only). 

www.AmericansForTheArts.org 



Attachment 5

Call for Artists Resource Guide 

Visual support materials can include slides. 
videos. CDs. or prints. If requesting slides. list 
the number of slides artists may submit and 
how they should be labeled. If your panel is 
reviewing videos or CDs. list the length of time 
the submission must be and the formats you are 
capable of viewing. If you are reviewing prints. 
list the number of prints the artist should 
include. 

The annotated support materials list allows 
artists to describe the visual support material s 
and can include: description. materials. budget. 
location. client or commissioning organization. 
and any other relevant project information. 

The letter of interest allows artists to introduce 
themselves and describe why they are 
interested in the project. their approach to 
creating public art. and any past relevant 
experience. If there is a specific question you 
would like the artist to address in their letter. be 
sure to include it in the Call for Artists. 

If you are issuing an RFP. clearly list the types 
of materials you would like the artists to submit 
to best present their work to the review panel. 
Typical proposal submission materials include: 
project description. drawings. renderings. 
budget. photographs. materials list. and 
timeline. Questions to consider include: 
Should all of the work submitted be the same 
format and/or size? Do you want a detailed 
visual proposal or jUst a written description of 
an idea? 

If artist teams may apply. clearly state if you 
require additional visual support materials. 
resume. and references for each team member. 

Deadline 
The date by which an application must be either 
postmarked or received 

list the date by which an application must be 
postmarked or the date and time by which it 
must be received at the mailing address. Be 
sure to state if overnight or express delivery is 
NOT permitted. 

Public Art Network 

Submission Address 
The address to which the application is mailed 

Include the mailing address. If overnight or 
express shipping is allowed. be sure that the 
address is not a post office box or supply an 
alternate address for this type of delivery. 

Selection Process 
A description of how the applications will be 
reviewed and an artist selected 

3 

Include the types of people who are on the 
selection panel. e.g .• community represen
tatives. art professionals. agency represen
tatives. and funders. Include the number. or 
range. of finalists that will be selected and what 
will be required of the finalists. including 
proposals. dates for presentations. and travel. 
State the fee that finalists will be paid. to what 
that fee can be allocated. and if a separate 
travel budget is available. 

Selection Criteria 
A list of the criteria established by the 
commissioning agency or artist selection panel 
that will guide them as they evaluate the 
applications 

listing the selection criteria establishes the 
priorities of the artist selection panel. They also 
assist artists when considering whether or not 
they should apply for a project. For example. if 
the criteria for an RFQ includes artistic 
excellence. evidence of working in the field of 
public art for more than five years. and 
experience working in community settings. 
artists new to public art with limited experience 
with communities will be informed that their 
qualifications are not a good fit for the project. 

Project Timeline . 
The timeline the project will follow from artist 
selection to project completion 

The timeline includes dates for the following 
milestones. as they apply: submission deadline. 
panel review. finalist notification. and estimated 
completion and installation of artwork. 

www.AmericansForTheArts.org 



Zoning Code Amendment  
Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 

 
 

 
CASE NUMBER: OV713-002, Public Art Zoning Code Amendment 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 3, 2013 

 
AGENDA ITEM:  3 
 
STAFF CONTACT:  Chad Daines, Principal Planner 
    cdaines@orovalleyaz.gov (520) 229-4896 

 
 
Applicant:   Town Council Initiated 
 
Request: A Zoning Code Amendment to Section 27.3 and Chapter 31 

relative to Public Art Provisions  
 
Recommendation: Approve the Zoning Code Amendment as provided on 

Attachment 1 

 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
On May 15th, Town Council established updated public art requirements as a priority through 
the initiation this amendment.  The amendment is intended to improve the quality of new public 
art through updated Public Artwork provisions, including establishment of a Call For Artists 
selection process, and updated Public Artwork Design Principles.  The draft amendment 
specifically addresses the following sections: 
 

• Establishes a Call For Artists process for public art over $10,000 in value. 
• Increases the value of public art threshold from $10,000 to $20,000 for in-lieu fee 

allowance. 
• Revises the Conceptual Public Artwork Design Review Principles 
• Establishes Public Art Guidelines to define administrative procedures relative to the 

Call For Artists process. 
 

The specific amendment components are further analyzed and described in the Discussion / 
Analysis section of this report. A Public Art Committee was established consisting of the Vice-
Mayor, Town Manager and art members of the Conceptual Design Review Board. This 
Committee reviewed and provided direction on the draft amendment.  The amendment was 
also distributed to art organizations and other interested parties for review and comment. The 
draft amendment, as recommended by the Committee is provided as Attachment 1. The list of 
outside reviewers is provided as Attachment 2. The proposed amendment includes the 
administrative adoption of Public Art Guidelines, which establish detailed requirements for the 
proposed Call For Artists process (Attachment 3).    

Attachment 6



OV713-002 Public Art Zoning Code Amendment  
Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Town’s 1% Public Artwork Program was established in 1997.  This program 
requires that non-residential development provide public art in an amount equal to 1% 
of the building permit valuation.  As an example, for a project valued at $2,000,000, the 
developer is required to provide 1%, or $20,000 in public art on the subject property. 
 
The Public Artwork provisions were amended in early 2011 to increase the art value 
threshold for in-lieu fee allowance and allow the use of in-lieu fees to be used for public 
art maintenance. In mid-2011, the Public Artwork provisions were again amended to 
provide amended review criteria (Conceptual Public Art Design Review Principles) and 
to reflect the newly established Conceptual Design Review Board.  
 
The Town Council has initiated this current amendment with the goal of improving the 
quality of public art through updated design review principles and modifications to the 
requirements and selection /approval processes for Public Artwork. 
 
DISCUSSION / ANALYSIS: 
 
The draft amendment is provided as Attachment 1.  Draft Public Art Guidelines, to be 
approved administratively, establish the detailed requirements for the Call For Artists 
process and are included as Attachment 3.  Commission input is welcome and 
encouraged on the Public Art Guidelines, however, these guidelines are not formally 
adopted as part of the Code Amendment, but will be separately and administratively 
approved following adoption of the Code.   Listed below is discussion and analysis on 
the areas of amendment. 
 
Call For Artists Process 
 
Generally, a Call For Artists process is an open, competitive method used for the 
selection of an artist.  A Call For Artists process includes advertisement of a Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) through art list serves, clearing houses and publications.  An artist 
is then selected for the project from the responding artists.  A structured, competitive 
selection process is intended to improve the quality and variety of art through an 
expanded pool of artists and art proposals to select from for a project. 
 
The current Public Artwork provisions do not require an open, competitive process for 
the selection of an artist.  Under the current process, a developer independently hires 
an artist to produce an art concept, which is then submitted to the Town for review and 
approval.  The current provisions only require that the person selected meets the 
Zoning Code definition of “Artist”.   
 

Attachment 6



OV713-002 Public Art Zoning Code Amendment  
Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 
Page 3 of 6 

 

The proposed amendment establishes a requirement for a Call For Artists process 
projects as follows: 
 
 
Building Valuation Art Value Call For Artists Requirement 

Less than $1,000,000 Less than 
$10,000 

No Call For Artists process required,  
Artist must reside and work in Southern Arizona 

Between $1,000,000 
and $2,000,000 

Between $10,000 
and $20,000 

Call For Artists process required 
Regionally Advertised 

Over $2,000,000 Over $20,000 Call For Artists process required 
Nationally Advertised 

 
The Public Art Guidelines (Attachment 3) outlines the basic steps in the Call For Artists 
process, generally described as follows: 
 

• The developer must use a “Qualified Agent” to administer the Call For Artists 
process.  A Qualified Agent is defined as a not-for-profit entity that has 
dedicated staff and past experience in conducting Call For Artists processes.  
The Qualified Agent must have access to regional and national list serves, 
clearing houses and publications, fee policies and established timeframes.  
Southern Arizona Arts & Culture Alliance (SAACA) and Tucson Pima Arts 
Council (TPAC) are examples of organizations which would qualify as 
“Qualified Agents”. 

 
• Agents must be qualified by the Planning and Zoning Administrator. The 

Town will maintain a list of approved agents for use by the development 
community. 

 
• A developer will contract with a Qualified Agent who will advertise a Request 

for Qualifications (RFQ’s) for at least 30 days on at least two list serves, 
databases or clearing houses that are openly accessible to practicing artists. 

 
• Based on the building valuation of the project, the advertisement is either 

regionally or nationally advertised (see above table).  Additionally, the RFQ 
may be sent to additional artists as an invitation to participate. 

 
• The Qualified Agent will assemble a Selection Panel comprised of at least 1 

developer/property owner representative, at least 2 art professionals and at 
least 1 Oro Valley resident.  The Section Panel must be approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Administrator.  

 

Attachment 6



OV713-002 Public Art Zoning Code Amendment  
Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 
Page 4 of 6 

 

• The Selection Panel reviews responses to the RFQ and selects no less than 
two finalists.  The finalists are interviewed and the Selection Panel selects an 
artist to complete the project. 

 
• Following completion of the Call For Artists process, the applicant submits the 

proposed Conceptual Public Art for recommendation by the Conceptual 
Design Review Board and approval by Town Council. 

 
The intent of the Call For Artists process is to expand the number of artists and art 
proposals for consideration, with the goal of improving the quality of art within the Town.  
A Call For Artists process is common for organizations with a robust public art program 
and a strong community commitment to the arts, such as Oro Valley.   
 
In-Lieu Fees for Public Art 
 
The current Public Artwork provisions provide the option for an owner/developer to elect 
to contribute the 1% art funds to the Town of Oro Valley, if the building valuation is less 
than $1,000,000 (Art Value less than $10,000).  The amendment proposes to increase 
the building valuation from $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 for the in-lieu fee option. The 
intent of increasing the threshold is to allow additional smaller scale projects to 
contribute the 1% to in-lieu fees, providing more funding to complete needed 
maintenance of publicly owned public art.  The amended in-lieu fee allowance is 
depicted in the below table. 
 
Building Valuation Art Value In-Lieu Fee Allowance 

Under $2,000,000 Under $20,000 Allowed to contribute 1% as in-lieu fees 
Over $2,000,000 Over $20,000 Not allowed to contribute 1% as in-lieu fees 
 
In-lieu fees are used by the Town primarily for the maintenance of publicly owned public 
art.  Last year, the Planning Division completed an assessment of all publicly owned 
public art for maintenance needs and has now begun the process of completing needed 
maintenance based on a prioritized list.  The Code also enables the Town to use in-lieu 
fees for new public art and for the construction of on-site performing art facilities.  
 
Public Art Design Principles 
 
In 2011, the Public Artwork provisions were amended to update the review criteria 
(Conceptual Public Art Design Review Principles) in conjunction with the establishment 
of the Conceptual Design Review Board.  The Public Art Committee recommended 
updated Conceptual Design Review Principles to enhance the review criteria by which 
public art proposals are assessed. 
 
 
 

Attachment 6



OV713-002 Public Art Zoning Code Amendment  
Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 
Page 5 of 6 

 

Public Artwork Plaque 
 
The current Code provides that the Town may require a small plaque be placed on 
public art identifying the work, artist and contributors.  This provision has been modified 
to require a plaque including reference to “Oro Valley 1% for Public Art Program” to 
promote the Town’s commitment to the arts. 
 
Public Art Guidelines (Attachment 3) 
 
In conjunction with the amendment to the Zoning Code, Public Art Guidelines have 
been included to define administrative procedures related to the Call For Artists 
process.  These guidelines, which will be administratively approved, provide detailed 
requirements such as the definition of “Qualified Agent”, Request for Qualifications 
required information, Selection Panel composition and additional administrative details 
related to the Call For Artists process. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
The proposed amendment was distributed to art organizations and interested parties 
(Attachment 2) for review and comment.  Comments on the amendment were received 
from five residents, which are provided on Attachment 4.  These comments were 
evaluated by the Public Art Committee in the formulation of the draft amendment.  A 
member of the Public Art Committee has provided a letter of support for the 
amendment, including background information on the origins of the Town’s Public Art 
Program and general information on Call For Artist processes (Attachment 5). 

 
 
SUMMARY / CONCLUSION 
 
In summary, the proposed amendment enhances the current public art review and 
approval requirements and process through the addition of a structured and competitive 
selection process (Call For Artists), updated Conceptual Design Review Principles and 
other amendments designed to improve the quality of artwork in Oro Valley. 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the finding that the amendment enhances the quality of public art through the 
addition of a Call For Artists process and updated Design Review Principles, 
 
It is recommended that the Planning and Zoning Commission take the following action: 
 
Recommend approval to the Town Council of the requested Zoning Code 
Amendment OV713-002 as provided on Attachment 1. 

Attachment 6



OV713-002 Public Art Zoning Code Amendment  
Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to recommend approval of the proposed amendments to the Zoning Code as 
provided on Attachments 1, based on a finding that the amendment enhances the 
quality of public art through the addition of a Call For Artists process and updated 
Conceptual Design Review Principles 
 
      OR 
 
I move to recommend denial of the Zoning Code, finding that_____________________ 
__________________. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Zoning Code Amendment 
2. List of Outside Reviewers 
3. Public Art Guidelines 
4. Interested Parties Comments 
5. Letter of Support – Dick Eggerding 
 
 
      
 
     ___________________________________________ 
     Chad Daines, AICP Principal Planner 

Attachment 6



 

December 3, 2013 Planning and Zoning Commission Page 1 of 2 

 

MINUTES  
ORO VALLEY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR SESSION  
December 3, 2013  

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
11000 N. LA CAÑADA DRIVE    

 

   
3. PUBLIC HEARING: A ZONING CODE TEXT AMENDMENT TO SECTION 27.3 

PUBLIC ARTWORK PROVISIONS AND CHAPTER 31 DEFINITIONS OF THE 
ORO VALLEY ZONING CODE REVISED TO AMEND THE REQUIREMENTS, 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESSES FOR PUBLIC ARTWORK, OV713-002 

 

Chad Daines, Principal Planner, presented the following: 
 
- Background 
- Amendment Summary 
- Call For Artists Overview 
- Call For Artists Thresholds 
- Call For Artists Process Steps 
- In-lieu Fee Threshold 
- Revised Design Principles 
- Additional Amendments 
- Amendment Review 
- Recommendation  
 

Chairman Swope opened the public hearing. 
 

Dick Eggerding, Oro Valley resident, spoke on the history of public art within Oro 
Valley.  Mr. Eggerding commented that there are 3 component parts to making public 
art a success; the developer/applicant, staff and the artist. Without the cooperation of all 
3 components, you don't have anything.   
 

John Musoff, Oro Valley resident, stated that there are about 250 to 300 public art 
pieces located within Oro Valley.  Mr. Musoff went on to comment on the expansion of 
public art forms and the involvement of the Southern Arizona Arts and Cultural Alliance 
(SAACA) organization in the call for artist's process.  
 

Don Bristow, Oro Valley resident, commented that the proposal tonight fails to advance 
the concept of arts and culture.  Developers and business owners should have the 
opportunity to fund other forms of art and culture.  This amendment does not support 
the purposes stated within the Public Art Provisions.  Therefore, this Commission 
should recommend to the Council the following:  to not proceed with the public art code 
amendment as it is to limiting in its definition of public art, conduct an updated 

Attachment 7



 

December 3, 2013 Planning and Zoning Commission Page 2 of 2 

 

cultural assessment to determine the citizens desires and prepare a new public 
art ordinance.  
 

Kelly Huber, Non-Oro Valley resident, commented that Town has put a lot of 
thought and effort into this amendment, it is directly in line with what is happening in 
many other communities.  The Call for Artists Process is a strength to attract the best 
artist and best art here to Oro Valley. The use of a qualified agent is going to 
standardize how the developers are choosing the artist. It's amazing to see what Oro 
Valley has done and with these changes it is only going to strengthen Oro Valley as a 
leader in public art.   
 

Bill Adler, Oro Valley resident, commented that his concern was the diversification of the 
nature of art.  There are no guidelines to judge the quality or qualifications of an 
artist.  If the scope of art work is expanded to include other forms of art, that will expand 
the variety of artists that apply.  Mr. Adler believes that the Town should only judge the 
location and whether it is clearly visible.  Mr. Adler would rather see the ordinance left 
alone than adoption of the proposed changes. 
 

Chairman Swope closed the public hearing. 
 

Chad Daines, Principal Planner, commented on the questions asked during the public 
hearing including consideration of all mediums, qualified agents, the repetitive nature of 
art pieces, the selection panel and review of public art.  
 

Discussion ensued amongst the Commission regarding diversity in art and the proposed 
requirements.  
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Drazazgowski and seconded by Vice 
Chair Cox to Recommend Approval of the proposed amendments to the Zoning Code 
as provided in Attachment 1, based on a finding that the amendment enhances the 
quality of public art through the addition of a Call For Artists process and updated 
Conceptual Design Review Principles, subject to a change in Section 27.3.E.2 changing 
$2,000,000 to $4,000,000.  
 

Commissioner Leedy offered a friendly amendment to make a change in Section 
27.3.E.1 from $2,000,000 to $4,000,000 and add the words "at least" before "regionally 
advertised". The friendly amendment was accepted by Commissioner Drazazgowski 
and the Vice Chair Cox.  
 

MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
  

Attachment 7



 
 
 

Dece
 

Tow
 
CONT
In a co
Cultur
imple
Oro V
 
The or
design
within
admin
design
of the
 
Over t
Arizon
region
mana
 
South
develo
Town 
definit
code, 
integr
liaison
Public

SCOP
The So
Guide
mana
 
STEP 1
requir
group
develo
 
STEP 2
this st
mediu
direct
(RFQ) 
Cultur
and ap
 
STEP 3
intere
 
STEP 4
judgm
the de
the Pu

ember 18, 201

wn of Oro

TRACT PROP
ontinuing effort
ral Alliance (SAA
mentations to e

Valley to provide

rganization seek
nated Public Arts
n the Town of Or
nistration fee of 
nation).  The adm
e Town of Oro Va

the past 12 year
na.  Working wit
n.  The Southern 
ging Commercia

ern Arizona Arts
oper through ea
of Oro Valley, a
tion of Public Ar
artist contract, 
rity, artist authen
n between the D
c Art developme

PE OF SERVIC
outhern Arizona
elines for all Oro
gement of the p

1 – Project Iden
rement, interpre
p or committee t
op a public art th

2 – Developing a
tep of the proces
um and genre ra
ion for the proje
or a Request fo
ral Alliance sugg
ppropriately to e

3‐ Information a
ested in applying

4 ‐ Artist Selecti
ment regarding th
eveloper throug
ublic Art Project

13 

o Valley O

OSAL 
t to improve upo
ACA) urges the T
expand the natio
e public art appl

ks an annual con
s Agency to man
ro Valley.  All pro
the total 1% for
ministrative fee 
alley.   

rs, the Southern A
th both the priva
Arizona Arts an
al Public Art proj

s and Cultural Al
ach step of the T
s well as the Art
rtist, Public Art m
etc).  In addition
nticity and relev
Developer, the To
nt process.   

CES PROVIDED
a Arts and Cultu
o Valley Comme
project, when co

tification.  Work
etation of the Or
o select the artw
heme, concept, 

and posting a lo
ss SAACA will co
nge for the proj
ect in order to e
r Proposals (RFP
ests the develop
each individual C

and Call for Artis
g for the project 

on, Jury and De
he ability to sust
h the selection a
.   

One Perce

on the existing p
Town of Oro Val
onal and region
ication and proj

ntract with the T
nage and ensure
ojects would filt
r public art desig
is drawn from th

Arizona Arts & C
ate and public se
d Cultural Allian
jects in the regio

lliance Public Art
own of Oro Valle
tist  to ensure th
medium, public a
n, the role of SAA
vancy to the com
own of Oro Valle

D TO THE DEV
ural Alliance adh
rcial Public Art c
ontracting with 

king with the de
ro Valley Public A
work (identify ke
and final choice

ocal and nationa
onduct several fo
ect.  A Call for A
ducate artists an
P), based on proj
per a 30‐90 day 
CALL FOR ARTIST

st Education   SA
as well as the co

esign Reviews.  T
tain positive and
and refinement 

ent for Pu

public art ordina
lley to adopt ne
al reach of the c
ject manageme

own of Oro Vall
e the Best Practic
er through the S
gnation for each 
he required perc

Cultural Alliance 
ector, SAACA has
nce is the only or
on.   

t Administration
ey Percent for P
hat all Public Art 
art insurance, m
ACA is to ensure
mmunity and bus
ey and the Artist

VELOPER 
heres to the ado
contracts admin
a developer: 

veloper to bette
Art Code (allowa
ey players from t
e of project and/

al Call for Artist. 
ocus groups and
Artist typically ta
nd arts administ
ject needs.  Dev
public artist app
T.   

AACA serves as t
ollector of all pro

The selection of 
d open interactio
of the final chos

ublic Art 

ance and collect
ew progressive P
collection.  In ad
nt services for D

ey establishing t
ce Goals and Gu
Southern Arizon
privately owned
centage of Publi

has administere
s helped produce
rganization in So

n services provid
Public Art Comm
meets Town of 

maintenance plan
e that public art 
siness which is c
t to mitigate any

pted Americans
nistered through

er understand th
able art, qualific
the developer a
/or artist. 

 Working with t
 onsite meeting
kes approximate
rators on the pr
velopment and d
plication process

the information
oject application

an artist for a pu
ons among artist
sen project(s).  S

Commer

tion housed in O
Public Art progra
ddition, SAACA 
Developers requ

the Southern Ar
uidelines are insu
a Arts and Cultu
d project (includ
ic Art from the D

ed over 50 majo
e some of the lar
outhern Arizona 

de necessary pro
ercial requireme
Oro Valley Publ
n, accepted mate
developments r
ommissioning th
y issues, code cla

s for the Arts Pu
h the organizatio

he Town of Oro V
cations, function
nd business and

the developer to
s to establish in
ely 1‐2 months t
roject.  The deve
dissemination o
s, which allows f

and education s
ns.   

ublic art project
t, agency, const
SAACA notifies a

rcial Code

Oro Valley, AZ, t
am initiatives, a
seeks an exclus
uired to fulfill th

rizona Arts and C
ured for all requ
ural Alliance, fun
ded as administr
Developer.  Ther

r Public Art insta
rgest and most v
with over seven

oject manageme
ent.  These serv
ic Art Guidelines
erials, identify p
remain fabricate
he permanent a
arifications and 

ublic Art Networ
on.  Below are t

Valley’s three st
nal art, etc) as we
d/or and key dec

o establish and w
itial concepts, a
to develop to en
eloper may requ
of RFP and RFQ.  
for artists from a

source on all qu

t requires both c
ituent interests,
ll project applica

e Require

the Southern Ar
and improved pr
ive contract wit
he percent for ar

Cultural Alliance 
uired commercia
nded entirely thr
rative fees in the
re is no financial 

allations through
visible public art
nteen years’ expe

ent facilitation to
ices support the
s (structural eng
public art locatio
ed with the utmo
rt.  SAACA serve
requirements w

rk Best Practice 
the services pro

tep certification 
ell as definition 
cision makers in 

write a relevant
rtwork locations
nsure the most p
uire a Request fo
The Southern A
around the regio

estions or educa

curatorial expert
, and the public.
ants on all decis

ement 

izona Arts and 
rogram 
th the Town of 
rt code. 

as the 
al art projects 
rough a 5% 
e total 1% 
 risk on the part

hout Southern 
t pieces in the 
erience 

o aid the 
e Developer, the
gineering, 
ons, lighting 
ost structural 
es as the main 
which arise in the

Goals and 
ovided to the 

process and 
of a selected 
the process) to 

Call for Artist.  I
s, theme, 
positioned 
or Qualifications 
Arizona Arts and 
on to apply fairly

ation for artists 

tise and sound 
 SAACA walks 
ions relating to 

 

e 

n 

y 

Attachment 8



 
STEP 5 – Artist Contracting and Project Development.  SAACA works with the selected artists to; assume Intellectual Property and copyright of all 
artwork; aid developer and/or business in the contracting of a final agreement with the artist which includes art copyrights, maintenance, original 
artwork clause, payment schedule, guarantee of receivables, contracted art limitations, insurance requirements as well as indemnification and 
scope of work; mitigate contractual issues that may arise through the fabrication of art process. 
 
STEP 6 – Town of Oro Valley Conceptual and Final Stage Approvals.   
Work with the developer, landscape architect, lighting representative, project engineers, construction and building architect to ensure that the 
project meets all project goals and approvals.  Collect all submission materials from responsible parties, to ensure timing is appropriate to all 
necessary Oro Valley permits.  Aid in process from search to implementation with any needed permits, structural engineering or any additional 
consultant based issues that may arise.  Aid in processing the proposal through all three stages of the Town of Oro Valley Public Art Review Process, 
including acting as the Town of Oro Valley liaison for any questions or issues that may arise through the Public Art Review process, delivering and 
processing all necessary documents (for stages 1‐3) to the Town of Oro Valley. 
 
STEP 7 – Community Education.  At the conclusion of the project, SAACA will release local and national press releases with images of the project, 
as well as provide a developer with a post‐project evaluation of the public art process and final product.   

 

Town of Oro Valley One Percent for Public Art Commercial Code Guideline 
Suggested Revisions 
 
CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS REQUIREMENTS 
PUBLIC ARTWORK PROJECTS REQUIRING A CALL FOR ARTISTS PROCESS AS DEFINED BY SECTION 27.3 OF THE ORO VALLEY ZONING CODE SHALL BE 
ADMINISTERED BY A QUALIFIED AGENT. 
   DEFINE FURTHER – Qualified agents should have experience in the development and creation of a Call for Artist for private development, 
as opposed to sole experience in posting a Call for Artist on a public information site.   

A REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) IS ADVERTISED. 
   DEFINE FURTHER – Often for developers a Request for Proposals (RFP) will lead to stronger proposals from qualified artists with more 
experience in Public Art production and manufacturing.  A Request for Proposal (RFP) process is more standard in the commercial Public Art industry 
for larger budget projects, as opposed to a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) which often remains more common in projects with Public Art 
requirements less than $15,000‐$20,000.  A Request for Qualifications (RFQ) can often garner upwards to 150 applicants, complicating the process 
for the developer significantly and delaying the approval timeline.    

 

The above recommendations are made on behalf of the Board of Directors and Executive Staff at the Southern Arizona Arts and Cultural 
Alliance.   
 
Southern Arizona Arts and Cultural Alliance 
Kate Marquez, Executive Director 
Submitted December 18, 2013 

Attachment 8



Town Council Regular Session Item #   9.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Submitted By: Ron Corbin, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Information
SUBJECT:
RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-05, REPEALING AND REPLACING PERSONNEL POLICIES 2,
DEFINITIONS OF TERMS; 9, PROBATIONARY PERIODS; 10, ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES; 11,
DISCIPLINE; 16, NEPOTISM; 23, DRUG FREE WORKPLACE; 26, COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL USE,
RETENTION, & STORAGE; AND INTERNET POLICY; AND, 29, CONFLICT OF INTEREST

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
These personnel policy changes are needed for several reasons, including changes in Federal and State
law, outdated current policies, formatting that is hard to read and reference, and the need to implement
best practices in the management of the Town.

This packet of personnel policy changes was created by first reviewing the legal landscape of
employment law, including Federal and State statutes, administrative regulations and the Court's opinion
of those laws and regulations.  Based on this review, HR is recommending several legal updates to the
Town's policies.  Two examples include adding Military Care Giver Leave to the Family Medical leave Act
section of the leave policy, and fixing the policy on Worker's Compensation so employees understand
when and if their retirement is effected by their time off from work.

Other policy changes are being recommended as a result of employees and managers bringing their
concerns to HR.  One example of this type of change is the expansion of immediate family to include
domestic partners and the children of domestic partners.  This change will allow employees to use sick
leave to care for their domestic partner or their children regardless of where the loved one lives.  

Regardless of where the idea for change started, the ideas were reviewed with the Town's leadership
team, managers, and employees. HR also held management meetings, one-on-one meetings with
employees, and department meetings where these policies where discussed.  In addition, HR sought
email input from all employees and those comments and suggestions are included in the Council's
packet.  Many of these changes were incorporated into the recommended policy.  The addition of foster
children in the definition of immediate family is one such example.

The end result is a solid compilation of recommended personnel polices which have been vetted through
the Town's leadership, management staff, supervisors, and employees.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policy 3, General Provisions, states that changes to personnel policies are



Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policy 3, General Provisions, states that changes to personnel policies are
made by the Town Council through the Town Manager. Staff is recommending several changes to
policies 2, 9, 10, 11, 16, 23, 26, and 29. Listed below are the major changes that are being
recommended.

Policy 2: Definitions of Terms 

Several definitions were moved from individual chapters of the rules to this central location.
Immediate Family Member (non-FMLA) is defined: An employee’s spouse, child(ren), adopted
child(ren), step child(ren), or    child(ren) of a domestic partner, parent, grandparent, grandchild,
current in-laws, brother, sister, domestic partner, or parent surrogate.
Introductory Employee is changed to Initial Probationary Employee.
Part-time Employee is changed to reflect the three different types of part-time employees that the
Town employs, including those with and without benefits.

Policy 9: Probationary Periods

Introductory Period was replaced with Probationary Period.

Policy 10: Attendance and Leaves 

10.1 Annual Leave:

Clarifies that employees must be in a paid status to accrue leave. 
Clarifies that the Department Director has the authority to approve, deny, or cancel a leave request.
Maximum accrual may be passed with permission of Department Director, HR Director, and Town
Manager.

10.2 Sick Leave:

Defines the reasons an employee may use sick leave. 
Enables an employee to change annual leave to sick leave when appropriate. 
Clarifies that sick leave can be denied by a supervisor if appropriate.
Requires that Human Resources be notified of multiple day absences to review for FMLA or
ADAAA issues. 
Prevents the use of sick leave immediately prior to any separation from Town employment. 
Allows for medical verification for sick leave where appropriate, but no requirement of a diagnosis. 

10.5 Unauthorized Leave:

Defines job abandonment as missing three consecutive days of work without permission.

10.7 Workers’ Compensation (WC):

Clarifies that leave balances do not change while an employee is out on WC leave.
Describes how WC works with the two different retirement systems as defined by statute. 

10.9 Bereavement Leave:

Allows for 5 days of leave for the death of any immediate family member as opposed to 3 days for
in-state relatives and 5 days for out of state relatives. 

10.3 Leave Donations:

Creates a restriction on the amount of leave that can be donated: 40 hours of annual leave per
year; or 80 hours of sick leave (if the employee has over 480 sick hours in their sick bank). 
Clarifies that an employee must be on FMLA in order to qualify for leave donations (currently it is
up to the Department Director).

Policy 11: Discipline

Creates 2 categories of discipline: Informal and Formal. 



Creates 2 categories of discipline: Informal and Formal. 
Changes Probationary Period to a Performance Improvement Plan. 
Removes the written reprimand from the appeals and notice rules. 
Clarifies the rights and responsibilities during an investigative interview of employees. 
Clarifies the steps and rights of a pre-action meeting. 
Changes the grievance process to an appeals process. 
Removes the forms from the personnel policy.

Policy 16: Nepotism

Department Director was added to the list of individuals who may not hire relatives. 
HR will review applications to ensure that the appearance of nepotism or favoritism does not occur
when applicants are selected for interviews or hire. 
Employees would no longer be able to intervene in any manner in the selection of a family member
for employment.

Policy 23: Drug Free Workplace 

Added a clause allowing the exchange of closed containers of alcohol for gifts.

Policy 26: Computer Usage; E-Mail Use, Retention, & Storage; and Internet Policy 

Added a section limiting the storage of email to 6 months only.

Policy 29: Conflict of Interest

Clarifies that employees may not be members of political committees, officers of partisan political
committees or nominees for paid elective office for Oro Valley municipal elections. 
Clarifies that employees in their personal capacity may express opinions, attend meetings (not in
uniform), vote, sign nomination or recall petitions and advocate for election or defeat of candidates.

Electronic Version Differs from Hard Copies

Two minor changes were made to the hard copies that were distributed to Council on December 6, 2013.
 These changes are now included in electronic version.  These changes are:

Personnel Policy 10.6 – Observed Holidays
B. Holiday Pay
3.        Employees whose regularly scheduled day-off falls on an observed Town holiday will may receive
a different day off during that same week as their holiday unless required to work. (The word “will” was
changed to “may”.  This better reflects current practice for those departments who work 10 hour
shifts.)
D.  Holidays Worked
If an eligible employee is required to work on an observed holiday, the employee will receive the
employee’s normal rate of pay for their usual shift, plus holiday pay, plus regular overtime pay if required
for any hours  actually worked over 40 in that workweek.  (The phrase “actually worked” was
removed because they are not included in our current rule and this change is not being
recommended.)

FISCAL IMPACT:
The proposed personnel policy changes are not expected to have any significant fiscal impact on any
one department or employee.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (adopt or deny) Resolution No. (R)14-05, repealing and replacing Personnel Policies, 2, 9, 10,
11, 16, 23, 26, and 29.



Attachments
(R)14-05 Amending OV Personnel Manual
Policy 2
2-boldstrikethrough
Policy 9
9-boldstrikethrough
Policy 10
10-boldstrikethrough
Policy 11
11-boldstrikethrough
Policy 16
16-boldstrikethrough
Policy 23
23-boldstrikethrough
Policy 26
26-boldstrikethrough
Policy 29
29-boldstrikethrough
Employee Comments



C:\WINDOWS\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 6\@BCL@0011AB85\@BCL@0011AB85.doc  

RESOLUTION NO. (R)14-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING CHANGES TO THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL   

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3-3-1 of the Oro Valley Town Code, the Town Council is 
empowered to create a personnel system which applies to all Town employees except elected 
officials; and

WHEREAS, Section 3-3-2 of the Oro Valley Town Code provides that the Town Council may 
adopt, by resolution, rules and regulations pertaining to employment with the Town; and

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2007 the Town Council adopted Resolution No. (R)07-60, “The Town 
of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual”; and

WHEREAS, it has become necessary to update the following policies: Policy 2 “Definitions of 
Terms”; Policy 9 “Probationary Periods”; Policy 10 “Attendance and Leaves”; Policy 11 
“Discipline”; Policy 16 “Nepotism”; Policy 23 “Drug Free Workplace”; Policy 26 “Computer 
Usage, E-Mail and Internet Policy”; and Policy 29 “Conflict of Interest”(attached as Exhibit A).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro 
Valley, Arizona, to adopt the changes to the Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and 
Procedures Manual attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if any portion of the manual is found to not be enforceable 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, that portion shall be declared severable, and the remainder 
of the manual will remain in full force and effect.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona this 15th day of January, 2014.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Julie K. Bower, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



PERSONNEL POLICY 2 Page 1 of 4

DEFINITIONS Effective Date:

2.1 DEFINITION OF TERMS

A. The following terms, whenever used in these policies, shall be defined as follows:

1. Anniversary Date:  The annual recurrence of the date that an individual commenced 
employment in a position with the Town of Oro Valley.

2. Annual Leave:  Time off with pay granted to the employee at the convenience of the 
Town in recognition of service and the employee’s need for an annual period of rest and 
recreation.

3. Annual Leave Carry Over: Annual leave carried over from the one fiscal year to the 
following year, not to exceed the amount an employee would earn in 18 months of 
services.

4. Appointment:  The acceptance of an authorized offer of a position with the Town of Oro
Valley pursuant to these Personnel Policies and Procedures.

5. Appointing Authority: The Town Manager or other persons authorized by the Town of 
Oro Valley to make employment decisions. 

6. AWOL:  Absent without leave, an unpaid leave, non-approved leave. 

7. Benefit Eligible Employee: An employee who holds a regular (not temporary or seasonal) 
position with the Town, and who is regularly scheduled to work at least 20 hours per 
week.

8. Bereavement Leave: Leave taken upon the death of an immediate family member. 

9. Classification:  All positions sufficiently similar in duties, authority, and responsibility to 
permit grouping under a common title and with the application of common standards of 
selection, transfer, promotion, and compensation.

10. Compensatory Time:  Leave time accrued at one and one-half hours for every hour 
worked over forty (40) hours during the employee’s work week.  Time off given in lieu 
of monetary payment for overtime worked.

11. Demotion:  The movement of an employee from a position in one classification to a 
position in another classification having a lower maximum rate of pay.

12. Department Head:  Those officers or employees who are appointed or employed as the 
principal employee of a department for the discharge of duties provided by law or of 
particular delegated functions.

13. Disciplinary Action: Written reprimand, demotion, suspension, reduction in pay/position 
or discharge imposed for just cause. 



PERSONNEL POLICY 2 Page 2 of 4

DEFINITIONS Effective Date:

14. Employee:  Any person employed by the Town for wages and or salary for a particular 
position as defined in the classification system established by the Town of Oro Valley.

15. Examination:  A selection test or test procedure for a particular classification which is 
open to all persons meeting the qualifications for the position.

16. Exempt Employee:  Employees classified as Executive, Administrative or Professional or 
such other position as may be determined by the tests included in the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA).  Job Classifications are determined to be exempt or non-exempt 
according to the FLSA.  

17. Full-Time Employee:  An employee who is hired by the Town on the basis of working at 
least thirty-two (32) hours per week. 

18. Grievance Procedures:  A procedure which permits employees the right to grieve 
decisions significantly affecting their employment.

19. Immediate family member (non-FMLA): An employee’s spouse, child(ren), adopted 
child(ren), step child(ren), or child(ren) of a domestic partner, foster child(ren), parent, 
grandparent, grandchild, current in-laws, brother, sister, domestic partner, or parent 
surrogate.  

20. Merit Increase:  A salary increase which may be granted to an employee based upon past 
performance over a period of time.

21. Overtime Work:  Authorized time worked by a non-exempt employee in excess of 40 
hours per work week, as defined by State and Federal law.

22. Part-time benefit eligible employee: An employee who is hired by the Town to work 
twenty (20) or more hours per week but less than thirty-two (32) hours, although there 
may be occasional instances in which a part-time employee may work more hours in a 
given workweek.  

23. Part-time, regular, non-benefit eligible employee: An employee who is hired by the Town 
to work a consistent schedule of nineteen (19) hours or less per week, although there may 
be occasional instances in which a part-time employee may work more hours in a given 
workweek. 

24. Part-time, at-will non-benefit eligible: An employee who is hired by the Town on the 
basis of an unpredictable shift schedule of nineteen (19) hours or less per week, although 
there may be occasional instances in which a part-time employee may work more hours 
in a given workweek.  An employee with this employment status has no guarantee of 
hours at any time. 

25. Performance Appraisal:  Written evaluations of an employee’s work given prior to the 
completion of the introductory period, and annually on or around the anniversary review 
date. 



PERSONNEL POLICY 2 Page 3 of 4

DEFINITIONS Effective Date:

26. Position:  An aggregation of tasks and responsibilities requiring the services of a person.

27. Probationary Evaluation Period:  A period of time during which new or promotional 
employees are required to demonstrate their suitability in their position by actual 
performance of the duties required.  The introductory period will last twelve (12) full 
calendar months for police officers and six (6) full calendar months for all other full-time 
employees.  The introductory period for part-time employees shall be nine (9) full 
months.

28. Probationary Period:  A period of time, normally due to an inability or unwillingness to 
meet the conduct or performance expectations of the job, during which employees are 
required to demonstrate their suitability in their position by actual performance of the 
duties required.  The probationary period will normally be no less than 30-days and no 
more than 6-months. 

29. Promotion:  The movement of an employee from a position in one classification to a 
position in another classification having a higher maximum rate of pay.

30. Rate of Pay:  The employee’s hourly rate of pay calculated by dividing his/her annual 
salary by the number of hours associated with the position.

31. Sick Leave:  Time off with pay granted to qualified employees by the Town in the event 
of illness or medical treatment.

32. Suspension:  The temporary removal of an employee from their position with or without 
pay for disciplinary or administrative purposes for a specified period of time.

33. Temporary Employee:  An employee hired on a provisional, temporary basis for periods 
not to exceed three (3) full calendar months or for longer periods of employment such as 
approved by the Town Council during the budget process, in order to provide necessary 
public service or when a short-term increase in workload requires additional employees.  
The appointment may be extended for up to an additional three (3) months upon 
authorization by the Town Manager. Seasonal employees are considered temporary 
employees for pay and benefits purposes and their employment is normally terminated at 
the end of the seasonal assignment, although their status may be reactivated as needed 
each season.

34. Termination:  The separation of an employee from employment by any means other than 
retirement whether it be voluntary (resignation) or involuntary (dismissal).

35. Transfer:  A change of an employee from one position to another position having the 
same maximum rate of pay.

36. Verbal Reprimand:  A verbal warning which personally informs an employee that his/her 
performance or behavior is unsatisfactory.  



PERSONNEL POLICY 2 Page 4 of 4

DEFINITIONS Effective Date:

37. Working Days: Monday thru Friday, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m.  Holidays recognized by the Town 
of Oro Valley are not considered working days.

38. Work Week:  For most non-police employees, the work week shall commence on 
Monday and shall end on Friday and normal working hours shall consist of 8.0 hour days 
with a one hour lunch period, unless otherwise approved by the Department Head.  For 
Police Department employees, the work week will remain flexible (and assigned by
Department management) to best meet the needs of the Town.

39. Written Reprimand:  A written warning giving formal notice to an employee of 
unsatisfactory performance.  

40. Years of Service: Total length of time an employee has been directly employed by the 
Town of Oro Valley. 



PERSONNEL POLICY 2 Page 1 of 4

DEFINITIONS Effective Date:

2.1 DEFINITION OF TERMS

A. The following terms, whenever used in these policies, shall be defined as follows:

1. Anniversary Date:  The annual recurrence of the date that an individual commenced 
employment in a position with the Town of Oro Valley.

2. Annual Leave:  Time off with pay granted to the employee at the convenience of the 
Town in recognition of service and the employee’s need for an annual period of rest and 
recreation.

3. ANNUAL LEAVE CARRY OVER: ANNUAL LEAVE CARRIED OVER FROM 
ONE FISCAL YEAR TO THE FOLLOWING YEAR, NOT TO EXCEED THE 
AMOUNT AN EMPLOYEE WOULD EARN IN 18 MONTHS OF SERVICE.

4. Appointment:  The acceptance of an authorized offer of a position with the Town of Oro
Valley pursuant to these Personnel Policies and Procedures.

5. APPOINTING AUTHORITY: THE TOWN MANAGER OR OTHER PERSONS 
AUTHORIZED BY THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY TO MAKE EMPLOYMENT 
DECISIONS.

6. AWOL:  ABSENT WITHOUT LEAVE, AN UNPAID LEAVE, NON-APPROVED 
LEAVE.

7. Benefit Eligible Employee: An employee who holds a regular (not temporary or seasonal) 
position with the Town, and who is regularly scheduled to work at least 20 hours per 
week.

8. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE: LEAVE TAKEN UPON THE DEATH OF AN 
IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER.

9. Classification:  All positions sufficiently similar in duties, authority, and responsibility to 
permit grouping under a common title and with the application of common standards of 
selection, transfer, promotion, and compensation.

10. Compensatory Time:  LEAVE TIME ACCRUED AT ONE AND ONE-HALF 
HOURS FOR EVERY HOUR WORKED OVER FORTY (40) HOURS DURING 
THE EMPLOYEE’S WORK WEEK. Time off given in lieu of monetary payment for 
overtime worked.

11. Demotion:  The movement of an employee from a position in one classification to a 
position in another classification having a lower maximum rate of pay.



PERSONNEL POLICY 2 Page 2 of 4

DEFINITIONS Effective Date:

12. Department Head:  Those officers or employees who are appointed or employed as the 
principal employee of a department for the discharge of duties provided by law or of 
particular delegated functions.

13. DISCIPLINARY ACTION: WRITTEN REPRIMAND, DEMOTION, 
SUSPENSION, REDUCTION IN PAY/POSITION OR DISCHARGE IMPOSED 
FOR JUST CAUSE.

14. Employee:  Any person employed by the Town for wages and or salary for a particular 
position as defined in the classification system established by the Town of Oro Valley.

15. Examination:  A selection test or test procedure for a particular classification which is 
open to all persons meeting the qualifications for the position.

16. Exempt Employee:  Employees classified as Executive, Administrative or Professional or 
such other position as may be determined by the tests included in the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA).  Job Classifications are determined to be exempt or non-exempt 
according to the FLSA.  

17. Full-Time Employee:  An employee who is hired by the Town on the basis of working at 
least thirty-two (32) hours per week. 

18. Grievance Procedures:  A procedure which permits employees the right to grieve 
decisions significantly affecting their employment.

19. IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER (NON-FMLA): AN EMPLOYEE’S SPOUSE, 
CHILD(REN), ADOPTED CHILD(REN), STEP CHILD(REN), OR CHILD(REN) 
OF A DOMESTIC PARTNER, FOSTER CHILD(REN), PARENT, 
GRANDPARENT, GRANDCHILD, CURRENT IN-LAWS, BROTHER, SISTER, 
DOMESTIC PARTNER, OR PARENT SURROGATE.  

20. Merit Increase:  A salary increase which may be granted to an employee based upon past 
performance over a period of time.

21. Overtime Work:  Authorized time worked by a non-exempt employee in excess of 40 
hours per work week, as defined by State and Federal law.

22. PART-TIME BENEFIT ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE: AN EMPLOYEE WHO IS 
HIRED BY THE TOWN TO WORK TWENTY (20) OR MORE HOURS PER 
WEEK BUT LESS THAN  THIRTY-TWO (32) HOURS, ALTHOUGH THERE 
MAY BE OCCASIONAL INSTANCES IN WHICH A PART-TIME EMPLOYEE 
MAY WORK MORE HOURS IN A GIVEN WORKWEEK.  

23. PART-TIME, REGULAR, NON-BENEFIT ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE:  AN 
EMPLOYEE WHO IS HIRED BY THE TOWN TO WORK A CONSISTENT 
SCHEDULE OF NINETEEN (19) HOURS OR LESS PER WEEK, ALTHOUGH 



PERSONNEL POLICY 2 Page 3 of 4

DEFINITIONS Effective Date:

THERE MAY BE OCCASIONAL INSTANCES IN WHICH A PART-TIME 
EMPLOYEE MAY WORK MORE HOURS IN A GIVEN WORKWEEK.  

24. PART-TIME, AT-WILL NON-BENEFIT ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE: AN 
EMPLOYEE WHO IS HIRED BY THE TOWN ON THE BASIS OF AN 
UNPREDICTABLE SHIFT SCHEDULES OF NINETEEN (19) HOURS OR LESS 
PER WEEK, ALTHOUGH THERE MAY BE OCCASIONAL INSTANCES IN 
WHICH A PART-TIME EMPLOYEE MAY WORK MORE HOURS IN A GIVEN 
WORKWEEK.  AN EMPLOYEE WITH THIS EMPLOYMENT STATUS HAS 
NO GUARANTEE OF HOURS AT ANY TIME.

25. Performance Appraisal:  Written evaluations of an employee’s work given prior to the 
completion of the introductory period, and annually on or around the anniversary review 
date. 

26. Position:  An aggregation of tasks and responsibilities requiring the services of a person.

27. Introductory PROBATIONARY Evaluation Period:  A period of time during which 
NEW OR PROMOTIONAL employees are required to demonstrate their suitability in 
their position by actual performance of the duties required.  The introductory period will 
last twelve (12) full calendar months for police officers and six (6) full calendar months 
for all other full-time employees.  The introductory period for part-time employees shall 
be nine (9) full months.

28. Probationary Period:  A period of time, normally due to an inability or unwillingness to 
meet the conduct or performance expectations of the job, during which employees are 
required to demonstrate their suitability in their position by actual performance of the 
duties required.  The probationary period will normally be no less than 30-days and no 
more than 6-months. 

29. Promotion:  The movement of an employee from a position in one classification to a 
position in another classification having a higher maximum rate of pay.

30. Rate of Pay:  The employee’s hourly rate of pay calculated by dividing his/her annual 
salary by the number of hours associated with the position.

31. Sick Leave:  Time off with pay granted to qualified employees by the Town in the event 
of illness or medical treatment.

32. Suspension:  The temporary removal of an employee from their position with or without 
pay for disciplinary or administrative purposes for a specified period of time.

33. Temporary Employee:  An employee hired on a provisional, temporary basis for periods 
not to exceed three (3) full calendar months or for longer periods of employment such as 
approved by the Town Council during the budget process, in order to provide necessary 
public service or when a short-term increase in workload requires additional employees.  
The appointment may be extended for up to an additional three (3) months upon 



PERSONNEL POLICY 2 Page 4 of 4

DEFINITIONS Effective Date:

authorization by the Town Manager. Seasonal employees are considered temporary 
employees for pay and benefits purposes and their employment is normally terminated at 
the end of the seasonal assignment, although their status may be reactivated as needed 
each season.

34. Termination:  The separation of an employee from employment by any means other than 
retirement whether it be voluntary (resignation) or involuntary (dismissal).

35. Transfer: A change of an employee from one position to another position having the 
same maximum rate of pay.

36. Verbal Reprimand:  A verbal warning which personally informs an employee that his/her 
performance or behavior is unsatisfactory.  

37. Working Days: Monday thru Friday, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m.  Holidays recognized by the Town 
of Oro Valley are not considered working days.

38. Work Week:  For most non-police employees, the work week shall commence on 
Monday and shall end on Friday and normal working hours shall consist of 8.0 hour days 
with a one hour lunch period, unless otherwise approved by the Department Head.  For 
Police Department employees, the work week will remain flexible (and assigned by 
Department management) to best meet the needs of the Town.

39. Written Reprimand:  A written warning giving formal notice to an employee of 
unsatisfactory performance.  

40. YEARS OF SERVICE: TOTAL LENGTH OF TIME AN EMPLOYEE HAS BEEN 
DIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY.



PERSONNEL POLICY 9 Page 1 of 2

PROBATIONARY PERIOD Effective Date:

9.1 PROBATIONARY PERIOD  

A. New Employees

1. Full-time employees are subject to a probationary period of not less than six (6) full calendar 
months of actual service.  

2. Part-time employees are subject to a probationary periods not less than nine (9) full calendar 
months.  

3. The probationary period for police officers shall be for a period of not less than twelve (12) 
full calendar months following their completion of the Academy.  

4. Police Dispatchers are subject to a probationary period of not less than twelve (12) full 
calendar months.  

5. Newly promoted employees will not serve a probationary period except for police officers 
who are promoted to sergeant or lieutenant.

B. Objective of the Probationary Period

1. The probationary period shall be utilized for closely observing and evaluating the employee’s 
work performance and suitability for their position.

C. Inability to Successfully Complete the Probationary Period

1. During the probationary period, a newly hired employee may be dismissed at any time by the 
Department Head in consultation with the Human Resources Director, and with the approval 
of the Town Manager, with or without cause and without any recourse through the grievance 
procedure.  

2. Written notification of the termination shall be given to the employee and a copy filed in their 
official personnel file.

D. Extension of the Probationary Period

1. The Department Head, in consultation with the Human Resources Director, and with 
approval of the Town Manager, may extend an employee’s probationary period for a 
specified period of time, not to exceed six (6) full calendar months; and

2. The employee shall be notified in writing of the reason for the extension.  Extension of the
probationary period is not grievable under these policies.

E. Completion of the Probationary Period

1. Employees who complete their probationary period satisfactorily will thereafter become 
regular employees. 



PERSONNEL POLICY 9 Page 2 of 2

PROBATIONARY PERIOD Effective Date:

2. Successful completion of the probationary period does not create any contractual rights for 
such employees.

3. Employees will receive a formal performance evaluation at the completion of their 
probationary period indicating that the employee is no longer on probation. In the event a 
performance evaluation is not completed or their probationary period is not extended on or 
before the ending date of the introductory period, the employee will be deemed a regular 
employee, and no longer in the status of a probationary employee.



PERSONNEL POLICY 9 Page 1 of 2

INTRODUCTORY
PROBATIONARY PERIOD

Effective Date: May 3, 2012

SECTION 1. 9.1 PROBATIONARY PERIOD
A. NEW EMPLOYEES

1. Introductory Period:  All newly hired employees shall be FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES ARE subject 
to an PROBATIONARY introductory period of not less than six (6) full calendar months of actual 
service.  

2. Part-time employees shall be ARE subject to introductory A PROBATIONARY periods OF not less 
than nine (9) full calendar months.  

3. The introductory PROBATIONARY period for police officers shall be for a period of not less than 
twelve (12) full calendar months following their completion of the Academy.  

4. Police Dispatchers ARE SUBJECT TO A PROBATIONARY PERIOD shall also be subject to 
introductory periods of not less than twelve (12) full calendar months.  At the supervisor’s discretion, 
with approval by the department head, an employee who is promoted or transferred into a new position 
may be subject to an introductory period for evaluation purposes.

5. NEWLY PROMOTED EMPLOYEES WILL NOT SERVE A PROBATIONARY PERIOD, 
EXCEPT FOR POLICE OFFICERS WHO ARE PROMOTED TO SERGEANT OR
LIEUTENANT.

SECTION 2. B. OBJECTIVE OF THE PROBATIONARY PERIOD
A. Objective of Introductory Period:  The introductory PROBATIONARY period shall be utilized for closely 

observing and evaluating the employee’s work performance and suitability for their position.

SECTION 3. C. INABILITY TO SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETE THE PROBATIONARY 
PERIOD

1. Inability to Successfully Complete Introductory Period:  During the PROBATIONARY introductory
period, a newly hired employee may be dismissed at any time by the Department Head in consultation with 
the Human Resources Director, and with the approval of the Town Manager, with or without cause and 
without any recourse through the grievance procedure.  

2. Written notification of the termination shall be given to the employee and a copy filed in their personnel 
file.

SECTION 4. D. EXTENSION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD
A. 1. Extension of Introductory Period: The Department Head, in consultation with the Human Resources 

Director, and with approval of the Town Manager, may extend an employee’s introductory
PROBATIONARY period for a specified period of time, not to exceed six (6) full calendar months; and 

B. 2. Tthe employee shall be notified in writing of the reason for the extension.  Extension of the introductory
PROBATIONARY period is not grievable under these policies.

SECTION 5. E. COMPLETION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD
A. 1. Completion of Introductory Period:  Employees who complete their introductory PROBATIONARY

period satisfactorily will thereafter become regular full-time or part-time employees. 
B. 2. Successful completion of the introductory PROBATIONARY period does not create any contractual 

rights for such employees.  
C. Employees who complete their introductory period are not normally eligible for pay increases at that time 

(unless their introductory period ends in conjunction with another regularly scheduled pay increase). 
D. 3. Employees will receive a formal performance evaluation at the completion of their introductory

PROBATIONARY period INDICATING THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS NO LONGER ON 
PROBATION. In the event a supervisor either fails to complete a formal performance evaluation IS NOT 
COMPLETED or THEIR extend the introductory PROBATIONARY period IS NOT EXTENDED on 
or before the ending date of the introductory period, the employee will be deemed a regular full-time or 
part-time employee, and no longer in the status of an introductory PROBATIONARY period employee.



PERSONNEL POLICY 9 Page 2 of 2

INTRODUCTORY
PROBATIONARY PERIOD

Effective Date: May 3, 2012



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 1 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

10.1 ANNUAL LEAVE

A. Eligibility

1. All Town employees, except for temporary and part-time, non-benefited employees (see 
definition in Policy 2) are eligible to accrue annual leave.

2. All Town employees eligible to accrue annual leave are eligible to use their accrued 
annual leave after ninety (90) calendar days of employment.

B. Accrual of Annual Leave

1. Eligible employees start accruing annual leave from their date of hire.

2. Part-time benefit eligible employees accrue annual leave at half the rate of full-time 
employees.

3. Employees who are on any unpaid leave of absence (except for FMLA or Military leave) 
for an entire pay period (80 hours) will not accrue annual leave.

4. Annual leave accrual is cumulative, up to the maximum number of hours permitted by 
this policy.

C. Annual Leave Accrual Rates

1. Accrual rates shall be at the rate specified below and are based on years of service and 
Federal Labor Standards Act (Exempt or Non-Exempt) status:

a. Full-time / Non-Exempt Rate:
Years of 
Service

Hours Per Pay 
Period

Approximate 
Hours Per Year

Maximum hours 
to be Accrued

1 – 5 3.6923 96 144
6 – 10 5.2308 136 204
11 - 20 6.7692 176 264

20 & over 6.7692 176 300

b. Full-time / Exempt Rate:
Years of 
Service

Hours Per Pay 
Period

Approximate 
Hours Per Year

Maximum hours 
to be Accrued

1 – 5 5.2308 136 204
6 – 20 6.7692 176 264

20 & over 6.7692 176 300



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 2 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

c. Full-time / Department Heads
Years of 
Service

Hours Per Pay 
Period

Approximate 
Hours Per Year

Maximum hours 
to be Accrued

Upon hire 6.7692 176 264
20 & over 6.7692 176 300

2. For the purpose of determining length of service, the year noted begins on the day after 
the preceding anniversary.  Changes in accrual rates are effective in the following pay 
period.

D. Maximum Number of Accrued Annual Leave Hours

1. An employee’s annual leave balance shall not exceed the number of hours they would 
accrue in 18 months of service (see charts above).

2. Employees with more than 20 years of credited service may accrue up to 300 hours.

3. Hours accrued in excess of the maximum allowed become void at the end of each pay 
period.

a. Exceptions may be granted at the request of the Department Director, 
concurrence of the HR Director, and approval of the Town Manager.

E. Use of Annual Leave

1. Employees shall submit an annual leave request to their immediate supervisor in 
accordance with department policy.  Requests will be reviewed by their supervisor and/or 
Department Head.  Approval is based on a number of factors, including Department need 
and staffing requirements.

2. Department Heads may require an employee to postpone or change their scheduled 
annual leave for good cause relating to Town services.

3. Accruals earned at the end of the current pay period are not available for use until the 
following pay period.

4. Annual leave should not normally be charged against Exempt employees for partial day 
absences.

5. Annual leave shall not be charged for Town holidays.

F. Annual Leave at Employment Termination

1. Employees will be paid in a lump sum for all unused accrued annual leave as of the 
effective date of termination.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 3 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

2. Deceased employees will have their lump sum paid to their estate.

10.2 SICK LEAVE

A. Eligibility

1. All Town employees, except for temporary and part-time non-benefit eligible employees 
are eligible to accrue sick leave at the following rates:

Full-time 3.6923 per pay period
Part-time / Benefit Eligible 1.8462 per pay period

B. Accrual of Sick Leave

1. Eligible employees start accruing sick leave from their date of hire.

2. Part-time benefit eligible employees accrue sick leave at half the rate of full-time 
employees.

3. Employees who are on any unpaid leave of absence (except for FMLA or Military leave) 
for an entire pay period (80 hours) will not accrue sick leave.

4. Sick leave will accrue without limit.

C. Use of Sick Leave

1. Sick Leave is offered as a benefit to help minimize employee financial hardship as the 
result of illnesses or medical needs.  Sick leave is not to be used as additional paid annual 
leave or for discretionary purposes.  

2. Accruals earned at the end of the current pay period are not available for use until the 
following pay period.

3. Eligible employees may be permitted to use sick leave for the following reasons:

a. Personal illness or injury, appointments for surgical, medical, dental, or optical 
appointments (including regular and preventative care appointments), and the 
travel time to and from the physician’s office,

b. Medical conditions that prevent the employee from performing assigned tasks, 
and/or

c. Immediate family member’s (see Policy 2 for definition) illness or injury, and 
their surgical, medical, dental or optical appointments (including regular and 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 4 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

preventative care appointments) and related travel time to and from the 
physician’s office.

4. Sick leave will not be charged against an employee’s accrued balance for a Town 
holiday.

5. An employee using annual leave who becomes ill may, upon verification of illness and 
supervisor approval, charge the illness-related time-off to accumulated sick leave.

D. Sick Leave Requests

1. Sick leave may be taken with approval from the supervisor and/or Department Head.  
a. Upon return to work, the employee will submit a leave request to their supervisor 

for the missed time.  
b. All sick leave requested in conjunction with certified Family and Medical Leave 

Act leave will be approved.

2. For unplanned absences, employees will notify their supervisor prior to the start of their 
shift or as soon as possible that they will be absent from work and the reason for their 
absence.  
a. If the absence is going to be for multiple days or for an unknown duration, the 

employee is required to keep their supervisor informed of their anticipated return 
to work date.  

b. The employee or supervisor will notify Human Resources (HR) of the extended 
absence to determine FMLA and/or ADA eligibility.

3. For planned absences, employees will submit a leave request form as soon as the 
employee becomes aware of the need for the planned absence.
a. For prolonged planned absences, employees should contact HR to determine if 

the leave qualifies for FMLA.

4. Requests for sick leave immediately prior to an employee’s separation from employment, 
even if for retirement, may not be granted without medical verification.  

E. Medical Verification

1. If an employee uses sick leave for three (3) or more consecutive working days, the 
Department Head or designee may require the employee to submit a medical verification 
statement from a health care provider verifying the need for the sick leave absence.  A 
medical diagnosis is not required and should not be requested by the supervisor.  

2. If an employee exhibits an unusual pattern of sick leave absences, the Department Head 
may require the employee to submit a medical verification statement.

3. If the employee fails to provide the medical verification statement or if the statement is 
inadequate (as determined by both the Department Head and HR Director) the absence 
may be charged to another category of leave or considered leave without pay.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 5 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

4. All medical verification statements will be forwarded to the HR Department and will be 
placed in the employee’s Human Resources medical file.

F. Return to Work

1. Employees absent from work for more than five (5) consecutive working days or whose 
absence was the result of an on the job injury will submit a statement from a health care 
provider releasing them back to work. A medical diagnosis is not required and should not 
be requested by the supervisor.

2. If the Department Head, Town Manager or Risk Manager, in consultation with the HR
Director, believes that an employee’s return to work is a health or safety issue to the 
employee and/or their co-workers, the employee will submit a medical release from a 
health care provider.

3. All physician statements will be forwarded to the HR Department and will only be placed 
in the employee’s medical file.

4. If the employee is released to return to work with restrictions, the department must follow 
the Administrative Directive on Transitional/Light Duty.

G. Transfer of Unused Sick Leave

1. On the first day of the pay period following July 1st sick leave may be transferred to 
annual leave as follows:
a. Any unused portion of the first 56 hours of sick leave accrued in the previous 

fiscal year in excess of 480 hours will be transferred automatically.
b. The transfer may not cause the employee to have an annual leave balance greater 

than their maximum accrual.
c. Any employee may request prior to July 1st that their sick leave not be 

transferred.
d. Any sick leave not transferred will remain as sick leave.    

H. Payment of Sick Leave Upon termination from Town employment:

1. One-half (1/2) of an employee’s accrued sick leave beyond 480 hours will be paid to the 
employee upon separation from employment.

2. Employees terminated for cause will not receive any payout for unused sick leave.

3. In the event of an employee’s death, one-half (1/2) of the sick leave balance in excess of 
the 480 hours shall be paid to the estate of the former employee.

10.3 ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 6 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

A. Up to ten (10) days of leave with pay may be granted to Town employees by the Town Manager.  
More extended periods with pay require the approval of the Town Council.  Examples of 
situations where leave with pay might be granted include, but are not necessarily limited to the 
following:

1. Administrative leave for exempt employees due to extenuating conditions of 
employment.

2. Investigatory leave which is non-punitive in nature.

B. In considering whether leave with pay will be granted, the Town Manager shall use the following 
criteria:

1. The amount of paid and unpaid leave already taken by the employee in the year 
preceding the request for paid leave.

2. The employee’s overall attendance.

3. The employee’s previous performance ratings.

4. The length of the employee’s tenure with the Town.

5. The amount of other paid leave time which is available to the employee, including 
consideration of any accrued compensatory time, annual leave or sick leave which may 
be available.

6. The employee’s previous administrative leave requests.

10.4 LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

A. The Town Manager may grant an employee a leave of absence without pay in accordance with 
the following conditions.  

1. In no event will a leave of absence without pay be granted for a period of more than one 
year.  

2. Employees who have not returned from any leave of absence after one year will be 
deemed to have voluntarily resigned from the Town of Oro Valley.

3. Prior to the completion of twelve (12) calendar months of continuous service with the 
Town such leave will only be granted for significant and extenuating circumstances.  
Total unpaid leave at this level will generally not exceed two weeks.

4. Subsequent to the completion of one (1) year of continuous service, and prior to the 
completion of five (5) calendar years of service, an employee may be granted up to sixty 
(60) calendar days of leave of absence without pay.  



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 7 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

a. Approval from the HR Director, Department Head and the Town Manager must 
be obtained.

5. After the completion of five (5) calendar years of continuous service, an employee may
be granted up to one (1) year of leave of absence without pay with the approval from the 
HR Director, Department Head and the Town Manager.

6. Employees may combine paid leave with unpaid leave of absence.  However, the use of 
unpaid leave, accrued annual leave and accrued compensatory time off, or any 
combination thereof, shall be subject to approval from the HR Director, Department Head 
and Town Manager.

7. Time on leave of absence without pay shall not be credited as continuous service, and 
shall not be counted toward eligibility for additional leave of absence time or for seniority 
or other benefits.

8. During an approved unpaid leave of absence, the employee may continue their coverage 
for health, dental, or disability plans by continuing to pay full costs of the program 
including any portions normally paid by the Town.

9. No leave of absence without pay shall be granted without the written request of the 
employee, setting forth the reason and expected duration of the leave.  Upon the 
expiration of an approved leave the employee shall be reinstated to a like or similar 
position as that held at the time leave was granted, if available and if the employee 
returns to work.

10. Failure on the part of an employee on leave to report upon the expiration of the leave 
shall be voluntary resignation from employment.

10.5 UNAUTHORIZED LEAVE

A. An employee who is absent without authorization shall:

1. Be designated as “Absent Without Leave”.

2. For payroll purposes, be recorded as leave without pay for the period of such absence.

3. Be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

B. An employee who is absent without authorization for three (3) consecutive working days will be 
considered as having abandoned his/her job and will be terminated without grievance rights.

10.6 OBSERVED HOLIDAYS



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 8 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

A. The holidays observed by the Town are:

New Year’s Eve day Memorial day Thanksgiving day Floating Holiday
(Birthday)New Year’s day Independence day Day after Thanksgiving

Civil Rights/MLK day Labor day Christmas Eve day
President’s day Veteran’s day Christmas day

B. Holiday Pay

1. Full time employees receive holiday pay at their normal rate of pay for their regular 
scheduled shift (whether 8 or 10 hours) in lieu of hours worked. 

2. Part-time benefit eligible employees shall receive holiday pay based upon a proration of 
their budgeted working hours. 
a. For example, a part-time benefit eligible employee budgeted to work twenty (20) 

hours per week would be eligible for four (4) hours of holiday pay on observed 
holidays. 

3. Employees whose regularly scheduled day-off falls on an observed Town holiday may
receive a different day off during that same week as their holiday unless required to work.

C. Floating Holiday (Birthday)

1. The employee’s floating holiday must be taken during the month in which the 
employee’s actual birthday occurs. 

2. Employees who fail to take the floating holiday during their birth month, forfeit their 
floating holiday for that year.  

3. An employee may not work on the floating holiday for additional compensation.

D. Holidays Worked

If an eligible employee is required to work on an observed holiday, the employee will receive the 
employee’s normal rate of pay for their usual shift, plus holiday pay, plus regular overtime pay if 
required for any hours over 40 in that workweek.

E. Holidays that fall on Saturday or Sunday

1. When an observed holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed.

2. When an observed holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be observed.

3. When Christmas and New Year’s Day are observed on a Friday, Christmas Eve day and 
New Year’s Eve day will be observed on the preceding Thursday.  When Christmas Eve 
day and New Year’s Eve day fall on a Sunday, Christmas Eve day and New Year’s Eve 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 9 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

day will be observed on Monday and Christmas Day and New Year’s day will be 
observed on the following Tuesday.

10.7 WORKER’S COMPENSATION

A. Purpose

1. Under Arizona law, it is mandatory for employers to secure workers’ compensation 
insurance for their employees. Workers’ compensation is a “no fault” system in which an 
injured or ill employee is entitled to receive benefits for a job-related injury or illness, no 
matter who caused the injury or illness. If an illness or injury is job-related, then the 
injured employee is eligible to receive medical benefits and may receive temporary 
compensation, if eligibility requirements are met. In some cases, a claimant may also 
receive permanent compensation benefits, job retraining, and supportive medical care. 

2. The provisions of this policy are not intended to conflict with or supersede state law, nor 
should they be interpreted or construed to do so. If any provision of this policy conflicts 
with state law, state law shall control.

B. Reporting Requirement

1. Employees will immediately report any job related accident, illness, or injury to his or her 
immediate supervisor. 

2. If the employee’s direct supervisor is not available, the employee shall report the 
accident, injury or occupational illness to the employee’s Department Head.  

3. The employee’s Department Head, supervisor, or designee will ensure that the accident, 
injury or illness is reported to HR no later than the next work day.

4. Failure to report the accident, injury or illness within 24 hours may result in the denial of 
a Worker’s Compensation claim.

5. Employees will follow the reporting procedures established by HR/Risk Management, to 
include completing and submitting any required forms.

C. Determination of Compensability 

1. The Town’s workers’ compensation carrier will determine compensability for job related 
injuries and illnesses.

D. Medical Claims



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 10 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

1. Pursuant to state law, if an employee is off work due to a job-related injury or illness 
determined to be compensable, the workers’ compensation carrier will pay all of the 
employee’s medical expenses associated with the job related injury or illness.

2. If an employee’s on the job injury or illness falls within the Family and Medical Leave 
definition for serious medical condition, the employee shall also be placed on Family and 
Medical Leave status.  During such time, the employee will be afforded the same 
protections and benefits as described in section 10.12 of this policy.

E. Benefits

1. All benefits under this plan will be provided while the employee meets all eligibility 
criteria, for a period of six (6) months from the date the employee receives first payment 
of workers’ compensation pursuant to A.R.S. 23-1021, 38-961 and related statutes.

2. Payment of the employee’s regular net salary.

3. Accrued leave balances will be maintained at pre-injury level, including sick, vacation, 
and comp time.

4. Continued payment of the employer’s portion of premium for health care benefits, 
including medical, dental, and vision benefits.  Employees remain responsible for paying 
their portion of any premium.

5. Retirement 
a. Public Safety Employees (members of PSPRS and CORP)

i. The Town will pay both the Employers and Employee’s contribution to 
the public safety retirement system.

ii. The employee will continue to accrue credit for service in the public 
safety retirement plan.

b. Members of ASRS
i. Compensation received under the workman’s compensation program is 

not eligible for credited service.
ii. Neither the employee nor the Town will contribute retirement 

contributions while the employee is on workman’s compensation.

6. To the extent the employee is eligible for and receives salary or benefit changes while 
eligible and receiving benefits under this section, the benefits under this section will be 
adjusted accordingly.
a. For example, if all employees are provided automatic salary adjustment as part of 

an annual process, the employee will receive benefits under this plan based on 
his/her new adjusted salary as he/she would if not injured.  

b. Such adjustments may or may not benefit the employee.

7. Employees receiving benefits under this section will not accrue additional sick or annual 
leave.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 11 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

F. Return to Work

1. It is the philosophy of the Town to return injured or ill employees to employment for the 
Town as soon as they are physically and/or mentally capable of performing functions for 
the Town and are released to return to work by the designated physician.

2. When an employee with a job-related injury or illness returns to work, either in his or her 
normal assignment or in an alternative work assignment (transitional/light duty), the 
employee will not be charged sick leave or any other type of leave for absences due to 
medical appointments, including physical therapy, for the job-related injury or illness. 

3. Any employee who has been absent due to a work-related illness or injury may be 
required to undergo a Return to Work examination or a Fitness for Duty examination 
through the Town designated physician.

4. Employees released to work with restrictions will be placed on light duty when light duty 
is available.  See the Town Transitional/Light Duty administrative directive for further 
details.

5. If the employee is released to work with restrictions, the Town will comply with the 
Federal Americans with Disabilities Act.

6. In the event that an employee is approved for and offered light duty assignment and 
chooses not to accept the assignment, s/he shall be denied continuation of Worker’s 
Compensation benefits, and may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination.

10.8 MILITARY LEAVE

A. Leaves of absence for military service shall be granted in accordance with the provisions of 
applicable State and Federal laws.  Pursuant to State law, the Town of Oro Valley will provide 
employees in the military reserves with thirty (30) days of paid military leave every two years.

B. Pursuant to applicable Federal and State laws, employees requesting a leave of absence for 
military service must submit copies of valid orders to the HR Department.

C. At their option, employees of the Town of Oro Valley who have been called to active duty by 
Presidential Order will be eligible to receive supplemental pay for a period of up to one (1) year 
while under active Military Orders. 

D. The employee under active Military Order will not be required to use accrued annual pay or 
compensatory time off prior to receiving supplemental pay.

E. The employee on active Military Order is eligible to receive their normal pay minus all applicable 
deductions for benefits, taxes, etc.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 12 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

1. In order to eliminate tax consequences for the employee on active Military Order, the 
Town will calculate the difference between their regular pay and their military pay, and 
pay the difference to the employee.

F. During periods of military leave, employees of the Town of Oro Valley who are serving on active 
duty as members of the Military Reserves will be allowed to continue to maintain their employee 
benefits with the Town by continuing to make the required employee contributions for each of the 
plans for which the employee has enrolled prior to the start of their military service leave.

G. Retirement contributions for employees called to active military service.  .  

1. Employees who are members of the Arizona Retirement System
a. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statute 38-745, members of A.S.R.S who 

are on paid leave will continue to pay the employee’s portion of their retirement 
contribution while the Town continues to pay the employer’s portion.

b. If the employee is on unpaid leave, the Town will pay both the employee’s and 
employer’s portion of the required contribution to ASRS once the employee 
return’s to Town employment and meets eligibility requirements

2. Employees who are members of the PSPRS or CORP
a. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statute 38-858, the Town will make both 

member and employer contributions for you (up to 48 months) in a lump sum 
upon your return if:
i. You are a member of the Arizona National Guard or a reserve in any 

branch of the military, or
ii. You volunteer into active duty or are called into active duty as a result of 

a Presidential call-up, and
iii. You are honorably separated from active duty and return to Town 

employment within 90 days after separation.

H. The Town will follow the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act when 
determining return and reemployment rights upon release from active Military Order.

10.9 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

A. Upon the death of an immediate family member, benefit eligible employees who are on active 
status (i.e., not on another form of leave of absence) are eligible to receive five (5) working days 
of paid leave (not charged to sick leave or annual leave).  

1. For bereavement involving other family members or friends, the employee may request 
paid annual leave or unpaid leave.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 13 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

2. Bereavement leave must be approved by the department head, or designee.

10.10 JURY DUTY LEAVE

A. All employees of the Town who are called or required to serve as a juror shall be excused for 
their absence from work and receive their normal pay for such absence.  In return for receiving 
regular pay, the employee shall remit any monies received for the jury duty (except for travel 
pay) directly to the Town.  

10.11 SUBPOENA LEAVE / WITNESS LEAVE

A. All employees of the Town required to appear in court as a witness in their official capacity shall 
be excused from their duties with the Town and shall receive pay and all other benefits during the 
period of such service.  

1. Under such circumstances, the employee shall refund the witness fee, if any, to the Town.  

B. Employees subpoenaed for matters not related to Town business shall not be paid for their 
absence unless accrued, approved annual leave or accrued compensatory time is used.  

1. Employees may use unpaid leave for such absences with appropriate approvals.

10.12 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

A. The Federal Family and Medical Leave Act entitles eligible employees to take unpaid, job-
protected leave for specified family and medical reasons with continuation of group health 
insurance coverage.

B. Eligibility

1. Must be a Town of Oro Valley employee.

2. Must have worked for Oro Valley for at least twelve (12) months, whether or not such 
time is continuous, and not had a continuous break in service of more than seven (7) 
years. 

3. Must have worked a minimum of 1,250 hours during the 12-month period immediately 
preceding the commencement of leave.  Qualifying hours do not include annual, sick, 
bereavement, holiday, unpaid leave, etc. but overtime and holidays worked and military 
leave do qualify.

C. Qualifying Events



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 14 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

1. The employee’s own serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform 
one or more of the essential functions of his or her job.

2. The birth of a child and to care for the newborn child within one year of birth.

3. The placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care and to care for the 
newly placed child within one year of placement.

4. To care for the employee’s spouse, child, parent or en loco parentis who has a serious 
health condition.

5. A military qualifying exigency while the employee's spouse, son, daughter, or parent (the 
"military member") is on covered active duty or has been notified of an impending call or 
order to covered active duty status.

6. To care for a covered service member or qualifying veteran with a serious injury or 
illness if the eligible employee is the service member’s spouse, son, daughter, parent, or 
next of kin (military caregiver leave).

D. Amount of Leave

1. Qualifying full-time employees may be eligible for up to a total of 12 weeks of unpaid 
family leave during the applicable 12 month period. 

2. For part-time eligible employees and those who work variable hours, the Family Medical 
Leave entitlement is calculated on a pro-rata basis.  A weekly average of hours worked 
over the 12 weeks prior to the beginning of the leave should be used for calculating the 
employee’s normal workweek.

3. A husband and wife who are both employed by the Town are permitted to take only a 
combined total of 12 weeks of leave during the 12 rolling calendar month period if they 
are taking leave for the birth or adoption of a child.

4. Except for leave to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness, the 
Town uses a rolling 12-month period to calculate FMLA eligibility.  Each time an 
employee uses FMLA leave, the remaining leave entitlement is the balance of the 12 
weeks that has not been used during the immediately preceding 12 months.

5. For leave to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness, the 
benefit provides for up to 26 weeks of leave  and the “single 12-month period” begins on 
the first day the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care for the covered service 
member and ends 12 months after that date.  

E. Serious Health Condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that 
involves:

1. Impatient care or continuing treatment by a health care provider.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 15 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

2. Continuing treatment involves a period of incapacity:
a. Of more than three (3) consecutive calendar days and any subsequent treatment 

that also involves treatment at least two or more times by a health care provider;
b. Due to pregnancy, or prenatal care;
c. Due to a chronic serious health condition requiring periodic treatment by a health 

care provider over an extended period of time and may cause episodic rather than 
a continuing period of incapacity (e.g., asthma, diabetes, epilepsy);

d. Permanent or long-term incapacity due to a condition for which treatment may 
not be effective; or 

e. Any period of absence to receive multiple treatments by a health care provider 
either for restorative surgery after an accident or injury or for a condition such as 
cancer that would likely result in a period of incapacity of more than three (3) 
consecutive calendar days without medical treatment.  Treatment would not 
include routine physical examinations.

F. Application of Accrued Paid Leave

1. Accrued paid annual and sick leave will be applied when FMLA leave is taken for any 
reason or any length of time.

2. When an employee has used all their sick or annual paid leave, the employee will be 
placed on unpaid leave for any part of the 12 week period remaining.

G. Intermittent Leave

1. When placed on official FMLA status, an employee may take leave intermittently (a few 
days or a few hours at a time), or on a reduced leave schedule.  An employee should 
make reasonable efforts to schedule their absences so as not to unduly disrupt work 
operations.

2. When it is necessary for the employee to take FMLA intermittently or on a reduced leave 
schedule, the employee may be required to transfer temporarily to a position with 
equivalent pay and benefits that better accommodates recurring periods of leave when the 
leave is planned based on scheduled medical treatment.
a. An employee may take leave intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule for 

birth or placement for adoption or foster care of a child at the discretion of the 
Department Head.

H. Notice Requirement

1. An employee is required to give thirty (30) calendar days’ notice in the event of a 
foreseeable leave.  

2. In unexpected or unforeseeable situations, an employee should provide as much notice as 
is practicable.  Verbal or written notice within one or two working days of when the need 
for family medical leave becomes known is usually sufficient. 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 16 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

3. If the employee does not notify the department within five (5) working days of returning 
to work that the absence was for an FMLA reason, the employee cannot later claim that 
the absence was for an FMLA reason.

4. A request for Family Medical Leave should be made to the HR Department, either by the 
employee, or their supervisor.    

5. Eligible employees on Worker’s Compensation should also be evaluated for FMLA 
leave. However, employees who are released to work on transitional/light duty will not 
have the modified duty hours counted toward FML leave hours.

I. Medical Certification

1. Medical certification must be provided by the employee within fifteen (15) calendar days 
after requested.  The certification shall include the condition being treated, the date the 
serious health condition commenced, and the health care provider’s best medical 
judgment concerning the probable duration of the condition.  

2. For incremental use of leave the certification must indicate medical necessity for a 
reduced work schedule.

3. The Town reserves the right to request additional medical opinions in accordance with 
the FMLA.

J. Effect on Benefits

1. Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of the applicable group health insurance 
plans, the Town shall maintain group health insurance coverage, including family 
coverage, for an employee on FMLA leave on the same terms as if the employee 
continued to work.

2. An employee, who is on paid FMLA leave via the use of accrued leave, shall continue to 
pay his or her share of the insurance premium, if any, through payroll deductions.

3. An employee who is on unpaid FMLA leave shall make arrangements with the HR and 
Finance Departments to make payments for his or her share of the insurance premium, if 
any.  If payment is more than thirty (30) calendar days overdue, coverage will be 
dropped, after fifteen (15) calendar days written notice is provided to the employee.  In 
this situation, COBRA will be offered.

4. The Town’s obligation to maintain health benefits under this section stops if and when 
the employee informs the Town of intent not to return to work at the end of the leave 
period or if the employee fails to return to work when the FMLA leave entitlement is 
exhausted.  In some circumstances, the Town may recover premiums it paid to maintain 
health insurance coverage for an employee who fails to return to work from FMLA leave.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 17 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

5. The Town will not maintain other supplemental benefits while an employee is on FMLA 
leave.  To maintain supplemental benefits, the employee must make payment 
arrangements with the HR and Finance Departments.

6. Benefit accumulation, such as annual, sick leave or holiday benefits, will be suspended 
during any full pay period (80 hours) of unpaid leave portion of the FMLA leave period 
and will resume upon return to active employment. Use of FMLA leave is not considered 
a break in service when determining eligibility for vesting or for participation in a 
benefit.

K. Return to Work

1. An employee on FMLA leave shall provide the HR Department with at least two (2) 
working days’ advance notice of the date the employee intends to return to work.

2. An employee on FMLA leave for the employee’s own serious health condition shall 
provide a written release from a health care provider indicating that the employee may 
resume the full essential functions of his or her position prior to or immediately upon 
returning to work.

3. Upon return from FMLA leave, the employee shall be restored to the employee’s original 
position, or to an equivalent position with equivalent pay, benefits and other terms and 
conditions of employment.

4. If the FMLA leave period is insufficient and the employee is unable to fully perform the 
essential functions of his or her position at the conclusion of the FMLA leave period, the 
employee may request additional time off in accordance with the other leave of absence 
provisions herein.

5. If an employee is released to work with restrictions, the employee may become eligible 
for light duty.  In some circumstances, it will become necessary to begin an interactive 
accommodation process in accordance with the Americans for Disabilities Act.

6. The Town may require updated medical certifications to support the need for the 
additional leave.  

7. If the employee is unable to return after this time, the Town may initiate separation of 
employment.

L. Retaliation

1. The Town prohibits retaliation toward employees who utilize FMLA leave. 

10-13 LEAVE DONATIONS



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 18 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

A. Employees are encouraged to manage their paid time off to allow for major life events.  In the 
event that, even with good leave management, an employee exhausts all his/her paid time off, the 
Town allows all employees to donate up to forty (40) hours of annual leave every twelve months, 
while maintaining a minimum of eighty (80) annual leave hours.  Employees with sick leave 
balances in excess of 480 hours may donate up to eighty (80) hours of sick leave every twelve 
months.

B. Eligibility to receive donated leave hours

1. Must be on an approved Family Medical Leave Act, and

2. Must have exhausted all forms of paid time off, including sick leave, compensatory time 
and annual leave time; and 

3. Must be eligible to earn and use donated hours in order to accept contributions.

C. Requesting Donated Leave Time

1. To request donated leave time the requesting employee must complete a Request for 
Donation form and submit it to the HR Department.  In the event the employee is unable 
to complete the form, the employee’s supervisor may complete and submit the form.  
Upon receipt of the approved Request for Donation form, the HR Department will send 
an email to all Town employees informing them of the employee’s need, and requesting 
donated hours.
a. An employee may receive the lesser of 480 donated hours or the amount of leave 

time needed to bring the employee to the end of the employee’s Family Medical 
Leave Act time.  The paid leave hours the employee had accrued at the time they 
went on leave, and the donated leave hours cannot continue past the total of 480 
hours allowed by the Family and Medical Leave Act.

b. Employees using donated time do not accrue annual and/or sick leave hours.  

c. An employee may not donate leave if that employee has less than a total of 
eighty (80) hours of annual leave accrued after the donated time is deducted from 
their annual leave balance. 

d. An employee may not donate sick leave hours if that employee has less than 480 
sick leave hours.  An employee with over 480 sick leave hours may donate up to 
eighty (80) hours of sick leave.

e. Hours in an employee’s administrative leave or compensatory time balance may 
not be transferred to another employee for any reason.

f. Employees who return to work on full-time status and have remaining donated 
leave hours will not be able to keep the hours in their own sick leave or annual 
leave account.  The remaining donated hours will be returned on a pro-rated basis 
to the employee who donated the time.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 19 of 19

LEAVES Effective Date:

g. All donations of leave time are treated as confidential and are not shared with the 
receiving employee.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 1 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

SECTION 1. Attendance:  Employees are expected to maintain acceptable attendance levels in accordance with 
the policies regarding hours of work, holidays and leaves.  All department heads (or designee) shall ensure that 
official time sheets, submitted either online or paper (as required), are utilized.

It is the policy of the Town that the standard work week shall consist of 40 hours as determined by the individual 
departments with the approval of the Town Manager.

Flexible work schedules may be allowed if approved by the Department Head and the Town Manager (or designee).  
It is the responsibility of the supervisor in conjunction with his/her department head to determine work schedules 
that meet the needs of the department, while giving consideration to employee preferences when possible. Alternate 
schedules must ensure that the Town’s ability to serve our customers is not negatively impacted in any way.

Exempt Employees – Employees classified under these policies and designated as exempt employees pursuant to the 
Fair Labor Standards Act shall generally not be subject to deductions from pay or paid leave including annual leave 
for absences less than one complete work day. 

SECTION 2. Annual Leave:  Requests for Annual leave shall be submitted to the immediate supervisor prior to 
use of the leave.  In turn, Supervisors shall obtain additional approvals as required. Please check with your 
supervisor about the required form to use in your department to request time off. Timing of the leave shall be at the 
approval of the Department Head (or designee).  All employees shall be entitled to annual leave with pay except for 
the following:

A. Employees who have completed less than 90-days of service are not eligible to take annual leave, however 
annual leave is accrued during that period. In certain circumstances unpaid leave may be authorized for 
employees who have completed less than 90-days of service as provided for in section five of this policy.

B. Employees who work on a provisional or volunteer basis and all employees who work less than 1040 hours 
a year.

C. All part-time employees who have a regular work schedule budgeted at less than twenty (20) hours per 
week.

D. An employee will not be paid more annual leave time than they have accrued.

If work demands do not permit employees to use all of their annual leave in a particular fiscal year, such annual 
leave shall be carried over.  The amount carried over must be used in the next fiscal year.  Normally an employee 
may not accrue more annual leave than would be earned in 18 months of service.  However, an employee with at 
least 20 years of service may accrue up to 300 hours of annual leave.  In the event one or more municipal holidays 
fall within an annual leave, such holidays shall not be charged as annual leave.

Employees who terminate employment shall be paid in a lump sum for all unused accrued annual leave as of the 
effective date of termination. In the event the employee terminates employment due to becoming deceased, this 
lump sum payment is payable to the estate of the former employee.

10.1 ANNUAL LEAVE

A. ELIGIBILITY

1. ALL TOWN EMPLOYEES, EXCEPT FOR TEMPORARY AND PART-TIME, 
NON-BENEFITED EMPLOYEES (SEE DEFINITION IN POLICY 2) ARE 
ELIGIBLE TO ACCRUE ANNUAL LEAVE.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 2 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

2. ALL TOWN EMPLOYEES ELIGIBLE TO ACCRUE ANNUAL LEAVE ARE 
ELIGIBLE TO USE THEIR ACCRUED ANNUAL LEAVE AFTER NINETY (90) 
CALENDAR DAYS OF EMPLOYMENT.

The annual leave accrual policy is as follows:

Full-time employees with the exception of Department Heads and exempt employees, accrue annual leave at a rate 
specified below, which depends on their length of employment with the Town and the number of hours in their 
regular work week.  Annual leave will be accrued on a prorated basis per pay period using the formulas noted.

Years Scheduled Hours Per Accrued Hours Annual Equivalent 
Employed Regular Work Week Per Pay Period Accrued

1 – 5 40 3.6923 96
6 – 10 40     5.2308 136
11 & over 40 6.7693 176

In order for the Town of Oro Valley to be able to attract qualified candidates during recruiting, and in response to 
the nature of their jobs, exempt employees will accrue annual leave at a rate of 5.2308 hours per pay period (136 
hours annually) beginning with their first day of employment, this will increase to 6.7693 hours per pay period at 6 
years of service. Department Heads will accrue annual leave at a rate of 6.7693 hours per pay period (176 hours 
annually) beginning with their first day of employment.

For purposes of determining “year employed,” the year noted begins on the day after the preceding anniversary.  
(For example, you are assumed to be in your sixth “year employed” on the day after your fifth anniversary (and 
therefore earning at the higher accrual rate beginning with that date).

Part-time employees whose normal work week is budgeted at twenty (20) hours or more, but less than 32 hours, 
shall accrue annual leave pay at half the rate of full time employees.
B. ACCRUAL OF ANNUAL LEAVE

1. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES START ACCRUING ANNUAL LEAVE FROM THEIR 
DATE OF HIRE.

2. PART-TIME BENEFIT ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES ACCRUE ANNUAL LEAVE 
AT HALF THE RATE OF FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES.

3. EMPLOYEES WHO ARE ON ANY UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE (EXCEPT 
FOR FMLA OR MILITARY LEAVE) FOR AN ENTIRE PAY PERIOD (80 
HOURS) WILL NOT ACCRUE ANNUAL LEAVE.

4. ANNUAL LEAVE ACCRUAL IS CUMULATIVE, UP TO THE MAXIMUM 
NUMBER OF HOURS PERMITTED BY THIS POLICY.

C. ANNUAL LEAVE ACCRUAL RATES



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 3 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

1. ACCRUAL RATES SHALL BE AT THE RATE SPECIFIED BELOW AND ARE 
BASED ON YEARS OF SERVICE AND FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS ACT 
(EXEMPT OR NON-EXEMPT) STATUS:

a. FULL-TIME / NON-EXEMPT RATE:
YEARS 

OF 
SERVICE

HOURS PER 
PAY 

PERIOD

APPROXIMAT
E HOURS PER 

YEAR 

MAXIMUM 
HOURS TO BE 

ACCRUED
1 – 5 3.6923 96 144

6 – 10 5.2308 136 204
11 - 20 6.7692 176 264
20 & 

OVER
6.7692 176 300

b. FULL-TIME / EXEMPT RATE:
YEARS 

OF 
SERVICE

HOURS PER 
PAY 

PERIOD

APPROXIMATE 
HOURS PER 

YEAR

MAXIMUM 
HOURS TO BE 

ACCRUED
1 – 5 5.2308 136 204

6 – 20 6.7692 176 264
20 & 

OVER
6.7692 176 300

c. FULL-TIME / DEPARTMENT HEADS
YEARS 

OF 
SERVICE

HOURS 
PER PAY 
PERIOD

APPROXIMATE 
HOURS PER 

YEAR

MAXIMUM 
HOURS TO BE 

ACCRUED
UPON 
HIRE

6.7692 176 264

20 & 
OVER

6.7692 176 300

2. FOR THE PURPOSE OF DETERMINING LENGTH OF SERVICE, THE YEAR 
NOTED BEGINS ON THE DAY AFTER THE PRECEDING ANNIVERSARY.  
CHANGES IN ACCRUAL RATES ARE EFFECTIVE IN THE FOLLOWING 
PAY PERIOD.

D. MAXIMUM NUMBER OF ACCRUED ANNUAL LEAVE HOURS

1. AN EMPLOYEE’S ANNUAL LEAVE BALANCE SHALL NOT EXCEED THE 
NUMBER OF HOURS THEY WOULD ACCRUE IN 18 MONTHS OF SERVICE 
(SEE CHARTS ABOVE).



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 4 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

2. EMPLOYEES WITH MORE THAN 20 YEARS OF CREDITED SERVICE MAY
ACCRUE UP TO 300 HOURS.

3. HOURS ACCRUED IN EXCESS OF THE MAXIMUM ALLOWED BECOME 
VOID AT THE END OF EACH PAY PERIOD.

a. EXCEPTIONS MAY BE GRANTED AT THE REQUEST OF THE 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR, CONCURRENCE OF THE HR 
DIRECTOR, AND APPROVAL OF THE TOWN MANAGER.

E. USE OF ANNUAL LEAVE

1. EMPLOYEES SHALL SUBMIT AN ANNUAL LEAVE REQUEST TO THEIR 
IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH DEPARTMENT 
POLICY.  REQUESTS WILL BE REVIEWED BY THEIR SUPERVISOR 
AND/OR DEPARTMENT HEAD.  APPROVAL IS BASED ON A NUMBER OF 
FACTORS, INCLUDING DEPARTMENT NEED AND STAFFING 
REQUIREMENTS.

2. DEPARTMENT HEADS MAY REQUIRE AN EMPLOYEE TO POSTPONE OR 
CHANGE THEIR SCHEDULED ANNUAL LEAVE FOR GOOD CAUSE 
RELATING TO TOWN SERVICES.

3. ACCRUALS EARNED AT THE END OF THE CURRENT PAY PERIOD ARE 
NOT AVAILABLE FOR USE UNTIL THE FOLLOWING PAY PERIOD.

4. ANNUAL LEAVE SHOULD NOT NORMALLY BE CHARGED AGAINST 
EXEMPT EMPLOYEES FOR PARTIAL DAY ABSENCES.

5. ANNUAL LEAVE SHALL NOT BE CHARGED FOR TOWN HOLIDAYS.

F. ANNUAL LEAVE AT EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION

1. EMPLOYEES WILL BE PAID IN A LUMP SUM FOR ALL UNUSED ACCRUED 
ANNUAL LEAVE AS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF TERMINATION.

2. DECEASED EMPLOYEES WILL HAVE THEIR LUMP SUM PAID TO THEIR 
ESTATE.

SECTION 3. Personal and Immediate Family Sick Leave:  Paid sick leave shall be accrued by all eligible 
employees of the Town.  Sick leave is offered as a benefit to help minimize employee financial hardship as the result 
of legitimate illnesses or medical needs.  Sick leave is not intended to be used as additional annual leave or for 
discretionary purposes.

Employees who become ill, are injured or require medical treatment are entitled to take sick leave with full pay for 
up to the total number of sick days available to that employee. Employees may use sick leave to care for an ill 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 5 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

family member who is part of the immediate family, living in the same household with the employee, or when the 
absence qualifies under the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act (see FMLA Section 11).

Full-time employees accumulate sick leave at the rate of 3.6923 hours per pay period (equivalent to one 8-hour day 
per month).  Part-time employees whose normal week is budgeted at twenty (20) hours or more, but less than 32 
hours per week, shall accrue sick leave at half the rate of full-time employees.  Part-time employees whose normal 
work week is budgeted at less than twenty (20) hours do not accrue sick leave.

Unused sick leave shall be allowed to be carried forward from year to year.  Once an employee has exceeded 480 
hours of accrued sick leave, one-half (1/2) of the sick leave balance in excess of the 480 hours shall be paid to the 
employee upon separation from employment, except that employees terminated for cause will not receive any 
payout for unused sick leave. In the event an employee is terminated due to becoming deceased, one-half (1/2) of the 
sick leave balance in excess of the 480 hours shall be paid to the estate of the former employee.

Annually, as of the first day of the pay period following July 1, any unused portion of the first seven days (56 hours) 
of sick leave accrued in excess of a total of 480 hours since July 1 of the preceding fiscal year will be transferred to 
annual leave.  The transfer will occur automatically unless the employee requests in writing to the human resources 
department that the sick leave not be transferred.  (Only that portion of the first 56 hours of unused sick leave that is 
in excess of the 480 hour total may be transferred.)  In addition, in no situation shall an employee be allowed to 
accrue more annual leave than they can accrue in an 18 month period (see Section 2).  Should an employee already 
have an 18 month accrual of annual leave, all unused sick leave will simply continue to accrue. Introductory 
employees may use accrued sick leave.  Sick leave is accrued on a prorated basis per pay period.

In order to receive compensation while absent on sick leave, unless circumstances dictate otherwise, employees shall 
notify their immediate supervisor prior to or within two (2) hours after the time set for beginning their daily duties.  
When the absence is for more than five (5) consecutive work days, the employee may be required to file a 
physician’s statement with their immediate supervisor stating the cause of the absence and that the employee was 
unable to work due to illness.  Such absences may be designated as FMLA leave depending on the nature and 
duration of the absence. The statement should also release the employee to return to work.  Employees absent for 
less than five days may also be required to present a physician’s statement if employee health or safety is an issue.  
All physician statements are to be forwarded to the Human Resources office.

An employee receiving payments under the workers’ compensation laws is eligible to receive supplemental pay for 
up to 180 days of absence due to a work-related injury or illness.  Any payment received through workers’ 
compensation insurance must be remitted to the Town and the employee will receive his or her full salary without 
sick leave, annual leave or comp time leave balances being affected for up to 180 days. If employee is released to 
return to work at full capacity or in a light duty capacity and refuses to return to work, this benefit is no longer 
available.  After 180 days of supplemental pay, if the employee is unable to return to work the employee may 
choose to use his or her paid leave in addition to any workers’ compensation insurance payments in order to 
continue to maintain regular income. In the event an employee has used all of his or her accrued paid time off 
benefits and is unable to return to work, he or she may be eligible for donations of paid time off in accordance with 
section 13 of this policy.  The purpose of this policy is to reduce economic hardship as a result of a work-related 
injury or illness; however, the employee should not realize a financial gain as a result of injury or illness. 

10.2 SICK LEAVE

A. ELIGIBILITY

1. ALL TOWN EMPLOYEES, EXCEPT FOR TEMPORARY AND PART-TIME 
NON-BENEFIT ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES ARE ELIGIBLE TO ACCRUE SICK 
LEAVE AT THE FOLLOWING RATES:



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 6 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

FULL-TIME 3.6923 PER PAY PERIOD
PART-TIME / BENEFIT 
ELIGIBLE

1.8462 PER PAY PERIOD

B. ACCRUAL OF SICK LEAVE

1. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES START ACCRUING SICK LEAVE FROM THEIR 
DATE OF HIRE.

2. PART-TIME BENEFIT ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES ACCRUE SICK LEAVE AT 
HALF THE RATE OF FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES.

3. EMPLOYEES WHO ARE ON ANY UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE (EXCEPT 
FOR FMLA OR MILITARY LEAVE) FOR AN ENTIRE PAY PERIOD (80 
HOURS) WILL NOT ACCRUE SICK LEAVE.

4. SICK LEAVE WILL ACCRUE WITHOUT LIMIT.

C. USE OF SICK LEAVE

1. SICK LEAVE IS OFFERED AS A BENEFIT TO HELP MINIMIZE EMPLOYEE 
FINANCIAL HARDSHIP AS THE RESULT OF ILLNESSES OR MEDICAL 
NEEDS.  SICK LEAVE IS NOT TO BE USED AS ADDITIONAL PAID ANNUAL 
LEAVE OR FOR DISCRETIONARY PURPOSES.  

2. ACCRUALS EARNED AT THE END OF THE CURRENT PAY PERIOD ARE 
NOT AVAILABLE FOR USE UNTIL THE FOLLOWING PAY PERIOD.

3. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES MAY BE PERMITTED TO USE SICK LEAVE FOR 
THE FOLLOWING REASONS:

a. PERSONAL ILLNESS OR INJURY, APPOINTMENTS FOR SURGICAL, 
MEDICAL, DENTAL, OR OPTICAL APPOINTMENTS (INCLUDING 
REGULAR AND PREVENTATIVE CARE APPOINTMENTS), AND THE 
TRAVEL TIME TO AND FROM THE PHYSICIAN’S OFFICE,

b. MEDICAL CONDITIONS THAT PREVENT THE EMPLOYEE FROM 
PERFORMING ASSIGNED TASKS, AND/OR

c. IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER’S (SEE POLICY 2 FOR DEFINITION) 
ILLNESS OR INJURY, AND THEIR SURGICAL, MEDICAL, DENTAL 
OR OPTICAL APPOINTMENTS (INCLUDING REGULAR AND 
PREVENTATIVE CARE APPOINTMENTS) AND RELATED TRAVEL 
TIME TO AND FROM THE PHYSICIAN’S OFFICE.

4. SICK LEAVE WILL NOT BE CHARGED AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE’S 
ACCRUED BALANCE FOR A TOWN HOLIDAY.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 7 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

5. AN EMPLOYEE USING ANNUAL LEAVE WHO BECOMES ILL MAY, UPON 
VERIFICATION OF ILLNESS AND SUPERVISOR APPROVAL, CHARGE THE 
ILLNESS-RELATED TIME-OFF TO ACCUMULATED SICK LEAVE.

D. SICK LEAVE REQUESTS

1. SICK LEAVE MAY BE TAKEN WITH APPROVAL FROM THE SUPERVISOR 
AND/OR DEPARTMENT HEAD.  
a. UPON RETURN TO WORK, THE EMPLOYEE WILL SUBMIT A 

LEAVE REQUEST TO THEIR SUPERVISOR FOR THE MISSED TIME.  
b. ALL SICK LEAVE REQUESTED IN CONJUNCTION WITH 

CERTIFIED FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT LEAVE WILL BE 
APPROVED.

2. FOR UNPLANNED ABSENCES, EMPLOYEES WILL NOTIFY THEIR 
SUPERVISOR PRIOR TO THE START OF THEIR SHIFT OR AS SOON AS 
POSSIBLE THAT THEY WILL BE ABSENT FROM WORK AND THE REASON 
FOR THEIR ABSENCE.  
a. IF THE ABSENCE IS GOING TO BE FOR MULTIPLE DAYS OR FOR 

AN UNKNOWN DURATION, THE EMPLOYEE IS REQUIRED TO 
KEEP THEIR SUPERVISOR INFORMED OF THEIR ANTICIPATED 
RETURN TO WORK DATE.  

b. THE EMPLOYEE OR SUPERVISOR WILL NOTIFY HUMAN 
RESOURCES (HR) OF THE EXTENDED ABSENCE TO DETERMINE 
FMLA AND/OR ADA ELIGIBILITY.

3. FOR PLANNED ABSENCES, EMPLOYEES WILL SUBMIT A LEAVE 
REQUEST FORM AS SOON AS THE EMPLOYEE BECOMES AWARE OF THE 
NEED FOR THE PLANNED ABSENCE.
a. FOR PROLONGED PLANNED ABSENCES, EMPLOYEES SHOULD 

CONTACT HR TO DETERMINE IF THE LEAVE QUALIFIES FOR 
FMLA.

4. REQUESTS FOR SICK LEAVE IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO AN EMPLOYEE’S 
SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT, EVEN IF FOR RETIREMENT, MAY 
NOT BE GRANTED WITHOUT MEDICAL VERIFICATION.  

E. MEDICAL VERIFICATION

1. IF AN EMPLOYEE USES SICK LEAVE FOR THREE (3) OR MORE 
CONSECUTIVE WORKING DAYS, THE DEPARTMENT HEAD OR 
DESIGNEE MAY REQUIRE THE EMPLOYEE TO SUBMIT A MEDICAL 
VERIFICATION STATEMENT FROM A HEALTH CARE PROVIDER 
VERIFYING THE NEED FOR THE SICK LEAVE ABSENCE.  A MEDICAL 
DIAGNOSIS IS NOT REQUIRED AND SHOULD NOT BE REQUESTED BY 
THE SUPERVISOR.  



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 8 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

2. IF AN EMPLOYEE EXHIBITS AN UNUSUAL PATTERN OF SICK LEAVE 
ABSENCES, THE DEPARTMENT HEAD MAY REQUIRE THE EMPLOYEE TO 
SUBMIT A MEDICAL VERIFICATION STATEMENT.

3. IF THE EMPLOYEE FAILS TO PROVIDE THE MEDICAL VERIFICATION 
STATEMENT OR IF THE STATEMENT IS INADEQUATE (AS DETERMINED 
BY BOTH THE DEPARTMENT HEAD AND HR DIRECTOR) THE ABSENCE 
MAY BE CHARGED TO ANOTHER CATEGORY OF LEAVE OR 
CONSIDERED LEAVE WITHOUT PAY.

4. ALL MEDICAL VERIFICATION STATEMENTS WILL BE FORWARDED TO 
THE HR DEPARTMENT AND WILL BE PLACED IN THE EMPLOYEE’S 
HUMAN RESOURCES MEDICAL FILE.

F. RETURN TO WORK

1. EMPLOYEES ABSENT FROM WORK FOR MORE THAN FIVE (5) 
CONSECUTIVE WORKING DAYS OR WHOSE ABSENCE WAS THE RESULT 
OF AN ON THE JOB INJURY WILL SUBMIT A STATEMENT FROM A 
HEALTH CARE PROVIDER RELEASING THEM BACK TO WORK. A 
MEDICAL DIAGNOSIS IS NOT REQUIRED AND SHOULD NOT BE 
REQUESTED BY THE SUPERVISOR.

2. IF THE DEPARTMENT HEAD, TOWN MANAGER OR RISK MANAGER, IN 
CONSULTATION WITH THE HR DIRECTOR, BELIEVES THAT AN 
EMPLOYEE’S RETURN TO WORK IS A HEALTH OR SAFETY ISSUE TO 
THE EMPLOYEE AND/OR THEIR CO-WORKERS, THE EMPLOYEE WILL 
SUBMIT A MEDICAL RELEASE FROM A HEALTH CARE PROVIDER.

3. ALL PHYSICIAN STATEMENTS WILL BE FORWARDED TO THE HR 
DEPARTMENT AND WILL ONLY BE PLACED IN THE EMPLOYEE’S 
MEDICAL FILE.

4. IF THE EMPLOYEE IS RELEASED TO RETURN TO WORK WITH 
RESTRICTIONS, THE DEPARTMENT MUST FOLLOW THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE ON TRANSITIONAL/LIGHT DUTY.

G. TRANSFER OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE 

1. ON THE FIRST DAY OF THE PAY PERIOD FOLLOWING JULY 1ST SICK 
LEAVE MAY BE TRANSFERRED TO ANNUAL LEAVE AS FOLLOWS:
a. ANY UNUSED PORTION OF THE FIRST 56 HOURS OF SICK LEAVE 

ACCRUED IN THE PREVIOUS FISCAL YEAR IN EXCESS OF 480 
HOURS WILL BE TRANSFERRED AUTOMATICALLY.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 9 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

b. THE TRANSFER MAY NOT CAUSE THE EMPLOYEE TO HAVE AN 
ANNUAL LEAVE BALANCE GREATER THAN THEIR MAXIMUM 
ACCRUAL.

c. ANY EMPLOYEE MAY REQUEST PRIOR TO JULY 1ST THAT THEIR 
SICK LEAVE NOT BE TRANSFERRED.

d. ANY SICK LEAVE NOT TRANSFERRED WILL REMAIN AS SICK 
LEAVE.    

H. PAYMENT OF SICK LEAVE UPON TERMINATION FROM TOWN EMPLOYMENT:

1. ONE-HALF (1/2) OF AN EMPLOYEE’S ACCRUED SICK LEAVE BEYOND 480 
HOURS WILL BE PAID TO THE EMPLOYEE UPON SEPARATION FROM 
EMPLOYMENT.

2. EMPLOYEES TERMINATED FOR CAUSE WILL NOT RECEIVE ANY 
PAYOUT FOR UNUSED SICK LEAVE.

3. IN THE EVENT OF AN EMPLOYEE’S DEATH, ONE-HALF (1/2) OF THE SICK 
LEAVE BALANCE IN EXCESS OF THE 480 HOURS SHALL BE PAID TO THE 
ESTATE OF THE FORMER EMPLOYEE.

SECTION 4. Military Leave:  Leaves of absence for military service shall be granted in accordance with the 
provisions of applicable State and Federal laws.

Pursuant to State law, the Town of Oro Valley will provide employees in the military reserves with 30 days of paid 
military leave every two years.

For administrative purposes, the 30 days of leave shall be provided in two-year increments beginning with odd-
numbered calendar years, and ending with even-numbered calendar years.  Paid military leave is not cumulative, and 
is only available for the two year period ending with the even-numbered years. Any portion of the 30 days which 
remains at the end of the even-numbered year will be eliminated, and a new 30-day increment will be made 
available for the reservists’ use during the next two-year period.

Employees hired in even-numbered calendar years will have 15 days of paid military leave to use until the beginning 
of the next odd-numbered calendar year.

For example: Employee “A” (a military reservist) is hired in 2003, and will have 30 days of paid leave available to 
use during calendar years 2003 and 2004.  Beginning in 2005, any unused portion of the original 30 day leave is 
eliminated, and the employee will have a new 30-day increment available for calendar years 2005-2006.

Employee B (also a military reservist) is hired during 2004, and will have 15 days of paid military leave available 
during the remainder of 2004.  Beginning in 2005, any unused portion of the original 15-day increment is 
eliminated, and the employee will have a new 30-day increment to use during calendar years 2005-2006.

At their option, employees of the Town of Oro Valley who have been called to active duty by Presidential Order will 
be eligible to receive supplemental pay for a period of up to one year while under military orders.  Employees will 
be required to expend the unused balance of their 30 days of paid military leave mandated by federal and/or state 
law prior to receiving supplemental pay.  They will not be required to use accrued vacation pay or compensatory 
time off prior to receiving supplemental pay.  They will be eligible to receive their normal pay minus all applicable 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 10 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

deductions for benefits, taxes, etc. In order to eliminate tax consequences for the employee, the Town will calculate 
the difference between their regular pay and their military pay, and pay the difference to the employee. 
Employees who are called up for extended duty who do not opt for supplemental pay will not be required to use any 
portion of the 30 days of paid military leave that they normally have available to them.  The remaining portion will 
be available for their use upon the employee’s return from extended duty. 

During periods of military leave, employees of the Town of Oro Valley who are serving on active duty as members 
of the Military Reserves will be allowed to continue to maintain their employee benefits with the Town by 
continuing to make the required employee contributions for each of the plans for which the employee has enrolled 
prior to the start of their military service leave.

State law requires the Town of Oro Valley to make the employee contribution to the Public Safety Retirement 
System (P.S.P.R.S.) on behalf of reservists serving on active duty.  Members of the P.S.P.R.S. receiving 
supplemental pay will receive their normal pay minus the Town’s contribution to P.S.P.R.S. on their behalf.

Pursuant to applicable state laws, employees requesting a leave of absence for military service must submit copies of 
valid orders to the Town.  Copies of orders shall be submitted to the Human Resources office.  For additional 
details, please contact Human Resources.

10.3 ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE

A. UP TO TEN (10) DAYS OF LEAVE WITH PAY MAY BE GRANTED TO TOWN 
EMPLOYEES BY THE TOWN MANAGER.  MORE EXTENDED PERIODS WITH PAY 
REQUIRE THE APPROVAL OF THE TOWN COUNCIL.  EXAMPLES OF 
SITUATIONS WHERE LEAVE WITH PAY MIGHT BE GRANTED INCLUDE, BUT 
ARE NOT NECESSARILY LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING:

1. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE FOR EXEMPT EMPLOYEES DUE TO 
EXTENUATING CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT.

2. INVESTIGATORY LEAVE WHICH IS NON-PUNITIVE IN NATURE.

B. IN CONSIDERING WHETHER LEAVE WITH PAY WILL BE GRANTED, THE TOWN 
MANAGER SHALL USE THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

1. THE AMOUNT OF PAID AND UNPAID LEAVE ALREADY TAKEN BY THE 
EMPLOYEE IN THE YEAR PRECEDING THE REQUEST FOR PAID LEAVE.

2. THE EMPLOYEE’S OVERALL ATTENDANCE.

3. THE EMPLOYEE’S PREVIOUS PERFORMANCE RATINGS.

4. THE LENGTH OF THE EMPLOYEE’S TENURE WITH THE TOWN.

5. THE AMOUNT OF OTHER PAID LEAVE TIME WHICH IS AVAILABLE TO 
THE EMPLOYEE, INCLUDING CONSIDERATION OF ANY ACCRUED 
COMPENSATORY TIME, ANNUAL LEAVE OR SICK LEAVE WHICH MAY 
BE AVAILABLE.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 11 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

6. THE EMPLOYEE’S PREVIOUS ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE REQUESTS.

10.4 LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

A. THE TOWN MANAGER MAY GRANT AN EMPLOYEE A LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
WITHOUT PAY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS.  

1. IN NO EVENT WILL A LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY BE GRANTED 
FOR A PERIOD OF MORE THAN ONE YEAR.  

2. EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE NOT RETURNED FROM ANY LEAVE OF 
ABSENCE AFTER ONE YEAR WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE VOLUNTARILY 
RESIGNED FROM THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY.

3. PRIOR TO THE COMPLETION OF TWELVE (12) CALENDAR MONTHS OF 
CONTINUOUS SERVICE WITH THE TOWN SUCH LEAVE WILL ONLY BE 
GRANTED FOR SIGNIFICANT AND EXTENUATING CIRCUMSTANCES.  
TOTAL UNPAID LEAVE AT THIS LEVEL WILL GENERALLY NOT EXCEED 
TWO WEEKS.

4. SUBSEQUENT TO THE COMPLETION OF ONE (1) YEAR OF CONTINUOUS 
SERVICE, AND PRIOR TO THE COMPLETION OF FIVE (5) CALENDAR 
YEARS OF SERVICE, AN EMPLOYEE MAY BE GRANTED UP TO SIXTY (60) 
CALENDAR DAYS OF LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY.  

a. APPROVAL FROM THE HR DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT HEAD AND 
THE TOWN MANAGER MUST BE OBTAINED.

5. AFTER THE COMPLETION OF FIVE (5) CALENDAR YEARS OF 
CONTINUOUS SERVICE, AN EMPLOYEE MAY BE GRANTED UP TO ONE (1) 
YEAR OF LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY WITH THE APPROVAL 
FROM THE HR DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT HEAD AND THE TOWN 
MANAGER.

6. EMPLOYEES MAY COMBINE PAID LEAVE WITH UNPAID LEAVE OF 
ABSENCE.  HOWEVER, THE USE OF UNPAID LEAVE, ACCRUED ANNUAL 
LEAVE AND ACCRUED COMPENSATORY TIME OFF, OR ANY 
COMBINATION THEREOF, SHALL BE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL FROM 
THE HR DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT HEAD AND TOWN MANAGER.

7. TIME ON LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY SHALL NOT BE CREDITED 
AS CONTINUOUS SERVICE, AND SHALL NOT BE COUNTED TOWARD 
ELIGIBILITY FOR ADDITIONAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE TIME OR FOR 
SENIORITY OR OTHER BENEFITS.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 12 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

8. DURING AN APPROVED UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE, THE EMPLOYEE 
MAY CONTINUE THEIR COVERAGE FOR HEALTH, DENTAL, OR 
DISABILITY PLANS BY CONTINUING TO PAY FULL COSTS OF THE 
PROGRAM INCLUDING ANY PORTIONS NORMALLY PAID BY THE TOWN.

9. NO LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY SHALL BE GRANTED WITHOUT 
THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF THE EMPLOYEE, SETTING FORTH THE 
REASON AND EXPECTED DURATION OF THE LEAVE.  UPON THE 
EXPIRATION OF AN APPROVED LEAVE THE EMPLOYEE SHALL BE 
REINSTATED TO A LIKE OR SIMILAR POSITION AS THAT HELD AT THE 
TIME LEAVE WAS GRANTED, IF AVAILABLE AND IF THE EMPLOYEE 
RETURNS TO WORK.

10. FAILURE ON THE PART OF AN EMPLOYEE ON LEAVE TO REPORT UPON 
THE EXPIRATION OF THE LEAVE SHALL BE VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION 
FROM EMPLOYMENT.

10.5 UNAUTHORIZED LEAVE

A. AN EMPLOYEE WHO IS ABSENT WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION SHALL:

1. BE DESIGNATED AS “ABSENT WITHOUT LEAVE”.

2. FOR PAYROLL PURPOSES, BE RECORDED AS LEAVE WITHOUT PAY FOR 
THE PERIOD OF SUCH ABSENCE.

3. BE SUBJECT TO APPROPRIATE DISCIPLINARY ACTION, UP TO AND 
INCLUDING TERMINATION.

B. AN EMPLOYEE WHO IS ABSENT WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION FOR THREE (3) 
CONSECUTIVE WORKING DAYS WILL BE CONSIDERED AS HAVING 
ABANDONED HIS/HER JOB AND WILL BE TERMINATED WITHOUT GRIEVANCE 
RIGHTS.

SECTION 5. Leave of Absence Without Pay:  The Town Manager may grant an employee a leave of absence 
without pay in accordance with the following conditions:

A. Prior to the completion of twelve (12) calendar months of continuous service with the Town such leave will 
only be granted for significant and extenuating circumstances.  Total unpaid leave at this level will 
generally not exceed two weeks.

B. Subsequent to the completion of one (1) year of continuous service, and prior to the completion of five (5) 
years of calendar service, an employee may be granted up to sixty (60) calendar days of leave of absence 
without pay.  Approval of the Department Head and the Town Manager must be obtained.

C. After the completion of five (5) calendar years of continuous service an employee may be granted up to one 
year of leave of absence without pay with the approval of the Department Head and the Town Manager.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 13 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

D. Employees may combine paid leave with unpaid leave of absence.  However, the use of unpaid leave, 
accrued annual leave and accrued compensatory time off, or any combination thereof, shall be subject to 
approval by the Town Manager and the employee’s Department Head.

E. Time on leave of absence without pay shall not be credited as continuous service, and shall not be counted 
toward eligibility for additional leave of absence time or for seniority or other benefits.

F. Benefits.  During an approved unpaid leave of absence, the employee may continue their coverage for 
health, dental, or disability plans by continuing to pay full costs of the program including any portions 
normally paid by the Town.

G. No leave of absence without pay shall be granted without the written request of the employee, setting forth 
the reason and expected duration of the leave.  Upon the expiration of an approved leave the employee shall 
be reinstated to a like or similar position as that held at the time leave was granted, if available and if the 
employee returns to work.

H. Failure on the part of an employee on leave to report upon the expiration of the leave shall be a voluntary 
resignation from employment.

I. In no event will a leave of absence without pay be granted for a period of more than one year.  Employees 
who have not returned from any leave of absence after one year will be deemed to have voluntarily 
resigned from the town of Oro Valley.

SECTION 6. Leave with Pay:  Leave with pay for sufficient cause may be granted to employees of the Town by 
the Town Manager, up to and including five consecutive working days or ten total working days in any fiscal year.  
More extended periods of leave with pay require the approval of the Town Council.  Leave with pay may be granted 
in cases of special hardship at full or partial pay.  Examples of situations where leave with pay might be granted 
include, but are not necessarily limited to the following:

Absence to attend an authorized course of instruction directly related to the employee’s duties and which is critical 
to Town business (educational leave of absence) and approved by the Department Head.

In considering whether leave with pay will be granted, the Town Manager shall use the following criteria:

1. The amount of paid and unpaid leave already taken by the employee in the year preceding the request for 
paid leave.

2. The employee’s overall attendance.

3. The employee’s previous performance ratings.

4. The length of the employee’s tenure with the Town.

5. The amount of other paid leave time which is available to the employee, including consideration of any 
accrued compensatory time, annual leave or sick leave which may be available.

6. The employee’s previous leave with pay requests.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 14 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

Leave with pay is intended to be granted only in extreme or extraordinary circumstances.  The denial of a request for 
such leave is not subject to appeal or grievance.

10.6 OBSERVED HOLIDAYS

A. THE HOLIDAYS OBSERVED BY THE TOWN ARE:

NEW YEAR’S EVE 
DAY

MEMORIAL DAY THANKSGIVING 
DAY

FLOATING 
HOLIDAY
(BIRTHDAY)NEW YEAR’S DAY INDEPENDENCE 

DAY
DAY AFTER 
THANKSGIVING

CIVIL 
RIGHTS/MLK DAY

LABOR DAY CHRISTMAS EVE 
DAY

PRESIDENT’S DAY VETERAN’S DAY CHRISTMAS DAY

B. HOLIDAY PAY

1. FULL TIME EMPLOYEES RECEIVE HOLIDAY PAY AT THEIR NORMAL 
RATE OF PAY FOR THEIR REGULAR SCHEDULED SHIFT (WHETHER 8 OR 
10 HOURS) IN LIEU OF HOURS WORKED. 

2. PART-TIME BENEFIT ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES SHALL RECEIVE HOLIDAY 
PAY BASED UPON A PRORATION OF THEIR BUDGETED WORKING 
HOURS. 
a. FOR EXAMPLE, A PART-TIME BENEFIT ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE 

BUDGETED TO WORK TWENTY (20) HOURS PER WEEK WOULD BE 
ELIGIBLE FOR FOUR (4) HOURS OF HOLIDAY PAY ON OBSERVED 
HOLIDAYS. 

3. EMPLOYEES WHOSE REGULARLY SCHEDULED DAY-OFF FALLS ON AN 
OBSERVED TOWN HOLIDAY MAY RECEIVE A DIFFERENT DAY OFF 
DURING THAT SAME WEEK AS THEIR HOLIDAY.

C. FLOATING HOLIDAY (BIRTHDAY)

1. THE EMPLOYEE’S FLOATING HOLIDAY MUST BE TAKEN DURING THE 
MONTH IN WHICH THE EMPLOYEE’S ACTUAL BIRTHDAY OCCURS. 

2. EMPLOYEES WHO FAIL TO TAKE THE FLOATING HOLIDAY DURING 
THEIR BIRTH MONTH, FORFEIT THEIR FLOATING HOLIDAY FOR THAT 
YEAR.  

3. AN EMPLOYEE MAY NOT WORK ON THE FLOATING HOLIDAY FOR 
ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION.

D. HOLIDAYS WORKED



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 15 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

IF AN ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE IS REQUIRED TO WORK ON AN OBSERVED 
HOLIDAY, THE EMPLOYEE WILL RECEIVE THE EMPLOYEE’S NORMAL RATE 
OF PAY FOR THEIR USUAL SHIFT, PLUS HOLIDAY PAY, PLUS REGULAR 
OVERTIME PAY IF REQUIRED FOR ANY HOURS OVER 40 IN THAT WORKWEEK.

E. HOLIDAYS THAT FALL ON SATURDAY OR SUNDAY

1. WHEN AN OBSERVED HOLIDAY FALLS ON A SATURDAY, THE 
PRECEDING FRIDAY SHALL BE OBSERVED.

2. WHEN AN OBSERVED HOLIDAY FALLS ON A SUNDAY, THE FOLLOWING 
MONDAY WILL BE OBSERVED.

3. WHEN CHRISTMAS AND NEW YEAR’S DAY ARE OBSERVED ON A 
FRIDAY, CHRISTMAS EVE DAY AND NEW YEAR’S EVE DAY WILL BE 
OBSERVED ON THE PRECEDING THURSDAY.  WHEN CHRISTMAS EVE 
DAY AND NEW YEAR’S EVE DAY FALL ON A SUNDAY, CHRISTMAS EVE 
DAY AND NEW YEAR’S EVE DAY WILL BE OBSERVED ON MONDAY AND 
CHRISTMAS DAY AND NEW YEAR’S DAY WILL BE OBSERVED ON THE 
FOLLOWING TUESDAY.

10.7 WORKER’S COMPENSATION

A. PURPOSE

1. UNDER ARIZONA LAW, IT IS MANDATORY FOR EMPLOYERS TO SECURE 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE FOR THEIR EMPLOYEES. 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION IS A “NO FAULT” SYSTEM IN WHICH AN 
INJURED OR ILL EMPLOYEE IS ENTITLED TO RECEIVE BENEFITS FOR A 
JOB-RELATED INJURY OR ILLNESS, NO MATTER WHO CAUSED THE 
INJURY OR ILLNESS. IF AN ILLNESS OR INJURY IS JOB-RELATED, THEN 
THE INJURED EMPLOYEE IS ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE MEDICAL BENEFITS 
AND MAY RECEIVE TEMPORARY COMPENSATION, IF ELIGIBILITY 
REQUIREMENTS ARE MET. IN SOME CASES, A CLAIMANT MAY ALSO 
RECEIVE PERMANENT COMPENSATION BENEFITS, JOB RETRAINING, 
AND SUPPORTIVE MEDICAL CARE. 

2. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS POLICY ARE NOT INTENDED TO CONFLICT 
WITH OR SUPERSEDE STATE LAW, NOR SHOULD THEY BE 
INTERPRETED OR CONSTRUED TO DO SO. IF ANY PROVISION OF THIS 
POLICY CONFLICTS WITH STATE LAW, STATE LAW SHALL CONTROL.

B. REPORTING REQUIREMENT

1. EMPLOYEES WILL IMMEDIATELY REPORT ANY JOB RELATED 
ACCIDENT, ILLNESS, OR INJURY TO HIS OR HER IMMEDIATE 
SUPERVISOR. 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 16 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

2. IF THE EMPLOYEE’S DIRECT SUPERVISOR IS NOT AVAILABLE, THE 
EMPLOYEE SHALL REPORT THE ACCIDENT, INJURY OR 
OCCUPATIONAL ILLNESS TO THE EMPLOYEE’S DEPARTMENT HEAD.  

3. THE EMPLOYEE’S DEPARTMENT HEAD, SUPERVISOR, OR DESIGNEE 
WILL ENSURE THAT THE ACCIDENT, INJURY OR ILLNESS IS REPORTED 
TO HR NO LATER THAN THE NEXT WORK DAY.

4. FAILURE TO REPORT THE ACCIDENT, INJURY OR ILLNESS WITHIN 24 
HOURS MAY RESULT IN THE DENIAL OF A WORKER’S COMPENSATION 
CLAIM.

5. EMPLOYEES WILL FOLLOW THE REPORTING PROCEDURES 
ESTABLISHED BY HR/RISK MANAGEMENT, TO INCLUDE COMPLETING 
AND SUBMITTING ANY REQUIRED FORMS.

C. DETERMINATION OF COMPENSABILITY 

1. THE TOWN’S WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CARRIER WILL DETERMINE 
COMPENSABILITY FOR JOB RELATED INJURIES AND ILLNESSES.

D. MEDICAL CLAIMS

1. PURSUANT TO STATE LAW, IF AN EMPLOYEE IS OFF WORK DUE TO A 
JOB-RELATED INJURY OR ILLNESS DETERMINED TO BE 
COMPENSABLE, THE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CARRIER WILL PAY 
ALL OF THE EMPLOYEE’S MEDICAL EXPENSES ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
JOB RELATED INJURY OR ILLNESS. 

2. IF AN EMPLOYEE’S ON THE JOB INJURY OR ILLNESS FALLS WITHIN 
THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE DEFINITION FOR SERIOUS 
MEDICAL CONDITION, THE EMPLOYEE SHALL ALSO BE PLACED ON 
FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE STATUS.  DURING SUCH TIME, THE 
EMPLOYEE WILL BE AFFORDED THE SAME PROTECTIONS AND 
BENEFITS AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 10.12 OF THIS POLICY.

E. BENEFITS

1. ALL BENEFITS UNDER THIS PLAN WILL BE PROVIDED WHILE THE 
EMPLOYEE MEETS ALL ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA, FOR A PERIOD OF SIX 
(6) MONTHS FROM THE DATE THE EMPLOYEE RECEIVES FIRST 
PAYMENT OF WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PURSUANT TO A.R.S. 23-1021, 
38-961 AND RELATED STATUTES.

2. PAYMENT OF THE EMPLOYEE’S REGULAR NET SALARY.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 17 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

3. ACCRUED LEAVE BALANCES WILL BE MAINTAINED AT PRE-INJURY 
LEVEL, INCLUDING SICK, VACATION, AND COMP TIME.

4. CONTINUED PAYMENT OF THE EMPLOYER’S PORTION OF PREMIUM 
FOR HEALTH CARE BENEFITS, INCLUDING MEDICAL, DENTAL, AND 
VISION BENEFITS.  EMPLOYEES REMAIN RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYING 
THEIR PORTION OF ANY PREMIUM.

5. RETIREMENT 
a. PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES (MEMBERS OF PSPRS AND CORP)

i. THE TOWN WILL PAY BOTH THE EMPLOYERS AND 
EMPLOYEE’S CONTRIBUTION TO THE PUBLIC SAFETY 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM.

ii. THE EMPLOYEE WILL CONTINUE TO ACCRUE CREDIT FOR 
SERVICE IN THE PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT PLAN.

b. MEMBERS OF ASRS
i. COMPENSATION RECEIVED UNDER THE WORKMAN’S 

COMPENSATION PROGRAM IS NOT ELIGIBLE FOR 
CREDITED SERVICE.

ii. NEITHER THE EMPLOYEE NOR THE TOWN WILL 
CONTRIBUTE RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS WHILE THE 
EMPLOYEE IS ON WORKMAN’S COMPENSATION.

6. TO THE EXTENT THE EMPLOYEE IS ELIGIBLE FOR AND RECEIVES 
SALARY OR BENEFIT CHANGES WHILE ELIGIBLE AND RECEIVING 
BENEFITS UNDER THIS SECTION, THE BENEFITS UNDER THIS SECTION 
WILL BE ADJUSTED ACCORDINGLY.
a. FOR EXAMPLE, IF ALL EMPLOYEES ARE PROVIDED AUTOMATIC 

SALARY ADJUSTMENT AS PART OF AN ANNUAL PROCESS, THE 
EMPLOYEE WILL RECEIVE BENEFITS UNDER THIS PLAN BASED 
ON HIS/HER NEW ADJUSTED SALARY AS HE/SHE WOULD IF NOT 
INJURED.  

b. SUCH ADJUSTMENTS MAY OR MAY NOT BENEFIT THE 
EMPLOYEE.

7. EMPLOYEES RECEIVING BENEFITS UNDER THIS SECTION WILL NOT 
ACCRUE ADDITIONAL SICK OR ANNUAL LEAVE.

F. RETURN TO WORK

1. IT IS THE PHILOSOPHY OF THE TOWN TO RETURN INJURED OR ILL 
EMPLOYEES TO EMPLOYMENT FOR THE TOWN AS SOON AS THEY ARE 
PHYSICALLY AND/OR MENTALLY CAPABLE OF PERFORMING 
FUNCTIONS FOR THE TOWN AND ARE RELEASED TO RETURN TO WORK 
BY THE DESIGNATED PHYSICIAN.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 18 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

2. WHEN AN EMPLOYEE WITH A JOB-RELATED INJURY OR ILLNESS 
RETURNS TO WORK, EITHER IN HIS OR HER NORMAL ASSIGNMENT OR 
IN AN ALTERNATIVE WORK ASSIGNMENT (TRANSITIONAL/LIGHT 
DUTY), THE EMPLOYEE WILL NOT BE CHARGED SICK LEAVE OR ANY 
OTHER TYPE OF LEAVE FOR ABSENCES DUE TO MEDICAL 
APPOINTMENTS, INCLUDING PHYSICAL THERAPY, FOR THE JOB-
RELATED INJURY OR ILLNESS. 

3. ANY EMPLOYEE WHO HAS BEEN ABSENT DUE TO A WORK-RELATED 
ILLNESS OR INJURY MAY BE REQUIRED TO UNDERGO A RETURN TO 
WORK EXAMINATION OR A FITNESS FOR DUTY EXAMINATION 
THROUGH THE TOWN DESIGNATED PHYSICIAN.

4. EMPLOYEES RELEASED TO WORK WITH RESTRICTIONS WILL BE 
PLACED ON LIGHT DUTY WHEN LIGHT DUTY IS AVAILABLE.  SEE THE 
TOWN TRANSITIONAL/LIGHT DUTY ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE FOR 
FURTHER DETAILS.

5. IF THE EMPLOYEE IS RELEASED TO WORK WITH RESTRICTIONS, THE 
TOWN WILL COMPLY WITH THE FEDERAL AMERICANS WITH 
DISABILITIES ACT.

6. IN THE EVENT THAT AN EMPLOYEE IS APPROVED FOR AND OFFERED 
LIGHT DUTY ASSIGNMENT AND CHOOSES NOT TO ACCEPT THE 
ASSIGNMENT, S/HE SHALL BE DENIED CONTINUATION OF WORKER’S 
COMPENSATION BENEFITS, AND MAY BE SUBJECT TO DISCIPLINARY 
ACTION, UP TO AND INCLUDING TERMINATION.

10.8 MILITARY LEAVE

A. LEAVES OF ABSENCE FOR MILITARY SERVICE SHALL BE GRANTED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF APPLICABLE STATE AND FEDERAL 
LAWS.  PURSUANT TO STATE LAW, THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY WILL 
PROVIDE EMPLOYEES IN THE MILITARY RESERVES WITH THIRTY (30) DAYS 
OF PAID MILITARY LEAVE EVERY TWO YEARS.

B. PURSUANT TO APPLICABLE FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS, EMPLOYEES 
REQUESTING A LEAVE OF ABSENCE FOR MILITARY SERVICE MUST SUBMIT 
COPIES OF VALID ORDERS TO THE HR DEPARTMENT.

C. AT THEIR OPTION, EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY WHO HAVE 
BEEN CALLED TO ACTIVE DUTY BY PRESIDENTIAL ORDER WILL BE ELIGIBLE 
TO RECEIVE SUPPLEMENTAL PAY FOR A PERIOD OF UP TO ONE (1) YEAR 
WHILE UNDER ACTIVE MILITARY ORDERS. 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 19 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

D. THE EMPLOYEE UNDER ACTIVE MILITARY ORDER WILL NOT BE REQUIRED 
TO USE ACCRUED ANNUAL PAY OR COMPENSATORY TIME OFF PRIOR TO 
RECEIVING SUPPLEMENTAL PAY.

E. THE EMPLOYEE ON ACTIVE MILITARY ORDER IS ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE 
THEIR NORMAL PAY MINUS ALL APPLICABLE DEDUCTIONS FOR BENEFITS, 
TAXES, ETC.

1. IN ORDER TO ELIMINATE TAX CONSEQUENCES FOR THE EMPLOYEE 
ON ACTIVE MILITARY ORDER, THE TOWN WILL CALCULATE THE 
DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THEIR REGULAR PAY AND THEIR MILITARY 
PAY, AND PAY THE DIFFERENCE TO THE EMPLOYEE.

F. DURING PERIODS OF MILITARY LEAVE, EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWN OF ORO 
VALLEY WHO ARE SERVING ON ACTIVE DUTY AS MEMBERS OF THE 
MILITARY RESERVES WILL BE ALLOWED TO CONTINUE TO MAINTAIN THEIR 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS WITH THE TOWN BY CONTINUING TO MAKE THE 
REQUIRED EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS FOR EACH OF THE PLANS FOR 
WHICH THE EMPLOYEE HAS ENROLLED PRIOR TO THE START OF THEIR 
MILITARY SERVICE LEAVE.

G. RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS FOR EMPLOYEES CALLED TO ACTIVE 
MILITARY SERVICE.  .  

1. EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE ARIZONA RETIREMENT 
SYSTEM
a. IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARIZONA REVISED STATUTE 38-745, 

MEMBERS OF A.S.R.S WHO ARE ON PAID LEAVE WILL CONTINUE 
TO PAY THE EMPLOYEE’S PORTION OF THEIR RETIREMENT 
CONTRIBUTION WHILE THE TOWN CONTINUES TO PAY THE 
EMPLOYER’S PORTION.

b. IF THE EMPLOYEE IS ON UNPAID LEAVE, THE TOWN WILL PAY 
BOTH THE EMPLOYEE’S AND EMPLOYER’S PORTION OF THE 
REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION TO ASRS ONCE THE EMPLOYEE 
RETURN’S TO TOWN EMPLOYMENT AND MEETS ELIGIBILITY 
REQUIREMENTS

2. EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE PSPRS OR CORP
a. IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARIZONA REVISED STATUTE 38-858, THE 

TOWN WILL MAKE BOTH MEMBER AND EMPLOYER 
CONTRIBUTIONS FOR YOU (UP TO 48 MONTHS) IN A LUMP SUM 
UPON YOUR RETURN IF:
i. YOU ARE A MEMBER OF THE ARIZONA NATIONAL GUARD 

OR A RESERVE IN ANY BRANCH OF THE MILITARY, OR
ii. YOU VOLUNTEER INTO ACTIVE DUTY OR ARE CALLED 

INTO ACTIVE DUTY AS A RESULT OF A PRESIDENTIAL 
CALL-UP, AND



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 20 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

iii. YOU ARE HONORABLY SEPARATED FROM ACTIVE DUTY 
AND RETURN TO TOWN EMPLOYMENT WITHIN 90 DAYS 
AFTER SEPARATION.

H. THE TOWN WILL FOLLOW THE UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND 
REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT WHEN DETERMINING RETURN AND 
REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS UPON RELEASE FROM ACTIVE MILITARY ORDER.

SECTION 7. Jury Leave:  All employees of the Town who are called or required to serve as a juror shall be 
excused for their absence from work and receive their normal pay for such absence.  In return for receiving regular 
pay, the employee shall remit any monies received for the jury duty (except for travel pay) directly to the Town.

SECTION 8. Subpoena Leave/Expert Witness Leave:  All employees of the Town required to appear in court as 
a witness in their official capacity shall be excused from their duties with the Town and shall receive pay and all 
other benefits during the period of such service.  Under such circumstances, the employee shall refund the witness 
fee, if any, to the Town.  Employees subpoenaed for matters not related to Town business shall not be paid for their 
absence unless accrued; approved annual leave or accrued compensatory time is used.  Employees may use unpaid 
leave for such absences with appropriate approvals.

SECTION 9. Administrative Leave:  The Town Manager may grant up to five (5) days of Administrative Leave 
with pay, in any fiscal year, to exempt employees due to extenuating conditions of employment.

10.9 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

A. UPON THE DEATH OF AN IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER, BENEFIT ELIGIBLE 
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE ON ACTIVE STATUS (I.E., NOT ON ANOTHER FORM OF 
LEAVE OF ABSENCE) ARE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE FIVE (5) WORKING DAYS OF 
PAID LEAVE (NOT CHARGED TO SICK LEAVE OR ANNUAL LEAVE).  

1. FOR BEREAVEMENT INVOLVING OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS OR 
FRIENDS, THE EMPLOYEE MAY REQUEST PAID ANNUAL LEAVE OR 
UNPAID LEAVE.

2. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE MUST BE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT 
HEAD, OR DESIGNEE.

10.10 JURY DUTY LEAVE

A. ALL EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWN WHO ARE CALLED OR REQUIRED TO SERVE 
AS A JUROR SHALL BE EXCUSED FOR THEIR ABSENCE FROM WORK AND 
RECEIVE THEIR NORMAL PAY FOR SUCH ABSENCE.  IN RETURN FOR 
RECEIVING REGULAR PAY, THE EMPLOYEE SHALL REMIT ANY MONIES 
RECEIVED FOR THE JURY DUTY (EXCEPT FOR TRAVEL PAY) DIRECTLY TO 
THE TOWN.  

10.11 SUBPOENA LEAVE / WITNESS LEAVE



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 21 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

A. ALL EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWN REQUIRED TO APPEAR IN COURT AS A 
WITNESS IN THEIR OFFICIAL CAPACITY SHALL BE EXCUSED FROM THEIR 
DUTIES WITH THE TOWN AND SHALL RECEIVE PAY AND ALL OTHER 
BENEFITS DURING THE PERIOD OF SUCH SERVICE.  

1. UNDER SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES, THE EMPLOYEE SHALL REFUND THE 
WITNESS FEE, IF ANY, TO THE TOWN.  

B. EMPLOYEES SUBPOENAED FOR MATTERS NOT RELATED TO TOWN BUSINESS 
SHALL NOT BE PAID FOR THEIR ABSENCE UNLESS ACCRUED, APPROVED 
ANNUAL LEAVE OR ACCRUED COMPENSATORY TIME IS USED.  

1. EMPLOYEES MAY USE UNPAID LEAVE FOR SUCH ABSENCES WITH 
APPROPRIATE APPROVALS.

SECTION 10. Holidays:  The holidays to be observed by the Town are as follows:

New Year’s Eve Day
New Year’s Day Labor Day
Civil Rights/MLK Day Veteran’s Day
President’s Day Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving Day
Independence Day Christmas Eve Day
Floating Holiday (Birthday) Christmas Day

Employees budgeted for at least 20 hours per week are eligible for holiday pay on observed holidays.  The amount 
of holiday pay will be prorated based on the regular budgeted status of the employee.

Employees who are eligible for holiday pay may take a floating holiday to celebrate their birthday.  The day off with 
pay (pursuant to the other terms of this policy) must be taken during the month in which the employee’s actual 
birthday occurs.  If the employee fails to take the Floating Holiday during their birth month, it is forfeited for that 
year.   An employee may not work on the Floating Holiday for additional compensation.

(Note: When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed.  When a holiday falls on a 
Sunday, the following Monday will be observed.  When Christmas Day and New Year’s Day are observed on a 
Friday, Christmas Eve Day and New Year’s Eve Day will be observed on the preceding Thursday.  When Christmas 
Eve Day and New Year’s Eve Day fall on a Sunday, Christmas Eve Day and New Year’s Eve Day will be observed 
on Monday and Christmas Day and New Year’s Day will be observed on the following Tuesday.  It should be noted 
that public safety and other essential service employees may be required to be on duty on holidays in the interests of 
the public health, safety, or general welfare of the Town and that for pay purposes, the holiday is the day designated 
by the Town.)

Full time employees receive holiday pay for a regularly scheduled work day in lieu of hours worked.  Part-time 
employees who are budgeted to work twenty (20) hours per week or more shall receive holiday pay based upon a 
proration of their budgeted working hours.  For example, a part-time employee budgeted to work twenty (20) hours 
per week would be eligible for four (4) hours of holiday pay on paid holidays.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 22 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

In the case of police officers, if an officer is required to work on a holiday designated by the Town, the officer will 
receive double the officer’s normal rate of pay for the period of time worked.  If the officer does not work on a 
holiday designated by the Town, the officer will receive ten (10) hours pay at the officer’s normal rate of pay 
provided that the officer is on a schedule where the normal work day is ten (10) hours.

If an eligible employee is required to work on a holiday designated by the Town, the employee will receive the 
employee’s normal rate of pay for their usual shift (whether 8 or 10 hours), plus holiday pay, plus regular overtime 
pay if required for any time worked over 40 hours in the workweek.  

SECTION 11. Family and Medical Leave Act, as amended:  The Town of Oro Valley shall comply with the 
requirements of the Family and Medical Leave Act.  A summary of this Act is available for review in the Human 
Resources Office.  Qualifying employees may be eligible under the act for up to a total of 12 weeks of unpaid family 
leave during an applicable 12 month period.  The Act provides for leaves for childbirth, foster care, and adoption 
related situations, as well as serious health conditions for employees, or to care for a seriously ill spouse, parent or 
child in certain situations.

In certain circumstances FMLA leave may be available for members of the military and/or their family members. 
Requirements for military FMLA are different than other leave requirements, so please consult the Human 
Resources Director if you would like to request FMLA for a military related reason.

For purposes of calculating the total amount of unpaid leave available to qualifying employees, the Town requires 
that the employee shall first use paid leave for which they are eligible (i.e., sick leave, annual leave, compensatory 
time off, etc.).  Thereafter, the Town shall grant qualifying employees unpaid leave up to a total of 12 weeks, 
including the paid leave noted previously.

The amount of available FMLA leave depends upon certain eligibility requirements (such as hours of service 
worked during the preceding 12 month period, etc.), a qualifying event (i.e., childbirth, adoption, foster care, or 
serious health condition affecting either the employee or member of the employee’s immediate family), the amount 
of paid leave available to the employee, as well as any unpaid leave already used by the employee.  Eligibility for 
leave under the Act shall be determined by the Human Resources Director. Employees desiring additional 
information regarding family leave are encouraged to contact the Human Resources Director.  In cases involving 
foreseeable qualifying events, a minimum of 30 days notice shall be given of the necessity of the leave.  In all other 
situations, employees should give as much advanced notice as possible.

An employee who needs more than the 12 weeks of leave provided by the FMLA may request additional time off in 
accordance with the other leave of absence provisions discussed in this policy (see sections 5 & 6), up to a total of 
12 months of total leave time.  They may continue to use any paid time which they have accrued during this period

10.12 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

A. THE FEDERAL FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT ENTITLES ELIGIBLE
EMPLOYEES TO TAKE UNPAID, JOB-PROTECTED LEAVE FOR SPECIFIED 
FAMILY AND MEDICAL REASONS WITH CONTINUATION OF GROUP HEALTH 
INSURANCE COVERAGE.

B. ELIGIBILITY

1. MUST BE A TOWN OF ORO VALLEY EMPLOYEE.

2. MUST HAVE WORKED FOR ORO VALLEY FOR AT LEAST TWELVE (12) 
MONTHS, WHETHER OR NOT SUCH TIME IS CONTINUOUS, AND NOT 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 23 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

HAD A CONTINUOUS BREAK IN SERVICE OF MORE THAN SEVEN (7) 
YEARS. 

3. MUST HAVE WORKED A MINIMUM OF 1,250 HOURS DURING THE 12-
MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE COMMENCEMENT OF 
LEAVE.  QUALIFYING HOURS DO NOT INCLUDE ANNUAL, SICK, 
BEREAVEMENT, HOLIDAY, UNPAID LEAVE, ETC. BUT OVERTIME AND 
HOLIDAYS WORKED AND MILITARY LEAVE DO QUALIFY.

C. QUALIFYING EVENTS

1. THE EMPLOYEE’S OWN SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION THAT MAKES 
THE EMPLOYEE UNABLE TO PERFORM ONE OR MORE OF THE 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS OF HIS OR HER JOB. 

2. THE BIRTH OF A CHILD AND TO CARE FOR THE NEWBORN CHILD 
WITHIN ONE YEAR OF BIRTH.

3. THE PLACEMENT WITH THE EMPLOYEE OF A CHILD FOR ADOPTION 
OR FOSTER CARE AND TO CARE FOR THE NEWLY PLACED CHILD 
WITHIN ONE YEAR OF PLACEMENT.

4. TO CARE FOR THE EMPLOYEE’S SPOUSE, CHILD, PARENT OR EN LOCO 
PARENTIS WHO HAS A SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION.

5. A MILITARY QUALIFYING EXIGENCY WHILE THE EMPLOYEE'S SPOUSE, 
SON, DAUGHTER, OR PARENT (THE "MILITARY MEMBER") IS ON 
COVERED ACTIVE DUTY OR HAS BEEN NOTIFIED OF AN IMPENDING 
CALL OR ORDER TO COVERED ACTIVE DUTY STATUS.

6. TO CARE FOR A COVERED SERVICE MEMBER OR QUALIFYING 
VETERAN WITH A SERIOUS INJURY OR ILLNESS IF THE ELIGIBLE 
EMPLOYEE IS THE SERVICE MEMBER’S SPOUSE, SON, DAUGHTER, 
PARENT, OR NEXT OF KIN (MILITARY CAREGIVER LEAVE).

D. AMOUNT OF LEAVE

1. QUALIFYING FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES MAY BE ELIGIBLE FOR UP TO A 
TOTAL OF 12 WEEKS OF UNPAID FAMILY LEAVE DURING THE 
APPLICABLE 12 MONTH PERIOD. 

2. FOR PART-TIME ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES AND THOSE WHO WORK 
VARIABLE HOURS, THE FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ENTITLEMENT IS 
CALCULATED ON A PRO-RATA BASIS.  A WEEKLY AVERAGE OF HOURS 
WORKED OVER THE 12 WEEKS PRIOR TO THE BEGINNING OF THE 
LEAVE SHOULD BE USED FOR CALCULATING THE EMPLOYEE’S 
NORMAL WORKWEEK.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 24 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

3. A HUSBAND AND WIFE WHO ARE BOTH EMPLOYED BY THE TOWN ARE 
PERMITTED TO TAKE ONLY A COMBINED TOTAL OF 12 WEEKS OF 
LEAVE DURING THE 12 ROLLING CALENDAR MONTH PERIOD IF THEY 
ARE TAKING LEAVE FOR THE BIRTH OR ADOPTION OF A CHILD.

4. EXCEPT FOR LEAVE TO CARE FOR A COVERED SERVICE MEMBER 
WITH A SERIOUS INJURY OR ILLNESS, THE TOWN USES A ROLLING 12-
MONTH PERIOD TO CALCULATE FMLA ELIGIBILITY.  EACH TIME AN 
EMPLOYEE USES FMLA LEAVE, THE REMAINING LEAVE ENTITLEMENT 
IS THE BALANCE OF THE 12 WEEKS THAT HAS NOT BEEN USED DURING 
THE IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING 12 MONTHS.

5. FOR LEAVE TO CARE FOR A COVERED SERVICE MEMBER WITH A 
SERIOUS INJURY OR ILLNESS,  THE BENEFIT PROVIDES FOR UP TO 26 
WEEKS OF LEAVE  AND THE “SINGLE 12-MONTH PERIOD” BEGINS ON 
THE FIRST DAY THE ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE TAKES FMLA LEAVE TO 
CARE FOR THE COVERED SERVICE MEMBER AND ENDS 12 MONTHS 
AFTER THAT DATE.  

E. SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION IS AN ILLNESS, INJURY, IMPAIRMENT, OR 
PHYSICAL OR MENTAL CONDITION THAT INVOLVES:

1. IMPATIENT CARE OR CONTINUING TREATMENT BY A HEALTH CARE 
PROVIDER.

2. CONTINUING TREATMENT INVOLVES A PERIOD OF INCAPACITY:
a. OF MORE THAN THREE (3) CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS AND 

ANY SUBSEQUENT TREATMENT THAT ALSO INVOLVES 
TREATMENT AT LEAST TWO OR MORE TIMES BY A HEALTH 
CARE PROVIDER;

b. DUE TO PREGNANCY, OR PRENATAL CARE;
c. DUE TO A CHRONIC SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION REQUIRING 

PERIODIC TREATMENT BY A HEALTH CARE PROVIDER OVER AN 
EXTENDED PERIOD OF TIME AND MAY CAUSE EPISODIC RATHER 
THAN A CONTINUING PERIOD OF INCAPACITY (E.G., ASTHMA, 
DIABETES, EPILEPSY);

d. PERMANENT OR LONG-TERM INCAPACITY DUE TO A CONDITION 
FOR WHICH TREATMENT MAY NOT BE EFFECTIVE; OR 

e. ANY PERIOD OF ABSENCE TO RECEIVE MULTIPLE TREATMENTS 
BY A HEALTH CARE PROVIDER EITHER FOR RESTORATIVE 
SURGERY AFTER AN ACCIDENT OR INJURY OR FOR A 
CONDITION SUCH AS CANCER THAT WOULD LIKELY RESULT IN 
A PERIOD OF INCAPACITY OF MORE THAN THREE (3) 
CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS WITHOUT MEDICAL 
TREATMENT.  TREATMENT WOULD NOT INCLUDE ROUTINE 
PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 25 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

F. APPLICATION OF ACCRUED PAID LEAVE

1. ACCRUED PAID ANNUAL AND SICK LEAVE WILL BE APPLIED WHEN 
FMLA LEAVE IS TAKEN FOR ANY REASON OR ANY LENGTH OF TIME.

2. WHEN AN EMPLOYEE HAS USED ALL THEIR SICK OR ANNUAL PAID 
LEAVE, THE EMPLOYEE WILL BE PLACED ON UNPAID LEAVE FOR ANY 
PART OF THE 12 WEEK PERIOD REMAINING.

G. INTERMITTENT LEAVE

1. WHEN PLACED ON OFFICIAL FMLA STATUS, AN EMPLOYEE MAY TAKE 
LEAVE INTERMITTENTLY (A FEW DAYS OR A FEW HOURS AT A TIME), 
OR ON A REDUCED LEAVE SCHEDULE.  AN EMPLOYEE SHOULD MAKE 
REASONABLE EFFORTS TO SCHEDULE THEIR ABSENCES SO AS NOT TO 
UNDULY DISRUPT WORK OPERATIONS.

2. WHEN IT IS NECESSARY FOR THE EMPLOYEE TO TAKE FMLA 
INTERMITTENTLY OR ON A REDUCED LEAVE SCHEDULE, THE 
EMPLOYEE MAY BE REQUIRED TO TRANSFER TEMPORARILY TO A 
POSITION WITH EQUIVALENT PAY AND BENEFITS THAT BETTER 
ACCOMMODATES RECURRING PERIODS OF LEAVE WHEN THE LEAVE 
IS PLANNED BASED ON SCHEDULED MEDICAL TREATMENT.
a. AN EMPLOYEE MAY TAKE LEAVE INTERMITTENTLY OR ON A 

REDUCED LEAVE SCHEDULE FOR BIRTH OR PLACEMENT FOR 
ADOPTION OR FOSTER CARE OF A CHILD AT THE DISCRETION 
OF THE DEPARTMENT HEAD.

H. NOTICE REQUIREMENT

1. AN EMPLOYEE IS REQUIRED TO GIVE THIRTY (30) CALENDAR DAYS’ 
NOTICE IN THE EVENT OF A FORESEEABLE LEAVE.  

2. IN UNEXPECTED OR UNFORESEEABLE SITUATIONS, AN EMPLOYEE 
SHOULD PROVIDE AS MUCH NOTICE AS IS PRACTICABLE.  VERBAL OR 
WRITTEN NOTICE WITHIN ONE OR TWO WORKING DAYS OF WHEN THE 
NEED FOR FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE BECOMES KNOWN IS USUALLY 
SUFFICIENT. 

3. IF THE EMPLOYEE DOES NOT NOTIFY THE DEPARTMENT WITHIN FIVE 
(5) WORKING DAYS OF RETURNING TO WORK THAT THE ABSENCE WAS 
FOR AN FMLA REASON, THE EMPLOYEE CANNOT LATER CLAIM THAT 
THE ABSENCE WAS FOR AN FMLA REASON.

4. A REQUEST FOR FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE SHOULD BE MADE TO THE 
HR DEPARTMENT, EITHER BY THE EMPLOYEE, OR THEIR SUPERVISOR.    



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 26 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

5. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES ON WORKER’S COMPENSATION SHOULD ALSO 
BE EVALUATED FOR FMLA LEAVE. HOWEVER, EMPLOYEES WHO ARE 
RELEASED TO WORK ON TRANSITIONAL/LIGHT DUTY WILL NOT HAVE 
THE MODIFIED DUTY HOURS COUNTED TOWARD FML LEAVE HOURS.

I. MEDICAL CERTIFICATION

1. MEDICAL CERTIFICATION MUST BE PROVIDED BY THE EMPLOYEE 
WITHIN FIFTEEN (15) CALENDAR DAYS AFTER REQUESTED.  THE 
CERTIFICATION SHALL INCLUDE THE CONDITION BEING TREATED, 
THE DATE THE SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION COMMENCED, AND THE 
HEALTH CARE PROVIDER’S BEST MEDICAL JUDGMENT CONCERNING 
THE PROBABLE DURATION OF THE CONDITION.  

2. FOR INCREMENTAL USE OF LEAVE THE CERTIFICATION MUST 
INDICATE MEDICAL NECESSITY FOR A REDUCED WORK SCHEDULE. 

3. THE TOWN RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REQUEST ADDITIONAL MEDICAL 
OPINIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FMLA.

J. EFFECT ON BENEFITS

1. SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS OF THE 
APPLICABLE GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE PLANS, THE TOWN SHALL 
MAINTAIN GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE, INCLUDING 
FAMILY COVERAGE, FOR AN EMPLOYEE ON FMLA LEAVE ON THE 
SAME TERMS AS IF THE EMPLOYEE CONTINUED TO WORK.

2. AN EMPLOYEE, WHO IS ON PAID FMLA LEAVE VIA THE USE OF 
ACCRUED LEAVE, SHALL CONTINUE TO PAY HIS OR HER SHARE OF 
THE INSURANCE PREMIUM, IF ANY, THROUGH PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS.

3. AN EMPLOYEE WHO IS ON UNPAID FMLA LEAVE SHALL MAKE 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE HR AND FINANCE DEPARTMENTS TO 
MAKE PAYMENTS FOR HIS OR HER SHARE OF THE INSURANCE 
PREMIUM, IF ANY.  IF PAYMENT IS MORE THAN THIRTY (30) CALENDAR 
DAYS OVERDUE, COVERAGE WILL BE DROPPED, AFTER FIFTEEN (15) 
CALENDAR DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE IS PROVIDED TO THE EMPLOYEE.  
IN THIS SITUATION, COBRA WILL BE OFFERED.

4. THE TOWN’S OBLIGATION TO MAINTAIN HEALTH BENEFITS UNDER 
THIS SECTION STOPS IF AND WHEN THE EMPLOYEE INFORMS THE 
TOWN OF INTENT NOT TO RETURN TO WORK AT THE END OF THE 
LEAVE PERIOD OR IF THE EMPLOYEE FAILS TO RETURN TO WORK 
WHEN THE FMLA LEAVE ENTITLEMENT IS EXHAUSTED.  IN SOME 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 27 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

CIRCUMSTANCES, THE TOWN MAY RECOVER PREMIUMS IT PAID TO 
MAINTAIN HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR AN EMPLOYEE WHO 
FAILS TO RETURN TO WORK FROM FMLA LEAVE.

5. THE TOWN WILL NOT MAINTAIN OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS 
WHILE AN EMPLOYEE IS ON FMLA LEAVE.  TO MAINTAIN 
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS, THE EMPLOYEE MUST MAKE PAYMENT 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE HR AND FINANCE DEPARTMENTS.

6. BENEFIT ACCUMULATION, SUCH AS ANNUAL, SICK LEAVE OR HOLIDAY 
BENEFITS, WILL BE SUSPENDED DURING ANY FULL PAY PERIOD (80 
HOURS) OF UNPAID LEAVE PORTION OF THE FMLA LEAVE PERIOD AND 
WILL RESUME UPON RETURN TO ACTIVE EMPLOYMENT. USE OF FMLA 
LEAVE IS NOT CONSIDERED A BREAK IN SERVICE WHEN DETERMINING 
ELIGIBILITY FOR VESTING OR FOR PARTICIPATION IN A BENEFIT.

K. RETURN TO WORK

1. AN EMPLOYEE ON FMLA LEAVE SHALL PROVIDE THE HR 
DEPARTMENT WITH AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKING DAYS’ ADVANCE 
NOTICE OF THE DATE THE EMPLOYEE INTENDS TO RETURN TO WORK.

2. AN EMPLOYEE ON FMLA LEAVE FOR THE EMPLOYEE’S OWN SERIOUS 
HEALTH CONDITION SHALL PROVIDE A WRITTEN RELEASE FROM A 
HEALTH CARE PROVIDER INDICATING THAT THE EMPLOYEE MAY 
RESUME THE FULL ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS OF HIS OR HER POSITION 
PRIOR TO OR IMMEDIATELY UPON RETURNING TO WORK.

3. UPON RETURN FROM FMLA LEAVE, THE EMPLOYEE SHALL BE 
RESTORED TO THE EMPLOYEE’S ORIGINAL POSITION, OR TO AN 
EQUIVALENT POSITION WITH EQUIVALENT PAY, BENEFITS AND OTHER 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT.

4. IF THE FMLA LEAVE PERIOD IS INSUFFICIENT AND THE EMPLOYEE IS 
UNABLE TO FULLY PERFORM THE ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS OF HIS OR 
HER POSITION AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE FMLA LEAVE PERIOD, THE 
EMPLOYEE MAY REQUEST ADDITIONAL TIME OFF IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE OTHER LEAVE OF ABSENCE PROVISIONS HEREIN.

5. IF AN EMPLOYEE IS RELEASED TO WORK WITH RESTRICTIONS, THE 
EMPLOYEE MAY BECOME ELIGIBLE FOR LIGHT DUTY.  IN SOME 
CIRCUMSTANCES, IT WILL BECOME NECESSARY TO BEGIN AN 
INTERACTIVE ACCOMMODATION PROCESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
THE AMERICANS FOR DISABILITIES ACT.

6. THE TOWN MAY REQUIRE UPDATED MEDICAL CERTIFICATIONS TO 
SUPPORT THE NEED FOR THE ADDITIONAL LEAVE.  



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 28 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

7. IF THE EMPLOYEE IS UNABLE TO RETURN AFTER THIS TIME, THE 
TOWN MAY INITIATE SEPARATION OF EMPLOYMENT.

L. RETALIATION

1. THE TOWN PROHIBITS RETALIATION TOWARD EMPLOYEES WHO 
UTILIZE FMLA LEAVE. 

SECTION 12.   Bereavement Leave:

Upon the death of a family member, all regular employees who are on active duty (i.e., not on another form of leave 
of absence) are eligible to receive up to three working days of paid leave (not charged to sick leave or annual leave).  
Up to two days of additional paid leave may be granted for out-of-state travel.

Bereavement Leave must be approved by the Department Head and the Town Manager.

For Bereavement Leave purposes, “family member” is defined as a spouse, child, mother, father, mother-in-law, 
father-in-law, step-parent, step-child, brother, sister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, 
grandparent, or grandchild. For bereavement involving other family members or friends, the employee may request 
paid annual vacation leave or unpaid leave. 

SECTION 13.  Transfer of Sick Leave, Annual Leave, or Comp-Time:

It is the policy of the Town of Oro Valley to permit the transfer of compensatory time-off, annual leave, and/or sick 
leave between employees subject to the following conditions:

1. The decision to authorize the transfer is at the sole discretion of the responsible Department Head(s) 
with concurrence by the Human Resources Director, and advance approval from the Town Manager.

2. The transfer is made on a dollar-for-dollar basis (i.e., higher salary computed into lower salary hours or
lower salary computed into higher salary hours).  This is to ensure that the Town does not incur any 
additional costs or obligations, and is not adversely impacted by allowing the transfer of time.

3. Requests for transfer of compensatory time-off, annual leave, or sick leave must be made in writing to 
the responsible Department Head(s) and the Town Manager prior to the approval of any transfer.  The 
specific reason for the transfer request must be included along with any documentation supporting the 
request.

4. Transfers may be granted for extenuating circumstances normally limited to the serious illness of the 
recipient and only if the recipient is near or at a zero balance for sick leave, compensatory time and 
annual leave.  Exceptions must be approved in writing by the Town Manager.

5. Transfers should only be implemented for the anticipated period of absence for the affected employee 
(i.e., the recipient should not be left with a large sick leave balance following their period of absence).

6. The recipient may only use the donated sick leave for reasons complying with the normal terms of sick 
leave found elsewhere in this policy.

7. Individual employees may not transfer more than 40 hours of sick leave in a single pay period.

10-13 LEAVE DONATIONS

A. EMPLOYEES ARE ENCOURAGED TO MANAGE THEIR PAID TIME OFF TO 
ALLOW FOR MAJOR LIFE EVENTS.  IN THE EVENT THAT, EVEN WITH GOOD 
LEAVE MANAGEMENT, AN EMPLOYEE EXHAUSTS ALL HIS/HER PAID TIME 



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 29 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

OFF, THE TOWN ALLOWS ALL EMPLOYEES TO DONATE UP TO FORTY (40) 
HOURS OF ANNUAL LEAVE EVERY TWELVE MONTHS, WHILE MAINTAINING A 
MINIMUM OF EIGHTY (80) ANNUAL LEAVE HOURS.  EMPLOYEES WITH SICK 
LEAVE BALANCES IN EXCESS OF 480 HOURS MAY DONATE UP TO EIGHTY (80) 
HOURS OF SICK LEAVE EVERY TWELVE MONTHS.

B. ELIGIBILITY TO RECEIVE DONATED LEAVE HOURS

1. MUST BE ON AN APPROVED FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT, AND

2. MUST HAVE EXHAUSTED ALL FORMS OF PAID TIME OFF, INCLUDING 
SICK LEAVE, COMPENSATORY TIME AND ANNUAL LEAVE TIME; AND 

3. MUST BE ELIGIBLE TO EARN AND USE DONATED HOURS IN ORDER TO 
ACCEPT CONTRIBUTIONS.

C. REQUESTING DONATED LEAVE TIME

1. TO REQUEST DONATED LEAVE TIME THE REQUESTING EMPLOYEE 
MUST COMPLETE A REQUEST FOR DONATION FORM AND SUBMIT IT TO 
THE HR DEPARTMENT.  IN THE EVENT THE EMPLOYEE IS UNABLE TO 
COMPLETE THE FORM, THE EMPLOYEE’S SUPERVISOR MAY 
COMPLETE AND SUBMIT THE FORM.  UPON RECEIPT OF THE 
APPROVED REQUEST FOR DONATION FORM, THE HR DEPARTMENT 
WILL SEND AN EMAIL TO ALL TOWN EMPLOYEES INFORMING THEM 
OF THE EMPLOYEE’S NEED, AND REQUESTING DONATED HOURS.
a. AN EMPLOYEE MAY RECEIVE THE LESSER OF 480 DONATED 

HOURS OR THE AMOUNT OF LEAVE TIME NEEDED TO BRING THE 
EMPLOYEE TO THE END OF THE EMPLOYEE’S FAMILY MEDICAL 
LEAVE ACT TIME.  THE PAID LEAVE HOURS THE EMPLOYEE HAD 
ACCRUED AT THE TIME THEY WENT ON LEAVE, AND THE 
DONATED LEAVE HOURS CANNOT CONTINUE PAST THE TOTAL
OF 480 HOURS ALLOWED BY THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE 
ACT.

b. EMPLOYEES USING DONATED TIME DO NOT ACCRUE ANNUAL 
AND/OR SICK LEAVE HOURS.  

c. AN EMPLOYEE MAY NOT DONATE LEAVE IF THAT EMPLOYEE 
HAS LESS THAN A TOTAL OF EIGHTY (80) HOURS OF ANNUAL 
LEAVE ACCRUED AFTER THE DONATED TIME IS DEDUCTED 
FROM THEIR ANNUAL LEAVE BALANCE. 

d. AN EMPLOYEE MAY NOT DONATE SICK LEAVE HOURS IF THAT 
EMPLOYEE HAS LESS THAN 480 SICK LEAVE HOURS.  AN 
EMPLOYEE WITH OVER 480 SICK LEAVE HOURS MAY DONATE UP 
TO EIGHTY (80) HOURS OF SICK LEAVE.



PERSONNEL POLICY 10 Page 30 of 30

ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES Effective Date: TBD

e. HOURS IN AN EMPLOYEE’S ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE OR 
COMPENSATORY TIME BALANCE MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED 
TO ANOTHER EMPLOYEE FOR ANY REASON.

f. EMPLOYEES WHO RETURN TO WORK ON FULL-TIME STATUS 
AND HAVE REMAINING DONATED LEAVE HOURS WILL NOT BE 
ABLE TO KEEP THE HOURS IN THEIR OWN SICK LEAVE OR 
ANNUAL LEAVE ACCOUNT.  THE REMAINING DONATED HOURS 
WILL BE RETURNED ON A PRO-RATED BASIS TO THE EMPLOYEE 
WHO DONATED THE TIME.

g. ALL DONATIONS OF LEAVE TIME ARE TREATED AS 
CONFIDENTIAL AND ARE NOT SHARED WITH THE RECEIVING 
EMPLOYEE.



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 1 of 9

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

11.1 GENERAL

A. Each employee is expected to familiarize themselves with his or her job performance 
expectations and standards; with the rules, procedures and standards of conduct established by the 
town council, town manager, and his or her department.  Any employee who does not meet his or 
her job standards set out by such performance criteria, rules, procedures, and standards of conduct 
may be subject to adverse personnel actions.

B. The town’s disciplinary policy and procedures are designed to provide a structured corrective 
action process and prevent a recurrence of the undesirable and/or performance issue.  The town’s 
discipline procedures are generally progressive, however the seriousness of the offense may lead 
to immediate dismissal.  In addition any combination of disciplinary actions may be used.

C. All disciplinary actions set forth in this section are governed solely by the due process procedures 
set forth herein.  Disciplinary actions set forth in this section are not subject to the grievance 
procedures set forth in personnel policy 18. 

D. Coverage

1. The disciplinary process is not available to employees who are on his or her original 
probation period or are classified as part-time at-will non-benefit eligible employees.  

E. Relief from duty  

1. Nothing in this section shall preclude the department head from immediately placing an 
employee on paid administrative leave pending application of these disciplinary actions and 
procedures.  

F. Responsibility of the town manager

1. the town manager, or designee, may exercise the powers of the department head provided for 
in this section and must be notified of any suspensions without pay, demotions or involuntary 
dismissals prior to these actions being taken by the department head.  For court employees, 
the town magistrate will exercise the autonomy required to maintain proper separation of 
powers.

11.2 CONDUCT OR PERFORMANCE that may REQUIRE DISCIPLINE for 
CAUSE:

A. Depending on the seriousness of the situation and surrounding circumstances, including repeated 
offenses or chronic poor performance, the Department Head may authorize any disciplinary 
action deemed appropriate. 

B. When considering or enforcing discipline, the supervisor is required to comply with federal and 
state laws.



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 2 of 9

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

C. Employees may disciplined for the following reasons:

1. Dishonesty.
2. Falsification of Town documents or records, including application for employment.
3. Inefficiency.
4. Neglect of duty.
5. Unauthorized absenteeism.
6. Unauthorized tardiness.
7. Malingering.
8. Insubordination, including, but not limited to, conduct which is unruly.
9. Commission or Conviction of a crime.
10. Misuse of Town property.
11. Failure to perform job duties and responsibilities.
12. Failure to maintain minimum qualifications for position.
13. Incompetence.
14. Engaging in prohibited political activities.
15. Discrimination or failure to abide by Equal Employment Opportunity regulations.
16. Any action, on or off the job that brings discredit to the Town.
17. Possessing, dispensing, or being under the influence of alcohol, a narcotic, barbiturate, 

marijuana, or a tranquilizing or hallucinogenic drug, while on duty, except in accordance 
with medical authorization or in the lawful performance of the employee’s regular assigned 
duties.

18. Violation of any Town codes, policies, procedures, administrative directives, ordinances, or 
State or Federal law.

19. Negligence.
20. Sexual or other workplace harassment.
21. Fraud in securing appointment or securing or attempting to secure worker’s compensation 

benefits.
22. Discourtesy to another employee or member of the public.
23. Any other reason deemed valid by Town Administration.

11.3 DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

A. Informal discipline 

Informal discipline includes immediate actions taken by supervisors to correct undesirable actions 
or to address employee performance issues.  Informal disciplinary actions are not appealable or
grievable.   

1. Verbal counseling.  A supervisor may engage in verbal counseling with an employee at any 
time to address an issue with performance or conduct.  The verbal counseling session is to be 
documented by the supervisor and acknowledged by the employee.  The document will then 
be recorded in the employee’s department supervisor file.  

2. Letter of counseling.  A supervisor may issue a letter of counseling to an employee at any 



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 3 of 9

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

time to correct or improve improper conduct or performance.  The letter shall contain the 
specifics of the improper conduct or performance; a plan for improvement; and the date for a 
follow-up meeting.  A copy of the letter, with the employee’s acknowledgement and written 
response, shall be recorded in the employee’s department supervisor file.  

B. Formal discipline.

1. Letter of reprimand.  

a. A department head or designee may issue a letter of reprimand to an employee to 
admonish an employee for serious or repetitive deficient performance or misconduct.  
The letter will contain: 

i. The specifics of the deficient performance or misconduct; 
ii. The action plan for improvement; 
iii. The consequences of repeated infractions; and 
iv. The date of the follow-up meeting.  

b. A copy of the letter, with the employee’s acknowledgement and/or response, will be 
recorded in the employee’s official personnel file in the town’s human resources 
department.  The letter of reprimand is not appealable or grievable.  

2. Performance improvement plan

a. This is a formal written plan to help the employee improve performance or modify 
behavior.  Through the plan, the supervisor should identify the performance or behavior 
issues that need to be corrected and define the plan of action to guide the improvement 
and/or corrective actions.  

b. An effective written plan includes the following parts:
i. Clear identification of the performance to be improved or the behavior to be 

corrected
ii. Clear expectations and metrics about the work to be performed or behavior that must 

change
iii. Identify the support and resources available to help the employee make the required 

improvements
iv. Establish a plan for reviewing the employee’s progress and providing feedback to the 

employee for the duration of the plan
v. Specify the possible consequences if performance as identified in the plan are not 

met.

c. Performance improvement plan s will be for no less than (30) thirty working days and no 
more than one hundred-eighty (180) working days.

d. The plan, after signatures are obtained, will be forwarded to human resources to be 
recorded in the employee’s official file.



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 4 of 9

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

3. Disciplinary Suspension 

a. A suspension is considered to be a significant disciplinary action and may be used by a 
department head or designee for more serious incidents or repetitions of improper 
performance or conduct.

b. A department head or designee may suspend any employee without pay for cause.   
Employees may be suspended for any appropriate length of time in full day increments 
not to exceed thirty (30) working days.  The department head or designee must follow the 
pre-action meeting process as outlined below.

4. Demotion

a. A demotion for a disciplinary reason is considered to be a significant disciplinary action 
and may be used for more serious incidents or repetitions of improper performance or 
conduct.

b. A department head or designee may demote an employee, for disciplinary reasons 
provided the employee meets the minimum qualifications of the assigned classification. 
The department head or designee will follow the pre-action meeting process as outlined 
below.

c. Except as otherwise provided in these rules, a demoted employee shall not be required to 
serve a probationary period in the position to which he or she was demoted.

5. Dismissal

a. Dismissal for a disciplinary reason is the most serious disciplinary action and must be 
used for the most serious incidents or repetitions of improper performance or conduct.  

b. A regular status employee may be dismissed from employment by a department head or 
designee. The department head or designee must follow the pre-action meeting process as 
outlined below. 

11.4 INVESTIGATORY SUSPENSION

A. Department head or designee may suspend an employee with pay to effect an investigation or 
resolution of conduct. The Department Head, Human Resources Director and Town Manager 
must be notified of such investigatory suspensions before taking action if possible or within 24 
hours if not possible due to the seriousness or expediency of the situation. Investigatory 
Suspension with pay is not a disciplinary action and is not subject to the Town’s grievance 
procedure. The employee shall be contacted by the Human Resources Director, or designee, with 
information about the investigation and any further actions to be taken at that time.



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 5 of 9

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

B. Upon consultation with the Human Resources Director and with the approval of the Town 
Manager, a paid administrative suspension may be extended.

11.5 INVESTIGATORY INTERVIEWS OF EMPLOYEES

A. If an employee or the department head or designee reasonably believes that an investigation 
interview could result in suspension, demotion or dismissal, the employee may request to have a
representative present.

1. The representative must be available on reasonable notice and be of no cost to the town.

2. The representative must be an employee and shall not be an attorney.

3. The representative shall participate in the interview only as an observer; however the 
employee shall be permitted reasonable breaks of limited duration for telephonic or in person 
consultation with others, including an attorney, who is immediately available.

4. At the conclusion of the interview, the employee will be permitted to consult with the 
representative and may make a statement not to exceed five minutes.

B. Prior to the interview the employee shall be provided a written notice containing the following:

1. all alleged facts that are the basis of the investigation;

2. the specific nature of the investigation;

3. the employee’s status in the investigation;

4. all known allegations of misconduct that are the reasons for the interview; and,

5. The employee’s right of representation.

C. An interview does not have to be stopped in order to issue another written notice of allegations or
based on information provided by the employee during the interview.  

D. The department director or designee does not have to disclose any fact that would impede the 
investigation.

E. The rights listed in both a. and b. above do not apply to an interview of an employee that is:

1. In the normal course of duty, counseling or instruction or an informal verbal admonishment 
by, or other routine or unplanned contact with, a supervisor or any other department head.

2. Preliminary questioning to determine the scope of the allegations or if an investigation is 
necessary.



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 6 of 9

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

3. Conducted in the course of a criminal investigation.

4. Conducted in the course of a polygraph examination.

11.6 PRE-ACTION MEETING

A. Notice of charges

1. Before an employee can be suspended, demoted, or dismissed, the department head or 
designee in consultation with human resources will prepare a written notice of charges in 
sufficient detail to apprise the employee of the specific reasons formal disciplinary actions 
against the employee are pending.  the notice of charges will contain:  

a. an explanation of the department’s evidence; 

b. the rules, policies and/or procedures that were violated; 

c. the date, time and location of the meeting; and 

d. A summary of the employee’s rights for the pre-action meeting.

2. The notice of charges will be delivered to the employee either by personal delivery or by 
certified mail to the employee’s last known address on file with human resources.  A copy of 
the notice of charges will be filed with the town human resources.

3. Employees will be provided at least three days notice in advance of any pre-action meeting.

11.7 PRE-ACTION Meeting

A. The department head or designee will conduct the meeting in conjunction with human resources.

B. The employee is not required to attend the meeting but must be allowed time away from his/her 
work responsibilities to attend without being charged any leave.  

C. The employee may respond in writing or in person to present reasons, along with information and 
documentation to refute the proposed disciplinary action and have a non-attorney representative 
who is from the same department present at the meeting.  The meeting will not be unreasonably 
delayed to wait for the representative. The representative will serve in an advisory capacity only 
and may not speak for the employee or ask questions on the employee’s behalf.

D. The department head or designee will make a recommendation to support, modify or revoke the 
proposed actions listed in the notice of charges after the meeting has concluded.  

1. If the department head or designee decides to take disciplinary action, the department head or 
designee will give the employee a written notice. the notice must include:



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 7 of 9

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

a. the specific action to be taken, 

b. the specific reasons for the action, 

c. the effective date of the action, and 

d. The employee’s right to appeal the decision within ten working days.  

2. The notice will be delivered to the employee either by personal delivery or by certified mail 
to the employee’s last known address on file with human resources.  A copy of the notice will 
be filed with human resources.

11.8 APPEAL OF A DISCIPLINARY ACTION

A. Regular status employees may appeal a dismissal, demotion, and/or suspension.  

1. The written appeal must be filed with the Human Resources Director and the department 
head within ten (10) working days from the date of service of the disciplinary decision.  

2. The request for an appeal must state the facts, upon which the appeal is based, identify all 
people and agencies involved, contain all the documents to be reviewed, and the action 
requested of the town manager or designee.  

3. The appeal will be reviewed by the town manager or designee who may confer with others as 
required, investigate the appeal, and communicate a decision in writing to all concerned 
parties within ten (10) working days upon receipt of the appeal.

B. Final appeal

1. Regular status employees may appeal the decision of the town manager or designee within 
ten 10 working days of the decision by submitting a written request to the HR Director and 
copying the Legal Services Director.

2. The Human Resources Director will select a hearing officer (ho) and set a hearing date.

a. In any appeal, the town of Oro Valley or the grievant may request a change of hearing 
officer.  The request must be granted the first time.  Any subsequent requests may be 
granted only upon a showing that a fair and impartial review cannot be obtained due to 
the prejudice of the assigned ho.  The HR Director, with the consultation of the town 
attorney, shall decide whether a showing of prejudice has been made.

3. Not  less than ten (10) working days prior to the hearing date, the appellant shall submit to the 
hearing officer, and copy the Legal Services Director, a position statement setting forth the 
arguments, potential witnesses and evidence they anticipate will be introduced for the review.  
All documentation that the appellant intends to present or rely upon for the hearing shall be 
attached to the position statement.  



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 8 of 9

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

4. Not less than ten (10) working days prior to the review, the Legal Services Director or 
designee shall submit to the hearing officer, and disclose to the appellant, a responding 
position statement including potential witnesses and evidence to be introduced or relied upon 
during the hearing.  

a. The Legal Services Director may request a rescheduling of the hearing date if they do not 
receive the appellant’s position statement 20 working days prior to the hearing.   

5. Hearing procedures

a. The burden of proof shall be on the town.  

b. Technical rules of evidence do not apply other than privileges recognized by Arizona 
law. 

c. The review shall be recorded and the record may be transcribed upon request. 

d. The party requesting transcription shall be responsible for any costs incurred.  

e. Unless requested otherwise by the appellant, reviews and hearings are conducted 
privately.

  
f. The hearing shall proceed as follows:

i. The ho will begin the hearing by introducing all parties, summarizing the issues, and 
identifying relief requested and outline the review sequence.

ii. The only people present during the hearing shall be the hearing officer, the appellant 
and their representative (if applicable), the Legal Services Director or designee, the 
HR Director, the town of Oro Valley representative and any witnesses the hearing 
officer requests be present.

iii. The appellant will present his/her evidence that the decision should be changed.  
iv. The Legal Services Director will present their evidence and support findings.    
v. Each witness for the town of Oro Valley and the appellant may only be questioned by 

the hearing officer.
vi. The appellant or his/her representative may make comments or closing remarks.
vii. The town’s representative may make comments or closing remarks.

g. Hearing officer decision

i. A decision will be issued within fifteen working days.
ii. The hearing officer may order that the action of the town stand, that a lesser action or 

consequence be imposed, and/or that some or all of the relief requested by the 
appellant be granted.  

iii. Except when the decision affirms the dismissal of an employee, the appellant’s 
seniority rights shall not be affected by the decision.  

iv. If the ho orders to reinstate an employee who has been suspended or discharged, they 



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 9 of 9

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

shall specify as part of their decision whether the employee shall receive back pay for 
all or part of any time lost as a result of town action. 

v. Copies of the written recommendation shall be sent to the Legal Services Director, 
HR Director and the appellant.  

vi. The ho’s decision is final and there are no additional appeals available through the 
town’s appeals process. 



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 1 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

11.1 SECTION 1.  PURPOSE:GENERAL

A. In order to correct unacceptable conduct or deteriorating performance, disciplinary actions may be 
taken by the immediate supervisor of an employee, or the Department Head or Town Manager. 
Disciplinary actions include, but are not limited to:  documented counseling sessions; verbal 
reprimands; written reprimands; suspensions without pay; probationary periods; demotions; and 
dismissal from employment.  An employee may request a copy of any disciplinary documentation 
from their supervisor or their personnel file.

B. The department should take action within (30) working days of the occurrence or discovery of the 
infraction, unless extenuating circumstances exist including, but not limited to, investigation (s) of
wrongful conduct, discrimination/sexual harassment or accident.  The disciplinary action will depend 
on the totality of the circumstances including, but not limited to, the employee’s disciplinary history, 
recent or similar infraction (s) and the severity of the infraction(s).  Specific disciplinary actions are 
subject to Town grievance procedures.

A. EACH EMPLOYEE IS EXPECTED TO FAMILIARIZE THEMSELVES WITH HIS OR HER
JOB PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS AND STANDARDS; WITH THE RULES, 
PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS OF CONDUCT ESTABLISHED BY THE TOWN 
COUNCIL, TOWN MANAGER, AND HIS OR HER DEPARTMENT.  ANY EMPLOYEE 
WHO DOES NOT MEET HIS OR HER JOB STANDARDS SET OUT BY SUCH 
PERFORMANCE CRITERIA, RULES, PROCEDURES, AND STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE PERSONNEL ACTIONS.

B. THE TOWN’S DISCIPLINARY POLICY AND PROCEDURES ARE DESIGNED TO 
PROVIDE A STRUCTURED CORRECTIVE ACTION PROCESS AND PREVENT A 
RECURRENCE OF THE UNDESIRABLE AND/OR PERFORMANCE ISSUE.  THE TOWN’S
DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES ARE GENERALLY PROGRESSIVE, HOWEVER THE 
SERIOUSNESS OF THE OFFENSE MAY LEAD TO IMMEDIATE DISMISSAL.  IN 
ADDITION ANY COMBINATION OF DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS MAY BE USED.

C. ALL DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION ARE GOVERNED 
SOLELY BY THE DUE PROCESS PROCEDURES SET FORTH HEREIN.  DISCIPLINARY 
ACTIONS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE GRIEVANCE 
PROCEDURES SET FORTH IN PERSONNEL POLICY 18. 

D. COVERAGE. 

THE DISCIPLINARY PROCESS IS NOT AVAILABLE TO EMPLOYEES WHO ARE ON 
HIS OR HER ORIGINAL PROBATION PERIOD OR ARE CLASSIFIED AS PART-TIME 
AT-WILL NON-BENEFIT ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES.  

E. RELIEF FROM DUTY.  

NOTHING IN THIS SECTION SHALL PRECLUDE THE DEPARTMENT HEAD FROM 
IMMEDIATELY PLACING AN EMPLOYEE ON PAID ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE 
PENDING APPLICATION OF THESE DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS AND PROCEDURES.  

F. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE TOWN MANAGER: 

THE TOWN MANAGER, OR DESIGNEE, MAY EXERCISE THE POWERS OF THE 
DEPARTMENT HEAD PROVIDED FOR IN THIS SECTION AND MUST BE NOTIFIED OF 



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 2 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

ANY SUSPENSIONS WITHOUT PAY, DEMOTIONS OR INVOLUNTARY DISMISSALS 
PRIOR TO THESE ACTIONS BEING TAKEN BY THE DEPARTMENT HEAD.  FOR 
COURT EMPLOYEES, THE TOWN MAGISTRATE WILL EXERCISE THE AUTONOMY 
REQUIRED TO MAINTAIN PROPER SEPARATION OF POWERS.

SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS:

Appointing Authority - The Town Manager or other persons authorized by the Town of Oro Valley to make 
employment decisions.

Working Days - Monday thru Friday, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m.  Holidays recognized by the Town of Oro Valley are not 
considered working days.

Disciplinary Action – Written reprimand, demotion, suspension, reduction in pay/position or discharge imposed for 
just cause.

Just cause – Justification to administer discipline to a Town employee when a Town code, policy, procedure, or 
administrative directive is violated. 

SECTION 3. LEVEL OF RESPONSIBILITY:

Responsibility of the Immediate Supervisor (other than Department Heads):  Immediate Supervisors shall have the 
authority to give documented counseling, recommend placing employees on probationary period, and issue either 
verbal or written reprimands, and to recommend more serious disciplinary action to the Department Head. As 
needed, written reprimands shall be discussed with the Human Resources Director (or designee) prior to being 
given.

Responsibility of the Department Head:  In addition to the responsibilities of an immediate supervisor, place 
employees on probationary period and in consultation with the Human Resources Director, the Department Head 
may authorize suspension without pay for periods up to thirty (30) working days, demote employees within a pay 
grade or from one pay grade to another or from one classification to another, dismiss employees from Town 
employment. 

Responsibility of the Town Manager: The Town Manager, or designee, may exercise the powers of the Department 
Head provided for in this section and must be notified of any suspensions without pay, demotions or involuntary 
dismissals prior to these action being taken by the Department Head.  For court employees, the Town Magistrate 
will exercise the autonomy required to maintain proper separation of powers.

At every level of responsibility, the following shall be considered when implementing disciplinary action for just 
cause:

The employee was forewarned of the consequences of his or her actions.
The violated rule or order reasonably relates to the business efficiency and performance expectations of the 
Town.
A thorough, fair and objective investigation was conducted.
The investigation produced substantial evidence or proof of employee’s guilt.
The codes, policies, procedures or administrative directives were applied evenhandedly and without 
discrimination.
The discipline is reasonably related to the seriousness of the conduct and/or performance and the 
employee’s past record.



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 3 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

11.2 SECTION 4.  CONDUCT OR PERFORMANCE that may REQUIRE DISCIPLINE for CAUSE:

A. Depending on the seriousness of the situation and surrounding circumstances, including repeated 
offenses or chronic poor performance, the Department Head may authorize any disciplinary action 
deemed appropriate. Progressive discipline is not required under Town policies and procedures.  

B. When considering or enforcing discipline, the supervisor is required to comply with federal and state 
laws.

C. EMPLOYEES MAY DISCIPLINED FOR THE FOLLOWING REASONS:

1. Dishonesty.
2. Falsification of Town documents or records, including application for employment.
3. Inefficiency.
4. Neglect of duty.
5. Unauthorized absenteeism.
6. Unauthorized tardiness.
7. Malingering.
8. Insubordination, including, but not limited to, conduct which is unruly.
9. Commission or Conviction of a crime.
10. Misuse of Town property.
11. Failure to perform job duties and responsibilities.
12. Failure to maintain minimum qualifications for position.
13. Incompetence.
14. Engaging in prohibited political activities.
15. Discrimination or failure to abide by Equal Employment Opportunity regulations.
16. Any action, on or off the job that brings discredit to the Town.
17. Possessing, dispensing, or being under the influence of alcohol, a narcotic, barbiturate, marijuana, 

or a tranquilizing or hallucinogenic drug, while on duty, except in accordance with medical 
authorization or in the lawful performance of the employee’s regular assigned duties.

18. Violation of any Town codes, policies, procedures, administrative directives, ordinances, or State 
or Federal law.

19. Negligence.
20. Sexual or other workplace harassment.
21. Fraud in securing appointment or securing or attempting to secure worker’s compensation 

benefits.
22. Discourtesy to another employee or member of the public.
23. Any other reason deemed valid by Town Administration.

11.3 SECTION 5.  TYPES of DISCIPLINE DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS:

A. INFORMAL DISCIPLINE.  

INFORMAL DISCIPLINE INCLUDES IMMEDIATE ACTIONS TAKEN BY SUPERVISORS 
TO CORRECT UNDESIRABLE ACTIONS OR TO ADDRESS EMPLOYEE 
PERFORMANCE ISSUES.  INFORMAL DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS ARE NOT 
APPEALABLE OR GRIEVABLE.   



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 4 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

1. VERBAL COUNSELING.  A SUPERVISOR MAY ENGAGE IN VERBAL COUNSELING 
WITH AN EMPLOYEE AT ANY TIME TO ADDRESS AN ISSUE WITH 
PERFORMANCE OR CONDUCT.  THE VERBAL COUNSELING SESSION IS TO BE 
DOCUMENTED BY THE SUPERVISOR AND ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE 
EMPLOYEE.  THE DOCUMENT WILL THEN BE RECORDED IN THE EMPLOYEE’S 
DEPARTMENT SUPERVISOR FILE.  

2. LETTER OF COUNSELING.  A SUPERVISOR MAY ISSUE A LETTER OF 
COUNSELING TO AN EMPLOYEE AT ANY TIME TO CORRECT OR IMPROVE 
IMPROPER CONDUCT OR PERFORMANCE.  THE LETTER SHALL CONTAIN THE 
SPECIFICS OF THE IMPROPER CONDUCT OR PERFORMANCE; A PLAN FOR 
IMPROVEMENT; AND THE DATE FOR A FOLLOW-UP MEETING.  A COPY OF THE 
LETTER, WITH THE EMPLOYEE’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND WRITTEN 
RESPONSE, SHALL BE RECORDED IN THE EMPLOYEE’S DEPARTMENT 
SUPERVISOR FILE   

A.Documented Counseling Session with or without Verbal Reprimand: meetings between the employee and 
immediate supervisor or Department Head, for the purpose of improving conduct or performance that has begun to 
show the need for corrective action. Counseling sessions may include a reprimand communicated verbally or in 
writing to the employee by the immediate supervisor to specify conduct or performance that does not meet 
expectations. The session is documented to indicate date and nature of the concern, and any improvement actions 
agreed upon. The document will be kept by the supervisor or department head in accordance with Arizona Public 
Record laws and a copy provided to the employee. Normally, the document does not become part of the Town 
personnel file unless improvement is not made, however, reference to the counseling session or need for 
improvement may be included in the annual performance appraisal or if further disciplinary action occurs.  

B. FORMAL DISCIPLINE.

1. LETTER OF REPRIMAND.  

a. A DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE MAY ISSUE A LETTER OF REPRIMAND 
TO AN EMPLOYEE TO ADMONISH AN EMPLOYEE FOR SERIOUS OR 
REPETITIVE DEFICIENT PERFORMANCE OR MISCONDUCT.  THE LETTER 
WILL CONTAIN: 

i. THE SPECIFICS OF THE DEFICIENT PERFORMANCE OR MISCONDUCT; 
ii. THE ACTION PLAN FOR IMPROVEMENT; 
iii. THE CONSEQUENCES OF REPEATED INFRACTIONS; AND 
iv. THE DATE OF THE FOLLOW-UP MEETING.  

b. A COPY OF THE LETTER, WITH THE EMPLOYEE’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
AND/OR RESPONSE, WILL BE RECORDED IN THE EMPLOYEE’S OFFICIAL 
PERSONNEL FILE IN THE TOWN’S HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT.  THE 
LETTER OF REPRIMAND IS NOT APPEALABLE OR GRIEVABLE.  

B.Written reprimand: communicated in writing to an employee from an Appointing Authority. The written 
reprimand shall specify:

1)the conduct or performance that does not meet expectations,
2)the impact of the unacceptable conduct or performance,
3)future expectations to improve the conduct or performance, and
4)potential future actions/outcomes in the event the employee is unable or unwilling to improve as expected.



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 5 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

The written reprimand document is placed in the official Town personnel file and retained in 
accordance with the State of Arizona Records Retention and Disposition Schedule.  A Written 
Reprimand requires an Appointing Authority to provide a Notice of Intent to Discipline – Non-
Dismissal in accordance with SECTION 8.

Probationary Period: a period of time during which an employee’s conduct or performance on the job will be 
closely evaluated for needed improvement in order to meet expectations, as opposed to an Introductory Period.  A 
probationary period is normally imposed in response to repeated unacceptable conduct or the inability to improve 
performance to an acceptable level.  Probationary periods will be for no less than (30) working days and no more 
than 6 months. The probationary period will be communicated to the employee in writing, with the notice retained in 
the personnel file in accordance with the State of Arizona Records Retention and Disposition Schedule.  The notice 
will include:

a document (normally a written reprimand), to communicate the need for improvement during the probationary 
period;
a performance improvement plan, including resources or other measures available to assist the employee in 
successfully completing the probationary period.
an explanation of the consequences if adequate improvement is not demonstrated.

2. PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

a. THIS IS A FORMAL WRITTEN PLAN TO HELP THE EMPLOYEE IMPROVE 
PERFORMANCE OR MODIFY BEHAVIOR.  THROUGH THE PLAN, THE 
SUPERVISOR SHOULD IDENTIFY THE PERFORMANCE OR BEHAVIOR ISSUES
THAT NEEDS TO BE CORRECTED AND DEFINE THE PLAN OF ACTION TO 
GUIDE THE IMPROVEMENT AND/OR CORRECTIVE ACTIONS.  

b. AN EFFECTIVE WRITTEN PLAN INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING PARTS:
i. CLEAR IDENTIFICATION OF THE PERFORMANCE TO BE IMPROVED OR 

THE BEHAVIOR TO BE CORRECTED
ii. CLEAR EXPECTATIONS AND METRICS ABOUT THE WORK TO BE 

PERFORMED OR BEHAVIOR THAT MUST CHANGE
iii. IDENTIFY THE SUPPORT AND RESOURCES AVAILABLE TO HELP THE 

EMPLOYEE MAKE THE REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS
iv. ESTABLISH A PLAN FOR REVIEWING THE EMPLOYEE’S PROGRESS AND 

PROVIDING FEEDBACK TO THE EMPLOYEE FOR THE DURATION OF 
THE PLAN

v. SPECIFY THE POSSIBLE CONSEQUENCES IF PERFORMANCE AS 
IDENTIFIED IN THE PLAN ARE NOT MET.

c. PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT PLAN S WILL BE FOR NO LESS THAN (30) 
THIRTY WORKING DAYS AND NO MORE THAN ONE HUNDRED-EIGHTY (180) 
WORKING DAYS.

d. THE PLAN, AFTER SIGNATURES ARE OBTAINED, WILL BE FORWARDED TO 
HUMAN RESOURCES TO BE RECORDED IN THE EMPLOYEE’S OFFICIAL 
FILE.

3. DISCIPLINARY Suspension:
a. A SUSPENSION IS CONSIDERED TO BE A SIGNIFICANT DISCIPLINARY 

ACTION AND MAY BE USED BY A DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE FOR 
MORE SERIOUS INCIDENTS OR REPETITIONS OF IMPROPER 
PERFORMANCE OR CONDUCT.

b. A DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE MAY SUSPEND ANY EMPLOYEE 
WITHOUT PAY FOR CAUSE.   EMPLOYEES MAY BE SUSPENDED FOR ANY 
APPROPRIATE LENGTH OF TIME IN FULL DAY INCREMENTS NOT TO 



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 6 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

EXCEED THIRTY (30) WORKING DAYS.  THE DEPARTMENT HEAD OR 
DESIGNEE MUST FOLLOW THE PRE-ACTION MEETING PROCESS AS 
OUTLINED BELOW.

c. a period of suspension from work without pay for up to (30) working days.  Suspensions shall 
be accompanied by written notification of the reason for the suspension. Such written notice 
will be kept in the personnel file and retained in accordance with the State of Arizona Records 
Retention and Disposition Schedule. A Suspension requires a Notice of Intent to Discipline –
Non-Dismissal in accordance with SECTION 8.  

4. Demotion
a. A DEMOTION FOR A DISCIPLINARY REASON IS CONSIDERED TO BE A 

SIGNIFICANT DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND MAY BE USED FOR MORE 
SERIOUS INCIDENTS OR REPETITIONS OF IMPROPER PERFORMANCE OR
CONDUCT.

b. A DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE MAY DEMOTE AN EMPLOYEE, FOR 
DISCIPLINARY REASONS PROVIDED THE EMPLOYEE MEETS THE MINIMUM 
QUALIFICATIONS OF THE ASSIGNED CLASSIFICATION. THE DEPARTMENT 
HEAD OR DESIGNEE WILL FOLLOW THE PRE-ACTION MEETING PROCESS 
AS OUTLINED BELOW.

c. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THESE RULES, A DEMOTED 
EMPLOYEE SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED TO SERVE A PROBATIONARY 
PERIOD IN THE POSITION TO WHICH HE OR SHE WAS DEMOTED.

d. involuntary reassignment of the employee to a position in a lower level classification than the 
current job, more suitable to their abilities based on inability or unwillingness to meet the 
expectations of the current job classification.  An involuntary Demotion requires a Notice of 
Intent to Discipline – Non-Dismissal in accordance with SECTION 8.

5. Dismissal
a. DISMISSAL FOR A DISCIPLINARY REASON IS THE MOST SERIOUS 

DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND MUST BE USED FOR THE MOST SERIOUS 
INCIDENTS OR REPETITIONS OF IMPROPER PERFORMANCE OR CONDUCT.  

b. A REGULAR STATUS EMPLOYEE MAY BE DISMISSED FROM EMPLOYMENT 
BY A DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE. THE DEPARTMENT HEAD OR 
DESIGNEE MUST FOLLOW THE PRE-ACTION MEETING PROCESS AS 
OUTLINED BELOW. 

6. involuntary termination of the employee from employment with the Town. The employee will be 
provided with an opportunity to grieve the dismissal in accordance with SECTION 7 and as 
outlined in the Town grievance policy.  A dismissal requires a Notice of Intent to Dismiss in 
accordance with SECTION 8.

11.4 SECTION 6. INVESTIGATORY SUSPENSION:  

A. An Appointing Authority DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE may suspend an employee with 
pay to effect an investigation or resolution of conduct. The Department Head, Human Resources 
Director and Town Manager must be notified of such investigatory suspensions before taking action if
possible or within 24 hours if not possible due to the seriousness or expediency of the situation. 
Investigatory Suspension with pay is not a disciplinary action and is not subject to the Town’s 
grievance procedure. The employee shall be contacted by the Human Resources Director, or designee, 
on or before the expiration of five (5) working days from when the investigatory suspension began,
with information about the investigation and any further actions to be taken at that time.



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 7 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

B. Upon consultation with the Human Resources Director and with the approval of the Town Manager, a 
paid administrative suspension may be extended.

11.5 SECTION 7. INVESTIGATORY PROVISIONS INTERVIEWS OF EMPLOYEES

A. If an employee or the Appointing Authority DEPARTMENT HEAD or designee reasonably believes 
that an investigation interview could result in suspension, demotion or dismissal, the employee may 
request to have a representative present.
1. THE REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE AVAILABLE ON REASONABLE NOTICE AND BE 

OF NO COST TO THE TOWN.
2. THE REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE AN EMPLOYEE AND SHALL NOT BE AN 

ATTORNEY.
3. THE REPRESENTATIVE SHALL PARTICIPATE IN THE INTERVIEW ONLY AS AN 

OBSERVER; HOWEVER THE EMPLOYEE SHALL BE PERMITTED REASONABLE 
BREAKS OF LIMITED DURATION FOR TELEPHONIC OR IN PERSON 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHERS, INCLUDING AN ATTORNEY, WHO IS
IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE.

4. AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE INTERVIEW, THE EMPLOYEE WILL BE 
PERMITTED TO CONSULT WITH THE REPRESENTATIVE AND MAY MAKE A 
STATEMENT NOT TO EXCEED FIVE MINUTES.

B. PRIOR TO THE INTERVIEW THE EMPLOYEE SHALL BE PROVIDED A WRITTEN 
NOTICE CONTAINING THE FOLLOWING:
1. ALL ALLEGED FACTS THAT ARE THE BASIS OF THE INVESTIGATION;
2. THE SPECIFIC NATURE OF THE INVESTIGATION;
3. THE EMPLOYEE’S STATUS IN THE INVESTIGATION;
4. ALL KNOWN ALLEGATIONS OF MISCONDUCT THAT ARE THE REASONS FOR 

THE INTERVIEW; AND,
5. THE EMPLOYEE’S RIGHT OF REPRESENTATION.

C. An interview does not have to be stopped in order to issue another WRITTEN NOTICE Intent to 
Discipline or Dismiss based on OF allegations or BASED ON information provided by the employee 
during the interview.  

D. The Appointing Authority DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR or designee does not have to disclose any 
fact to the employee that would impede the investigation.

E. An Intent to Discipline or Dismiss does THE RIGHTS LISTED IN BOTH A. AND B. ABOVE DO 
not apply to an interview of AN the employee that is:
1. In the normal course of duty, counseling or instruction or an informal verbal admonishment by, or 

other routine or unplanned contact with, a supervisor or any other Appointing Authority
DEPARTMENT HEAD.

2. Preliminary questioning to determine the scope of the allegations or if an investigation is 
necessary.

3. Conducted in the course of a criminal investigation.
4. CONDUCTED IN THE COURSE OF A POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION.

11.6 SECTION 8. NOTICE OF INTENT to DISCIPLINE and OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND:  PRE-
ACTION MEETING

A. Issuing Notice of Intent to Discipline CHARGES



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 8 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

1. BEFORE AN EMPLOYEE CAN BE SUSPENDED, DEMOTED, OR DISMISSED, THE 
DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE IN CONSULTATION WITH HUMAN 
RESOURCES, WILL PREPARE A WRITTEN NOTICE OF CHARGES IN SUFFICIENT 
DETAIL TO APPRISE THE EMPLOYEE OF THE SPECIFIC REASONS FORMAL 
DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS AGAINST THE EMPLOYEE ARE PENDING.  THE NOTICE 
OF CHARGES WILL CONTAIN:  Prior to a Appointing Authority taking any disciplinary 
action involving a written reprimand, suspension without pay, involuntary demotion or dismissal 
of an employee, a Notice of Intent to Discipline or Dismiss, which includes Exhibit A will be 
issued to the employee. informing the employee of his/her opportunity to present a written 
response and/or meet in person with the Appointing Authority at a scheduled time, date and place 
prior to imposing the disciplinary action, specifically referred to as the pre-discipline meeting.  
The Notice of Intent will be issued accordingly:
a. AN EXPLANATION OF THE DEPARTMENT’S EVIDENCE; 
b. THE RULES, POLICIES AND/OR PROCEDURES THAT WERE VIOLATED; 
c. THE DATE, TIME AND LOCATION OF THE MEETING; AND 
d. A SUMMARY OF THE EMPLOYEE’S RIGHTS FOR THE PRE-ACTION 

MEETING.

2. THE NOTICE OF CHARGES WILL BE DELIVERED TO THE EMPLOYEE EITHER 
BY PERSONAL DELIVERY OR BY CERTIFIED MAIL TO THE EMPLOYEE’S LAST 
KNOWN ADDRESS ON FILE WITH HUMAN RESOURCES.  A COPY OF THE NOTICE 
OF CHARGES WILL BE FILED WITH THE TOWN HUMAN RESOURCES.

3. EMPLOYEES WILL BE PROVIDED AT LEAST THREE DAYS NOTICE IN ADVANCE 
OF ANY PRE-ACTION MEETING.

B. Non-Dismissal: At least two (2) working days in advance of the pre-discipline meeting.
C. Dismissal: At least seven (7) working days in advance of the pre-dismissal review meeting.  The 

employee will be placed on investigatory leave with pay from the time the Notice of Intent to Dismiss
is issued until the pre-dismissal meeting.

11.7 Opportunity to Respond (Pre-Discipline PRE-ACTION Meeting)
A. THE DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE WILL CONDUCT THE MEETING IN 

CONJUNCTION WITH HUMAN RESOURCES.

B. THE EMPLOYEE IS NOT REQUIRED TO ATTEND THE MEETING BUT MUST BE
ALLOWED TIME AWAY FROM HIS/HER WORK RESPONSIBILITIES TO ATTEND 
WITHOUT BEING CHARGED ANY LEAVE.  

C. THE EMPLOYEE may respond in writing or in person to present reasons, along with information 
and documentation to refute the proposed disciplinary action AND HAVE A NON-ATTORNEY 
REPRESENTATIVE WHO IS FROM THE SAME DEPARTMENT PRESENT AT THE 
MEETING.  THE MEETING WILL NOT BE UNREASONABLY DELAYED TO WAIT FOR 
THE REPRESENTATIVE. THE REPRESENTATIVE WILL SERVE IN AN ADVISORY 
CAPACITY ONLY AND MAY NOT SPEAK FOR THE EMPLOYEE OR ASK QUESTIONS 
ON THE EMPLOYEE’S BEHALF.

D. THE DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE WILL MAKE A RECOMMENDATION TO 
SUPPORT, MODIFY OR REVOKE THE PROPOSED ACTIONS LISTED IN THE NOTICE 
OF CHARGES AFTER THE MEETING HAS CONCLUDED.  



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 9 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

1. IF THE DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE DECIDES TO TAKE DISCIPLINARY 
ACTION, THE DEPARTMENT HEAD OR DESIGNEE WILL GIVE THE EMPLOYEE A 
WRITTEN NOTICE. THE NOTICE MUST INCLUDE:

a. THE SPECIFIC ACTION TO BE TAKEN, 
b. THE SPECIFIC REASONS FOR THE ACTION, 
c. THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ACTION, AND 
d. THE EMPLOYEE’S RIGHT TO APPEAL THE DECISION WITHIN TEN 

WORKING DAYS.  

2. THE NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED TO THE EMPLOYEE EITHER BY PERSONAL 
DELIVERY OR BY CERTIFIED MAIL TO THE EMPLOYEE’S LAST KNOWN 
ADDRESS ON FILE WITH HUMAN RESOURCES.  A COPY OF THE NOTICE WILL 
BE FILED WITH HUMAN RESOURCES.

11.8 APPEAL OF A DISCIPLINARY ACTION

A. REGULAR STATUS EMPLOYEES MAY APPEAL A DISMISSAL, DEMOTION, AND/OR
SUSPENSION.  

1. THE WRITTEN APPEAL MUST BE FILED WITH THE HUMAN RESOURCES 
DIRECTOR AND THE DEPARTMENT HEAD WITHIN TEN (10) WORKING DAYS 
FROM THE DATE OF SERVICE OF THE DISCIPLINARY DECISION.  

2. THE REQUEST FOR AN APPEAL MUST STATE THE FACTS UPON WHICH THE 
APPEAL IS BASED, IDENTIFY ALL PEOPLE AND AGENCIES INVOLVED, CONTAIN 
ALL THE DOCUMENTS TO BE REVIEWED, AND THE ACTION REQUESTED OF 
THE TOWN MANAGER OR DESIGNEE.  

3. THE APPEAL WILL BE REVIEWED BY THE TOWN MANAGER OR DESIGNEE 
WHO MAY CONFER WITH OTHERS AS REQUIRED, INVESTIGATE THE APPEAL, 
AND COMMUNICATE A DECISION IN WRITING TO ALL CONCERNED PARTIES 
WITHIN TEN (10) WORKING DAYS UPON RECEIPT OF THE APPEAL.

B. FINAL APPEAL

1. REGULAR STATUS EMPLOYEES MAY APPEAL THE DECISION OF THE TOWN 
MANAGER OR DESIGNEE WITHIN TEN 10 WORKING DAYS OF THE DECISION BY 
SUBMITTING A WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE HR DIRECTOR AND COPYING THE 
LEGAL SERVICES DIRECTOR.

2. THE HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR WILL SELECT A HEARING OFFICER (HO)
AND SET A HEARING DATE.

a. IN ANY APPEAL, THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY OR THE GRIEVANT MAY 
REQUEST A CHANGE OF HEARING OFFICER.  THE REQUEST MUST BE 
GRANTED THE FIRST TIME.  ANY SUBSEQUENT REQUESTS MAY BE 
GRANTED ONLY UPON A SHOWING THAT A FAIR AND IMPARTIAL REVIEW 
CANNOT BE OBTAINED DUE TO THE PREJUDICE OF THE ASSIGNED HO.  
THE HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR, WITH THE CONSULTATION OF THE 
TOWN ATTORNEY, SHALL DECIDE WHETHER A SHOWING OF PREJUDICE 



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 10 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

HAS BEEN MADE.

3. NOT  LESS THAN TEN (10) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE HEARING DATE, THE 
APPELLANT SHALL SUBMIT TO THE HEARING OFFICER, AND COPY THE LEGAL 
SERVICES DIRECTOR, A POSITION STATEMENT SETTING FORTH THE 
ARGUMENTS, POTENTIAL WITNESSES AND EVIDENCE THEY ANTICIPATE WILL 
BE INTRODUCED FOR THE REVIEW.  ALL DOCUMENTATION THAT THE 
APPELLANT INTENDS TO PRESENT OR RELY UPON FOR THE HEARING SHALL 
BE ATTACHED TO THE POSITION STATEMENT.  

4. NOT LESS THAN TEN (10) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE REVIEW, THE LEGAL 
SERVICES DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE SHALL SUBMIT TO THE HEARING 
OFFICER, AND DISCLOSE TO THE APPELLANT, A RESPONDING POSITION 
STATEMENT INCLUDING POTENTIAL WITNESSES AND EVIDENCE TO BE 
INTRODUCED OR RELIED UPON DURING THE HEARING.  

a. THE LEGAL SERVICES DIRECTOR MAY REQUEST A RESCHEDULING OF THE 
HEARING DATE IF THEY DO NOT RECEIVE THE APPELLANT’S POSITION 
STATEMENT 20 WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE HEARING.   

5. HEARING PROCEDURES
a. THE BURDEN OF PROOF SHALL BE ON THE TOWN.  
b. TECHNICAL RULES OF EVIDENCE DO NOT APPLY OTHER THAN 

PRIVILEGES RECOGNIZED BY ARIZONA LAW.  
c. THE REVIEW SHALL BE RECORDED AND THE RECORD MAY BE 

TRANSCRIBED UPON REQUEST. 
d. THE PARTY REQUESTING TRANSCRIPTION SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR 

ANY COSTS INCURRED.  
e. UNLESS REQUESTED OTHERWISE BY THE APPELLANT, REVIEWS AND 

HEARINGS ARE CONDUCTED PRIVATELY.  
f. THE HEARING SHALL PROCEED AS FOLLOWS:

i. THE HO WILL BEGIN THE HEARING BY INTRODUCING ALL PARTIES, 
SUMMARIZING THE ISSUES, AND IDENTIFYING RELIEF REQUESTED 
AND OUTLINE THE REVIEW SEQUENCE.

ii. THE ONLY PEOPLE PRESENT DURING THE HEARING SHALL BE THE 
HEARING OFFICER, THE APPELLANT AND THEIR REPRESENTATIVE (IF 
APPLICABLE), THE LEGAL SERVICES DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE, THE HR 
DIRECTOR, THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY REPRESENTATIVE AND ANY 
WITNESSES THE HEARING OFFICER REQUESTS BE PRESENT.

iii. THE APPELLANT WILL PRESENT HIS/HER EVIDENCE THAT THE 
DECISION SHOULD BE CHANGED.  

iv. THE LEGAL SERVICES DIRECTOR WILL PRESENT THEIR EVIDENCE 
AND SUPPORT FINDINGS.    

v. EACH WITNESS FOR THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY AND THE APPELLANT
MAY ONLY BE QUESTIONED BY THE HEARING OFFICER.

vi. THE APPELLANT OR HIS/HER REPRESENTATIVE MAY MAKE 
COMMENTS OR CLOSING REMARKS.

vii. THE TOWN’S REPRESENTATIVE MAY MAKE COMMENTS OR CLOSING 
REMARKS.

g. HEARING OFFICER DECISION



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 11 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

i. A DECISION WILL BE ISSUED WITHIN FIFTEEN WORKING DAYS.
ii. THE HEARING OFFICER MAY ORDER THAT THE ACTION OF THE TOWN 

STAND, THAT A LESSER ACTION OR CONSEQUENCE BE IMPOSED, 
AND/OR THAT SOME OR ALL OF THE RELIEF REQUESTED BY THE 
APPELLANT BE GRANTED.  

iii. EXCEPT WHEN THE DECISION AFFIRMS THE DISMISSAL OF AN 
EMPLOYEE, THE APPELLANT’S SENIORITY RIGHTS SHALL NOT BE 
AFFECTED BY THE DECISION.  

iv. IF THE HO ORDERS TO REINSTATE AN EMPLOYEE WHO HAS BEEN 
SUSPENDED OR DISCHARGED, THEY SHALL SPECIFY AS PART OF THEIR 
DECISION WHETHER THE EMPLOYEE SHALL RECEIVE BACK PAY FOR 
ALL OR PART OF ANY TIME LOST AS A RESULT OF TOWN ACTION. 

v. COPIES OF THE WRITTEN RECOMMENDATION SHALL BE SENT TO THE 
LEGAL SERVICES DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR AND THE 
APPELLANT.  

vi. THE HO’S DECISION IS FINAL AND THERE ARE NO ADDITIONAL 
APPEALS AVAILABLE THROUGH THE TOWN’S APPEALS PROCESS. 

vii.
6. The Appointing Authority schedules a pre-discipline meeting with the employee in accordance 

with Section 8.A. to provide the employee an opportunity to respond.  The pre-discipline meeting 
with the Appointing Authority is not an adversarial hearing.  The employee may respond in 
writing or in person to present reasons, along with information and documentation to refute the 
proposed disciplinary action.  If the employee is accompanied by a representative, the 
representative’s role is limited to consulting and advising the employee.  The representative will 
be permitted to ask clarifying questions of the employee and present a statement on behalf of the 
employee.

7. The Appointing Authority must give proper consideration to the employee’s written and/or oral 
response provided in the pre-disciplinary meeting, along with supporting information and 
documentation.  Failure of an employee to submit a written response or appear at the pre-
discipline meeting will constitute a waiver of the opportunity to respond and the proposed 
discipline will be imposed.

11.9 Notice of Decision
1. After the scheduled pre-discipline meeting, the Appointing Authority’s decision shall be 

documented in the Notice of Decision and the copy provided to the employee within two (2)
working days of the pre-discipline meeting.  The original Notice of Decision and personnel action 
must be completed and include required signatures to be submitted with the final disciplinary 
packet to the Human Resources Department.  Final Notice of Decision must be given before the 
employee may grieve the discipline.

11.10 Attachments:
1. A - Notice of Intent to Discipline
2. B - Notice of Intent to Dismiss
3. C – Notice of Decision



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 12 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

Employee Name Department / Division Date

YOU ARE HEREBY notified that the _____________________ Department intends to impose discipline as 
follows:  ______________________________________________________________________________.

NOTICE OF MEETING – In accordance with Town policies and regulations, you have an opportunity to meet 
with the Appointing Authority or designee to present reasons why the proposed disciplinary action should not occur.  
A meeting has been scheduled for:

DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

NOTICE OF YOUR OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND – You are entitled to present reasons, along with 
information and documentation, to refute the proposed disciplinary action at the meeting.  The meeting with the 
Appointing Authority or designee is not an adversarial hearing.  If you are accompanied by a representative, the 
representative’s role is limited to consulting and advising you directly.  The representative will be permitted to ask 
you to clarify your statement and/or present a statement on your behalf.

If you do not wish to be present at the meeting, you may respond in writing and present any supporting information 
and documentation.  This written response must be received by the Appointing Authority or designee prior to or at 
the scheduled meeting for consideration.

Failure to appear at the meeting or submit a written response will constitute a waiver of the opportunity to respond.

Date Served How Served By whom

I, ___________________ received a copy of this notice.
       Employee Signature

___________________________________ ____________________________
Appointing Authority or designee signature Date

Notice of Intent to Discipline (Non-Dismissal)

Reasons for the proposed disciplinary action are stated in “Exhibit A” (attached)

Attachment A



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 13 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

If you are disciplined, you may appeal pursuant to the Town Grievance policy.

Employee Name Department / Division Date

YOU ARE HEREBY notified that the _____________________ Department intends to dismiss you from the 
Town.  The dismissal is based on the following:  _________________________________________________.

NOTICE OF MEETING – In accordance with Town policies and regulations, a pre-dismissal meeting has been 
scheduled by the Appointing Authority or designee on:

DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

NOTICE OF YOUR OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND – You are entitled to present reasons, along with 
information and documentation, to refute the proposed dismissal at the meeting.  The meeting with the Appointing 
Authority or designee is not an adversarial hearing.  If you are accompanied by a representative, the representative’s 
role is limited to consulting and advising you directly.  The representative will be permitted to ask you to clarify 
your statement and/or present a statement on your behalf.

If you do not wish to be present at the meeting, you may respond in writing and present any supporting information 
and documentation.  This written response must be received by the Appointing Authority or designee prior to or at 
the scheduled meeting for consideration.

Failure to appear at the meeting or submit a written response will constitute a waiver of the opportunity to respond.

Date Served How Served By whom

I, ___________________ received a copy of this notice.

See attached “Exhibit A” 

Notice of Intent to Dismiss

Attachment B



PERSONNEL POLICY 11 Page 14 of 14

DISCIPLINE Effective Date:

       Employee Signature

___________________________________ ____________________________
Appointing Authority or designee signature Date

If you are dismissed, you may appeal pursuant to the Town Grievance policy.

Employee Name Department / Division Date

After review and consideration of all information provided at the pre-disciplinary review meeting and/or submitted 
in writing on _______ and the information set forth in “Exhibit A”, the decision is as follows:

Discipline will be issued as proposed in the Notice of Intent effective ___________.

Other  _______________________________________________________.

GRIEVANCE RIGHTS:
Disciplinary action may be appealed pursuant to the Town Grievance Policy.  The Grievance must be submitted in 
writing within ten (10) working days from the date of receiving the decision.

Date Served How Served By whom

I, ___________________ received a copy of this notice.
       Employee Signature

___________________________________ ____________________________
Appointing Authority or designee signature Date

Notice of Decision

Attachment C



PERSONNEL POLICY 16 Page 1 of 1

Nepotism Effective Date:

16.1 NEPOTISM

A. No member of the Town Council, Town Manager, or a department director shall appoint or vote 
for the appointment of an immediate family member, member of current household or affinity to 
another individual within the third degree to Town employment pursuant to A.R.S. §38-481.

B. No immediate family member of the Mayor, Town Council Member, Town Manager, Finance 
Director, Human Resources Director, or payroll personnel may be hired for employment with the 
Town of Oro Valley.

16.2 CAUSAL CONNECTION POLICY

A. The Human Resources Director or designee will review each application for employment in a 
Town department where the applicant has an immediate family member or member of their 
current household employed.  In collaboration with the Town Manager, the HR Director or 
designee may prevent the applicant from proceeding in the hiring process if there is an 
appearance of nepotism or favoritism as a result of their relationship with a current employee. 

B. Employees are not allowed to directly supervise an immediate family member or member of their 
current household.

1. If a supervisory responsibility is involved, then the affected employees will determine 
which of them will transfer or resign in order to ensure compliance with this policy.  

2. The Town will assist in exploring transfer opportunities to like or similar positions for 
either employee.  

3. If no transfer opportunity exists after ninety (90) days, one of the employees will be 
required to resign their employment with the Town.

C. Employees will refrain from intervening in any employment matter involving an immediate 
family member or member of their current household and shall refrain from involvement in any 
employment matter which may be viewed as a conflict of interest.  



PERSONNEL POLICY 16 Page 1 of 1

Nepotism Effective Date:

SECTION 1. 16.1 NEPOTISM

A. No member of the Town Council, Town Manager, or a head of any Town department DEPARTMENT
DIRECTOR shall appoint or vote for the appointment of aN IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER,
MEMBER OF CURRENT HOUSEHOLD relative or AFFINITY TO ANOTHER INDIVIDUAL 
WITHIN THE THIRD DEGREE to Town employment pursuant to A.R.S. §38-481.

B. NO IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER OF THE MAYOR, TOWN COUNCIL MEMBER, TOWN 
MANAGER, FINANCE DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR, OR PAYROLL 
PERSONNEL MAY BE HIRED FOR EMPLOYMENT WITH THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY.

SECTION 2. 16.2 CAUSAL CONNECTION POLICY WORKING RELATIONSHIPS OR 
RELATIVES, MARRIED EMPLOYEES OR EMPLOYEES RESIDING IN THE SAME HOUSEHOLD

A. THE HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE WILL REVIEW EACH 
APPLICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT IN A TOWN DEPARTMENT WHERE THE APPLICANT 
HAS AN IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER OR MEMBER OF THEIR CURRENT HOUSEHOLD
EMPLOYED. IN COLLABORATION WITH THE TOWN MANAGER, THE HR DIRECTOR OR 
DESIGNEE MAY PREVENT THE APPLICANT FROM PROCEEDING IN THE HIRING 
PROCESS IF THERE IS AN APPEARANCE OF NEPOTISM OR FAVORITISM AS A RESULT 
OF THEIR RELATIONSHIP WITH A CURRENT EMPLOYEE.

B. EMPLOYEES ARE NOT ALLOWED TO DIRECTLY SUPERVISE AN IMMEDIATE
FAMILY MEMBER OR MEMBER OF THEIR CURRENT HOUSEHOLD Relatives, 
married employees, or employees who reside in the same household will be allowed to work in the 
same department., and neither will be required to transfer or terminate employment as long as 
neither is in a position which requires supervising the other.  

1. If a supervisory responsibility is involved, then the affected employees will determine 
which of them will transfer or resign in order to ensure compliance with this policy.  

2. The Town will assist in exploring transfer opportunities to like or similar positions for 
either employee.  

3. If no transfer opportunity exists after ninety (90) days, one of the employees will be 
required to resign their employment with the Town.

C. EMPLOYEES WILL REFRAIN FROM INTERVENING IN ANY EMPLOYMENT MATTER 
INVOLVING AN IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER OR MEMBER OF THEIR CURRENT 
HOUSEHOLD AND SHALL REFRAIN FROM INVOLVEMENT IN ANY EMPLOYMENT 
MATTER WHICH MAY BE VIEWED AS A CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  

For purposes of this policy, “relative” is defined as a husband, wife, son, daughter, mother, father, brother, sister, 
son-in-law, daughter-in-law, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparent or grandchild of an employee 
or other legal dependent of an employee or the employee’s relatives.



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 1 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

23.1 PURPOSE

A. The Town of Oro Valley is committed to maintaining a safe, productive work environment at all 
facilities and work sites, and to safeguarding all property of the Town of Oro Valley.  The use of 
alcohol and/or drugs can undermine employee productivity, the quality of services provided by 
Town employees, and the image of the Town.  For these reasons, the Town of Oro Valley has 
implemented the following Drug-Free Workplace policy.

23.2 DEFINITIONS

A. On-the-job use, possession, sale or distribution – The possession, sale or distribution of non-
medically prescribed controlled substances, including alcohol, or the presence of drugs or alcohol 
in the employee’s system while on company premises or at any Town of Oro Valley work site is 
prohibited.  Any employee found in violation of the above stated policy is subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination of employment.

B. Work-site – Includes, but is not limited to:

1. Town vehicles, Town offices and any Town premises

2. Any and all locations in which an employee is representing the Town of Oro Valley or 
working as an employee, including attending off-premises business meetings, seminars, 
engaging in off-site work such as road repair, police patrolling, etc.

3. Depending upon the circumstances, other action, including notification of appropriate law 
enforcement agencies, may be taken with respect to an employee violating this policy.

C. Drugs are defined as:

1. Alcohol (ethyl)
2. Amphetamines (e.g., speed)
3. Barbiturates (e.g., Amobarbital, Butabarbital, Phenobarbital, Secobarbital)
4. Cocaine
5. Methaqualone (e.g., Quaalude)
6. Opiates (e.g., Codeine, Heroin, Morphine, Hydromorphone, Hydrocodone)
7. Phencyclidine (PCP)
8. THC (Marijuana)
9. Drugs specified and defined under A.R.S. § 13-3401 (or any successor statute)

D. Reasonable suspicion may include, but is not limited to:

1. a pattern of abnormal or erratic behavior;
2. information of recent drug use provided by a reliable and credible source;
3. direct observation of drug or alcohol use; or
4. presence of the physical symptoms of drug or alcohol use.



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 2 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

E. Medical Review Officer (MRO) means any qualified physician designated by the Town of Oro 
Valley to assist in the evaluation, testing and assessment as defined herein.

F. Independent MRO means a qualified physician hired by the employee to assist the employee in 
the testing and drug assessment conducted by the Town.

23.3 SEARCH

A. In circumstances where there is reasonable suspicion that drugs or alcohol are present on Town of 
Oro Valley premises, or at a “work site”, Town supplied locker, a Town supplied desk or other 
Town supplied container, a search may be conducted to confirm that belief upon the approval of 
the Town Manager.

23.4 APPLICANT DRUG TESTING

A. All applicants being considered for employment by the Town of Oro Valley may be subject to 
drug testing analysis as part of the employment process.  Notification that applicants are subject 
to drug testing will appear on all Town of Oro Valley employment application forms, and 
employment advertisements.

B. The presence of drugs measured by urinalysis testing at the time of application is grounds for 
rejection.  Applicants who test positive for the presence of drugs will be informed of that fact, and 
will be given an opportunity to explain the positive result to the medical review officer (MRO).  
The MRO will hear the applicant’s explanation and report his/her findings and recommendations 
to the appropriate Town of Oro Valley representative.  An applicant who tests positive and who 
has no satisfactory explanation will be ineligible to apply with the Town for a period of six 
months.

C. Upon request, applicants will be given a list of the drugs for which they are tested.  The tests are 
restricted to drugs of abuse and are listed under the definition and Arizona Revised Statutes § 13-
3401.

23.5 PRESENCE OF DRUGS IN EMPLOYEES

A. Employees are prohibited from being at work with drugs in their systems, or impaired by alcohol.  
Any employee who is found to have drug metabolites in his/her system while at work or on a 
work site will be subject to disciplinary action up to, and including, termination of employment.

B. An employee, taking a drug or other medication whether or not prescribed by a physician for a 
medical condition, which is known or publicized as highly impairing judgment, coordination, or 
other senses important to the safe and productive performance of work, must notify his/her 
supervisor prior to starting his or her work day.  Management will decide whether the employee 
can continue to work, and/or will impose any necessary restrictions.



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 3 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

23.6 EMPLOYEE TESTING

A. Employee testing will only be conducted given the existence of a reasonable suspicion on the part 
of the management of the Town of Oro Valley. The testing of a police department employee will 
be conducted in compliance with the Oro Valley Police Department’s Rules and Procedures 
Manual. The testing of transit safety sensitive employees will be conducted in compliance with 
the Oro Valley transit division drug and alcohol misuse FTA compliant policy.

23.7 CONSENT

A. Before a drug and alcohol test is administered, employees and job applicants will be asked to sign 
a consent form authorizing the test and permitting release of test results to those municipal 
officials with a need to know.  The consent form shall provide space for employees and 
applicants to acknowledge that they have been notified of the municipality’s drug testing policy.  
Employees and applicants may at this time provide a list of those medications that he or she has 
recently used.  The list of medications, if provided, shall be sealed and held as confidential until 
there has been a positive test result.  In the event of a confirmed positive test result, the list of 
medications shall only be disclosed to the medical official who will determine whether the 
positive result was due to the lawful use of any of the listed medications.  Employees and 
applicants may choose to provide such a list after being notified of a confirmed positive result.

B. When the results of the drug test are received, the employee will be notified of the results.  If the 
results are positive, the employee will be given the opportunity to offer an explanation.  In the 
absence of an acceptable explanation as determined by an independent MRO, the employee will 
be suspended for a minimum of ten days.  A negative drug test result after ten days will be a 
precondition of re-employment.

C. Suspended employees will be required to undergo a drug test prior to reinstatement, and the 
results must be negative.  Following his/her return to work, the employee will serve in a 
probationary status for a 12-month period.  During this probationary period, the employee will be 
subject to follow-up testing on a random basis.  Employees placed on probation for violation of 
this policy will be terminated if they test positive in a random follow-up test during the 12 month 
probationary period.

23.8 OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE MUNICIPALITY

A. The Town of Oro Valley shall have the right to suspend, dismiss or take any other appropriate 
disciplinary action against the employee whose drug test is positive.  This suspension, dismissal 
or other disciplinary action shall follow the processes set forth in these policies.  This decision 
may be based in part upon the individual’s length of employment and the essential functions of 
the employee’s position as evidenced by appropriate records and documentation in the 
employee’s personnel file.

23.9 CONTRACTS AND VISITORS



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 4 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

A. Contractors and their employees or representatives, and visitors will be notified that the Town of 
Oro Valley prohibits the use, possession, sale or distribution of alcohol or illegal drugs on its 
property, or at its work sites.  Any person who is reasonable suspected to have drugs in his or her 
system (or impaired by alcohol) while on Town of Oro Valley property or work site is in 
violation of this policy.  Contractors and their employees or representatives, and visitors violating 
this policy will be refused entry onto Town property, or Town work sites.  In addition, 
appropriate legal entities may be contacted as required and appropriate.

23.10 MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES AND IMPLEMENTATION

A. A summary of this policy shall be posted on employee bulletin boards.  Also, employees shall be 
informed of the Drug-Free Workplace Policy by means of notices from time-to-time included 
with their paychecks, etc.  New employees shall be required to read and sign a copy of the policy.  
For contractors, copies of the policy shall be included in their statements of work.

B. Supervisors and Managers shall receive training to assist them in early detection of signs of drug 
abuse.  This will include training as to the physical appearance or commonly abused drugs and 
drug paraphernalia, as well as the physiological manifestations of drug abuse.

C. Where there is reasonable suspicion to believe that an employee has drugs in his/her system or is 
impaired by alcohol, the employee shall not be allowed to continue work.

D. If the employee is suspected of being under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or a controlled 
substance, steps should be taken to ensure that he/she does not drive any Town vehicle.  Further, 
the Town shall provide transportation home to such employees.

E. Supervisors and Managers will refer to the Human Resources Director any decision involving 
drug testing.  In no case will the employee’s immediate supervisor make the final decision 
whether that employee is to be tested.

F. The Human Resources Director will consult with the Town of Oro Valley’s Medical Resource 
Officer, as appropriate, to assist in the assessment of a possible drug abuse problem, the degree of 
impairment, and the need for testing.

G. Drug test themselves will be conducted by a qualified laboratory, and proper chain of custody 
procedures will be observed for samples.  When employment status will be affected by the 
outcome of the drug testing, confirmatory testing will be carried out by a qualified laboratory.

H. Records and information about testing and test results will be treated as private and medically 
confidential.  Such information will not, for example, be discussed with the employee’s family or 
friends.

23.11 OTHER TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT

A. This policy in no way alters, amends, modifies, infers, or confirms any terms of employment with 
the Town of Oro Valley, except as outlined herein.  All other terms of employment (as indicated 
in other policies, procedures, etc.) remain in effect as stated therein.



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 5 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

23.12 EXCEPTION FOR THE PURPOSES OF GIFTING

A. In the event an employee chooses to participate in a gift exchange, employees are permitted to 
give closed containers of alcohol to legal-age employees on town premises, excluding Town 
vehicles.  The closed containers of alcohol may not be consumed while an employee is on the job, 
as specified herein.  



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 6 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY
STATEMENT FOR JOB APPLICANTS

It is the policy of the Town of Oro Valley to maintain a safe, healthy and productive work 
environment for its employees; to ensure that the highest quality services are provided to the citizens of 
the Town; to maintain the integrity and security of its facilities and property; and to perform all of these 
functions in a fashion consistent with applicable federal and state regulations as well as the interests and 
concerns of the community and interest parties.

Pursuant to these goals, the Town of Oro Valley requires candidates for employment to pass a 
drug/alcohol screening test covering illegal substances and legal substances subject to abuse.

Offers of employment are strictly conditional, and contingent upon the successful completion of 
the screening for drugs of abuse.

Applicants may be given conditional employment which may involve training programs or work 
assignments prior to obtaining the results from the drug tests; if the drug test results are positive the offer 
of employment is rescinded and the training and/or work assignments will be terminated.

This requires the candidate to submit a urine and/or blood specimen and to sign a consent and 
release statement provided by the Town.  Refusal will result in the candidate’s disqualification for further 
employment consideration.

Applicant Signature Date

Applicant Name (Printed)

Witness Signature Date



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 1 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

23.1 PURPOSE

A. The Town of Oro Valley is committed to maintaining a safe, productive work environment at all 
facilities and work sites, and to safeguarding all property of the Town of Oro Valley.  The use of 
alcohol and/or drugs can undermine employee productivity, the quality of services provided by 
Town employees, and the image of the Town.  For these reasons, the Town of Oro Valley has 
implemented the following Drug-Free Workplace policy.

23.2 23.1 DEFINITIONS

A. On-the-job use, possession, sale or distribution – The possession, sale or distribution of non-
medically prescribed controlled substances, including alcohol, or the presence of drugs or alcohol 
in the employee’s system while on company premises or at any Town of Oro Valley work site is 
prohibited.  Any employee found in violation of the above stated policy is subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination of employment.

B. Work-site – Includes, but is not limited to:

1. Town vehicles, Town offices and any Town premises

2. Any and all locations in which an employee is representing the Town of Oro Valley or 
working as an employee, including attending off-premises business meetings, seminars, 
engaging in off-site work such as road repair, police patrolling, etc.

3. Depending upon the circumstances, other action, including notification of appropriate law 
enforcement agencies, may be taken with respect to an employee violating this policy.

C. Drugs are defined as:

1. Alcohol (ethyl)
2. Amphetamines (e.g., speed)
3. Barbiturates (e.g., Amobarbital, Butabarbital, Phenobarbital, Secobarbital)
4. Cocaine
5. Methaqualone (e.g., Quaalude)
6. Opiates (e.g., Codeine, Heroin, Morphine, Hydromorphone, Hydrocodone)
7. Phencyclidine (PCP)
8. THC (Marijuana)
9. Drugs specified and defined under A.R.S. § 13-3401 (or any successor statute)

D. Reasonable suspicion may include, but is not limited to:

1. a pattern of abnormal or erratic behavior;
2. information of recent drug use provided by a reliable and credible source;
3. direct observation of drug or alcohol use; or
4. presence of the physical symptoms of drug or alcohol use.



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 2 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

E. Medical Review Officer (MRO) means any qualified physician designated by the Town of Oro 
Valley to assist in the evaluation, testing and assessment as defined herein.

F. Independent MRO means a qualified physician hired by the employee to assist the employee in 
the testing and drug assessment conducted by the Town.

23.3 23.2 SEARCH

A. In circumstances where there is reasonable suspicion that drugs or alcohol are present on Town of 
Oro Valley premises, or at a “work site”, Town supplied locker, a Town supplied desk or other 
Town supplied container, a search may be conducted to confirm that belief upon the approval of 
the Town Manager.

23.4 23.3 APPLICANT DRUG TESTING

A. All applicants being considered for employment by the Town of Oro Valley may be subject to 
drug testing analysis as part of the employment process.  Notification that applicants are subject 
to drug testing will appear on all Town of Oro Valley employment application forms, and 
employment advertisements.

B. The presence of drugs measured by urinalysis testing at the time of application is grounds for 
rejection.  Applicants who test positive for the presence of drugs will be informed of that fact, and 
will be given an opportunity to explain the positive result to the medical review officer (MRO).  
The MRO will hear the applicant’s explanation and report his/her findings and recommendations 
to the appropriate Town of Oro Valley representative.  An applicant who tests positive and who 
has no satisfactory explanation will be ineligible to apply with the Town for a period of six 
months.

C. Upon request, applicants will be given a list of the drugs for which they are tested.  The tests are 
restricted to drugs of abuse and are listed under the definition and Arizona Revised Statutes § 13-
3401.

23.5 23.4 PRESENCE OF DRUGS IN EMPLOYEES

A. Employees are prohibited from being at work with drugs in their systems, or impaired by alcohol.  
Any employee who is found to have drug metabolites in his/her system while at work or on a 
work site will be subject to disciplinary action up to, and including, termination of employment.

B. An employee, taking a drug or other medication whether or not prescribed by a physician for a 
medical condition, which is known or publicized as highly impairing judgment, coordination, or 
other senses important to the safe and productive performance of work, must notify his/her 
supervisor prior to starting his or her work day.  Management will decide whether the employee
can continue to work, and/or will impose any necessary restrictions.

23.6 23.5 EMPLOYEE TESTING



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 3 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

A. Employee testing will only be conducted given the existence of a reasonable suspicion on the part 
of the management of the Town of Oro Valley. The testing of a police department employee will 
be conducted in compliance with the Oro Valley Police Department’s Rules and Procedures 
Manual. THE TESTING OF TRANSIT SAFETY SENSITIVE EMPLOYEES WILL BE 
CONDUCTED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ORO VALLEY TRANSIT DIVISION 
DRUG AND ALCOHOL MISUSE FTA COMPLIANT POLICY.

23.7 23.6 CONSENT

A. Before a drug and alcohol test is administered, employees and job applicants will be asked to sign 
a consent form authorizing the test and permitting release of test results to those municipal 
officials with a need to know.  The consent form shall provide space for employees and 
applicants to acknowledge that they have been notified of the municipality’s drug testing policy.  
Employees and applicants may at this time provide a list of those medications that he or she has 
recently used.  The list of medications, if provided, shall be sealed and held as confidential until 
there has been a positive test result.  In the event of a confirmed positive test result, the list of 
medications shall only be disclosed to the medical official who will determine whether the 
positive result was due to the lawful use of any of the listed medications.  Employees and 
applicants may choose to provide such a list after being notified of a confirmed positive result.

B. When the results of the drug test are received, the employee will be notified of the results.  If the 
results are positive, the employee will be given the opportunity to offer an explanation.  In the 
absence of an acceptable explanation as determined by an independent MRO, the employee will 
be suspended for a minimum of ten days.  A negative drug test result after ten days will be a 
precondition of re-employment.

C. Suspended employees will be required to undergo a drug test prior to reinstatement, and the 
results must be negative.  Following his/her return to work, the employee will serve in a 
probationary status for a 12-month period.  During this probationary period, the employee will be 
subject to follow-up testing on a random basis.  Employees placed on probation for violation of 
this policy will be terminated if they test positive in a random follow-up test during the 12 month 
probationary period.

23.8 23.7 OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE MUNICIPALITY

A. The Town of Oro Valley shall have the right to suspend, dismiss or take any other appropriate 
disciplinary action against the employee whose drug test is positive.  This suspension, dismissal 
or other disciplinary action shall follow the processes set forth in these policies.  This decision 
may be based in part upon the individual’s length of employment and the essential functions of 
the employee’s position as evidenced by appropriate records and documentation in the 
employee’s personnel file.

23.9 23.8 CONTRACTS AND VISITORS



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 4 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

A. Contractors and their employees or representatives, and visitors will be notified that the Town of 
Oro Valley prohibits the use, possession, sale or distribution of alcohol or illegal drugs on its 
property, or at its work sites.  Any person who is reasonable suspected to have drugs in his or her 
system (or impaired by alcohol) while on Town of Oro Valley property or work site is in 
violation of this policy.  Contractors and their employees or representatives, and visitors violating 
this policy will be refused entry onto Town property, or Town work sites.  In addition, 
appropriate legal entities may be contacted as required and appropriate.

23.10 23.9 MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES AND IMPLEMENTATION

A. A summary of this policy shall be posted on employee bulletin boards.  Also, employees shall be 
informed of the Drug-Free Workplace Policy by means of notices from time-to-time included 
with their paychecks, etc.  New employees shall be required to read and sign a copy of the policy.  
For contractors, copies of the policy shall be included in their statements of work.

B. Supervisors and Managers shall receive training to assist them in early detection of signs of drug 
abuse.  This will include training as to the physical appearance or commonly abused drugs and 
drug paraphernalia, as well as the physiological manifestations of drug abuse.

C. Where there is reasonable suspicion to believe that an employee has drugs in his/her system or is 
impaired by alcohol, the employee shall not be allowed to continue work.

D. If the employee is suspected of being under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or a controlled 
substance, steps should be taken to ensure that he/she does not drive any Town vehicle.  Further, 
the Town shall provide transportation home to such employees.

E. Supervisors and Managers will refer to the Human Resources Director any decision involving 
drug testing.  In no case will the employee’s immediate supervisor make the final decision 
whether that employee is to be tested.

F. The Human Resources Director will consult with the Town of Oro Valley’s Medical Resource 
Officer, as appropriate, to assist in the assessment of a possible drug abuse problem, the degree of 
impairment, and the need for testing.

G. Drug test themselves will be conducted by a qualified laboratory, and proper chain of custody 
procedures will be observed for samples.  When employment status will be affected by the 
outcome of the drug testing, confirmatory testing will be carried out by a qualified laboratory.

H. Records and information about testing and test results will be treated as private and medically 
confidential.  Such information will not, for example, be discussed with the employee’s family or 
friends.

23.11 23.10 OTHER TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT

A. This policy in no way alters, amends, modifies, infers, or confirms any terms of employment with 
the Town of Oro Valley, except as outlined herein.  All other terms of employment (as indicated 
in other policies, procedures, etc.) remain in effect as stated therein.



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 5 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

23.12 EXCEPTION FOR THE PURPOSES OF GIFTING

A. IN THE EVENT AN EMPLOYEE CHOOSES TO PARTICIPATE IN A GIFT 
EXCHANGE, EMPLOYEES ARE PERMITTED TO GIVE CLOSED CONTAINERS OF 
ALCOHOL TO LEGAL-AGE EMPLOYEES ON TOWN PREMISES, EXCLUDING 
TOWN VEHICLES.  THE CLOSED CONTAINERS OF ALCOHOL MAY NOT BE 
CONSUMED WHILE AN EMPLOYEE IS ON THE JOB, AS SPECIFIED HEREIN.  

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY
STATEMENT FOR JOB APPLICANTS

It is the policy of the Town of Oro Valley to maintain a safe, healthy and productive work 
environment for its employees; to ensure that the highest quality services are provided to the citizens of 
the Town; to maintain the integrity and security of its facilities and property; and to perform all of these 
functions in a fashion consistent with applicable federal and state regulations as well as the interests and 
concerns of the community and interest parties.

Pursuant to these goals, the Town of Oro Valley requires candidates for employment to pass a 
drug/alcohol screening test covering illegal substances and legal substances subject to abuse.

Offers of employment are strictly conditional, and contingent upon the successful completion of 
the screening for drugs of abuse.

Applicants may be given conditional employment which may involve training programs or work 
assignments prior to obtaining the results from the drug tests; if the drug test results are positive the offer 
of employment is rescinded and the training and/or work assignments will be terminated.

This requires the candidate to submit a urine and/or blood specimen and to sign a consent and 
release statement provided by the Town.  Refusal will result in the candidate’s disqualification for further 
employment consideration.

Applicant Signature Date



PERSONNEL POLICY 23 Page 6 of 6

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE Effective Date:

Applicant Name (Printed)

Witness Signature Date



PERSONNEL POLICY 26 Page 1 of 4

COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL 
USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; 
AND INTERNET POLICY

Effective Date: TBD

26.1 PURPOSE

A. E-mail and other electronic communication and information management tools are the fastest and 
most efficient means of communicating and are used by nearly every employee and official at the 
Town of Oro Valley.  This policy provides guidance regarding the use and storage of e-mail 
communications, the proper use of computer hardware and software, and the Town of Oro Valley 
connections to the internet.  

B. The procedures presented in this policy apply to all users of the Town of Oro Valley system, 
including employees, elected officials, volunteers, and other affiliated organizations that utilize 
town-provided resources regardless of the user’s location when accessing the system.  

1. Town of Oro Valley E-mail and Internet communications are not private and may be 
monitored as allowed by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act.  

2. Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary actions as provided for both herein and in 
separate Town of Oro Valley Policies and Procedures.

C. The responsibility for assuring complete compliance with the provisions of this policy rests with 
all System users.  

D. Regardless of the user’s location when accessing the Town System, if the equipment being used 
is provided by the Town, employees should conduct official business via that access.  

1. Personal use is permissible within reasonable limits and if consistent with restrictions defined 
elsewhere in the Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual, as well as in 
related Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s).  

2. Department directors may grant exceptions to this policy, where the exception is required in 
order for employees to perform assigned duties related to the mission of the department.

3. Users understand that the use of the Town-provided System is a privilege. 
4. Unauthorized usage may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of 

employment.

26.2 REFERENCES

A. A.R.S. §§ 41.151.18, 41.151.19, 38-421 and 41.151.15

B. A.R.S. §§ 39-121 ET SEQ: PUBLIC RECORDS LAW

C. A.R.S. § 38-431 ET SEQ: OPEN MEETING LAW

D. Administrative Directive 16 – Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy and any 
superseding policy or directive implemented at a later date.



PERSONNEL POLICY 26 Page 2 of 4

COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL 
USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; 
AND INTERNET POLICY

Effective Date: TBD

26.3 DEFINITIONS

A. Backup:  E-Mail records created on a daily basis for the purpose of disaster recovery.

B. Electronic communications:  For purposes of this policy, electronic communications refers to 
electronic mail (e-mail) and electronic calendars.

C. Non-records:  Messages that do not meet the statutory definition of a record as defined in A.R.S. 
§ 41.151.18.  Destruction of non-record electronic messages does not need to be reported on a 
report/certificate of records destruction form.

D. Records:  Messages that are considered to be official records as defined in A.R.S. § 41.151.18.  
Official records may require short-term storage, long-term storage, or a combination of both.

E. System: The Town of Oro Valley computer system consists of all related hardware, software, 
network, and services provided for facilitating town needed computer services.

26.4 RETENTION AND DISPOSITION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

A. Retention and disposition of public records is determined by the Arizona state library, archives 
and public records, records management division, in accordance with Arizona state statutes.  A 
record’s retention schedule is based upon the legal, administrative, historical, fiscal or 
informational value of the record, not on the format of the record.  “Electronic communication” 
refers to the format of the record, not its content or value.  Thus, electronic communications, such 
as e-mail, cannot be assigned blanket retention periods because they are not a type of record or 
record series.  Rather, the value – and therefore, the retention period – of an electronic message is 
determined by its content.

B. It is the responsibility of every employee, consultant, volunteer, intern, elected and/or appointed 
town official to retain any electronic communications, depending on the nature and content of the 
document, as required by the public records retention and disposition schedules.  Each Town 
department shall appoint a records coordinator who will work with the Town Clerk’s office and 
his/her respective department head to assure proper management and disposal of records, 
including compliance with this policy.  Records retention and disposition schedules that apply to 
town records are available from the Town Clerk’s office.

C. Electronic messages that are considered to be official records (for example, a citizen complaint 
that is sent via e-mail) must be maintained and destroyed in the same manner as a paper record.  
Retention and destruction shall be performed according to the corresponding record series on 
either a department’s custom retention schedule or the state’s general schedule.

D. Short-Term Retention Of Record E-Mail Messages

1. For records management purposes, the majority of the Town’s emails are short 
communications that function much like phone calls and are considered to be non-records.  



PERSONNEL POLICY 26 Page 3 of 4

COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL 
USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; 
AND INTERNET POLICY

Effective Date: TBD

At the end of 180 days, all messages will be permanently deleted.  It is the responsibility of 
each individual employee, consultant, volunteer, intern, elected and appointed official to 
ensure that any record messages that must be retained beyond 180 days and are located in the 
employee’s inbox, sent box, or deleted items box are moved to proper storage locations 
before the end of the 180 day period.

E. Long-Term Retention Of Record E-Mail Messages

1. E-mail messages requiring long-term retention (more than 180 days) shall be retained 
according to the state’s approved retention schedules. 

F. Public Records Requests

1. E-mail is subject to the public records law (A.R.S. §§ 39-121 et seq) and may be subject to 
public disclosure.  Employees should have no expectation of privacy regarding the use of the 
town’s systems and equipment or the transmission, receipt or storage of information in these 
systems or equipment. 

2. Information technology staff will work with individual departments to identify a technology 
solution when a department requires a shared storage location for e-mail that pertains to 
public records requests in order to minimize duplication of e-mail storage.

3. Backup

a. The Town Of Oro Valley creates backup records of electronic mail on a daily basis.  The 
primary purpose of creating these backups is for disaster recovery in the case of system 
failure, not for purposes of public records retention.  The backups are retained for the 
limited period of time required by law for backup data.

26.5 USAGE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

A. Regardless of the user’s location when accessing the Town System, if the equipment being used 
is provided by the Town, employees should conduct official business via that access.  Personal 
use is permissible within reasonable limits and if consistent with restrictions defined elsewhere in 
the Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual, as well as in related Standard 
Operating Procedures (SOP’s).  Users understand that the use of the Town-provided System is a 
privilege.  Unauthorized usage may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination 
of employment.

1. Examples of what could be considered to be appropriate limited personal use includes (but is 
not necessarily limited to):

a. Scheduling of personal appointments
b. Posting of personal information only in specific areas designated for this purpose
c. As with the telephone, other limited uses that do not interfere with the employee’s 

responsibilities or conflict with the Town’s Personnel Policies and Procedures



PERSONNEL POLICY 26 Page 4 of 4

COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL 
USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; 
AND INTERNET POLICY

Effective Date: TBD

B. Examples of those uses which would be restricted include (but are not necessarily limited to):

1. Use for commercial or financial gain.

2. Information relating to religious or political causes.

3. Threatening, harassing or obscene materials (as defined by U.S., state and local laws).

4. Discourteous communication to or about other persons.

5. Solicitation, including charitable campaigns, except as specifically authorized or part of 
Town-sponsored events to the extent permitted by the Town’s Personnel Policies and 
Procedures (i.e., blood drives, United Way, etc.).

6. Issuing or forwarding chain mail or other frivolous messages, such as practical jokes.

7. Anything which could be construed as sexually explicit, scandalous, or defamatory.  
Libelous, immoral or discriminatory based on race, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, 
age, disability or religious or political beliefs is banned from the system.

8. Accessing any adult (pornographic) sites is strictly prohibited.

C. Employees are advised that the content of all correspondence, including E-Mail and other 
electronic documents developed in the course of business remain the property of the Town of Oro 
Valley.

26.6 RESPONSIBILITIES

A. All employees, consultants, volunteers, interns, elected and appointed officials are responsible 
for:
1. Reading and familiarizing themselves with the Town of Oro Valley SOP entitled 

“Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy.”
2. Understanding the procedures as outlined in this policy and all other applicable town policies 

and procedures regarding the use of the town’s electronic communications.
3. Using the town’s electronic communication systems responsibly, in the interest and 

furtherance of the public’s business.

B. Information Technology Department, the Town Clerk’s Office, Human Resources Department 
and the Legal Department will ensure proper training for new employees and on-going training 
for existing employees on a regular basis.



PERSONNEL POLICY 26 Page 1 of 5

COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL 
USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; 
AND INTERNET POLICY

Effective Date: TBD

26.1 PURPOSE

A. E-MAIL AND OTHER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION 
MANAGEMENT TOOLS ARE THE FASTEST AND MOST EFFICIENT MEANS OF 
COMMUNICATING AND ARE USED BY NEARLY EVERY EMPLOYEE AND 
OFFICIAL AT THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY.  THIS POLICY PROVIDES 
GUIDANCE REGARDING THE USE AND STORAGE OF E-MAIL 
COMMUNICATIONS, This policy is intended to ensure the proper use of computer hardware 
and software, electronic mail and THE Town of Oro Valley connections to the Internet.  

B. The procedures presented in this policy apply to all users of the Town of Oro Valley system, 
including employees, elected officials, volunteers, and other affiliated organizations that utilize 
town-provided resources regardless of the user’s location when accessing the system.  

1. Town of Oro Valley E-mail and Internet communications are not private and may be 
monitored as allowed by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act.  

2. Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary actions as provided for both herein and in 
separate Town of Oro Valley Policies and Procedures.

C. The responsibility for assuring complete compliance with the provisions of this policy rests with 
all System users.  It is the responsibility of E-Mail and Internet users to stay informed regarding 
Town information that is disseminated electronically.  This includes understanding and keeping 
up-to date on System operations.

D. Regardless of the user’s location when accessing the Town System, if the equipment being used 
is provided by the Town, employees should conduct official business via that access.  

1. Personal use is permissible within reasonable limits and if consistent with restrictions defined 
elsewhere in the Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual, as well as in 
related Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s). 

2. DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS MAY GRANT EXCEPTIONS TO THIS POLICY, 
WHERE THE EXCEPTION IS REQUIRED IN ORDER FOR EMPLOYEES TO 
PERFORM ASSIGNED DUTIES RELATED TO THE MISSION OF THE 
DEPARTMENT.

3. Users understand that the use of the Town-provided System is a privilege.  
4. Unauthorized usage may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of 

employment.

26.2 REFERENCES

A. A.R.S. §§ 41.151.18, 41.151.19, 38-421 AND 41.151.15

B. A.R.S. §§ 39-121 ET SEQ: PUBLIC RECORDS LAW

C. A.R.S. § 38-431 ET SEQ: OPEN MEETING LAW



PERSONNEL POLICY 26 Page 2 of 5

COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL 
USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; 
AND INTERNET POLICY

Effective Date: TBD

D. ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE 16 – INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE 
USE POLICY AND ANY SUPERSEDING POLICY OR DIRECTIVE IMPLEMENTED 
AT A LATER DATE.

26.3 DEFINITIONS

A. BACKUP:  E-MAIL RECORDS CREATED ON A DAILY BASIS FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF DISASTER RECOVERY.

B. ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS:  FOR PURPOSES OF THIS POLICY, 
ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS REFERS TO ELECTRONIC MAIL (E-MAIL) 
AND ELECTRONIC CALENDARS.

C. NON-RECORDS:  MESSAGES THAT DO NOT MEET THE STATUTORY DEFINITION 
OF A RECORD AS DEFINED IN A.R.S. § 41.151.18.  DESTRUCTION OF NON-
RECORD ELECTRONIC MESSAGES DOES NOT NEED TO BE REPORTED ON A 
REPORT/CERTIFICATE OF RECORDS DESTRUCTION FORM.

D. RECORDS:  MESSAGES THAT ARE CONSIDERED TO BE OFFICIAL RECORDS AS 
DEFINED IN A.R.S. § 41.151.18.  OFFICIAL RECORDS MAY REQUIRE SHORT-
TERM STORAGE, LONG-TERM STORAGE, OR A COMBINATION OF BOTH.

E. SYSTEM: THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY COMPUTER SYSTEM CONSISTS OF ALL 
RELATED HARDWARE, SOFTWARE, NETWORK, AND SERVICES PROVIDED FOR 
FACILITATING TOWN NEEDED COMPUTER SERVICES.

26.4 RETENTION AND DISPOSITION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

A. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF PUBLIC RECORDS IS DETERMINED BY THE 
ARIZONA STATE LIBRARY, ARCHIVES AND PUBLIC RECORDS, RECORDS 
MANAGEMENT DIVISION, IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARIZONA STATE STATUTES.  
A RECORD’S RETENTION SCHEDULE IS BASED UPON THE LEGAL, 
ADMINISTRATIVE, HISTORICAL, FISCAL OR INFORMATIONAL VALUE OF THE 
RECORD, NOT ON THE FORMAT OF THE RECORD.  “ELECTRONIC 
COMMUNICATION” REFERS TO THE FORMAT OF THE RECORD, NOT ITS 
CONTENT OR VALUE.  THUS, ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS, SUCH AS E-
MAIL, CANNOT BE ASSIGNED BLANKET RETENTION PERIODS BECAUSE THEY 
ARE NOT A TYPE OF RECORD OR RECORD SERIES.  RATHER, THE VALUE –
AND THEREFORE, THE RETENTION PERIOD – OF AN ELECTRONIC MESSAGE IS 
DETERMINED BY ITS CONTENT.

B. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF EVERY EMPLOYEE, CONSULTANT, VOLUNTEER, 
INTERN, ELECTED AND/OR APPOINTED TOWN OFFICIAL TO RETAIN ANY 
ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS, DEPENDING ON THE NATURE AND 



PERSONNEL POLICY 26 Page 3 of 5

COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL 
USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; 
AND INTERNET POLICY

Effective Date: TBD

CONTENT OF THE DOCUMENT, AS REQUIRED BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RETENTION AND DISPOSITION SCHEDULES.  EACH TOWN DEPARTMENT 
SHALL APPOINT A RECORDS COORDINATOR WHO WILL WORK WITH THE 
TOWN CLERK’S OFFICE AND HIS/HER RESPECTIVE DEPARTMENT HEAD TO 
ASSURE PROPER MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL OF RECORDS, INCLUDING 
COMPLIANCE WITH THIS POLICY.  RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION 
SCHEDULES THAT APPLY TO TOWN RECORDS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE 
TOWN CLERK’S OFFICE.

C. ELECTRONIC MESSAGES THAT ARE CONSIDERED TO BE OFFICIAL RECORDS 
(FOR EXAMPLE, A CITIZEN COMPLAINT THAT IS SENT VIA E-MAIL) MUST BE 
MAINTAINED AND DESTROYED IN THE SAME MANNER AS A PAPER RECORD.  
RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SHALL BE PERFORMED ACCORDING TO THE 
CORRESPONDING RECORD SERIES ON EITHER A DEPARTMENT’S CUSTOM 
RETENTION SCHEDULE OR THE STATE’S GENERAL SCHEDULE.

D. SHORT-TERM RETENTION OF RECORD E-MAIL MESSAGES

1. FOR RECORDS MANAGEMENT PURPOSES, THE MAJORITY OF THE TOWN’S 
EMAILS ARE SHORT COMMUNICATIONS THAT FUNCTION MUCH LIKE 
PHONE CALLS AND ARE CONSIDERED TO BE NON-RECORDS.  AT THE END 
OF 180 DAYS, ALL MESSAGES WILL BE PERMANENTLY DELETED.  IT IS THE 
RESPONSIBILITY OF EACH INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE, CONSULTANT, 
VOLUNTEER, INTERN, ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIAL TO ENSURE 
THAT ANY RECORD MESSAGES THAT MUST BE RETAINED BEYOND 180 
DAYS AND ARE LOCATED IN THE EMPLOYEE’S INBOX, SENT BOX, OR 
DELETED ITEMS BOX ARE MOVED TO PROPER STORAGE LOCATIONS 
BEFORE THE END OF THE 180 DAY PERIOD.

E. LONG-TERM RETENTION OF RECORD E-MAIL MESSAGES

1. E-MAIL MESSAGES REQUIRING LONG-TERM RETENTION (MORE THAN 180 
DAYS) SHALL BE RETAINED ACCORDING TO THE STATE’S APPROVED 
RETENTION SCHEDULES. 

F. PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS

1. E-MAIL IS SUBJECT TO THE PUBLIC RECORDS LAW (A.R.S. §§ 39-121 ET SEQ) 
AND MAY BE SUBJECT TO PUBLIC DISCLOSURE.  EMPLOYEES SHOULD 
HAVE NO EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY REGARDING THE USE OF THE 
TOWN’S SYSTEMS AND EQUIPMENT OR THE TRANSMISSION, RECEIPT OR 
STORAGE OF INFORMATION IN THESE SYSTEMS OR EQUIPMENT. 

2. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STAFF WILL WORK WITH INDIVIDUAL 
DEPARTMENTS TO IDENTIFY A TECHNOLOGY SOLUTION WHEN A 
DEPARTMENT REQUIRES A SHARED STORAGE LOCATION FOR E-MAIL 



PERSONNEL POLICY 26 Page 4 of 5

COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL 
USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; 
AND INTERNET POLICY

Effective Date: TBD

THAT PERTAINS TO PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS IN ORDER TO MINIMIZE 
DUPLICATION OF E-MAIL STORAGE.

3. BACKUP

a. THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY CREATES BACKUP RECORDS OF 
ELECTRONIC MAIL ON A DAILY BASIS.  THE PRIMARY PURPOSE OF 
CREATING THESE BACKUPS IS FOR DISASTER RECOVERY IN THE CASE 
OF SYSTEM FAILURE, NOT FOR PURPOSES OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
RETENTION.  THE BACKUPS ARE RETAINED FOR THE LIMITED PERIOD 
OF TIME REQUIRED BY LAW FOR BACKUP DATA.

26.5 USAGE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

A. Regardless of the user’s location when accessing the Town System, if the equipment being used 
is provided by the Town, employees should conduct official business via that access.  Personal 
use is permissible within reasonable limits and if consistent with restrictions defined elsewhere in 
the Town of Oro Valley Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual, as well as in related Standard 
Operating Procedures (SOP’s).  Users understand that the use of the Town-provided System is a 
privilege.  Unauthorized usage may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination 
of employment.

1. Examples of what could be considered to be appropriate limited personal use includes (but is 
not necessarily limited to):

a. Scheduling of personal appointments
b. Posting of personal information only in specific areas designated for this purpose
c. As with the telephone, other limited uses that do not interfere with the employee’s 

responsibilities or conflict with the Town’s Personnel Policies and Procedures

B. Examples of those uses which would be restricted include (but are not necessarily limited to):

1. Use for commercial or financial gain.

2. Information relating to religious or political causes.

3. Threatening, harassing or obscene materials (as defined by U.S., state and local laws).

4. Discourteous communication to or about other persons.

5. Solicitation, including charitable campaigns, except as specifically authorized or part of 
Town-sponsored events to the extent permitted by the Town’s Personnel Policies and 
Procedures (i.e., blood drives, United Way, etc.).

6. Issuing or forwarding chain mail or other frivolous messages, such as practical jokes.



PERSONNEL POLICY 26 Page 5 of 5

COMPUTER USAGE; E-MAIL 
USE, RETENTION, & STORAGE; 
AND INTERNET POLICY

Effective Date: TBD

7. Anything which could be construed as sexually explicit, scandalous, or defamatory.  
Libelous, immoral or discriminatory based on race, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, 
age, disability or religious or political beliefs is banned from the system.

8. Accessing any adult (pornographic) sites is strictly prohibited.

C. Employees are advised that the content of all correspondence, including E-Mail and other 
electronic documents developed in the course of business remain the property of the Town of Oro 
Valley.

D. All employees and users of the Town of Oro Valley System are encouraged to read and 
familiarize themselves with the Town of Oro Valley SOP entitled “Information Technology 
Acceptable Use Policy.”

26.6 RESPONSIBILITIES

A. All employees, consultants, volunteers, interns, elected and appointed officials are responsible 
for:
1. Reading and familiarizing themselves with the Town of Oro Valley SOP entitled 

“Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy.”
2. Understanding the procedures as outlined in this policy and all other applicable town policies 

and procedures regarding the use of the town’s electronic communications.
3. Using the town’s electronic communication systems responsibly, in the interest and 

furtherance of the public’s business.

B. Information Technology Department, the Town Clerk’s Office, Human Resources Department 
and the Legal Department will ensure proper training for new employees and on-going training 
for existing employees on a regular basis.



PERSONNEL POLICY 29 Page 1 of 3

CONFLICT OF INTEREST Effective Date:

29.1 POLITICAL ACTIVITY

A. Town employees shall not engage in the following political activity.

1. No employee may solicit or attempt to solicit support for a candidate or political party 
involved in an Oro Valley municipal election.

2. No employee may solicit or attempt to solicit support for any candidate, petition, ballot 
measure or political party for any election during working hours, in their workplace, or in 
uniform.

3. Employees may not be members of political committees, officers of partisan political 
committees or nominees for paid elective office for Oro Valley municipal elections.  
Employees may not take part in the management or affairs of political parties, campaigns 
or recall efforts concerning Oro Valley.  

B. The following political activity is permitted. 

1. In their personal capacity, employees may express opinions, attend meetings (not in 
uniform), vote, sign nomination or recall petitions and advocate for election or defeat of 
candidates.

2. An employee may exercise their rights as a citizen to vote and to express opinions as an 
individual citizen, but not as a representative of the Town. 

C. No employee may seek election to public office with the Town while still employed by the Town.

D. No employee may use their position to sell, solicit or distribute any campaign material during 
working hours and/or in a uniform used by or identified with the Town government.

E. No employee may use their position to promote or recommend any candidate for public office.

29.2 SOLICITATION OF POLITICAL SUPPORT PROHIBITED

A. No employee of the Town may solicit any contribution in cash or services from any Town
employee to support any candidate for public office, any political party, or ballot measure. 

29.3 TOWN RESOURCES

A. Town resources, including but not limited to facilities, funds, employee services, and email 
accounts, may not be used in any manner to influence an election or solicit support for any 
candidate or political party.

29.4 CONFLICT OF INTEREST



PERSONNEL POLICY 29 Page 2 of 3

CONFLICT OF INTEREST Effective Date:

A. No employee may engage in any business activity or have a financial or other personal interest, 
direct or indirect, which adversely affects the proper discharge of or would tend to impair his/her 
independence of judgment or action in the performance of his/her official duties.  Personal, as 
distinguished from financial interest, includes an interest arising from blood or marriage 
relationship or close business or political association.

B. Town employees shall conduct their private and professional lives in such a manner as to avoid 
adverse reflection upon themselves as employees of the Town.

C. Town employees shall not use their position for personal gain.

D. Town employees shall not accept directly or indirectly any gift, gratuity, loan, fee or any other 
thing of value arising from or offered because of Town employment or any activity connected 
with said employment, except as may be specifically authorized by the Town Manager or 
designee.

E. Some specific examples of conflicts of interest are enumerated below for the guidance of 
employees; however, employees are subject to all State and Town regulations regarding conflict 
of interest, including disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.

1. Canvassing of citizens of the Town, either directly, or indirectly, in order to obtain 
preferential consideration of any appointment.

2. Engaging in or accepting private employment or rendering services for private interest 
which adversely affect the proper discharge of his/her official duties or impair his/her 
independence of judgment or action in the performance of his/her official duties.

3. Disclosure of confidential information concerning the property, government or affairs of 
the Town without proper authorization, or using such information to advance the 
financial or other private interest of himself/herself to others.

4. Appearance on behalf of private or commercial interests before any agency related to
Town activities, or representing private or commercial interests in any action or 
proceedings against the interests of the Town in any litigation to which the Town is a 
party.

5. Having any interest in any contract or purchase made by the Town. The acceptance of 
any gift, favors, travel, etc. from anyone seeking to do business with the town. (See 
Standard Operating Procedure No. 11 - "Guidelines Pertaining to Gifts or Favors" for 
clarification.)

29.5 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT



PERSONNEL POLICY 29 Page 3 of 3

CONFLICT OF INTEREST Effective Date:

A. Town employees are prohibited from engaging in regular or part-time employment that in any 
way violates town policies.

B. Town employee's outside employment shall not interfere in any way with the employee's ability 
to perform his/her assigned work and duties for the Town.

C. To engage in outside employment:
1. The employee must make a request in writing to his/her Department Head seeking 

permission to engage in outside employment.

2. The Department Head has discretion to approve or deny the employee's request to engage 
in outside employment taking into account the following:
a. Employee's job performance 
b. Employee's workload
c. Nature of the outside employment
d. Potential for any conflict of interest 
e. Any other factors deemed relevant

3. The written approval may also set forth conditions that must be met in order for the 
outside employment to be authorized.

D. Department Heads shall deny an employee's request to engage in outside employment when that 
employment has the potential to conflict with Town employment, or be detrimental to the Town 
in any way. The written denial shall set forth the factors and considerations upon which the denial 
is based.

E. Supervisors are responsible for reviewing the performance of employees who engage in outside 
employment. If the supervisor determines that the outside employment is interfering with the
employee's work for the Town, the supervisor shall notify the Department Head and the 
employee's privilege to engage in outside employment shall be rescinded. Such rescission shall be 
in writing.

F. If an employee's request to engage in outside employment has been denied, or if an employee's 
outside employment privileges have been suspended, the employee may seek review by the Town
Manager or designee. The employee shall make such request in writing setting forth all facts and 
considerations which the employee believes are pertinent. The decision of the Town Manager or 
designee shall be in writing and is considered final. The employee may not grieve the decision of 
the Town Manager or designee, except on the grounds that the denial is based on some other type 
of grievable issue.



PERSONNEL POLICY 29 Page 1 of 3

CONFLICT OF INTEREST Effective Date:

Section 1. 29.1 POLITICAL ACTIVITY

A. Town employees shall not engage in THE FOLLOWING political activity. in an Oro Valley 
municipal election.

1. No employee may solicit or attempt to solicit support for a candidate or political party 
involved in an Oro Valley municipal election.

2. No employee may solicit or attempt to solicit support for any candidate, petition, ballot 
measure or political party for any election during working hours, in their workplace, or in 
uniform.

3. 2. Employees may not be members of political committees, officers of partisan political 
committees or nominees for paid elective office FOR ORO VALLEY MUNICIPAL 
ELECTIONS.  Employees may not take part in the management or affairs of political 
parties, campaigns or recall efforts concerning Oro Valley.  

3. An employee may exercise their rights as a citizen to vote and to express opinions as an 
individual citizen, but not as a representative of the Town.

B. No employee may seek election to public office with the Town while still employed by the Town.  
THE FOLLOWING POLITICAL ACTIVITY IS PERMITTED

1. IN THEIR PERSONAL CAPACITY, Eemployees may express opinions, attend meetings 
(NOT IN UNIFORM), vote, sign nomination or recall petitions and advocate for election or 
defeat of candidates.

2. AN EMPLOYEE MAY EXERCISE THEIR RIGHTS AS A CITIZEN TO VOTE AND 
TO EXPRESS OPINIONS AS AN INDIVIDUAL CITIZEN, BUT NOT AS A 
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE TOWN.

C. No employee may seek election to public office with the Town while still employed by the Town.

D. No employee may use their position to sell, solicit or distribute any campaign material.  No 
employee may engage in political activities during working hours and/or in a uniform used by or 
identified with the Town government.

E. No employee may use their position to promote or recommend any candidate for public office on 
Town property.

Section 2. 29.2 SOLICITATION OF POLITICAL SUPPORT PROHIBITED

A. No employee of the Town may solicit any contribution in cash or services from any Town 
employee to support any candidate for public office, ANY POLITICAL PARTY, OR 
BALLOT MEASURE.



PERSONNEL POLICY 29 Page 2 of 3

CONFLICT OF INTEREST Effective Date:

29.3 TOWN RESOURCES

A. Town resources, including but not limited to facilities, funds, employee services, and email 
accounts, may not be used in any manner to influence an election or solicit support for any 
candidate or political party.

Section 3. 29.4 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A. No employee may engage in any business activity or have a financial or other personal interest, 
direct or indirect, which adversely affects the proper discharge of or would tend to impair his/her 
independence of judgment or action in the performance of his/her official duties.  Personal, as 
distinguished from financial interest, includes an interest arising from blood or marriage 
relationship or close business or political association.

B. Town employees shall conduct their private and professional lives in such a manner as to avoid 
adverse reflection upon themselves as employees of the Town.

C. Town employees shall not use their position for personal gain.

D. Town employees shall not accept directly or indirectly any gift, gratuity, loan, fee or any other 
thing of value arising from or offered because of Town employment or any activity connected 
with said employment, except as may be specifically authorized by the Town Manager or 
designee.

E. Some specific examples of conflicts of interest are enumerated below for the guidance of 
employees; however, employees are subject to all State and Town regulations regarding conflict 
of interest, including disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.

1. A. Canvassing of citizens of the Town, either directly, or indirectly, in order to obtain 
preferential consideration of any appointment.

2. B. Engaging in or accepting private employment or rendering services for private interest 
which adversely affect the proper discharge of his/her official duties or impair his/her 
independence of judgment or action in the performance of his/her official duties.

3. C. Disclosure of confidential information concerning the property, government or affairs of 
the Town without proper authorization, or using such information to advance the financial or 
other private interest of himself/herself to others.

4. D. Appearance on behalf of private or commercial interests before any agency related to 
Town activities, or representing private or commercial interests in any action or proceedings 
against the interests of the Town in any litigation to which the Town is a party.



PERSONNEL POLICY 29 Page 3 of 3

CONFLICT OF INTEREST Effective Date:

5. E. Having any interest in any contract or purchase made by the Town. The acceptance of any 
gift, favors, travel, etc. from anyone seeking to do business with the town. (See Standard 
Operating Procedure No. 11 - "Guidelines Pertaining to Gifts or Favors" for clarification.)

Section 4. 29.5 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

A. Town employees are prohibited from engaging in regular or part-time employment that in any 
way violates town policies.

B. Town employee's outside employment shall not interfere in any way with the employee's ability 
to perform his/her assigned work and duties for the Town.

C. To engage in outside employment:
1. The employee must make a request in writing to his/her Department Head seeking permission

to engage in outside employment.

2. The Department Head has discretion to approve or deny the employee's request to engage in
outside employment taking into account the following:

a. Employee's job performance 
b. Employee's workload
c. Nature of the outside employment
d. Potential for any conflict of interest 
e. Any other factors deemed relevant

3. The written approval may also set forth conditions that must be met in order for the outside
employment to be authorized.

D. Department Heads shall deny an employee's request to engage in outside employment when that 
employment has the potential to conflict with Town employment, or be detrimental to the Town 
in any way. The written denial shall set forth the factors and considerations upon which the denial 
is based.

E. Supervisors are responsible for reviewing the performance of employees who engage in outside 
employment. If the supervisor determines that the outside employment is interfering with the
employee's work for the Town, the supervisor shall notify the Department Head and the 
employee's privilege to engage in outside employment shall be rescinded. Such rescission shall be 
in writing.

F. If an employee's request to engage in outside employment has been denied, or if an employee's 
outside employment privileges have been suspended, the employee may seek review by the Town
Manager or designee. The employee shall make such request in writing setting forth all facts and 
considerations which the employee believes are pertinent. The decision of the Town Manager or 
designee shall be in writing and is considered final. The employee may not grieve the decision of 
the Town Manager or designee, except on the grounds that the denial is based on some other type 
of grievable issue.



Human Resources

MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 6, 2013

TO: Mayor and Councilmembers

FROM: Greg Caton, Town Manager
Ron Corbin, Human Resources Director

SUBJECT: Employee Comments on 2013 Personnel Rule Changes

Policy 10.2, Sick Leave, E. 1. If an employee uses sick leave for three (3) or more consecutive working days, the 
Department Head or designee may require the employee to submit a medical verification statement from a health care 
provider verifying the need for the sick leave absence.  A medical diagnosis is not required and should not be requested 
by the supervisor.  
Employee Department Comments HR’s Action 

and/or 
Comments

Patty Hayes DIS I understand that the Town needs to have a policy in place to control 
abuse of sick time and this three day limit attempts to accomplish that 
control.  The proposed policy really seems to limit an employee’s sick 
time to only two consecutive days without further action.  I’m concerned 
that this would encourage people with a contagious illness to return to 
work on day three to avoid submitting a medical verification.  They might 
return to work on the third day, spread their germs, and then be out sick 
again on the following day.  I am thinking of times when a nasty bug has 
made its way through the office and we know it’s a virus (because many 
people have caught the same thing) and medical care won’t make a 
difference and it just has to run its course.  If the policy read that after 
three consecutive days medical verification is needed, this would allow 
someone to be out for three days without further verification but would 
require verification for something that might be more long term than 
three days.  
Thank you for reading my input.

While this 3 day limit is 
meant to curb abuse, 
that is not the only 
reason.  The other 
reason has to do with 
the Family Medical 
Leave Act that defines 
a serious illness at 3 
days.  This allows the 
Town to gather 
documentation to 
support an  FMLA 
claim.  In addition it is 
up to the department 
director at 3 days.



Policy 10.1. Annual Leave, D.1. An employee’s annual leave balance shall not exceed the number of hours they would 
accrue in 18 months of service (see charts above). 2. Employees with more than 20 years of credited service may accrue 
up to 300 hours.
Employee Department Comments HR’s Action and/or 

Comments
Chuck King DIS The only issue I see is the new definition for “Annual Leave Carryover” 

which states within the definition that it shall not exceed the amount an 
employee would earn in an 18 month period. According to policy 10, 
employees with 20 or more years of service may accrue up to 300 hours; 
which would exceed the amount earned in 18 months.

Line 2 clarifies the 
distinction.

Policy 23.6 Employee Testing A. Employee testing will only be conducted given the existence of a reasonable 
suspicion on the part of the management of the Town of Oro Valley. The testing of a police department employee will be 
conducted in compliance with the Oro Valley Police Department’s Rules and Procedures Manual.
Employee Department Comments HR’s Action and/or 

Comments
Aimee Ramsey DIS I noticed in the new policies it sometimes references the 

police separately.  My drug and Alcohol mouse FTA  complaint 
policy may also need to be referenced?  Policy I'd required per 
our receiving federal funding.
Aimee Ramsey

Added

Policy 26, Computer Usage; Email Use, Retention, & Storage; and Internet Policy
Employee Department Comments HR’s Action and/or 

Comments
Larry Stevens Police As confusing as the State Public Records Retention laws are is 

it really feasible to expect everyone with a town email 
address to understand it well enough to be in compliance? I 
think it would take quite a bit of training time to think this is a 
reasonable expectation that's why I think we need to make 
sure our back end solution is everything it can be and then 
include some training for everyone on expectations that the 
back end solution won't address, I realize it's the law and we 
may just be stuck with it as is but each departments records 
coordinator has a big job coming (probably always had 
it)!…………………

HR will work with IT and the 
Clerk’s office to develop a 
comprehensive training program.

Paul Keesler DIS This looks good. The only question I have is in regard to 
section 26.4.D.1 – what is considered the proper storage 
location? Paper in file? Electronic and where?

Each employee must decide on 
the most appropriate storage 
location depending.  This will be 
covered in training.

Catherine 
Hendrix

Police My question is the policy refers to SOP’s.  Do we have SOP’s? Some departments have SOP’s.  
Others have regulations and 
common practices.

Catherine 
Hendrix

Police May I suggest not capitalizing the Standard Operating 
Procedures? (Leaving the acronym of course).  When I read 
things capitalized, I assume there is an official document it's 
referring to and someone may get confused.

N/A

Catherine 
Hendrix

Police One other note, in 26.1(A) the "ELECTRONIC 
COMMUNICATIONS HAVE BECOME THE PREFERRED MEANS 
OF COMMUNICATING IN TODAY’S BUSINESS WORLD." To me 
this dates the policy and could be omitted and not change the 
meaning of the policy.

Removed





Town Council Regular Session Item #   10.           
Meeting Date: 01/15/2014  

Requested by: Councilmember Burns & Councilmember Garner
Submitted By: Julie Bower, Town Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING WAIVER OF THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT
PRIVILEGE IN ORDER TO  MAKE PUBLIC THE TOWN ATTORNEY'S OPINION DATED DECEMBER
5, 2013 REGARDING OPEN MEETING LAW

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Councilmember Burns and Councilmember Garner requested the item be placed on the January 15th
agenda.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to waive the attorney-client privilege in order to make public the Town Attorney's opinion, dated
December 5, 2013, regarding open meeting law.
     
                                                     OR

I MOVE to maintain the attorney-client privilege for the Town Attorney's opinion, dated December 5,
2013, regarding open meeting law.


	Agenda
	1._Plaques of Appreciation to outgoing Board and Commission Members
	2._Proclamation - Buffelgrass
	2._ATT_Proclamation
	A._Approval of Minutes
	A._ATT_11_20_13 Draft Minutes
	A._ATT_12_4_13 Draft Minutes
	B._FY 2013_14 Financial Update Through October 2013
	B._ATT_Attachment A - General Fund
	B._ATT_Attachment B - Highway Fund
	B._ATT_Attachment C - Bed Tax Fund
	B._ATT_Attachment D - Summary All Funds
	C._FY 2013_14 Financial Update Through November 2013
	C._ATT_Attachment A - General Fund
	C._ATT_Attachment B - Highway Fund
	C._ATT_Attachment C - Bed Tax Fund
	C._ATT_Attachment D - Summary All Funds
	D._Final Plat for Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-N
	D._ATT_Attachment 1 - Final Plat
	E._Appointment to Planning & Zoning Commission
	E._ATT_Greg Hitt Application
	E._ATT_Frank Pitts Application
	F._Notice of Intent to Increase Development Impact Fees
	F._ATT_(R)14-01 NOI to Increase Development Impact Fees
	F._ATT_Duncan Assoc Impact Fee Study
	F._ATT_CH2M HILL Impact Fee Study
	AWRDIF PWSDIF CH2MHILL REPORT_10_02_2013
	Appendices_AWRDIF PWSDIF 09_27_2013
	Appendix A_Water Utility Service Area Map_11x17
	Appendix B-1_Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity
	Appendix B-2_Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity
	Appendix C-1_AWRDIF Project Descriptions
	Appendix C-1
	Town of Oro Valley Water Utility
	Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions
	1- La Cholla D-E Blending Booster Station (Transportation)
	Total cost: $ 300,000
	2 – Wheeling of 1,000 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 930,000
	3 – 24-Inch Pipeline – Naranja to La Cholla to Tangerine.  (Transportation)
	Total cost: $ 2,800,000
	4 – Oro Valley Water Utility Naranja CAP Booster Station Upgrade.  (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,200,000
	5 – E to C PRV Naranja Reservoir (OV).  (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 100,000
	6 – Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 12-Inch Pipeline.  (Transportation)
	Total cost: $ 880,000
	7 – Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 16-Inch Pipeline. (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,100,000
	8 – Wheeling of 500 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley. (Transportation).
	Total cost:  $ 3,300,000
	9 – Steam Pump C-D Booster Station. (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,200,000
	10– Big Wash D-E Booster Station. (Transportation )
	Total cost:  $ 800,000
	11 – Inlet/Outlet Modifications at Allied Signal Reservoir. (Transportation)
	Total cost: $ 50,000

	Appendix C-2_AWRDIF Projects Map
	Appendix D-1_PWSDIF Project Descriptions
	Appendix D-1
	Town of Oro Valley Water Utility
	Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions
	1 – Property Acquisition. (Real Property)
	Total cost:  $  500,000
	2 – Palisade Reservoir Facility C-E Booster Station. (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 450,000
	3 – 1.0 Million Gallon Palisades Reservoir.  (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,650,000
	4 – New 16-Inch Pipeline.  (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,650,000

	Appendix E-1_Alternative Water Resources Expansion Related Capital Improvements
	Appendix E-2_Potable Water System Expansion Related Capital Improvements


	G._Annual Legislative Agenda of the Town
	G._ATT_Attachment 1 - (R)14-02 Legislative Agenda
	G._ATT_Attachment 2 - Legislative Agenda Summary
	G._ATT_Attachment 3 - League Resolutions
	G._ATT_Attachment 4 - 51st Legislature
	H._WIFA Loan in the Amount of $5,000,000
	H._ATT_(R)14-03 WIFA Loan
	I._Easement Agreement - Oro Valley Country Club Inc.
	I._ATT_(R)14-04 Easement Agreement - OVCC Inc.
	I._ATT_Attachment 1 - Easement Agreement
	I._ATT_Attachment 2 - Location Map
	1._Election of Vice Mayor
	2._QUALITY INN & SUITES SERIES 7 LIQUOR LICENSE
	2._ATT_Quality Inn and Suites Liquor License - Series 7
	3._FRY'S FOOD & DRUG SERIES 9S LIQUOR LICENSES
	3._ATT_Fry's Food and Drug Series 9S Liquor Licenses
	4._Increases in Water Rates, Fees and Charges for OV Water Utility
	4._ATT_(R)14-06 Water Rate Increase 2013-14
	4._ATT_Exhibit A - Rate Sheet
	4._ATT_Other Fees and Charges
	4._ATT_OVWU Water Rates Analysis
	5._2013-2023 Land Use Assumptions &Infrastructure Improvement Plans
	5._ATT_(R)14-07 Land Use Assumptions and IIP
	5._ATT_Duncan Associates Report
	5._ATT_CH2M HILL Report
	AWRDIF PWSDIF CH2MHILL REPORT_10_02_2013
	Appendices_AWRDIF PWSDIF 09_27_2013
	Appendix A_Water Utility Service Area Map_11x17
	Appendix B-1_Alternative Water Resources Excess Available Capacity
	Appendix B-2_Potable Water System Excess Available Capacity
	Appendix C-1_AWRDIF Project Descriptions
	Appendix C-1
	Town of Oro Valley Water Utility
	Alternative Water Resources Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions
	1- La Cholla D-E Blending Booster Station (Transportation)
	Total cost: $ 300,000
	2 – Wheeling of 1,000 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 930,000
	3 – 24-Inch Pipeline – Naranja to La Cholla to Tangerine.  (Transportation)
	Total cost: $ 2,800,000
	4 – Oro Valley Water Utility Naranja CAP Booster Station Upgrade.  (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,200,000
	5 – E to C PRV Naranja Reservoir (OV).  (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 100,000
	6 – Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 12-Inch Pipeline.  (Transportation)
	Total cost: $ 880,000
	7 – Oro Valley Water Utility CAP 16-Inch Pipeline. (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,100,000
	8 – Wheeling of 500 Acre Feet of CAP Water to Oro Valley. (Transportation).
	Total cost:  $ 3,300,000
	9 – Steam Pump C-D Booster Station. (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,200,000
	10– Big Wash D-E Booster Station. (Transportation )
	Total cost:  $ 800,000
	11 – Inlet/Outlet Modifications at Allied Signal Reservoir. (Transportation)
	Total cost: $ 50,000

	Appendix C-2_AWRDIF Projects Map
	Appendix D-1_PWSDIF Project Descriptions
	Appendix D-1
	Town of Oro Valley Water Utility
	Potable Water System Development Impact Fee Project Descriptions
	1 – Property Acquisition. (Real Property)
	Total cost:  $  500,000
	2 – Palisade Reservoir Facility C-E Booster Station. (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 450,000
	3 – 1.0 Million Gallon Palisades Reservoir.  (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,650,000
	4 – New 16-Inch Pipeline.  (Transportation)
	Total cost:  $ 1,650,000

	Appendix E-1_Alternative Water Resources Expansion Related Capital Improvements
	Appendix E-2_Potable Water System Expansion Related Capital Improvements


	6._Parcel 10T PAD Amendment Request
	6._ATT_Attachment 1 (O)14-01 Rancho Vistoso PAD Amendment
	6._ATT_Attachment 2  Existing Zoning Map
	6._ATT_Attachment 3 Location Map
	6._ATT_Attachment 4 Site Analysis
	6._ATT_Attachment 5 PandZC Staff Report
	6._ATT_Attachment 6 Draft PandZC Minutes
	6._ATT_Attachment 7 Neighborhood Meeting Summary
	6._ATT_Attachment 8 Petition of Concern
	7._Extension of the Temporary Use of Signs
	7._ATT_Aframe and Nonprofit Sign Permits
	7._ATT_Outdoor Display Permits
	8.a._Declaring Amendments to Section 27.3 & Ch 31 a Public Record
	8.a._ATT_(R)14-08 Declaring Amendments to Section 27.3 and Ch 31 a Public Record
	8.b._Public Art Code Amendments
	8.b._ATT_(O)14-02 Public Art Amendments
	8.b._ATT_Attachment 2 - Outside Reviewers
	8.b._ATT_Attachment 3 - Public Art Guidelines
	8.b._ATT_Attachment 4 - Resident Comments
	8.b._ATT_Attachment 5 - Dick Eggerding Comments
	8.b._ATT_Attachment 6 - Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report
	8.b._ATT_Attachment 7 - Planning and Zoning Commission Draft Minutes
	8.b._ATT_Attachment 8 - SAACA Letter
	9._Personnel Rule Changes
	9._ATT_(R)14-05 Amending OV Personnel Manual
	9._ATT_Policy 2
	9._ATT_2-boldstrikethrough
	9._ATT_Policy 9
	9._ATT_9-boldstrikethrough
	9._ATT_Policy 10
	9._ATT_10-boldstrikethrough
	9._ATT_Policy 11
	9._ATT_11-boldstrikethrough
	9._ATT_Policy 16
	9._ATT_16-boldstrikethrough
	9._ATT_Policy 23
	9._ATT_23-boldstrikethrough
	9._ATT_Policy 26
	9._ATT_26-boldstrikethrough
	9._ATT_Policy 29
	9._ATT_29-boldstrikethrough
	9._ATT_Employee Comments
	10._Discussion of waiver of the attorney-client privilege



